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In the District Court of the United States for the

District of Oregon

No. Civ. 3936

PARAMOUNT PEST CONTROL SERVICE,

a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

CHARLES P. BREWER, individually and doing

business as Brewer's Pest Control, ROSALIE
BREWER, his wife, RAYMOND RIGHT-
MIRE, CARL DUNCAN, EARL MERRIOTT
and all other persons associated with said de-

fendants as herein described.

Defendants.

COMPLAINT IN EQUITY

Comes now plaintiff and for cause of suit against

defendants, complains and alleges:

I.

Plaintiff is a citizen of the State of California

and defendants are all citizens of and residents in

the State of Oregon. The matter in controversy is

the restraint of unlawful conduct performed by

the defendants within the District of Oregon, the

recovery of sums of money due the plaintiff, and for

damages by defendants, all of which exceeds, ex-

clusive of interest and costs, the sum of Three

Thousand ($3,000.00) Dollars.
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IT.

Plaintiff was and at all times since July 1, 1946,

has been and now is a private corporation, organ-

ized under and existing by virtue of the laws of the

State of California, with a principal office and place

of business in the City of Oakland, County of Ala-

meda, State of California.

(a) On or about August 25, 1947, said plaintiff

qualified to do business in the State of Oregon by

filing a verified declaration of its desire and pur-

pose to engage in business in said district and state,

together with a duly authenticated copy of its Char-

ter or Articles of Incorporation, and did appoint

a general agent and statutory attorney-in-fa<^t who

is a citizen of and resident in Multnomah County,

Oregon, and did pay a fee for the filing of its dec-

laration and proportionate [1*] part of the an-

nual license fee for the year ending June 30, 1948,

all of which was so satisfactory in substance and

form to the Corporation Commissioner of said

State of Oregon, that said official did on or about

August 25, 1947, issue to plaintiff, under his official

hand and seal, a Certificate of Authority to engage

in business within the State of Oregon, and said

corporation did establish a branch office and place

of business in the said City of Portland.

(b) In addition to the general powers granted to

and vested in plaintiff by the statutes of the states

in which it does business, said plaintiff is, among
other things, particularly organized for and author-

* Page numbering appesring a: foot of page of original certified

Transcript of Record
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ized by its Articles to carry on the business of struc-

tural pest control, make inspections, use insecticides,

fumigants, or allied chemicals for the purpose of

eliminating, exterminating or preventing infestation

of insects, rodents and fungi and other pests in-

vading households or structures, and to buy ingre-

dients, manufacture chemicals and formulae, use

and sell the same, together with all kinds of ma-

chinery or devices for carrying on the business of

structural pest control, and to create and apply for

licenses, trademarks and processes, to manufacture

and sell all tj^pes of chemicals and chemical com-

pounds used in said business, and generally to trans-

act or carry on any other powers necessary, proper

or convenient to carry into effect the foregoing

purposes, including the establishment of branches

in other states than California, and for more than

a year last past said plaintiff has been engaged in

the above described business in the State of Oregon,

(c) Plaintiff has at substantial expense, at great

labor and research, coupled with untiring effort,

assembled for its private and confidential use, a

large number of most valuable and useful receipts

and formulae known and used by plaintiff in its

business, and has acquired valuable and technical

knowledge and experience necessary and requisite

for the proper combining, mixing and compounding

of the same, and knowledge of dependable sources

of supply for obtaining ingredients and the strength

and value thereof. For the same period and in the

same [2] maimer and for the purpose of pest con-
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trol, it has acquired extensive and valuable knowl-

edge of various use of its products and the best

means of distribution thereof to best control all

kinds of pests in various localities, structures and

places infested thereby which are dangerous to the

life, health or property of customeis of i)laintiff,

and said antecedent knowledge is essential to the

successful conduct of such business and particularly

that of plaintiff, and such knowledge is a valuable

trade asset of plaintiff and is by plaintiff disclosed

in whole or in a substantial part to its employees,

including the defendants above named, at the com-

mencement of and during their training in behalf

of plaintiff's business.

(d) In order to carry on said busiiiess in a

unique, sanitary, safe, efficient and exclusive man-

ner, plaintiff does

(i) issue to all agents, employees and repre-

sentatives certain rules and regulations regard-

ing its employees, their conduct, the method of

serving, chemicals and their use and care, and

the names and addresses of accounts or parties'

w^hom the plaintiff is to serve and the contract

to be made for their particular guidance in said

business, and plaintiff does require its em-

ployees to secure from said customers certain

written contracts for service of customers

which, among other things, therein describe the

pest to be eradicated or controlled, the price

therefor and terms of paj^nent and the period

during which said service is to continue;
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(ii) make written agreement, often termed

a franchise, with its principal agent for the

sole and exclusive service by said agent to

plaintiff, which service is confined to a particu-

lar territory and fully defines the relationship,

as more particularly hereinafter disclosed;

(iii) make agreements with its employees to

the end that in view of their training by the

plaintiff, said employees will not give out in-

formation regarding plaintiff's business, as is

more fully hereinafter set forth, all of which

procedure herein described was [3] followed

and performed by plaintiff in establishing its

herein described business in the state and dis-

trict of Oregon;

(iv) services its patrons with what is collo-

quially called "one shot service," meaning iso-

lated single service, or more often under written

contracts giving the price, terms of iDayment,

duration of service, pest to be controlled and

period of service. Said contract service greatly

exceeds the single shot service. All such proce-

dure was instituted and practiced by plaintiff

and subsequently usurped, instituted and prac-

ticed by said defendants in the State of Oregon.

III.

All of said defendants were to a greater or less

extent materially familiar with plaintiff's business,

as above described, and were associated together

and more particularly identified in the public and
customers' minds, as well as among themselves, with

plaintiff's business in the following manner:
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(a) On or about July 1, 1946, plaintiff employed

and defendant Charles P. Brewer accepted and

agreed to act as agent for plaintiff in the State of

Oregon in the business aforesaid, under a sole and

exclusive franchise to render service for and the

sale and use of the products of plaintiff in the busi-

ness aforesaid for a period of ten (10) years after

said date, cancellable on ninety (90) days' written

notice by either party, to the eiTect that the agent

would devote the whole of his time, attention and

energies to promote the interests of the company, to

take all contracts for service in the name of the

company, to purchase his stocks, merchandise and

chemicals from the plaintiff, to procure the sales of

products and promote the service of the plaintiff in

the territory allotted and to hold confidential the

information given him in connection with the plain-

tiff's business, to be responsible for all accounts and

the collection thereof and not to directly or indi-

rectly communicate or divulge to anyone or make

use of any of the trade secrets, formulae, processing

and service of plaintiff's business for the benefit of

anyone other than the [4] plaintiff, and to pay a

proportionate amount of the business to the plain-

tiff and upon the termination of this agreement arid

for a period of three (3) years thereafter to not

directly or indirectly communicate or divulge to

or make use of for the benefit of any person, part-

nership or corporation any of the trade secrets,

formulas, processing methods of the company, or

the names, addresses or requirements of any of the

customers of the company, or any other information
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relating to the company's business which he may

have acquired or learned during his employment,

and will not canvass, solicit or cater to any of the

customers of the company which he may know of

because of his employment by said company, which

at all times herein mentioned refers to the plaintiff,

and which agreement contained other provisions, as

more fully set forth in that certain "Sales Agent's

Agreement with Paramount Pest Control Service"

dated July 1, 1946, made and entered into for a

vahiable consideration, with plaintiff therein called

the '* Company" and defendant Charles P. Brewer

therein called the ''Agent," and subsequently rati-

fied and confirmed, of which agreement, also called

"franchise," a substantial copy in words, letters

and figures is hereto attached and its allegations

by this reference incorporated herein and made a

particular part of this paragraph of this complaint

and for reference marked "Exhibit 1."

That said agreement was on the following dates

in the following manner, verbally modified, ratified

and augmented:

(i) Defendant C. P. Brewer and plaintiff, through

its president, on or about September 20, 1946, at

Portland, Oregon, at the special instance and re-

quest of defendant Brewer and on his representa-

tion that it was too difficult to expand said business

and do all the things he wanted to do to make a

success of said business in Oregon and yet pay to

the plaintiff the 20% of the gross business done by
the agent, as specified in said contract or franchise,
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did orally agree to modify said franchise in the fol-

lowing particulars only, to wit:

That GveA'Y time defendant C. P. Brewer took any

money for his [5] personal use from the business

done by him under said franchise, he would pay

to plaintiff a like sum of money; that such an ar-

rangement would be retroactive to July 1, 1946, an4

continue up to January 1, 1947, by which time de-

fendant Brewer would be profitably established..

Such arrangement was made l)y plaintiff under the

still continuing confidence in the ability and in-

tegrity of defendant Brewei' and with the under-

standing that defendant Charles P. Brewei* was

making and would continue to make a profit and

would not draw out any money except as said busi-

ness would warrant said total withdrawal, and in

all other particulars the provisions in said franchise

contained would continue in full force and effect.

Under the above modification, an indebtedness

from defendant Charles P. Brewer to j)laintiff of

some $1,200 to $1,500 was forgiven, the exact

amount of which is known to said defendant.

(ii) On January 1, 1947, said franchise was again

in full force and effect, and during the months of

January and February of 1947 there became due

and owing thereunder to plaintiff from defendant

Brewer the total sum of $994.25 upon which defend-

ant C. P. Brewer made a payment on February 6th

of $250.00, and again on March 6, 1947, he paid

$250.00, making a total of $500.00 payment, and the

balance of $494.25 was paid March 13, 1947, but



10 Paramount Pest Control Service

the franchise obligations for the months of March,

April, May, June and July, amounting to the sum

of $2,675.41 were not paid and demand was made

therefor upon the defendant Charles P. Brew^er and

he refused to pay the same, and on or about June

20, 1947, at the special instance and request of de-

fendant Charles P. Brewer and under plaintiff's

continuing confidence in his sincerity, ability and

integrity, plaintiff and defendant Charles P.

Brewer again made a mutual modification of the

terms of payment of said franchise and did compro-

mise all sums due under said franchise and its part

time modification, and agreed that for the period

from July 1, 1946, to June 30, 1947, the total sum of

money due, owing and unpaid by defendant Charles

P. Brewer to plamtiff was $3,359.61, and said com-

promise was satisfactory [6] and agreed to by the

defendant Charles P. Brew^er, and upon which he

made a payment of $259.61 on July 9, 1947, and,

with other credits allowed, left a balance of money
still due, omng and unpaid by defendant Charles P.

Brewer to plaintiff of $2,507.41, for which demand
has been made, and defendant Charles P. Brewer

has failed, neglected and refused to pay the same,

(iii) Said franchise agreement had never been

cancelled by either party and was ratified by pay-

ments as aforesaid and was from July 1, 1947, up
to and including August 1, 1947, in full force and
effect and under the terms thereof defendant

Charles P. Brewer owed the plaintiff for said month
of July, 1947, the sum of $478.15 for which demand
has been made and which is now due, owing and
unpaid.
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(iv) Still having confidence in the a})ility and

integrity of defendant Charles P. Brewer and at

his special instance and request and as an r.id by

the plaintiff to said defendant in building up the

business to the profit of both parties and because

defendant Charles P. Brewer complained he could

not do it alone, plaintiff and defendant Charles P.

Brewer on or about January 20, 1947, at Portland,

Oregon, agreed to augment said franchise agree-

ment with additional help and compensation, and

mutually and orally agreed as follows:

Plaintiff would and did send a salesman and serv-

iceman from its main office at Oakland, California,

to Eastern Oregon territory to there and then build

up a mutual business, and plaintiff would pay the

salaries and expenses thereof in the first instance,

and any profit or loss and expense of said venture

would be shaved equally between plaintiff and de-

fendant Charles P. Brewer;

That the total expense of said undertaking was

$1,921.74 of which defendant's share was $960.87

and the immediate proceeds from said undertaking,

not including the future benefits to the said business

thereby established, was $1,317.00 of which plaintiff

was entitled to one-half or $658.50, or a total amount

due plaintiff from defendant under this special con-

tract of $1,619.37, and demand has been [7] made
for said sum due, owing and unpaid and defendant

Charles P. Brewer has refused to pay the same.

(b) That defendants Raymond Rightmire and
Carl Duncan are both residents of and inhabitants
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in the State of Oregon and were employed by plain-

tiff for some time prior to July, 1947, and each for

himself and as a condition of employment did sign

and deliver to plaintiff its agreement in writing in

words, letters and figures substantially as follows,

to wit:

"Because I do have a limited knowledge of

the exterminating, pest control, or termite busi-

ness, and do not know any formulas, processes,

methods, or other trade secrets, thereof, I agree

not to give out any learned information such as

formulas or customs, or to go to work for any

other pest control firm for a period of three

(3) years after the termination of my employ-

ment wdth this company, in the district in which

I am now working.''

(c) Defendant Rosalie Brewer is now and at all

times herein mentioned was the wife of the defend-

ant, Charles P. Brewer, and a resident of and an

inhabitant in the State of Oregon and was book-

keeper for said defendant and in partial manage-

ment of plaintiff's ofl&ce at Portland, Oregon, and

in complete management upon the absence of de-

fendant Charles P. Brewer, and was authorized to

and did sign checks of the plaintiff, together with

her defendant husband, and either in whole or in

part substantially and materially knew all of the

matters and things herein alleged in connection with

plaintiff's business and did participate in depriving

plaintiff of its business, as hereinafter more fully

alleged.



; vs. Charles P. Brewer, et al. 13

(d) Defendant Earl Merriott is now and at all

times herein mentioned has been a resident of and

an inhabitant in the State of Oregon and was em-

ployed by plaintiff on or about February 3, 1947,

through the action of defendant Charles P. Brewer

who, had he done as required by his agreement,

would have signed defendant Merriott upon a con-

tract similar to that of said defendants Duncan and

Rightmire, but defendant Merriott knew all, or sub-

stantially all, of the matters and things herein

alleged and was particularly familiar with formu-

las, methods, chemicals [8] and service of plaintiff,

and elected to associate himself with the defend-

ants, as hereinafter described.

IV.

Said defendants were for various periods of time

prior to August 1, 1947, either in the employment

or service directly or indirectly of i)laintiff and

thereby possessed of the knowledge of plaintiff's

business, its chemicals, methods of application, all

as above described, and all the patrons and cus-

tomers of plaintiff and their addresses who were
either under contract with or served by the plain-

tiff; that said employment of defendants by plaintiff

terminated by voluntary act of defendants in ac-

cordance with the scheme hereinafter described, on
August 1, 1947, and for some time prior thereto

and during their employment, the exact time being

to the plaintiff unknown, defendants and eadi of

them with the others did combine, conspire, con-

federate, agree and cooperate among themselves and
with each other to do the following things:
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(1) to breach and refuse to perform their indi-

vidual contracts and agreements or employment

with this plaintiff and to aid and assist each other

in such purpose and scheme;

(2) to acquire for themselves and for the benefit

of each other and their joint association all the

knowledge defendants could of plaintiff's business,

chemicals, formulae, material and methods, as here-

inabove described, together with the names and ad-

dresses of all patrons and customers or contacts of

plaintiff

;

(3) to serve plaintiff's customers well and thereby

to build up a good will for themselves thereafter,

where the customer would know only the attending

defendant or defendants as the party serving said

customer in the work of pest control and to thereby

be able by such personal contact to later acquire

this account for their own use and benefit and to the

exclusion of that of the plaintiff;

(4) for themselves to take over, acquire, hold

and serve permanently all the customers and pa-

trons of plaintiff immediately upon the [9] termina-

tion of their employment which they then and there

contemplated doing when they had sufficiently estab-

lished their o\yji good will with customers of plain-

tiff which was to be done during a period of three

years immediately following the termination of

their employment and to take unto either their

association or to themselves all money of the plain-

tiff, its methods, chemicals, systems, service, pa-

trons, business, equipment and profits and place

themselves in relation to the customer in the identi-
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cal position pi'eviously occupied l)y ])laintiff, and

to do for all customers of i)laintiff the identical

or similar scivice which they liad performed while

in the employ or association with plaintiff so that

in the customers' mind there would be no distinc-

tion in the matter of service;

(5) to cause customers or patrons of plaintiff to

hr(\ak their contracts with plaintiif or to cease their

single shot service in favor of themselves and to

advise and represent to patrons that plaintiff was

liquidating or going out of business or no longer

serving them, and that they were taking over the

business and would carry on in identically the same

efficient and satisfactory manner as they had pre-

viously done and to do so quickly and effectively,

thereby intending to acquire said plaintiff's busi-

ness prior to the time the plaintiff would have any

opportunity to reestablish its business, procure the

necessary trained personnel involved in its service

and the equipment necessary to serve the customers

either mider contract or single shot service and

thereby defendants would acquire all the business

of plaintiff;

(6) to ignore the territorial limits of said fran-

chise and go into the states of Idaho or Washington
and by application of plaintiff's products, methods
and equipment to establish for themselves a busi-

ness in said localities;

All of which conspiracy, scheme and plan said

defendants are now performing and carrying into

effect by their joint and several action. [10]
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Y.

To effect said conspiracy and scheme of self-en-

richment, defendants, either jointly or severally,

but always with the purpose of aiding and abetting

their organization and each other, did do and ac-

complish the followmg overt acts, to wit

:

(1) On July 24, 1947, and after defendant

Charles B. Brewer felt himself sufficiently en-

trenched in the favor of the customers of said plain-

tiff, said defendant Charles P. Brewer did in

writing and without the ninety days' notice specified

in his contract, make, sign and deliver an instru-

ment terminating his franchise as of August 1,

1947, of which the following in words, letters and

figures is substantially a copy:

''July 24, 1947.

''Mr. T. C. Sibert

638 - 16th St.

Oakland 12, Calif.

"Dear Ted:

"Will you please except my resignation and

the termination of my franchise as of August

1, 1947.

"I will, before August 1, take inventory of

all supplies and equiptment owned by me, so

that we will be able to effect a cash settlement

at that time. If you care to buy my equiptment

that will be alright with me, otherwise I'll keep

it as I could maybe use it in the future.
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*' Please advise me as to whether you want to

audit the books, or if J should have it done

here by a registered C.P.A.

Respectfully yours,

CHARLES P. P>REWER.'^

(2) took all the chemicals and equipment previ-

ously used and continuing to use some parts thereof

by delivering some and keeping the residue.

(3) Defendant Charles P. Brewer bought from a

third party an automobile with plaintiff's money,

taking the same in his own name and mortgaging it

to a bank whereby repossession by plaintiff was

prevented, which automobile he continues to use

in the business of said defendants.

(4) Defendant, Rosalie Brewer, under the con-

spiracy and scheme [11] herein described, did make,

execute and acknowledge on July 30, 1947, a cer-

tain "Certificate of Assumed Business Name"
wherein the said Rosalie Brewer (she not being

under the same contract or franchise with her hus-

band) did falsely and fraudulently declare that the

real and true names and post office addresses of the

persons conducting, having an interest in or intend-

ing to conduct the business of pest control under

the name and style of "Brewer Pest Control" lo-

cated at Portland, Multnomah County, Oregon,

were the following, to wit: "Rosalie Brewer, post

office address 4929 Northeast 28th Avenue, Port-

land, Oregon," which assumed business name de-

fendants caused to be recorded in Book 61, Record
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of Assumed Business Names of Multnomah County,

Oregon, at page 212 thereof.

Subsequently, at an appropriate time, when de-

fendants felt they were no longer in danger of any

action on the part of this plaintiff, the said defend-

ant Rosalie Brewer did on, to-wit, August 27, 1947,

make, sign and acknowledge a "Certificate of Ee-

tirement" stating falsely and fraudulent that she

no longer had any interest or business in "Brewer's

Pest Control," and concurrently with said defend-

ant Rosalie Brewer filing her Certificate of Retire-

ment, the said defendant Charles P. Brewer did

falsely and fraudulently file a "Certificate of As-

sumed Business Name" in which he declared that

the person conducting, having an interest in and

intending to conduct the business of pest control

under the assumed business name of "Brewer's

Pest Control" was "Charles P. Brewer, post office

address 4929 N. E. 28th Avenue, Portland 11,

Oregon";

All of the above described action being in further-

ance and execution of the conspiracy and associa-

tion hereinabove described, and defendant Charles

P. Brewer continues to operate under said alleged

assumed name, and all of said defendants have so-

licited, served and applied plaintiff's methods and

products under the name of "Brewer's Pest Con-

trol" or similar identification of their association.

(5) That the above described action of acquiring

said business [12] of i3laintiff was by defendants

Charles P. Brewer, Raymond Rightmire and Carl
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Duncan done knowing!}^ and intentionally, oonti-ary

to and in violation of their agreement not to go

to work Cor any other pest conti'ol firir) f'oi- a ])eriod

of thi-ee years after the termination of their em-

ployment with phiintiff company in the district in

which they were working, and defendants Rosalie

Brewer and Earl Merriott were knowingly and in-

tentionally aiding and abetting, under their scheme

and conspiracy for self-enrichment, the said defend-

ants Charles P. Brewer, Raymond Rightmire and

Carl Duncan in the manner hereinabove alleged.

(6) That all of said defendants knowingly and

intentionally aided defendant Charles P. Brewer in

the violation of his franchise contract in the follow-

ing particulars:

(a) In not serving the Compaiiy faithfully,

diligently and in accordance with his best abili-

ties in all respects and in not using his

utmost endeavors to promote the interests of

the Company;

(b) did not take all contracts for work and

service to be rendered by the Agent to custom-

ers in the name of the Company

;

(c) did not aid in causing the proceeds of

said service to be paid to plaintiff and did not

pay any sums arising from said business to

plaintitf

;

(d) in not purchasing all of his supplies

from the plaintiff;

(e) did not use every effort in the ])romotion

and sale of the products of plaintiff or do what-
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ever was necessary or required by the plaintiff

to increase the business of said plaintiff;

(f ) did take from the records of the plaintiff

the private information of plaintiff, including

copies of the names and addresses of customers,

and used it against the plaintiff and in further-

ance of their own business;

(g) did not deliver up to the plaintiff on

demand all of the property, cards, information,

stock, merchandise, chemicals, equipment or in-

strumentalities used in connection with said

business

;

(h) while making collections, did not make

himself responsible [13] for all accounts served

in his territory and for the collection thereof

and for all men working for or under him in

said territory

;

(i) by canvassing, soliciting or catering to

any and all of the customers of the plaintiff

which he had known because of his employment

by said plaintiff;

(j) by taking to themselves rather than pro-

tecting trade secrets, formulas, methods, proc-

esses and the like and all customer lists,

operation data discovered, acquired or prepared

during their employment, as the sole property

of the Company.

That all of said defendants, since the cessation

of their employment with the plaintiff and under

the conspiracy and scheme herein alleged, have

done the identical or similar service for the de-
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fendant Charles P. Brewer or their organization

which they did and performed for this ])laintiff and

which service is done for tlicir personal and asso-

ciated enrichment and benefit and have taken unto

themselves all of the business created by the plain-

tiff through its agents and employees and intended

to be and previously acknowledged by said defend-

ants as the business solely owned and served by

the plaintiff.

VI.

That a full and complete accounting and state-

ment of the obligations due, owing and unpaid to

plaintiff from said defendants, individually or col-

lectively, is as follows:

(1) From Defendant Charles P. Brewer:

(a) Balance due under the settlement as of

June 30, 1947, from defendant Charles P.

Brewer to plaintiff, $3,100.00;

(b) Due, as aforesaid, on the July 1947 fran-

chise account, $478.15;

(c) Investment of plaintiff, which was a total

investment in furniture, fixtures, equipment

and tools that were on the territory at the

time Charles P. Brewer took his franchise and

which he received, $1,259.63;

(d) Defendant Charles P. Brew^er failed to

turn in the [14] balance of the assets herein-

after mentioned and which plaintiff would pre-

fer in kind, but which was of the reasonable

sum of $973.00;
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(e) Under the modified agreement between

defendant Charles P. Brewer and plaintiff

herein, whereby said defendant was to pay to

plaintiff the same sum of money that took from

the business for himself, an accounting has

disclosed that there were some twenty-one items

either in his favor personally or charged to ex-

pense wherein there were no invoices or sup-

porting data on tile in said Brewer's office to

show that the same were actually paid or that

they were legitimate expenses of the business

or otherwise deductible from the earnings of

the Agent. These amounted to the sum of

$925.89 and until and imless said defendant

Brewer properly accounts for the same, they

are charged against his account as unauthorized

withdrawals

;

(f) Under the special agreement hereinbe-

fore alleged in Paragraph III (a) (iv) on

page 7 hereof, the sum of $1,619.37 is due,

owing and unpaid from said defendant Brewer

to Plaintiff;

The above liabilities making a total of

$8,356.34;

(g) There is to be credited to defendant

Charles P. Brewer's account the following:

Accounts receivable not collected by defend-

ant Charles P. Brew^er, as specified in said con-

tract, but collected b}^ the plaintiff and credited

to said defendant, $1,297.25;

Inventory turned in by defendant Charles P.

Brewer of $540.71;



vs, Charles P. Brewer, et aJ. 23

Turned, in by defendant Charles I*. IJrewer

on the original investment of i>laintifT in the

assets, $1,465.71;

The above credits making a total of $3,303.67,

and leaving a balance of $5,052.67 due under

contractual obligation.

(2) Damage caused by said defendants to this

plaintiff by virtue of their conduct, as hereinbefore

described, includes the following:

(a) When said defendants started to usurp

and take over all [15] of plaintiff's contracts,

plaintiff sent men into said territory to inter-

view and hold such accounts as j)laintiff could,

and the action of said defendants, as herein de-

scribed, damaged plaintiff m the amount of said

expense, consisting of $3,596.95.

(b) There were unexpired contracts between

plaintiif and its customers which were taken

over and served by the defendants, which con-

tracts were in writing and signed for a year

but which, before their unexpired period had

run, were cancelled by customers because de-

fendants were serving them, and the sum of

money lost by virtue of the cancellation of said

contracts because of the action of said defend-

ants, is the sum of $2,481.50.

(c) There were other contracts between

plaintiff and its customers which were in writ-

ing and the original term thereof had ex^ured,

but which written contracts provided that the

terms of said written agreement with the cus-
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tomer were to continue after the expiration

of the original term "imtil cancelled in writing

by either party," and said contracts were not

cancelled in writing or otherwise until the de-

fendants themselves, by their concerted action,

usurped and took over the service covered in

said written agreements, and the damage occa-

sioned by defendants to plaintiff in taking over

such service represented a sum of $775.00.

(d) When said defendants, by their con-

certed action, took over the business of plaintiff

in O'regon and other localities, men Avho were

trained and valuable to the plaintiff's service

in California and Washington were taken away

from their respective localities and the business

of this plaintiff and sent to Oregon for the pur-

pose of serving plaintiff's business here, and

in this process the plaintiff lost money which

constitutes an item of damage occasioned by

these defendants against this plaintiff and which

item of damage, if it is ascertainable, should be

included herein as a claim against said defend-

ants, and unless the same is ascertainable (and

at the present time plaintiff has no means of

definitely ascertaining this amount), it is al-

leged that this [16] certain damage, but in-

definite in amount, constitutes an additional

grounds for injunction and equitable relief.

(e) That the defendants, and each of them,

have been actively engaged since August 1, 1947,

and prior thereto, in taking away the business
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and accounts, either under contra^-t or single

shot, of ])laintiff, in vi(>lation of tlieir three-

year non-eonii)etitive agreement, as herein de-

scribed, and plaintiff alleges that this damage

has amounted to approximately the sum of

$1,500.00 per month, or a damage of a total

amount of $4,500.00 to the present date and

continuing, and increasing as long as defend-

ants are permitted to operate under said C(jn-

spiracy.

VII.

(a) Plaintiff has either performed and there has

occurred all conditions precedent to the bringing of

this suit or defendants' conduct has made the same

impossible or unnecessary.

(b) Plaintiff has set forth herein the names and

activities of all parties known to it as pai'ticipating

in the conspiracy, and alleges that it is informed

and believes that there are others connected with

said defendants in this conspiracy, but whose names

and addresses are not known at this time to this

plaintiff.

VIII.

In addition to the sums of money due and the

damages occasioned to plaintiff by defendants

jointly and severally as above described, said de-

fendants have jointly and severally caused damage
to plaintiff which is difficult and impossible of ascer-

tainment because of the nature of defendants' ac-

tions, and has caused plaintiff to expend large sums

of money in the protection of its rights, and unless
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restrained by action of this Court, said defendants

will jointly and severally continue in said course

of conduct and create further irreparable cost and

damage to plaintiff ; that plaintiff has no plain, ade-

quate or speedy remedy at law, but only in this

court of equity.

Wherefore, Plaintiff Prays a judgment of this

Honorable Court as [17] follows:

(1) For a temporary restraining order, enjoining

said defendants and all persons now unknown to

plaintiff and similarly engaged with defendants, as

herein described, and each of them, from continuing

their unlawful and unconscionable conduct, all as

above mentioned, and, upon final hearing of this

cause on the merits, that said temporary restraining

order be made a permanent injunction against de-

fendants and each of them under penalty of con-

tempt of court if defendants, or either of them,

continue in said practice herein described or in con-

flict with their agreements;

(2) Against said defendants, and each of them,

for such sums of money as the Court may find are

due, under the above allegations, to plaintiff either

under contract or in damages, and to pay over to

plaintiff all the gains, profits and advantages de-

rived by defendants, or either of them, from their

unlawful conduct, as herein described, or such sum

of damages as the Court finds proper;

(3) RequiHng defendants to specifically perform

said agreement in delivering up to this plaintiff all

merchandise, stock, chemicals, equipment, formulas



vs. Charles P. Brewer, et al, 27

and secret trade information used exclusively in

the above described business of plaintiff and

acquired at great expense by plaintiff and protected

by contract from falling into the hands of nnserup-

idons and imlawful competitors, and that the sanie

be impounded in court during the pendency cf this

action

;

(4) For plaintiff's costs heiein; and

(5) Such other, further or different relief as to

this Honorable Court may seem just and equitable

in the premises

;

(6) Plaintiff demands of defendants, and each of

them, that within fifteen (15) days from the service

hereof, each of said defendants make the following

answers separately and fully, in writing and under

oath, for the purposes of this actic n only and subject

to all pertinent objections to admissibility which

may be interposed at the trial:

(a) That each of the following documents pleaded

in this [IS] Complaint are genuine:

(i) the contract or franchise of July 1. 1^46.

between plaintiff and defendant Charles P.

Brewer, hereto attached as "Exhibit 1";

(ii) the agreement between plaintiff and em-

ployees, as described in Paragraph III (b) on

page 8 hereof;

(iii) the letter of resignation, as described in

Paragraph V on page 11 hereof.

(b) That each of the following statements are

true:

(i) That defendants are jointly and severally

(1) soliciting or (2) serving customers or
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patrons for pest control service who were for-

merly (1) under contract with plaintiff for

similar service or (2) who were served by plain-

tiff for pest control.

(ii) That upon service of customers by the

defendants, or either of them, the defendants

used the following notice

:

** Patrons

This establishment inspected and serviced

each month for disease carrying pests

By
Brewer's Pest Control

State-Wide

4929 N. E. 28th Avenue, Portland 11, Oregon

1947 WEBster8082"

(c) Submit a list of all patrons and customers

and their addresses served by defendants, or either

of them, and whom they are now serving or have

served since August 1, 1947, in the matter of pest

control.

Dated at Portland, Oregon, this 22nd day of

October, 1947.

KENNETH C. GILLIS,

F. LEO SMITH,
ROBERT R. RANKIN,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed October 24, 1947. [19]
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EXHIBIT No. ]

SALES AdENT'SAGRKEMENI^ WITH PAKA-
MOUNT PEST CONTROL SP^RVK.'E

Tliis Agveement executed in duplicate at Oak-

land, California, this 1st day of July, 1946, by the

Paramount Pest Control Service, a corporation,

hereinafter called the Company, and Charles P.

Brewer of Portland, Oregon, hereinafter called the

Agent,

Witnesseth

:

1. The Company hereby grants to the Agent, and

the Agent does hereby accept the sole and exclusive

franchise to represent the Company in i-endering

services for and selling and using the products of

the Company in that certain territory described as

follows, to wit: The entire State of Oregon. Any

deviation shall be in writing with Franchise holders

of adjoining states, a copy of which must be sent to

Company.

It is understood and agreed that this franchise

only covers such services and i)roducts as can be

rendered, used and sold by Agent under a Group

''E" Owners and Operators License issued by the

State of California, and that nothing herein con-

tained shall prevent Companj^ from rendering,. using

and selling services and products of the Company
in said territory which are not covered by said Group

*'E" Owners and Operators License, or which can-

not be rendered, used or sold by Agent by reason of

the limitations of said License.
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It is agreed, however, that if and when Agent

secures a License to render services for and to use

and sell products of the Company in addition to those

covered by Group *^E" Owners and Operators Li-

cense, that Agent shall then have the right to [20]

and he is hereby granted the Exclusive Franchise

imder the terms and conditions of this contract for

such additional services and products.

2. This Agreement shall become effective on the

1st day of July, 1946, and shall, unless sooner ter-

minated as herein provided, continue in full force

and effect for a period of ten (10) years from said

date. Said agreement may be concelled by either

party at any time on ninety days' written notice to

the other. At the end of said period of ten (10)

years provided for herein, in the event that all of

the terms and conditions of this agreement have

been kept and performed, said agreement shall

thereby be automatically renewed for the same

period of yeai's as originally granted for, and there-

after shall continue for successive like periods un-

less cancelled, as provided herein.

3. The Agent shall devote the whole of his time,

attention and energies to the performance of such

duties as may from time to time be assigned to him

by the Company, and shall not either directly or in-

directly, alone, or in partnership, be connected with

or concerned in any other business or emplojTnent

whatsoever during the said term of his employment,

and shall serve the Company faithfully, diligently

and according to his best abilities in all respects,

and use his utmost endeavors to promote the inter-

ests of the Company.
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4. All contrac'ts for woik and services to be ren-

dered by Ap^ent to customers shall be taken in the

name of the Company, the orij^inal of said contract

shall, upon its execution, be fonvarded to the Com-

pany, tlio Agent retaining a Copy and the Customer

being [21] furnished a copy.

5. Agent agrees to pay Company in the manner

hereinafter provided for such Franchise twenty

(20%) per cent of the gross business done by Agent.

As compensation for his sers'ices. Agent shall retain

all gross profits over said twenty per cent (20%)
above mentioned.

6. From his compensation. Agent agrees to pay

the following expenses of maintaining said business

in said territory, namely:

a. Wages Service

b. Materials & Expense Service

c. Wages Salesmen

d. Commissions

e. Advertising

f. Auto Expense—Gas, Oil & Repairs

g. Dei)reciation

h. Insurance

i. Taxes & Licenses

j. Traveling Expense

k. Wages Office

1. Bad Del)ts

m. Donations

n. Gas Light & Water
o. Legal & Accounting

p. Miscellaneous Expense
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q. Office Expense—Stationery, Printing &

Supplies

r. Telephone & Telegraph

s. Discounts & Allowance—Received

t. Profit & Loss on Sales of Capital Assets

u. Tithing

V. Discounts & Allowance—Paid

w. Interest Paid

together with such other expense as in the judgment

of the Company should be charged against said

business.

7. Company agrees that from the amount due

the Company under paragraph 5, there shall be

deducted an amount equal to ten per cent (10%)

thereof, which shall be paid to the Christian Service

Foundation, a non-profit charitable organization.

Agent agrees that from the monthly net profit of

said business shall be deducted an amount equal to

ten per cent (10%) of said net profit, [22] which

shall be paid to said Christian Service Foundation.

8. Agent shall open a bank account in the name

of the Company and shall deposit therein all moneys

received by him in connection with said business.

Moneys shall be drawn out of said account only

upon the signature of Agent and some employee of

Agent, to be designated by Agent.

9. Agent shall keej^ books of account showing

all transactions in said business. Said books shall be

opened by Company Auditor and shall then be main-

tained to conform with the systems used by Com-

pany and as directed by said Auditor. Agent agrees
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that all times tlic rcprcsciitativos of tlu* ('(>rn]>any

shall have free access to the oflfices of Agent and to

all books, records, materials and docnments used

by said Agent in connection with the business cov-

ered by this contract.

10. The Company Auditor shall audit the books

of Agent immediately after the last day of each and

every month during the life of this contract, and

prepare a statement of the business done during the

previous month by Agent, together with a i)rotit

and loss statement for said previous month. Upon
the completion of said statement and presentation of

a copy thereof to Agent, said Agent agrees to forth-

with deliver to said Auditor a check payable to

Company for the amount due Company under said

statement, less ten per cent (10%) thereof; a check

payable to Christian Service Foundation for the ten

per cent (10%) of the amount due Company under

said statement, and a check payable to Christian

Service Foundation for an amount equal to ten per

cent (10%) of agent's net profits, as shown by said

statements. Said checks, in any event, must be de-

livered on or before the 10th day of the month ih

which they are due. It is agreed by both parti^

that the decision of the Auditor as to the correctness

of said statement and of all items listed thereoii

shall be tinal and conclusive as [23] to both parties.

11. Agent shall be allowed deductions from gross

business acquired in any one month as shown by his

books for cancellations of any business, and allow-

ance slips duly allowed. These deductions shall be
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made from the gross business of the next succeed-

ing month after the month when such cancellations

or allowance slips occur.

Agent shall stand all loss for failure to make col-

lections.

12. The Agent shall maintain an office in his ter-

ritory and shall cause the name of the Company, as

well as his own, to be properly listed in the local

telephone director)^ in the classified section thereof,

and shall display upon the windows of any office the

name of the Company as well as his own name, as

Agent. At the time of signing of this agreement, the

Company agrees to furnish him with such trucks

and equipment as in its judgment is necessary for

his use. Thereafter Agent agrees to purchase on his

own account such additional trucks and equipment

as shall be necessary to handle his said business.

.13. Upon the signing of this contract, Agent

agrees to purchase from Company such stock, mer-

chandise, chemicals and materials as will provide

him with such quantity of each as will meet the

needs of his business for the next succeeding thirty

days and that he will contiinie to maintain such

quantities of each as will meet the needs of his

business for a thirty day period. Notice of his in-

tention to purchase any of the above must be given

at least thirty days in advance of the delivery date.

14. The Agent agrees to use every eifort in the

promotion and sale of the products and services of

the Company in the above territory and do what

ever shall be necessary or required by the Company
to increase the business of said Company in said

territory.
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15. Each oi* tlie ])ai'ti('s hereto sliall Itc excused

from the ix'rformaiice of tlie tenus and conditionfi

lierein contnined, and tliis agi'ecnieril and nil the

terms and conditions herein contained are suhject

to such interference, interni])tion or cessation as

may be caused by acts of God, strikes, lock-outs,

floods, boycotts, })icketing, acts of the public enemy,

governmental ])riority regidations, laws, regulations

or executive orders of tlie Government of the United

States, or any other cause or condition over which

the party has no control.

1(). The Company agrees to furnish the Agent

all advertising matter, contract forms, letterheads

and any other printed matter which, in the opinion

of the Company, is necessary in the operation of the

business of the Agent, and which Agent agrees^ ^o

pay for. All advertising, window displays and list-

ings shall conform to the methods as given to him

by the Company.

17. It is expressly understood and agreed by the

Agent that all of the rules and regulations of the

Company which are now printed and in full force

and effect, or any amendments that may be ra'ad^

hereafter, or any subseque.st rules and regulations

made by the Company, shall be and they are lierieby

declared a part of this contract and binding upon

the Agent, and the Company agrees to furnish the

Agent with a copy of any rules and regulations now
in force, and to immediately furnish him with any

amendments or new rules and regulations that mey
be hereafter adopted. [25]
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18. The Agent agrees to at all times keep intact

all of the Communications and other material given

to him by the Company as confidential information,

and that in the event of the termination of this

agreement he will surrender all of the same to the

Company or its designated agent, and will not at or

subsequent to the termination of this agreement

divulge such confidential information to anyone out-

side of the organization.

19. Any notice to be given under the terms of

this agreement by the Company to the Agent may
be given by placing the same in a sealed envelope

addressed to the Agent at , and said sealed

envelope containing the notice so addressed, with

postage thereon prepaid, shall be deposited in the

United States Post Office at Oakland, California or

any other place. In the event that the principal

place of business of the Agent may be changed, and

the Company is notified of said fact prior to the

mailing of any notice under this agreement, then

said notice shall be sent to the address where the

principal place of business is then located. Upon
such deposit being made, as aforesaid, the notice

shall, for all purposes of this agreement, be com-

plete.

20. In the event of the termination of this agree-

ment, Agent promises and agrees to surrender and

deliver to the Company, upon demand, possession of

the office, all of the records, cards, information,

stock, merchandise, chemicals, equipment and any

and all instrumentalities connected with and used

in his said business. Said demand may be made at
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any time after notice of termination is received or

served.

21. Should Agent own llic real property and

bnildinij^ in which his said office is located at the time

of the termination of this agreement for any cause,

then said Agent agrees to and does [2G] hereby

grant Company the right and option, for a period

of ninety days after the termination of this con-

tract, to purchase said property at the fair market

value thereof.

22. In the event of the termination of this agree-

ment the Company agrees to i)ay Agent, or his legal

representatives, the cost of all stock, merchandise,

chemicals and equipment owned by Agent and used

in connection with said business, less any deprecia-

tion on same that appeal's on the books.

23. Neither this agreement nor any interest

therein sliall be assignable at the hands of said

Agent, except as hereinafter provided, and in the

event any assignment is made by the Agent for the

benefit of creditors, or if said Agent be adjudged a

bankinipt, whether voluntary or involuntary, or if a

receiver be appointed in any proceedings against

the Agent, this agreement and all the rights of the

Agent thereunder shall immediately terminate.

24. Agent agrees to cover his employees and

property with all necessaiy fire, theft, liability and

compensation insurance with proper policies, to be

approved by Company, and further agrees to take

out such other insurance as Company shall deem
necessary, all to be paid for by Agent, and which

shall be included as an expense against his said

business.
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25. The Agent agrees that he will not at any

time during the life of this agreement mortgage,

hypothecate, pledge or seek to encmiiber any mer-

chandise, personal property or equipment in his

possession consigned to him by the Company.

26. Agent agrees that he will at all times conduct

his business in accordance with and conform to all

municipal, county, state and federal statutes, laws,

ordinances, regulations and executive orders. [27]

27. It is agreed that the laws of the State of

California shall govern any and all questions that

at any time may arise concerning the validity, con-

struction or interpretation of this agreement, or any

provision thereof, and the parties hereto agree that

should any civil action be filed upon this agreement,

or for any violation thereof, that the same shall be

filed in the Superior Court of the State of Califor-

nia, in and for the County of Alameda, which said

Court is hereby given exclusive jurisdiction of any

such action. Time is expressly agreed to be of the

essence thereof.

28. A waiver by the Company of any branch or

any term or condition of this agreement shall not be

construed in any way as a waiver of a further, like,

or other breach of this agreement.

29. The Company reserves the right to interview

and be satisfied with and approve all persons em-

ployed by the Agent in his territory, and the Agent

agrees that he will not employ any person without

first securing the approval of said Company. Agent

agrees to discharge any person employed unsatis-

factory to Comimny, on demand.
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30. Tlic; Agent agrees to be responsible for all

accounts served in his territory, for the collection

of all accounts in his territory, and for all men work-

ing for and under him in said territory.

31. 'i'he Agent further agrees that for a period

of three years after the termination of this agree-

ment, or his period of employment, he will not, di-

rectly, or indirectly, communicate or divulge to or

make use of for the benefit of any person, })artner-

ship or corjjoration any of the trade secrets, for-

mulas, processing methods of the Company, or the

names, addresses or requii'ements of any of the cus-

tomers of the Comi)any, or any other information

related [28] to the Company's business which he

may have acquired or learned during his employ-

ment. The Agent further agrees that he will not,

either as an emx>loyee, employer or otherwise, can-

vass, solicit or cater to any of the customers of the

Company, which he may know of because of his em-

ployment by said Company.

32. The Agent further agrees that all trade se-

crets, formulas, methods, processes and the like, and

all customers' lists, operation data, discovered, ac-

quired or prepared during his emplo\Tnent, and con-

nected with the business of the Company shall be

the sole property of the Company.

33. The Agent further agrees that he will submit

the necessary information for obtaining a surety

bond in such proportion as the Company may re-

quire, and furnish said bond upon demand of the

Company. The Company agrees to pay the premium
on said bond.
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34. Should the Agent die during the life of this

agreement and leave a will designating a person

whom he desires to have carry on the services pro-

vided for in this contract, and providing any condi-

tion or limitation upon same in said will, the

Company agrees that it will enter into a contract

similar in form and effect to the within contract

with such person, and changed only by the condi-

tions or limitations provided in said will, providing

the new man is satisfactory to the Company.

35. The Company shall be the exclusive judge

of whether the Agent is complying with all the

terms and conditions of this agreement, and its

decision in this matter shall be final and conclusive

as to that fact.

36. This agreement shall be binding upon the

heirs, executors, administrtaors and assigns of the

parties hereto. [29]

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have here-

unto set their hands and seals the day and year first

above written.

PARAMOUNT PEST
CONTROL SERVICE,

a Corporation,

By /s/ G. H. FISHER.
/s/ CHARLES P. BREWER,

Agent. [30]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

MOTION FOR RESTRAINING ORDER

Comes Now the plaintiff above named, appearing

by its attorneys, Kenneth C. Gillis, F. Leo Smith and

Robert R. Rankin, and move the above-entitled court

for an ordei* restraining said defendants from a ccm-

tinued operation and practice, as more fully de-

scribed in the Complaint herein ; and

Moves that this Court issue an Order to Show

Cause, fixing a time and place for hearing, why the

defendants and each of them should not be so

restrained.

This motion is based on

(1) The verified Complaint filed herein and ref-

erence to which is hereby made

;

(2) The affidavit of T. C. Sibert, President of the

plaintiff corporation, and attached to this

Motion

;

(3) The Rules of Civil Procedure for the District

Courts of the United States ; and

(4) On statutes and authorities in interpretation

thereof.

Dated at Portland, Oregon, this 22nd day of

October, 1947.

KENNETH C. GILLIS,

F. LEO SMITH,
ROBERT R. RANKIN,

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed October 24, 1947. [31]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT IN SUPPORT OF MOTION FOR
RESTRAINING ORDER

State of California,

County of Alameda—ss.

I, T. C. Sibert, being first duly sworn, depose

and say:

That I am the President of the plaintiff corpora-

tion; that I have read and verified the Complaint

herein; that I know its contents and the allegations

therein contained, and that the same are all true as

I verily believe

;

That the defendants, in the manner in said Com-

plaint described, are doing substantial damage to

the plaintiff, and three of them were under contract

to refrain from doing the very things they are doing,

and the other two defendants have knowledge. I

verily believe, of all that has transpired and yet

continue to aid and abet the other defendants in the

conspiracy alleged, and do so for their joint and

several enrichment and the acquiring of plaintiff's

busmess, as more fully detailed and set forth in said

complaint; that knowing the character of the de-

fendants involved and their program and their past

practice, I firmly believe that they will continue in

this course of conduct to the plaintiff company's

irreparable damage unless they are restrained by

this court; that a temporary restraining order is

requested for the purpose of protecting this busi-
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ness, to last until the hearing of this case upon the

merits.

Further, deX)onent sayeth not.

/s/ ^r. C. SJBERT.

Subscribed and sworn to Ijcf'ore me this 22nd day

of Oct()l)cr, 1947.

[Seal] /s/ KENNETH C. GILLTS,

Notary Public in and for the County of Alameda,

State of California.

My Commission expires December 8, 1950.

[Endorsed]: Filed October 24, 1947. [32]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

Upon reading plaintiff's verified complaint filed

herein and its motion for a temporary restraining

order pendente lite, together with the affidavit at-

tached to said motion, and the Court being satisfied

that there is reason for the issuance of this Order

to Show Cause herein

;

It is now hereby Ordered that defendants, and

each of them, above named appear before this Court

at its courtroom in the United States Court House

at Main Street, between Sixth Avenue and Broad-

way, in the City of Portland, County of Multnomah,

State of Oregon, on Monday, the 17th day of No-
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vember, 1947, at the hour of 10 o'clock a.m. of that

date, to then and there show cause, if any they have,

why a preliminary injunction should not be issued

in favor of the jjlaintiiff and against the defendants,

and each of them, pending the hearing of this suit

on the merits, which order shall enjoin and restrain

said defendants, and each of them, during the

pendency of this action, together with any members

of their association, their agents, officers, representa-

tives and employees, from directly or indirectly

doing the matters and things as alleged in said com-

plaint, a copy of which is served concurrently here-

with, and particularly from soliciting and sei^ving

customers of plaintiff, persuading or inducing cus-

tomers to break their contracts of service with the

plaintiff, and from interfering with the business of

plaintiff as established in Oregon, as in said com-

plaint described, prior to August 1, 1947, or from

violating their agreements, or aiding or abetting in

the violation of those agreements, to refrain from

competition for a period of three (3) [33] years

after the cessation of employment, and, further,

from the use of any of plaintiff's methods, equip-

ment or products, or the information gleaned from

their previous service with plaintiff in the service

of defendants' customers; and

It is further Ordered that a copy of this Order to

Show Cause be served by the United States Marshal

upon said defendants at the time of the service of

the complaint herein, and that said copy of this
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Order be certified to by one of the attorneys o£

record herein.

Done in open conrt jit Portland, Oregon, this 24th

day of October, 1947.

CLAUDE McCOLLOCH,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed October 24, 1947. [34]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF CHARLES P. BREWER TO
INTERROGATORIES

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Charles P. Brewer, being first duly sworn,

make the following answers to the interrogatories

propomided in the above case:

Answer to Interrogatory (a)

(I) The contract of July 1, 1946, attached as

Exhibit 1, is genuine but the contract was modified

after the date thereof so as to provide that the net

profits would be divided between the company and

the agent on an equal basis.

(II) I know of no such agreement between the

plaintiff and any of the defendants. L l)elieve the

defendant Raymond Rightmire signed such an
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agreement with a partnership between T. C. Sibert

and G. H. Fisher, doing biismess as Paramount Pest

Control Service. The certificate of partnership was

filed on March 1, 1945 in Book 41, Page 293 of the

Assumed Name Business Certificates of Multnomah

County, Oregon.

(Ill) The letter of resignation is genuine.

Answer to Interrogatory (b)

(I) I am serving customers or patrons for pest

control service who were formerly served by plain-

tiff for pest control and some of whom were under

contract with plaintiff for [35] similar service. The

other defendants are employed by me and as such

employees serve customers or patrons for pest con-

trol service who were served by the plaintiff for pest

control and some of whom were under contract with

plaintiff for similar service. The balance of the

statement is untrue.

(II) The statement is true.

Answer to Interrogatory (c)

A list of the customers and patrons is annexed to

this answer and marked Exhibit A.

/s/ CHARLES P. BREWER
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EXHIBIT A
Fischer Flourinf? Mills Portland

Pacific Coast Fniil (/O

Oi'cyoii Flower (i rowers, Ass'n

Sunshine Biscuit Co

Sav-On-Drug Co

J nSpot C^afe Camas, Wn.

Home Town Bakery

Crown Willamette Inn

Albers Millinf,' Co Portland

Hawthorne Food Mkt

Lairds lied & White

Dizzy Whiz Cafe

Hudson Duncan Cafe " & Branches

39th. & Division Cafe

Rowes Coffee Shop

Flynns Fine Food

Sellings Red & White Gresham

Hickman Pharmacy Vancouver, Wn.

Plaza Theatre _ Portland

Ideal Dairy „ Portland

Nite & Day Mkt Vancouver, Wn.

Columbia Food Stores Portland & Branches

Zimmerman Feed Yamhill, Ore.

Cozy Cafe Newberg

Pacific Meat Co Portland

Imlay & Sons Aloha

Imlay Feed & Seed ._ Reedville

Perfection Bakery Hillsboro

West Lynn Grocery West Lynn, Ore.

Harolds Grocery _..Portland

Harvest Milling Co "

Grand Ave. Cafe "

Dairy Co-op '

'

Lews Mkt Oregon City

Safeway Stores, Inc Portland & Branches

Swartz Transfer Portland

Portland Provisioner "

Transportation Club "

Smith G rocery Hillsboro

Whistlin ' Pig Cafe Portland
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Rivieria Cafe Newberg

Standard Market Oregon City-

Harold & Dans Cafe Portland

House of Good Shepherd Portland

Brookside Grocery Yancouver, Wn.
Ralphs Cafe Cascade Locks

Sunset Cafe Hood River

Browns Farm Store Vancouver, Wn.
Eds Feed & Seed Hood River

Foodland Grocery Vancouver, Wn.
Little Onion Cafe Hood River

Hood River Cafe

9th. St. Super Mkt The Dalles

Cascade Baking Co " "

Kerr Gifford & Co ''

McHales Grocery " "

Hotel Dalles Coffee Shop "

Star Theatre Goldendale, Wn.
Grows Market *' "

Reliance Creamery " "

Adams Market Arlington

Cenfral Mkt Heppner, Ore.

Heppner Cafe _

Red & White Store

Elkhorn Cafe

Aikens Tavern

Heppner Laundry

Yarnell Tavern Lexington

Lexington Cafe "

Farm Bureau Co-op Hermiston

Purity Bakery Pendleton

Pendleton Baking ''

Pacific Fruit & Produce La Grande

Inland Poultry & Feed

Stein Club

Portland Cafe

7 up Bottling Co
The Stockman

Stein Coffee Shop

Sacajuca Coffee Shop

Royal Cafe

McCord Grocery
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(IiiioM linkcry Uiii<»i), Orcf^on

Pacific Fruil, & Produce Baker, Oregon

(*. ('. Anderson.. "

Tlio I'rovisioner "

Slocknians Exchange '

*

Stan lords Store Weiser, Idaho

Washington Hotel "

Idaho Candy Boise, Idaho

(iciser Grand Hotel Baker, Oregon

Harney Valley Bakery Burns

Hudson Duncan Co Bend, Oregon

Todds Bakery The Dalles

Farmers Market "

Si^inans Food Stores Hermiston

Jacksons Food Market Baker, Oregon

Killgores Dairy Redmond

Bond St. Food Market Bend

Central Ore. Co-op. Creamery Redmond

American Bakery Nampa, Idaho

Electric Bakery "

Hound Pup Cafe Cascade Locks

The Dalles Meat Market The Dalles

Laudcrback Market White Salmon, "Wn.

Pinky 's Union St. Market The Dalles

Bill Rivers La Grande

Baker-LaGrande Groc. Co "

Elks Club Baker

Valley Dairy '

'

St. Charles Hospital Bend

Nampa Whse. Grocery Nampa, Idaho

City Market Burns, Oregon

Goldendale City Dump Goldendale, Wn.

Gem State Bakery Payette, Idaho

Campas Market Corvallis

Miles McKay Marcola, Oregon
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Griggs Market Klamath Falls

Cottage Bakery Cottage Grove, Oregon

Cecils Cafe

Burlingham-Meeker Amity, Oregon

Tillamook-Amity Co-op

Smith Baking Co Salem

Pacific Fruit & Produce Albany

Kelleys Peed

Smoke House Glendale

Albany Feed & Seed Albany

Albany Laundry ,

Glendale Hotel Glendale

Burlingham-Meeker Rickreal

Burlingham-Meeker R.F.D Amity

Glendale Club Glendale

Pacific Fruit & Produce Corvallis

Burlingham-Meeker Shedd

Creech Thrift Store Glendale

Henningers Market Roseburg

Howard Jones Feed Hubbard

P. W. Woolworth Medford

Pacific Fruit & Produce "

Aurora Whse. Inc Aurora

Woodburn Feed & Seed Woodburn

Barkus Feed Mill Salem
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^iwiii of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Charles P. Brewer, bein^ fii-st duly sworn, <le-

pose and say that I have read over the above and

foregoing answers to the interrogatones and know

the contents thereof and that the answers made by

me are true except that where any answers are made

upon information or belief the same are true accord-

ing to my best knowledge, information and belief.

/s/ CHARLES P. BREWER.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day

of November, 1947.

[Seal] E. F. BERNARD,
Notary Pul^lic for Oregon.

My Commission Expires 1/12/1941.

Service of the foregoing Answer of Charles P.

Brewer to Interrogatories is hereby accepted this

14th day of November, 1947.

/s ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Of attorneys for Plaintiff..'

[Endorsed] : Filed November 15, 1947. [40]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF ROSALIE BREWER
TO INTERROGATORIES

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Rosalie Brewer, being first duly sworn, make

the following answers to the interrogatories pro-

pounded in the above case:

Answer to Interrogatory (a)

(I) The contract of July 1, 1948, attached as

Exhibit 1 is genuine, but the contract was modified

after that date to provide that the net profits would

be divided on an equal basis.

(II) I never signed such an agreement, although

I am informed that Ray Rightmire signed such an

agreement with a partnership.

(III) The letter of resignation is genuine.

Answer to Interrogatory (b)

(I) I am not soliciting or serving customers or

patrons for pest control service who were formerly

under contract with plaintiff for similar service or

who were served by plaintiff for pest control. I

have no knowledge as to what the other defendants

are doing.

(II) The statement is true.
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Answci- to Interrogatory (c.)

(1) J liave not served any eu.storners, but I have

seen [41] Exhibit A attac^hed to tlic answers of

Charles B. Brewer and I believe the list to be

correct.

/s/ ROSALIP] BREWER. [42]

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

T, Rosalie Brewer, being first duh' sworn, depose

and say that I have read over the above and fore-

going answers to the interrogatories and know the

contents thereof and that the answers made by me
are true except that where any answers are made
upon information or belief the same are true accord-

ing to my best knowledge, information and belief.

/s/ ROSALIE BREWER.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day

of November, 1947.

[Seal] /s/ E. F. BERNARD,
Notary Public for Oregon. .

My Commission Expires: 1/12/1951.

Service of the foregoing Answer of Rosalie

Brewer to Interrogatories is hereby accepted this

14 day of November, 1947.

/s/ ROBER^r R. RANKIN,
Of Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 15, 1947. [43]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF EARL MERRIOTT
TO INTERROGATORIES

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Earl Merriott, being first duly sworn, make the

following answers to the interrogatories propounded

in the above case

:

Answer to Interrogatory (a)

(I) I never saw the contract of July 1, 1946, at-

tached as Exhibit 1 before I read it in the complaint

that was served on me in the case filed in the Circuit

Court of Multnomah Coimty, Oregon. I understand

Mr. Brewer says the Exhibit 1 is a copy of the

original and I have no reason to dispute that fact.

(II) I never saw any such agreement and never

signed any.

(III) I never saw the letter of resignation and

am not able to say whether the letter is genuine.

Answer to Interrogatory (b)

(I) I am employed by Charles P. Brewer and as

such serve customers or patrons for pest control

service who were formerly served by plaintiff for

pest control. T formerly solicited customers who

were served by plaintiff for pest control but have

not done so since the 1st day of November, 1947.

(II) The answer to the statement is true.

Answer to Iiiterrogatory (c)

I have no list of the patrons and customers served

but I have checked over Exhibit A attached to the

answers of Charles P. Brewer and I believe the list

to be correct.

/s/ EARL MERRIOTT. [45]
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State of Or('<^()n,

County of Multtiomah—ss.

I, Earl Mcrriott, being first duly sworn, (lei)ose

and say that T have read over the above and fore-

going answers to tlie interrogatories and know the

contents thereof and that the answers made by me
are true except that where any answ^ers are made

upon information or belief the same are true accord-

ing to my best knowledge, information and belief:

/s/ EARL MERRIOTT.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14tli day

of November, 1947.

[Seal] E. F. BERNARD,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My Commission Expires: 1/12/1951.

Service of the foregoing Answer of Earl Merriott

to Interrogatories is hereby accepted this 14th day

of November, 1947.

/s/ ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Of attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 15, 1947. [46]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ANSWER OF RAYMOND RIGHTMIRE TO
INTERROGATORIES

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Raymond Rightmire, being first duly sworn,

make the following answers to the interrogatories

propoimded in the above case:

Answer to Interrogatory (a)

(I) I never saw the contract of July 1, 1946 at-

tached as Exhibit I before I read it in the compliant

that was served on me in the case filed in the Circuit

Court of Multnomah County, Oregon. I understand

Mr. Brewer says the Exhibit 1 is a copy of the orig-

inal and I have no reason to dispute that fact.

(II) I at one time signed such an agreement but

not with the plaintiff. At the time I signed the

agreement I was employed by a partnership.

(III) I never saw the letter of resignation and

am not able to say whether the letter is genuine.

Answer to Interrogatory (b)

(I) I am employed by Charles P. Brewer and

as such serve customers or patrons for pest control

service who were formerly served by plaintiff for

pest control. I formerly solicited customers who

were served by plaintiff for pest control but have

not done so since the 1st day of November, 1947.

(II) The answer to the statement is true.
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Answer to Interrogatory (c)

I have no list of the patrons and cnstomeis served

but I have checked over Exhibit A attached to the

answers of Charles P. Brewer and I believe the list

to be correct.

/s/ RAYMOND RKUTTMIRE.

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Raymond Rightmire, being first duly sworn, de-

pose and say that I have read over the above and

forgoing answers to the interrogatories and know

the contents thereof and that the answers made by

me are true except that where any answers are

made upon information or belief the same are true

according to my best knowledge, information and

belief.

/s/ RAYMOND RIGHTMIRE.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 14th day

of November, 1947.

[Seal] E. F. BERNARD.
Notary Public for Oregon.

My Commission Expires 1-12-1951.

Service of the foregoing Answer of Raymond
Rightmire to Interrogatories is hereby accepted this

14th day of November, 1947.

/s/ ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Of Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 15, 1947. [49]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT IN EESPONSE TO ORDER TO
SHOW CAUSE

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomali—ss.

I, Charles P. Brewer, being first duly sworn, de-

pose and say:

I am one of the defendants in the above entitled

action and make this affidavit in response to the

order to show cause issued in the action as to why a

preliminary injunction should not be issued in

favor of the plaintiff and against the defendant.

I foi-merly resided in Oakland, California, and

about March 1, 1946, I was employed by a partner-

ship doing business under the name of Paramount

Pest Control Service. The partners were T. C.

Sibert and G. W. Fisher, and this was the same

partnership which filed an assumed name business

certificate on March 1, 1945, in Book 41, Page 293,

of the assumed name business certificates, of Mult-

nomah County, Oregon. My duties with the part-

nership were to solicit customers and service their

places of business. I was at no time furnished with

any formulas, processes or secrets. The partner

bought poison from wholesalers which could be

bought on the market by any person or business

concern. I was paid a salary of $200.00 a month hy

the partnership.

In April, 1946, I was sent by the partnership to

take charge of the business in the state of Oregon
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and was promised a salary of '^2'^)i).()'y) per inontli and

expenses. T stopped at the [50] Roosevelt ITo+el in

Portland. 11. W. Ililts, on behalf of Ihe pai-fner-

sliip, brouejht a quantity of jioison and pxtei'mina-

tion supplies to my room in the Roosevelt Hotel and

left them there and immediately returned to Cali-

fornia. No place of business was furnished me aiid

inasmuch as a p,Tiest in a hotel could only remain for

six days at that time, it was necessary for me to

move the business and exterminator *s supplies from

hotel to hotel with me. I had been promised perma-

nent employment on a salary by the partnership

and relying on such representations, I sold my home

in Oakland, California, and bought a home in Port-

land, Oregon.

About July 1, I was informed that a corporation

v^^as about to be formed in California, that the busi-

ness in Oregon was in the red, and it was necessary

that "it be dumped," and that I would have to sign

a contract with the corporation or my emplo\Tnent

w^ould be at an end. Accordingly, I signed the in-

strument of which Exhibit 1 attached to the plain-

tiff's complaint is a copy. It will be noted that the

instrument does not bear the official designation of

G. H. Fisher, who signed on behalf of the corpora-

tion, and it is my information that at the time the

instnunent was signed, the corporation had not been

organized. The corporation never qualified to do

business in the state of Oregon until sometime in

August, 1947.

After the signing of the instrument, I devoted my
best energies to building up a business but by Nov-



60 Paramount Pest Control Service

ember 1, I found that there could be no profit to me
under the terms of the agreement. Accordingly, I

drove with my wife to California and consulted

with Mr. Sibert. I told him that it would be neces-

sary for me to quit the business and he said that he

wished me to stay, and he, at that time, agreed to a

modification of the contract so that I would receive

fifty per cent of the net profits. I returned to Port-

land, and because of the modification agreed upon

and not otherwise, continued in my [51] efforts to

build up the business.

About March 1, Mr. Hilts delivered to me a state-

ment or purported statement of my account with

the company from January 1, 1947, which was cast

not on the basis that I was to receive fifty per cent

of the net profits, but on the percentages set up in

the written contract. I immediately told Mr. Hilts

that if the agreement was not to be lived up to, I

was through and he left for California, and on his

return wrote me a letter saying that I was right

about the modification and that I was to receive

fifty per cent of the net profits.

In June, 1947, Mr. Hilts came to Portland, and

asked me to borrow money to pay to the company. I

told him that I could not do so and shortly Mr.

Sibert called me from Seattle about borrowing

money to pay to the company and I told him the

same thing. Mr. Sibert and Mr. Hilts both then

came to Portland and went with me to the Bank of

California. They explained to Mr. Ridehalch and

told Mr. Ridehalch that I was the entire owner of

the business in Portland and of all the supplies,
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equipment and so iortli, and tliat tin; only interest

tliey had was in some furniture, and tliat I was en-

titled to borrow on the strength of a financial state-

ment showing me the owner. I refused to hoi-iow

any money because Mr. Sibert had told me that he

would never press me for money until the business

in Oregon was on a paying basis. They then told me

that beginning July 1, I would have to do business

on the basis of the old written agreement and not

on the basis of an equal division of the net earnings.

I told them that it would be impossible for me to

proceed on that basis, and I sent in my letter of

resignation because of the violation and breach by

the plaintiff of their agreement with me as modified.

I have repeatedly requested that I be furnished

an audit of my account based on an equal division

of the net profits but I have never been furnished

such an audit. The company [52] refused to furn-

ish me the necessary equipment to carry on the busi-

ness and it was necessary for me to purchase much

of the equipment myself and out of my own funds.

I have no property in my possession belonging to

the plaintiff. All property belonging to the plaintiff

was in a warehouse located at 15th and N. W. Mar-

shall Streets, Portland, Oregon, and in the office at

519 W. Park Street, Portland, Oregon. I told the

warehouseman to deliver any of the property there

to the plaintiff and the plaintiff has taken posses-

sion of the office e(|uipment.

The plaintiff has in its possession equipment and

supplies purchased by me and belonging to me to
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the amount and value between $1,500.00 and

$2,000.00.

After my resignation I went into the pest control

business in Oregon as Sibert and Fisher had

breached their agreement made with me when I was

sent to Oregon and as a result of which agreement,

I sold my home in California and bought one in

Portland, Oregon, and after the corporation was

form.ed, it was my understanding that this same

Sibert became President of the corporation. I was

putting my time, money and energy in an attempt

to build the business in Oregon and when it suited

the purpose of the corporation, they repudiated

their agreement with me to divide the net profits on

an equal basis.

I am serving many customers that were never

serviced by the plaintiff and some of the customers

who were formerly serviced by the plaintiff have

sought my services as they were dissatisfied with

the service rendered by the plaintiff. I did solicit

some of the plaintiff's customers but have ceased

doing so and do not intend to solicit their customers

in the future.

Prior to August 1, 1947, the plaintiff was sending

men as far as Boise, Idaho, to service customers.

About [53] September 1, they abandoned this serv-

ice and a number of the plaintiff's customers which

I am servicing are in the district which the plain-

tiff abandoned.

It was definitely agreed between Mr. Sibert and

me that the modification of the contract to the effect
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that the net profits were to ))e divided (-(jually he-

tween the ])laintiff and me would not he I'oi- a lim-

ited period ol' time, l)iit would eontinue Coi- the

duration of the contract.

[Seal] CHARLES P. BREWER.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 15th day

of November, 1947.

E. F. BERNARD,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My Commission Expires 1-12-1951.

Service accepted this 15th day of November, 1947.

ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Attorney for Plaintiff

[Endorsed] Filed November 15, 1947. [54]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

AFFIDAVIT COUNTER TO
CHARLES P. BREWER'S AFFIDAVIT

State of Oregon,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, DeGray S. Brooks, being first duly sworn, de-

pose and say

:

That I am manager of Paramoimt Pest Control

Service, a corporation, located at Portland, Oregon,

and have been such since the loth day of August,

1947, and consequently I am familiar with the cus-

tomers who have cancelled their service with the

plaintiff and with the accounts previously on its

books.
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That I have read the answers of Charles P.

Brewer to the interrogatories herein and have

analyzed the list of accounts which he has submitted,

as they appear on the books of the plaintiff, and

from his own statement I advise the Court that he

lists some one hundred and forty-two accounts.

But under his listing he makes such generalization

as Safeway Stores, Inc., whereas this includes three

warehouses and fifty-one stores which are not de-

tailed in his listing, but which, through his associa-

tion with the head of that department, he now serves

in their entirety. He serves Hudson-Duncan, listed

as three stores, whereas there are six, and Columbia

Food Stores, listed as one, whereas there are nine

stores served by him ; so his actual acquisition of the

business of Paramount is much greater than shown

on his listing.

To analyze further his statement, it appears he

has taken one hundred and sixty-five accounts from

Paramount Pest Control Service, leaving some forty

of which we have no records. This does not neces-

sarily mean that Paramount did not have these

accounts before, because I personally instructed

Charles P. Brewer to look after [55] Sigman's Food

Stores. The Sigman Food Stores were under the

plaintiff's service in Washington and I wrote Mr.

Brewer to take care of them in Oregon several times

and heard nothing further from him, but they now

appear on his list attached to his Answer as stores

he serviced and which should have been, if he had

properly served the plaintiff, upon its list and served

by plaintiff.
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'^riiat so i'lxr as tli(^ ('in])Ioyecs Uiglitiniic and

Duncan arc concerned, while they may have signed

tlie original agreements with the i)artnership, all of

these contracts were sold and transferred to the

corporation and weie continued hetween the indi-

vidual emjdoyee and the corporation thereafter, and

the employees may never have known any change

in management or obligation and continued as they

had previously, but this they learned in the natural

course of administration.

In further answer to Charles P. Brewer's affi-

davit, in response to the Order to Show Cause, he

says that the customers formerly served by the

plaintiff has sought his service because dissatisfied

with that of the plaintiff (pages 4 and 5). He was

familiar with Paramount and its service in this state

during all of that period of time and if there was

any dissatisfaction with plaintiff's service, it was

dlie to Brewer's action as the francliised agent of

plaintiff in this state. His statement that he does

not intend to solicit plaintiff's customers in the

future is because he has, through his action, prac-

tically acquired many, if not all, and at least the

most substantial of plaintiff's accounts, so his prom-

ise to refrain from further solicitation is a nullity

so far as the business of the plaintiff is concerned.

Attached hereto is a list of plaintiff's accomits,

with their contract number, name of the business

and its location, which also appear in the defend-

ant's claim of business, marked "Exhibit A" and

incorporated in this affidavit to show the extent of

the defendants' acquisition of plaintiff's business.
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Further, deponent sayetli not,

DeGRAY S. BROOKS.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 17th day

of November, 1947.

[Seal] ZELDA E. MILLER,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My Commission expires June 11, 1949.

Service of the foregoing Counter affidavit by re-

ceipt of a duly certified copy thereof, as required by

law, is hereby accepted in Multnomah County, Ore-

gon, on this 17th day of November, 1947.

/s/ E. F. BERNARD,
Attorney for Defendants.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 17, 1947. [57]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

PRELIMINARY MEMO

Until there is disclosui-e in more detail of the

secret natui*e of the processes, I do not feel that I

should issue an injunction. An early pre-trial and

trial date can be obtained through Clerk DeMott.

Dated November 18, 1947.

CLAUDE McCOLLOCH,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 18, 1947. [58]
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[Title of Distri(;t Coui-t and Cause.]

ORDER

The above-entitled action coming on to Ix' lieard

on the motion of the plaintiff for a tempoiary re-

straining order and on the order to show cau.se why

a preliminary injunction should not he issued, the

phiintiff ai)[)caring by Robert R. Rankin and F. Leo

Smith, of its attorneys, and the defendants Charles

P. Brewer, Rosalie Brewer, Raymond Rightmire

and Earl Merriott appearing by their attorneys,

Plowden Stott and E. F. Bernard,

It is Ordered by the court that the motion for a

restraining order be and hereby is denied and that

a preliminary injunction do not issue.

Dated this 19th day of November, 1947.

CLAUDE McCOLLOCH,
District Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 19, 1947. [59]

[Title of District Coui*t and Cause.]

ANSWER OF DEFENDANTS CHARLES P.

BREWER, ROSALIE BREWER, RAY-
MOND RIGHTMIRE and EARL MERRIOTT

For their answer to the plaintiff's complaint the

defendants Charles P. Brewer, Rosalie Brewer,

Raymond Rightmire and Earl Merriott admit, deny

and allege as follows

:
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First Defense

1. The defendants admit Paragraph numbered I

of the complaint except the defendants deny that

they have performed any unlawful conduct.

2. The defendants admit Subdivision (a) and

(b) of Paragraph numbered II of the complaint

save and except the defendants deny that the plain-

tiff has been engaged in the business described in

the State of Oregon.

The defendants deny Subdivision (c) and (d) of

Paragraph numbered II of the complaint.

3. The defendants admit that the defendant

Charles P. Brewer and the plaintiff signed an agree-

ment of which Exhibit numbered One, attached to

the plaintiff's complaint, is a copy. The defendants

admit that thereafter the agreement was modified

to provide so that Paragraph numbered 5 of the

agreement would be eliminated and that in lieu

thereof the plaintiff and the defendant Charles P.

Brewer would each be entitled to one-half of the net

profits from the business after payment of all ex-

penses. The defendants further admit that the

defendant [60] Charles P. Brewer on or about the

6th day of February, 1947 paid the plaintiff the sum

of $250.00; and on or about the 6th day of March,

1947 the sum of $250.00; and on or about the 13th

day of March, 1947 the sum of $494.25 ; and the sum

of $259.61 on or about July 9, 1947. The defendants

further admit that the plaintiff agreed to send a

salesman and service man from its main office at

Oakland, California to eastern Oregon to build up
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the business and that the jjhiintiil woiihl pay the

salaries and expenses thereof in the first instant, and

that any profit or loss in expense in said venture

would be shared equally between the phiintiff and

the defendant Charles P. Brewer.

The defendants further admit that the defendant

Raymond Rightmire is a resident of and an in-

habitant in the State of Oregon and that the defend-

ant Rosalie Brewer is now and at all times mentioned

was the wife of the defendant Charles P. Brewer

and a resident of and an inhabitant in the State of

Oregon and assisted Charles P. Brewer in his busi-

ness. The defendants admit that the defendant Earl

Merriott is now and at all times mentioned in the

complaint has been a resident of and an inhabitant

in the State of Oregon and was employed by the

plaintiff through the defendant Charles P. Brewer.

Save and except as herein expressly admitted, the

defendants deny Paragraph numbered III of the

complaint and the whole thereof.

4. The defendants deny Paragraph numbered IV
of the complaint and the whole thereof.

5. The defendants deny Paragraph numbered V
of the complaint and the whole thereof save and

except the defendants admit that the defendant

Charles P. Brewer signed the letter, a copy of which

is set forth in Subdivision (1) of Paragraph V.

6. The defendants deny Paragraplis numbered

VI, VII and VIII of the complaint and the whole

thereof. [61]
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Second Defense

About the month of November, 1946 the plaintiff

and the defendant Charles P. Brewer agreed that

the contract of which Exhibit One, attached to the

plaintiff's complaint, is a copy should be changed

and modified as of the date of the execution thereof

and continuing for the full terra of the contract to

this effect, that Paragraph 5 of the contract should

be eliminated and that in lieu thereof the plaintiff

and the defendant Charles P. Brewer should each

receive fifty per cent of the net profits of the opera-

tion of the business after the payment of all expenses

incidental to the operation of the business. The

plaintiff and the defendant Charles P. Brewer from

that time on continued to operate imder the agree-

ment as modified until about the month of July, 1947

when the plamtiff notified the defendant Charles P.

Brewer that it would no longer continue the per-

formance of the contract as modified and that the

defendant Charles P. Brewer would from that time

on be required to pay to the plaintiff twenty per cent

of the gross business done by the defendant Charles

P. Brewer. For that reason and because of the

plaintiff's repudiation by the plaintiff of the con-

tract as modified, the defendant Charles P. Brewer

wrote his notice of resignation as set forth in Para-

graph numbered V of the complaint.

Comiter-Claim

That when the employment of the defendant

Charles P. Brewer was terminated, as set forth in

the Second Defense of this answer, the defendant
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CJiaiies P. J]rewcr tui'iicd over U) llic j>laiiitiff .sup-

plies and equipment belonging to him used in con-

nection with the business under the agreement of

the plaintiff that it would p;iy him the reasonable

value thereof together with all sums which might be

due to the defendant Charles P. Brewer by reason

of his performance of the contract as modified. [62]

That there is due and owing to the defendant

Charles P. Brewer fi'om the plaintiff the sum of

$700.00 by reason of his performance of the contract

as modified and that the reasonable value of the

supplies and equipment belonging to the defendant

Charles P. Brewer turned over by him to the plain-

tiff is in the sum of $1350.00. By reason thereof the

plaintiff is indebted to the defendant Charles P.

Brewer in the sum of $2050.00.

Wherefore, the defendants pray that the plain-

tiff's complaint be dismissed and that they have and

recover from the plaintiff their costs and disburse-

ments. And the defendant Charles P. Brewer prays

that he have the judgment of $2050.00 against the

plaintiff and for his costs and disbursements.

PLOWDEN STOTT,
E. F. BERNARD.

Service of the foregoing Answer of Defendants

Charles P. Brewer, Rosalie Brewer, Raymond
Rightmire and Earl Merriott is hereby acknowl-

edged this 21 day of November, 1947.

/s/ ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Of attorneys for Plaintiff'.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 24, 1947. [63]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

REPLY TO COUNTER-CLAIM

For Reply to the Counter-claim of defendant,

Charles P. Brewer, plaintiff alleges

:

Denies said counter-claim and each allegation and

sum therein alleged; and alleges the plaintiff has

either paid or given credit in its accounting as

alleged in its complaint for any and all property or

sums due from plainti:ff to said defendant.

Wherefore plamtiff prays for the relief as alleged

in its complaint.

KENNETH C. GILLIS,

F. LEO SMITH,
/s/ ROBERT R. RANKIN.

United States of America,

District of Oregon—ss.

Due service of the foregoing reply is hereby ad-

mitted in Portland, Oregon, this 24th day of Novem-

ber, 1947.

/s/ E. F. BERNARD,
Of Attorneys for Defendants.

[Endorsed] : Filed November 24, 1947. [64]
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In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon

Civil No. 3936

PARAMOUNT PEST CONTROL SERVICE, a

corporation,
Plaintiff,

vs.

CHARLES P. BREWER, et al.,

Defendants.

MEMORANDUM OPINION

There are equities on both sides in this case, but

it seems to me the controlling factor is the time ele-

ment. If that question were presented singly, I

would not think I should enjoin defendant generally

from re-engaging in the pest control business; but,

if this were August 1947, 1 might feel that defendant

should be restrained from doing business with plain-

tiff's former customers, as customers' lists are pro-

tected by the law.

Considerable time has gone by and the interests

of the 140 odd third parties who have continued

service with the defendant have to be kej)t in mind.

So an injunction will be denied.

As to damages, I may need to hear tlie parties

further, if they are not able to adjust their differ-

ences.

Dated January 30, 1948.

CLAUDE McCOLLOCH,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed January 30, 1948. [65]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

• Be It Rememljerecl that the above-entitled action

came on regTilarly for trial, the plaintiff appearing

by its officers and Robert R. Rankin, F. Leo Smith,

and Kenneth C. Gillis, its attorneys, and the defend-

ants Charles P. Brewer, Rosalie Brewer, Raymond

Rightmire, and Earl Merriott (hereinafter referred

to as the defendants) appearing in person and by

Plowden Stott and E. F. Bernard, their attorneys.

And the court having heard and considered the evi-

dence and the arguments of counsel and having con-

sidered the matter and being now fully advised

makes the following

FINDINGS OF FACT

I.

During the month of November, 1946 the plaintiff

and the defendant Charles P. Brewer mutually

agreed that Paragraph No. 5 of the Franchise

Agreement between them—of which Exhibit 1 at-

tached to the Complaint is a copy— [.QQ^ should be

altered and modified and it was at that time agreed

that instead of the agent paying the company twenty

per cent (20%) of the gross business done by the

agent, the net profits of the business beginning as of

the 1st day of July, 1946 and contiiming throughout

the term of the Franchise Agreement should be

divided between the plaintiff and the defendant

Charles P. Brewer on a 50-50 basis.
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11.

The defendant Charles P. Brewer continued the

business under the agreement as modified aivl nhont

the 30th day of June, 1947 the plaintiff in violation

of its agreement repudiated the contract as modi-

fied and notified the defendant Charles P. l^rewer

that he would thereafter be required to pay the

plaintiff twenty per cent (20%) of the gross busi-

ness done by him.

III.

Because of the repudiation by the plaintiff of

the contract as modified, the defendant Charles P.

Brewer sent in his resignation as agent to be effec-

tive August 1, 1947.

IV.

Since the 1st day of August, 1947, the defendant

Charles P. Brewer has engaged in the pest control

business and has solicited some of the customers of

the plaintiff and has been servicing upwards of one

hundred customers of the plaintiff. The issuance

of an injunction would deprive such persons of unin-

terrupted pest control service. The defendants Ray-

mond Rightmire and Earl Merriott have been

employed by the defendant Charles P. Brewer in

his pest control business. [67]

V.

The plaintiff did not disclose to the defendant

Charles P. Brewer or to any of the other defendants

any receipts, formulae, or secret processes and at

the defendant Charles P. Brewer has not used in

his business any receipts, formulae or processes of

the plaintiff.
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VI.

. The franohioo referred to in the plaintiff '3 com-

plaint, of wliioh Exliibit 1 io a copy^ io not fair and

roasonablo.

From the foregoing Findings of Fact the court

makes the following

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
Damages & costs to neither party

I.

Tho plaintiff io not entitled to an injunc^n

against the defendanta.

A judgifteirfshould be entered against

ic fjmn of $

Dated this 14th day of February, 1948.

CLAUDE McCOLLOCH,
United States District Judge.

Service of the foregoing Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law is accepted this 12th day of

February, 1948.

R. R. RANKIN,
By C. E. BIRNIE,

Of attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed February 14, 1948. [68]
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In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon

No. Civ. 3936

PARAMOUNT PEST CON^PROL SERVICE, a

corporation,

vs.

CHARLES P. BREWER, et al,

Plaintiff,

Defendants.

JUDGMENT

Be It Remembered that the above-entitled cause

came on regularly for trial, the i)laintiff appearing

by its officers and Robert R. Rankin, F. Leo Smith,

and Kenneth C. Gillis, its attorneys, and the defend-

ants Charles P. Brewer, Rosalie Brewer, Raymond

Rightmire and Earl Merriott appearing in person

and by Plowden Stott and E. F. Bernard, their at-

torneys. And the court having heretofore signed

Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law, it is

Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed that an injunc-

tion against the defendants be and hereby is denied.

It Is Further Ordered, Adjudged and Decreed

that the Complaint be dismissed without costs.

Dated this 14th day of February, 1948.

CLAUDE McCOLLOCH,
United States District Judge,

[Endorsed]: Filed Felivuary 14, 1948.

Entered in Docket February 14, 1948. [69]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

NOTICE OF APPEAL

Notice is hereby given that Paramount Pest Con-

tror Service, a corporation, plainti:^ above named,

hereby appeals to the Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit, from the final judgment entered

in this action on February 14, 1948, and the whole

thereof.

Dated this 12th day of March, 1948.

KENNETH C. GILLIS,

ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Attorneys for Appellant, Paramount Pest Control

Service, a Corporation.

. [Endorsed] : Filed March 12, 1948. [70]

[Title of District Court and Cause.]

POINTS ON WHICH APPELLANT INTENDS
TO RELY.

Appellant cites the following points on which it

intends to rely for reversal of the judgment of the

District Court of the United States for the District

of Oregon, Honorable Claude McColloch, Judge,

and claims said trial court Failed To:

—

1. Find the appellant was engaged in Oregon in

the business described in its Complaint and denied

in the Answer.

Supporting Record: Complaint; Answer; Testi-
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mony of T. C. SibcH, K. W. Bushing, (\ Wonclell

Fisher, DeGray l^iooks; and Exhibits.

2. Find all r('spondents had made and per-

formed an unlawful conspiracy to (a) breach the

valid written and subsisting contra-cts between ap-

pellant and res})ondents Charles P. Brewer, Ray-

mond Rightmire and customers of appellant and

(b) to deprive appellant of its established business

in Oregon.

Supporting Record : Pleadings; Transcript of

Testimony; exhibits and Respondents' Answers to

Interrogatories.

3, Enjoin, generally, respondents and their re-

presentatives from continuing said conspiracy, in-

cluding the interference with appellant's customers

whether under contract or not; Specifically Enjoin-

ing Charles P. Brewer from violating his contract

in connection with appellant's business and pre-

venting him for a period of three years from

August 1, 1947, from soliciting or serving appel-

lant's customers; Specifically Enjoining respondent

Raymond Rightmire for said period from working

for any other pest control firm but appellant, and

Issue both a temporrary and permanent injunction

in the Court's orders of November 18, 1947 and

February 14, 1948.

Supporting Record: Pleadings, Answers to In-

terrogatories, Transcript of Testimony, Exhibits,

Court's Memoranda of November 18, 1947 and Jan-

uary 30, 1948.
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4. Find there was undue and unpaid to appel-

lant the following sums of money and entering

judgment therefor, to wit

:

(a) Against respondent Charles P. Brewer, on

agreements to pay for $6,155.84.

Supporting Record: Exhibits 36, 39, 40, 40(a),

50, 51, 51(a) and testimony of Harold Hilts, Plead-

ings and Testimony.

(b) Against all respondents, jointly and sever-

ally, for damages, $6,796.95.

Supporting Record: Exhibits 53, 54, 55; Plead-

ings and Testimony.

5. Enter judgment for costs in favor of appel-

lant.

Supporting Record: Entire Record.

Dated this 16th day of March, 1948.

: /s/ KENNETH C. GILLIS,

/s/ ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Attorneys for Appellant.

Service of the within Points on which Appellant

intends to rely, by receipt of a duly certified copy

thereof, is hereby accepted at Portland, Oregon,

this 16th day of March, 1948.

/s/ E. F. BERNARD,
of Attorneys for Appellees.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 17, 1948. [72]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

ORDER DIRECTING TRANSMITTAL OP
ORIGINAL EXHIBITS

This matter came on for hearing on motion of

the plaintiff for an order directing that the original

exhibits be sent to the appellate court in lieu of

copies; and

It appearing to the Court that a Notice of Appeal

and Bond has been filed herein and the Court being

of the opinion that the Appellate (Jourt shall have

the original exhibits for inspection on such appeal

;

It is hereby Ordered that all the original exhibits

offered or received in evidence in this court and the

deposition of Chas. P. Brewer (McC) be sent to

the Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit,

in lieu of copies thereof, and that the sending of

said originals shall in no way be construed to indi-

cate which of said exhibits shall or shall not be

printed in the Transcript of Record on appeal.

Dated this 16th day of March, 1948.

CLAUDE McCOLLOCH,
Judge,

OK E F Bernard.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 17, 1948. [73]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.] I

APPELLANT'S DESIGNATION OF KECORD

Appellant designates the following matters to be

contained in the "Transcript of Record":

—

Pleadings: Complaint, Order to Show Cause,

Answers of Charles P. Brewer, Rosalie Brewer,

Earl Merriott and Raymond Rightmire to Inter-

rogatories, all dated November 15, 1947, Court's

memorandum of November 18, 1947, Court's Order

of November 19, 1947, Answer of defendants. Reply,

Memorandum Opinion of January 30, 1948, Find-

ings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, Judgment, Notice

of Appeal, Designation of Record, Statement of

Appellant's Points, Order transmitting original ex-

hibits.

Evidence

:

Transcript of Testimony, pages 1 to

409, incl. in question and answer form, deposition of

Farries Flanagan, excluding exhibits, deposition of

Charles P. Brewer taken January 7, 1948, Exhibits

3, 5,(20), 7, 10, 11, 15, 28, 29, 31, 33, 35, 36, 38, 39,

40, 40(b), 40(c), 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 51(a), 53,

54, 55 (omitting Form 7 of contracts because of

duplication with Exhibit 11), 56, 57 to 60, incl.,

60(a), 61, 61(a), 61(b), 62 (including title of case

and Par. V, Sections (1) and (5) to end of para-

graph, omitting the residue). '
i

ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Of Attorneys for Plaintiff-

Appellant.

[Endorsed]: Filed March 17, 1948. [76]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPELLEE'S DESIGNATION OF ADD!]"

TIONAL PORTIONS OF THE RECORD

Appellees designate the following matters to be

contained in the Transcript of Record:

' Affidavit of Charles P. Brewer in Response to

Order to Show Cause

;

Pre-Trial Order;

'',t)efendants' Exhibit No. 77.

^^ /s/ E. F. BERNARD,
Of Attorneys for Defendants-

Appellees.

,., ,

_

, PLOWDEN STOTT,
COLLIER & BERNARD,

.
, , WM. K. SHEPARD,

. Attorneys for Defendants-

Appellees.

Service of the foregoing Appellee's Designation

of Additional Portions of the Record is acknowl-

edged this 26th day of March, 1948.

R. R. RANKIN,
By G. E. BIRNIE,

Of Attorneys for Plaintiff.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 26, 1948. [77]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

APPEI.LANT'S DESIGNATION OF
ADDITIONAL RECORD

Appellant designates the following matters to be

contained in the Transcript of Record:

Affidavit of T. C. Sibert, October 22, 1947, support-

ing motion for restraining order; affidavit of deGray

S. Brooks answering affidavit of Charles P. Brewer,

dated November 17, 1947.

(Note : No pretrial order was ever signed by

the Court.)

Dated this 26th day of March, 1948.

/s/ ROBERT R. RANKIN,
Of Attorneys for Plaintiff-

Appellant.

Service of the foregoing "Appellant's Designation

of Additional Record'' by receipt of a duly certified

copy thereof, is hereby accepted at Portland, Oregon,

this 26th day of March, 1948.

E. F. BERNARD M.E.S.

Of Attorneys for Defendants-

Appellees.

[Endorsed] : Filed March 26, 1948. [78]
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[Title of District Court and Cause.]

DOCKET ENTRIES
1947

Oct. 24—Filed Complaint.

Oct. 24—Issue summons—to Marshal.

Oct. 24—Filed motion for restraining order.

Oct. 24—Filed & entered order to show cause on

Nov. 17, 1947—10 a.m. why preliminary

injunction should not issue. McC.

Oct. 30—Filed summons with Marshal's return.

Nov. 15—Filed answer of Charles P. Brewer to in-

terrogatories.

Nov. 15—Filed answer of Rosalie Brewer to inter-

rogatories.

Nov. 15—Filed answer of Earl Merriott to interrog-

atories.

Nov. 15—Filed answer of Raymond Rightmire to in-

terrogatories.

Nov. 15—Filed affidavit of Charles P. Brewer re

show cause order.

Nov. 17—Filed Return of service of writ.

Nov. 17—Filed affidavit counter to Charles P. Brew-

ers affidavit.

Nov. 17—Record of hearing on order to show cause

why preliminary injunction should not

issue—argued & order taking under ad-

visement & entered order allowing deft, to

Nov. 24 to answer. McC.

Nov. 18—Filed preliminary memo.
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1947

Nov. 19—Filed & entered order denying motion for

restraining' order and preliminary injunc-

tion. MeC. Notices.

Nov. 19—P]ntered order setting for pre-trial confer-

ence Nov. 24, 1947. McC. Notices.

Nov. 24—Filed Answer of defts. C. P. & Rosalie

Brewer—R. Riglitmire & E. Merriott.

Nov. 24—Record of pre-trial conference.

Nov. 26—Entered ordei' setting for further j>re-

trial conference on Dec. 26, 1947. McC.

Nov. 24—Filed reply to counterclaim.

Nov. 29—Entered order setting for trial on Jan. 20,

1948—10 a.m. Notices. McC.

Dec. 26—Record of pre-trial hearing. McC.

1948

Jan. 6—Issued subpoena & 15 copies to Atty. G. E.

Bernie.

Jan. 6—Filed Notice to take Deposition of deft.

Chas. P. Brewer.

Jan. 7—Filed notice of deft, to produce.

Jan. 7—Pre-ti-ial order submitted to J. McC.

Jan. 14—Filed motion of defts. for inspection of

documents.

Jan. 14—Filed Transcript of Proceedings Dec. 26,

1947.

Jan. 14—Filed Deposition of Charles P. Brewer.

Jan. 14—Issued subpoena & 1 copy to Atty. Bernie.

Jan. 14—Filed Stipulation for deposition of Harry

Flannagan.

Jan. 15—Filed answer to moti(^n fc^r insiiection.
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1948

Jan. 15—Filed & entered order denying motion for

inspection. McC.

Jan. 19—Filed Deposition of Farries Flanagan.

Jan. 20—Entered order that Kenneth C. Gillis be

permitted to appear specially in this case,

record of trial before court. McC.

Jan. 21—Record of trial before court resumed &
cot'd to Jan. 23, 1948—10 a.m. McC.

Jan. 23—Record of trial before court resumed &
order dismissing without prejudice as to

deft. Carl Duncan on court's own motion.

McC.

Jan. 24—Record of further trial before court—ar-

gument

—

& order taking under advisement.

McC. [79]

Jan. 30—Filed Memorandum Opinion. McC. Copies

to attys.

Feb. 11—Lodged proposed Findings of ptff.

Feb. 14—Filed & entered Findings of Fact & Con-

clusions of Law. McC.

Feb. 14—Filed & entered Judgment, denying in-

junction & dismissing without cost. McC.

Mar. 12—Filed notice of appeal by plntf

.

Mar. 12—Filed bond on appeal.

Mar. 17—Filed designation of contents of record.

Mar. 17—Filed points on which appellant will rely.

Mar. 17—Filed Vol. 1 & 2 transcript of proceedings,

Jan. 20, 21, and 23, 1948, in duplicate.

Mar. 17—Filed motion for order directing transmit-

tal of original exhibits.
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1948

Mar. 17—Fik^l and entered order directing trans-

mittal of original exhibits McC.

Mar. 22—Filed Transcript of Proceedings Jan. 20,

21, 23, 1948.

Mar. 25—Copies of notice of appeal to attorneys.

Mar. 26—Filed af)pellee's designation of additional

])ortions of record.

Mar. 26—Filed appellant's designation of addi-

tional record.

United States of America,

District of Oregon—ss.

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK
I, Lowell Mimdorff, Clerk of the District Court

of the United States for the District of Oregon, do

hereby certify that the foregoing pages numbered

from 1 to 81 inclusive constitute the transcript of

record on ap])eal from a judgment of said Court in

a cause therein numbered Civil 3936, in which Para-

mount Pest Control Service, a corporation, is Plain-

tiff and Appellant, and Charles P. Brewer et al, are

defendants and Appellees; that the said transcript

of contests has been prepared by me in accordance

with the designations of contents of the record on

appeal filed by the api^ellant and appellees, and in

accordance with the rules of this court; that I

have compared the foregoing transcript with the

original record thereof and that it is a full, tnie

and correct transcript of the record and proceedings

had in said court in said cause, in accordance with
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the said designations as the same appear of record

and on file in my office and in my custody.

I further certify that I have enclosed under sep-

arate cover a duplicate transcript of the testimony

taken and filed in this office in this cause, of pro-

ceedings on January 20, 21, 23, 1948, together with

exhibits Nos. 3, 5-20, 7, 10, 11, 15, 28, 29, 31, 33, 35,

36, 38, 39, 40, 40-b, 40-c, 46, 47, 48, 49, 50, 51, 51-a,

53, 54, 55 (omitting form 7 of contracts because of

duplication with exhibit 11), 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 60-a,

61, 61-a, 62, filed in this office.

I further certify that the cost of comparing and

certifying the within transcript is $65.30 and the

cost of filing the notice of appeal is $5.00, making a

total of $70.30, and that the same has been paid by

the appellant.

In Testimony Whereof I have hereunto set my
hand and affixed the seal of said Court in Portland,

in said District, this 6th day of April, 1948.

[Seal] LOWELL MUNDORFF,
Clerk,

By /s/ F. L. BUCK,
Chief Deputy. [81]
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In the District (Uniri of the United States

for the District of Oregon

Civil No. 8936

PARAMOUNT PEST CONTROL SERVICE,
a corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

CHARLES l\ BREWER, et al.,

Defendants.

Portland, Oi'ej^on

Tuesday, January 20, 1948, 10:00 o'Clock A.M.

Before: Hojiorable Claude McColloch,

Judge.

Appearances

:

Mr. R. R. Rankin and Mr. Leo Smith, Attorneys

for Plaintiff; Mr. Kenneth C. Gillis (Oakland, Cali-

fornia), of Counsel for Plaintiff.

Mr. Earl A. Bernard and Mr. Plowden Stott, At-

torneys for Defendants.

Court Reporter: Ira G. Holcomb. [1]

PROCEEDINGS OF TRIAL
Mr. Rankin: We are ready to i^roceed on behalf

of the plaintiff, your Honor.

Mr. Bejiiard: The defendants are ready, your

Honor.

The Court : Proceed. Call a witness.

Mr. Rankin: May I respectfully suggest to the

Court that an opening statement would be of as-

sistance, in oi'der tliat you ma}- have the matter in

mind.
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The Court: Yes. I have heard it discussed two

or three times.

Mr. Rankiii: You do not care for an opening

statement, then?

The Court: Go ahead, if you want to make it.

Mr. Rankin: The suit, your Honor, is against,

primarily, Charles P. Brewer, based upon the lan-

guage in the franchise, which is admitted, that he

agreed not to, either as an employee, employer or

otherwise, canvass, solicit or cater to any of the

customers of the company which he may have known

of because of his emplojnnent by the company, for

a period of three years after the employment

ceased.

It is against three employees of the company,

Duncan, Rightmire and Merriott. They are, in turn,

divided into different classifications. Rightmire is

one who signed a statement to the effect that he

would not work for any other pest control firm for a

period of three years after the termination of any

employment with this company. [2*]

Duncan has never been served. We have tried

diligently to make service upon him and, so far as

we know, he has never been in the jurisdiction since

this action was brought.

Merriott is a man who was hired by Mr. Brewer.

Under Mr. Brewer's sales agency agreement, he was

presumed to sign these men on contracts similar to

that which Duncan and Rightmire signed, but Mr.

Brewer, for purposes of his own, did not so sign

Mr. Rightmire.

* Page numbering appearing at top of page of Reporter's certified
Transcript of Record.
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Rosalie Brewer is the wife of tlie defeiKlarit

Charles P. Brewer. She never was in the employ of

Paramount l*est Control Service but aided and as-

sisted her luisband when he was their agent here

under the franchise agreement, and did also aid

and assist her husband after the termination of this

agreement.

l^oth Mevriott and Rosalie Brewer are charged

as co-conspirators with the otiiers because they

knowingly and willfully entered into a conspiracy

to break these contracts and aid and abet others in

the violation of their agreements—know^ingly, be-

cause we will show in this case that these parties

did flagrantly—and I mean by "flagrantly," upon

their own volition—terminate their agreements and

association with Paramount Pest Control Service as

of August 1, 1947.

Within a week thereafter a suit was brought in

the State court by the plaintiff to enjoin them from

that practice. The case was dismissed on the ground

that there had not been a qualification of this for-

eign corporation in Oregon so that it had the bene-

fits of the courts. The merits of the case were not at

that time gone into. Subsequently that qualification

for entrance into this state was complied with, and

then this suit was brought in this court charging

these parties, all of them, with conspiracy, and par-

ticularly from that complaint in the State court, all

of these matters concerning these contracts were

known to the defendants, therefore, who are the

same as the defendants herein and who continued

thereafter, until this complaint was brought, and
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afterwards, to violate that contract and to aid and

abet each other in that violation.

When it comes to the damage part of the case, it

is our position that, equity having taken jurisdiction

of this case for the purpose of an injunction, dam-

ages are likewise recoverable even in equity, and the

gross amount of damages that are alleged in the com-

plaint in the various items amount to $15,175. There

will be much more to be said on the item of damages

as we progress in the trial of the case.

The testimony, your Honor, will be rather long

and detailed because it involves, first, the history of

the company. The defendants claim that we are not

doing the business in Oregon that we say we are

doing, and the only way to do that, as I see it, is to

show what business we did do and then show what

we are authorized to do, and then show what we did

in Oregon, and to show this in some detail as to the

composition of poisons and so forth. In fact, for

my own convenience, I have divided [4] the services

of this company in this insecticide control into three

phases and I hope they will be of as much benefit to

the Court as they have been to me.

First is the detailed study of the poisons. That is

necessary here because the defendants say that these

are not unusual, that you can go on the common
market and buy them. We distinctly remember this

Court's statement that until something more defi-

nite is shown concerning these formulas, no tempo-

rary injunction would be granted.

These poisons are divided into two classes, one of

which is common—common because the laws of Cali-
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foriiia iiTidei* which these i)eople opei-ate—and which

the evidence wiJl show is the most severe state in

the Union on regulations—require that all poisons

be registered and, so, these are registered, even

though common poisons.

These poisons are all put out under the brand

and label of Paramount Pest Control Service. There

is a lethal quality in practically all of them—there

may be one exception. The composition of them is

unique in tliat the evidence will show that if you use

A, 13, C and D and mix them in that order you get

one result, whereas if you mix, say, A, C, D, B, you

would get a different result.

Next, after we get through with poisons, there

is the study of the insects to which the poison is

applicable, because some of these poisons penetrate

the reproductive glands; others [5] kill anything

that comes in contact only; so it requires, the evi-

dence will show, a knowledge of the bug itself or the

pest itself, a knowledge of its habits and so on.

Then the third classification is that of the applica-

tion, that is, to bring these two together, the poison

and the pest. '^I'hat is done by a long study of what

is the most effective method of accomplishing this

purpose what they will take and what they won't

take. Some are sweet-loving insects and you have

to have a basis of sugar or something of that nature.

Others have different qualities, but I shall not go

into the subject further than to state to the Court

that this is not just an unusual or ordinary situa-

tion.
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For example, they make a rat poison. You can

buy rat poison on the common market, but we will

endeavor to show, and I think the evidence will

show to the Court, that this rat poison has a differ-

ent quality.

Then this case involves an accounting, in order

to show these items of damage. I will say to the

Court that I have listed, on a little separate mem-

orandum which is not an exhibit in the case, a sum-

mary of all of the allegations of damage we are al-

leging in the complaint, how much they amount to

and what exhibits are offered in evidence to prove

those. This I will give to the Court and to counsel

simply as a convenience. It is not in evidence in the

case but it may be used simply as a convenience to

follow through. [6]

The practice of this, your Honor, is to bring about

a determination of whether these parties are entitled

to continue their practices, if not enjoined and, if

there is any right to compensation in a monetary

form, to recover.

A word about the parties so that the Court may
know about whom we are talking at every stage of

the case, from the very inception. The plaintiff is

the Paramount Pest Control Service. It is a Cali-

fornia corporation. It was incorporated in July,

1947.

Prior to that time, for several years, the Para-

mount Pest Control Service was a partnership con-

sisting of T. C. Sibert. Its Vice-President is Mr.

Glenn Fisher. Its Secretary-Treasurer is the ac-

countant in the firm, Mr. Harold Hilts.
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The ])rincii)al (IcfViidarit is Mr. (Jliai'lcs P. lirewcr.

Mr. Brewer was at one time a very close and intimate

friend of the Siherts. They had known each other

for some time. Mr. Brewer came to Mr. Sibert and

asked if there was not a place for him in this Para-

mount Pest Control Service. He said he was inter-

ested in coming to the Northwest.

It so happens that very shortly after that, and be-

fore Mr. Brewer's training—and, by the way, there

is very diligent training given these employees, be-

cause they are dealing with a lethal quantity and

quality all the time.

Before that training was completed entirely, thifi

opening occurred here and he came up, first under

the partnership [7] and then later under the corpo-

ration. In a word, the evidence will show that there

was every effort made by the plaintiff to aid and

facilitate Mr. Brewer in the acquiring or mainte-

nance and increasing of the business in this state.

Rosalie Brewer, his w4fe, as I previously stxited,

not an employee of the companj^ assisted her hus-

band. She was brought up here in May, 1947, and,

under the direction of the Secretary-Treasurer of

the corporation, put in charge of the books here for

her husband so that she could know the system that

would be a|)proved by the principal, the Paramount

Pest Control Service. She was office manager,

signed checks of the Brewer Pest Control Service

for her husband and aided and assisted him at all

times, either before the breach, when he was under

the agency agreement or after the breach when he

went in for himself. In fact, we have reason to be-
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lieve, I think the evidence will show, that she was

probably the primary mover in this separation.

The next is Carl Duncan, whom I will not dwell

with except to say that we believe that he is or was

a very trusted employee and a very efficient one. We
have not been able to get service upon him but I do

not understand that militates against showing that

he is or was a member of the conspiracy.

The next is Raymond Rightmire. He is a very

good pest control man and had been trained in a

manner that will be more accurately described later

by the Paramount Pest Control Service. He saw fit

to throw in his lot with Charles P. Brewer. [8]

Earl Merriott was also an employee of Brewer.

He was, in fact, never signed up on any contract.

Now, a word about the pest control business. Both

of these parties are engaged in pest control. That

will be clearly shown and it is not denied ; it is ad-

mitted here. But there is a vast difference in the

operation of these two businesses.

In the first place, taking the time element, the

evidence will show that the plaintiff, or those who

comprise its corporation organization now, have

been engaged in the business for ten years. There

were times when they devoted as high as eighteen

hours a day to the business, but they were not ex-

perts and they had to learn by the practical method.

They devoted a great deal of their money. They

had to have jobs in which they earned their living,

and then their pest control work was done nights

after they had finished their regular jobs from

which they could acquire funds to carry on, and as
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time went on, witli even greater exfxinditure.s of*

money, they created this bnsiness. On the otlier

hand, the defendant, the evidence will show, lias not

even yet had a year's experience in pest control,

while the plaintiff has hired entomologists, gradu-

ates of college, who have gone through the details

of knowing all about bugs, knowing also about poi-

sons. What Mr. Brewer and his associates have

gotten has been primai'ily from the pest control

training service conducted by plaintiff and, to a

minor degree, from their own research and practical

service in the field. [9]

So far as knowledge of insects is concerned, plain-

tiff, as I say, has these entomologists, while they

have no employed entomologists in theii* concern.

They had, from time to time, before this breach

occurred, w^ritten to the main office as to problems

relating to the classification of bugs and so on, but

where they write now we don't know. I think it will

be of assistance to the Court if I recite the events

chronologically.

In January Mr. Brewer made his application. In

February he went to work, in training. He ceased

that training April 6th and came to Oregon, his

training being less than required because of the

necessity of having someone in the District of

Oregon.

He worked under the partnership from April 6th

to July 1, 1946, and in July they signed a contract,

when the corporation was not yet fonned, which

contract was ratified after the corporation wns

formed.
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' That franchise—it is a contract, called a sales

agent's agreement, July 1, 1946. I think we will

find ourselves, for the sake of brevity, repeatedly

calling that a franchise, because that is the name

that the parties applied to it.

That franchise, however, went into effect and was

lived up to until September 12, 1946. There is a

dispute between the parties here, Mr. Brewer say-

ing that it continued until November, about Thanks-

giving in November. I think the evidence [10] will

show the Court that it continued up to September

12, 1946. Mr. Brewer stated that he could not do as

if he had a different arrangement, not under the

whole contract but only that one part, that of

claimants.

.
I think if the Court will bear with me for a little

detail, it will help keep this evidence very much
clearer in mind. Section 5 of the franchise agreement

provides the agent shall take 80 per cent of the

gross and the Paramount Pest Control 20 per cent.

Out of the 80 per cent the agent pays the expenses

of his operation. That is the franchise, as we shall

term it, from time to time.

The experience of the Paramount Pest Control

Ser\dce shows that it takes about 60 per cent to

operate this business, depending on the efficiency of

the operator, so we figure that takes about 60 per

cent out of the 80 per cent, leaving 20 per cent to

the agent and 20 per cent to the company.

After Mr. Brewer's protest of September 12,

1946, that was changed by Mr. Sibert and Mr.

Brewer alone, to this effect: Mr. Sibert, at Mr.
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]>rcwer's request, gave him j^ermission to \n\i all he

wanted to into his hiisiness because that businesH

was his, after it was created, arul it was the nnder-

standinp: tlint wlicii lie took a dollar home, that is,

when Mr. Brewer took a dollar home he should X)ay

an equal amount to the Paramount Pest Control

Service; and that the profits were divided on a fifty-

fifty basis because, 710 matter how large or how

small the profits were, on [11] Mr. Brewer's busi-

ness, that profit could have been plowed into the

business to whatever extent Mr. Brewer determined

was advisable, save for the obligation that when he

took home a dollar he paid an equal amount to the

company.

Mr. Sibert omitted to mention that to Mr. Hilts

and the matter went on until December when he

happened to recall it and then told Mr. Hilts and

his associates, and then received approval and rati-

fication for what had been done.

Under Mr. Brewer's statement, he claims he went

down there in November and at that time this whole

adjustment was made. The evidence, from our

standpoint, will show quite the contrary ; that there

w^as no business mentioned in November ; that it was

a vacation trip by Brewer; that he and his wife

stayed at the Sibert home as guests of the Siberts

and that the most friendly and pleasant relations

existed. The only time any business was discussed

was when Mr. Brewer went to the office of the com-

pany to get some supplies.
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This agreement that I have mentioned was to run

to the first of the year only, that is, the dollar-home

and dollar-company agreement was to run only to

the first of the year, at which time it was presumed

Mr. Brewer would have created sufficient capital

that he could tlien go on the franchise, and that was

undoubtedly Mr. Brewer's concei3tion because in

February he made a payment on the franchise, and

we have the check to show it. On March 6th he

made a payment and we have the check to [12]

show it. On the 13th of March he made a final pay-

ment, the amount of that payment being consistent

only with the amount that was then due under the

franchise.

Then, intervening, between the dates of January

1, 194:7, and March 13, 1947, Mr. Brewer complained

that he should develop this Eastern Oregon terri-

tory, where there were large distances to cover and

little in between, no towns of any population, a very

extensive territory.

They made an agreement, which is entirely sep-

arate. It is set out in the pleadings. It was en-

tirely separate and made in order to develop the

territory and help Mr. Brewer to accomplish sub-

stantial promotion of this business. The Paramount

Pest Control Service agreed to send two men to

Portland or to Oregon and develop that territory,

with a division of salaries and expense and profits

and so forth. Only part of that is agreed to by the

defendants.

But, because that did not turn out to be profit-
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a])l(^—and tliis is the situation wbcrcin we find our-

selves very rnueh in disagreement and, tlierefore, I

mention it particularly to the Court. It was Para-

mount's own idea that they voluntarib/ give to Mr.

Brewer—and it was done without his lequest and

even without his knowledge, after consultation of

Sihert jxnd Hilts—a continuation of the dollar-home,

dollar-company basis, and Mr. Brewer was written

to that effect by a letter which will aj)pear in evi-

dence. There were one or two meetings, but of no

particular [13] consequence, as I recall it, nntil

June.

On June 1st, with Mr. Brewer, Mr. Sibert and

Mr. Hilts present, they readjusted the whole trans-

action covering the whole year. They canceled that

])rovision about the franchise, gave him credit for

what he had never paid, and continued to carry on.

The principals seemed to be ])erfectly happy. In

fact, Mr. Sibert bought the tickets, because it was

Mr. Brewer's child's birthday—bought the tickets to

Oakland, California, and they all went down for a

very pleasant and satisfactory visit. While they

were visiting there, word came in that there had

not been some collections made and it was suggested

Mr. Brewer was not a good collector, and they re-

tired to their room in some huff and nothing more

was said.

On the 24th of July, less than a month thei'eafter,

Mr. Brewer wrote to Mr. Sibert his letter of resigna-

tion in which he said he was terminating his agree-

ment as of August 1st, that is, about a week later.
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Under his contract his obligation was to at least give

the company ninety days' notice. He paid no atten-

tion to that. In fact, I think the evidence will show

that Mr. Brewer's regard for the contract was

something that might as well not have existed

throughout this whole proceeding.

Then, with remarkable facility, these defendants

started to acquire the contact and patronage that

they had acquired at one time for Paramount Pest

Control Service.

We have here the applications which are already

in [14] evidence and admitted. We also have Mr.

Brewer's own sworn reply, showing that from Au-

gust 1, 1947, until the answer was made in Novem-

ber, he had acquired 141 of the accounts, patrons

and customers of the Paramount Pest Control Serv-

ice, wliich was definitely in violation, obviously in

violation of his agreement.

That gives a running statement, I think, of all

that is necessary to give the Court a general outline.

Just a word as to these exhibits. Exhibit No. 45 is

a photostatic copy of the mortgage from Mr. Brewer

to the Bank of California, which has just been pro-

cured. Opposing counsel has had a chance to observe

it and reservation for it was made at the pre-trial.

As to Exhibit 28, I feel I ought to explain to op-

posing counsel that probably I made an error in

connection with that. It is a bill of sale made by

Sibert and Fisher, as a copartnership, to the Para-

mount Pest Control Service. There were two or

three copies of it made, and I have here a carbon
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copy that was fully signed by Mr. Sihcrt and Mr.

Fisher. The copy that was entered in evidence had

the notarial acknowledgment on it that this copy

docs not have, so when I put that in evidence I did

not put the copy in evidence without the notarial

certificate but I put the other in and it did not have

Mr. Sibert's si.c^nature. I asked Mr. Sibert to si^

it and I thou,i?ht afterwards that I should have de-

layed that action on my part until aft(^r the Court

had been advised and its permission secured, so I

now formally call [15] attention of opposing coun-

sel to that fact, and we can either strike Mr. Sibert \s

sis^nature to that, if it is so desired, or we can intro-

duce the one without the notarial acknowledgment,

which does not add anything. I do not care what

may be done, but I felt I should call it to the Court's

attention.

In conclusion, I thank the Court for its attention

in giving me this opportunity. I hope it has been of

some assistance. It has been rather sketchy, I feel

myself, but we feel that we shoiild be entitled to in-

junctive relief. It seems to me there has been a

complete violation of this agreement and w^e ask

for such damages as the Court may find, from the

evidence and these exhibits, that plaintiff is en-

titled to.

The Court: You have not discussed aiiy law.

Mr. Rankin : No.

The Court: You just seem to take it for granted.

Mr. Rankin: I am perfectly willing to discuss

the law. In fact, that has been Mr. Smith's prin-
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cipa] duty. I didn't know that your Honor wanted

it HI an opening statement, but there are some cases

in Oregon, particularly one case that, it seems to me,

we could decide this case on alone. If we are going

into any detailed discussion, I would like to have

Mr. Smith cover that subject. He is familiar with

it, having prepared the brief in the other trial.

:'It is to this effect, that where we have a contract

whereby one party agrees, mider proper considera-

tion, to do [16] nothing to interfere with another

party's business, that, while they are in restraint of

trade, it is a legitimate restraint of trade if any-

where near reasonable, and three years is not un-

reasonable, not an unreasonable time as the au-

thorities show. Therefore, this conspiracy charge

is based on the fact that where he employed Right-

mire and where the agent Brewer agreed not to

solicit or not to go into a compettive business for a

period of three years that the Court will say that

that is a proper provision.

The Court: What is the Oregon case you say is

the leading authority?

Mr. Rankin: What is the case, Mr. Smith?

The Court: What is the one you claim?

Mr. Smith: 161 Or. 65.

The Court: I will hear you, Mr. Bernard.

Mr. Bernard: I do not care, your Honor, par-

ticularly to repeat what I said in my opening state-

ment at the pre-trial. Your Honor possibly will

remember our position, that this contract was modi-

fied and that modification was to continue through-
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out its temi and tlion, suddenly, the plaintiff

repudiated that modification, and it was for that

reason that Mi*. Bre\v(;r severed his connection willi

the company.

T3riefly, as to the law—and I am preparing a

brief on the subject, not yet in shape to hand to your

Honor, but I will hand it to your Honor as quickly

as I can get it done. It [17] is our contention, first,

that in a case of this kind the burden is on the

plaintiff to show that the contract was fair, the

restrictive covenants reasonable, and that they have

a real relation to and are really necessary for the

protection of the plaintiff.

And, speaking of the fairness of this contract,

taken in connection with the facts, this young man
had been sent up here on a promise of a salary of

$250 a month; he had sold his home in California

and one month afterwards he was told he must sign

this contract or else he was through. In the various

provisions in the contract there is only one thing

that the plaintiff promised to do, and that was to

furnish such advertising as they might think neces-

sary. We will have something to say later as to the

reasonableuosvS of the contract under the circum-

stances.

Further, we claim the law to be that it must

appear that the ]daiutiff has performed all obliga-

tions im]iosed on it by the contract before plaintiff

is entitled to injunctive relief; further, that an in-

junction w'ill be denied when it a]ipears that plain-

tiff's conduct in obtaining the contract was unjust
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or unfair or in plaintiff acts unjustly under the

contract or if the contract is unjustly harsh, unfair

or unreasonable or if the entire matter appears to

be inequitable.

We will contend, your Honor, that regardless of

consideration, the conduct of this company towards

this man when [18] they sent him up here, the cir-

cumstances under which they obtained the contract,

the nature of the contract itself and their repudia-

tion of the modification of it would require this

Court or at least give cause to this Court to deny

any injunctive relief.

The Court : What did the plaintiff furnish under

the contract?

Mr. Bernard: The })laintiff furnished nothing

under the contract, your Honor. They furnished an

opportunity to this young man to go into the pest

control business. As we look at this contract, taking

it by its four corners, they sent him up here and

said, "You can go to work in the pest control

business.
'

'

The Court: Why couldn't

Mr. Bernard: I know what your Honor has in

mind.

The Court: No, you don't. Why couldn't he

have done it himself ?

Mr. Bernard: He could have done it himself.

I think you mean, by the terms of the contract.

The Court: Did they provide any financing?

Mr. Bernard: Provided no financing.

The Court: Provide materials and supplies'?
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Mr. Bernard: I think there were some supplies

and materials to start in with, yes, although they

were paid ioi-.

The Court: For which he paid?

Mr. Bernard: For which he paid. They are

charged against liim. In other words, as I look on

this contract, what they are [19] actually doing is

to levy a 20 per cent tax on his gross business for

the privilege of him going into the pest control

business in Oregon. They furnished him really with

nothing.

The Court: Is it any different from any other

concern, say, that wants to open up a new territory

somewhere, where they say, ''We want you to go up

there and work for us and want you to agree that,

if you quit us, you won't, within a period of three

years, go in the same kind of business?''

Mr. Bernard: There may be something for the

Court to consider along the lines of public policy.

The Court : Is it any different from what fre-

quently happens in the commercial world where

some concern says, "We are going to open up an

agency in T^os Angeles," for exam})le, or take a case

nearer home, l^et's take a case here in Oregon and,

as time goes on, they send men out to open up new

territories. Is that the question here, whether a man
could go out and open up a new territory and bind

himself not to go into a competitive business?

Mr. Bernard : That is the very question, your

Honor, whether or not they could enforce a contract

of that kind.
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The Court: Are contracts of that kind enfor-

cible in equity?

Mr. Bernard: I don't think so, no. In other

words, I think plaintiff should have been required to

furnish something except the mere opportunity to

go out and go to work.

The Court: Do you want to speak further, Mr.

Rankin ?

Mr. Rankin: No, your Honor. [20]

The Court: All right. Proceed with the testi-

mony.

Mr. Smith: May it please the Court, I would

like to submit to the Court a trial brief which has

been prepared on the subject of contracts, the val-

idity of agreements in restraint of trade, and so

forth. At the same time I will give a copy to coun-

sel for the defendants and at this time would also

like to request that if the defendants have any cita-

tions of authorities in support of their contentions

that such a contract is unreasonable, we would ap-

preciate it very much having those citations in

ample time so that we may go to the Law Library

and study the question in the intervening time and

be able to make our arguments at the proper time.

The Court : We have no jury here. Mr. Bernard

said he would complete his memorandiun as soon as

he can. I imagine that will be some time during the

day.

Mr. Bernard: I do not want to deceive the

Court. It may take me a day or two to get that

memorandum in shape. I thought this, your Honor,
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it being a case before the Court, that even though

I lianded it up promptly at the end of the case they

would have an opportunity to reply.

The Court: Mr. Smith has just made a special

request that if you have any authorities now he

would like you to give them to him.

Mr. Bernard : I will have to give them to him

later.

Mr. Rankin : If the Court please, I would like

at this time [21] to move the admission, for the

purpose of this case, of Mr. Kenneth C. Gillis, an

attorney of Oakland, California, admitted to prac-

tice in both the State and Federal Courts in the

State of California.

The Court: Is that satisfactory to you?

Mr, Stott : Yes, your Honor.

The Court: Very well. Proceed.

THEODORE C. SIBERT
was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. What is your name, please?

A. Theodore C. Sibert.

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Sibert 1

A. 1139 Sunny Hills Road, Oakland, California.

Q. What is your business?

A. I am President of the Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service.
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(Testimony of Theodore C. Sibert.)

Q. How long have you been in the pest control

service ?

A. I first started in 1927, not steady, but I have

been pretty close to the pest control service for

around t\Yenty years.

Q. When you say *'not steady," what else did

you do ?

A. I am a cement finisher, a carpenter and a

plasterer. I served an apprenticeship as car-

penter [22]

Q. Did you, while you were carrying on these

trades, also endeavor to do something in the nature

of pest control ?

A. I have been associated with pest control since

1927, working part time.

Q. Who was associated with you, if anyone?

A. Mr. Watson T. Moore.

Q. Anyone else?

A. Working for the Western Exterminating

Company.

Q. Anyone else?

A. Mr. Charles Brewer and many others.

Q. Concerning your original enterprise,, was it

a partnership or corporation?

A. Co-partnership.

Q. Who was your partner?

A. Glenn H. Fisher.

Q. How long were you and Mr. Fisher in part-

nership ?

A. November 15, in 1938, we started the Para-

mount Pest Control Service.
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(Testimony of Theodore C. Sibei-t.)

Q. To when?

A. About July 1st, around July Ist or some-

thing, 1946.

Q. What did you do then*?

A. We formed a corporation.

Q. Is that corporati(m the plaintiff in this case,

the Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. It is. [23]

Q. When did you come to Oregon?

A. Came to Oregon July 1, 1942.

Q. How did you happen to come to Oregon ?

A. Because of the request of the 8. P. Railroad

Company, handling their business in Oregon.

Q. Had they been a previous client of yours in

the State of California? A. Yes.

Q. The Court has indicated he wants us to move

along, so will you briefly give a summary or a brief

sketch of the pest control business and how you

built it up and what it amounts to at the present

time ?

A. Well, Mr. Fisher and I started the Para-

mount Pest Control Service November 15, 1938. He
bad been previously in bvisiness for two and a half

years by himself. We didn't enough work to

keep us both going, so I worked with my carpenter

tools, my carpenter's trade, daytime, and he solicited

on the street, and he done his work right at the

office, and we done the work on a Simday or when-

ever we could. We worked pretty hard for years.
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(Testimony of Theodore C. Sibert.)

We had a new idea. Our idea was this, to for-

mulate the best of chemicals, that is, the best on

the market. We had had quite a lot of experience

in chemicals before and in servicing and applying

them to pests or rats, or whatever we tried to kill.

So, we decided not to sell the chemicals and to

service these places, sign this work up, so much for

the cleanup the first month and then so much each

month thereafter, and this took in a wonderful way.

We attained as near 100 per cent as we could in

controlling of all disease-carrying pests pertaining

to structural. We worked pretty hard.

Q. What do you mean by saying you *'worked

pretty hard'"?

A. That is what I was about to tell you. We
worked sixteen and twenty hours a day. There was

many weeks I didn't take off my shoes, only to

change my socks and wash my feet, and just lay

down on the couch.

Q. What ingredients did you use in your busi-

ness? A. I don't understand the question.

Q. What did you do with pest control"? How
did you control pests ? Hovv did you kill them ?

A. Well, we have our own laboratories ; we have

research and we take chemicals and we formulate

them applicable to a certain type of insect or that

certain type of rodent, or whatever the problem

might be. We train men.

Q. Train them to do what, Mr. Sibert ?

A. AVe train men along the lines of formulat-

ing that is necessary, and how to apply that chem-
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ieal, that poison that we leave in thei-e, foodHtnffs

especially, and to have the right amounts in the

right containers; and then train them to keep clean

and so that they don't do things that they shouldn't

on the job. It is quite extensive training. It is

very unique. [25]

Mr. Rankin: At this time, your Ilonoi-, the wit-

ness having testified that they were incorporated,

we would like to offer in evidence—and if we can

keep these exhibits in the same order, giving them

the same numbers, it will aid greatly in many

respects.

The Court: Why not put in all the exhibits at

once ?

Mr. Rankin: That is all right with me, your

Honor. Counsel has had them and has looked them

over. Have you any objection to any of these

exhibits ?

Mr. Bernard: There are some exhibits in there

that deal with some person's memoranda as to ac-

counts. Of course, we object to those as being hear-

say unless they are jn-oved by some witness.

Mr. Rankin : I think that objection would be

proper, your Honor. If counsel will point them

out

The Court: No, wo will do it like we do in all

cases like this. All of the exhibits that have been

marked for identification on both sides will be ad-

mitted as exhibits in the trial, taking the same

numbers and being subject to any objections that
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may heretofore have been made or may hereafter be

stated.

(The following Plaintiff's Exhibits were

thereupon received in evidence and marked as

follows:) [26]

Plaintiff's

Exhibit No.

1

2

3

4

Description

Articles of Incorporation of Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service.

Declaration of Purpose to Engage in Business in

Oregon.

Certificate of Authority to Engage in Business in

the State of Oregon.

Receipt for fees, Corporation Department, State of

Oregon.

5-1
'

to i- Labels—Paramount Pest Control Service.

5-26

6-1
'

to I Instructions and Training Given Employees, Para-

6-7 mount Pest Control Service.

7 Rules and Regulations of Paramount Pest Control

Service.

8 Rules and Regulations of Paramount Pest Control

Service.

9 Rules and Regulations of Paramount Pest Control

Service.

10 Safety Rules in Using Compound 1080.

11 Form of Service Order for Paramount Pest Control

Service.

12 Form in re service performed.

13 Form of receipt—Paramount Pest Control Service.

14 Duplicate copy of receipt.

15 Application of Charles P. Brewer for Employment.
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Plaintiff's

Exhibit No. Description

16 Ktnploymcnt Application Blank—Carl Robert Dun-
can.

16-A Form of Application — Paramount Pest Control
Service.

17 Form of Application for Registration of Economic
Poisons—State of California.

17-A Form, Application for Structural Pest Control
Operator's License.

18 Form of Application for Structural Pest Control
Field Representative's License.

19 Form of Application for Fidelity Insurance, The
Fidelity & Casualty Company of New York.

20 Copy of By-Laws for Internal Administration of
Structural Pest Control Board.

20-A Copy of By-Laws for Internal Administration

—

Structural Pest Control Board.

21 Copy of By-Laws for Internal Administration of

Structural Pest Control Board.

21-A Copy of By-Laws for Internal Administration

—

Structural Pest Control Board.

22 Time Reports—Carl Duncan.

23 Time Reports—Raymond Rightniire.

24 Copy of Publication "Pest Control and Sanitation,"
September, 1947.

25 Copy of publication issued by Julius Hj-man &
Company, Denver, Colorado, "OCTA-KLOR," May,
1947.

26 Copy of i)ublication of Socouy-Vacuum Oil Co.,

"Technical Bulletin," June, 1947.

27 Sales Agent's Agreement with Paramount Pest Con-
trol Service and Charles P. Brewer.

28 Bill of Sale from co-partnei-ship to corporation,

Paramount Pest Control Service.

29 Copy of letter March 15, 1947, H. W. Hilts to

Charles Brewer.
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Plaintiff's

Exhibit No. Description

30 Check dated February 6, 1947, $338.00, to Para-

mount Pest Control Service.

31 Supporting Voucher No. 181.

32 Check dated March 6, 1947, $250.00, to Paramount

Pest Control Service.

33 Supporting Voucher No. 229.

34 Check dated March 13, 1947, $494.25, to Paramount

Pest Control Service.

35 Supporting Voucher No. 244.

36 Accounting as of June 30, 1947, between Hilts and

Brewer.

37 Check dated July 9, 1947, $259.61, to Paramount

Pest Control Service.

38 Supporting Voucher No. 413.

39 Statement of Accounting on Franchise for July,

1947.

40 Tabulation in re Eastern Oregon Expense.

40-A Indenture of Lease, The House of Celsi, Lessor,

Paramount Pest Control Service by Charles P.

Brewer, Lessee.

40-B Sign entitled "To Our Patrons," Paramount Pest

Control Service.

40-C Sign "Patrons"—Brewer's Pest Control.

42 Letter, July 24, 1947, Charles P. Brewer to T. C.

Sibert.

43 Check dated March 3, 1947, $226.00, to Kelly Motors.

44 Supporting Voucher No. 203.

45 Photostatic copy of Chattel Mortgage executed by

Charles P. Brewer, $1,052.63, to Bank of California

N.A.

46 Photostatic copy of Assumed Business Name Cer-

tificate, Brewer Pest Control.

47 Photostatic copy of Certificate of Retirement, Brew-

er 's Pest Control.
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Plaintiff's

Exhibit No. Description

48 FMiolostatic copy of Assumed Business Name Cer-

tificate, Brewer's Pest Control.

49 Statement of Accounting on Franchise for January

and February, 1947.

50 Statement of Assets taken over by Charles P.

Brewer.

51 List of Accounts totaling $925.89.

51-A Statement entitled "Eastern Oregon State Run"

—

Total Revenue, $1357.00.

53 State of Expense, $3596.95.

54 File of "Canceled Accounts witli Time to Run as

Per Contract.

55 File of "List of Accounts on Books" Longer than

one year and canceled because of Brewer action.

56 Copy of letter dated October 22, 1947, Attorneys for

Paramount Pest Control Service to Charles P.

Brewer.

57 Profit & Loss Statement, January 1 through Febru-

ary 28, 1947.

58 Profit & Loss Statement, January 1 through March

31, 1947.

58-A Profit & Loss Statement, January 1 througii i\larch

31, 1947.

59 Balance Statement, January 1 through April 30,

1947.

59-A Port huul Profit & Loss Statement, January 1 tiirough

April 30, 1947.

60 Profit & Loss Statement, -January 1 through May
31, 1947.

60-A Balance Statement, May 31, 1947.

61 Balance Statement, June 30, 1947.

61-A Profit and Loss Statement, January 1 to June 30,

1947.
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Plaintiff's

Exhibit No. Description

61-B Trial Balance, June 30, 1947.

62 Copy of Complaint in Circuit Court of the State of

Oregon, Paramount Pest Control Service v. Charles

P. Brewer, et al.

63 Copy of Notice to Produce in Cause No. 178013,

Circuit Court of the State of Oregon.

64 Check dated September 10, 1947, payable to Conger

Printing Co., signed "Brewer's Pest Control."

65 Check dated October 17, 1947, payable to Conger

Printing Co., signed "Brewer's Pest Control."

66 Check dated October 10, 1947, payable to Conger

Printing Co., signed "Brewer's Pest Control."

67 Form of Receipt—Brewer's Pest Control.

68 Form to be signed by customer—Brewer's Pest

Control.

69 Business Card, Brewer's Pest Control.

70 Form of Service Order—^Brewer's Pest Control.

71 Form of Daily Report—Brewer's Pest Control.

72 Form of Statement—Brewer's Pest Control.

73 Envelope bearing return address "Brewer's Pest

Control" (small size).

74 Envelope (large size) bearing return address "Brew-

er's Pest Control."

75 Letterhead—Brewer's Pest Control.

Mr. Rankin: Your Honor, the first exhibits re-

lating to the corporation, I anticipate there is no

objection to them.

The Court: They are all in.

Q. (By Mr. Eankin) : Mr. Sibert, I would like

to hand to you Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 5, sub-num-

bered No. 5-1 to No. 5-26, and ask you to state, after
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having reviewed those, wliether they are jKtisons that

are put out })y your company, labels of f)oison8 put

out by your company ?

The Court: You know what they are. You have

seen them. Ai'e they covering your material ?

A. Yes.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Are they poisons put out

by your company? A. They are, sir.

Q. Are all of these poisons such as you can buy

on the common market? A. No, sir.

Q. How many are there altogether? Twenty-

six? A. Twenty-six here, sir. [33]

Q. What proportion of those can you buy on the

common market, not under your name but which

are common poisons that you can buy ?

A. What proportion of these chemicals?

Q. What proportion of these poisons represented

by these labels can you buy on the common market ?

A. These chemicals are not for sale. They ai^

for use in the service department.

Q. If they contain poisons that are not unique

in your business but are common on the market,

how many of those are covered by these labels?

A. There is thirty-one poisons which we have

registered—there is five that is basic poisons which

we have to register.

Q. You say you have to register. Just what do

you mean by that?

A. Because of the strict laws, the Economic Poi-

sons License of California. It is a package law,
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sir, and it is the Economic Poisons Law—As long

as you are a reliable company and have chemists

and the equipment to formulate these poisons and

to package them and put your label on and the cor-

rect amount of the compound, the amounts in the

poisons, the exact amount to the gram of the poi-

sons and the exact amount to the gram of the inert

ingredients.

Q. You say there are five basic poisons ?

A. Five basic poisons, yes. There are thirty-one

poisons that we have registered. [34]

Q. You said that. A. Yes.

. Q. Five of them are basic?

A. There are chemicals that you buy that are not

basic, what are common poisons, because you can

buy those on the market.

Q. As to the other twenty-six you describe, is

there anything done by your company in connection

with those? A. Yes.

Q. Is what you do miique or different from those

that you get on the common market?

A. It is, sir.

Q. Have you any man in your employ who, as a

part of his duty, has anything to do in connection

with these poisons? A. I have Mr. Bushing.

Q. What is his department in your company?

A. He is an entomologist and chemist, a teacher

to teach the men, our men, how to handle poisons,

especially how to handle poisons safely.

Q. Does your business require any knowledge as

to the pests? A. It does, sir.
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Q. What knowledge do yon have to have in order

to handle pests'?

A. You have to have quite a lot of knowhidge

because it is like this : One insect, it takes one poison

to kill that one insect; and some poisons will not

apply to that insect, and you have to know how to

identify that insect, so, therefore, we have a [35]

school and have an entomolo<^ist, and that is the

service that you get—something that the boys on the

road don't have. He is always there. 1'hey send

insect specimens in to him and they are correctly

identified and the exact formulation is prescribed,

just what and how much to use to take care of the

insect. .•
•

Q. Suppose you gave too much poison, would

that still kill the insect? •
•

•

'

A. Certain poisons does not kill if you give too

much. •'

Q. To what do you refer, generally ?

A. Well, arsenic—too much arsenic will not kill-

There are certain poisons in here that are repulsive,

that a person could not take—it is repulsive.

Q. Do you know of any other pest control %ervi«e

that has a branch instnicting its men?
A. Not on the Coast, sir. ' '

Q. Do you require your employees to have tiny

training?
'

A. We have to train all enii)loyees because of the

safety, because in California there is a very strict

law. We have the Structural Pest Control Board
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in California, and everybody that works in this in-

dustry in California must pass a written examina-

tion under the Board, and it makes a ]3rofession out

of this business.

Q. In what states do you do business?

A. Do business in California, Oregon and Wash-

ington and Arizona.

Q. The law of which state or states do you find

the most exacting ? [36]

A. California.

Q. Have you complied with all the laws of Cali-

fornia in respect to your business ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you, as a matter of fact, thereby also con-

form to the requirements of the other states ?

A. We run our business according to the laws of

California.

Q. Will you look at the set of exhibits that you

have before you? A. Yes.

Q, Explain to the Court how those various in-

struments are used in connection with your business ?

A. Exhibit 6?

Q. Just a moment, Mr. Sibert. The exhibit

starts with No. 6-1.

A. I have it now, sir. This is literature that is

got out by Mr. Bushing.

Q. What it is, please? Just explain how it fits

in with your training of your employees ?

A. We set these boys right on the correct iden-

tification of all pests and those especially what we

have the most of, and we formulate the information
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to give to all the men to study so that they can be

})etter men and can identify these pests and insects

which they have to woik with at all times.

Q. Take Exhibit 6-1. What is that? How does

that bear on this matter? A. This is bedbugs.

Q. What a])out it?

A. Well, it explains the type of injury that

would result from the bite of a bedbug and what

diseases it carries when it bites.

Q. What do you do with that pamphlet that gives

that information?

A. We mimeograph these off and give them te

all men that works for us.

Q. Take No. 6-2, "White-Footed Mice.''

A. This is instruction on a very uncommon

mouse and information that the boys should need.

It gives identification and gives all measures to

handle this certain type of mouse.

Q. You mean, to identify the mouse so that it

can be killed? A. That is right.

Q. Take No. 6-3.

A. Clothes moths, the importiince and type of

injury, food of the moth, and giving the chemicals

that should be used and the type of inert ingredients,

history and habits, and then control measures, and

we explain exactly what shoidd be done.

Q. ^VTiat do you mean by "inei-t ingredients"?

A. Inert ingredients is to carry all the poisons,

to formulate certain poisons together so that they

will be compounded to give a certain t>T)e of poison
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that will do a certain job, to take care of that certain

type of rodent or that certain type of insect.

Q. Are inert ingredients themselves poisons,

necessarily ? A. Not necessarily.

Q. When youi' labels mention active and inert

ingredients, what [38] are the active ingredients,

generally speaking?

A. They are the poisons that is found. These

poisons, every one of them, is inspected once a year

by the Economic Poisons License De23artment. They

come right out to the boys on the job and they take

take them out of the can. These poisons must be

labeled. They take a certain portion of a certain

specimen once a year to see that these poisons are

exactly as on the label.

Q. Do you have to show the content of all these

poisons on the labels? A. We do.

Q. Do you have to show what the inert ingredi-

ents are? A. No.

Q. How do you find out what inert ingredient

to use ?

A. We have to experiment as to what inert in-

gredients to use.

Q. These articles or papers you are mentioning

here, under this Exhibit 6-1 to 6-7, are they given to

the employees for their instruction and use and

training, such as you have already stated?

A. They are, sir.

Q. Take Exhibit No. 6-4, "Carpet Beetles or

Bufealo Beetles."
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A. It has to do with the irnpoi-tance and type of

injury. If you were not trained, you wouldn 't know

the difference between clothes moths and these. It

is entirely different. They have an entirely different

chemical, an entirely different application 1o take

care of them. This explains the food and distribu-

tion, and how they [39] come and where they are

found. They are found different places, and they

hibernate. This shows the life history, appearance

and habits, and of course the control measures, how

to take care of them and what chemicals to use. *

Q. Take Exhibit 6-5. A. Yes.

Q. What is that?

A. That is what we call the "Bug House Ques-

tionnaire."

Q. Does that apply to the bug itself or what?

A. This applies to the man after he is taught

and goes to school. He is sent this "Bug House

Questionnaire" containing true and false questions

to see and get his IQ to see what he is getting out of

his studies.

Q. Suppose he does not answer the questions

properly ?

A. Then we go to his superior, whoever he is

working for, and see what is wi'ong.

Q. Suppose he answers them excellently, what

happens then?

A. Then that is in his favor.

Q. What happens? Does he get any work be-

cause of that?
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A. We don't have priorities. It is the man that

knows how to do the job and knows exactly what is

best for his job, he goes forward best.

Q. Wliat about Exhibit 6-6?

. A. That is another "Bug House Questionnaire"

covering rats and mice, bedbugs, silverfish and fleas,

carpet beetles, moths and [40] ants.

Q. Silverfish, what is that?

A. Silverfish is an insect.

- Q. Is that of the same nature of a questionnaire

as we just got through with ?

A. This is the same nature of a questionnaire.

Q. Take Exhibit 7. A. 6-7?

Q. Yes. What is 6-7?

A. This is a report of sodiimi fluoroacetate bait-

ing. This poison is very dangerous itself, so danger-

ous itself that there is no known antidote. It is very

hard to get. No company can buy it without they

are an established company. These are poisons that

whenever a man uses them in training, or otherwise,

he has to fill out one of these reports as to where he

puts his bait, and then keep a complete account of

that bait, of that poison.

Q. You say you can't buy it, that not everyone

can buy that?

A. The company that makes this cei"tain chemi-

cal insists that you are an established company and

have quite a large liability insurance. They don't

undertake the liability themselves.

Q. When you say "quite large," what do you

mean by that ? A. At least 40 and 80.
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Q. What do you meanl?

A. If one person gets injured, $40,(K)(); if there

is a bunch of [41] them, they divide the $8(),()0().

Q. You have to furnish a bond b(*fore you can

buy it?

A. There is a bond that you have to have.

Q. Are there many companies that manufacture

that kind of poison?

A. There is only one company that manufac-

turers this poison.

Q. Why ? Is their supply abundant or not f

A. Very limited.

Q. Take a concern that was just starting in,

perfectly new, could they go out and purchase itt

A. Well, they would have to furnish their bond.

I don't know, but it would be very hard if they did.

Q. Take Exliibit No. 7.

A. That is Rules and Regulations of the Para-

mount Pest Control Sei*vice. When a man comes

to work for us, we talk to him quite a while and we

hand him the Rules and Regulations to read. This

has to do with how to keep clean and how to handle

your kits and how to protect themselves. A man
must understand he has to be careful, and he has

to use the things we furnish him.

Q. Is that signed*? A. It is signed.

Q. It is signed by whom ?

A. Signed by Rightmire, Raynxnid L. Right-

mire.
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Q. Look at Exhibit No. 8, please.

.; A. This is another copy of Rules and Regula-

tions.

.. Q. Is that signed? [42] A. Yes.

Q. Whom is that signed hyl

A. Carl Duncan.

. q. Look at Exhibit No. 9.

A. That is another copy of Rules and Regula-

tions.,

Q. How does it relate to the others?

A.. Every once in a while we have to change

these; change them a little bit. This is a new one.

^,,Q. Look at Exhibit No. 10.

A. Safety Rules in Using Compound 1080.

vQ. What is Compoimd 1080?

• ..A. Sodium fluoroacetate.

Q. Is it dangerous or not?

A. Very dangerous. These are the safety rules

in using it. It tells just exactly what it is, where it

comes from, the lethal dose. No employees are

allowed—they are not even allowed to dilute it. We
do not allow them to handle it. It is told here just

exactly what they have to do.

. Q. Do you have rules relating to the service of

the employees and how they should serve your com-

pany for their own protection and for sanitation and

so forth? A. We do.

Q. See if Exhibit No. 11 has any bearing on this ?

A. Exhibit No. 11 is the general service order, or

our contract.
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Q. That is Form 7, I believe. I low do you

liandle that ? [4:5] A. Form 7. 'Iliis is Form 7.

Q. Well, I don't care about the fonn number. It

is Exliibit 11 and it is calli'd "Service Order."

A. Yes.

Q. How do you handle that ? Just explain to the

Court what function it has in your business?

A. This is a general service order which it takes

a licensed man in the State of California to catry.

California does not allow you to identify pests with-

out you have a license in that state to do th^t job;

Q. Did Mr. Brewer have any license in Cali"'

fornia? A. He did not.

Q. Go ahead. ' ^"

A. This is for general pest control. It has the

name and address, the service, the type of propeiiy-

and the order number, the time of starting and who

you see, and it has most of the pests that we have

in general, and the date and price and conditions,

and the length of the contract.

Q. When do you get that ?

A. We get this before we start tc» work on

the job.

Q. Whom is it signed by ?

A. It is signed by an official salesman or usuaDy

the branch manager in the district.

Q. Anyone else ?

A. It is also signed by the customer. [44]

Q. Is that a contract between you and the cus-

tomer, is that what you mean? A. It is, sir.
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Q. Exhibit No. 11 is what?

A, It is a service order.

Q. What is the next exhibit?

A. It gives

Q. Pardon ?

A. It gives the name, address, remarks, and

space for the condition of the job, signed by the

operator and the customer.

Q. What is the next exhibit?

A. Receipt, in duplicate. When one of our serv-

icemen has to collect money, he gives a duplicate

receipt. These are numbered and he must account

for the numbers.

Q. Whom does the duplicate go to?

A. The duplicate goes to the owner and he brings

the other in with the money, the cash.

Q. How about Exhibit No. 15? Does that have

any bearing on your business ?

A. This is an application blank.

Q. When do you require applications?

A. When a man comes in to ask us for work, if

we are interested or think he would make an oper-

ator, we ask him to fill out an application blank.

Then we more or less investigate and tails: it over

and when we need a man we pull these application

blanks out, [45] and the one we want we call in, or

get them in and give them a chance to work for us.

Q. Do you know whose application blank that is ?

A. I do. This is Charles Brewer, Charles P.

Brewer.
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Q. Does that api)lic'ation state whether he had

any previous experience in pest control or not?

A. It does. He had no previous experience.

Q. So far as you now, either from this applica-

tion or otherwise, had Charles P. Brewer any ex-

perience or service or training in pest control prior

to the time he came to work for the Paramount Pest

Control Service?

A. His application says none.

Q. What is Exhibit No. 16? A. 16?

Q. Yes.

A. That is another application blank.

Q. Is it like the other one or more recent in

form?

A. No, it is a little later one. This is an

earlier one.

Q. What is No. 17?

A. This is No. 16 is filled out.

Q. What is No. 17?

A. It is an ajiplication blank.

Q. All application blank? A. Yes.

Q. What is No. 17 ? [46]

A. You misunderstood me, Counsellor. 17 is

the blank one. 16 is filled out.

Q. What is 17?

A. It is the latest application form we have.

Q. For what purpose ?

A. When a man comes to work for us, or we are

interested in him, we will have him fill an applica-

tion form out.
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Q. Isn't that for the registration of poisons'?

A, No, sir.

Q. Isn't it?

A. Yes; I am sorry, sir, it is. I had the wrong

one.

Q. Yes.

A. No. 17 is an ''Application for Registration of

Economic Poisons," under the Department of Agri-

culture in California.

Q. Explain why that is required, if it is, and

what is done with it?

A. This controls the packaging laws of the State

of California. It controls any poisons that is pack-

aged. It has to be registered in the correct formula,

with the amomits of poisons, and the skull and cross-

bones on it, and the antidote, and the date and ad-

dress where they are packaged and put into the

formulation and sealed, sir.

Q. Referring back to that series of exhibits num-

bered 5-1 to 5-26, relating to your labels, is there any

particular designation on those relating to your

products? [47]

A. These are all products that we have formu-

lated.

Q. Get my question. Is there any particular

designation on them?

A. This is a license, an application to register.

Q. No. I am not talking about that now, Mr.

Sibert. I am calling your attention again to the

labels in Exhibit No. 5-1 to No. 5-26. Is there any
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particular designation on those labels i'(;lating par-

ticularly to your products'?

A. These are all our products, every one of them

labels.

Q. Is there any particular designation on them

relating to your products'? What about that man

on there'? A. This man is our trade-mark.

Q. What is it there'? What does it say'?

A. "Doc Kilzum, his patients all die."

Q. Is that your trade-mark ?

A. That is our trade-mark.

Q. That is what you put out?

A. That is right.

Q. Going back to Exliibit No. 17-A, what does

that relate to "?

A. This is an application for Structural Pest

Control Operator's License.

Q. How is that required and what do 3^ou do

under if?

A. Under this application you are—the law saj's

you must be in the pest control business in Cali-

fornia at least one year before you are allow^ed to

apply for the operator's license of [48] California.

This is the written examination under the State

Board of Structural Pest Control of California.

Q. What is No. 18?

A. "Structural Pest Control Field Representa-

tive's License."

Q. What is the diiference between the field rep-

resentative's and the operator's license?
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A. This field representative is a worker or

serviceman.

Q. What is No. 19?

A. Application for a bond, Fidelity and Casualty

Company of New York.

Q. Do you procure bonds on employees?

A. After a man goes to work for me, he fills this

application out and we procure the bond.

Q. Is that required?

A. That is required of every employee.

Q. What is No. 20?

A. By-laws of the Structural Pest Control

Board, instructions to applicants for a field rep-

resentative's license, how to apply, and the condi-

tions of study.

Q. What is the Structural Pest Control Board?

A. The Structural Pest Control Board is elected

direct by the Governor of the State.

Q. Elected? You mean appointed?

A. They are appointed, yes, as a rule.

Q. Yes. [49]

A. They are appointed in judgment over the

businessmen of the structural pest control in Cali-

fornia, to see that they live up to the regulations

and rules which they set forth.

Q. Is it limited to the State of California?

A. That is limited to the State of California.

Q. This particular instrument. Exhibit 20, what

is that?

A. This is instructions to applicants for a field

representative's license?
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Q. Then a field representative, as I understand

it, is not only under your direction but under the

direction of the Board? A. That is riglit.

Q. No. 20-A, what is that"?

A. This is the same, only different; instructions

to applicants for an operator's license. I mean

for an operator, not a field representative's. Sorry.

This is sent from the State Board of California to

the oj)erator with instructions.

Q. What about No. 21 ?

A. This relates to the examination and the de-

tails of—it says "Bylaws for the Internal Admin-

istration of the Structural Pest Control Board."

Q. What measure do you take, Mr. Sibert, when

you have employed a man who is qualified in all

those respects to serve the company in the pest con-

trol service, to keep track of what he is doing?

A. I don't quite understand your question.

Q. Say that you have a man in your service

no\v. He is (jualified, [50] otherwise. How do you

kee]) track of him after you get him employed?

A. We have our service slips that they turn in

every day, a time sheet showing wiiat work they did

for that day.

Q. Will you examine the next exhibit, No. 22,

and see if that has anything to do with the matter?

A. Time reports. We have time rej^orts. We
know where every man is and wherever he w^orks

that day, by our system we have in the office.

Q. Whose time report is that?

A. Carl Duncan's.
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Q. Covering what particular time?

A. The week ending May 11, 1946.

Q. How many sheets are in that exhibit relating

to Carl Duncan? A. Eleven—ten.

Q. Where do those sheets show that he did that

work? A. In Portland.

Q. What was he doing in Portland, Oregon, in

May, 1946?

A. Instructing Charlie Brewer and his men,

breaking them in to show them how we have safety

laws, breaking them in to the extermination field.

Q. Why was that necessary with respect to

Charlie Brewer?

A. When he was sent up here, he wanted to

keep an instructor here to help him.

Q. Do I understand you that he had not com-

pleted a sufficient [51] course to know what to do

up here ? A. That is right.

Q. How long did he continue mider your in-

structions ?

A. Mr. Carl Duncan was in the employ of

Charlie Brewer, as of the letter of the 24th.

Q. The 24th? A. Of June—July.
Q. What year? A. 1947.

Q. You mean by that he was continuously under

the instruction of Carl Duncan?

A. So far as working up here was concerned.

Carl Duncan was our field instructor.

Q. Was Brewer continuously under his instruc-

tion ? A. That is right.

Q. What is Exhibit No. 23 ?
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A. It is the time slips for Raymond Rightmire.

Q. Located where?

A. Portland, Orec^on.

Q. What was Rightmire doing here?

A, He is a serviceman.

Q. What do you mean by **serviceman"? What
did he do?

A. Service; puts out poisons and takes care of

our instructions, how to do certain things.

Q. State wliether or not, after having trained

these men, you [52] make any effort to keep them

abreast of the times on any products?

A. Yes. AVe get all thel literature we can that

is i)ut out. Mr. Bushing has contacts and that lit-

erature is sent out to him—sent out to the field

men by the branch manager or franchise manager.

Q. Look at Exhibit 24 and state what that is?

A. This is an authorized magazine, I know. It

is wonderful information that is in these maga-

zines for a j)est control operator.

Q. What is the name of that?

A. "Pest Control and Sanitation, Home and

Garden."

Q. Is that provided to onnployees?

A. Wo buy this magazine and send it to the

branches, so the em])loyees can have it.

Q. Look at Exhibit No. 25.

A. This is also the same information from Hy-

man & Company, Denver.

Q. Relating to what?

A. Insect infonnation.
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Q. Was that also provided for the employees?

A. It is.

Q. Is it a good publication?

A. It is a good publication.

Q. What is No. 26? [53]

A. The same material. That is something new

in the field ; spray barns for flies. It is a very good

publication.

Q. Now, Mr. Sibert, have you in general, with-

out going into great detail, covered your pest con-

trol business, beginning with the training of the

employees and what is done to keep them acquainted

with the progress of pest control, in general? In

general, have you covered that?

A. I believe I have, in general, sir.

Q, How long have you known Charles P.

Brewer? A. I believe in October, 1945.

Q. What was the occasion of your meeting him?

A. I met him in a home in Oakland, California.

Q. Did you subsequently come to be associated

with him in business? A. Yes.

Q. How did that occur, and when did it occur?

A. Mr. Brewer came into my office the first of

the year, 1946, and asked for a possible opening up

in the northern country. He said he was bom in

Spokane and would like to come up here, in this

part of the country.

Q. What did you do?

A. I took his application and told him if any-

thing came up we would let him know.

Q. Is tliat Exhibit 15 that you have already
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mentioned ? A. That is his application, sir.

Q. What then happened after you took his ap-

plication in January?

A. There was an opening come up and he hap-

pened to come in just about the time there was

an opening come up in Portland.

Q. When did he start training for the Para-

mount Pest Control Service?

A. February 4, 1946.

Q. How long did he train?

A. He come up while he was still in training.

Q. Did he subsequently come to the Northwest?

A. He come to the Northwest around April 1st.

Q. Whom was he serving at that time? In

whose employ was he?

A. In the Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. What was it at that time?

A. A co-partnei'ship.

Q. A co-partnership of Fisher and yourself?

A. That is right.

Q. How long did that continue?

A. To the first of July.

Q. What happened then?

A. He started on a franchise basis, 80-20, sir.

Q. Now, it is claimed by the defendant. Brewer,

in this case, and stated to the Court in opposing

counsel's opening statement, that he was practically

compelled to accept this franchise agreement of

July 1, 1946. State whether or not Mr. Brewer
had [55] signed the franchise agreement prior to

that time?
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A. Mr. Brewer, before lie came to work for us,

was hired specifically for this job; we showed him

the basis on which we worked men in this country;

we gave him the exact terms which he signed and

was working under and he took them home, and

he knew exactly the basis—in fact, he made us

promise before he came up here just what basis

he would work on, and we kept our word.

Q. Did he sign any instrmnent at the time he

came up here in April ? A. He did.

Q. What was that?

A. That was a branch manager agreement.

Q. Did he read it before he signed it ?

A. He did.

Q. When it came to the franchise—^you call it

a franchise. When he made his sales agent's agree-

ment of July 1, 1946, when did Mr. Brewer get

a copy of that? Can you give the date and time?

A. Yes.

Q. When was it?

A. He got a copy of that two days before he

come to work for us and took it home. You mean
of this specific—he got a copy of the exact

Q. That does not mean anything. [56]

A. The difference is it is blank.

Q. You say it is blank?

A. No. The district in which he works and his

boundary lines, exactly the same.

Q. Otherwise the form you gave him was ex-

actly the same as the executed franchise?

A. It is, sir.
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Q. When did he get that form?

A. ^Fwo days before lie came to work. 'I'hat

would be February 2iid. You mean this form in

front of us?

Q. Yes.

A. This form, he got that the first of July.

Q. When did he get that form so that he could

know the contents of this exhibit?

A. He had it two days before he came to work,

which would be Februaiy 2nd.

Q. Then, do I understand you correctly that

you say he knew of this franchise form from Feb-

ruary, 1946, to July, 1946? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he ever ask you any questions about it?

A. No, sir. Excuse me. Correction, sir. We
had talked it over as to the things about it and

he asked questions at that time before ho w^ent to

work for us.

Q. Before he went to work ? A. Yes. [57]

Q. At the time he signed this exhibit, No. 7,

the sales agent's franchise, did he know the con-

tents of it?

A. They were explained to him, yes, sir.

Q. Do you recall where Mr. Brew^er signed that

agreement.

A. Signed that agreement in Portland.

Q. Wliere was it signed by Mr. Fislier?

A. In Oakland.

Q. Has that agreement been recognized by the

parties since it w^as signed? A. It has.



146 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of Theodore C. Sibert.)

Q. After July 1, 1946, how long was it before

the instrument was actually signed, do you know,

by both parties'?

A. Mr. Brewer signed this, I think, before July

1st and Mr. Fisher, and then it was mailed out to

me. I was not in the office and Mr. Fisher sent

it out around the first of July, and it was sent back

to him.

Q. How long was that agreement in that form

lived up to by the parties? Was any change ever

made in that agreement?

A. Only change of payment.

Q. Relating to what paragraph of that instru-

ment? A. 5.

Q. Paragraph 5. What was the change made

at that time in Paragraph 5 in the matter of

pa5rment ?

A. The agreement by Mr. Brewer and myself

on September 12th.

Q. What year? [58]

A. 1946, in the breakfast room. An agree-

ment

Q. Whereabouts? A. At his home.

Q. Whereabouts? A. In Portland, sir.

Q. Portland, Oregon? A. Yes.

Q. What was the agreement and why did you

make it?

A. Our visit with them was very friendly. Of

course, I guess that is immaterial. Mr. Brewer had

a plan and that was an extension plan. He gave

me a list of potential business that he could sign
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up and he expressed himself as to the cost of the

signing up of new business, which is true.

In other words, he told me if he eonld afford

it h(^ could sign ii]) enough monthly business to

bring the present l)usiness up to $3,000 monthly

basis in Portland. Then he brought u|> the amount

of money which he had drawed as a drawing ac-

count, and I expressed myself in this manner, that

T appreciated a man that w^anted to expand the

business and I didn't want to make any hardship

on him, and if he had taken so little home a month

that I would match that dollar for dollar and that

would give him a surplus to take care of this ex-

pansion of business Avhich he said he had in mind.

That was merely a verbal agreement and that

was supposed to be—We talked that we would go

back from July 1st, [59] 1946, and end January

1st or December 31st.

Q. December 31st of what year ?

A. 1946.

Q. You say that you expressed yourself. Was
that said to Mr. Brewer?

A. That always has been said.

Q. Was this said to Mr. Brewer?

A. It was said, yes.

Q. Did you, thereafter, go on that basis for the

period of time from July 1, 1946, to December 31,

1946? A. We did.

Q. And it was on your personal responsibility

that you did that?
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A. Yes—No, sir. I have to report to the Board.

Q. Did you do so ? A. I did, sir.

Q. When? A. In December.

Q. This occurred when; this conversation with

Brewer occurred when*? A. September 12th.

Q. And you reported it to the Board in De-

cember? A. In December.

Q. Why didn't you do it before?

A. It slipped my mind.

Q. When you did report, to whom did you re-

port? [60]

A. To Mr. Fisher and Mr. Hilts.

Q. Was it satisfactory? A. It was.

Q. Now, there is a claim on the record by Mr.

Brewer that this adjustment was on the basis of

a division of the profits. Was that agreement ever

made ? A. Never.

Q. He claims it was made about Thanksgiving

time in November—November, 1946. Was any

agreement of that kind made in November, about

Thanksgiving time in November, 1946, or at any

other time? A. No, sir, there wasn't.

Q. Did you see Mr. Brewer in November?

A. I did, sir.

Q. Where?
A. He come down from Portland to visit and

to relax, he said.

Q. Where did you see him?

A. At my home.

Q. Anyone with him? A. HJis wife.
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Q. How long did they stay at your liome in

November'? A. Ten days.

Q. Was there any feeling—Or, what was the

attitude ))etween you and the Brewers, your family

and the Brewer family at that time?

A. Very close, sir. We had a good time; no

disturbance whatever. [61]

Q. Was tliere any mention of business?

A. Oh, no, no mention much of business; just

expansion and, of course, there was talk at that

time about certain men he had in his employ, but

that is all, little short talks.

Q. He states in one place that he went to the

office and complained to you that he could not get

along on the basis that you allocated to him. Was
there any such a thing as that? A. No, sir.

Q. Did he come to the office at all?

A. He did, for a little while.

Q. For what purpose?

A. To pick up chemicals to bring back.

Q. After you talked to Mr. Brewer in Novem-
ber, when did you again see him? »

A. January 20th.

Q. What year? A. 1947.

Q. Where?

A. In the office, at Portland, and also at his

home.

Q. Did you stay at his home then?

A. Yes, that night I stayed at his home.

Q. Was there anything said or done in connec-

tion with either the agreement—By the *' agree-
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ment" I mean the franchise—as of July 1st or the

dollar-home dollar-company agreement of Septem-

ber 12th, 1946? [62]

A. It wasn't mentioned, sir.

Q. What, if anything, relating to this business

did you discuss on January 20th?

A. Mr. Brewer expressed himself about the

Eastern Oregon run. He had the complete total

of miles, the cost of operation, the long distances

between stops, so to speak, and expressed himself

that it was costing a lot of money to run the East-

ern Oregon run. He asked me what we could do

about it and we went into a separate deal. He
needed help ; he was up here by himself ; he needed

help to come in and help him, so I agreed that I

would go back to Oakland and would send the ac-

counts that we had in Eastern Oregon and I would

take a salesman and a company serviceman

Q. When you say "I", whom are you referring

to? A. We.

Q. To your company?

A. I refer to our company.

Q. Yes. All right.

A. This would take a salesman and a company

serviceman, and we were to run that Eastern Ore-

gon run, take a whole month for it ; we would start

in the south and come up to Portland and take a

whole month and work.

Q. Whereabouts in the south?

A. Start at Klamath Falls.

Q. Yes.
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A. And work i-i^lit straight around the route,

to build up a [63] route and then, if it wasn't

built up in one month's time, to make the trij) back,

arid then go back homo to Portland. We agreed

to the pajrments and the cost of this investigation;

with the men on the payroll of Oakland we would

continue to leave them on the payroll, and keep

a separate and complete accounting of all costs,

hotel bills and expenses and, at the end of the

venture, if there was anything made in the vent-

ure, the Oakland office and the Portland office would

divide that dollar for dollar. If there was any-

thing lost, the Oakland office would take their dol-

lar loss and the Portland office would take their

dollar loss.

Q. When you say *' Portland office", do yo^i

mean yourself or do you mean Mr. Brewer?

A. Brewer.

Q. When you speak of the Portland office yon

are referring to Brewer, the agent?

A. He was the agent.

Q. What was done in the matter of expenses

and salaries of these men?
A. We paid all or most of the salaries. There

was a little that Mr. Brewer paid, but we paid

practically all the salaries and expenses.

Q. What was the agreement with respect to

salaries and expenses?

A. Well, we would make an accounting of it

and we would pay the salaries of the men.
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Q. You mean your company would pay the

salaries 1 [64]

A. Yes. Our company would pay the salaries

and expenses and finance the trip and divide the

remuneration out of it and we would split the

costs—we would split the remuneration or the loss.

Q. I will repeat this by way of summary to

see if I have got you correctly. The expenses of

this trip, including costs and salaries, were to be

divided equally between Brewer and your company ?

A. Yes.

Q. If there was a loss, it was so shared, is that

right? A. Yes.

Q. And if there was a profit, it was so shared?

A. Yes.

, Q. Do you know how it turned out, whether

there was a loss or a profit?

A. There was a loss.

Q. Has Mr. Brewer ever paid any portion of

that? A. No, sir.

Q. I presume you went ahead and carried out

this separate agreement that you have described?

That was done by the parties, was it?

A. Yes.

Q. Whom did you send out from the Oakland

office? A. DeGrey Brooks and Jack Ahern.

Q. When, after January 20, 1947, did you again

see Mr. Brewer? [65]

• A. When did I, after the January trip?

Q. Yes. A. March 29th.

Q. What was the occasion then?

A. Our regular trip up here.
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Q. Anything said or done at that time iu rela-

tion to tliis })nsiness that bears on this f-aso, that

you can recall?

A. You mean our agreement of September 12th 1

Q. Was that discussed then? A. No, sir.

Q. Did your discussion at that time bear on any

matters here at all? A. No, sir.

Q. What did you discuss, generally?

A. Just things in general.

Q. When, after March, did you again see Mr.

Brewer? A. June 22nd.

Q. Where? A. June 17th. Correction.

Q. Where? A. In Portland, Oregon.

Q. Who was present?

A. Mjo. Hilts, myself and Mr. Brewer.

Q. Who is Mr. Hilts?

A. One of our associates, our auditor. \Jo^'\

Q. What was discussed at that time with Mr.

Brewer present?

A. Things in general was discussed. There was

two or three outstanding things. Mr. Hilts made
the audit of the books and then we made a budget,

which T always had when I came in it, to find out

how much business I done and how much it cost

and, naturally, being president of this concern, I

like to see everybody make a profit.

Q. Go ahead.

A. Mr. Brewer, Mr. Hilts and myself went ovet*

his books. We took a recap of the cost of each

man that he had working for him, the payroll, the

expenses, the car allowance, also the rent, telej^hone
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charges, advertising, his expenses, and allowed $150

for an office girl.

We deducted that from the amount of business

done in May, added 20 per cent as of the 80-20

agreement, and it came out that Mr. Brewer's part

would be $855.

Everything was very congenial. Mr. Brewer ex-

pressed himself that he couldn't afford to stay on

the doUar-for-doUar agerement.

Q. Why?
A. Because the budget showed that he could

make more money on the 80-20 agreement, as in

the franchise.

Q. Was there any $3,000 figure in there?

A. Well, that had ended my verbal agreement

as of September 12th, although I didn't bring that

up or didn't bother him. Mr. Brewer's [67] agree-

ment was that if we would match the few dollars

he would take home he could have the business

built up by the first of the year, up to $3,000, and

it never occurred, but that was the basis. It showed

a balance—it showed that Mr. Brewer had done

$3,000.

Q. When did that show ?

A. The last of May.

Q. 1947? A. 1947, yes.

Q. Was that taken into consideration in your

budget ?

A. Yes. That wasn't in our verbal agreement,

although I didn't press anything.
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(^. Do you mean that the verbal agreoment of,

September 12, 1946, ran dear throiipjh to May?

A. The agreement

Q. Did it or didn't it run clear through to

May?
A. We allowed it to run clear throngh to May.

Q. When did yon make that ap:reement? In

other words, T don't think you understand me.

When you made the agreement of September 12,

1946, did that agreement run clear through to

May of 1947? A. No.

Q. When did it run to?

A. It ran from July 1, 1946, to January, or

December 31, 1946.

Q. What did you mean by sajnng that the verbal

agreement Avas [68] taken cognizance of?

A. As I remember our agreement, Mr. Brewer

went back on the 80-20 in January or possibly Feb-

ruary.

Q. That does not answer my question. What
bearing did it have on May, 1947?

A. May, 1947, we, ourselves, because of this

Eastern Oregon expense and loss, put the Portland

office hack on the dollar-for-dollar.

Q. When did you do that? A. May 15th.

Q. Did you see Brewer at that time ?

A. No, sir.

Q. By whom was that agreed to?

A. In conference with Mr. Hilts and myself.

Q. Was Mr. Brewer present? A. No, sir.
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• Q. Was it at Ms solicitation? A. No, sir.

Q. How was he notified of if?

A. By letter.

Q. What was the date of that letter?

A. May 15th.

Q. March 15th, isn't it?

A. March 15th. As I recollect, March 15th.

Q. March 15th? [69] A. Yes.

Q. When you have been saying "May" all the

way through, that was in error?

A. That is right, Counsel.

Q. I want you to refer to Exhibit No. 29 and

ascertain if that is the letter you have reference to ?

A. It is.

^ Q. What is the date of that letter?

A. March 15, 1947.

Q. Do you wish to correct your testimony to

conform to March rather than May?

A. I was confused. I wish to correct my testi-

mony.

Q. Going back to this conference in June, state

what you did with respect to the adjustment, if

any, of profits over the period from January 1st

to June 30, 1947?

. A. Mr. Hilts had been north and had received

word that the Eastern Oregon venture, which I

mentioned before, that separate deal, was getting

bad; he had got reports from Mr. Brewer, so we

had a meeting, and Mr. Hilts had not very defi-

nitely understood the deal that Brewer and we

made; he heard about it but he didn't understand
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it. That wns tli" first meeting we had had with

JMr. Tlilts; lie liad been out of town and it was the

first time we had gotten together for quite awhile.

We figured, as to Eastern Oregon at the time,

on ])utting in tliis new work to make the Eastern

Oregon district })ay, [71] that it would be nice to

show Brewer that we were not a company that

would demand everji^hing, you know, but would

lielp him and cooperate wnth him, so we, ourselvefi-,

although he had paid his January and Februaiy

franchise on the 80-20 basis, as per agreement, we

thought it would be nice to show that we were

trying to work wnth him and not take advantage of

him, and that w^e would go back on the dollar-per-

dollar agreement, and that is what we tried to ex-

plain in this letter.

Q. What letter are you referring to?

A. Exhibit 29, your Exhibit 29.

Q. That is the March 15th letter?

A. The March 15th letter.

Q. All you have said has been relating to a

matter in March, 1947? A. Yes.

Q. What my question asked for was in June.

A. Oh.

Q. I think you still have the dates and the times

confused, Mr. Sibert. A. I am sorry.

Q. It is all right. As I understand, all you have

said shows why you wrote the letter, why the let-

ter of March 15th was written by Hilts to Brewer?
A. Yes.
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Q. Calling your attention to June of 1947, not

March but June [71] A. Yes.

Q. Did you have an accounting with Mr. Brewer

in June? A. Yes.

Q. Who was present?

A. Mr. Hilts, myself and Mr. Brewer.

Q. Did Mr. Hilts compile a statement at that

time of the financial obligations between Brewer

and the company? A. Yes.

; Q. Do you know whether or not it was discussed

with Mr. Brewer? A. It was.

Q. Do you know whether or not it was agreed

to by Mr. Brewer? It was.

Q. How do you know ? A. I was there.

. Q. Any other reason?

A. Well, I was there and heard it, and that was

the time we made the budget that I was talking

about.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer make any payment at that

time ? A. No. We asked for it.

., The Court: Recess until one-thirty.

(Recess to one-thirty p.m.) [72]

(Court reconvened at one-thirty o'clock p.m.,

January 20, 1948.)

Direct Examination

(Continued)

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. I think when we closed our morning session,

Mr. Sibert, I was directing your attention to June

20th, the conversation between Mr. Hilts, Mr.
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Brewer and yourself, and yon had t(^stified con-

cerning^ llie March 15th arrangement.

Now, apjain directing your attention to June

20th—I have called it June 20th ; T think the exhibit

was dated June 20th ; but when was your visit here ?

A. I came up on June 17th.

Q. You came up here on June 17th *?

A. Yes.

Q. Whenever we designate that conference,

whether it was June 17th or 20th, we are talking

about the time when you. Hilts and Brewer con-

ferred on the amount that was due to Paramount

from Brewer. A. That is, 1947?

Q. June 17th to 20th, 1947. A. Yes.

Q. So that we will have this clear, it is not re-

lated to the March conference. Will you state

where you met in this June 17th conference?

A. In the Paramount Pest Control office of

Portland. [73]

Q. Where is tliat office located?

A. Southwest Park.

Q. Was there an office there before Mr. Brewer
took charge? A. Our office down there, yes.

Q. Where was that?

A. In Mr. Taylor's home.

Q. In this June 17tli conference, who was pres-

ent? A. Mr. Hilts, myself and Mr. Brewer.

Q. What was discussed in relation to this busi-

ness at that time ?

A. There was a recap made of his business, a

recap made of his busines, as of May, the end of
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May. Mr. Hilts took the figures off the books, and

then we three made a recap, a budget—we took the

wages of each man, took the expenses, the chemicals

used, gasoline, auto expense, rent, advertising,

phone, all things pertaining to the business, as far

as costs was concerned. Then we took 20 per cent

of the gross business done, deducted that from the

business in May and there was $855 left for Mr.

Brewer.

Q. How much did you get?

A. Six hundred—20 per cent.

Q. You do not mean 20 per cent of $855 ? $855

and $600 made a total of so much. Is that what

you mean, something like that? A. No.

Q. Tell me this: Did Mr. Hilts, as your audi-

tor, make a detailed accounting ? [74]

A. This budget, you mean? That was done by

Mr. Hilts, myself and Mr. Brewer.

Q. Then was there a statement made as to how

much Mr. Brewer owed the company?

A. There was.

Q. Who compiled that statement?

A. Mr. Hilts and Mr. Brewer.

Q. What was the nature of the conversation as

to whether or not it was friendly or disagreeable,

in any feature? A. It was very friendly.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer have any criticism or objec-

tion to anything that was done by the company?

A. No; very friendly.

Q. The record shows that he claims to have told

you at that time that unless you carried on with
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the contract he had in mind, he was going—he was

quitting yoii. Was anything said by Mr. Brewer

about his leaving Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. Nothing whatsoever.

Q. You say in your testimony that the relation-

ship was friendly. On what do you base that

statement ?

A. Well, when we made this budget, we agreed

at that time to extend the dollar-for-dollar deal to

the end of the fiscal year.

Q. That was when?

A. That would have been June 30th, and then

go back on the [75] regular franchise, which was

the 80-20 payment.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer know that?

A. This was his suggestion.

Q. How do you mean it was his suggestion?

A. Well, he stated that he could make more

money according to the budget on the 80-20 pay-

ment than he pould on the dollar-for-dollar.

Q. Could he?

A. Yes. It, T think, was understood.

Q. Will you state whether or not that was under-

stood, that ho wanted to go back on the franchise?

A. It was understood.

Q. Was there anything in your relations, other

than what you have described, that disclosed their

friendliness ?

A. Well, Mrs. Brewer was down south. She left

before I arrived in Portland. It was his little

girl's birthday, and I suggested, before I left Seat-
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tie, that if we could get plane reservations, that

he and the little girl go back with me as our guests

for the little girl's birthday present.

Wlien we got to Seattle—^We tried to get reserva-

tions in Portland. They were received in Seattle.

I called him from Seattle and told him I had the

reservations and was going to Spokane, and I got

his reservation and the little girl's reservation and

made a reservation on the same plane. The plane

stopped in Portland. I got off, got his tickets,

and we went [76] to San Francisco.

Q. Did the little girl go with you?

A. She did.

Q. Did you meet Mrs. Brewer or not?

A. Mrs. Brewer, her sister and my wife met

us at the airport in San Francisco.

Q. Where did they stay?

A. They went home that night with Mrs. Brew-

ers' sister and then came over to my place.

Q. Where? A. In Oakland.

Q. How long did they stay there?

A. Four days—five days.

Q. Was anything said that seemed to disturb

the friendship during that period?

A. We left very good friends.

Q. Was any suggestion made at that time in

connection with any of the business that he had been

doing here?

A. Everything seemed to be very fine and cor-

dial and everything was good.
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Q. I have reference partienlarly to what T

understood was some question about collections.

A. Oh, yes. Mr. Hilts notified me over the

I)hone tlKa-e were a lot of accounts receivable.

Q. Did you take that up? [77]

A. Oh, I spoke to them about it.

Q. State what their attitude was?

A. There was no attitude, so much, to me. Mrs.

Brewer seemed to have gotten mad over something.

I don't know that it was over that or what it was,

but it was nothing, as far as we were concerned.

Q. When did you again see or hear from Mr.

Brewer ?

A. I saw Mr. Brewer in the hotel room next

after he had sent in his letter that he was quitting,

in August.

Q. You say he sent in a letter? A. Yes.

Q. Refer, in those exhibits you have there, to

Exhi])it No. 42. I will ask you if that is the letter

to which you have referenec. It is in the file here.

I will ask yon if that is the letter to which you

have reference?

A. Yes, this is the letter of June 24th.

Q. July, isn't it? A. July 24th, yes.

Mr. Rankin: Your Honor, this letter is pleaded

in the pleadings. I shall not take the time to read it.

Q. I note a provision of the franchise in which

there is a 90-day provision for terminating it. Is

that the letter upon which the termination was

based? A. It is not.

Q. What was the tennination ? [78]
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A. This is the letter upon which the termina-

tion was based, yes.

Q. That is what I mean, but not in compliance

with the contract?

A. It was not in compliance with the contract.

Q. When did you receive that letter?

A. This letter came into my office June 26th.

It was written June 24th.

Q. It shows on its face it is July.

A. I mean July. I am sorry. July.

Q. Had there been anything, up to the date of

the reception of that letter, in July, 1947, that indi-

cated to you that Mr. Brewer was dissatisfied with

his association with Paramount Pest Control

Service 1

A. Nothing whatever. It was just the reverse.

He always said he had the best business in Para-

mount Pest Control Service, always bragged on it,

and was very satisfied.

Q. Had there been anything indicating a dis-

satisfaction on Mrs. Brewer's part prior to the

time of the reception of that letter?

A. Nothing that I know of, sir.

Q. Did she ever tell you anything that she was

dissatisfied about?

A. Just a few different things, which I paid no

attention to.

Q. Anything about the compensation her hus-

band was receiving?

A. Nothing. I never talked those things over,

only with the parties involved. [79]
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Q. What did you do when yon received this

letter? A. T was on my vacation.

Q. Did the Brewers know you were going on a

vacation? A. They did.

Q. How did they know that?

A. Tt was talked about when they were "at my
house, as my house guests.

Q. Wlien did you go on your vacation?

A. Well, let's see

Q. AVhere, first, did you go on your vacation?

A. Up to Strawberry to build a cabin, with my
wife.

Q. Wliere is Strawberry?

A. Tn California.

Q. Were you there when this letter was re-

ceived ?

A. I was up on my vacation, yes sir.

Q. Wliat did you do w^hen you got this letter?

A. T immediately came into Oakland and then

came up here.

Q. What did you do while you were here?

A. I called Charlie u]) and asked him to come

and release the chemicals and equipment which he

had. He came up to my room. He had refused

to do that heretofore. He came up to my room

and said he would release them.

Q. Did he then give you any explanation as to

this letter or any reason for his termination ?

A. His explanation was only one, that he had

to do it on account [80] of his family.
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Q. Did he say why he had to do it on account

of his family? A. He did not.

Q. Generally speaking, without going into de-

tail, did you find then that there was any solicita-

tion by Brewer, from your investigation and service

with the company, of any of the patrons that had

theretofore been patrons of Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service?

Mr. Bernard: Object to that as calling for hear-

say testimony.

The Court: He may answer.

A. I sure did.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Did you find that there

had been some solicitation ?

A. Every^vhere our boys went they foimd that

trouble.

Q. Now, a few questions that I think possibly

I overlooked as I ran through this hurriedly. Did

you expend any money in the organization of this

business ?

A. I have, lots of money.

Q. Can you give the Court any idea of how
much and on what phases of it you expended this

money ?

A. You mean the business in Portland?

Q. No. I mean the business in general, first, and

then in Portland.

A. Yes. We take a certain amount of our profits

to experiment with [81]

Q. Just a moment, Mr. Sibert. Let us go back

to the beginning. I realize it is going back to what
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you testified to, to some extent, tliis morning, but

when you formed this business, you and Fisher, as

a ])artnership, did you expend any money then?

A. We expended everything we made into estab-

lishing this l)usiness, every effort—That took all we

had.

Q. Was that the ori.c^inal expenditure—I mean,

was the original expenditure all that you had put in •?

A. Oh, we put everything that we had in the

world into this business.

Q. But, subsequent to its origin, state whether

or not you still made expenditures in behalf of itf

A. We (lid continue to do that. We spent money

for education, for experimental work, and for get-

tinii^ the best chemicals to apply to these specific in-

sects that will work the best for us.

Q. 1 don't think I asked you anything about

Duncan. When did Duncan come into your employ?

A. In 1942.

Q. And what did he do?

A. He was a serviceman for quite a few years

and he was very adaptable to teaching field men,

to break in servicemen, show them the correct way
to distribute the poisons, and to mix the inert ingre-

dients in certain ])oisons and place them in a safe

])lace—in containers and so forth, that is necessary

to keej) from contaminating foodstuffs and injur-

ing carpets, varnishes [82] on floors and so forth.

Q. Was he a \eYY good man in your employ?

A. Duncan was a very fine employee.
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Q. I think you testified this morning you sent

him up here to instruct Brewer. Did he continue

to remain in the employ of the company after you

sent him up here? A. Yes.

Q. When did he terminate his services, as far

as you know, with Brewer? That would be August

1st, 1947? A. Yes.

Q. Have you tried to get service upon him in

this case? A. I have, sir.

Q. Do you know Merriott?

A. Not personally. He was hired— I don't know

Merriott personally.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer ever ask you for permission

to hire Merriott? A. No, sir.

Q. Is that a desirable feature of your contract,

that you ask the agent to tell you whom and when

he employs men? A. The contract

Q. Is it a desirable feature of your contract?

A. No, it isn't.

Q. You don't understand my question.

A. I am sorry.

Q. What? [83]

A. It is desirable. I know what you mean now.

It is a desirable feature of our contract.

Q. Why?
A. Because w^e know we have more experience in

hiring men than these men do out here, and it is in

our contract that we desire to help hire their men,

and we reserve the right to eliminate them from the

service at any time.



vs. Clmrles P. Brewer, et al. I(i0

(Testimony of Tlieodorc C. Sibert.)

Q. State whetlier or not they have a responsible

l)osition in the performance of work in connection

with poisons'? A. That is true.

Q. How much of the information as to these for-

mulas and methods of application and so forth did

you give to your employees?

A. All that is necessary, so that they can do

their work in an efficient professional way.

Q. Did you give them the detail of the composi-

tion of any of your formulas and poisons ?

A. You mean the formulation of the formulas

themselves ?

Q. Yes.

A. Only to the extent where they must insert

the inert ingredients.

Q. Did you ever know, in connection with Mr.

Rightmire, Mr. Duncan or Mr. Merriott, that they

were leaving 3- our employ prior to the time that they

went with Mr. Brewer?

A. I knew nothing. It was a big surprise.

Q. They never notified you, either verbally or

in writing? [84] A. No, they didn't.

Q. Did they ever ])ersonally give you any ex-

planation why they left you?

A. They did not.

Q. Did you, at the time you came up here, ask

for and secure an inventory from Mr. Brewer of

whatever he had that you were entitled to purchase

under your franchise ? A.I did.

Q. Did you get the inventory?

A. After I got here, we got the inventory.
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Q. Did you get delivery of all materials that you

found by that inventory you had a right to pur-

chase ?

A. We got delivery of what was in the ware-

house.

Q. Were there other materials that you did not

get delivery of? A. Yes.

Q. This letter that is in evidence as terminating

his association mentions that he might want some

of these things '^in the future." Do you know what

he had reference to when he states he might want

those things **in the future"?

A. I did not.

Q. With respect to his living up to his contract,

were there any features that you recall that he did

not perform which, under your operation of the

company, he was required to do? For example, let

me expedite this so as not to take too much time

in your consideration. [85]

The contract provides, Paragraph 4, Page 2 of

the contract, that he will take all contracts in the

name of the company. I mean, take contracts in

the name of Paramount Pest Control Service ?

A. Yes.

Q. Will you turn to Exhibit No. 40-A.

A. I have it, sir, 40-B. Just a minute. 40-A.

Q. Is that supposed to be in the name of Para-

mount Pest Control Service?

A. 40-A is an expense account.

Q. Let me see it. May I see it, please? I prob-

ably have the wrong number here, apparently. Yes,
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that is the wronc^ number. There are two 40-
A

's ap-

parently.

What T have reference to is this Indenture of

Lease, ''Made this 1st day of November, 1946, by

and between The House of Celsi, an Oregon part-

nervshij), hereinafter called the Lessor, and C. P.

Brewer, doin^ business as the Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service, 519 N. W. Park Avenue, hereinafter

called the Lessee."

First, how do you indicate whether you have serv-

iced a particular place or not?

A. We have a card that we hang up.

Q. Is that ihe card ?

A. That is our card.

Q. It reads: ''To Our Patrons. We have Para-

mount Sanitary System. An assurance of cleanli-

ness.'' [86]

Did Mr. Brewer put out a similar card when

servicing patrons? A. He did.

Q. Is this the card ?

A. This is the card.

Mr. Bernard: Have you got an exhibit number

on that?

Mr. Rankin : Yes, just a moment. It is 40-A.

There are two 40-A's.

Mr. Bernard: That is all right. That is close

enougli.

Mr. Rankin : I also want to offer in evidence,

your Honor, a bill of sale. No, that has been of-

fered—I am sorry. But I do want to call this to

your particular attention because it is the one Mr.
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Sibert signed afterwards. Do you gentlemen have

any particular objection to this because of that

fact?

Mr. Bernard: No.

Mr. Rankin: Thank you. You may cross-ex-

amine.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. This partnership, you say, was formed in

1937, was it? A. No, sir.

Q. What year? A. 1938.

Q. Had you been in the pest control business

prior to that time? A. I had. [87]

Q. What other work

A. I want to answer that exactly right. I had

been in business, but not for myself before.

Q. What other business were you doing at that

.time?

A. I am a general contractor, building superin-

tendent, carpenter work, cement work, plaster

work.

'.
: Q. How long did you continue those occupa-

tions after 1938?

\ A. I never continued those only in my owti

work.

Q. Did you continue in those occupations ?

A. Only m our work. When we first staii;ed,

I worked at carpenter work.

Q. How long did you continue in those occupa-

tions after 1938?
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A. You se(% sir, those ocaipations i.s in our

business. We do termite work. We are still con-

tinuing carpenter" work, cement work and plaster

work,

Q. What other business was Fisher in at the time

the partnership was organized?

A. He was in the extermination business.

Q. Where was yowr place of business when

Brewer went to work for you ?

A. This is '38. The head office was 638 Sixteenth

Street. *

Q. Where? A. Oakland.

Q. How big a place did you have?

A. We owned our own building—we own onr

own building and [88] have quite a space.

Q. How big a place?

A. I don't know the exact size of the building.

Q. What date was it Brewer came to work

for you?

A. July 4th, according to ' ur records. February

4th ; sorry, February 4th.

Q. February 4th? A. 1947.

Q. What date did he come to Portland ?

A. Around the first of April.

Q. You have referred to certain labels which

are in evidence here. Those labels are put on the

cans of poisons or preparations, aren't they? These

labels that you referred to in your evidence are put

on the cans of poisons or preparations?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Those labels contain the ingredients, do they?

A. Those labels contain the ingredients that are

in the cans.

Q. So anybody that got hold of one of the cans

could see what the ingredients are ?

A. That is right.

Q. Yon say you do not put on the label the inert

ingredients ?

A. I did not. Some labels you do and some labels

you don't, but the inert ingredients, they have to be

in there.

Q. What is there that is secret about these con-

coctions or formulas that you give your salesmen

to use or the other men [89] who work for you to

use? What is there secret about it?

A. You understand, Mr. Bernard, the contents

of the label is merely the quantity to the gram.

That is on the label on the package. That is the

law. The secret is the formula in which they are

melted or mixed together to get a certain product to

do a certain job and to kill a certain type of insect.

Q. That is the secret part of it?

A. That is the secret part of it.

Q. Did you or your company ever, at any time,

furnish any of this secret information to Mr.

Brewer? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When?
A. From the time he started out to work for us.

There is a certain portion of that he has to learn.
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Q. You mean to say yon furnished Mr. T^rewer

any information as to how to concoct any of these

formulas? '

A. You misunderstand—That question can be

answered Yes and No. There is certain chemicals

that we concoct—You say "concoct"—We formulate

certain chemicals with inert inc^redients that is put

out on the job. We have to show him how to do

that.

Q. Describe what you mean by ''inert ingredi-

ents."

A. The inert is the volume of matter or liquids

that is in the poison. •

Q. I see. What do they usually contain?

A. In rat bait it is any type of stuff that will

—

You might [90] say, apples, carrots and so on, any

type of bait—different types. In liquids it is

Q. What is there secret about that?

A. So much of this, is put in a certain formula

to get a certain strength and so it could be attrac-

tive to a certain type of animal or insect.

Q. Can't that information be secured through

other sources than yourself?

A. It might be, but not like Paramount gives

it out.

Q. Who do you say gave Mr. Brewer this infor-

mation? A. Mr. Duncan.

Q. Did you?

A. Not personally; some, yes.
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• Q. What information did you give him?

A. I have been with Mr. Brewer on several jobs

and showed him lots of things, and we talked—gave

him information of my past experience. That is why

I came to see him.

Q. You tell the Court what secret information

you ever gave Mr. Brewer at any time about the

formulas or concoctions that you put out for bait.

A. You mean one definite, special thing?

Q. Yes.

A. You want the time and place 1

Q. I want the information, what it was. Tell the

Court what secret information you ever gave this

man. [91]

A. I gave Mr. Brewer secret information on fly

or rat baits.

Q. Information?

A. What types of inert ingredients with a cer-

-tain amount of active poisons to put out as certain

types of rat baits to do a certain job, to kill certain

animals or insects.

' Q. Can that information be secured elsewhere?

A. He can't secure my experience elsewhere.

^ Q. Your experience, as a matter of fact, he can

secure from other sources—how to put these inert

ingredients in with the poisons in order to kill rats

or insects ? There are other sources that put out that

information ?

A. We are a service organization, not a sales or-

ganization, and our formulas and our advice is more

profitable to anybody than something that somebody

has made for sale, and information thereof.
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Q. Have you })een as (lefiriite as you van as to

any secret information or formulas that you gave

Mr. Brewer?

A. Repeat that question. I don't understand,

Mr. Bernard.

Q. Have you been as definite as you can as to

any secret information or formulas that you ever

gave Mr. Brewer?

A. I could have give him more secrets. I was

definite in what he needed and what he could take

at the time, and according to the situation thereof.

Q. How long did this instruction continue down

there in California? [92]

A. Until all his time there, two months.

Q. What sort of work was he doing during those

two months?

A. He was doing—he was going with Mr. Dun-

can to be broke in our service work.

Q. He had been doing service work ?

A. In going with Mr. Carl Duncan, yes.

Q. He was in your employ in the laboratory that

you speak about, wasn 't he ? A. No, sir.

Q. When he came up here, then, in April, it was

with the idea of making him manager of the Ore-

gon territory, was it?

A. That was our understanding, sir, before lie

went to work.

Q. After he had been employed by you for about

six or seven weeks ?

A. We had that undei*standing before he fever

went to work. I was merely keeping my promise.
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. Q. You figured that six or seven weeks' works as

a serviceman rendered him capable of carrying out

this tremendously important work of insect exter-

mination in Oregon, as manager ?

A. Sir, I did not.

'
; Q. Why did you make him manager of the

concern ?

A. Because he was hired for this district and we

sent somebody up here to help him.

,. Q. That was Mr. Dimcan*?

A. Mr. Hilts and Mr. Duncan, yes. [93]

,. Q. Did you come up at the time he was em-

ployed? A. Where, sir?

Q. Come up to Oregon?

"v. A; I wasn't here when he came. I came up in

April—He came the first of April with Mr. Hilts.

Ke'broi^ght Mr. Hilts up. Mr. Fisher arrived here

April 6th, Mr. Bernard.

Q. Where was the office of the Paramount Pest

Control Service. at that time?

;..,'A.' I don't have the exact address but it was in

Mr. Taylor's home. We had phone service—we had

a-,J>h;one there, and we had phone service on Taylor

street. I don't remember. I could look it up for

you.

..iQ. .Was Mr. Taylor the previous manager?

A. He was.

,,, Q.. And the headquarters of the concern were out

at his home, is that what you say? A. No.

, ; Q. .Where were the headquarters?
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A. The headquarters office and those thingK

was in tlie office on Taylor Street. He merely had

the poisons and things like that at his home and

kept some books at his home.

Q. The poisons and things of that kind were

kept at his home?

A. Yes. H(! had a storeroom which we were rent-

ing there.

Q. Do yon know about how long Mr, Hilts wae

here at that time? A. I do. [94]

Q. How long?

A. Mr. Hilts came up with Mr. Brewer and I

came up the 23rd of April. We passed on the way,

going back. I came up on the train. He left that

day to go back to get his car to come back here.

Q. Did Brewer have to take an examination in

California before he came up here?

A. He did not.

Q. Do I understand you to say from the time

Brewer came here to the time he wrote this letter

of resignation that you had no disagreement be-

tween yourselves at all, is that correct?

A. That is correct; the best of friends.

Q. You did, however, in response to Mr. Ran-

kin's question, call attention to the fact that he took

the lease in his own name and not in the name of

Paramount ?

A. I knew nothing of the lease, sir.

Q. You know it now?

A. I know it now, yes.
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""'
. Q. Did Paramount take out some insurance for

him of any kind ?

' A. What type of insurance?

Q. Of any kind? Liability insurance?

A. We have a broker in Oakland that writes in-

surance for our office there and all of our business.

Q. Do you know how that insurance was writ-

ten? A. Yes. [95]

r .Q, How was it written?

A. Paramount Pest Control Service, doing busi-

ness as Brewer, I think.

' Q. Wasn't it written Charles Brewer, doing

.business as Paramount Pest Control Service?

i A. Maybe. I don't know. I never did see the

policy, sir.

. ' Q. Will you be as definite as you can, so we can

cut the examination short? When and where was

the first discussion had by you and Brewer, accord-

'ing to you, as to the change in the terms of this

-contract ?

- A. You mean the change of payment?

Q. Yes. A. September 12th.

Q. You say that took place m Portland ?

.A, Yes, in Portland, in Mr. Brewer's home.

> Q. Brewer assigned as a reason for that change,

what?

A. Mr. Brewer wanted to have an expansion of
' business, a program of putting on business, and

the reason he assigned was this, that he had only
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taken so much money liome, and asked me if I would

go with him and lielp to finance the new business so

tliat wo could all profit thereof, and our acjreement

was: I said, ''Charlie, I am not a big man, a big

bad man, trying to take advantage of anybody. If

you want to live cheap at home, I will take that

same amount, up to that period of time, so that' we

can put this business on." [96]

Q. He thought he could make more money under

that arrangement, didn't he, in the future?

A. Ye«.

Q. You agreed to that %

A. I agreed for a change of payment, dollar-for-

dollar payment. When Charlie would take a dol-

lar home or if he took $5 to live on, that is all I

w^ould take, and spend the rest in the expansion Or

building ujj new business.

Q. That was the agreement you made which you

say you forgot to mention to the other men until

December? A. That is right.

Q. When was the next time that any question

arose between you and Brewer as to the times of

])ayment under this contract?

A. I didn't know there was a question, sir.

Q. When w\as it ever discussed between you

after that, between Brewer and you, or you and

Hilts?

A. We had a talk about that on the trip, June

17th. . ...<
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Q. How about this arrangement in March when

this letter was written?

A. I didn't talk with Brewer. We just tried

to show him the expenses that would be charged to

him—it looked like there was going to be a charge

to this district, and we wanted to show Mr. Brewer

that we was still going the other mile.

Q. Do I understand, then, that this arrangement

that was made in March was agreed upon by you

and Hilts? [97]

A. It was. And he said in March, that was the

first time it was exactly clear to him, and he thought

it, Was a fine way to treat a company and a fellow in

the" field, and that was his idea. Hilts says, "Why
don't you help Charlie," he said, "on this Eastern

Oregon deal?" and I just consented; that is all.

Q. That was done without any previous commu-

nication between you and Brewer, is that a fact?

A. Myself and Brewer, yes.

Q. Do you know whether Hilts had talked with

Brewer about it?

A. I didn't know. I wasn't here. I don't know.

Q. Did Hilts tell you whether he had or not?

A. He said Charlie had mentioned it to him.

Q. What did he say that Charlie had said?

A. Mr. Hilts is the auditor and he must have

talked to Charlie about it to get, you know, a cor-

rect 'understanding of it, and he said Charlie merely

mentioned it to him.
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Q. Did he tell you Charlie had objected when

Hilts had i3resented a statement based on a 20-80

per cent beginning the first of January?

A. He did not.

Q. You say the first time you and Brewer had

the matter up was in June?

A. The firvst time Mr. l^rewer and I ever talked

about anything like that except that one time was

in June.

Q. You want the Court to understand that, al-

though Mr. Brewer [98] had requested this change

in 1946, although you and Hilts had agreed to con-

tinue the change in March, 1947, to help Brewer

out, that Brewer told you, between the 17th and

20th days of June, that he wanted to come back on

the 20-80 basis because he would make more money

that way? A. I do.

Q. You never had any idea to the contrary,

that there was any trouble, until you received this

letter which was written on July 25th?

A. I had no idea. I thought we were the best of

friends and things were going to continue.

Q. Then, the letter of March 15th that Hilts

sent out, that letter was sent by Hilts after his

conversation with you, wasn't it?

A. It was, in the Oakland ofl&ce.

Mr. Bernard : That is all.

Mr. Rankin: You are excused, Mr. Sibert.

(Witness excused.) [99]
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E. W. BUSHING
was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Give your name to the Court.

A. E. W. Bushing.

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Bushing?

A. 1325 San Francisco Street, Vallejo, Cali-

fornia.

Q. What is your occupation?

A. I am an entomologist.

Q. How long have you been such?

A. I graduated from the University of Hlinois in

1942, with a degree from the School of Liberal Arts

and Sciences—^majored in entomology.

From that date until September I worked for the

Dupont Experimental Station in Newark, Delaware,

as entomologist, not for Dupont but for the Dela-

ware Agricultural Experiment Station.

Q. Have you had practical experience in the

field?

A. Yes. After working three months for that

station in the practical application of insecticides,

I went into the service for three years and a half.

Q. What did you do in the service ?

A. Acted as entomologist in the service, in the

United States for three years, spent three months in

the Hawaiian Islands, and [100] all the time I was

in the hospital, in the sei'^ice.
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Q. Tho hospital service?

A. I was ijt the hospital, in the service.

Q. Oh, in the service? A. Yes.

Q. Did you work in tlic Dupont Exj)erimental

Station and in the Army, when you were not in the

]iosi)ital—AVas it related to your work as an en-

tomologist ?

A. Yos, it was. I was one of the fortunate indi-

viduals who went through the service in the hracket

in which he had been trained at the university. My
training in the university helped me in this respect

in the service. I was responsible—If any of you are

familiar with Army procedure, a sanitary officer

is detailed on the basis of ten thousand personnel,

and charged with the responsibility of the complete

routine of rodent and insect control, in addition to

other duties, and I was detailed on that basis here

in the Ignited States, and at Hickham Field, Ha-

waii, I was Chief Quarantine Officer on all incom-

ing ships from the Orient.

Q. Have you worked with the Paramount Pest

Control Service?

A. I am in th(>ir employ in July, 1946.

Q. Are you still in their employ? A. I am.

Q. As an entomologist, do you have anything to

do with rodent control? [101]

A. Yes.

Q. The exi)erience that you have described, does

that relate to rodents as well as insects ?

A. Yes.



186 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of E. W. Bushing.)

Q. In the Paramount Pest Control Service, do
you have anything to do with the matter of poisons ?

A. Yes, I am directly responsible for the formu-

lation of all Paramount 's formulas.

Q. Do you have anything to do in that service in

connection with pests, insects or rodents?

A. Yes, from the standpoint of issuing explana-

tions to all the personnel as to the uses of all these

formulations.

Q. Do you have anything to do with the applica-

tion, the means of bringing these poisons and these

pests together ?

A. Yes. We endeavor to supply our personnel

with the best available equipment, going even as far

as first experimenting and testing it there in the Oak-

land office before submitting it to them for their use.

Q. In the Paramount Pest Control Service, do

you come in contact with any of the field operators

or the men who are doing the practical work of con-

trolling pests ?

A. Yes, I do. I am at their service at any time

that they so wish, in order to assist them at any time

in their work, regardless of what their problems

might be ; they not being able to solve it, I would be

more than willing to come out and travel [102] in the

case of Portland or Seattle or whatever it might be

to solve these problems for them, even to the extent

that I would personally help them out with these

problems.

Q. I would like to hand you the exhibits relating

to poisons that have been identified by the president

|i
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of the corporation, enumerated No. 5-1 to No. 5-26,

and ask you to refer to tiiom. You are familiar with

those, are you not? A. Yes, I am.

Q. You have seen them in this form as they are

presented here, before? A. Yes, I have.

Q. Mr. Bushing, it is the contention of these de-

fendants that there is nothing unique about these

poisons, that you can go out and buy them on the

common market anyplace.

Will you take these exhibits, No. 5-1 to No. 5-26

and explain them. Explain what there is about them

that this court should know in connection with the

contentions made by the defendants. Refer to Ex-

hibit 5-1, if you will, please.

A. 5-1, Paramount Ant S3Tup.

Q. Is that on the common market?

A. There are many ant syrups on the market,

yes, but not the Paramount Ant Syrup.

Q. What do you mean by that ?

A. We have in the Paramount Ant Syrup incor-

porated an unusual inert ingredient. On the label we

do not have to state what [103] those are, specifically.

All that is necessary to state on the label is what the

active ingredients are, those poisons which are de-

fined in connection with the registration of economic

poisons in the State of California.

As I have previously mentioned, there are others

on the market, but we have incorporated into the

inert portion of the product an ingredient which has

made this more attractive, in our estimation, to ants.
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Q. In what particulars is it made attractive,

more attractive?

A. We believe it is more attractive because, if

the other syrups could be placed side by side, we

think we have found through experience that they

will prefer to accept ours.

Q. Just to clarify one thing: Those labels seem

to be divided generally into inert and active ingre-

dients. A. Yes, sir.

Q. Active ingredients are what?

A. Those ingredients which are required to be

specified on the label. They include those ingredients

found in the list of economic poisons registered by

the State of California.

Q. Inert ingredients are what?

A. Inert ingredients are only that part of the

formula which may be either necessary to complete

that formula or—When I say that it is necessary

for them to be in there to complete the formula, I

mean without that chemical existing in the inert

ingredient, the ultimate product could never be

gotten. [104]

Q. The next one, 5-2, what is that by name?

A. No. 5-2 is Paramount Bed Bug Spray.

Q. Is that on the common market?

A. No. Paramount Bed Bug Spray is not on the

common market.

Q. Is there anything unique about this Para-

mount preparation?

A. This is a product in which we have incorpor-

ated a highly volatile solvent. The primary reason

for this highly volatile solvent being present is that
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in spraying furs, clothes closets, et cetera, the higli

volatility permits very little damage to the fabrics.

Q. Take the next, 5-3.

A. Paramount Bed Bug Spray F2.

Q. Is that on the common market?

A. No, Paramount Bed Bug Spray F2 is not on

the common market.

Q. There is bedbug spray that is on the common

market %

A. There is, yes.

Q. How does this vary from the common market

variety %

A. In this formulation we have developed a DDT
percentage which, in our spray, does not leave un-

desirable residue as, for example, upon such things

as furs, rugs, et cetera. I feel that this is a decided

advantage. One of the larger railroads, for instance,

objected to there being too much of a powdery

residual on the fabrics from the use of excessive

DDT.

Q. What is the next one?

A. Paramount DDT Barn Spray, F2. [105]

Q. Is that on the common market?

A. Yes, that is on the common market.

Q. Is that registered by Paramount?

A. We have registered that Paramount formu-

lation because, included in the formula are the direc-

tions. Without directions the formula is no good.

By that I mean, the r^\y substance has to be included

with the application and proper directions are neces-

sary.
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Q. What is the next number?

A. Fly spray F2.

Q. What is the exhibit number ?

A. This is No. 5-5.

Q. Is that on the common market ?

A. No, that is not. Paramount Fly Spray F2 is

not on the common market.

Q. What is unique about that?

A. We have in this product, from our experience,

added an increased amount of a particular solvent.

That solvent is included in the active ingredients.

Any material that will aid in the destruction of in-

sects must be included in the active ingredients. That

solvent aids in the dispersal of the DDT to the ex-

tent that this product differs greatly from others if

for no other reason than the results.

Q. Just for the moment, this thought occurs to

me : Suppose you had an active ingredient or suppose

you had a formula that contained [106] elements A,

B, C, and D, and you mixed them in that order ; sup-

pose, for the purpose of insecticide or rodent con-

trol, you mixed them A, D, C and B; would you

have the same result?

A. No, you would not. If you would like, I can

bring one of those

Q. Does that appear later ?

A. Yes, it does.

Q. Bear that in mind and call it to our attention

when you come to it. Take No. 5-6, what is the

name of that ?

A. Paramount Fungus Solution.
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Q. Is that on the common market*?

A. No, this particular product, Mr. Rankin, is

not on the common market.

Q. Is it unique?

A. It is unique from the standpoint that there are

very few, if any, people, individuals, who are ac-

quainted with fungus. Consequently, there is no

market demand for fimgus solutions. Fungicides

must be prepared according to the individual fungus.

They cannot promiscuously be made to satisfy a

general requirement. This particular product is

used upon id(^jitification of a specific fungus.

Q. How is that fungus identified ?

A. The fungi are identified under microscopic

examination only. There is no prescribed examina-

tion that is adequate. To get down to a little more de-

tail, the actual spores in the fungus [107] growth are

identified,

Q. That is, only by laboratory facilities could you

make a proper analysis of a fungus ?

A. You may be able to make it only to the extent

of a generalized classification
;
you could not, to the

extent of a couiplete identification.

Q. Take No. 5-7, what is the name of that?

A. Paramount Insect Powder.

Q. Is that on the common market?

A. No, Paramount Insect Powder is not on the

common market.

Q. Is there anything comparable to it on the

conunon market?

A. There is a product on the market, namely,

sodium fluoride, which is an accepted roach powder.
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Q. Anything unique about this, in differentia-

tion from the one you mentioned?

A. Through our long experiments in the business,

over a period of years, we have acquired from vari-

ous chemical houses, the possibility of securing an

unusual product from this standpoint : In the manu-

facture of pyrethrins, which is incorporated in this

formula, there is, falling off from the mill that

grinds up a flower from Japan, a dust similar to

w^hat you have when you make coffee. That dust falls

off and is collected and sold. However, that dust,

being in such limited quantities, is only sold to those

individuals or some concern with a priorit}^, we will

say, a priority that you get through long dealings.

Consequently, [108] you have here 1.45 per cent pyr-

ethrins. The usual percentage of pyrethrins on the

market, instead of being 1.45 per cent, is only .9 per

cent, so that almost again as much pyrethrin is ac-

tually contained in this product, and the results are

double and the efficiency is tremendous.

Q. Has it a lethal quality or not ?

A. It is highly lethal, a highly lethal quality,

from the standpoint of an active ingredient. That is

why we have incorporated pyrethrins into this pro-

duct. Sodium fluoride in itself, as I just said a while

ago, is an accepted roach powder. I do not deny that

or that you can find sodium fluoride on the market

anywhere. I am not contending that at all but, just

as in coffee, there are those that are excellent and

those that are very poor. An insecticide is no

different.
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Q. The next exhibit, No. 5-8.

A. Paramount Insect Spray.

Q. Is that on the common market?

A. No, Paramount Insect Spray is not on the

common market.

Q. What is unique about that?

A. That is one of those products I was referrinj^

to a minute ago, where you can mix it A, B, C
and D

Q. Please tell the court about it.

A. First of all, this is an exclusive formulation

of ours. There is no other formulation like it avail-

able on the market.

In respect to this particular formulation, we had

used [109] this for several years. During this last

summer, in Mr. Brewer's territory, as well as in

Washington and in our home state, we used this

particular product exclusively.

For economic reasons we decided to give one of the

very reputable oil companies in this state, here in

Washington, and all over the United States, the op-

portunity of supplying us with a product that they

claimed was comparable. This product is five per

cent DDT, plus the necessary ingredients which are

lethane, pyrethrin, plus carbon tetrachloride, plus a

petroleum base.

They came to us and, naturally, from the stand-

point of economy, we are interested in having this

supplied to us, so for three months, June, July and
August, we used this product.
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After three months' time we had so many com-

plaints; in fact, we even had cancellations of con-

tracts due to this product that this extremely large

oil concern was putting on the market as being com-

parable ; in fact, they were to such an extent that we

pulled back their product from use and substituted

our own.

Now, at the time that this occured, this large oil

firm was naturally interested in knowing why. Con-

sequently, they came to us and asked for samples of

our product to take them to their laboratory. Their

explanation as to why ours is better need not be

brought in here, except to this extent, that it was

proven better. When we put them back in our serv-

ice again, it completely eliminated all the complaints

that we had [110] had.

Q. Take No. 5-9. What is the name of that?

The Court: How many are there? Twenty-six?

Mr. Rankin : There are twenty-six.

The Court: Don't go through every one of them.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Will you pick out some

exceptional ones that you claim to be particularly

unique and particularly lethal?

A. I have some here I would like to bring

out

Q. What is the first one, the exhibit number?

A. Exhibit No. 5-20, sodium fluoroacetate tech-

nical.

Q. Is it on the -common market ?

A. Not by any means, no. Sodium fluoroacetate

is known to the general public as Compound 1080.

i.
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'"I^'his product is Ijy no means available on the local

market. It is not sold on the local mai"ket because

tlie Monsanto Chemical Company, which manufac-

tures and sells Compound 1080, sees to it that the

comi)anies that do buy it have a designated amount

of insurance, namely forty and eighty. You must

supply a certificate that you have that amount of in-

surance coverage. We have insurance coverage of

not only that but one hundred thousand to two

lumdred thousand coverage.

It is unique in this respect: It is an extremely

lethal poison. There is no antidote. In addition to

the fact that there is no known antidote, it is usually

sold only to those commercial companies that have

satisfied these requirements.

Now, in attempting to use sodium fluoroacetate

technical, [111] there has been much dissension from

the ])ublic about its extreme potentialities. Never-

theless, it has a place in this industry and will con-

tinues to be used.

For the information of the Court, the Wild Life

Service is one that is doing excellent work in fur-

thering and advancing this product. One of my
])ersonal friends is in the Wild Life Service and

has done much of that work.

Q. Do you know how many fiiins or companies

are qualified to secure this?

A. I don't know offhand.

Q. What is the other product that you have

there?
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A, I would like to bring this particular product

up, primarily because I believe it shows what the

secret is about the manufacture of formulas. In fact,

I believe it is one example, even though it is more

prominent, you might say, than others.

That is Paramount 's Termite and Fungus Mix-

ture, Exhibit 5-21. In the Termite and Fungus Mix-

ture, there are at least six registered economic

poisons, at least six. However, going into this formu-

lation, there are at least eight. Immediately one be-

gins to wonder, "Why aren't those two registered?"

Those are the inert portions and, in the finished

formulation, there is no trace.

I mean, in this respect, which our counsel was

attempting to bring out : When you mix A, B, C and

D, for instance, in this formulation, that is one thing.

If you were to mix A, C, D [112] and B, it does not

mean that you get the same results. The additional

ingredients in here are caustic soda and sulphuric

acid. Should this formulation fall into the hands of

some other individual, it would be totally impossible

far him to totallv remix the formulation, because in

it there is no indication that there is caustic soda and

sulphuric acid so, consequently, if he made the at-

tempt, taking what was available on the label, the

product would by no means compare in efficiency or,

in fact, do the job that it was originally intended for.

Q. That is sufficient on the matter of poisons.

About the pests, are you familiar with the various

pests sought to be controlled by this service?
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A. There aie continually developing in this fii^ld

additional pests ))eyond those that were originally

foujilit. By that I mean that has mostly come aboiit

as a result of the last war.

Those pests that we are eoneerned with are re-

ferred to in California as striu-tural pests. Those

p(\sts are those most commonly found in homes,

wai'ehouses, theaters and so forth, and would in-

clude such things as bedbugs, ants, fleas, ticks,

rodents, rats and mice, such things as those which

are referred to in the structural business,—referred

to as structural pests, I should say.

Q. Are there any that are becoming unusual or

new in the field?

A. Yes. We have many forms of bedbugs being

introduced into this country from the Orient. Of

course, when one says ''bedbugs," [113] the natural

opinion is that they can be controlled by some pro-

duct that we had before. That is not so by any means.

Our specific pest, not just "bedbug" but by its Latin-

ized name must be controlled by, we will say, a Latin-

ized formula.

Q. Does it require any knowledge, any classifica-

tion of a particular pest in order to most effective

determine its control?

A. Oh, yes. One of the best examples I can think

of offliand is what is known as the common fruit fly.

Unless you identify is specifically, as to the exact

species, you can spray until you are blue in the face

and you won't control them. By that I mean that

Chlordane is the accepted contrc^l for one species of



198 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of E. W. BusMng.)

this fruit fly, and DDT as the control for another

one. For instance, if you use DDT on one to control

it and use DDT on the other, you are not going to

have any results at all.

Q. Coming to the third classification, or the ap-

plication of poisons to the pests, is there anything

that is required, any particular knowledge or train-

ing, in regard to that ?

A. Before the war it was assumed that one mate-

rial, for instance, could be made and accepted for the

control of all pests. That was the assumed theory

and it was one that was practiced extensively.

After the war, with new ideas on organic chemi-

cals, it was found, instead of having one product that

a man was going to do this with he had to have twelve

products to control twelve different insects, not that

some of these products would not be [114] controlled

to a minor degree. Wherever he had a job, it was

suggested to this customer that it was efficient that

he use only that compound specifically developed for

that insect and that insect only.

If you would like for me to just give you an ex-

ample : Chlordane is one of the latest products on the

market. That product was put on the market just

about, at least, two 3'ears ago and was slow in being

used. When it first came out, it w^as thought it

would be available to do a lot of things and was going

to replace DDT, and was good for everjrthing. In

my estimation, Chlordane is good for only three

insects and DDT for approximately two.
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Tlio Court: Wliat do you mean, '*approxiinat('ly

two'"?
•

A. Tt is used against many others with incom-

plete results, as you get if you use another product.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : In the application of the

poison to the insect, is there such a differentiation

as killing an insect, in one instance, or having it

s]iread, continue to spread to other insects or

rodents? Is there such a differentiation?

A. You are speaking about the chemical now?

Q. Yes.

A. If T understand, you arc. This is my explana-

tion

Q. Yes.

A. In spraying for control of various pests DDT
is known not as an agent that kills upon mass disper-

sal but as an agent that [115] kills after it has been

deposited upon a wall, for instance. The ordinary

housewife, when she gets one of these bottles that has

a 5-per cent DDT, returns home and disperses it

around the room, but in using DDT it is essential,

as it is with other products, to put the material

exactly where you w^ant it to do the job and nowhere

else, not in midair where it can be of no value.

Q. Did you describe what you do, if anything, in

the matter of training people to go in the field?

A. No.

Q. AVill you give a brief explanation to the Court

of what you do in that regard ?

A. We have attempted, to the best of our ability,

to train all of our personnel, either through direct
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contact, my direct contact with them, or through the

dissemination of information by letter, folder, et

cetera.

We have gone beyond that. We have requested

them to collect any specimens they were confronted

with that they didn't know about and forward them

back to me, thinking that perhaps maybe they would

collect something that they had never heard about

and would be interested in knowing something about

it. We have encouraged this tremendously. We have

informed them as to the best technique of collecting

these specimens and forwarding them to the Oakland

office, making it plain to them that nothing could be

forwarded alive through the mails [116]

That is a Federal regulation.

Now, to encourage them more to forward in their

specimens was always at the tip of my tongue when
I was out because the unfortunate thing that I was

confronted with was that the average individual

out in the field, while he could describe it partially,

he could not describe it completely enough so I could

recommend control measures. That was the reason

for the specimens and that was the reason for dis-

seminating this information that kept them abreast

of all current changes in chemicals, as much as

possible.

In particular, this far-t : We don 't want them nec-

essarily to have information about a chemical in a

scanty way only. One could do more harm by get-

ting limited information about chemicals than you

can do good. After all, it was up to us in the Oak-
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land ofificc, and my department in particular, to

choose those materials that would he used and those

that would ])o used only in the control of each spe-

cific pest.

Q. To hrin^ij this down to the present situation,

did Mr. Brewer himself ever make any application

to you for information'?

A. Yes, he received his training durinp: the lat-

ter end—I can't give you the exact date. Tt must

have been during the summer, but I received a let-

ter in which he asked me

Q. Was he still in the employ of Paramount?

A. Yes, he was. a letter in which he asked

me to identify [117]

Mr. Bernard: I think the letter would he the

best evidence. A. Pardon?

Mr. Bernard: I am making an objection.

The Court: Do you have the letter?

Mr. Rankin : I do not believe we have it.

Q. Just state in general tei-ms what the inquiiy

w^as, if you will, and what you did in connection

with it.

Mr. Bernard: I renew the objection.

The Court: He does not have the letter, he says.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : AA^iere is the letter, Mr.

Bushing?

A. I have it in my folder in the hotel room.

Mr. Rankin: All right. T will call you back later.

You may cross-examine. We will be able to produce

the letter later.
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Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. When did you first meet Mr. Brewer?

A. That date I don't remember exactly, sir. I

would say roughly a year ago.

Q. How often did you meet him during the year ?

A. I met Mr. Brewer only when he came down to

the Oakland office.

Q. Once % A. At least once, yes.

Q. Where did you meet him at that time?

A. In the office ; in the Oakland office.

Q. Did you give him any technical information

at that time? [118]

A. None was asked, sir.

Q. Now, as I have followed your testimony, up

to the time you got to Exhibit 5-8—Will you take

those exhibits? A. Yes, I will.

Q. You say that Paramount products were bet-

ter or you thought they were better than similar

products that could be bought on the market, is that

correct? A. I did.

Q. From No. 5-8, will you run through and tell

us what exhibits indicate products where similar

products could be bought on the market?

A. Do you happen to know what 5-8 was?

Q. 5-8. A. I have it.

Q. Paramoimt Insect Spray.

A. You wish me to go from there on?

Q. Yes, and give me the exhibit numbers of any

products of the Paramount Pest Control Service



vs. Charles P. Brewer, ef al. 203

(Testimony of K. W. HiishiTi^^)

wliere similar ])rodncts could be l^ought upon fihc

public market.

A. I could answer that for you by going through

them, item by item, and naming the active ingreili-

ents of part of it and tell the material that is avail-

able on the local market. That ])roduct alone is not,

by a long shot, a means of controlling this insect

necessarily

Q. Well, there are similar products selling on

the public market, [119] where a person can buy

them, or can buy the same thing as Paramount's

products ^

A. I wouldn't say the same thing, no.

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. The reason I say I wouldn't say the same

thing is because many of these products are not on

the market at all. I can name one in particular.

Q. That is what I am asking you. You say 5-8

was not on the market at all. I want to find out

what other exhibit numbers refer to similar products

that can be bought on the open market.

A. Paramount Moth Spray, Exhibit 5-11, cannot

be purchased on the market.

Q. No. 9 is moth spray?

Mr. Rankin: No, 5-11. A. 5-1], yes.

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : Are there moth sprays

on the public market?

A. There are moth sprays on the public market.

There is no Paramount Moth Spray on the public

market.
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Q. Go ahead and tell me what other exhibit num-

bers indicate products A. 5-14.

Q. Exhibit 5-14 is what?

A. Paramount Poison Grain.

Q. Can poison grain be bought on the market f

A. That can be bought on the public market.

Q. Yes. I asked you to run through the list of

exhibits there. A. 5-19.

Q. What is 5-19? A. Sodium fluoride.

Q. Can sodimn fluoride be bought on the public

market ?

A. Yes. That is a basic material for all of those.

Q. Go ahead.

A. I believe that is all.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. In the application of these poisons to the in-

sects, I forgot to inquire of you on direct examina-

tion whether or not there is more to the application

of the poisons than just giving them to the insects?

Are there other interests to be considered? Do I

make myself clear? A. No, sir.

Q. How about furniture, children, and the other

things that poisons might affect, which are not in-

tended to relate to them? Do you have to guard

against that? A. Yes, we do.

Q. In making the application of the poisons, do

you have to consider whether or not they would be

dangerous to human life, health and property?
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A. Yes, we do. No one in the State of California

can label [121] a ])rodnet without it being first ap-

])r()ve(l by the J^iireaii of Chemistry and, before they

will approve it, these direetirms must be to their

liking.

Q. Do you ever have any diffieulty with the

chemical department, or whatever department that

is of the State of California which governs poisons

in c(mnection with getting any particular product

that you want to use in your business*?

A. Yes. Due to the extreme lethal qualities of

sodium fluoro-acetate, their preference was that we

handle the technical product by reducing—we knew

and realized that there must be a dilution. And,

after all, it must be broken down into minor diln^

tions to do the job that we w^anted it to do.

To make sure we had a formulation that would

be acceptable to them, we discussed and talked con-

tinually with them about a dilution of the formula-

tion. This dilution of the formulation having been

worked out, was accepted by them and w^e secured

registration and, by the way, there are very few

concerns in the State of California that have a reg-

istration for sodium fluoroacetate.

Mr. Rankin: If there is nothing from counsel,

we will excuse you while you get that letter. Let me
know, when you return.

Recross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. You have testified about the ap]ilication of

these poisons. I believe you testified that, w4th one
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or two or three exceptions, [122] there are similar

products on the market to those indicated by the

Paramount label, although you claim that Para-

mount products are superior.

When you buy those other products on the public

markets, of course, directions are given as to how

they are to be applied, and so on ?

A. Yes, directions are given..

Q. For instance, when you say there are many

ant syrups A. Yes.

Q. If a man buys ant sj^rup on the market, of

course, he gets directions as to how to apply it?

A. Yes.

Q. That is quite universal in these various con-

coctions for the control of rodents and insects, is

it not?

A. It is more so in that specific instance you in-

dic^ited than in rodent control. There is one large

manufacturer of rodent grain outside of ourselves.

Q. In testifying about Exhibit 5-8, you men-

tioned a prominent oil concern. That is the Shell

Oil Company? A. Yes, it is.

Q. Do they still put out an insect spray?

A. They don't call it an insect spray.

Q. What do they call it?

A, 5-per cent DDT, I believe, the present name
is. Yes.

Q. It is supposed to be an insect spray? [123]

A. No, the spi'ay is given that name by a com-

mercial company.

Mr. Bernard : That is all.
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Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Is tliere any one of these [)oisons liere listed

in these exhibits where tlie eomhi nation is not even

known about"? A. On these labels'?

Q. Yes.

A. You mean the composition of them?

Q. Just held by Mr. Fisher and Mr. Sibert?

A. No, there isn't any.

Q. As far as you know? A. That is right.

Mr. Rankin: I think that is all. You may get

that letter and then we will continue with the exam-

ination later on.

(Witness excused.) [124]

HAROLD W. HILTS
was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin

:

Q. State your name to the Court?

A. Harold W. Hilts.

Q. Where do .you live?

A. I live at 4131 Randolph Avenue, Oakland,

California.

Q. What is your business ?

A. Extermination.

Q. With whom are you connected?

A. Paramount Pest Control Service.
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Q. Have you any particular department in that

service ?

A. Yes, auditing department.

Q. Are you also familiar to some extent with the

matter of pest control? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you first come with this company?

A. About May, 1940.

Q. Was it then a partnership?

A. Yes, sir, it was a partnership.

Q. Who were the partners?

A. Mr. T. C. Sibert and Mr. G. H. Fisher.

Q. Have you continuously remained with the

pest control service [125] that they have conducted

since that time? A. Yes, I have.

Q. When did you first meet Mr. Brewer.

A. Some time in February of 1946.

Q. Like Mr. Sibert, had you been a fast friend

of his, or an intimate friend?

A. No, sir, I hadn't.

Q. Did you ever meet him or have any connec-

tion with him, particularly prior to the time he

came with this service ? A. No, sir.

Q. What did you do to assist Brewer in becom-

ing established, if anything?

A. I brought Mr. Brewer to Portland in May or

April, 1946, and assisted him in getting him familiar

with the records and establishing his ways here so

that he could carry on the business for the company.

Q. Had you had anything to do with him while

he was in this short training period there, from Feb-

ruary to April, 1946, at Oakland, California?
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A. No, sir, only just to pass the time of day with

him.

Q. Did you have any association with Mrs.

Brewer? A. Diirinji^ that time?

Q. Yes. A. No, sir.

Q. After that time? [126] A. Yes, sir.

Q. In what capacity?

A. She was taking care of the books in the Port-

land office after that time.

Q. Wliat can you say as to the system of the

books as to whether it is required by the company

or whether they are allowed to set up their own

system ?

A. The books are set up by the company, a spe-

cific system of accounting is set up. I travel

throughout all our territory and I assisted her in

getting established along that line after she came

to Oregon.

Q. When you speak of all your territories, are

they geographically bounded by natural state boun-

daries or are they split up so that there are two in

some states?

A. They are split u]) into geographical boun-

daries in the states and also as to state boundaries.

Q. How many general agencies have you got of

that nature?

A. Geographically bounded in a state?

Q. Yes. A. Well

Q. How many agencies altogether, if you remem-

ber, Mr. Hilts? A. Eleven.
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Q. How many of those can you say are bounded

by state boundaries? A. Just two.

Q. Those two are what? [127]

A. Washington and Oregon.

Q. Were you familiar with the granting of the

Oregon territory by Paramount Pest Control Serv-

ice ? A. I was.

Q. To whom was it made ?

A. To Mr. Brewer.

Q. Were you familiar with the signing of the

franchise agreement, Exhibit 24, in this case as of

July 1, 1946, between Paramount Pest Control Serv-

ice and Mr. Brewer? A. Yes, I was.

Q. After the execution of that franchise, to your

knowledge did the parties continue performance

imder that agreement? A. Yes, sir.

Q. When did you become aware that there was

any change or difference in any phase of that, Mr.

Hilts?

A. In December, 1946.

Q. How did you become aware of that?

A. Mr. Sibert told me.

Q. What was the change ?

A. The change as was illustrated at that time

I did not understand completely.

Q. It related to what phase of it?

A. Change of payment.

Q. Was there any other phase or provision of

that contract that was changed? [128]

A. No, sir.
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Q. What did you do with rospect to accounting

statciricnts under this contract between July 1, 1946,

and December 31, 1946"?

A. Did you say under the change'?

Q. No, under the contract itself?

A. 1 was here first in October, the 13th, the

first time tliat I was here under the agreement that

had been entered into on July 1, 1946, and I had sub-

mitted at that time, after going through the records

and closing the books, a trial balance, a profit and

loss statement and balance sheet, on the business

entered on the records at that time.

Q. On what basis did you submit that statement?

A. The books are kept on a cash basis and the

franchise, as it was called, the 20-80 agreement, was

based on 20 per cent of the gross receipts.

Q. Paid to wdiom ?

A. Paid to the Paramount Pest Control Service

in Oakland.

Q. And the 80 per cent

A. was left for Mr. Brew^er to operate on

and to take home for himself.

Q. At the time you submitted the October state-

ment, on what basis did you submit it? On the

franchise basis or the 80-20? A. Yes.

Q. Did you receive any resistance from Mr.

Brew^er in that regard? [129] A. I did not.

Q. Up to the time you learned of the different

arrangement from Mr. Sibert, had you rendered

other statements on the 80-20 per cent basis?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Had you received any resistance from Mr.

Brewer? A. No, sir.

Q. The dollar-for-dollar arrangement, as it has

been termed, expired when?

A. December 31st, 1946.

Q. When it came to the January and February

statements, 1947, on what basis did you submit

those ?

A. I submitted those on the 20-80 per cent agree-

ment that was in effect as of July 1, 1946.

Q. Was that termed the franchise agreement?

A. That was termed the franchise agreement.

Q. When did you submit those?

A. I took the figures off the books March 13th

and had them in rough draft and had talked with

Mr. Brewer relative to the business in general and

showed him the figures, and then I took those figures

back to Oakland with me and also a check accom-

panying the total settlement for those two months

of January and February to Oakland.

At that time, in Oakland, I prepared or had pre-

pared typewritten copies of my rough draft and

mailed them back to [130] Mr. Brewer.

Q. Did you, during the month of January, 1947,

have any conference or talk with Mr. Brewer?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. When was that?

A. Around January 20th.

Q. Where was that?

A. That was in Portland, Oregon, in our office in

Portland, Oregon, the Portland office.



V8. Charles P. Brewer, et al. 213

(Testimony of Harold W. Hilts.)

Q. What was the purport of that conversation?

A. As T remember it, we discussed the various

operations of the business and made comments as to

how it was progressing, and the books were, of

course, closed for December 31st, and I took the

figures that J had to have to send back at that time,

and any additional information, and tlien we dis-

cussed the business as to how it was pi'ogressing,

and then we prol)a])ly brought up—As I recall, he

mentioned something to me about having had an

understanding relative to an adjustment as to the

change of payment under the franchise.

Q. Had ,you understood it then, at that time?

A. I didn't.

Q. What did you do then ?

A. I told him I didn't understand exactly what

it was and that it was not clear to me.

Q. What did you do then? [131]

A. I left after that time and went back to Oak-

land.

Q. What did you do at Oakland?

A. Went through my regular course of duties.

Q. What did you do with respect to the under-

standing at the time?

A. I couldn't do anything about it because the

understanding that he had was with Mr. Sibert and

Mr. Sibert was not available at that time and, so, I

couldn't contact him.

Q. Did you discuss it with Mr. Sibert when he

was available?

A. Not until March 15th of 1947.



214 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of Harold W. Hilts.)

Q. Was there anything else in this discussion of

January 20th concerning Eastern Oregon?

A. January 20, 1947?

Q. 1947, yes. Mr. Sibert testified about that. I

don't know whether it had been brought up with you

or not? A. No, it had not been.

Q. Then did you have any contact with Mr.

Brewer during the month of February, 1947?

A. I was not in Portland and I had not seen

Mr. Brewer during February, 1947.

Q. From your position as auditor in the Para-

mount Pest Control Service, do you know whether

or not Mr. Brewer made any payments on his fran-

chise—and when I say "franchise," I am referring

to the July 1, 1946, agreement—on the amount that

he owed Paramount Pest Control Service? [132]

A. Yes, sir, he did. He made payment February

6 of 1947 in the amount of $250.

Q. Did you enter that payment in your account?

A. Yes, they were reported on Ms records.

Q. Will you see if you can locate that in the file,

the check which you describe as the February 6th

payment ? A. Yes, I have it here.

Q. What is the exhibit number ? A. 30.

Q. Is there anything on that check that discloses

the breakdown, what the payment was made for ?

A. Yes. In our system of accounting, we have

what we call the voucher system. The original copy

goes to whomever it is made in favor of and the

duplicate is retained in the office, and the duplicate
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is an exact copy of the orij^inal, because a carbon

is necessary to put it on thei'c.

Mr. Rankin: May I ask you to liand tliat to the

Court?

The Court: I don't want to see it just now.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : One copy you have?

A. Yes.

Q. Do the original and copy both disclose the

items of the February payment, as made ?

A. The original must have disclosed it, but the

oric^inal has a division, wdiich is known as the check

]n'0})er and the remittance advice part. The remit-

tance advice is torn off when the party [133] in

whose favor the check or voucher is made payable

deposits it, and the only part that we have left here

in evidence is the check j)art and the duplicate

voucher part shows what was on the remittance ad-

vice that has been torn off. It discloses ''For fran-

chise, $250.00."

Q. What is the total of the check ?

A. $338.00.

Q. What is the balance, the difference between

the $338.00 and the $250.00?

A. In this particular case it is $88.00.

Q. What is it foi', generally speaking?

A. Well, it is for supplies for December, $28.87,

auditing for December, $25.00, and billing state-

ments, $34.13.

Q. Did you make a request of Mr. Brewer for

this payment? A. I did not.
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Q. Did you make any designation as to what it

should apply on?

A. No, sir. He put that on there of his own

free will.

Q. When it comes to the designation '*For fran-

chise, $250.00," did you have anything to do with

requiring that designation ?

A. I never did, no.

Q. When was the next payment made by Mr.

Brewer ?

A. March 6, 1947. It is in the amount of $250.00

and states "Apply on 1946 franchise."

Q. Was there any other item contained in that

check except the franchise pajTmenf? [134]

A. No, sir.

Q. What you described as to the method of pay-

ment, as to the original and duplicate, particularly

with reference to the voucher, applies to this check

as well as the other ? A. Yes, it does.

Q. Were there any payments made by Mr.

Brewer on the January and February, 1947, fran-

chise account?

A. Yes, there was. There was a pajonent made
to me on March 13th when I was in Portland, going

through the records, making up the statements for

January and February. That payment was in the

amount of $494.25 which completed the total amount

of his liability to us under the franchise contract

for January and February.
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Q. It is claimed, as you well know, by Mr.

Brewc^r that the^e payments were all on account of

the franchise, as modified, meaning the change of

I)ayment on the dollar-home and dollar-corn i)any.

Was there anything in connection with those pay-

ments which could have been reconciled with that

dollar-foi'-dollar agreement? A. No, sir.

Q. Ts tlu^re anything in these payments that is

reconcilable with the franchise pi'ovision of 80-20

distribution %

A. Yes, there is. The duplicate part of the

voucher here reads, ''Franchise balance for Janu-

ary and February," and then [135] it records the

January and February franchise, $994.25, and

''Paid, $500.00; balance, $494.25," and that was the

exact amount of his remittance to me.

Q. On what basis?

A. On the basis of the 20-80 per cent franchise

contract for January and February.

Q. Were any of those payments made by Mr.

Brewer under any complaint or protest to you ?

A. Absolutely none whatsoever.

Q. AVhen did you complete your review of the

books, your investigation?

A. You say w^hen did I what?

Q. When did you complete it?

A. March 13, 1947.

Q. The first two of these checks are in romid

figures, are they not? A. Yes.
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Q. If I recall correctly?

A. Yes, they are. One was $338.00 even and

the other was $250.00 even.

Q. With respect to the franchise payments, what

were they?

A. $250.00 was included *'For franchise," but

the next and second one was just for $250.00.

Q. That left an odd amount for the third check ?

A. That is correct. [136]

Q. How much was that odd payment to com-

plete the total payment under the franchise for Jan-

uary and February, 1947? A. $494.25.

Q. You probably said, but I don't recall: When
did you complete that examination?

A. Of January and February?

Q. Yes, January and February.

A. March 13th.

Q. Then what did you do?

A. I went back to Oakland. Mr. Brewer took me
to the airport, and we had our usual—^well, conver-

sation that, "Oh, well, things are going along fine"

and everybody was happy, and so on. He often

drove me out to the airport and watched planes take

off the ground. I remember that specifically.

Q. Was there any complaint made by Mr.

Brewer that you were not treating him correctly ?

A. No, sir, not at all.

Q. Was there any protest or objection on his

part as to making the payments that he had previ-

ously made or had made at that time ?

A. No, sir. His attitude was to the effect that

he knew it was due and he was going to pay.
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Q. Did lie at tliat time indiealc that he was

under the belief that the dollai'-home and dollar-

<'ompany agreement of September 12th was still con-

timiiriff? [137]

A. No, sir, he didn't.

Q. When you arrived at these figures showing a

total of $994.25 due under the franchise agreement

for January and February, 1947, did you go over

that matter with Mr. Brewer? A. I did.

Q. When did you get the figures that you went

over with him?

A. The figures were on his books. I took them

off the records of the office for January and Feb-

ruary. They represented the figures that are used

in figuring the terms of the contract, commonly

known as the franchise.

Q. Did he understand it as you went over it?

A. He certainly did.

Q. Who made the entries in the books from

which you took them, if you know?

A. Mr. and Mrs. Brewer, mostly Mrs. Brewer.

Q. Then, upon your return to Oakland, what did

you do, upon your return to Oakland in March of

1947?

A. I went through my regular procedure, having

made a rough draft, and prepared it to be mailed.

Q. A rough draft of what?

A. Of my examination of his records for Janu-

ary and February, 1947, and then at that time I

asked Mr. Siliert if he would clarify for me his

I

agreement relative to his understanding with Mr.
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Brewer for the period starting July 1st, 1946, to

December 31st, 1946. [138]

Q. DidMr. Sibertdoso?

A. Yes, Mr. Sibert did so.

Q. You say you went through your regular pro-

cedure of preparing your accounting. Did you mail

to Brewer a copy of your accounting for January

and February, 1947 ? A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. Can you state whether or not there is in this

file such an accounting, this file of exhibits'?

A. Yes, there is.

Q. What is that exhibit?

A. It is not in this exhibit file. Pardon me.

Yes, it is. I think I recognize it here. No, I don't.

It is not here.

Q. I hand you this second volume and ask you

if you can locate it in there ?

A. Yes, sir, I do.

Q. What is the number?

A. It is No. 57.

Q. Did you give Mr. Brewer credit in that ac-

counting for the payment he had made by the check

dated February 6, 1947, for $250.00?

A. Credit was given to him on his books, and his

book figures are recorded on here, yes.

Q. Did you make an accounting for February,

1947, also? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you deliver both of these when the Janu-

ary and February [139] accounting was done?

A. I was not here in February or January.
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Q. Did yon ^ive him credit foi* the February

payment of $250.00 on the frjmehise in your Feb-

ruary statement?

A. 4^1iat was not recorded on the books l)eeau8e

—

Did you say in Febi'uary ?

Q. Yes.

A. I am afraid I don't understand that question.

Yes, the $250.00 payment that was made February

6tli is recorded and he is given credit for that on

his statement.

Q. Then, the balance of $494.25, was he also

given credit for that?

A. Yes, sir, he was. It is also a matter of record

in his books.

Q. Were those entered on his records as well as

your own? A. Yes.

Q. As relating- to the amount of money due from

Brewer to Paramount under the franchise of July

1,1946? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you do anything else in relation to pay-

ments when you returned to Oakland in March,

1947? A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. What did you do?

A. After imderstanding the agreement with Mr.

Sibert, the agreement that Mr. Sibert and Mr.

Brewer had entered into, which was [140] up to

and including December 31, 1946, I then took the

figures that we had for effecting an accomiting on a

settlement and prepared—Mr. Ribert and I pre-

pared the figures together so that it would be right,
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which was based on the *'You take a dollar and I

take a dollar" basis, and then mailed it to Mr.

Brewer in Portland.

Q. Was there a letter of transmittal with that?

A. Yes, I wrote a letter along with that?

Q. What is the date of that letter?

A. March 15, 1947.

Q. What is the exhibit number so we will have

it identified?

A. I don't have it here.

• The Court: Take a short recess.

(Recess.)

Q, (By Mr. Rankin) : Before the recess we

were talking about Exhibit 29, which was your

letter of March 15, 1947, to Brewer at Portland.

"Enclosed is a statement of your account for 1946,

also January and February of this year."

So as to expedite it, do you have the statement of

your account for 1946 that was enclosed here?

A. No, sir, I don't.

Mr. Rankin: For the Court's information, at the

previous hearing of this case in the Circuit Court

Mr. Leo Smith gave that letter to Mr. Bernard and

Mr. Bernard says he gave it back.

The Court: I have heard about that. [141]

Mr. Rankin : And we do not know where that is

now.

The Court: Very well.

Mr. Rankin: Is that statement of January and
February, 1947, in this list of exhibits ?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. AVhat is the number that appears"?

Mr. Bernard: Did I understand Mr. Rankin U)

say that at the liearins^ in the Circuit Court he j^ave

this statement of account for 1946 or this letter?

Mr. Rankin : No, the statement of the account

and the letter, 'i'hey are both together.

Mr. Bernard : No, just the letter.

Mr. Rankin: I wasn't there, then. T don't know

anything- about that. Mr. Bernard and Mr. Smith

will have to finiah that.

The Court: Don't argue about that.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Do you find that letter?

That statement, rather ? A. Yes.

Q. What is the exhibit number?

A. Exhibit 57.

Q. This letter (Exhibit 29) says: '*You will note

that this splits everything across the boaixl for 1946

and we both come out with $1,479.65 and you still

have your $1,000 investment in the business."

What did that indicate that the total revenue for

1946 was?

A. Well, the total amount that was s])lit was

$1,479.65.

Q. The third paragraph says: "For January

and February there is a not profit of $1,016.55 with

the franchise out of it, now you haA^e drawn $512.22

for both months"

What franchise did you refer to when you said

*'the franchise out of it"?

A. I referred to the franchise that was in effect

as of January 1, 1947, and the franchise that I re-
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ferred to in this letter was based on the 20-80 per

cent basis, which was for January and February

of 1947.

Q. Then you say "now you have drawn $512.22

for both months; if we take $512.22 like you did

that will be your franchise for Januarj^ and Feb-

ruary." What did you mean then by ''franchise'"?

A. I meant there that in the discussion that I

had with Mr. Sibert down in Oakland March 15th,

at the time this letter was written, that there was

a thought brought to my mind by the Eastern Ore-

gon venture was not as profitable as we had con-

sidered that it would be, and, on the basis that it

W8^ not profitable, I had suggested to Mr. Sibert

that we, in trying to help Mr. Brewer, show him that

We were in favor of trying to keep the man going

and so he could make a supreme success of the area,

without financial responsibility on his shoulders,

that we would be willing to take for January and

February the same amount that he took up to De-

cember 31st, 1946, and incorporated [143] that in

this letter.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer make that request of you?

A, He did not.

Q. Was there any suggestion by Mr. Brewer to

that effect in consultations or conferences you had

with him in March or at any other time ?

A. No, sir.

Q. Was it agreed to and this notice sent before

Mr. Brewer was aware that it was to be done ?
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A. Please state the question again. I didn't

get it.

Q. Was tliis agreement of yourself and Mr, Sib-

ert to divide this January and February, 1947,

return on the basis of the dollar-home dollar-com-

pany done before Mr. Brewer knew anything

about it? A. YevS, sir.

Q. "Now you have paid $994.25 as franchise for

January and February which is $482.03 over your

January and February franchise." What did you

mean by that, ''over your January and February

franchise'"?

A. I meant that it was over the payment on the

basis of the 20-80 per cent of the $994.25 which was

in effect for January and February and, therefore,

according to the terms of the agreement that he

had with Mr. Sibert.

Q. Your letter continues: "* * * as per above

figures, this will be credited to the $1,479.65, which

leaves $997.62 which [144] will wipe off 1946."

How much had he made in 1946?

A. How much? I don't understand that ques-

tion.

Q. What had he made in 1946, do you know?

In other w^ords, what did this $1,479.65 refer to?

A. That refers to the dollar-for-doUar agree-

ment; in other words, $1,479.65 was his portion,

and we w^ould get $1,479.65 for 1946, from July 1st

to December 31st.

Q. How w^as it paid?

A. It w^as never paid.
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Q. Was it paid by this?

A. No, sir, that didn't apply in 1946. The pay-

ments that he made applied on January and Feb-

ruary.

Q. Maybe it is my fault that I do not under-

stand this, Mr. Hilts, but it says here, "This will

be credited to the $1,479.65." Where do you get

the $1,479.65?

A. That was the statement that was attached to

the letter.

Q. Was that due from Brewer to Paramount?

A. That is correct.

• Q. What for? What was the basis of that ob-

ligation ?

A. On the change of pa3nTient basis he had with

Sibert, and it was due for the period Tuly 1st to

December 31st, 1946.

Q. That is what I understood. I didn't know
that you gave that. It is the contention by Mr.

Brewer that this business was in a very poor con-

dition and that he put it in a good condition, [145]

this agency here, and he said something to the

effect that when he took over this business it was in

the red. Is that true? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know what the amount of earnings of

this Oregon branch were prior to, at the time of,

and immediately subsequent to Mr. Brewer's taking

over in Oregon ?

A. I will have to go back to 1945 to bring that

out and show you the comparison.
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Hurins^ 1945 we never lost money up here in Ore-

gon, wliicli was—We never lost money up liei-e in

Oregon with the exception of one montli, which was

the month of December.

Q. What year?

A. 1945. At that time the los.s was only about

$22.00. I don't remember the exact figure.

In January and February and March (f 1946 we

also made money, and we have had a statement pre-

pared on that basis. I believe I turned those over

to you.

In April and May after Mr. Brewer came to this

area, the records show that we absolutely lost money.

Then, again in June, it started to pick up again.

Q. Up to the time Mr. Brewer took control,

was there any loss? A. No, sir.

Q. Immediately afterwards, for how many

months was there a loss ? [146]

A. For a—For two months after that.

Q. Then, after that, did Mr. Brewer start to

make money?

A. Then he had started to show a little gain.

Q. Up to December, then, 1946, Dc^cember 31,

1946, when this amount that you describe in your

letter was due? A. That is correct.

Q. You go on and say, "Ted tried to explain this

to me just before I came up this last time, but I

didn't get it." That has reference to what?

A. That was in reference to the agreement that

he had had with Mr. Brewer September 12, 1946.
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Q. ''Regarding- Brooks and Ahern " Who
were they?

A. Mr. Brooks and Mr. Ahern were servicemen

and salesmen that were involved in the Eastern

Oregon extension campaign.

:Q. ''* * * We v/ill split this the same." What

did you mean by thaf?

:A. The miderstanding there was that we would

take the expenses and split them in half and we

would take any income derived from this venture

and split that in half, and we would both bear half

of -the burden; the company would bear its half

and Mr. Brewer would bear his half; and, if there

was a profit, that would be split; if there was a loss,

that would be split.

Q. What actually happened under that agree-

ipent? A. It was a loss.

Q. A¥hat was done *? Were there any moneys re-

ceived at all from [147] the business ?

i;A. There were, and the income came into the

Portland office and we paid the expenses. To begin

with, it was one of those deals where we got the

bad end of the deal mitil we had a settlement,

.; Q. What became of the money that was paid in?

A. Mr. Brewer ffot it.

Q. Have you been paid any of that?

A. No, sir.

Q. What became of the expenses that you in-

curred? A. We paid them.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer compensate you?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Whoii, after Mardi 15, did you a^ain come

ill contact vvitli Mr. Brewer in relation to this busi-

ness between Paramount and Brewer?

A. In Api'il.

Q. What time!

A. Oh, the first part of the month. I don't

remember the exact date.

Q. What was the subject of that discussion?

A. It was carried on on the same basis as "we

have always operated. I had asked if he had re-

ceived his letter of settlement and I think he said

yes; he seemed to be satisfied with it, and I went

ahead and prepared my examination of his records,

closed them, prepared my profit and loss and bal-

ance statements and took them back to Oakland and

sent them back to him.

At that time he also saw me off at the airport.

He transported me back and forth from the airport

and our relationship was of the best.

Q. When did you next see Mr. Brewer?

A. In May, 1947.

Q. At what time?

A. Around the 14th or 15th.

Q. What was the occasion ? What was discussed

in relation to this business then, if anvthinsr?

A. Just the same procedure. We went right

along on the same basis.

Q. When did you next see Mr. Brewer?

A. In June, June 17th of 1947.

Q. Where?
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A. I saw liim here in Portland, and at that time

Mr. Sibert accompanied me on the trip. We both

were together with Mr. Brewer in the office here

and went over the affairs of the business.

Q. When did you next see Mr. Brewer?

A. July 9, 1947.

Q. What was the occasion?

A. At that time I went ahead with my regular

procedure and also prepared a settlement. We had

an understanding, Mr. Sibert, Mr. Brewer and my-

self, back in June of 1947; we had an understand-

ing [149] where he would request that we allow

our settlement of the accounting on the franchise

to run for the fiscal year which would be from

July 1 of 1946 to June 30 of 1947, and we mutually

agreed to that.

Back in June we also set forth a budget for the

businass, as the way the figures were on the books,

stating absolutely the expenses that were involved

and the income. Mr. Brewer had $3,000 business,

monthly business, on the books.

Q. I v/ill come back to that in a moment. When
did you next have any conference with Mr. Brewer ?

A. July 9, 1947.

Q. After July 9th ?

A. The next time I saw Mr. Brewer was July

31, 1947.

Q. That was after the termination or about the

termination ?

A. That was after we had received the letter in

reference to terminating his agreement with us.
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Q. From July 1, 1946, to and indudiu^ tlie con-

ference and meeting of July 9, 1947, had Mr. Brewer

expressed to you any intention of terminating this

relationsliip between the Paramount and liimself,

disclosed by this agent's agreement?

A. No, sir, none whatsoever. As a matter of

fact, our relationshi]) was pretty much on an even

keel all the time. There was never any mention

made relative to dissatisfaction. In fact, I had made

different recommendations to Mr. Brewer, as I do

when I am in the territory, because of my knowl-

edge of the business, [150] because I am also a

licensed operator and I understand the outside oper-

ations as well as I do the accounting.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer indicate that he wanted to

terminate this relationship at any time?

A. He certainly did not.

Q. Did he indicate to you that there was a de-

sire on his part to get a different adjustment that

he was insisting on with respect to pay, other than

what you had granted ? A. No, sir.

Q. Have you, Mr. Hilts, stated fully the descrip-

tion of the relationship that existed between Para-

mount Pest Control Service and Mr. Brewer during

that whole year? Is there anything you can add to

what you have said about your relations?

A. Why, I believe that while I was talking

about the June 17th trip there was an item that I

had not related, which was to the effect that Mr.

Brewer had said he had contacted the bank that he

was doing business with here and he wished to be
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able to let them know how he Avas getting along in

his business, and he requested that we prepare a

statement as to the operations. As he put it, the

bank said that they wanted to know just exactly

what the situation was as to his personal and busi-

ness affairs, which is according to banking proce-

dure, and at that time Ave prepared a rough draft

and went down to the bank, Mr. Sibert, myself and

Mr. Brewer, and with the express purpose of trying

to get him acquainted with the bank and his posi-

tion with the [151] bank—the banker happened to

be Mr. Ridehalgh, of the California bank, I believe

it was, or the Bank of California, I don't know

which it is,—and he at that time listed all the opera-

tions of Mr. Brewer and the Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer then tell the banker in your

presence, or did he tell anyone, that he w^as dissatis-

fied with the treatment he was getting here, that the

treatment he was getting was not proper or that the

compensation he was receiving was not adequate %

A. No, sir, not at all. May I go on to say that

at the time of the June 17th conference which you

asked me about

Q. I was just coming to that now. Will you

please refer to that particular occasion and tell what

transpired and what was said between the repre-

sentatives of Paramount, Mr. Sibert and yourself

and Mr. Brewer?

A. During that time, after I was completed

witli the records, closing the business up to and
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including May 31st, 1947, we^ sat down and made a

Imdget from llic figures in liis records, and that

budget i)roved, l^eing based on the amount of busi-

ness that he liad, that he had over 5f'3,000 worth of

monthly business, that he could kee]) his franchise

and pay all his bills and keep his ten-itory in opera-

tion and come out with $855 a month, in round fig-

ur(\> and Mr. Brewer's owm w'ords at that time was

to the effect, "Well, that being the case, I can't

afPoi'd not to be on the 20-80 per cent franchise

basis because I will make more money that way than

T would the other way." Whereas, we would [152]

only be getting $600 out of it, he would be getting

$850, and that is not uncommon in our business.

The Court: What is not uncommon?

A. It is not uncommon in our business for a ter-

ritory agent to receive more compensation on the

fi'anchise basis than they would receive on the 20

])er cent.

The Court: Do the.y usually get about that, right

around $10,000 a year?

A. We have had operators earn more than that,

sir.

The Court: What is your gross business, about?

A. You refer to all our operations?

The Court: That is right.

A. AVell, it runs upwards of probably $700,000.

The Court: A year?

A. Yes, sir.
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The Court: Increased pretty rapidly, has it?

A. Well, it has a pretty steady growth now. It

increased rapidly during the war, as most businesses

did, but we still have not dropped down. We are

increasing.

The Court : A very profitable business ?

A. A very profitable business, if it is run right,

yes.

The Court : Highly profitable, at that rate ?

A. That is correct.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Your franchise calls for

an 80-20 distribution, [153] respectively, between

agent and company? A. Yes, sir,

Q. What do you estimate, in general, it costs to

process or serve these contracts, with the expenses

paid by the agent ?

A. 60 per cent, average. In other words, that is

the basis on which the franchises are drawn.

Q. So, that leaves 20 per cent for the agent and

20 per cent for the company ?

A. That is correct, sir.

Q. 20 for the company is fixed, is it not?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. And is the 20 per cent for the agent fixed, or

can he vary that 20 per cent by his method of oper-

ating the territory ?

A. He can definitely vary that by his method of

operating.

Q. What are some of the figures that arel ess?

How much less than 60 per cent does an agent use

in operating his territory?



vs. Charles P. Brewer, et al. 235

(Testimony of Harold VV. Hilts.)

A. Do you mean how much more llian dO [)er

cent?

Q. How much more and how much less? If he

operates at loss than 60 per cent, he gets that dif-

ference, doesn't he? A. That is ri^ht.

Q. How far down below 60 per cent do agents

go? A. It can go as low as 45 per cent.

Q. Sometimes if an agent is not a particularly

good operator, how much more than 60 per cent does

it cost him ?

A. It can run as high as 75 per cent operation.

Q. Going back to the June 17, 1947, conference,

was there anything else that was said at that time

between Mr. Brewer and you and Mr. Sibert, that

you have not related?

A. Yes, there was. Mrs. Brewer was in San

Francisco or Sunny Hills, California, and, when we

found that out, Mr. Sibert and Mr. Brewer and

myself—While Mr. Brewer was taking us to the

air]>ort, why, Mr. Sibert got the idea probably he

would like to go down and see his wife.

Q. Is that the same transaction or occurrence

Mr. Sibort testified about this morning?

A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Rankin : Well, we won't repeat it.

The Court: Whom do you blame for all this

trouble, Mrs. Brewer? Is that what you were lead-

ing up a minute ago?

A. I didn't make any contention about it, no,

sir.
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The Court: Did you hear some remarks she

made down there?

A. No, sir. You mean that is why I started to

relate that?

The Court: Yes.

A. No, sir.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Do you have anything to

say about the collections here that has not been

said?

A. Well, I noticed that the balances that were

due Mr. Brewer that the customers owed him kept

crawling up each month ; in other words, they were

not collected, and I would keep referring to it, and

at the end of June there was a balance of over [155]

$3500—$3600—on the books.

A. As I recall, the contract, which is here and

which speaks for itself, makes him responsible for

those collections ? A. That is correct.

Q. That is, they were to be made by Mr. Brewer ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did he make those collections you are talking

about ?

A. He eventually collected all he could get out

of the business ; in fact, he collected everything, and

then drew it out of the bank.

Q. Just describe what you mean by that. What
was his process?

A. Well, he knew that he had to clear his

accoimts receivable by the medium of showing pay-

ment by the collection that he made on those ac-

counts receivable. Therefore, he could not just
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collect the money and stick it in Iiis own pocket,

figui'ing that it was his. He had to nni it tliron^h

the hooks, so he would iim it thi'ouf^h the hooks.

Tlicu he would turn around and draw a voucher or

check and put it in his owni personal account or ch)

whatever lie wanted to with it.

Q. Let us turn to some of these items that we

are claiming here, Mr. Hilts.

The Court: Are you p:oing into the question of

damages ?

Mr. Rankin : Yes.

The Court : Put that off for awhile. Let us tiy

the other feature. Let us try the equity feature of

this case. [156]

Mr. Rankin: All right, your Honor.

Q. Did you cover everything now that occurred

in the June 17, 1947, meeting or conference?

A. Yes, sir, exc*ept that you stopped me when I

was relating the conversation.

Q. That is the same thing Mr. Sihert testified to ?

A. Yes.

Q. So there is no need to repeat it. Now, then,

you spoke of an accounting in July, July 9, 1947.

A. Yes.

Q. How did you prepare that accounting ?

A. Well, that was prepared on the basis of "You
take a dollar, we take a dollar."

Q. And why was that done?

A. Because Mr. Brewer had requested that we

run it up to the fiscal year, as 1 mentioned in my
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previous testimony, and asked that we wait until

the end of June, June 30th, to make settlement.

Q. Did you agree to do that? A. AVe did.

Q. At his request? A. Yes, sir.

Q. State for what period that compromise or

adjustment covered?

A. Covered from July 1, 1946, to Jmie 30, 1947.

Q. Did you prepare a statement for Brewer in

connection with the accounting on that basis for

that year? [157] A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. Is there a copy of it in evidence?

A. Yes, there is.

Q. What exhibit number is it ?

A. Exhibit No. 36.

Q. Did you show these figures to Mr. Brewer?

A. Mr. Brewer helped me compile them. As a

matter of fact, we spent over two hours on it

together.

Q. Where did you and Mr. Brewer get the fig-

ures from?

A. Most of them were taken from his records.

Some of them were in invoice form that were not

entered on his records.

Q. Then what was said by you and Mr. Brewer

with respect to this accomiting of July 9th?

A. Prior to the time we started to effect this

accounting, Mr. Brewer had a notion that we were

going to make an accounting as of June 30, 1947,

and I told him after I had prepared my examina-

tion of his books up to June 30, 1947, we were going

to sit down and effect a settlement, taking in the
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fiscal year's operations, and 1 told liini that we were

going to settle it, and he agreed that we should settle

it if I had to stay a week to do it. Thereafter, we

sat down and started to work on the figures.

Q. Wliat did you do? Just go ahead and state

what was done in the compilation of this account-

ing, please?

A. To get our dollar-for-dollar agreement, we

took the accounts [158] receivable that he could col-

lect, money that he could get; we took the asset

investment that had not been charged into the rec-

ords as expenses; took the cash on hand in the

bank which was recorded against the expenses of

operation, that is, left after the operation, and then

we also recorded the amount of money that Mr.

Brewer himself had drawn for that period of time,

and added those figures.

Then we had some bills that were on hand tliat

had not been paid as of June 30th, because the books

were operated on a cash basis, and they were not

set up in accounts payable and, therefore, they w^ei e

due. We subtracted that figure.

Then we took half of the expenses of the Eastern

Oregon I'un and subtracted that figure.

Then we took the bills that Mr. Brewer had owed

Oakland, which were accrued and some of which

were even involved in the settlement or accounting

on the settlement as of December 31st, and we sub-

tracted that figure.

Then the total was split in half. That would give

us the exact figure, the real amount that there w^as
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left, including Mr. Brewer's drawings and every-

thing in the business.

Then we took one-half of the Eastern Oregon run

that had not been paid us that year, and we added

that, which was due us.

Then we subtracted half of the amount paid a

man by the name of Torrach, wages for the period

for which he was hired, [159] and gave him credit

for that.

Then the statement goes on to show one-half of

the amount of the franchise that was paid, based on

January and February of 1947, and we gave him

credit for that, aiid then we show the overdue bills

that was owing to Oakland, and we added that.

That was the figure I referred to as part of it

being in 1946, because we had that money coming.

We had never been paid that money, and it was

justly ours.

Then there was a piece of equipment known as

"Hi Fog" that had not been paid for, which would

become an asset on his records, and he owed us

for it, and we charged that to him.

We took the total figure and Mr. Brewer agreed

upon it, so much so that he gave me a check in pay-

ment of part of this settlement.

Q. What was the total that he owed, according

to your joint understanding? A. $3,359.61.

Q. What amount did he pay?

A. He paid $259.61, leaving $3,100, in romid

figures.



V8. Cliarles P. Brewer, ct al. 241

('J'estimony of Harold \V. Hilts.)

Q. Was there any discussion of the i)aynu'nt?

A. There was not, and we went on, after we had

agreed upon it, and I asked him liow he wanted to

pay it off, and he said, "Well, J will see how the

money comes in. As the money comes in, J will he

glad to, naturally, pay it off, as long as it doesn't

hurt [160] the husiness," and we accepted it that

way and agreed upon it.

Q. Why didn't he pay the total amount, $3,359.61 ?

A. lie didn't have that much, although there was

that much and more represented in his books and

assets and inventories. He didn't have that much

cash on hand.

Q. Was there anything said why he should pay

that odd amount'^

A. No. That was his w^ay of wanting to do it,

and I accepted it that way. In that I was in every

way trying to make him feel that there was no pres-

sure being brought to bear on him at all. That

was his own figure, his own idea, and I accepted it.

Q. Was there any indication on July 9th, when

you had this conference with him, that he was going

to cancel his contract thirteen days later?

A. No, sir, none whatsoever. When we received

his letter in our Oakland office, it was like a bomb-

shell in our cam}).

Q. What did you do after you received that

letter? By the way, going back to that statement,

which exhibit is that? A. 36.
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Q. Did he make any endorsement on it ?

A. Yes, he did. He set forth the check number

and the amomit that he paid on it, making a record

of that, so he could keep track of it.

Q. Is that endorsement in his own handwriting?

A. That is in his own handwriting. [161]

Q. What does it say ?

A. It says "July 9, 1947, paid, Check Number

413, $259.61."

Q. When did you next come in contact with Mr.

Brewer? When did you next come in contact with

Mr. Brewer after the receipt of his letter of July

24, 1947?

A. The next time I saw Mr. Brewer was July

31st, 1947.

Q. Whereabouts was that?

A. In Portland, Oregon. I was registered in

the Roosevelt Hotel at the time, and Mr. Brewer

came up to the hotel. He knew, of course, that I was

in town, and when he came into the hotel room my
first words to him were, "Well, Charlie, what in the

world happened?" And he says, "Well, I don't

know; just couldn't seem to make it go," and so he

said

I said, "Well," I said, "what are you going to

do?" And he said, "Well, she is all yours, if you

want it." He said, "Tomorrow you come down and

we will take an inventory and I will give you these

supplies," and we had a general conversation along

that line, and so I asked him where I could get in
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touch with Mr. Rightmire and lie said, 'M don't

know exactly where he lives," and I said, "Well,

can't you give me his address? Isn't it in the office?"

**Yes," he said, "I will get it foi- you. I will get

it at the office on my way home. 1 will get it lor

you and call you up and give it to you on the

telephone." [162]

I said, "I would like to see him tonight, if I

could," and he said, "I don't know. 1 don't think

it will do you much good to see Mr. Rightmire.

Rightmire isn't going to stay in the exteiminating

business any more. Rightmire is sick."

I said, ''Well, if, as you say, he is sick, I would

like to go, as a comi3any representative, and see him

and tell him we are sorry about his sickness, and be

interested in general because he is an employee of

ours.
'

'

He said, "Well, I owe Mr. Rightmire a vacation."

And he said, "He is through. He isn't going to

work any more."

So I said, "Then, if you will give me his address,

I will appreciate it," and he said, "I will stop at

the office."

I waited for over an hour, which was more than

ample time for him to arrive at the office and obtain

the address, and I didn't hear from him, so I made

a call to his home and asked him what had happened.

He said, "Well, I couldn't find the addi-ess," so 1

said to him, "Well, I understand you were going to

at least let me know,'' and he said, "Well, 1 was

going to call you up while 1 was eating diimer," so
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I said, "Well, that is fine," and liimg up. There

was no more conversation at that time.

I fomid out later that his address was in the

records and that it was in a little slide telephone

file that was in the office, and so I obtained it myself

and saw Rightmire the next da}^ [163]

Q. What was your conversation with Mr. Right-

mire ?

A. I went out to his house, and we sat out front

talking, and he told me that he thought Mr. Sibert

was one of the dirtiest guys he had ever talked to

or seen and that he wouldn't have any part of it,

and that he never realized what a dirty louse he

was, and, of course, that made my blood boil, because

I had been associated with Mr. Sibert for some time,

twelve or fourteen years; had known him prior to

my association with the business. He went on with

that conversation. He said he would not work in

the extermination business for anybody. He said,

"I am through."

V I said, "What are you going to do?" And lie

said, "I don't know what I am going to do." He
said that.

"Well," I said, "you are really not interested at

all?" And he said, "No, I'm sick. I am not going

to work at all. I have had to take treatments from

my doctor and I am, in general, run dowm. I have

been working too hard for Brewer, and I am run

down. I don't know what I will do. Maybe I will

get something, as I have had some previous selling

experience. '

'
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We continued the convei'sation in general, and

then he reiterated that he would not have any pail

of Paramount or any of its oi'ganization at all; he

was entirely through and said that there was no

reason in the w(»rl(l for him to work for an outfit

that would do things like Brewer or Paramount,

or like Paramount, had done, and so then T said,

''Well, you are not [164] going into business at alH

Then I can't otfer you the pioposition that 1 had

in mind when I came out here," and he said, ''No,

I am not interested at all."

Q. When did you know he was working for

Brewer 1

A. We found that out, well, the third or fourth

day of August, on contacting our accounts, through

men that we had to bring into this area to protect

our business, because we oj^erated on a monthly

service basis, and there is so much business that has

to be done and so many men have to do it, and, as

we understood one fellow, we did not have any or-

ganization and our customers knew we did not have

any organization; in fact, we were supposed to have

been liquidating, which was news to us.

While we were contacting our customers, our men
would run into these service slii3s of Brewer's and,

in some instances, Mr. Rightmire's name appeared,

indicating that he had serviced them.

Q. Did you ever discuss the matter with Mr.

Rightmire again?

A. I never did. I have never seen him since.
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Q. In respect to Mr. Duncan, did you have any

conversation with Mr. Duncan prior to August 1,

1947?

A. Yea, I saw him during the time that I was

here on the 31st.

Q. The 31st of what"?

A. July, 1947. He came down to the warehouse

with Mr. Brewer on one occasion.

Q. When did you learn that Mr. Duncan had

gone with Mr. Brewer? [165]

A. Not until later on, because Mr. Duncan was

supposed to have taken a trip back East or the

Middle West and then come back out here so, if he

was going to work for Mr. Brewer, according to

all I can find out, that made the earliest date around

August 20th, or thereabouts.

Q. Had Mr. Duncan at any time during 1947

indicated to you any dissatisfaction that he had

with the company ? A. He did not, no, sir.

Q. What was the nature of your relationship

with Duncan during 1947 or any other time, prior

to August 1, 1947?

A. Mr. Dmican had always had a good relation-

ship with me, as with all—as I have with all of our

employees.

Q. Was that true of the relationship with the

company ? A. Yes.

Q. Do you know of any time when he had spoken

of Mr. Sibert or any other member of the company

as Mr. Rightmire had spoken of Mr. Sibert?

A. No, sir, I don't.
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Q. How about Mei'riott?

A. I had a conversation with Mr. Marriott Sat-

urday morning. He was working on his car.

Q. What Saturday morning?

A. Of August 1st. He was working on his car

in back of Mr. Brewer's home, and at that time T

talked to him and asked him if he wanted to con-

tinue to work for Paramount Pest Control [166]

Service and he said, "Sure, I will work for anybody

that will give me a job."

I said, "Well, I think we can offer you a good

job," and he said, "Well, I will be there." I said,

"Well, when will you show up?" And he said, "I

think I will have my car finished so I can be on the

job Monday morning."

I said, "That being the case, we will look for you

Monday morning," and he said, "That is okeh by

me. I will be there," and, of course, Monday he

didn't show up.

Q. Had there been any indication on Mr. Mer-

riott's part prior to that time as to whether or not

he was dissatisfied in any manner as a Paramount

Pest Control Service employee?

A. None that I could notice at all.

Q. Did you have any convei*sation with Mrs.

Rosalie Brewer, the wife of Charles P. Brewer?

Mr. Benard: When?
Mr. Rankin: During the month of July.

A. No.

Q. July, 1947?

A. July of 1947 ? I didn't see Mrs. Brewer at all.
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Q. You ultimately ascertained, did you not, that

Mr. Brewer, your agent, and Mr. Duncan, Mr.

Rightmire and Mr. Merriott, who had been your

employees and operators, were all leaving your com-

pany1 A. Yes, sir. [167]

Q. And Mrs. Brewer, who had kept the office,

was leaving with her husband?

A. That is correct.

Q. Was there anybody left in your organization

here in Portland!

A. There was not. We had to transport men

from Washington and California into this area, at

great expense to us, to get them to contact our

customers. We even had to bring supplies and

equipment into the area. I had ordered it ahead

of time because Mr. Brewer, after saying that he

would turn oyqy to me the equipment, as i3er his

franchise agreement, on termination, that he would

turn over to me his supplies and equipment—I left

it at that until I tried to get them on Saturday morn-

ing, August 1st, at which time he refused me entry

into his warehouse and instructed the man, ]\Ir.

Celsi, with whom the lease was signed, not to allow

me to go in there at all, even after he had turned

over the key to me to that warehouse, and said that

I had no business in there, and there was a little

bit of a scene at the time, at which time we stated

to Mr, Celsi—Mr. Fisher and I were there, and Mr.

Brewer and Duncan were there together, and I said,

'*We will abide by Mr. Brewer's request and we
will not touch the warehouse or try to gain entry

to it until he requests it himself."
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Q. How long (lid you stay lici'e at that time?

A. I was here about three weeks.

Q. During that three weeks what were you

doing? [1G8]

A. Cheeking the supplies, trying to lielp oi-ganize

the men that were then sent here and, in some eases,

contacting a few of the customers, former customers.

I foimd out they were former customers; because

of Mr. Brewer's action, they were not our customers

any more. Managed the business in general.

Q. Did you get any inventory from Mr. Brewer

of the articles that had been here in the Paramount

Pest Control Service?

A. Mr. Brewer and I took inventory together.

Q. What happened to that?

A. That was retained in the files.

Q. What did it disclose as to whether or not you

had been delivered all the equipment that you were

to take?

A. Well, when I realized what had happened, as

per good business judgment, I took into considera-

tion that probably 1 did not have all the inventory.

I did not think I had a complete inventory and,

so, I requested to go out to his house with him. At

that time I wont out to the house with him and

we picked up various little items and some chemicals

and some things like that, and he had told me at

that time there was a little piece of spray equipment,

which is foreign to our type of operation, and he

said he had purchased that himself, or he had made

a down payment on it, but he had—or he had bor-
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rowed it—and he had turned it back. I left that

in his possession, as far as that is concerned.

Of course, he refused to turn over any of the

equipment [169] after that time which was in the

warehouse. As a matter of fact, the actual situa-

tion was this, that, after he gave me access to the

warehouse and the office, then, when I tried to get

some equipment out of it is when I ran into trouble

with Mr. Celsi, the owner of the warehouse, and

he would not allow me entrance until Mr. Brewer

had come down, and I did notice, when Mr. Brewer

came down and checked the equipment later, that

there was equipment that was not there that he

had shown on the inventory, indicating that he had

taken it out and was bringing it back, when he

finally agreed to turn it over to us. His excuse

was—it was quite an involved story.

These supplies and equipment, or the equipment

in this particular case, that he had brought back,

which were missing upon my second investigation

of the warehouse, he said was used to spray some

insects that was in Mr. Earl Merriott's home, \)\\t

the complication of that is that Mr. Earl Merriott

was supposed to have been on a hunting trip and

he was still supposed to have been spraying his home
with this equipment.

Q. How about the chemicals ? Do you have any

record of the chemicals, as to whether or not Mr.

Brewer took any of the chemicals'?

A. I wouldn't know, because I did not search

his premises. I didn't think that was my right.
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Q. You don't know wbether or not any other

department of Paramount Pest (Control Service fur-

nished him with any particuhir [170] i>oisons which

were not returned to Paramount later?

A. I didn't get your question, Mr. Rankin.

Q. I had reference to whether you had knowl-

edge that some other departments of Paramount

Pest Control A. Oh.

Q. some other agency had furnished him

with any materials'?

A. Mr. Osborn from Seattle, manager and agent,

had sent him, just previous to this time—I say just

previous to this time ; a matter of a few days—some

Compound 1080 that he had borrowed from Mr.

Brewer at an earlier date.

Q. Do you know what quantity that was ?

A. Yes, he returned him three cans.

Q. Is that 1080 the item Mr. Bushing described

as being very difficult to get? A. Yes, sir.

Q. And being very lethal in its qualities?

A. That is the product, yes.

Q. Three cans. Wliat is the size of those canst

A. They are eight-ounce cans.

Q. How long would three eight-ounce cans last,

ordinarily ?

A. Depends upon how much business a man did

v^ith those three cans. It could last a year.

Q. Do you know whether or not Mr. Brewer was

doing business as a pest control business under any

assumed name? A. Yes. [171]
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Q. WHien did you learn that ?

A. Immediately, on the 3rd or 4th of August.

Q. August 3rd or 4th? A. Yes.

Mr. Rankin: I think aU this matter here is of

record, your Honor. I will expedite it I think by

simply calling the attention of the Court to it.

Exhibit 46 is the assumed business name certifi-

cate, sworn to by Rosalie Brewer before H. K. Phil-

lil3S, Notary Public, acknowledged before H. K.

Phillips, Notary Public, I should say, and recorded

in the records of Multnomah County, Oregon, and

attached to this is the following certificate by Al L.

Brown, Coimty Clerk :
"... do hereby certify that

the above copy of assumed business name certificate

is a correct transcript of the original, as the same

appears of record and on file in my office and in my
custody."

Then there is, as Exhibit 47, a certificate of re-

tirement, reading: "Know All Men by these pres-

ents that Rosalie Brewer, the undersigned who have

(sic) heretofore been conducting the business of

Pest Control mider the assumed name or style of

Brewer's Pest Control and who have (^^ic) hereto-

fore filed a certificate of such assumed name with

the Clerk of the County of Multnomah, State of

Oregon, have (sic) retired from the said business

and no longer have (sic) any interest therein.

"Witness our hands and seals this 27th day of

August, [172] 1947," and signed "Rosalie Brewer."

On that same date, referring to the 27th of Au-
gust, 1947, the following certificate of assmned busi-
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ness name was filed: "Know All Men l>y Tlicse

Pi'csents, that the I'eal and true name and })ostoffice

addresses of the persons condiu'ting, liaving :iii

interest in, or intending to conduct the hu'^iness of

pest control under the name oi* style of Brewer's

Pest Control, at 4929 N. E. 28th Ave., Portland 11,

Oregon, County of Multnomah, State of Oi-egon, are

the following, to wit: Charles P. Brewer, Postoffice

address 4929 N. E. 28th Ave., Portland 11, Ore."

All three of these certificates, two of assumed

name and one of retirement, are duly certified by

the County C lerk as being ceitificates on file in his

office.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Now, Mr. Hilts, you have

stated briefly that you found that Mr. Brewer was

taking over some of the customers of Paramount

Pest Control Service. Tell what you did in regard

to that investigation.

The Court: Lay that aside. I would like to hear

the cross-examination now on what he has already

testified, about.

Mr. Rankin: Yes, your Honor. All right.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard

:

Q. AVhat contact did. you have with Mr. Brewer

at the time you came to Portland? Strike that.

What contact did you have with Mr. Brewer up to

the time you came to Portland in April, 1946? [173]

A. Oh, I had seen him in the office.
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Q. You did not discuss any of the formulas in

any way, anything like that with him, did you ?

A. No, sir.

Q. When you came to Portland in April, 1946,

did anybody else come along! A. No, sir.

Q. You came up to help him set up a set of

books'? A. The books were already here.

Q. What did you come up for?

A. We came up to assist him with the territory

and get him acquainted with the operation of the

area. Mr. Brewer had never been in a position to

know these thmgs.

Q. How long were you here ?

A, Oh, it was a week or ten days.

Q. You had not discussed any of the formulas

of the company with him?

A. Oh, we discussed certain things of operation,

certainly, such as how certain things were being

used, and I assisted him in some questions that he

had asked and also gave him some advise as to what

had been my experience.

Q. In the extermination business ?

A. Right.

Q. What contact did you have witli him after

that, during the year 1946, if any ? [174]

A. I saw him the next time May 5, 1946.

Q. Maybe I can bring it out this way: Wlien

were you informed by anybody that the contract or

franchise was being modified as to the matter of

payment? A. In December, 1946.
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Q. Deeenibor, 194()? A. Yes.

Q. Who infoi'med you as to that?

A. Mr. Sibert.

Q. Did he tell you what he had agreed upon?

A. Did he tell me?

Q. Yes. A. Yes.

Q. Did he tell you the date when he had agreed

upon it?

A. He told mo it was in September, September

12th.

Q. He had never mentioned it to you up to that

time? A. No.

Q. You testified as to some conversation you had

with Brewer January 20, 1947. Did Mr. Brewer

tell you at that time that it was not his understand-

ing that this change in the basis of payment was to

continue after January 1st,

A. No, sir, he did not.

Q. What did he tell you at that time?

A. There was no specific mention of that.

Q. I understood you on direct examination to

say that on [175] January 20th he told you that

there was to bo a rearrangement as to percentages?

A. That was up to December 31st.

Q. When did he send—When, rather, did you

send him this statement? A. March 15, 1947.

Q. Maybe I can make it clearer. Maybe I had

better make it clear. When did you send him the

statement showing the January and February pay-

ments made at that time on the 20-80 ]iorcentage

basis? A. At that time, Mai'ch 15th.
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Q. Didn't you give that to him earlier than

that?

A. Not on January and February, no sir. I had

let him see my rough draft, but I didn't give him

his statement.

Q. You say you let him see your rough draft,

—

where? A. In Portland.

Q. That showed the division of the profit 20-80

under the franchise as written?

A. It covered the franchise due, yes.

Q. On what date did you show him that?

A. March 13, 1947.

Q. What did he say to you?

A. He said, "Well, that is fine," and he made a

payment to me.

Q. Wliat did he say to you about it?

A. Nothing at all. [176]

Q. Well, how did it happen that two days after-

wards you sent him this letter, changing that ar-

rangement and putting this on a different basis?

A. That was of my own free will.

Q. You mean to say you changed it of your own
free will, without any suggestion from Brewer?

A. Absolutely.

Q. And without explaining to him why you were

doing it ?

A. I didn't have to explain it to him. He under-

stood the settlement, as I found out later myself,

about the December 31st settlement, and it was un-

derstood by him. I didn't need to explain it to him.
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Q. As 1 uiulorsaiid it, you claim on March lijth

yon had vendcT'od him a statcmorit for January and

February, made \\\) on the 20-80 per cent hasis?

A. Yes, that is right.

Q. And he made no objection to it?

A. He did not. He made a payment.

Q. And, without any further conversation with

him or suggestion from him, you wrote this letter

of March 15, 1947, after conversing with Mr. Si-

bert? A. Yes.

Q. After conversing with Mr. Sibert?

A. That is rioht.

Q. Did you send him this letter special delivery ?

A. I may have. I don't remember. We often do

that.

Q. Was it because he told you if you w^ere going

on with that old arrangement he was through ?

A. No, not at all.

Q. Where did you address it to him, his home or

the office?

A. I wouldn't rememlier exactly. We addressed

mail both places.

Q. Is it not a fact that you sent that letter spec-

ial delivery to his home?

A. No, it is not not to my knowledge.

Q. Would you say you did not?

A. I don't know whether T did or not. I don't

remember.

Q. You say in here, ''Now, you have paid

$994.25 as franchise for Januarv and Februarv
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wliicli is $482.03 over your January and February

franchise."

In other words, you had made out a statement

and forwarded it to him with this letter showing

January and February on the modified arrange-

ment, hadn't you?

A. No, sir, not on the modified arrangement.

Q. In this March 15th letter?

A. That is a correct statement that I sent the

January and February statement. January and

February was not on the modified arrangement.

Those figures were merely used—the statement I

sent him at that time was as of December 31st.

Q. You say, "For January and February there

is a net profit of $1,016.55 with the franchise out of

it, now you have drawn $512.22 [178] for both

months ; if we take $512.22 like you did that' will be

your franchise for January and February."

That was on a different basis than the one you

had, which you showed him on March 13th, wasn't

it?

A. Yes. It was only set forth in that letter, how-

ever. There was no different accounting as of Jan-

uary and February, 1947, other than the 20-80 per-

centage basis.

Q. Then, you say: *'Ted tried to explain this to

me just before I came up this last time, but I didn't

get it." Who do you mean by "Ted"?
A. Mr. Sibert is referred to as "Ted." He tried

to explain to me the understanding that he had had
with Mr. Brewer back in September, which ran up
to December 31st of 1946, and I didn't understand
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it, Tianioly, operating dollar for dollar, on the dollar-

for-dollar agreement.

Q. Are you through?

A. No. I said, namely, the dollar-for-dollar

agreement.

Q. Then, this paragrapli in here where you say,

*'For January and Fehruary there is a net profit of

$1,016.55 with the franchise out of it, now you have

drawn $512.22 for both months; if we take $512.22

like you did that will be your franchise for January

and February", that was done out of the goodness

of your heart, b}^ you and Mr. Sibert?

A. That is exactly right. Could I have a copy of

the exhibit so I could follow it? [179]

Q. You have the exhibit there.

A. All right.

Q. I am not through referring to it, but if you

want to read it and make any explanation, go ahead.

A. No.

Q. By the way, you spoke of a man named
Taylor who was working here when Brewer got

here or came up here. What was Taylor's arrange-

ment with the company?

A. Spoke of a man by the name of Tavlor?

Q. Yes, who preceded ^Ir. Brewer. I will put it

this way: AVho was working in this territory prior

to the time Mr. Brewer came? A. Mr. Taylor.

Q. What was Mr. Taylor getting?

A. What? I don't understand.

Q. What was his renumeration ? What was he

getting ?
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He was working on a franchise—lie was working

on a branch manager's agreement, the same agree-

ment IMr. Brewer signed and was working on until

July 1, 1946.

Q. In other words, he was getting $250 a month ?

A. No, he was getting $200 a month and he was

getting 20 per cent of the gross profits in the terri-

tory.

Q. Is that the arrangement you gave Mr.

Brewer when he first came up here?

A. Exactly the same.

Q. $200 a month plus 20 per cent of the gross

profits? [180] A. Yes, sir.

Q. That is the arrangement that was made with

Mr. Brewer when he first came here"?

A. Yes, sir. Any men that are drawing over

$200 per month would have been charged to him as

commission at the end or beginning of each month,

and if the territory did not make a profit so that he

would receive anything like that, he still retained

the amounts for the men that would be involved,

and that was his salary. To show you the way we
operate and the amount of fairness of it, we try to

help these fellows; in other words, we don't say, "If

you check out and don't get " We don't make a

demand on him for it, never have.

Q. I understand, then, on March 15th you sug-

gested tliis other arrangement in this letter to Mr.

Brewer because you thought it was more advan-

tageous to him? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. What hax)lH'nod in Juno, June ITtli to 20tli,

tliat caused the arrangement to ])e changed as of

July Isf?

A. We carried everything clear up to the end of

the year, which made it then January and Fehru-

ary, 1947, and up to the end, or Decemher 31st, 1946.

Q. Why did you give him a different arrange-

ment beginning July 1, 1947? Why did you go

back to arrangement as of July Ist?

A. Mr. Brewer's idea. He wanted it.

Q. Although the other arrangement, you

thouglit, was better, he [181] wanted to go back to

the franchise arrangement?

A. Yes. He was better off ultimately. I might

point out here on the basis of the dollar-for-dollar

agreement, as we had understood that, to show you

how much more or, rather, how much Mr. Sil)ert

had believed in Mr. Brewer, Mr, Brewer could have

accumulated a bank account, assets and everything

else and only drawn a very meager amount for the

period of time in wlii'ch the same amount would lie

sent to us and then, if he wanted to—we were tied

wdiere we couldn't in any way come out on top; if

he wanted to, ho would have the whole thing and

pull out.

Q. Under this 20-80 per ceut arrangement you
were to get 20 per cent of the gross business done,

whether collections have been made or not?

A. That is correct.

Q. Any collections that were not made or losses

sustained, why, of course, as to those IMr. Brewer

would have to stand them ?
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A. No, sir, absolutely not. If lie does not make a

collection or a customer cancels out, leaving a bal-

ance owing, owing a balance, we don't take 20 per

cent of that figure; we give it to liim as a credit.

Q. This accounting you made for July, 1947, the

figures you arrived at there are based on the ac-

counts receivable? A. That is right.

Q. In other words, you figured the gross amount

of business done; you took 20 per cent of that and

arrived at the amount [182] which you claim to be

due.

A. On the basis of the gross business. Let's say

that 20 per cent is

Q. Isn't it a fact that in the early part of July,

when Mr. Brewer was informed you people were

insisting that he should operate from July 1, 1947,

on the old franchise basis, that he told you he was

through? A. Absolutely not.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Mr. Hilts A. Yes.

Q. the defendant has challenged this fran-

chise contract on the basis that its operation is un-

fair. You have, on cross-examination, indicated to

the Court that it was better to go back on the fran-

chise than it was for him to proceed on the dollar-

take-home dollar-pay-company basis?

A. Yes.
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Q. I wish you would explain just tlic benefit that

acerned to Mr. Brewer or would have accrued to

him had he seen fit to go on with the agreement that

he had made.

The Court: I have got to get to the main issue

in this ease. I will hear Mr. Brewer tomorrow

morning, so T will ask you to lay that aside. As I

see it, this revolves around the [183] question of

•credibility, whether this contract was canceled or

not. You have one more witness, your man Fisher,

who will testify along the same line?

Mr. Rankin: Your Honor, if I have to select as

between the witnesses, I would rather select another

one. I would like to use Mr. Fisher, too, but I won't

insist.

The Court: Have you another witness*?

Mr. Rankin : Yes, your Honor, I have several

witnesses.

The Court: On this key question of credibility,

whether on June 17th, or whatever it is, this man
said that he was all through.

Mr. Rankin: No. There were three people pres-

ent Brewer, Hilts and Sibert.

The Court: Tomorrow morning, Mr. Bernard,

be prei3ared to put your client on and cover what

has been covered here today.

Mr. Bernard: Very well, your Honor.

(Thereupon, at 5:15 o'clock p.m., an ad-

journment was taken until Wednesday, Janu-

ary 21, 1948.) [184]
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Court reconvened at 10:00 o'clock A.M.

Wednesday, January 21, 1948

CHARLES P. BREWER
one of the defendants herein, produced as a witness

in his own behalf, being first duly sworn, was ex-

amined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bernard

:

Q. Where do you reside, Mr. Brewer?

A. At 4929 N. E. 28th Avenue, Portland, Ore-

gon.

Q. When did you move to Oregon?

A. I moved in April, 1946.

Q. Did you purchase this property with the idea

of being a permanent resident here?

A. I did.

Q. Wliere did you live prior to coming to

Oregon? A. In Oakland, California.

Q. How long did you live there?

A. Three or more years.

Q. Mr. Brewer, in a general way, what was your

occupation and business experience before you be-

came connected with the Paramount Pest Control

Service ?

A. I was a mechanic, automobile and heavy-duty

mechanic.

Q. Will you relate to the Court how you hap-

pened to become associated with the Paramount
Pest Control Service? [185]

A. Well, my wife, Mrs. Brewer, and the lady

that is now Mi's. Sibert were friends. She used to
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live next door to us. Slie had hc^nri t<» woik for the

Paramount Pest Control Service and tlirou<^h her

I was introduced to Mr. Sibert and that is the way
I first got acquainted with Mr. Sibert.

Q. Did you make application to the Paramount

Pest Control Service for employment?

A. Not at the time. T never made application

until after Mr. Sibert had asked me for two or three

months to .2^0 to work for him.

Q. About when was that?

A. Oh, I would say that was some time—T went

to work for him some time around February.

Q. 1946? A. Right.

Q. Did you own your home in Oakland?

A. We did.

Q. Will you tell the Court what you did for the

Paramount Pest Control Service between the time

you went to w^ork for them and the time you came

to Portland, going into whether or not any instruc-

tions were given .you and things of that kind?

A. I went out from the office with Carl Duncan,

who was then their instructor, and I went around

to different accounts, saw how he mixed his bait and

I)ut it out for rats, also mice and cockroaches. I was

on one job with him wlune he sprayed two [186]

beds for bedbugs.

After about a week of that, close to a week, then

I went out selling, by myself, to try and learn what

there was about selling, and then I worked at that

about a week, and then T went out alternately with

one man or another on trouble checks, where they
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were having trouble. I went along with them to see

if I could help out or learn anything.

Q. You said Duncan would go out and mix bait

for rats. How would that be done ?

A. Well, as a general rule, the way of killing

rats at that particular time was to cut apples and

carrots, or vegetables with meat in it, small pieces,

into small pieces, sprinkle on a little poison and go

and put that out in the corners, behind boards or in

places where rats would run.

Q. Was any other information given you as to

how to mix any of these baits?

A. No, there wasn't. I asked Mr. Sibert for in-

formation so I could study up and find out what

chemical I was handling or what I was doing and

Mr. Sibert said I wasn't going to take an examina-

tion in the State of California and I didn't need to

know all that technical knowledge.

Q. There have been introduced in evidence here

certain exhibits which I believe you have examined

outside the courtroom here. A. I have.

Q. Was any information ever given to you as to

any of the [187] formulas that go to make up any

of the products represented by any of these labels?

A. No technical information was ever given me.

They did tell me that on their mouse grain we had

to take birdseed and sprinkle some poison on it and

stir it up.

Q. No. 5-10, ant syrup; was any information

ever given you as to that?
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A. Tlie iiifoi'ination—Ihe only infonnation I

liad on ant syrup was that Paramount was buying

tluMr ant syni]), and that is the only ant syru]) I

ever saw witli Paramount at the time.

Q. So that there will be no question about this,

will you run through these exhibits hastily, not tak-

inij; too much time, Exhibits No. 5-1 to No. 5-24, and

tell any information that was ever given to you by

anybody connected with the Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service as to any of these concoctions? Make it

as rapid as possible.

A. The sprays that I see here is Fly Spray F2,

Bed Bug Spray—I was told to buy those from the

Shell Oil Company and use them. Fungus, I never

saw—never saw any of their products.

Q. Refer to the exhibit number, please.

A. No. 5-6, Insect Powder, that was mixed by

them, and I never had the formula for mixing it.

Moth Crystals, to my knowledge, was bought on

the open market. I never bought any Moth Spray

F2.

Phosphorous Paste, they bought in five-gallon lots

from jobbers. [188]

Rat Kilzum; Mouse Grain—Most of them are

zinc phosphide poisons only that were mixed up as

we went along or mixed them up on the job under a

warehouse, for instance.

This Roach Powder with—I can't even pro-

nounce it, Exhibit 5-17. I don't know anything

about that.
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Sodium fluoride is bought upon the open market.

Exhibit 5-19.

The Sodium Fluoroacetate labels are bought, the

Paramount labels that I have seen on their cans of

1080, which is the common term for Sodium Fluoro-

acetate, which is bought from the Montsanto Chemi-

cal Company in St. Louis, Missouri.

Termite and Fungus Mixture—That is 5-21. So-

dium Fluoroacetate (5-22), and Exhibit 5-21 is an

(envelope I never saw.

Q. Outside of the information that you acquired

from watching Mr. Duncan put out this bait for

rodents, was any information ever given to you

about any of the formulas and processes of Para-

mount Pest Control Service?

A, Not to my knowledge w^as any technical in-

formation given.

Q. Was thei*e any other information, technical

or otherwise, about their formulas'?

A. No, not formulas.

Q. Jumping for a moment to the time that you

went into business for yourself in August, 1946,

have you in the conduct of your business—I mean

August, 1947—used any of these products [189] or

formulas of the Paramount Pest Control Service?

A, No, I have not.

Q. Where have you bought the things that you

have used to carry on your business?

A. I bought them from different drugstores,

from different drug concerns, such as McKesson-
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Robbins; somo articles like mouse traps, and all, T

bought from Chown Hardware, and spots (»r that

kind.

Q. Did you retain, when you went into business

in 1946, any of the formulas or products of Para-

mount Pest Control Service?

A. You mean August 1st, 1947?

Q. Yes. A. I did not.

Q. Coming back now, under what arrangement

did you come to Portland?

A. Under the arrangement of $250 a month

salary.

Q. There has been testimony in the case that, at

some time, in California, you were shown a copy of

one of these franchises. What is the fact as to that?

A. I didn't see a copy of the franchise. I knew

that there was a franchise that they did give to

different men in the territories where the amount of

business would support a franchise.

Q. Did 3^ou have any discussion with anybody

down there about a franchise? [190]

A. Yes, I talked with Mr. Sibert about one. It

was a lengthy conversation and he told me that the

Portland territory was in the red and that he would

send me up here as manager and, when this business

got up to $4,000 to $5,000 a month, it would be

enough to support itself, and then I would have a

franchise.

Q. In the meantime you received what?

A. $250 a month salary.
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Q. What date did you come to Portland?

A. I think I entered the State of Oregon on

about the 8th day of April.

Q. Who came with you?

A. Harold Hilts.

Q. What was done when you came to Portland?

A. Well, we got a room, I believe, at the Roose-

velt Hotel or the Congress Hotel—I stayed in sev-

eral the next few months; I don't remember which

was which. Harold Hilts attended to the business

end of it, as far as I know. In fact

Q. What do you mean, the business end of it?

A. He went out and talked to the former mana-

ger and got the books of the company to pull and

audit or something. I stayed around the hotel. Mr.

Glenn Fisher arrived up here around the 9th or

10th of A|)ril, and they called Mr. Taylor, the for-

mer manager, in for a conference and fired him. Mr.

Fisher did this. Then Mr. Harold Hilts showed me
the books.

Mr. Fisher went back to California immediately

after [191] that; in fact, that day; and Harold

Hilts showed me how the books were handled, what

they looked like, what different books there w^ere,

that evening until eleven o'clock, and the next morn-

ing he showed me again, to the best of his ability,

and the best I could learn, what was going on. Then
he took the plane back that day for San Francisco.

Q. Did that leave anybody here for the Para-

moimt Pest Control Service except yourself?
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A. There was one man, Ray Warmuth, that waM

workinc: for tliem at the lime. It seems )k' was

workini; ])art time. T don't know just what the

arrangement was. I saw him three or four times

durins: the month of April. That ivS all T saw him.

Q. Did they have an office?

A. Not an ofifice; they had a call office where

phone calls could come in, and Hilts had hroui^ht

down the books and typewriter and office parapher-

nalia, all of that, this, that and the other, to the

hotel room and left it there with me.

Q. You started in to operate from the hotel?

A. I was in the hotel until I could find an

office.

Q. When did you find an office?

A. About May 1st.

Q. Did you sign up a lease?

A. No, there was no lease on the office. I was

offered a lease, but I never signed one.

Q. You did sign a lease on the Avarehouse ? [192]

A. I did.

Q. Yesterday counsel asked Mr. Sibert whether

or not you had violated any provisions of the fran-

chise and he said you had taken this lease in your

name. Will you explain that to the Court?

A. The lease was made out to Charles P. Brewer,

doing business as Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. Why did you make it out that way?

A. That was the understanding as to who owned

the business and how it was named, and my insur-

ance has been ordered in that name, and that was
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the name. Our insurance was in the name of Charles

P. Brewer, doing business as Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service.

Q. Who had ordered that insurance?

A. That had been ordered from the Oakland

office, through their agent in Oakland.

Q. That was prior to the time this corporation

had been organized, was it?

A. No, they had been organized at the time, be-

cause my insurance was dated September 1, 1946.

Q. Where were the poisons and things kept

when you first started in ?

A; What I did not have in the hotel, which was

not much, v/as out to Tajdor's home when I arrived

here. They wanted it out of there immediately. We
had to move it to Ray Warmuth's garage. It was

right on the sidev/alk, and had no doors to it, and

the [193] kids were playhig in it and causing trou-

ble, and I tried to find a warehouse for it and I

finally got it into Crosby's Garage until I could find

room in a building where I could locate it, other

than in somebody's personal garage.

Q. You have testified you were to be paid $250

a month until business got to, you say, about $4,000

or $5,000 a month ? A. I was.

Q. At any time, up to the time you severed

your connection, did the business reach that

volume? A. It never did.

Q. What was the vohime of business in the year

from July 1, 1946, to June 30, 1947, in round
figures ?
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A. W(»l], T (loirt know flic dixision of ihe entire

one year, hnt llie thirteen months, the entire time of

the franchise, it hit around $35,000, in round figures.

Q. Did you j)ut any money in llie })ii«iness when

you first started in here?

A. Yes, I opened the bank account at the First

National Bank witli $1,000 of my own personal

money to carry the payi'oll and expenses until it

would get some money into the organization.

Q. When did Mr. Duncan come up?

A. The first time he came up was May, around

May, somewdiere around May 10th.

Q. What did he do while he was here?

A. He trained three days—He was here around

eight to ten [194] days in Oregon, but he trained

Rightmire three days and then he left here on the

Eastern Oregon service run and serviced through

up the Columbia River to the Idaho line and back

through Burns and Bend, Oregon, and back into

Portland.

Q. Then, when did he come later?

A. I believe it was in October or November, the

next time he came up.

Q. What did he do from that time on?

A. He was here with me, training men in the

southern part of the state that I couldn't go down

there and train. He was down there for two weeks

or three weeks. I don't know just the exact time.

He went from there u]) to Washington and he

worked up around Spokane, Washington, for the
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Paramount Pest Control Service for a period of,

I don't know, two weeks to a month or six weeks. I

don't know.

Q. By the way, there were some magazines

marked as exhibits in this case, purporting to be

devoted to insect control and so forth. Those are

not put out by the Paramount Pest Control Service,

are they? A. No, they are not.

Q. Are they ever sold to the public?

A. They are sold to the public.

Q. In dealing with these other people from

whom you buy in your business, can you get data

from them as to insect control and rat control"?

A. Oh, yes. The Zehnmg Chemical Company
will give you any information you want on the

control of any of them insects.

Q. Can you tell the Court, in round figures,

about how many new accounts you procured in the

thirteen months you were wdth Paramount Pest

Control Service?

A. I would say between four and five hundred

accounts.

Q. About how many accounts did they have

when you came here?

A. I would say, not calling Safeway Stores as

all individual ones, I would say somewheres around

100 to 150.

Q. Was there, at any time, any complaint made
to you by anybody connected with Paramount Pest

Control Service as to your conduct of their business

in the State of Oregon?
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A. No. Tlu^y always thought that I was doin^ a

wonderful joh up here, aiul hra^ged on this as bein^

one of the best territories in tlie organization.

Q. How did it happen, Mr. Brewer, that you

transferred from this $250 a niontli to the signing

of this franchise?

A. Mr. Sibert earne uj) here tlie latter ])art of

June, I would say after the 25th, some time, and he

said—he stayed out at our home; that was a com-

mon occurrence between us—and he told me at my
home that he was going to let me have a franchise.

I said I did not want any part of a franchise; the

business is in the red; and I could not support a

franchise, and he said, '*I have got to dump it." He
said, ''I have got to dump the business. We are

incorporating in the State of California the fii'st

day of [196] July, and the State of Oregon is op-

erating in the red, and we cannot incorporate if we

take a portion of our territory operating in the

red. He told me that I would have to take a fran-

chise out, or I was out at that time.

Q. At that time had you bought your home in

Oregon? A. I had bought it in Oregon.

Q. And you had sold your home in Oakland f

A. I had sold my home in Oakland and moved n})

here, all of our furniture up here and

Q. In o]ierating under this franchise, did you

have anything to do with fixing the prices of the

merchandise that you had to buy from the company *

A. None whatever. If we ordered anything from

Paramount, they sent us a bill for it.
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. Q, Did you need an automobile in the transac-

tion of business ? A. I did.

Q. Did you request them to furnish you one?

A. I asked Mr. Sibert about an automobile, if

they could help me out in getting one, and he said it

was my business; if I wanted an automobile I would

have to go and buy it, so I did.

Q. Did you have an automobile of your own'?

A, I had one of my own, personally.

Q. Was that used in the business?

A. It was used by me in the business.

Q. Was anything furnished, in the operation of

this business, [197] by the Paramount Pest Control

Service?

A. Well, if I needed some sodium fluoride, I

would order from them, but if I wanted some 1080

I would write them and tell them to send me some,

which they did, and to bill me for it. They sent me

any office stationery or anything I needed, with a

statement for it, of course, from themselves or from

the printing company.

Q. You say that the gross income for the thirteen

months was $35,000. Can you tell the Court, in

round figures, the expenses of operation, exclusive

of any moneys sent to the Paramount Pest Control

Service on the franchise?

A. It was somewhere around $29,000 to $30,000,

was the expenses.

Q. That would leave a net profit of $5,000?

. A. Approximately, yes.
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Q. If you liarl to pay Paramount Pest Control

Service 20 per cent of $35,000, yon would be $2,000

short? A. I would have been.

Q. When did you first discuss with anybody con-

nected with Paramount Pest Control Service any

chan^i^e in the terms of this franchise?

A. Right during the time, after Thanksgiving

in Novembei', I talked with Mr. Sibert in the Oak-

land office. I told him that the business could not be

operated on a 20 i)er cent gross to them ; that it

would cost me more and everything else, and I would

not operate that way. [198]

He told me that he would try to get it back to

where it w^ould 1^ 50-50 for us, and I said that

would be all right, and he called Harold Hilts into

his office, or Mr. Hilts walked into the office, one or

the other, right at that particular time, and Mr.

Sibert told Hilts that he could make that change,

whereas it would be a 50-50 proposition, even on the

net profits—I don't remember that word ''net prof-

its" used—but it was a 50-50 proposition, and that

they would change it over to that.

Q. Was anything said or discussed as to how

long that would run or whether it would terminate

at any period?

A. Mr. Sibert asked me if I wanted it to nni

until the first (^f the year, for one year, or when,

and I said, "As far as I am concerned, it can nni

from now on, as long as the contract is in force,"

and he said, ''All right. If that is the wav v ,n
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want it," and I said, ''That is the way I want it

and he said, "That is the way it will be."

Q. He said he had some talk with you up here

in September about this thing and had forgotten to

report it to those men until December. Did you

ever discuss it with Mr. Hilts at all ?

A. Not to my knowledge was anything discussed

in September.

Q. When, with reference to that time, was there

any question or discussion with anybody as to this

change in the terms of the franchise?

A. The only time anything was said about it

whatsoever was when Mr. Hilts pulled up an audit

statement from the books—pulled [199] an audit

statement from the books—around September 13th

or 14th and presented it to me.

Q. Everything, as far as you knew, went along

satisfactorily until some time in March?

A. It was.

Q. When did Mr. Hilts see you in March?

A. I don't remember whether it was the 13th or

14th. It was probably the 13th or 14th.

Q. Where v/as it?

A. At the office in Portland here,

Q. Tell the Court what happened here at that

time, at that meeting with Mr. Hilts?

A. Mr. Hilts pulled up a balance sheet or rough

draft of the books and told me that I owed the

Paramomit Pest Control Service $994 for January
and February's operation, and it seemed to me—it

made me so mad I couldn't talk.
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1 turned to my wife and I said, "Make them out

a check." She looked at me as though I was silly

and I said, "Make out the check," and she made it

out quick and I handed it to him.

A few minutes later I got my things and I said,

"I will drive you to the airport," and on the way

to tlie aii'port I told Hilts that I was comi)letely

done with Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. Was that this check for $994.25 ?

A. It is.

Q. Now, this audit that he show'ed you as a basis

for the money [200] they were claiming you owed,

was that audit made on the 50-50 basis, or was it

made on the 20-80 basis ?

A. It was made on the 20 per cent of gross

business done.

Q. Can you turn to Exhibit 29 in that bunch of

exhibits'? That is the letter of March 15th from

Harold Hilts. A. I have it.

Q. Do you have it front of you?

A. Yes. This is the one he sent me.

Q. Can you tell when Harold Hilts left Port-

land?

A. He left here on Friday evening, around four

or five o'clock in the afternoon, rather.

Q. That would be on March 13th?

A. I believe the 13th or 14th. I have no idea

for sure.

Q. I think tlie (calendar will show March 13th. It

was at that time you told him that you were

through? A. It was.
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Q. I think the 14th was Friday. I think the

calendar shows 15th was Saturday. When did you

receive this letter, this letter which is marked Ex-

hibit 29?

A. I received it at nine o'clock in the morning

at my home, airmail special delivery.

Q. Sunday m^orning?

A. Sunday morning.

Q. The third paragraph reads:—The first para-

graph, I should say: ''Enclosed is a statement of

your account for 1946, also [201] January and Feb-

ruary of this year.

"You will note that this splits everything across

the board for 1946 and we both come out with

$1,479.65 and you still have your $1,000 investment

in the business.

"For January and February there is a net profit

of $1,016.55 with the franchise out of it, now you

have drawn $512.22 for both months; if we take

$512.22 like you did that will be your franchise for

January and February."

Did that differ from the audit that he had sprung

on you on the 12th or 13th ?

A. It absolutely does.

Q. Why did you go on then with the business,

after you had told him you were all through?

A. Because he wrote me this letter and explained

in here that they would split across the board, and

that Si])ert had tried to explain it to him just before

he came up here but he didn't understand. That is

what it says here.
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Q. All rij^lit. When was the next discussion you

had with anybody about the way the money was to

be divided between you?

A. I think maybe in April. Mills and I may
have mentioned it some, of course, around the office

there, but there was no great discussion on it at that

time.

Q. When was there any discussion to the point

that there was any difference between you?

A. The first difference as to moneys or anything

was down in [202] Oakland, right at the last, the

controversy of June.

Q. Did you see Mr. Hilts? He said he saw you

between the 17th and 20th of June.

A. Why, I saw him the 17th of June. He and

Mr. Sibert came here but he did not pull an audit

of the books at that time. He had a recaj) of the

business done, the income and expenses. He made

out a blank statement to turn in to the bank and

then he and Mr. Sibert went on to Seattle. I gave

Harold Hilts a key to the office and files so that he

could come into the office and })ull an audit of the

books while I was in California.

Q. In other words, an audit was not made

A. An audit was not made until after I had left

Portland.

Q. You said a bank statement, a financial state-

ment, was ])re]iared for the Bank of California.

Who prepared that?

A. Mr. Hilts ]ire])ared it.
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Q. I am referring now to Exhibit 77. I will ask

you who did the typew^riting ?

A. Mr. Hilts did that.

Q. What—For what purpose was that exhibit

prepared %

A. To present to the bank to establish credit for

me so I could borrovf money from the Bank of

California.

Q. For what purpose?

A. To give to him.

Q. When had anybody requested that you bor-

row money to pay on your indebtedness to them?

A. Mr. Sibert had called me some time the latter

part of April or the first of May from Seattle and

told me that he was in a pinch for money and would

I please go and borrow some money and give to him.

He wrote me a letter from Oakland shortly there-

after, which is in the files at the office, asking me to

go down

Mr. Rankin: Just a moment. The letter is the

best evidence, of course.

A. All right.

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : Never mind. Just a mo-

ment, please. This Exhibit 77 was prepared by Mr.

Hilts? A. It was.

Q. For the purpose you have indicated?

A. Yes.

Mr, Bernard : I offer this in evidence as Defend-

ant's Exhibit No. 77. The defendants' exhibits have

not been offered yet.

The Court: Is that a new document?
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Mr. Bernard: No; it is a pre-trial exhibit.

Mr. Rankin: It was resei-ved—a ininiber was re-

served at the pre-ti'ial for it, hut we have not seen

the exhibits before tliis mornini^. I won't take the

time now, })ut I want to reserve our objections until

later. You want to use it?

Mr. Bernard: I want to use it, yes.

The Cou]-t: Admitted.

(Financial statement of Charles P. Brewer

to [204] the Bank of California thereupon re-

ceived in evidence and marked Defendants' Ex-

hibit No. 77.)

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : I notice this is made

out in the name of Charles P. Brewer and it says,

*'Cash in Bank of California, $75.10." Was that the

bank accoinit that you handled the business through ?

A. That was the bank account, the bank balance

at the end of May.

Q. "Accounts Receivable, $3,624.56." Were

those amounts owing you in your operation for the

Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. That was due and payable on the lx)oks.

Q. ''Real estate and buildings, $5,250." What

real estate and buildings were represented?

A. It would be my home.

Q. "Autos and trucks, $1,836." Does that in-

clude youi- automobile?

A. My personal automobile and Plymouth coujie

that I bought.



284 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of Charles P. Brewer.)

Q. When did you buy your personal automobile ?

A. In October, 1942.

Q. "Other assets, personal furniture, $2,100."

Is that the furniture at your home?

A. That is.

Q. "Accounts Payable, $2,759.63." Is that the

money that you owed Paramount Pest Control

Service? A. That is. [205]

Q. Was that money that they wanted you to

borrow to pay? Was that the account, $2,729.63,

that they wanted you to pay? A. It is.

Q. Did you borrow money from the Bank of

California? A. No, I didn't.

Q. Why not?

A. Because I would not go into debt for the

Paramount Pest Control Service from California.

Ted told me he would never press me for money

unless this office could pay off; until it could pay

off he would not press me for money, and I was not

going to go into debt like Osborn and a lot of other

managers up here had, and go broke because of it.

Q. When they informed you—When were you

informed, rather, that you were going to be required

to go back on the 20-80 basis as of July 1st?

A. Mr. Sibert told me that just prior to July 1st.

Q. Where?

A. I don't remember the exact spot, whether it

was at his home or in his office in Oakland, Cali-

fornia.

Q. What were you told about that?

A. I was told that I was going back on the 20

per cent basis ; that he had worked out on a piece of
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paper a budc^et wherc.'by I could o])erat(^ and make

more tlian $850 a month and the firm $600, and that

would he a [)rofit on a $2r)00-a-month business. I

couldn't see where I could make that much by trav-

eling clear to [206] Boise, Idaho, and below Klam-

ath Falls, Oregon.

Q. What did you tell him?

A. I told him it would not work and that I

would carry the business for the month of July.

Q. Did 3^ou tell him what you would do at the

end of the month of July?

A. I didn't tell him right then what I would

do. I told him I would carry the business for the

month of July.

Q. Did you agree at any time to go back on the

20-80 basis?

A. I never agreed with them. They put me
right back on the 20-80 basis.

Q. After you wrote this letter of resignation,

did Hilts come up here?

A. Yes, he came up here around the first day of

August.

Q. Will you tell what you did with Hilts as to

turning over to him any of the property of the

company that you had been using in the operation of

this business?

A. Mr. Hilts and I went down to the office and

got paper and we started in to take an inventory of

the su})})lies ai'ound the office. We were both writ-

ing down, so we decided to make that simpler, and
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he wrote it down and I would call it off, and we

would check it.

I called off all the supplies and equipment around

the office. Then we went out to the warehouse, went

in there, at Fifteenth and Marshall, and took an in-

ventory of all supplies [207] and equipment there.

I told Hilts that there was a spray trailer and

spray machine at my home, and we would go out

there and get those, and we went out there and he

saw the spray trailer. I told him what it cost and

where it was. The spraying machine I couldn't find.

It was not there, and there was a few little items

—

a little bit of bait or maybe a little sugar or some-

thing like that, that had been laying around. We
gathered that up and I gave it to Hilts, and that

was noted in the inventory.

I told Hilts I would either get them a spray ma-

chine or I would find it, and the spray trailer they

could have had.

Then, the next day, or that evening. Hilts had

gone into the warehouse and taken a spray machine

or something out of the warehouse, and I don't know

whether he had done a job with it or not, but when

I found out about it through the management of

the building I told him they were not allowed in that

office any more until I had a definite statement be-

cause every time I asked, "What kind of a settle-

ment are you going to make with me?" he said,

"You know we will do just what is right by you."

I said, "What kind of a settlement?" And he said.
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*'We will settle like we said we would." and that

is all he would say. I locked up the warehouse

until they would make some kind of a definite state-

ment as to the settlement.

Q. These supplies, equipment and thint^s you

turned bark, had you already been charged for them

by the company? [208] A. I had.

Q. All riirht. Goins: to this settlement that you

wanted to have

A. That was <^n a Saturday, I believe. I believe

it was Saturday afternoon. I am not sure of the

exact time, but Mr. Fisher, Wendy Fisher, and Har-

old Hilts were there at the time. I told Mr. Celsi

that they were not allowed in the buildin? until I

said so. Mr. Celsi told them that he had leased the

bnildinsr to me and when I said they could go in,

they could. I believe it was Saturday afternoon.

They were locked out of there until Monday.

Monday Mr. Sibert came up and he argued back

and forth about foi*ty-five minutes before he defi-

nitely said he would settle with me, pay me any

moneys due and payable to me. and pay mo for my
supplies and equipment.

Q. Did you turn ever^^thing over to him?

A. Turned evtr}i:hing over except the spray

trailer. It was hauled out and parked on the street,

I left it there for them to come and get it any

time they had a place to park it. The one spray

machine—T told them I would bring it down to him.

I didn't have it—it was out; one of the boys had

it: and I got it later, and I didn't take it down to

them.
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Q. Did you make a demand that they have an

audit at tliat time ?

A. I told Mr. Sibert that if these books were

audited by a Portland accounting firm and we set-

tled on that basis, then he [209] could have the

warehouse and the supplies and the rest of it, but

that they could not take these books to California

for an audit down there.

The next morning Mr. Sibert called in Mr. Young,

I believe, of Jones and Young, an accounting firm,

to audit the books and before he could get started

Mr. Sibert said something to him and he got mad.

He called up Sawtelle, Groldrainer & Company, and

they went down and completed an audit of the

books.

Q. That has been known in these proceedings

as the Sawtelle Goldrainer & Comj)any audit?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Exclusive of this $1,000 that you put into

the business, what were your drawings from this

company for the thirteen months that you were with

them ?

A. Other than getting back the thousand dol-

lars that I put in to carry it forward and the ex-

penses that was paid, I drew thirty-two hundred

and a few dollars.

Q. Some testimony was given in this case that

they paid for you to take an airplane trip to Cali-

fornia. Do you recall that?

A. They did not pay for that airplane trip.

It was around the 25th day of June. Mr. Sibert

—
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Mr. Hilts and I had called him. He^ did make a res-

ervation so T conld j;o on the same ])lane Mr.

Sibert went on, hut Checks numbered 398, 399 and

400 show where I drew altogether $200 just a day or

so before I left. I used that to buy my tickets and

met Mr. Sibert at the airport [210] with my daugh-

ter and we got on the jdane and flew to California

and I bought those tickets.

Q. Mr. r3rewer, about when did you decide to

go into business for yourself?

A. It was after the 15th of August and some-

where around, I would say, around the 20th or 25th,

of July, pardon me.

Q. There is an exhibit here showing that your

wife first filed an assumed name certificate and

later you did. Why was it that your wife signed

the first one?

A. I was still working with Paramount and I

was out helping to service calls and continuing to

work for them, and I did not feel like taking the

time to go and do it.

Q. Did you attempt to devote your best efforts

to the Paramount Pest Control business up to the

first of August?

A. I devoted every minute to Paramount u]i to

August 1st.

Q. Mr. Hilts testified that he saw you at the

Roosevelt Hotel July 31st. Do you recall that?

A. I do not recall for sure whether he did or not.
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Q. Well, he said in substance that he asked you

what had happened and you said you could not make

a go of it, and that Eightmire was quitting, wasn't

going to stay in the extermination business, that

you promised to give him Rightmire's address and

never did. Does that call the matter to your atten-

tion? A. There was a meeting of that kind.

Q. Tell what your recollection is of what went

on? [211]

A. I don't remember how I happened to go to

the hotel. I do remember now that he did ask me
for Rightmire's address. I told him I would get it

from the of&ce. I didn't find it at the of&ce and I

didn't call him back. He called me up at my home

and asked me what the address was. I didn't know
the name of the street. I knew where it was but

I didn't know the name of it, nor the address; and

the next day, after the inventory was taken, and

we were out to my home, he asked me where Ray
lived. I told him I didn't know his address but I

knew where it was, and he said, "WiU you draw me
a map so I can find it?" And I said, "Yes," and I

took a piece of paper and drew out a map to show

him where the Safeway Store was on the corner

and showed him the house on the map, where it

was, Ray Rightmire's home.

Q. There is some evidence that shortly before

the 1st day of August there were three cans of this

lOSO returned from Seattle.

A. There were two cans returned to me from

Seattle, because Mr. Osborn had requested two cans
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about a month before that, that he was in need of

some what is known as 1080 in a hurry and would

I shi]) it to him, and I shipped it to him airmail

that day, and in July some time I wrote Mr. Os-

born and told him I wanted the two cans or the

amount that I had paid for them and he sent them

back to me, and when I turned over these supplies

to Paramount there were at least three cans of

1080 on the shelf for them. [212]

Q. Then, from Au^st 1st on. you did not use

any property of any kind or character belonging

to Paramount Pest Control Service in connection

with your own business?

A. I never used that spray, that "Hi-Pog"

nor the trailer.

Q. Or any other of their products?

A. None of their products whatever.

Q. Did you retain in your possession any li«tK

of their customers? A. T did not.

Q. How did it happen that Rightmire and Dun-

can came to work for you, and Merriott, too ?

A. Well, Mr. Rightmire wa^s hired by me after

being interviewed by Mr. Sibert.

Q. I mean, by you after August 1st. How did

you happen to hire Duncan, Rightmire and Merriott

to work for Brewer's Pest Control?

A. I offered Raj' Rightmire a job August 1st

or thereabouts, and he came to work for me. I of-

fered Earl Merriott a job aroimd August 1st and be

came to work for me, and around the 18th or 20th



292 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of Charles P. Brewer.)

or somewhere around there I offered Carl Duncan

a job, as he said he had to work for a living, so he

went to work for me.

Mr. Bernard: I think you may cross-examine.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Referring to the poisons that you described,

from the exhibits that have been admitted in evi-

dence, you say they are all those poisons, common

poisons, you can buy on the open market, anyplace?

A. Most of them are that I know of.

Q. You put quite a limitation on your answer.

How many of them do you know of?

A. These that have Paramount labels on them

I couldn't buy on the market. You can buy a sim-

ilar product but not these labels, but at least the

ingredients, as I read the ingredients here, on the

open market.

Q. When you say "as I read the ingredients,"

do you refer to the active or inert ingredients'?

A, I mean the active.

Q. You know enough about pest control to know
that active ingredients are required, at least by the

laws of Oregon and California, to be placed upon
the can or the container?

A. It is according to whether j^ou are selling or

using. We do not sell. We do not have labels for

tny poisons that we handle because we do not sell

poisons.



vs. Charles P. Brewer, et cU. 293

C^restimoiiy of Cluirlcs I*. J>je\ver.)

Q. Would you answer my qucHtiou, jilease*?

A. Wliat was the question?

(Question read.) [-14]

A, To my knowlodjjje, (hoy are not recjuired in

the State of Oregon to ])e placed on the can unless

it is for sale.

Q. If you manufacture it, even for use in your

own business, labels are required to be placed on

the cans'?

A. To my knowledge, it does not.

Q. Does it in California?

A. I don't know the California law.

Q. Your statement was you could buy on the

open market—I recall this instance—moth crystals.

Can you buy the same poison in moth crystals on

the open market as it is put out by Paramount Pest

Control Service as "Moth Crystals"?

A. I don't know what Paramount puts out. I

know I can buy Paradichlora Benzene Crystals on

the open market.

Q. Do you know any of the formulas under

^vhich Paramount puts out any of these poisons as

they appear on the labels? A. I do not.

Q. So you could not honestly state, then, could

you, that you can buy this same product on .any

common market?

A. T can buy the active ingredients on the com-

mon market.

Q. You mean by that you can buy ingredients

like those that are used and name<l in the Para-

mount labels? A. Yes.
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Q. Now, when did you get the 1080 from Mr.

Osborn in Seattle, Washington?

A. It was some time, I believe, after the 15th

day of July, 1947. [215]

Q. You got two cans?

A. I got two cans, yes.

Q. You claim that they were redelivered to

Paramount? A. They were.

Q. Who received them?

A. Harold Hilts, in the inventory of the equip-

ment in the warehouse at the time.

Q. Who delivered them to him?

A. I did. They were sitting on the shelf and I

called them off to him, and he saw that they were

there.

Q. Have you at any time since July, 1947, used

1080? A. I have.

Q. Where did you get the 1080?

A. I got it from the Monsanto Chemical Com-

pany.

Q. Direct?

A. I got one can from the Fish and Wild Life,

and I ordered my others from Monsanto.

Q. Have you got any communication that will

show you ordered it from this company?
A. I don't have with me.

Q. Have you got any communications anywhere ?

A. I got a letter from Monsanto, yes. I don't

know just what you mean by order. I wrote them

and told them I wanted it and they wrote me back
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iiiatructions just how to get it, and I have a copy of

my insurance made out by the insurance company

to [216] Monsanto for it.

Q. Just answer one question at a time. Have
you in your files anywhere this order to Mo!isanto

for 1080?

A. No, I wouldn't say tliat I have. If I wrote

them a letter to send me some, I didn't keep that

letter in my files.

Q. You don't keep any record of your orders of

poisons as deadly as 1080?

A. I don't need to keep a record of the order.

Q. I didn't ask you whether you needed to or

not. I asked, did you?

A. I wouldn't say for sure. I don't believe I

have.

Q. Have you got any letters or anything of rec-

ord to show whether or not Monsanto Chemical

Company sent you any poison known as 1080?

A. What do you mean, record ?

Q. Don't you know^ what a record is after you

have been through the preparation of this caset I

mean a paper or any statement, typewritten, or

written by hand, that says, from this chemical com-

pany, that *'We are sending you so nnich of the

poison commonly known as 1080?

A. I have no such thing that I know of.

Q. Now, you say you got a can from Wild Life?

A. Yes.



2^6 ParamowYit Pest Control Service

(Testimony of Charles P. Brewer.)
' Q. How did you get that can?

A. I went up and asked them to give me a can

of it. [217]

Q. Where are they located?

A. Their main offices are located in the

Weatherly Building.

Q. Here in Portland? A. In Portland.

Q. When? A. The first day of August.

A. I would not remember his name.

Q. Do you mean to tell this Court you can buy

acanof 1080 from Wild Life? A. lean.

Q. How much did you pay for it ? A. $8.00.

•Q. $8.00 for a can?

A. No, $4.00 for one can. I meant one pound

when I said one can.

Q. You got one pound, now. Your statement is

now that you got one pound of 1080 from Wild

Life? A. I did.

Q. What? A. The first day of August.

Q. What year? A. 1947.

Q. And you paid $4.00 for that can?

A. I paid $8.00 for that pound.

Q. $8.00 for that pound? A. Yes. [218]

Q. Did you put up any bond with them in con-

nection with that purchase of it?

A, With Fish and Wild Life?

Q. Yes. A. No.

Q. They just sold it to you direct?

A. They have done that to several exterminators

in the State of Oregon, including myself.
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Q. Did you jriakc any representation U) tliern

about your use of if?

A. I told tliern I was familiar with the use of it.

Q. And you did that for the purpose of serving

customers of yours who had formerly been cus-

tomers of Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. I did it to get poisons to serve customers of

Brewer's Pest Control.

Q. Who had formerly been customers of Para-^

mount ?

A. Some who had not been. '
'

Q. But some who had been?

A. Some who had and some who hadn't.

Q. Been customers of Paramount Pest Control

Service? A. Right.

Q. You stated that the company was in the red,

I mean, that Paramount Pest Control Sei*vice was

in the red when you came here? [219]

A. That is what I was told.

Q. You do not claim the truth of the matter foir

yourself, then?

A. If it isn't, they lied to me.

Q. Who was it that lied ?

A. Harold Hilts and T. C. Sibert.

Q. Did you make any effort to ascertain if it

was true? *
'•

A. T did not pull an audit of their books to see

if it was true.

Q. Did you make any effort to ascertain the con-

dition of your company? A. Yes.
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Q. For the two months after you came ?

A. I don't understand that.

(Question read.)

A. Yes, it was in very bad condition.

Q. You mentioned Mr. Taylor. Do you know

whether he had a contract or not?

A. I don't know anything about his relationship

with Paramount.

Q. You spoke about Mr. Osborn had gone broke

on his contract.

A, I don't know.

Q. You said that he had gone broke.

A. I said that they got him in debt.

Q. If I recall correctly, you used the word

**' broke."

A Well, I don't know what their relationship

wa8 now, but T. C. Sibert asked me, after I made

the trip to California in November, [220] to go to

Seattle and see about it, that Osborn was taken back

off his franchise and put on a $250 a month drawing

account, because he was over in debt, and Mr.

Sibert asked me to go up there, which I did.

Q. You went up there? A. I did.

Q. Did you make a success of Mr. Osborn 's

business ?

A. I didn't make any success of anything up
there.

Q. Nor here either, did you ? A. Yes.

Q. Is Mr. Osborn still with the company?
A. To the best of my knowledge, he is.
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Q. You said, ] })elieve, on your direct examina-

tion you liad made no list of the customers that you

had formerly served when acting as agent for the

Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. I made no list from there, to take away from

there.

Q. As a matter of fact, y<m took the books home,

didn't you? A. I didn't.

Q. You took them home and made a list from

them, both as to the accoimt and as to the nam<^ of

the patron? A. I did not.

Q. Where did you get the list that you compiled

in your answer, when you identified 141 former

customers of Paramount taken over by yourself?

A. What do you mean by list or listing? T took

them from a list [221] that I made up from our

books. Brewer's Pest Control.

Q. How did you know, then, that they were for-

mer patrons of Paramount Pest Control, unless you

had some record? A. By memory.

Q. You remember 141 accounts of Paramount

Pest Control Service?

A. What do you mean, remembered 141 ?

Q. I am just using that word. What did you

mean by remembering?

A. You are asking me about the list that I made

that you called for in the notice to produce ?

Q. Yes.

A. Is that the one you are i-eferring to?
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Q. Yes.

A. I took those from Brewer's Pest Control

books.

Q. How did you know they were also patrons

of Paramount Pest Control Service *?

A. Because we had been servicing them, accord-

ing to my memory, over eighteen months period of

time. If a name is called, I can at least remember

the name.

Q. Will you now name the 141 former patrons

of Paramount Pest Control Service?

': A. If you wiU put the 141 names in front of me
where I can see them, I can.

Q. You cannot remember them without you have

aid from your own records ?

A. I can't remember 141 names here at the pres-

ent moment, unless [222] you put a list of people in

front of me. Then I can call off those that we had

serviced as Paramount.

Q. You had your own records when you did call

off these names'?

A. I didn't have to have my records. If I re-

member a name, I can

Q. Then, the reason that you remember, if you

do remember, that you had 141 names is because

your business is comprised almost entirely of those

patrons that you had served under the Paramount
Pest Control Service?

A, No. A big per cent of our customers had

never heard of Paramount Pest Control Service.



vs. Charles P. Brewer, et al. 301

(Testimony of Charles P. Brewer.)

Q. Wliat per cent?

A. I didn't figure the percentage.

Q. Do yoii mean to tell the Court that you do not

know what percentage of your business was fronrj

these Paramount Pest Control peoj)le, and what

percentage was not?

A. I don't know the })erc'entag(' of what wa«

formerly Paramount and what was not. T was hot

interested in percentages. . .. /

Q. Would you say that a majority of your cus-

tomers were also customers of Paramount ? .
•

, :

A. A majority of them.

Q. What would that amount to, between /80 and

85 per cent? A. I w^ould say no to that. 1.

Q. Referring to the franchise, it is your position

that the franchise w^ent on as it was written ^ntil

Thanksgiving in the [223] following November?

A. It did.

Q. Nobody made any change in it during that

period of time? A. None whatsoever.

Q. When did you first see the franchise, the

form of franchise agreement?

A. Some time after the 25th of June, 1946, when

Mr. Sibert took a franchise or a copy of some fran-

chise that they had, to copy off one so that they

could have it for me to sign.

Q. Did you read it then ?

A. I read it, yes.

Q. You signed it when? How much later?

A. It was signed effective July 1st. I wouldn't

know the exact date, somewhere between three and

four days before that.
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Q. Was it signed by Mr. Fisher at the time that

you signed it? A. No, it wasn't.

Q. Did you see anything which was unfair in

your contract at the time you read and subsequently

signed it?

A. I saw everything unfair about it.

Q. Why did you sign it ?

A. I was out of a job if I did not sign it, and

I was in a strange town.

Q. Your position is that you claim you were

forced to sign that? A. Practically, yes.

Q. Under duress? [224] A. Practically.

Q. Why didn't you plead you were under duress,

if you were?

A. I did. He told me I would either sign it or

else I was out of a job.

Q. Why didn't you plead it in your complaint

here, your answer rather?

. A. As far as I know, I did.

Q. Of course, you know you did not.

Mr. Bernard : I don 't think counsel should argue

with the witness. I object to it.

The Court: Go ahead.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : When did you first con-

sider that this contract was no longer an agreement

that you had to live up to ?

A. I first considered it as of no value whatever

to me, or them, around July 25th somewhere, some-

where around there.

Q. What year? A. 1947.
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Q. On July 25, 1947, that is about the date you

sent in your resignation?

A. That is the date I sent in—around that date

that I sent in this letter confirming my resignation.

Q. At that time you had come definitely to the

conclusion that the contract was not one that was

binding on you or Paramount ?

A. I considered it not worth the paper it was

written on.

Q. Did you so consider it in Febiniary or March

of 1947? [225]

A. I did, at the time Harold Hilts told me I was

going to have to pay 20 per cent.

Q. All right. Which time did you consider the

contract of no validity, in February" or March of

1947, or in July, 1947 ?

A. For about two days in March I considered it

no good imtil I got that letter, explaining it, and

then I considered it absolutely no good in July.

Q. For two days in March, 1947, you thought the

contract was all right?

A. I thought their word was all right.

Q. How about the contract?

A. Their word modified the contract.

Q. Did you make any })ayments under this con-

tract ? A. Wliich contract?

Q. The one we will call the franchise.

A. I made three or four pa\'ments on it.

Q. The first one was when ?

A. Around—I don't know the exact date, but

somewhere around March 6th, I believe.
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Q. Didn't you make your first payment Febru-

ary 6th *? A. Maybe that was the date.

Q. That check is in evidence. That shows $338

and $250 being allocated to the franchise.

A. It does.

Q. Did Mr. Hilts ask you for that? [226]

A. He did not.

Q. You paid it voluntarily ? A. I did.

Q. And when you paid the $250 and put on it

''for franchise," you referred to what?

A. To the franchise.

Q. To the franchise?

A. To the franchise payment I would have to

make to Paramount.

Q. That is, on the 20-per cent basis?

A. It was on the franchise, on the franchise pay-

ment, on a 50-50 basis.

Q. A 50-50 basis?

A. It had already been modified in November.

Q. It is your position that that modification con-

tinued to operate after December 31st ?

A. It was my notion that it did.

Q. Did you make another payment labeling it

"franchise"? A. I did.

Q. That was the 6th of March, 1947?

A. I believe it was.

Q. That was the sole payment of $250 which you

applied on the franchise?

A. That is right.

Q. Then you made a third payment on March
13, 1947? A. I did. [227]
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Q. And tliat was for the odd figui-c of $494.25?

A. What is that?

Q. That was for $494.25. M1iat made the total

payment $994.25? A. It did.

Q. You designated it "on franchise"?

A. I designated it that was all on franchise.

Q. Can you reconcile any sum of money that

you considered to be due on a 50-50 operatoi's basis

with the sum that you paid ?

A. No, or I would have never given him the $494

check and told them I was done.

Q. But you did give them the check?

A. I did.

Q. You want this Court to now understand that

when you gave them that check you knew it was

money that you did not owe?

A. I gave them the check, as far as I was con-

cerned—you say for money that I didn't even owe

to them? Yes, I do.

Mr. Bernard : Objected to, your Honor.

The Court: Sustained.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : What was your reason

for terminating the agency agreement or franchise

of July 1st when yon wrote 3^our letter of July 24,

1947?

A. I don't understand that.

(Question read.)

A. Will you clarify that a little bit?

Q. Why did you terminate your franchise agree-

ment? [228]
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A. Why did I terminate my franchise agree-

ment?

Q. I have asked you three time^, Mr. Brewer.

A. I am trying to understand the question.

Q. Yes. I think it is very simple. Why did you

terminate your franchise agreement of July 1, 1946 ?

A. Because I figured their word was no longer

good, nor would they live up to it.

Q. What word do you refer to ?

A. To the modification of the contract.

Q. In what particular?

A. On the 50-50 basis.

Q. That is, Paragraph 5 of the contract which

calls for the 80-20 basis they had told you, under

your theory, would be divided on a 50-50 basis?

A. They did.

Q. And, when they didn't live up to that, that

is the reason you canceled your contract?

A. That is entirely the reason.

Q. What do you mean, entirely?

A. There was no other reason.

Q. That modification, as you term it, occurred

in November, 1946? A. It did.

Q. Just what was that modification?

A. That modification was to break off from the

20 per cent because the business would not cover it,

and it would be split [229]

Q. What was the modification, not its effect, but

what was the modification ?

A. That they would split with me the net profit,

if any, 50-50.
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Q. Did Mr. Hibort talk to you anything about

takinij^ money home? A. Not especially.

Q. Did he say that when you took any money

home, if you remitted the same amount to him you

could go on, using the balance in the establishment

of your business? A. Not in those words.

Q. Did he say that in substance?

A. He said if I got a dollar he would get a

dollar.

Q. Was any provision made in the agreement

that you describe for building up the business?

A. Yes.

Q. What was to be devoted to building up the

business ?

A. If you are speaking of the Eastern Oregon

run

Q. No, I am speaking of the business generally.

A. I was to use the money that I started the

business on and what I could glean out of it as we

built the business up.

Q. What you could what?

A. (xlean out of the i)i'ofits.

Q. How much could you glean out? How much

could you devote to building the business up, your-

self?

A. Well, everything that I could get out of it.

Q. You were going to take all the money you

could ii:et out of [230] the business, excej^t what you

took home, and then the additional amount that you

were to pay Paramount, is that it?
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A. I don't understand it. Repeat that, please.

Q. You say that you were going to pour back

into this business whatever you did not need for

yourself and Paramount? Is that right?

A. That is right.

Q. So that if you took a dollar home, then you

were going to give Paramount an equal amount of

money, and the balance you were going to use in

the establishment of your agency. Is that correct?

A. I don't understand just what you mean in

this respect. 50 per cent of the net profits was to

be split, yes.

Q. Then, your answer to my question is ''No,"

is it?

A, That is what I am afraid of. I was trying

to understand.

Q. You need not be afraid.

A. I want to understand it before I say so.

Q. So, your answer is ''No"?

A. All right.

Q. When you sent in your letter of July 24,

1947, your letter of termination, why didn't you
give the 90 days called for in the contract?

A. Because I knew if I gave them that 90 days,

they would move in here with a dozen men and take

over possession of everything in sight, and I would
be left sitting here broke. [231]

Q. You knew of that provision in the contract?

A. I did.

Q. You i)urposely avoided it for the reason you
have just stated? A. Yes.
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Q. In reference to the June accounting of 1947,

do yon ]*eca11 whether or not Mr. Hilts and Mr.

Sibert talked o\er this whole matter with you at

that time?

A. They never j)ulled an accounting.

Q. Did you see them on June 17th 1

A. They never pulled an accounting on June

17th.

Q. Well, to make this very short: Did you hear

Mr. Sibert and Mr. Hilts testify about what hap-

pened on June 17th'? A. I did.

Q. What they have said is not correct?

A. Right.

Q. When was that accounting had, then?

A. It was some time after the 25th day of June.

Excuse me. Hilts came back from Spokane, got into

the office with keys that I had left, got his rough

draft or w^hatever he pulled, took it to California

and called Mr. Sibert 's home at nine o'clock at

night. I never did see that paper.

Q. You never saw what paper ?

A. The final draft.

Q. Did you ever see any statement of the busi-

ness done to [232] June 30, 1947? A. I did.

Q. Where was that?

A. That was in the office, here in Portland,

aromid July 9th or 10th.

Q. Did you go over the figures then with Hilts?

A. No, not com])letely. I glanced at them and

did not approve of them.
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Q. You made a payment ?

A. I made a payment.

Q. Why did you make a payment if you did not

approve of it ?

A. Because Mr. Hilts told me they were very

much in need of money, and he would like to take

some money home and couldn't I give him a check to

take back.

Q. So you gave it to him out of charity towards

the corporation *? A. No charity.

Q. Why did 3^ou pay it if you did not owe it?

A. Because I was still in debt a certain amount

of money to Paramoiuit and any money that I gave

him was to apply on that debt.

Q. Referring to Exhibit No. 36, can you turn to

it there ? A. I have it.

Q. Is that ink endorsement there of a payment

of $259.61 your endorsement?

A. It is. [233]

Q. You gave Mr. Hilts a check

A. for that amount. I did.

Q. for that amount? A. Yes.

Q. That was $256.61, wasn't it?

A. Check No. 413, $259.61, it says here.

Q. $259.61? A. Yes.

Q. Now, you testified on direct examination, I

believe, that you determined to go into business for

yourself on the 15t.h day of August. You meant
July, did you not?

A. I believe I said somewhere around the 20th

or 25th of July.



vs. Cha/rles P. Brewer, et al. 311

(Testimony of C.liai'Ics I*. Hicwcr.)

Q. That Ls July? A. Yes.

Q. Who owned this business fronn August 1,

1947, to Auj^nist 27, 1947?

A. The assumed name was in my wife's name,

but we owned it.

Q. I didn't ask you that question.

A. We owned it.

Q. ''We?" A. My wife and I.

Q. Did your wife understand that she owned it?

A. She certainly did.

Q. Did you understand that you had an owner-

ship in it, too? A. I did. [234]

Q. Why did she make the record that she was

the sole owner of it?

A. An assumed name blank, that is filled out re-

gardless of whatever business you go into; you have

to file an assumed name certificate.

Q. That docs not answer my question. When
you had a part-ownership in it, why did you have

your wife sign that she had the ownership alone?

A. I was busy working. I didn't want to take

the time off and go through all the red tape that

there may he connected with it.

Q. Yon know that record was false?

A. It was not false.

Q. You had an ownership in it, you say?

A. I could have an ownership in it. There is

a community property law in the State of Oiegon.

Q. You did have an ownership in it, you say?

A. I did.
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Q. ^Yhy didn't you file it?

A. Whatever is hers is half mine, isn't if?

Q. Why didn't you make a recording to that

effect?

A. The assumed name did not call for that.

Q. The blank calls for it. Look at it. "True

Names * * * of the persons conducting, having an

interest in." It calls for the names of all parties

who are interested in the business.

A. My daughter is interested in it. [235]

Q. How old is she?

A. She is fourteen.

Q. Why didn't you put her on the assumed

name certificate?

A. Because we did not consider it necessary.

Q. It was not done, I take it, for the reason

that you did not want Paramount to know that you

were going into a competitive busmess ?

A. They would have known I was going in with

her name or mine or both.

Q. You mean by that, even if she did file the

certificate by herself, they would know you would

be back of it?

A. They would know or anybody else would

know that it was our business.

Q. As a matter of fact, Mr. Brewer, you in-

tended to go into this business long before the 25th

or anywhere near the latter part of July, didn't

you? A. I didn't.



vs. Charles P. Brewer, ct al. 313

(M'estinioiiy oi' (yliai'lcs I*. Bi-c\vci-.j

Q. You iutcruled to take over the busincHS of

Paramount Pest Control Service because you were

the only person that the customers of Paramount

knew ? A. That is not so.

Q. Consequently, you j)laced your order for

business cards with your printer as early as the

first part of July, 1947, didn't you?

A. If that is on the statement, I can't help it.

I don't remember [236] any dates.

Q. Do you recall that as early as July 7, 1947,

you placed Order No. 8564 with Allard J. Conger,

doing business as Conger Printing Company, on

the East Side, for 1500 business cards, in the name

of Brewer's Pest Control?

A. I don't remember dates.

Q. You don't remember what?

A. I remember that I ordered cards from him

some time, any time up to and including now, from

Conger's. T don't remember any dates.

Q. What were those cards? What did they say?

A. Just said "Brewer's Pest Control" with the

representative's name on it, if they are business

cards you are speaking of.

Q. Did yon not, on the same date, July 7. 1947,

enter Order 8561 for service orders?

A. I don't know.

Q. Will you say you didn't?

A. I said I didn't know.

Q. Don't you know what you did I You have tes-

tified about other details here.
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A. You are asking me for dates. I don't know

dates.

Q. I am asking you if you put in service orders

to

A. I put in service orders, yes.

Q. You put in an order, I mean, to this very

printer for service order forms, didn't you? [237]

A. I did.

Q. Did you not, on July 7, 1947, or before the

date of your termination of this agreement, put in

Order 8522 to Allard J. Conger for receipts'?

A. I don't know.

Q. Why don't you?

A. Because I don't know what date I put it in.

Q. I said on any date before your termination?

A. I put in an order. I don't know the date.

Q. Was it before your letter of resignation?

A. I don't remember.

Q. You say you don't remember? You did not

—

Would you say you did not ?

A. I wouldn't say,

Q. Did you, on or about July 7, 1947, or at any

time prior to your letter of resignation, place with

Allard J. Conger Order No. 8503 for a large number

of service slips? A. I don't know.

Q. Were not all of these orders put in long be-

fore your payment of July 9, 1947, of the $259.61 ?

A. I don't know.

Q. At the time you put in these orders or made
that payment, did you tell any member of the Para-
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mount Pest Control Service that you were jjrepar-

ing to take over this business yourself?

A. I did not. [238]

Q. Why not?

A. I was not prepai'ing to take over any busi-

ness.

Q. What were you doing with these orders 1?

A. If I had placed the orders, it would have been

going into l)usiness.

Q. And if you had placed the orders and if you

were intending to go into business, why wouldn't

you tell Paramount Pest Control Service, if you

were honest about it ?

A. Would it concern Paramount if I went into

business? '

'

Q. Wliy, definitely. ":

A. I had told both Hilts and Sibert I would go

ahead during the month of July, carry it during

the month of July.

Q. Carry what?

A. Carry the business during the month of

July.

Q. We will come back to that in a moment. But

why didn't you tell them you were preparing to

go into business for yourself ? You knew you were "?

A. T told Hilts I would not get out of the j)est

control service when I told him that I was through

w^ith Paramount, end of July.

Q. Did you not want, by these foiTns that you

were getting out, these business cards, service or-
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ders, receipts and slips, want the customers of Para-

mount Pest Control Sei-vice to think this was iden-

tically the same service that was going on except

with the change of name ?

A. I dicbi't want them to think anything had

about anybody. [239]

Q. That is not my question.

A. I didn't understand your question.

Q. I think you did.

(Question read.)

A. No, I didn't.

Q. But did you not hand to this printer the forms

of Paramoimt Pest Control Service, with correc-

tions on the Paramount forms to conform to your

new proposed business ?

A. Yes, I probably did.

Q. You know you did, don't you?

A. All right, I did.

Q. Why didn't you say so?

A. Because I didn't understand just about your

dates there.

Q. Didn't you order them in the early part of

July, 1947, for the purpose of having them on hand

when your resignation became effective on August

1, 1947?

A. I don't know the exact date that I ordered

them.

Q. Didn't you order them to have them on hand

so you could take over this business?

A. I did have them on hand.
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Q. Now, tlien, can you give the Court a very

mucli better idea of when you determined to take

over this business?

Mr. Bernard: Object to tliat, your Honor—if

the Court please. He is assuming a state of facts

the witness has not testified to. [240]

The Court : He may answer.

(Question read.)

A. Well, I can't give the date.

Q. Give the circumstances.

A. I told Hilts around July 9th or 10th, when

he filled out this statement that he presented to

me

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : I am not asking you

what you told Hilts. I am asking you for your

mental process when you determined to take over

this business.

A. I don't know. I am trying to tell you when
I more or less started to make up my mind. I don 't

know the exact time.

Q. When did you make up your mind?

A. I don't know the exact date, but it was made

up completely by the 20th to 25th.

Q. Were you incurring the expense of all these

orders without having made up your mind that

you were going to take over this business?

A. If they were placed by that time, then, I

was taking on the bills for it personally.
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Q. Then if they were placed as early as July

7th, how long before that would you say you made

up your mind?

A. Possibly I could have done so when I told

Sibert I was through after the end of July.

Q. Through where?

A. Through with the company. [241]

Q. You told you were going on through during

July?

A. I told him I would run it during the month

of July.

Q. Yes. When did you and your wife discuss

the matter of terminating your agency ?

A. I don't remember the date; some time in

July.

Q. It was not until July that you and your

wife discussed it? A. Nothing definite, no.

Q. When was it first suggested between you and

Mrs. Brewer that you terminate your agency?

A. When I told Sibert I would stay with it dur-

ing the month of July.

Q. Wasn't it previously discussed with her?

A. No.

Q. Will you please answer my question? It will

save a lot of tune. When did you and your wife

first discuss the termination of this agency ?

A. After I had told Sibert that I would carry on

the business during July.

Q. What date was that?

A, It was some time around the end of June,

after the first day of July, in his home in Oakland.



vs. Charles P. Brewer, et cU. 319

(^I'cstiinoiiy of Chai'les J*. Brewer.)

Q. When did you discuss vvitli Mr. Duncan that

you were ^^oing to take over this businc^ss*?

A. You keep referring to taking over the busi-

ness. I didn't take over the business. [242]

Q. What did you do?

A. I went into business for myself.

Q. Isn't that just another vv^ay of saying you

would take over all of Paramount 's business you

could get? A. No.

Mr. Bernard : Object to the question. It is argu-

mentative.

The Court : He may answer.

A. There is lots of new business st-arted up in

the State of Oregon, and I went after that. We
didn't take over anybody's business.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Do you know whether ot

not you are under obligation not to solicit*?

A. I don't know about anything concerning that.

Q. You were aware of the provision in your

franchise that you were not to solicit customers of

Paramount? A. I was.

Q. Did it mean anything to you?

A. Not after they would not keep their word

with me.

Q. When did you discuss going into business for

yourself with Rightmire?

A. I told him I was going into business some

time around the first of August.

Q. When did you tell him you were going int<">

business?

A. Some time around the first of August.
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Q. And lie did not know prior to that, prior to

the first of [243] August, that you were going into

business for yourself 1

A. As far as I knew, he didn't.

Q. Then you would be the only one that would

tell him, or would your wifef

A. I would have told him.

Q. You did not take it up with Rightmire until

August 1st, is that right?

A. I don't know just the exact date.

Q. You have been pretty definite in all other

things.

A. I know the last week of July he was on vaca-

tioh. I didn't see him the last week of July.

Q. That may be, but didn't you talk it over

earlier in July, before he ever went on his vacation ?

A. I don't remember.

Q. And as important a matter as your breaking

your franchise and going into business for yourself

does not leave an impression on you as to when you

told Rightmire you were going into business?

A. It does not.

Q. When did you discuss with Merriott the fact

that you were going into business for yourself 1

A. I think it was around the first of August.

Q. So, while you placed all these orders for

Brewer's Pest Control, you did not lay any grounds

for the servicing that you were going to require with

any employees that you subsequently had until Au-
gust 1st, 1947? [244]
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A. I would have done all my own service work

if I hadn't had any employees.

Q. I say, yon did not make any arrangement

until August 1st, 1947?

A. No definite arrangement.

Q. Did you make any indefinite ones?

A. I don't know. There may have been a word

said, but there was nothing deliberately specified.

Q. Sort of a general understanding?

A. No, I wouldn't say that.

Q. Was "Brewer's Pest Control" in the tele-

phone book,—Was its number in the telephone book

when you left the services of Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service? A. No.

Q. How would all the customers that you had

previously served in the name of Paramoimt know

where to find Brew^er's Pest Control?

A. They would have had to call Brewer's Pest

Control.

Q. Individually? A. Right.

Q. Did you tell those customers to call you at

your home number?

A. I only talked to a very few customers.

Q. Answer the question.

A. What customers?

Q. Paramount 's customers.

A. I never told Paramount 's customers to call

me at any time. [245]

Q. Did you ever let them know the number on

these 1500 business cards that you were having

printed to put out? A. T did.

Mr. Rankin: No further cross-examination.
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Redirect Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. I want to ask you one or two questions. Did

you order any cards, forms or anything prior to the

time you had been notified that on the first of July

you would have to go back on the 20-80 basis'?

A. I did not.

Mr. Bernard : I think that is all.

Mr. Rankin: That is all, your Honor.

(Witness excused.)

The Court: I am sorry to have to make a little

explanation about my own circumstances. I imag-

me it won't be satisfactory to you gentlemen. Mr.

Lyon is here from Los Angeles. I have to hear him

8ome time today, as well as opposing counsel in a

patent case. Then tomorrow I cannot hear you at

all, due to an emergency matter that has arisen in

the court. I can resume this case on Friday and con-

tinue over to Saturday, if that is necessary.

Mr. Bernard: That will be quite satisfactory to

me. In fact, for reasons of my own, I was going to

have to ask the Court [246] not to run too late this

afternoon anyway.

The Court: Mr. Rankin, may we have your con-

curi'ence in resuming this matter on Friday?

Mr. Rankin: I know how busy this Court is.

While, as the Court correctly prophesied, it is not

satisfactory, it will have to be done because I know
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the compulsion that the work of this Court is under.

If your Honoi- will just designate when to report,

that will he satisfactory.

The Court: Wc; will resume Friday morning

and, if necessary, run Saturday as well.

(Thereupon, an adjournment was taken until

10:00 o'clock a.m. Friday, January 23, 1948.)

Court reconvened at 10:00 o'clock a.m., Friday,

January 23, 1948, pursuant to adjournment.

ALLARD J. CONGER
was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Your name is Allard J. Conger?

A. Yes.

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Conger?

A. 2030 Southeast Harrison, Portland.

Q. What is your business?

A. Printing and lithographing, sir.

Q. How long have you been so engaged?

A. Since 1918.

Q. Do you know ^Ir. Brewer?

A. Just as a casual customer, yes.

Q. When did you first know^ him?

A. I believe—Oh, I think it was the beginning

of 1947, as far as I can recall.

Q. Did you over do any printing for him?

A. Yes, sir.
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; Q. What did you do ?

A. Oh, various small forms, cards and stationery.

, Q. Have you any record of those jobs'?

A. We always keep a complete record of all

work done.

Q. I would like to hand you, Mr. Conger, cer-

tain exhibits in this case known as 64, 65, 66, 67, 68,

69, 70, 71, 72, 73, 74 and 75, and ask you if you can

identify any of those exhibits and your having any-

thing to do with themf

A. Yes. Those are all checks that cleared

through our bookkeeping department and the work

here, I believe, was all produced in our plant.

Q. When was that done?

A. Well, it was during 1947.

Q. Can you give the Court a more specific date ?

A. I will have to refer to our records here in

order to do that. Succeeding dates, July 7th

Q. Did he place an order with you on July 7th ?

A. That is the date the order was placed.

Q. What order was placed on July 7th?

A. Service orders, 2,000 service orders.

Q. What were those? Can you identify among
the list of exhibits the one you classify as a service

order ?

A. Yes, sir. It is this form here, and so states on

the heading, "Service Order."

Q. Can you refer to an exhibit number? There

is a stamp on it in the lower right-hand corner, I

believe. A. Exhibit No. 70. [249]
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Q. Exhibit No. TO? A. Yes.

Q, IMiere were two thousand of those"?

A. Yes.

Q. What was the next order?

A. The next was another order on July 7th, i-e-

ceipts in dn plicate.

Q. Do you find among those exhibits a eopyof a

receipt that you printed? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What exhibit number is that?

A. Exhibit No. 67.

Q. Exhibit No. 67? A. Yes.

Q. How many of those receipts did you print? •\

A. 2,000 sets, in dux)licate.

Q. What was the next order? ;

A. The next order was also July 7th was 5,000

service slips. • V.

Q. 5,000 service slips. Do you find any exliibit

number there covering service slips of that:chal*-

acter that you printed ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What exhibit number is it?

A. Exhibit No. 68.

Q. Exhibit No. 68? A. Yes. [250]

Q. What other order, if any, did you receive

from Mr. Brewer?

A. There is quite a few hero on succeeding dates.

July 7th, 2,000 statements; July 11th, I should say.

Q. Were there any more on July 7th ?

A. No, that is all entered on July 7th.

Q. I direct your attention to Order 8564 for

1,500 business cards. What was the date of that

order? A. That was Julv 7th.
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Q. July 7tli? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How many of those business cards did you

print? Is that the correct number, 1,500'?

A. 1,500, sir.

Q. Do you find any exhibit number for a busi-

ness card among those exhibits that were handed to

you? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is the exhibit number of that?

A. No. 69.

Q. 69? A. Yes.

Q. When did you deliver the wares or goods

made under these July 7th orders?

A. They were delivered at different dates.

Q. When was the first date of delivery ?

A. The fii'^t date of delivery was July 14th on

the 1,500 cards. [251]

Q. Those were the business cards represented by

Exhibit 69? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Were all of those products delivered at vari-

ous times thereafter?

A. Yes, sir, various dates.

Q. Did you render him a statement for them?
• A. They were rendered, yes, later in the month.

Q. But you did render statements?

A. Yes.

Q, And were they paid?

A, Very ])romptly paid, yes.

Q. And the checks that are in evidence there are

the checks you received in payment for the printing

service that you have described, is that correct?

A. Yes, that is correct.
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Q. How did you get the forms from wliicli to do

that printing that you have described?

A. They were furnished by Mr. Brewer.

Q. Have you those forms?

A. I may have some of them.

Q. Will you produr-e all you have, ])lease?

A. There (indicating) is a copy of the business

card, service order and receipt. That is all I have

with me.

Q. May I see them? A. Yes. [252]

Q. Mr. Conger, I would like to hand you the

card of the Paramoimt Pest Control Service with

Charles Brewer, as manager, and ask you if that

is a form that you refer to as having used from

which to draw Mr. Brewer's busines cards?

A. Not necessarily. That was a copy of their

card. I believe that was brought along more for

style. The pencil written copy here, I believe is

the one that was followed, instead of the type.

Q. But he offered it to you at the time for the

style of the card? A. That is right.

Mr. Rardvin : AVe wish to offer that in evidence.

The Court: Take everything over to Mr. Ber-

nard. You have not seen these things, have you ?

Mr. Bernard : No, we have not, your Honor.

Mr. Rankin : I had not seen them before, either.

Q. I hand you what purports to be a coj^y of a

service order for Paramount Pest Control Service

witli ''Paramount" and ''Service'' and other mat-

ters stricken out nnd "Brewer's "
1 don't

know what that is. "Brewer's" is written over it.
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I will ask you if that material was given to you

—

if that is the material that was given to you, as you

describe, for the purpose of drawing Mr. Brewer's

contract form.

A. Yes. This particular form was used as copy,

with the changes indicated. [253]

Mr. Eankin : We offer that in evidence.

Q. If I understand your testimony correctly,

you said you had also drawn a large number of re-

ceipts, and I hand you this receipt, originally of

the Paramount Pest Control Service, with "Para-

mount" and "Service" stricken out and "Brewer's

Statewide" Pest Control or "Brewer's Statewide"

written over it, and ask you if this is the form

from which you made Mr. Brewer's receipts'?

A. Yes, sir, that is the case. That is the copy

that was used.

Mr. Rankin: We offer that in evidence.

Q. Have you had any talk with Mr. or Mrs.

Brewer since the first of the week?

A. He was in the office, I believe, yesterday.

Q. Did he see you? A. Yes.

Q. What did he want?

A. He wanted to confirm the date of the pur-

chase order of these items.

Q. Did you confirm it with him?
A. I did.

Q. Was there any other conversation?

A. I believe not.

Mr. Rankin: That is all. You may cross-

examine. [254]
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Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. When did you say Mr. Brewer was in?

A. Yesterday.

The Court: Do you liave any o}),i('('tion to them?

Mr. Bernaid: No, I have not, your Honor. I

have no objection.

The Court: They are all admitted. Do you

want to give them exhibit numbers before Mr. Ber-

nard cross-examines?

(Copy for business cards furnished Conger

Printing Company thereupon received in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 78.)

(Copy furnished Conger Printing Company

for service order thereupon received in evi-

dence and marked Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 79.)

(Copy furnished Conger Printing Company

for receipt thereupon received in evidence and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 80.)

Mr. Rankin: The service order is here; the

receipt is here ; the business card is here, but I do

not find th6 service slip. We had it here and he

described it as 5,000. Where has it gone? Have

you got it over there?

Mr. Bernard: No, we haven't got it. [255]

A. I believe it is in this bunch. I don't believe

I gave you a copy of the service slip. I do not

have that one here.
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Mr. Rankin: You do not have a copy of that?

A. No, I just have the three. The three was all

I brought in.

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : Would you examine

Plantiff's Exhibit No. 79 and tell whose handwrit-

ing that is up at the top ?

A. I believe that is my office manager's hand-

\vriting.

Q. As a matter of fact, you did not take this

order at all, did you? One of your employees did?

A. I believe that is correct.

Q. That order was put in on what date?

A. July 7th.

Q. Then the order placed on July 7th was placed

with one of your employees?

A. I believe that is right.

Mr. Bernard : That is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin

:

Q. You then printed these slips in accordance

with the order, did you ? A. That is right.

Q. And Mr. Brewer received them?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. He made no objection to them? [256]

A. No, sir.

Q. And the only direction you had was that

which you have indicated as to how those orders

were to be compiled? A. That is right.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer sign your order book in any

way?
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A. We keep a record of receipts in llie office.

I haven't those available here.

Mr. Rankin: That is all. rliist a moment. For

your information, after this is all ove?- and tin?

Court has finished with them, T will be glad, on

your request, to have these returned to you for

your files, if possible.

A. Thank you. It is not too important if they

are not returned.

The Court: That is all. Step down.

(Witness excused.) [257]

G. H. HANSEN
was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Give your name to the Court, please.

A. G. H. Hansen.

Q. Is that P. H.? A. G. H.

Q. Where do you reside?

A. In Portland.

Q. What is your o<*cupation ?

A. I am District Agent for the U. S. Fish and

Wild Life Service.

Q. How long have you been such?

A. I have been in Oregon since September, 1945.

Q. Were you in that ser\4ce prior to that date?

A. I have been in that service since 1931.
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Q. Do you know Charles P. Brewer?

A. No, I don't. I don't recall ever having met

him.

Q. Do you have anything to do with a common

poison known as 1080? A. Yes, we have.

Q. I should not say '^ common." It is not. Do

you have anything to do with a poison commonly

known as 1080?

A. Our field men, as well as myself, after being

authorized [258] by our central office, are permitted

to use it under certain circumstances, under proper

regulations within the State of Oregon.

Q. Are you the head of the department here?

A. I am the head of that department that uses

that material.

Q. Is it a common poison on the market?

A. No, sir, it is not.

Q. How do you buy it?

A. We requisition it, on approval from the cen-

tral office, from our Pocatello supply depot.

Q. There is testimony in this case, given by Mr.

Brewer here, that in July of 1947 he went to the

Fish and Wild Life Department in the Weatherly

Building and purchased one pound of a poison

knov/n as 1080, for which he paid $8.00.

Do you find any record of such a purchase?

A. We are not permitted to sell 1080.

Q. Well I would like to get an answer to that

question. Do you find any record of his having

made a purchase?

A. No, there is no record in our office.
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Q. You say you are not permitted to sell 1080?

A. That is correct.

Q. Will you explain to the Coui't why?

A. 1080 is deiinitely a hazardous poison to han-

dle. The research people don't know too much
about it yet. So far as we know, there is no anti-

dote and it is not supposed to be available [209]

to the general public until more is known about

this poison as it is used.

Q. Are there means by which established con-

cerns can purchase that poison?

A. I understand that established persons can

purchase it direct from the company that manu-

factures it.

Q. You were previously advised by us, were you

not, that Mr. Brewer had claimed to make this

purchase from your department in the Weatherly

Building? A. Yes.

Q. What department is that in the Weatherly

Building?

A. The Fish and Wild Life Service office in the

Weatherly Building is our regional office, and they

handle all fiscal matters that pertain to the six or

seven western states in the Northwest.

Q. Do they have 1080 on hand to purchase

there?

A. They don't handle 1080 in the Weatherly

Building.

Q. Did you make inquii-y of the office to ascer-

tain whether that is corret^t or not?

A. I called them last night and they have no

records of ever having it over there.



334 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of G. H. Hansen.)

Q. Suppose an application had been made at

the Weatherly Building for the purchase of 1080,

what would have happened to that application?

A. That would have been referred to our office

over here in [260] the Pioneer Post Office Building.

Mr. Rankin : That is all.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Barnard:

Q. Was your office formerly in the Weatherly

Building?

A. Our office was formerly in the Weatherly

Building.

Q, When did you move ?

A. It will be two years this April.

Q. How many employees are there over there

in the Weatherly Building?

A. We have at the present time two office girls

and Mr. Boomhower who is in charge of law en-

forcement, and Al Moore who is with the research

division.

Q. What men were over there in July, 1947?

A. The same men that I have just named.

Q. Those are all of the men that were over there

in July? A. That is correct.

Q. Is there a man by the name of McDonald

over there? A. McDonald?

Q. Yes.

Q. There is a McDonald in the Weatherly Build-

ing, not in our office.
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Q. I meant to ask you about tlic pcrs'^incl over

there in the Weathcrly Building. What men were

there in July, 1947, in the Weatherly Building'?

A. I don't know all the employees in the Weath-

erly Building.

Q. Al)out how many men are employed over

there?

A. Most of them are bookkeepers. There are,

I think, four or five regional inspectors and the re-

gional director and the assistant regional director.

Q. There was a man by the name of McDonald

over there? A. Yes. He is still there.

Q. What is his position there in that office?

A. He is in charge of Federal refuges in this

region.

Q. What do you people use this 1080 for?

A. We use it on rat control work and predatory

animal control work.

Q. You do not sell any of it? A. No.

Q. Or aie not supposed to sell any of it?

A. We don't sell any, no.

Q. Did you ever get any of it over there?

A. No.

Q. This 1080, in what shape does it come to

your office?

A. The packages that we have received are half-

pound containers with the manufacturer's label on

them.

Q. What manufacturer?

A. The Monsanto Chemical Company.
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Q. I am not going to take this out of the sack,

but look at that can and that sack and tell if that

is the kind of cans [262] this comes in to your de-

partment ?

A. Yes, the kind of cans which the manufac-

turer shipped it in.

Q. And the can—the kind that come to your

office? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Bernard: Do you want to look at if?

Mr. Rankin: Will it hurt me if I look at it?

A. No, sir, it won't hurt you.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. This can says, "Don't breathe dust or get

on skin." That is true, is it? A. Yes.

Q. Use rubber gloves?

A. That is recommended, yes.

Q. And that is the Monsanto Chemical Com-

pany? A. The Monsanto Chemical Company.

Q. It has marked on it "Fatal Poison" with the

skull and crossbones and "Fatal Poison" all in red.

A. Yes.

Q. Is Mr. McDonald, to your knowledge, per-

mitted to sell 1080?

A. No, to my knowledge he is not.

Q. Would you know if he were permitted to

sell it?

A. Yes, I would be advised if he was permitted

to handle it or sell it. [263]
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Q. PTavo you ever })('en advised lliat McOoiiald

has any right to sell 1080? A. No, sir.

Q. There is one question I should have asked

you on direct examination and, with the Court's

permission, I would like to ask it now.

Did Mr. Brewer come into your office in the last

few days, to your department?

A. The young ladies in the office report Mr.

Brewer was in yesterday, day before yesterday.

Q. For what purpose? A. To obtain

Mr. Bernard: That would be hearsay.

Mr. Rankin: He is in charge of the office.

The Court: Answer the question.

A. To obtain some 1080.

Mr. Rankin: Did he get it?

A. No, he didn't get it.

Mr. Rankin : That is all.

Recross Examination

By Mr. Bernard

:

Q. Can you toll me the name of any of the other

men over there in that office?

A. In the Weatherly Building?

Q. Yes. [264]

A. Well, T don't think I would be permitted

to, under tho regulations of the Department. I

don't think T would bo. \ don't think T should

answer that.

Q. Can you toll mo about how many of them

there are over there?
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A. There are four or five regional inspectors;

there is the administrative office; there is the re-

gional directors and the assistant regional director

and some clerical help.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Mr. Rankin : That is all.

(Witness excused.) [265]

C. W. FISHER

was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows :

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Your name is what? A. C. W. Fisher.

Q. Where do you live, Mr. Fisher?

A. 2400 Tenth Street, Berkeley, California.

Q. What is your business?

A. Pest control.

Q. By whom are you now employed?

A. By the Sully-Van Corporation.

Q. Were you ever employed by Paramount Pest

Control Service? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You were in the employ, were you, of the

Paramount Pest Control Service in July, 1947?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you at that time see the defendant,

Charles P. Brewer? A. I did.

Q. Where did you see him?
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A. Saw ln?n at the Paramount Pest Control

office, 519 Northwest Park in the evening, around

5:00 p.m., July 30, 1947.

Q. Did you see him anywhere else that evening?

A. Yes. [266]

Q. Where'?

A. We had diimer and spent the entire eve-

ning together, Mr. and Mrs. Brewer and myself.

Q. Whereabouts *?

A. First, we drove from the office out t^^ his

home here in Portland, on 28th Avenue, I believe

it is, and, on our arrival there, Mrs. Brewer and

Mr. Ray Rightmire were in the kitclien visiting,

and Mr. Brewer was very happy to see Mr. Right-

mire there because he had just returned from a

few days' vacation.

Q. I should ask you, Mr. Fisher: Are you any

relation to any of the officers of the Paramount

Pest Control Service? A. Yes, sir, I am.

Q. What relation, and to what member?

A. A brother to G. H. Fisher, one of the own-

ers of the Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. Did you, on this evening that you describe

in July, w^lien you met Mr. and AIis. Brewer and

Mr. Rightmire, have any discussion with those

gentlemen and that lady? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did that discussion relate to why Mr. Brewer

was leaving Paramount? A. It did.

Q. Will you begin at the beginning and briefly,

but fully, as fully as necessary, tell what was said
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in relation to Paramount and their leaving Para-

mount? [267]

A. The first discussion—Mr. Rightmire stated

that he was glad he had taken a vacation because

if he hadn't taken it then he would not have had

it as a member of the Paramount Pest Control

Service, and there was a little discussion at that

time. Mr. Rightmire left, and Mr. and Mrs. Brewer

and I returned to the Roosevelt Hotel, where I

was staying, and we had dinner at the Roosevelt

and, immediately after dinner, we retired to my
fcoom there.

Q. How long was it discussed with Mr. Right-

mire in the Brewer home ?

A. Just a few minutes, ten or fifteen minutes,

possibly.

Q. Do you know what he was saying there?

A. He was telling of his vacation trip that he

had just returned from.

Q. Whom was he telling that to?

A. Mrs. Brewer, when we arrived, and he told

Mr. and Mrs. Brewer and myself about it.

Q. After you had finished your dinner, where

did you go, you and Mr. and Mrs. Brewer ?

A, We went to my room in the Roosevelt Hotel.

Q. About what time did you go to your room?

A. Some time between 9 and 10 o'clock.

Q. How long did they remain discussing the

matter with you in your room at the Roosevelt

Hotel at this time?

A. Until after midnight. [268]
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Q. Did they tell yon they were heaving Para-

jnoiint? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did they give yon ;iiiy reason wliy?

A. They did.

Q. Conld yon ])riefly give what they said re-

garding leaving Paramonnt?

A. They said that the Paramonnt organization,

and partienlarly Mr. Siheit, had not lived np to

his promises to them and that they were leaving

the oi'ganization and, within the eyes of Para-

mount, they would be the worst so-and-so's in the

world as of August 1st because they were not only

leaving the organization and going into a compieti-

tive business, but they were also taking all the

Paramount employees with them into their busi-

ness.

Q. Did you ever see Mrs. Brewer in the office

of the company? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What was she doing there?

A. Done the office work, bookkeeping and an-

swering the telephone and so forth.

Q. Did she engage in this conversation you are

describing? A. She did.

Q. Did you know who were in the employ of

Paramount at the time they said they were taking

the employees with them? A. Yes.

Q. Who were they? [269]

A. Mr. Carl Duncan and Mr. "Raymond Right-

mire and Mr. Merriott.

Q. Do you know whether or not, from any sub-

sequent knowledge that you had, they did go with

Mr. Brewer? A. Y"es, sir.
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Q. What else, if anything, was said regarding

their leaving? May I strike that, please?

You said they were taking the employees with

them. Was an}i;hing else said about the date on

which they would leave Paramount? A. Yes.

Q. What was that?

A. 'They said they were and they had been col-

lecting all the money that was on the books that

they could possibly collect and that if, on August

1st, there was more than a dollar or two in Para-

mount's account they would be very lucky.

Q. Who would be very lucky?

: A. Paramount Pest Control Service.

: Q. Do you know how much was in the Para-

mount Pest Control account? A. No, sir.

Q. Was there anything else said about Para-

mount Pest Control conditions after they would

leave? A. No, sir, not that I recall.

Q. Why did they select August 1st as that time?

Mr. Bernard: Objected to as calling for a con-

clusion [270] of the witness.

. The Court : Answer.

A Will you repeat the question?

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Why was August 1st

mentioned? You say "after August 1st." Do you

know why August 1st was mentioned?

A. May I explain it in this manner?

Q. If you wish.

A. My arrival here was purely coincidental. I

had been traveling throughout the State of Wash-
ington and had just arrived in Oregon, establishing
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distributors Cor Sully- Van. Mr. Sibort and Mr.

Fisher own most of llic stock in that f'X)rporation.

At that time I was workini^ in that capadty and,

wlien T arrived here on July 30th, Mr. Brewer

asked me how lon^ it had been sinee I left the

Oakland office, and I told him approximately twrt

and a half weeks, so he said, "You don't know the

news, then."

I told him I didn't and lie said he liad sent a

letter of resignation, previous to the date of my
arrival, to the Oakland office, which would take

effect on Au^ist 1st, 1947.

Q. And that is the reason August 1st was men-

tioned? A. Yes.

Q. Was anything said about the condition Para-

mount would be in after the bank account had been

reduced and the employees taken away, as to their

rehabilitation'? AVhat was said on that score? [271]

A. It was said that Paramount would be in no

position to take care of their accounts for some

months to come.
• Q. Who said that?

A. Mr. Brewer, because they would not have

any equipment or stock, noi' w^ould they have any

ex])erienced personnel in this area and, not being

familiar with the accounts and not having the

equipment that our former employees had, it would

be a few months before we would ever be abl6 to

regain our status, at rhat particular time.

Q. Was anything said about where they were

establishing their office ? A. Yes.
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Q. Where was that?

A. In the home, here in Portland.

Q. What did they say about that?

A. Well, about all there was—they would have

—

they would establish their business in their home

temporarily.

Q. You mentioned something about equipment.

What did they say about equipment?

A. Well, that they intended to keep the equip-

ment and chemicals until they had been paid for

that equipment, and that the usual procedure with

Paramount would be that Paramount would take

some time to do that, and they were going to keep

it until they had received their money that was due

for that equipment and chemicals. [272]

Q. Did they tell you the amount they claimed

to be due from Paramount to them?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did they say whether or not they had tried

to ^t it and had been denied ?

A. Repeat the question.

Q. Did they say anything about whether they*

had tried to get their money and it had been

denied them? A. No, sir.

Q. Do you know of Mr. Hilts coming in, any-

where in this conversation?

A. Not this conversation, no.

Q. When did you first see Mr. Hilts?

A. Around 4:30 of July 31st in the hotel ; he had
registered in at that time.
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Q. That was the next day? A. Yo8.

Q. Woi'c yon iu'escnt when Mr. 1 lilts i\m\ Mr.

Brewer met? A. I was.

Q. Wliat was said in Mr. Brewer's presence 1

A. Mr. Brewer was in the lobby arid he called

my room. A few minutes before that Mr. Hilts

had called me, having jnst registered, and, as soon

as Mr. Brewer arrived in my room, I tele})honed

Mr. Hilts' room and asked him to join uh because

Mr. Brewer had arrived. [278]

Q. What was said in his presence, Mr. Fisher*

A. Mr. Hilts, upon entering the room, walked

over to Charlie and shook hands and said that this

was a bombshell in their organization and particu-

larly in the home office in Oakland^ his resignation

as of August 1st, and they and no one else could

understand the reason for his attitude.

Q. What did Mr. Brewer say?

A. Mr. Brewer said that he supported and

financed Paramount, or the Oregon territory, as

long as he possibly could and he was getting out

now for self-preservation.

Q. Was anything said in Mr. Hilts' presence

about wlio might be going with Mr. Brewer in this

new undertaking of his? A. No, sir.

Q. What did you do after that with respect to

the equipment, if anything?

A. The following morning, August, Mr. Hilts

and I went to the office and, upon arrival in the

office, vx-e found some canceling letters and com-

plaints, cancellation letters.
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Q. Whom were those cancellation letters from,

do you recall"?

A. One in particular that I recall was the Hud-

son-Duncan Company account.

Q. Here in Portland, Oregon'?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Oo ahead, please, with your statement of

what you did.

A. Another complaint that I recall was the Zel-

lerbach Paper [274] Company here.

While we were there, Mr. Hilts instructed Mr.

Celsi—I believe that is the man's name in charge

of the warehouse—to not permit any of the former

employees into the office or into the warehouse

without his consent because we had taken over

from Mr. Brewer and he was no longer with the

Paramount Pest Control Sei-vice and, upon this

remark, Mr. Celsi said he couldn't restrain any of

Mr. Brewer's men or Mr. Brewer from the ware-

house because he had made the lease and had paid

the rent.

There was some question, so Mr. Hilts instructed

this gentleman to advise Mr. Brewer to come down
to the warehouse, and that we would be back

shortly after this complaint call, because that mat-

ter must be settled.

So, at approximately 2:00 o'clock in the after-

noon Mr. Brewer and Mr. Duncan met Mr. Hilts

and I in the warehouse and at that meeting Mr.

Brewer instructed Mr. Celsi not to permit us into

the storeroom imtil he personally had given consent
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for us to do so, so, to alleviate tlie responsibility

placed on this man who more or less did not ki»ow

just what to do, we told him we did not want acftess

to the warehouse or any of the stuff in the ware-

house until the entire matter had been settled.

Q. How lon^ did you remain at Portland, Ore-

gon, at this time? A. About thirty days.

Q. What were you instrueted to do, if anything*

A. Primarily I took care of cancellations of

contracts.

Q. You were the first man to engage in an effort

to understand these cancellations?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. How long were you here as the only nrian

doing that ? •;..

A. Mr. Hilts arrived the next day.

Q. Did Mr. Hilts work >vith you in trying 16

retain the company business?

A. In several cases, yes; not entirely.

Q. Who had the greatest mmiber of calls to

make in that regard, you or Mr. Hilts?

A. Myself.

Q. How long were you here without any further

assistance except that of Mr. Hilts, in the capacity

you have described?

A. Until Monday in the afternoon.

Q. What would be the date, approximately!

How many days, approximately, was that?

A. I would say it was August 4th.

Q. Who came then? A. Mr. Sibert.
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Q. Did Ml'. Sibert make any calls on any of

these customers'?

A. Not to my knowledge.

Q. Did you, at any time subsequent to that,

make any calls on any other customers of Para-

mount Pest Control Service in an effort to retain

the Paramount business? [276]

A. Yes, sir.

: Q. Who?
A. Mr. Elfers and I went to the Albers Milling

Company.

Q. Anybody else?

A. Mr. Elfers, Mr. Hilts and myself were the

only three; we worked together.

Q. Will you describe to the Court whether or

not there were many cancellations coming in fol-

lowing August 1, 1947, and what you did with re-

spect to those cancellations that did come in?

A. Well, I couldn't keep up with them. The

first account I called on was on Friday or Satur-

day, I guess, on August 1st—whatever the 1st of

August was. I am a little confused there. On Au-

gust 1st I called, immediately after finding the let-

ter of cancellation, on the Hudson-Duncan people.

It was sent by Mr. Lacey, so I called on that ac-

count and talked to Mr. Lacey. It is the general

practice of our company, when we have a cancella-

tion, to determine the reason for the cancellation,

and I had found that they had given the account

to Brev/er's Pest Control. That was before noon
on August 1st.
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q. August 1st? A. Yes.

Q. Go ahead and describe in a geneial way—not

t(;o long or too much in detail—about what yon

generally did in connection with cancellations that

came in, and what your investigation showed. [277]

A. I called on between twenty-five and thirty vw,-

counts, and tlic direct result in every instance-^it

resulted in better than eighty cancellations because

in those twenty-five or thii*ty calls there were srich'

accounts as the Safeway organization and other

companies which had a number of stores that werfe

under contract for service with our company.

Q. To summarize, what were your findings' as

to the cause of the cancellations'?

A. The same type of service with the same serv-

icemen, knowing the accounts that had been with

Paramount, was to continue and take care of them,

and they would receive the very fine service that

they had had as the Paramount Company, but it

would be in the name of Brewer's Pest Control in-

stead of Paramount.

Q. I hand you, Mr. Fisher, Exhibits 54 and 55

that relate to the list of customers and ask you if

these lists rei)resent any of the customers that you

had had any dealings with? You have seen them

before, haven't you? A. Yes.

Q. This list of customers? A. Yes, sir.

Q. At that time, did you call any of these ihai

are cancelled here ? A. T did.
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Q. Without going into the detail of picking

them out, what you describe as to their termination

applies to those that you called upon'?

A. The Dairy Co-op cancelled.

Q. Yes ; but I say what you describe in general,

does that apply to all of these'?

A. Yes, in every case.

Q. There are some letters in there that seem

to bear the initials, "CWF" or ''C. W. Fisher.'^

Have you looked through and determined whether

those are your letters in reply to the cancellations'?

A. Yes.

Q. What was your effort, and how did you go

about endeavoring to hold this business 1

A. Well, I would like to relate one specific in-

stance, and that is more or less general.

Q. Yes.

A. Albers Milling Company, which had been an

account of ours for several months—I called on

them the morning of August 4th; it was Monday

morning, with Mr. Elfers. On August 1st the ac-

count had been serviced by Brewer's Pest Control,

and Mr. Flanagan showed me the service slip of

Brewer's Pest Control signed by their servicemen

—it was either Mr. Merriott or Mr. Rightmire, I

am positive about that—that they had been serviced

on August 1st.

So we inquired of Mr. Flanagan why Brewer's

Pest [279] Control serviceman serviced the account

v/hen we had a contract with them and he said he
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didn't—he was not there when the servic<' was ren-

dered and tJiat somehody else had signed the slip,

and that he would find out at the time of the next

call why they were servicing the account because,

as far as he was concerned, he was under contract

with Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. Did you find any other accounts that were

served by Brewer on August 1st, 2nd or 3rd, or

immediately after the 1st of August?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Do you have any idea how many of those

accounts there were that were serviced immediately

after August Ist?

A. Eveiyone I had called on, practically.

Q. Did Mr. Brewer make any appearance at

the Paramount Pest Control office at this time?

A. On two or three occasions he was in to see

Mr. Hilts with reference to a settlement.

Q. You were not present when those discus-

sions were had? A. No, sir.

Mr. Rankin: You may cross-examine.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. At this time in July when you came to Port-

land, July 30th, you were employed then by Para-

mount Pest Control Service? [280] A. No.

Q. Whom were you working for then?

A. Sully-Van Corporation.

Q. You went to work for Paramount about Au-

gust 1st? A. On July 30th, T went to work.
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Q. As I understand it, out at the house that

night you found Mr. Eightmire talking to Mrs.

Brewer and he said he was hicky he had got his

vacation, or something of the kind?

A. He said he took his vacation at that time

because, if he hadn't, he would not have had it as

an employee of Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. Then you went over to the hotel, you and

Mrs. Brewer and Mr. Brewer, and had dinner, and

then went up to your room?

A. That is correct.

Q. Did you know up to that time that Brewer

was leaving Paramount? A. Yes, sir.

Q. He advised you that he had resigned, was

leaving, saying that Mr. Sibert had not lived up

to his contracts with him ? A. That is correct.

Q. Did there seem to be some feeling on Mr.

Brewer's part? A. Very definitely.

Q. When, if you know, did Paramount Pest

Control Service get control of the warehouse con-

cerning which you have spoken?

A. I don't understand your question. [281]

Q. When did Paramount Pest Control Service

procure possession of the warehouse, concerning

which you have testified? Do you know that?

A. On Tuesday morning; I think it is August
5th. Mr. Sibert had met Mr. Brewer in the hotel

the night before and Mr. Brewer consented to give

us the keys to the warehouse the following morning.
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Q. Yon testified that prioj* to tluit tinu* Mr.

Brewer Jiad been in several times for a settlement?

A. Not prior to that time.

Q. Prior to Angust 5th ?

A. Not prior to that time.

Q. Afterwards? A. Yes, sii*.

Q. Do yon know anything abont the negotia-

tions back and forth that led to the surrender of

the warehouse by Mr. Brew^er on the 5th?

A. Only that meeting in Mr. Sibert's room at

the Roosevelt. He confirmed he would give him

access to it tlie following morning.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

(Witness excused.) [282]

DeGREY S. BROOKS
was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Your name is DeGrey S. Brooks?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Where do you live?

A. 5728 Northeast Fifteenth Avenue, Portland.

Q. How long have you lived there?

A. About two months.

Q. By whom are you employed?

A. Paramount Pest Control Service.
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Q. Where did you live prior to the time of

living here at that addre«ss in Portland?

A. Spokane, Washington.

Q. What business were you in in Spokane,

Spokane, Washington ?

A. I was manager of the Spokane office.

Q. Of what company?

A. Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. How long, over all, have you been connected

with the Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. About two years.

Q. When you came to Portland, Oregon, to take

over the service of the company here, where were

you living at that time? [283]

A. I was living at the Roosevelt Hotel.

Q. Prior to living here, where were you living?

A. Spokane.

Q. You were engaged in that work at Spokane?

A. Yes.

Q. How did you happen to come to Portland?

A. I came here the 2nd of August on a vacation

with my family.

Q. When were you directed to take over the

Portland office, as you describe?

A. I took over the Portland office about the 1st

of September, I would say, although I arrived here

on the 11th of August.

Q. You arrived here on the 11th of August?

A. The 11th of August and was put directly in

charge of the office on or about the 1st of Sep-

tember.
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Q. You were here about the Ist of August?

A. Yes.

(^. Hut tliat was on your vacation?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you meet Mr. Brewer or anyone con-

nected with Mr. Brewer or any of these defendants

on August 1st, on the 1st of August or thei-eabouts?

A. On the 2nd of August I met Mr. Brewer at

the Roosevelt Hotel.

Q. What happened there at that time? I wish

you would just [284] state what occurred.

A. I had just arrived in town with my family

on vacation and was in the hotel about a half hour

when the telephone rang in my room. I answered

it, and it was Mr. Duncan, calling from Mr. Brew-

er's room.

Q. Is that Mr. Carl Duncan?

A. Mr. Carl Duncan, yes.

Q. One of the defendants in this case?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Go ahead.

A. Mr. Dimcan—I had asked Mr. Brewer to re-

serve a room for me, because that is how they hap-

pened to know I was coming out here, so they

asked me if I would not come up and spend the

evening. I didn't want to, but I agreed to later

on and, after a little while, I went over to their

room.

Q. What time did \on go to their room?

A. I would say 7:30 or 8:00 o'clock.
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Q. How long did you remain?

A. I stayed until about 9:30.

Q. Did you have any conversation with anyone

there? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who?
A. Mr. Brewer and Mr. Duncan and Rosalie

Brewer, Mr. Brewer's wife.

Q. Just state what that conversation was, the de-

tail of it. [285]

A. When I first went in there, it was sort of

a social thing for a few minutes, and then Mr. and

Mrs. Brewer started talking about Paramount Pest

Control Service, sort of running it down in a way,

and they went on for a little while. I asked them

what the trouble was and he said, "You don't

know?" He said, "You don't know that we and

Paramount have severed negotiations?" And I

said. "No."

He said, "I am not with Paramount any more,"

and I said, "I am sorry to hear that. What hap-

pened?" Well, he didn't tell me so much about

what had actually happened. The whole trend of

events w^as trying to discourage me against the

Paramomit.

Q. What did they say? What was the conver-

sation leading to that?

A. They told me what had happened to them;

that they had put all their money into this business

and so forth, and Mrs. Brewer, on a number of

occasions, would look over at me and say, ^'For
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(jod's sake, don't ever owe Paramount any money

beeause tliey will put the damper on yon," or words

to that effect, indicating that Paramoimt was going

to get me next, and, the fact of the matter is, Mr.

Duncan took a 5-cent piece that he asked me for and

I gave it to him, and he placed an additional 5-cent

piece with it and at least five times that evening

he would point to this 10 cents and give me about

six months, and he would bet a drink of [)eer with

me that T woidd [286] be out of Paramount.

Q. Did they say what they were going to do?

A. They told me they were going to take a

vacation. Mr. Brewer told me he was going to take

a vacation for six weeks and then didn't know what

he was going to do. He said he had had a number

of offers, one particularly from the Ardee Main-

tenance Company, and he would probably accept

one of them.

Q. What is the Ardee Maintenance Company
engaged in?

A. Competitive pest exterminating.

Q. Pest control? A. Yes.

Q. Was anything else said by them that

evenings?

A. Well, nothing whatever—it was just sort of

a program to try to win me over to their way of

doing, that they had really been harmed by Para-

mount Pest Control

Mr. Bernard : I believe, your Honor, that tliis

witness should be required to state what was said

and not to draw conclusions.
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The Court: Go ahead, and tell your story.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : Did Mrs. Brewer take

any part in the conversation?

A. Well, a number of times she spoke up and

laughed and said, ''Don't ever get in debt to the

Paramount people," and about after an hour and

a half I got tired of it and told them the best thing

to do is to leave good friends, which I did, [287] but

Mrs. Brewer said a number of times, "No use try-

ing to get Mr. Brooks to see our side of it. He is

a Paramount man." That was said a number of

times there during the evening.

Q. What did Mr. Duncan say, if anything, about

their severance?

A. Nothing much outside of trying to collect

10 cents for his beer.

Q. Did they say when they were going into

business ?

A. He told me he was not going into business.

Q. Who told you that? A. Mr. Brewer.

Q. Did Mr. Duncan say whether or not he was

going into business?

A. No, Duncan told me he didn't know what

he was going to do, that he was going to take a

couple of weeks' vacation and go down to the

wedding of an aunt or somebody in the south, and
when he came back up here he v/ould then make
a decision.

Q. Did Mrs. Brewer have anything to say about

what her future would be? A. No, sir.
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Q. Did you talk with them a^aiu ailcr Hii^

occasion ?

A. I only saw Mr. Brewer once, and lie came

lip to my office looking for Mr. Hi Its.

Q. Did he discuss at that time anything about

leaving Paramount? A. No, sir. [288]

Q. Have you told the Court, Mr. Brooks, every

reason that they gave for leaving Paramount?

A. Well, they just simply said that they had

had an injustice done to them, they were busy

spending their money, they had put thousands of

dollars into Paramount and had gotten very little

remuneration from it and they just had enough

of it.

Q. Did they say anything about taking the help

away from Paramount to you?

A. No, sir, they didn't.

Q. When did you start in? Did you start in

subsequently to this on the work of trying to over-

come the cancellations?

A. T arrived here the 11th of August and from

then on 1 started working on cancellations.

Q. ^Phat was the 11th of August, 1947?

A. lliat is right.

Q. What did you do in an endeavor to stop can-

cellations?

A. Well, we called on them as fast as they

would come in. If it was a letter or if it was a

phone call, the boys had to turn in reports on

their service calls on cancellations of this kind and
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I tried, as soon as possible, to contact all of them

and find out their reasons for canceling.

Q. Why would you do it?

A. A general custom with Paramount Pest Con-

trol, if you lose an account. We w^ant to know

whether it is the sei^iceman's fault or whether the

service has been bad. We want to [289] know

whether the customer is satisfied or not.

Q. How long did you work on the matter of

overcoming these cancellations'?

A. I am still working on them.

Q. Have you been in the employ of Paramount

Pest Control Service here ever since!

A. Yes, sir, with the exception of just occa-

sionally running over to Spokane.

Q. Is that continuous employment here?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Can you state, as a summarj^ of these ac-

counts that you have contacted, what the reason is

for their cancellations?

A. The general reason has been very much the

same in all cases, those that I have contacted per-

sonally. It seems as if the men who were servicing

them were doing a good job, and these same men
would still come, and the only part that was a

little unethical was the fact that these same men,

in many instances, would go in and service the

account and walkout, have a slip signed, and the

customer didn't know that it v\?as not Paramount.
There was no mention made of the fact that this

w^as Brewer's Pest Control . The service was ren-
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dcrod by tlio same man wlio had Ix-cu coming

there, and when they came in a^nin to do tlie serv-

ice, why, tlien he went aliead and did Ids work and

had a slip sij;-ned. If the customer did not know

that there had been a change in name, they could

have gone on [290] and on and on.

Q. Did you make any general inquiry as to

what, if any, I'epresentations were made*?

A. Yes, there were many representations made.

Q. What were those?

A. You want me to name the customers?

Q. I don't think that is necessary now. As a

general summary, give what those representations

were that caused the cancellations, if any?

A. The fact that some of the servicemen, in

some instances, would go in and say the company

was dissolving.

Q. What do you mean by ''company''?

A. That we are not going to continue in busi-

ness; we are discontinuing business up here.

Q. What do you mean by "comx^any"?

A. The Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. That the Paramount Pest Control Service

was dissolving?

A. Yes. In other cases he would go in there and

service the account : if it was the same man. they

never thought about it.

Q. Anything else you can think of that your

investigation showed as to the reasons for cancel-

ing Paramount contracts?
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A. No, other than that the same personnel was

serving these accounts and that Mr. Brewer or his

representatives would walk in and say they were

taking the account over on such and such [291] a

date, and it would be known as Brewer's Pest Con-

trol Service.

In one case, particularly, they told the man that

they were taking over, and that we were discon-

tinuing business, that Paramount Pest Control

Service was not a company, it was a trade name,

they were changing their forms to Brewer's Pest

and, instead of paying a royalty on this trade name.

Control, and in each case they gave the man a

discount on the regular cost of his services to prove

that they were saving him a little money.

Q. As manager in charge of this office, Mr.

Brooks, did you have any cancellations that called

for any repayment of money? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Describe those, please?

A. We had a number—In fact, we have got sev-

eral thousand dollars on the books of moneys ctill

due on accounts that are unpaid, if that is w^hat

you mean.

Q. Did they write in and say, *'We have had

your service and we don't owe you this money"?
A. Oh, yes.

Q. Did you have any cases where there was a

repayment by you to the customer? Did you have

any cases where there was a repayment by you

to the customer wlio had already paid for the

service?
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A. Not repayment. We gave him credil lor

servic^e, and lendered service for wliich we got

no bonus. [292]

Q. Why not?

A. Wliy—Well, it had been paid in advance;

tlu'v liad paid up several months, those where they

had paid several months in advance; that happens

lots of times.

Q. Had nothing to do with Brewer?

A. No, had notliing to do wath Brewer.

Q. Did you have any cases where you had to

remit to them because Brewer had done the serv-

ice and you had not done it and you remitted any

part that had been paid ?

A. No. I have not refunded any money.

Q. As manager of the office, did you find all

the records there when you come to the office to

start work there?

A. I found records but I wouldn't say that the

records were complete.

Q. Why not?

A. Well, for our ser^dce routings, the cards the

men turned in as to where to go on certain dates,

and so on, they were many of them blank. There

was the name of the customer on there but there

w^as no way of determining w^hether they had had

service or not. In other cases, the cards wer^ dated

up in September and October—you could not get

any detail from them, and we had to go to the

ledger and look them up and wo7*k our routings

over from the ledger.
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Q. Did you find any substitions in your records,

where tlie original records are gone and something

substituted for them? [293]

A. Just had cards with the names on but didn't

have any detail whether they were accounts or any-

thing, I wouldn't say whether it was substituted

or what happened. That was the w^ay Mr. Brewer

had run the office.

Mr. Rankin: You may cross-examine.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. As I understand it, you talked with Mr. and

Mrs. Brewer on the evening of August 2nd'?

A. I believe so.

Q. And you want the Court to understand that

he did not tell you at that time that he was in

the pest control business?

A. No, sir, he didn't.

Q. Did you see Mr. Wendy Fisher about that

time? A. I did, sir.

Q. Did Mr. Fisher ever tell you he had told him
on July 30th that he was going into the pest control

business ?

A. Mr. Fisher didn't tell me that until after

I had seen Mr, Brewer.

Q. There seemed to be quite a lot of feeling that

night on the part of Mr. and Mrs. Brewer?
A. That is right, sir.
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Q. They said they had been treated badly by

Paramount Pest Control Service; in other words,

in yon I- own words, I believe yon said the net re-

snlt was that they said an injustice had [294] been

done them. A. Yes, sir.

Q. And Mr. Brewer, particularly, v^^as quite

Avorked up over the propositicm? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You have testitied that a certain unnamed

man told you that somebody told them that the

reason Brewer was taking over Avas because Para-

mount was dissolving. Will you give us the name

of this customer or former customer of Paramount

who told you that?

A. The Sugar Bowl in The Dalles.

Q. Who up there told you that?

A. The manager and owner of the Sugar Bowl.

Q. What is his name?

A. I don't know what his name is. I would

have to look it up.

Q. Who else told you that?

A. I think that is sufficient.

Q. You mean that is sufficient, or is that the

only one?

A. That is a case that can be tested, taken up
and the man will verify it.

Q. I am asking you to give us the names of

any other former cuvstomers who ever made that

statement to you?

A. I will say that is the only one that made
that particular statement.
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Q. Is that the one who made the statement also

that Paramount [295] was really just a trade name

here, just using the trade name "Paramount"?

A. That is correct, sir.

Q. Separate and apart from those, you told the

Court that several customers or former customers

had told you Paramount was dissolving. Will you

give us the names of any customers or former cus-

tomers, or customer, who told you that anybody

connected with Brewer said Paramount was

dissolving ?

A. Peasley Transfer Company, Mr. Davidson,

Boise, Idaho.

Q. Where in Idaho? A. Boise, Idaho.

Q. Who else?

A. The manager of The Dalles Hotel in The

Dalles.

Q. Who was it? Do you know his name?

A. I don't know his name.

Q. Who else?

A. I think that is all I can recall right offhand.

Q. Did anybody in Portland tell you that?

A. I didn't really do much in Portland. Mr.

Fisher was working Portland and I was working

out in the country on the Eastern run when I first

came up to this job.

Q. Did you talk to Mr. Flanagan of Albers

Milling Company? A. No, sir, I didn't.

Q. Whose deposition was taken the other day?

A. No, sir, I don't remember him now\ [296]
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Q. Yoii spoke about tlie index cardH. You said

iliat some, of these cards or as to some of these

cards llic dates did not ai)pear; it did not apj)ear

on vvliat dale \]\v. customer was supposed to be

serviced, is that if? A. That is right, sir.

Q. You do not want the Court to understand

that there were some of the records of Paramount

Pest Control Service that had been taken out of

that office? A. They were not in the office.

Q. What records'?

A. We had an index file in which we have a

5 by 7 card that is marked up by months, January,

February, March and so forth, and every time a

serviceman does a job he comes in and makes his

report on his service card. The office girl will take

that and post that on the index card so that when

the man makes his rounds again he knows the last

time he has been there or when it has been serviced,

in order to keep our service unifoi'm.

Q. Anyway, some of these cards at that .time

did not happen to show the date? . :

A. That is ria:ht, sir.

Q. You did not find any cards of any customers

missing, did 3^ou? .
.:•

A. Well, I wouldn't say, no. T can't remember

no names.

Q. You said some of these cards had been dated

up to September [297] and October. What did you

mean by that ?
: . . : :

A. There would be many cards with the name

on it, the service contracts that w^e had on our :books.
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andthe date of the last call would bo September

or October, which was two months prior to the

time

Q. You could understand by looking at it that

those calls had not been made, of course?

A. r didn't know whether they were made this

year or last year.

Mr. Bernard: I think that is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. I should have asked you one other question.

Referring to Exhibits 54 and 55, you have seen these

before *?

A. Yes. I don't know which ones you are re-

ferring to, though.

Q. Exhibits 54 and 55. A. 54 and 55?

Q. Who compiled these lists, do you know?

A. These lists are compiled in our office by the

bookkeeper.

Q. Under whose direction?

A. Under my direction and also I would say

Mr. Walt Moore who had something to do with

them.

Q. Did Mr. Hilts have anything to do with them?

A. Sir?

Q. Mr. Hilts. There are letters in there marked

"DeOrey [298] Brooks." Can you identify those

as copies of the originals that you originally signed ?

A. Yes, sir. Those are letters acknowledging

cancellations of contracts.
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Q. Gciiei'ally si)eaking, wlicrever that name or

initials appear, they are letters written hy you, is

tliat correct? A. That is right, sir.

Mr. Rankin: That is all.

Recross-Kxamination

"By Mr, Bernard:

Q. Can you give me the name of the man who

was supposed to have made these rei)resentation8

to the Sugar l>owl, the Peasley Transfer Company

or The Dalles Hotel?

A. The names of the parties themselves?

Q. Yes.

A. They were the owners or the managers of

these particular places. I don't know them per-

sonally by name.

Q. Did they give you the name of the person

connected with Brcw^er? A. Never did.

Q. The name of the j^erson connected with

Brewer who made this statement?

A. No, sir, they didn't say which man it was.

Tn one instance I believe Ray Rightmire's name
was signed to a slip, a service slij), and that was in

The Dalles, I believe. [299]

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

(Witness excused.)
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HAROLD W. HILTS

having been previously duly sworn, was recalled

as a vdtness on behalf of plaintiff and was ex-

amined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Mr. Hilts, you testified the other day to

some eleven agencies of the Paramount Pest Control

Service. Can you describe more in detail those

agencies? You had not completed your statement

about them.

A. Yes, sir. There are agents that we have

operating under franchises

.Q. The franchises that you described, do they

bear any resemblance to the franchise which was

had by Mr. Brewer and dated July 1st, 1946?

A. Yes, sir, with the exception of the name of

the manager or the man that it was franchised to,

and the boundary lines, they are practically abso-

lutely identical.

Q. How many franchises of that identical nature

are in existence? A. Eight.

. Q. Are there any franchise managers who have

ever gone broke? [300] A. No, sir.

Q. Have any of them ever made any money?
A. Very definitely so.

Q. Can you give the Court a general idea of

the maximum return that has been made under a

franchise and the minimum return made under a

franchise in your business?
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A. The luaxiinum ariioiint of* money that }ia8

ever been made Ijy any one of our franchise opera-

tors, in round fij^iires—I don't remember exactly,

but it will run froni .t2l>,00() to $24,000 annually,

a year.

Q. And file minimum?

A. The minimum amount of any one of our

operators is upwards of $H,000.

Q. Have any of those ever resigned or left yoii *

A. Not at all, sir.

Q. Never once?

A. Not of tbe eight. We had a resignation of

a manager of ours who was operating in Sacra-

mento wbo made $14,000 in 1945, and be decided

he wanted to become a missionary, so be resigned

and left tbe organization.

Q. He was not broke when be left?

A. Not by a long shot.

Q. What kind of a contract was he under?

A. A franchise contract, the same as Mr. Brewer

had.

Q. Mr. Brewer came up under a different kind

of an agreement, [301] when be came here. What
do you call it?

A. It was a franchise manager's contract.

Q. How many of those do you have in existence?

A. Now?
Q. Yes. A. Three.

Q. Have any of the franchise managers ever

gone broke? A. No, sir.
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Q. Have tliey made money?

A. Yes, sir, they have. They have made more

than wages.

Q. Have you had any of those cancel out or

leave the service?

A. Oh, occasionally one does.

Q. With particular reference to Mr. Osborn, did

you inspect his books'? A. Yes.

Q. Did you make an audit from them?

A. Yes, sir, I did.

Q. He has returned to Seattle?

A. Yes, he has.

Q. Do you know whether or not he is making

money? A. Why, certainly he is.

Q. Was he ever broke as Mr. Brewer indicated

the other day ?

A. Not to my knowledge. I have never seen him

broke.

Q.' Have you continuously inspected his books?

A. His books have never indicated he was broke.

Q. Now, on the matter of damages, state whether

or riot you have prepared any statement that would

indicate the obligations of Mr. Brewer to Para-

mount? A. Yes, we have.

Q. Page 14, Paragraph 6, subparagraph (1) (a)

of the complaint alleges that there is a balance due

Paramount from Mr. Brewer as of June 30, 1947,

in the sum of $3,100. Have you an exhibit that

shows that obligation? A. Yes, there is.

Q. There is produced for your inspection Ex-

hibit 36. A. Now, I have it.
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Q. What is flic total ohlis^atioii shown by that*?

A. $3,359.61.

Q. Was thore any payment on that?

A. Yes, tliere was a payment of $2r)f».()1 on July

9, 1947.

Q. That is tlie payment you have previously

described? A. Yes.

Q. That left a balance of what?

A. $3,100.

Q. Has that ever been paid? A. No, sir.

Q. Paragraph 6, subparagraph (l)(b) of the

complaint is an allegation of a balance due under

the franchise for July, 1947. Did you prepare any

exhibit to disclose that?

A. Yes, sir, T did. [303]

Q. What is that exhibit? You might look at

Exhibit 39. A. 39? '

Q. Yes.

A. It must be out of order. I can't seem to

locate it.

Q. Here it is, right here. A. Thank you.

Q. What does that show?

A. Shows the total amount due, $478.15, based

on the franchise contract for July, 1947.

Q. For what month ? A. July.

Q. For the month of July, 1947? A. Yes.

Q. Where did you get that figure?

A. From the books.

Q. Whose books?

A. From Mr. Brewer's books, the books in the

Portland office.
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Q. Has that amount been i:>aid'?

A. No, sir.

Q. There is a claim here, one for difference be-

tween the investment, and the other for fixed as-

sets not turned in as per contract. Are those on

the same basis? What about those claims'? Look

at Exhibits 50 and 51 and explain it to the Court,

please.

A. Exhibit 50 is the total amount of assets on

the records, less depreciation. The depreciation is

figured on the accounting rules [304] set forth by

the Federal Government. 51

Q. 51. I am in error. I have not reached that

yet. Explain these two claims, for $259.63 and

$973.30, as to whether or not they are obligations

of Brewer and, if so, how?

A. $259.63 and $973.30 interwind with each

other. The $973.30 represents the equipment that

was not turned in by Brewer as per his contract.

Q. Have you any exhibit on that ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What is the exhibit number? Is it 50?

A. Yes, it is. It is the next half of 50.

Q. Have you anything further to state in re-

gard to that?

A. It shows on the exhibit, the second half of

Exhibit 50, that there was a 1936 Plymouth car,

a "Hi-Fog" exterminator and service unit, a spray

rig and a two-wheel trailer, also the additional cost

of trailer and one Dobbins pump, single-phase, that
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are all recapped in the figure $973.30. That is, of

course, the book value which means tlic deprecia-

tion is fiojured and figured in as expenses.

Q. The fifth item on page "15 of the complaint,

Paragraph 6(e), refers to an expense account of

certain items. You say those items amount to

what? A. $925.89.

Q. Have you an exhibit to disclose that?

A. Yes, it is on Exhibit 51. [305]

Q. Explain why that is a charge here.

A. The reason for this being a charge is because

they are unsupported expenditures. In other words,

checks were drawn, as the exhibit indicates, the

check number and the date on which drawn and to

whom they were paid, but with no supporting evi-

dence of the expenditure. Therefore, according to

accounting procedure, when there is no supporting

evidence, they have to be charged. If there is no

supporting evidence, it is charged to the o^\Tler of

the business as his drawing account, under account-

ing practice.

Q. The next item on page 15 of the complaint.

Paragraph 6(1) (f), evidently relates to the East-

ern Oregon nm. You have testified about this

Eastern Oregon expense and the agreement?

A. Yes.

Q. Does this relate to expenditures incurred in

the performance of that agreement?

A. Not expenditures, but the income.
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Q. Describe it then, in detail.

A. This one, amounting to $678.50, is one-half

of the income that was derived from the Eastern

Oregon run as per Mr. Brewer's understanding of

a split of the in-come and expense of that venture,

putting on new business. The expense item is

shown under the June 30th settlement of $3,100

and the income we had never received which we

were entitled to, and therefore it is in this item.

Q. What exhibit discloses this obligation?

A. Exhibit 51.

Q. Exhibit 51-A, does that have any bearing

on it? Does Exhibit 40 or 40-A?

A. 40 and 40-A do not. I will see what 51-A

shows. Yes, 51-A indicates the amount of revenue

derived from the Eastern Oregon run for the

months of February, March and April, giving the

number of accounts handled and also the total

volume for those months.

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : 51-A?

A. Yes, 51-A.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : No. 51, does that have

any bearing on it?

A. No, sir, 51 is the $925.89 unsupported.

Q. 51-A is the only exhibits which sets out in

detail this Eastern Oregon operation?

A. Correct.

Q. Page 16, Paragraph 6(2) (a), does that ex-

plain that? A. Which one is that?
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Q. Paragraph 6(2) (a), which reads, " * >^ »

plaintiff sent inon into said territory to interview

and Iiold siu-h accounts as plaintiff conld and IIk;

action of said defendants, as herein descrihed, dam-

aged plaintiff in the amount of said expense, con-

sisting of $3,596.95."

Please exi)lain that, will you?

A. Well, when we found out what had actually

happened to us, [307] what had really heen done,

we had to protect our husiness, naturally, as any

business organization would.

Therefore, we had to import people into the area,

experienced men and people familiar with the busi-

ness, to carry on, and also determine just exactly

where we did stand, as far as our accounts were

concerned.

We are a service organization. We do not sell

a commodity. Therefore, our business is erected

around our personnel, and whenever we realize in

our business that our personnel is in wo/y not right

in relation to the customers, then we try to deter-

mine what the situation is and, therefore, under

the situation that we ran into here in Portland, we

were naturally anxious to find out just as soon as

possible from all of our customers just where we
stood, which has been borne out in earlier testi-

mony. This is the amount involved in bringing

people that were ne<^essary here to find this out

and to protect our accounts and our business.

Q. Have you made an exhibit for that?

A. Yes.
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Q. Have you detailed in that exhibit what the

expenditures were for? A. I believe so.

Q. Look at Exhibit 53 and see if it covers every

item that you have mentioned covering expenses in

an effort to hold the business? [308]

A. Yes, it indicates my time and that of Andy

LePape, Carl Dolby, W. T. Moore, DeGrey Brooks,

w^hom we brought from Spokane, and Mr. Fisher

who happened to be here and of course went right

on our payroll, and Mr. Elfers whom we brought

from Seattle, Mr. Sibert and Mr. G. H. Fisher.

Q. Is that total set forth in Exhibit 53?

A. Yes. The total is set forth. It is set forth

in detail, in fact. It indicates the expenses for

hotels and meals and automobile expenses necessary

to carry on.

Q. How much does that amount to?

A. A total of $3,596.95.

Q. The next item on page 16, Paragraph 6(2)

(b), having to do with contracts having a balance

of the year to run. There are in evidence here lists

contained in Exhibits 54 and 55 of the contracts

that were canceled. Some of these contracts that

they had some time to run.

The Court : Recess until 1 :30.

(Thereupon the Court was recessed until

1:30 o'clock p.m.) [309]
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Court Ref^onveried at 1 :30 o 'Clock P.M.

JaMiiary 23, 1948

J)ircH't KxamiDation •

(Continued)

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Have you the list of accounts?

A. Yes.

Q. You spoke to me during the noon hour of

something you wanted to make clear. What was

that?

A. I wanted to be clearly understood—I don't

think I have made it quite clear—relative to Item 3

of damages. Item No. 3 is contained in Item 4.

Q. So, in place of $259.63 and $973.30 there is

just the item of $973.30? A. That is right.

Q. When we recessed at noon we were about to

discuss Paragraph 6(2) (b), on page 16 of the com-

plaint, relating to contracts having a balance of one

year to run. Have you Exhibit No. 54?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who comi)iled Exhibit 54? A. I did.

Q. What does it show as to total ?

A. Shows a total of $4,596.75.

Q, ^rhat is $4,596.75? A. Yes. [310]

Q. What is that figure?

A. That figure represents contracts that were

still in effect and had time to run, after Mr. Brew-

er's action, and which we lost.

Q. How long did they have to run?
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A. Various times. Th^y are emmierated there,

the account number, the date of the contract, the

amount of the monthly charge, and the balance of

the term of the contract, also the balance of the

amount of revenue that would have been involved

in it.

Q. State whether or not this $4,596.75 represents

the face of the contracts ? A. Yes, it does.

Q. Does it represent the amount of profit that

Paramount Pest Control Service would have re-

ceived? A. No, sir.

Q. Can you figure the amount of the profit that

Paramount Pest Control Service would have re-

ceived mider those contracts that were canceled

within tlie year?

A. Yes. According to our experience rating and

the way our business is set up to operate, we could

expect 40 per cent profit on the face of these con-

tracts.

Q. How much does it take to process or serve

these contracts ? A. 60 per cent.

Q. Is that the accepted standard in your busi-

ness, or is that [311] something exceptional that

you are applying to this case?

A. Not a bit exceptional. It is more or less

standard. Sometimes it varies a few points one way
or the other.

Q. That is, the total amount, $4,596.75 repre-

sents the face; so far as profit is concerned, it

would be 40 per cent of that that would be returned

to Paramount? A. Yes, sir.
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Q. TTow many contracts is that figure based onl

A. I liavc not counted these contracts. I can

say tliat this item, $4,597.75, and tlK' next item,

$5()6.50, rei)resent a total of 185 accounts.

(J. TTow many of those contracts are admitted

by Mr. T^revvei' in his answer to have })een taken

over by him ? A. 141.

Q. What are those additional contracts in that

$4,596.75 item that are not admitted by himi

A. Well, there is quite a number of them—44, to

be exact, such as Schuster Brothers.

Q. You need not go through an enumeration of

the 44. You have testified the cost of those is 60

per cent. Can you break down that 60 per cent any

further ? A. Yes.

Q. How %

A. Figure in 60 per cent an average of 38 per

cent being for servicing the contracts and 22 per

cent being for the overhead [312] operation of the

business.

Q. Give a general statement, not too much in

detail, as to what is included in overhead.

A. Well, in overhead there is the office girl, ad-

vertising, telephone and telegraph, insurance, taxes

and licenses, depreciation and quite a number of

other items

Q. That is sufficient.

A. If you will let me refer to the exhibit, I can

enumerate them all.
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Q. They will inquire further if they wish. Does

that overhead continue in spite of cancellation of

contracts'? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Who paid the overhead?

A. Well, during Mr. Brewer's contract Mr.

Brewer paid for it. During our contract, we paid

for it—After Mr. Brewer left us, we had to pay

for it.

Q. What do you include in the 38 per cent

service ?

A. There is wages for servicemen, materials and

chemicals to he used on the job, traveling expenses,

such as hotels, rooms and meals.

Q. As to these contracts, you say after his sev-

erance you paid the overhead. How about the serv-

ice? Did you service these contracts afterwards?

A. No, sir, but we had to have personnel servic-

ing these contracts. [313]

Q. Who took the servicing of the contracts over ?

A. We did. We had our organization here.

Q. Yes, but who actually serviced them?

A. Mr. Brewer was servicing the contracts.

Q. Then, in that $4,500 item, or practically

$4,600 item of damage, all that you were relieved

of was the service or 38 per cent ?

A. That is correct.

Q. Take the next item on page 16, paragraph
(c), contracts exceeding one year to continue on a

per-month basis. Pardon me just a moment. Strike

that.
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Tliat $4,59().75 item broken down to 38 per cent

of that is contained in what exhibit?

A. It is contained in Exhibit 54.

Q. Now, take the next item, contracts exceeding

one year to continue thereafter until completed,

under the terms of tlie contract on a month-to-

month basis. How many of those did you find that

had not exf)ired?

A. How many contracts *?

Q. The amount of them is more important.

A. $5()().50. That is just the monthly service in-

volved in those contracts.

Q. Is that set forth in any exhibit?

A. Yes, sir, it is Exhibit No. 55.

Q. Over' and above these items, can you advise

the Court whether [314] or not the business in gen-

eral suifered a damage? A. Yes, sir.

Q. What kind of dama2:e, and can you give an

estimate of how much?

A. Well, we suffered a damage of approximately

$1,500 ])er month, in round figures. We feel that,

according to our experience rating, over a period of

years' ()])(Mation, that the accounts which stay on

the books over a jieriod of years rim 60 per cent,

that the customers we retain is 60 per cent. There-

fore, on the basis of 60 per cent of $1,500 would be

about $900 and, taking into consideration the bal-

ance of the term of the contract, which would have

been eight years and eleven months, we have suf-

fered a damage I feel of $96,300.
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Q. That is over the entire period of time?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. There is a claim by Mr. Brewer of some $700

and another of some $1,350. Did you take credit on

those into consideration?

A. Yes. That totals about $2,050, and we have

allowed for that.

Q. How?
A. Well, there was the amount of money that

Mr. Brewer received and had taken out of the

business.

Q. You heard the testimony the other day when

he said he had taken out $1,000 of investment, and

how much more ? [315]

A. Well, he had taken out approximately, ac-

cording—According to the records he has taken out

over $4,500.

Q. How much was left in the bank on August 1,

1947, when Mr. Brewer started in for himself, in the

account of Paramount Pest Control Service ?

A. In accounts receivable ?

Q. No, in the bank account.

A. In the bank accoimt?

Q. Yes.

A. Oh, right around $4.00. There were two bank

accounts. One of them was the payroll account and

the other was the general account and the total

amount left in the bank in these two accounts was

around $4.00.
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Q, ITow nmch did be draw in Jnly, 1947, do you

know'?

A. Over $1,000, $1,017 and somethin^^

Q. Some time at the beginning of tbi.s liial, Mr.

Sibert mentioned Mr. Brewer's visit to liis home

when he pnichased airplane tickets for Mr. Brewer,

and Mr. Brewer says he purchased those himself.

Will you, very quickly, give a statement as to

whether you looked that matter up and what you

found ?

A. Yes, I checked the checks which Mr. Brewer

claims in his testimony had been drawn for these

airplane tickets. There are three checks. In fact,

one of them was to pay for a tire and the other one

was for $50, and the other one was for $100. [316]

The one for $100 was drawn the day after Mr.

Brewer had left Portland for Oakland.

Q. Are these the three checks mentioned by Mr.

Brewer ?

A. Yes. They are numbered 398, 399 and 400.

Q. Did you look up the record as to the airplane

tickets that were purchased?

A. Yes, sir. They were purchased by Mr. Sib-

ert from his personal credit, and I happened to be

present when he was doing so.

Q. Were they billed to Mr. Sibert?

A. They were billed to Paramount Pe^t Control

Service. This credit is in the name of Mr. Sibert of

Paramoimt Pest Control Service.
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Q. The Paramount Pest Control Service paid

for them, according to the record ?

A. Yes, sir, they did.

Mr. Rankin: You ma.y cross-examine. I do not

believe it is necessary to introduce these records.

They are available if counsel cares to see them.

Mr. Bernard: May I have Exhibit 36?

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. Can you tell me, in round figures, the gross

amount of business done by the Portland—I will call

it the Portland branch office—in the thirteen months

Mr. Brewer was here? [317]

A. Not without looking at the records. I believe

it would run upward of $35,000.

Q. Mr. Brewer stated it would run, in round

figures, $35,000. Do you think that is substantially

correct? A. I think it is pretty close.

Q. You were here how often during those thir-

teen months ? I will say, prior to July 1, 1947 ?

A. Well, I was here in May, in April and March,

in January, December, November and October and

again in May of 1946 and April of '46. I brought

Mr. Brewer up here around the 1st of April, 1946.

Q. Mr. Brewer has testified nobody connected

with the company ever made any complaint with the

way he was handling the business. Did you ever

make any complaint to him about the way the busi-

ness was being conducted?
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A. I (lid ii(>t complaiTi to him. T triod to show

him on various occasions how it could he of)oratcd

j)iore profitably.

Q. In what way"?

A. It is not my policy to comidain.

Q. What siig-.^estions, generally, did yon make to

him ?

A. Well, in the line of expenses and in the "way

of help and taking the men in and seeing that they

got started correctly so that it is inexpensive.

Q. Did you think he had to have help or use

help in the Oregon district? [318]

A. Yes, at various times he did.

Q. How many men do you think he should havfe

had?

A. It would dei)end on the volume of business

and that changed from month to month.

Q. What was the greatest number of help Mr.

Brewer had at one time ?

A. I really don't know, offhand.

Q. His territory took in all of Oregon?

A. That is correct.

Q. You said Mr. Brewer drew around $4,500

during the year. How was that made up, Mr. Hilts?

A. Well, he drew over $2,500 the last seven

months of 1947; he drew !|1.000 the last six months

of 1946.

Q. He drew what?

A. There may be a correction. I might have

said the last \m\y\. I meant the first seven months
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of 1947 he drew over $2,500; the last six months

of 1946 he drew over $1,000, and that is shown on the

record of drawings.

Then there was an additional amount of $925 of

unsupported expenses that we considered was a

drawing".

Q. On Exhibit 36 it shows "Brewer drawing,

$2505.55." What period of time does that repre-

sent?

A. From January 1st, 1947, to June 30, 1947.

Q. That just covers the period of six months'?

A. That is correct. No, I beg your pardon. I am
wrong there. [319] It covers the period of from

July 1st, 1946, to June 30th, 1947. I would like to

have that exhibit to refresh my memory. I can't

remember figures too well.

Q. This exhibit purports to cover a year instead

of six months'? A. That is correct.

Q. It says here "Plus Brewer drawing,

$2505.55." AVhat does that figure represent?

A. That figure represents his drawings record on

the books from July 1, 1946, to Jmie 30, 1947.

Q. One year? A. That is correct.

Q. You say, then, he drew in July, 1947, how
much'? A. Over $1,000.

Q. The only other item which you add to that

is this $925 which you say is unsupported by

vouchers? A. That is right.

Q. Was he repaid the $1,000 that he put in at

the start? A. He was repaid in the $4,500.
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Q. Well, (lid lie withdraw any sf'1,000 in addition

to tins $2,505.55 and $1,000 in July?

A. T don't know.

Q. '^riie point I am making is: If he was repaid

the $1,000, it has to be deducted from the amount of

these drawings that you have shown here.

A. That is right. [320]

Q. If we deduct the $1,000 from the amount he

withdrew in July, the total amount Mr. Brewer drew

during the life of the contract would be $2,505.55,

plus any balance over and above $1,000 in July,

1947, and any ]M)rtion of this $925 which is prop-

erly charged against him?

A. Yes, and we only got $994.

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. That is all we ever got out of it. •
•

Q. AVell, where did you get that?

A. That was the amount of the January and

February, 1947, franchise, total $994.25.

Q. How much money have you—When I say

''you" T mean the Paramount Pest Control Serv-

ice—collected on contracts since August 1, 1947;

I mean contracts that existed prior to that time on

work done by Mr. Brewer?

A. Less than $1,500.

Q. (^an you give us the exact figure?

A. No, I can't exactly. That is right around

under $1,500. I don't know exactly the figure.

Q. About $1,500? A. That is right.

Q. There was paid to you liow much, by Mr.

Brewer? A. I didn't understand.
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Q. There was paid how much by Mr. Brewer?

You say $900-odd? A. $944.25. [321]

Q. So you have received $994.25 plus about

$1,500? A. That is right.

Q. That is correct?

A. There was also another payment made on the

settlement of $259.61. I didn't take that into con-

sideration when I answered you.

Q. Anyway, you have received, in addition to

the amount set forth here that he was given credit

for, you have received approximately $1,500 in ad-

dition to that?

A. I don't get your question. I am sorry.

Q. There are certain payments that it is con-

ceded in the pleading and by everybody that Mr.

Brewer made. In addition to those, Paramount

Pest Control Service has received about $1,500 in

^collections since this trouble started?

A. In round figures, I think.

Q. On Exhibit 36— and any time you want this

let me know and I will hand it up to you

A. Yes.

Q. is an item "Bills due Oakland as of date,

$533.65." There is a circle with a cross in it after

that figure. Do you remember who put that in ?

A. Yes. I put that in.

Q. For what purpose?

A. Those are bills that Mr. Brewer acknowl-

edged that he owed Oakland. [322]

Q. I mean this mark.

A. That circled asterisk?
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Q. Yes.

A. Wo have the same thine^ down below.

Q. What was the purpose of writinoj that in ?

A. To tie it in to a number of invoices.

Q. Didn't Mr. Brewer tell yon at the time he

had some question about that amount?

A. No, not at all. He conceded it.

Q. He conceded this amount entirely?

A. Absolutely. He conceded the whole thing and

made a payment on it.

Q. Exhibit 39 is an exhibit showing an account

as of July, 1947. You have "Monthly control serv-

ice, $2,585.05." Is that the total amount of the

charges for monthly service whether or not the col-

lections had been made?

A. I don't know unless I can refer to th^

exhibit.

(Exhibit No. 39 shown to the witness.)

A. Now, your question again, please?

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : You have a tota?

amount of business done, whatever the figure is, the

first three items. What do they total up to?

A. $2,645.55.

Q. Is that the total amount of business done or

the total amount of monej' collected ? [323]

A. That is the total amount of business on the

books.

Q. In arriving at the amoimt due Paramomit

Pest Control Service, you have taken 20 per cent

of that amount? A. No.
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Q. Less one or two credits'?

A. Less allowances that were written off the

books during the month of July of $254.80. We
claimed 20 per cent of the balance, $2,390.75, which

is' $478.15.

Regardless of whether or not the money had

been actually collected?

A. That is correct. These are franchise routes.

. Q. I know they are franchise routes, but if you

will answer the question, please.

A. You bet I will.

Q. Maybe you will remember this exhibit. Ex-

hibit 51 is the list of the expenditures not verified,

totaling $925.89. As I understand, you have charged

those to Brewer in addition to the other drawings

because you could not find any supporting vouch-

ers, is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. You, yourself, of course, have no way to know

whether or not that money was spent as legitimate

expenses in connection with the business or whether

he spent it on himself?

A. The only way we can determine, if there is

expense in the record for it, is that he made out

expense accounts for other [324] items he has paid

and charged it to expenses. If there was no sup-

porting evidence, the only thing we can do is come

to that conclusion.

Q. I didn't ask you that. I said you, yourself,

have no personal knowledge as to where any of this

money went, have you? A. No.
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Q. Is that correct? A. No, it is not.

Q. What? A. I don't know.

Q. Now, I refer to Exhihit 53 in which you list

the expenses of the business as $3,596.95. What is

your salary with the company?

A. I didn't understand.

Q. What is your salary with the company ?

A. $5,200 a year.

Q. On this exhibit you have "R. W. Hilts, Tinie,

$350." Was that in addition to your salary , or

merely a proportion of the time with reference to-

the salary which is put in here?

A. It represents the time that I put in here.

Q. The company did not pay you any additional

salary? The company did not pay you any addi-

tional salary, did they, by reason of your coming up

to Portland?

A. Not in this particular case, no. [325]

Q. Who is Andy LePape?

A. One of our men.

Q. AVhat is his salary?

A. I don't remember exactly. The computations

are there.

Q. It says $250 here.

A. That is what it is then. '•

Q. That is his salary with the company, at that

time? A. Yes. -

Q. Was he paid any additional salary by reason

of coming up to Portland? A. No, sir.

Q. Carl Dolby. Who is Carl Dolby?

A. One of our men.
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Q. It says here $253.84. Was he paid any addi-

tional money by reason of coming to Portland?

A. No, sir.

Q. W. T. Moore, $103.87. Who is W. T. Moore?

A. One of our men.

Q. Was he paid any additional compensation by

reason of coming to Portland ? A. No, sir.

Q. DeGrey Brooks, $207.75. Was he paid a

salary? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Was he paid any additional salary by rea-

son of coming to Poi-tland? [326]

A. No, sir.

Q. C. W. Fisher.

A. He was not with the company at the time. He
went on the payroll immediately upon arriving.

Q. How long had it been since he had been with

the company prior to August 1st ?

A. A matter of a few months.

Q. How long did he work? A. A month.

Q. A month?

A. Yes, in and around the territory. He was not

here in Portland a month. He was traveling around

the country,—around the territory, rather.

Q. Who is Mr. Elfers?

A. Also one of our men.

Q. You have got him down here for $220. Was
he paid any additional salary by reason of coming

to Portland?

A. No, sir. We had to pay other expenses,

though, to cover all of these men.
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Q. Exhibit 54 in an cx^nbit which is h(!a<lf;d

*' Canceled accounts with tirn(; to run as per con-

tract."

What did yon do in makinc^ up this exhibit, put

in all the contracts that had been canceled since

Ani>ust 1st?

A. Only those contracts that were canceled be-

cause of Brewer's action. [327]

Q. How did you determine they were canceled

because of Mr. Brewer's action?

A. There is an exhibit attached to that, the

contract itself, plus, I believe, supporting detail as

to the customers and, in some cases, the reasons,

where they were contacted personally by the men

and they ])roniL!;ht that information back with them

in submittins^ the canceled accounts by the medium

of the cancellation slip which is attached, I believe,

for both of these exhibits.

Q. How did you determine, in making up this

exhibit, that Mr. Brewer was responsible for can-

celing any particular contract?

A. Any accounts that w^ere canceled at the time,

right after the beginning of August 1st, 1947, were

jnit aside specifically for that purpose, and we sched-

uled them and we knew what they were.

Q. Under this heading ''List of accounts that

w^ere on books longer than a year and cancel(^d only

because of Brewer action," on Exhibit 55, that,' as

we understand it, is the total amount that the cus-

tomers w'ould have been called upon to pay if the

contracts had run their time, is that correct?

A. That is correct.
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• Q. And then you said you figured you were en-

titled to 40 per cent of that ?

A. That is correct. [328]

Q. If all that money had been collected by Mr.

Brewer after July 1st and the work done by him,

how much would Paramount Pest Control Service

have received on it?

A. If it had been collected by Mr. Brewer?

Q. No. You have here that there would have

been collected, if the contracts had run their course,

$4,596.75. If Mr. Brewer had succeeded in per-

forming these contracts under his license, how much

would Paramount Pest Control Service have re-

ceived ?

A. We would have received, under the agree-

ment, 20 per cent should the agreement cease to

exist. Therefore, we would have received 40 per

cent.

Q. In other words, you are claiming twice as

much as you would have received if he had gone

on under his license?

A. lliat is correct, but he did not go on.

Q. As I understand it, you also said you figured

you were entitled to $1,500 a month damages. That

would be $18,000 a year. How do you figure that?

A. I didn't say that.

Q. Tell me what you did say.

A. I said we figured our damages amounted to

$1,500.00 a month, and that we could retain under

the terms of the contract, on an experience rating,
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f)0 pel' cvwt of all fiislomers that are on our records

and, therefore, our damage is about 60 per eert over

the term expiration of the eontraet.

Q. 60 per cent of what? [329]

A. 60 per cent of '^1.500 per month Tor nine

years, for eight years and eleven months.

Mr. Bernard: I think that is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin: -

Q. Counsel asked you about $1,500 that you re-

ceived as pa\Tnent on the contracts after Ausr^ist

1st? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Did you liave to service those contracts?

A. Yes, .sir.
••

Q. Exhibit -54 contains a list of contracts 6aii-

celed. Counsel asked you why you attributed those

to Brevv^er. State whether or not you com])ared those

canceled contracts with the answer that Mr. Brewer

filed in regard to the interrogatories?

A. Yes, sir, T did.

Q. And did Mr. Brewer confirm those cancel-

lations by saying that he had taken over the con-

tracts ? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Counsel also inquired of you ^^hether orVnot

these men were paid a regular salarj' or were paid

an\i;hing additional. AVould any of those men have

been doing the work of saving the company's

business in Oregon had Mr. Brewer not left the

company and canceled the contracts and then con-

tinued his service?
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A. No, sir. We would have received revenue

from their operations elsewhere in our organization.

Q. Did you give Mr. Brewer an opportunity to

explain the vouchers in that item of the exhibit

that has to do with the unsupported charges or

withdrawals'? A. No, not at that time.

Mr. Rankin: All right. Thank you,

Recross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. Maybe in one of my questions I did not make

myself clear. When Mr. Brewer left on August 1,

1947, there were some amounts owing for work

which had already been done by him ? I mean, on the

books? A. Yes, sir.

Q. How much of that has been collected by

Brewer's Pest Control?

A. By Brewer's Pest Control?

Q. By the Paramount Pest Control Service,

yourselves? A. Around $1,500.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Rankin

:

Q. Did you service the contracts from which

you received that money?

A. We serviced them afterwards, but not be-

fore.

Mr. Rankin: All right; that is all.

(Witness excused.) [331]
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GLENN H. FISHER
was thereupon produced as a witness on l)ehalf of

plaintiff and, being first duly sworn, was examined

and testified as follows:

Mr. Rankin : If the Court please, at the time I

offered this one deposition of Mr. Flanagan, I an-

ticipated using others along the same line, or I

would not have offered the one little deposition. To

expedite this case, I think we can disj)ense with

these others, so I place no particular stress upon

that one little deposition.

Direct Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. You are a little hard of hearing, aren^t you,

Mr. Fisher? A. Slightly.

Q. Give your name to the Court.

A. Glenn Harold Fisher.

Q. Where do you live?

A. 6600 Dawes Street, Oakland, California.

Q. About how long have you lived there?

A. About two and one-half years.

Q. What is your occupation?

A. Pest control.

Q. How long have you been in the pest control

business? A. Since 1935.

Q. Are you the Glenn Fisher mentioned as one

of the partners in the original Paramount Pest

Control Service with Mr. Sibert? [332]

A. I am, sir.
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Q. When did you first meet Mr. Brewer ?

x\. In the early part—I would say in the first

week of January, 1946.

Q. What was the occasion of your meeting him 1

A. He was in Mr. Sibert's office, talking to him,

I think at that time, in regards to being employed

by us.

Q. Do you segregate any departments in your

corporation for any one individual to supervise?

A. Yes, we do.

Q. Have you a particular department that you

give your attention to?

A. Yes. My real function in the organization is

contacting our personnel, our managers, throughout

the territory.

Q. Did you have anything to do with Mr.

Brewer in that regard? A. No, I didn't.

Q. Did you have, at any later date, any occasion

to confer or discuss any phases of the business with

Mr. Brewer?

A. What do you mean by a later date?

Q. After this January meeting when j^ou first

met him for the first time?

A. Yes. In February, I think it was the fore-

part of February, that same year.

Q. What was the occasion and what did you do ?

A. I was having a conversation or conference

with Mr. Sibert [333] and we had decided some-

thing would have to be done with the Portland ter-

ritory, and we discussed at great length the possi-
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bilities and what we sliould do about it, and about

that time we decided that Mr. Brewer, whom I had

met about a month previous, would be the man. We
were preparing to call him and we got a })uzz from

the front office that he was out in the front office

waiting, ft was entirely a coincidence.

Q. Did you discuss the matter with him?

A. I did.

Q. Just tell what transpired.

A. We called him back and talked to him about

the territory, and he had previously expressed his

desire, if he came to work for us, to come to this

general territory, and he wanted to know something

of these agreements that we had with our employ-

ees, so we told him there were two, a managership

agreement and also a franchise agreement, and, in

order to better explain them to him, I got a copy of

each from our files and we sat down right across

the table aiid we took those paragraphs more or less

paragraph by paragraph and, if he had questions

to ask, I tried my best to explain it to him.

Q. When was this, please?

A. This was in February, the forepart of Feb-

ruary.

Q. What year? A. 1946.

Q. Did you at that time explain to him the fran-

chise agreement, [334] a franchise agreement in the

same form as that which he signed on July 1st with

you?



402 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Testimony of Glenn H. Fisher.)

A. Yes. With the exception of the name of the

agent, the territory and date, I would say they were

verbatim.

Q. Did he come np immediately on that fran-

chise? A. No, he didn't.

Q. What did he come on?

A. Well, he came on our promise of a manager-

ship agreement.

Q. Did he sign a managership agreement?

A. Not at that time.

Q. Did he later sign one? A. Yes, he did.

Q. When?
A. In Portland, Oregon, after I came up some

two or three days later.

Q. At the time he came to Portland, had you

gone over both contracts with him?

A. Definitely.

Q. Did he take them to any lawyer or any place

that you know- of?

A. No, I don't know as he did. I oftentimes

suggest that they might, but I don't know as I did

this time. Possibly could have.

Q. Did he take that away with him?

A. Yes. [335]

Q. Take them away, I should say.

A. Yes.

Q. What did he do wdth them, if you know?
A. He took them home. I told him, *'Take these

home and study them. There may be something else

come up, because this is a very important business
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for us and wc feel it should be an irnportiuit vc-nlurc

for you, and it is very essential that we have a per-

fect understanding."

Q. When he returned them, did he make any

further inquiry about them?

A. No, I don't believe he did.

Q. Did he ask you anything about them then?

A. No, he never asked me.

Q. Where did he sign the manager's contract

that you mentioned?

A. In Portland, Oregon, after I came up.

Q. About what time?

A. That would be about March 4th or 5th, right

shortly after the first of March.

Q. How did you handle the execution of this

franchise, July 1, 1946?

A. I beg your pardon?

Q. It bears your signature and Mr. Brewer's

signature. Would you tell the Court how that was

handled in its execution?

A. Well, T had talked to Mr. Brewer at the time

of his coming [336] north. He didn't wish to come

north without a <3ontract and he wanted a franchise

contract, but I explained to him that possibly for a

month or two or three he would be better off from a

financial standpoint to go on a managei-ship agree-

ment, and he said he could get along on $250 a

month, and that was the agreement he went on, and

if the business prospered and was handled correctly

he would naturally, under that agreement, be able
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to earn more than $250 a month, so I had more or

less set the 1st of July, which was about three

months from then, as a good time for him to go

under our regular franchise agreement, due to the

fact that we were in the process of incorporating

our business, making us a corporation rather than

a partnership, and at that time we could go into our

regular franchise agreement with him as a corpora-

tion, and it was very agreeable to him.

Q. Where did you sign that franchise of July

1st, 1946? A. In our Oakland office.

Q. Had Mr. Sibert signed it then?

A. No, he hadn't.

Q. I don 't mean Mr. Sibert. I mean Mr. Brewer.

Had Mr. Brewer signed it then?

A. No, he hadn't.

Q. What did you do about getting his signature?

A. I sent him two copies in the mial—I signed

two copies and put them in the mail and sent them

to Oregon to Mr. Brewer [337] in Oregon for his

signature.

Q. When did you do that?

A. That would be in July, the forepart of July

or, rather, possibly the latter part of June, some-

where along in there.

Q. How long was it before you got them back?

A. Oh, I would say a week, approximately the

time that it would take the mail to come up and be

returned.

Q. Did you get them both back or one?

A. One, my copy.
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Q. When you received it back, was Mr. Brew-

er's signature on it? A. Yes, it was.

Q. When did you a^^ain see ]\Ir. Brewer?

A. From what date, sir?

Q. Any time after July 1, 1946, any time after

July 1st?

A. July ]st, 1946. I was just trying to think,

Mr. Rankin.

Q. Let me get at it this way: When did you

again come to Portland, Oregon, after July 1st,

1946?

A. I believe it was in August I came through

here on my vacation and just merely stopped off as

I w^as going through.

Q. When did you again come on any business

trip?

A. Never came on another business trip until

after the breach of this agreement.

Q. Did you see Mr. Brewer in Oakland in Nov-

ember, 1946? A. Yes, sir. [338]

Q. Where did you see him?

A. In Mr. Sibert's home.

Q. Mr. Brewer claims he came there with his

wife in protest against your treatment of liini in

the Oregon territory. Did you have any conversa-

tion with him about the business in Oregon?

A. Not other than ''How are things going?"

And he seemed to be very well satisfied. He had

an expression which he used at that time. He said,

''It is the best in the West." That is the way he

was exjjlaining to me how he felt things were going

in Oregon.
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Q. I believe the testimony shows that you were

here in June, 1947. No, I beg your pardon. I believe

the evidence shows that were again in Mr. Sibert's

home in June, 1947 ? A. That is true.

Q. Did you see Brewer then ?

A. Yes, I saw Mr. Brewer at that time.

Q. Did you discuss the Oregon business with

him then?

A. Well, it was almost identical. I travel a

great deal and, as I remember, on that trip I was

just returning from Los Angeles. I heard Mr.

Brewer was in town so I dropped in to visit a while

on my way home.

Q. From the time you met Mr. Brewer until

this June meeting in 1947 in Mr. Sibert's home,

had he ever told you or anyone connected with the

company in your hearing that he was going [339]

to drop this business, this franchise?

A. No, sir. When that happened, we were all

very much dumbfounded. We could hardly

believe it.

Q. Was there anything in any of his conduct at

any time that gave you any warning that he was

terminating his agreement?

A. Not in my presence, no, sir.

Mr. Rankin: You may cross-examine.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. At the start of your examination you said

it had been decided something had to be done with

the Portland office. Is that correct? A. Yes.
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Q. Whom did you discuss that matt(;r witlif

A. Mr. Sihcrt, Mr. Hilts, 1 believe, and—At

least Mr. Sibert and myself.

Q. What was the reason that something had to

be done with the Portland office?

A. Well, it just so happens that the foi-mer

employee is in the courtroom today, so I will he

speak very frankly. We felt that the business was

not being taken of adequately; there were com-

plaints, particularly from our largest customer, the

Southern Pacific Company, and when I came up

here this former employee said, *'Mr. Fisher, I

don't blame you. I expected it several months ago."

Q. In other words, conditions in the Portland

office were not satisfactory?

A. As far as service was concerned.

Q. When you saw Mr. Brewer, you discussed

both forms of contracts with him?

A. That is true.

Q. The manager's contract and the franchise

form of contract? A. That is true.

Q. Was it in California that you claim to have

turned over copies of them to him?

A. That is right. It was in Oakland.

Q. You say that he took those away from the

office? A. That is true.

Q. How long did you say he had them?

A. I would say two or three days. It seems to

me—I wouldn't be positive, but it seems to me like

this was along the latter part of the week and he
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was to come to work Monday morning. I believe

he took them home with him over the week end and

familiarized himself with them.

Q. That was before he had done any work in

pest control ? A. That is true.

Q. You knew that he was totally ignorant of

the pest control business'?

A. That is right, other than what conversations

we had had prior to giving him the contract and

talking contract, as we [341] always do to a man

that has no understanding of any of this business;

we would explain the thing, the nature and type

of our work, and tell him about the dirty part of

it as well as the good part of it, so he can make

up his mind as to whether he considers himself the

type of a person that would adapt himself to this

business.

Q. Did he want to sign a contract before leav-

ing Oakland? A. For Portland?

Q. Yes.

A. He desired to sign a contract. He didn't

—

He said he didn't want to go anywhere without hav-

ing a contract and at that time he wanted the

franchise contract.

Q. Why didn't you have him sign a contract

before he left Oakland?

A. Because at that time our former manager

had not been notified of our decision to replace him,

and I felt that that would be getting the cart before

the horse to have one man have a contract in a

district v/liere another man already had a contract.
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Q. So h(! came \\\> here vvitli no written contract

at all?

A. That is true, hut with the promise of one.

Q. After he got here he signed what was known

as the manager's contract? A. Tliat is true.

Q. What compensation was he to got under that

manager's contract? [342]

A. Under the manager's contract he received

$250 a month guarantee with 20 per cent of the net

profit, over $600, monthly base.

Q. Over $600 monthly, net monthly base?

A. That is right. He got $250 out of the first

$600, and run the business, paid the expenses on

the first $600 of business. If there is anything left

out of the first $600, he got it. Further than that,

he got 20 per cent of the net profits.

Q. Was this $250 paid out of that $600?

A. That is correct. That was included.

Q. So, under that form of contract, he would

get $250 a month guarantee or $3,000 a year and

then anything over $600 net profit?

A. No, sir.

Q. What? A. No, sir, I didn't say that.

Q. All right. You tell me.

A. He got his 20 per cent of the profit, net

profit, of all ])usiness done over $600.

Q. How long did this manager's contract have

to run by its terms ?

A. By its terms it could be canceled wuthin

thirty da\'s by either party.
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Q. Subject to a 30-day cancellation? [343]

A. That is true. He was put on that basis just

for the first two or three months, according to my
more or less understanding with him.

Q. What do you mean your ''more or less under-

standing with him""?

A. All right. He asked me about the franchise

when he came up here, and that is when I told him

that he should not go on the franchise; that he

would make more money and would be better off to

go on a managership franchise or a managership

agreement, and I felt that if he would go in and

do his work and finish all the work which was laid

out here that he would then be in a very fine posi-

tion to go on the franchise agreement on July 1st.

Q. Where did you discuss the matter with

him after he came to Portland?

A. You mean on the first trip here?

Q. Yes.

A. In the hotel room, I believe it was, or at Mr.

Taylor's home where our office was at that time.

I would not be sure.

Q. I mean with reference to this franchise

contract.

A. I didn't discuss it at that time. We had made
our discussion on that score before he left Oakland.

I merely had the contract with me and he seemed

to be very familiar with it. He didn't hesitate to

sign it. He said, "Where is your pen?"

Q. Did you bring it to Portland? [344]

A. I brought the contract to Portland with me.
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Q. For bis signature?

A. For his signature.

(J. Kor what other reason did yoii come to

I^ortland?

A. To terminate our agreement with iMr. Taylor,

our former manager.

Q. When did you terminate yoni- agreement

witli Mr. Taylor *?

A. Let^s see. 1 imagine—I think it was the 4th

or 5th of April, the first week of April.

Q. That is when you had Mr. Brewer sign the

manager's agreement '? A. That is true.

Q. What did you do towards having it changed

over to a franchise agreement as of July Ist?

A. I had nothing to do with it other than our

discussion with Mr. Sibert in that regard in our

Oakland office.

Q. Mr. Sibert w^as the man who told you to

prepare the franchise agreement?

A. No, he didn't tell me to prepare that agree-

ment at all.

Q. You had nothing to do with Mr. Brewer

signing that franchise agreement?

A. No, sir, other than sending it up there after

the ])oundary or territory part of it had been

filled in.

Q. When you sent it \\\\ was it signed?

A. When I sent the two copies to Mr. Brewer^

Q. Yes.

A. Yes, T signed the two of them.
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Q. You signed the two of them and sent them

up ? A. Yes.

Q. You were not, of course, present when he

signed it? A. No.

Q. Who delivered it to Mr. Brewer for sig-

nature? A. I mailed it to him.

Q. For signature? A. That is true.

Q. Do you know if anybody discussed it with

him prior to July 1st?

A. Prior to July 1st? Yes, I think Mr. Sibert

had. I don't know. He probably did.

Q. Isn't it a fact Mr. Sibert made the contract

up in Portland here?

A. With the exception of the boundaries, and

for that reason Mr. Sibert would not sign a con-

tract here without first consulting me on the boun-

dary situation. Mr. Brewer, as I recall the conver-

sation with Mr. Sibert, had requested a portion of

the State of Washington to be included into the

franchise because of the proximity, particularly of

Vancouver across the river, and we would not write

that in the franchise. Mr. Brewer, if I am not

mistaken, was left a copy of this exact franchise as

it was tyi^ed here under Mr. Sibert 's orders, and

two of them [346] were brought to Oakland, that is,

the two that were used to fill in the boundary, to

have the boundaries of the territory put in, and

that was typed in Oakland and I signed them,

inasmuch as I had more or less promised or inti-

mated to Mr. Brewer that his franchise would start

July 1st, and mailed them to him.
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Q. Wli(!M was tliis concern incorporated?

A. July 1st, 1946.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Mr. Rankin: That is all.

(Witness excused.)

Mr. Rankin: That is our case in chief, if your

Honor j)lease.

Plaintiff rests.

STIPULATION
Mr. Bernard: If your Honor please, before I

proceed with the testimony, Mr. Smith has kindly

agreed to stipulate with me that the original com-

plaint filed in the Circuit Court of the State of

Oregon for the County of Multnomah, Paramount

Pest Control Service, a corporation, vs. Charles P.

Brewer, Raymond Rightmire, Carl Duncan, Earl

Merriott and Rosalie Brewer, which, as we have

said, involves the same matters involved here and

which was verified by Mr. T. C. Sibert, contains

the following allegations with reference to this

franchise contract:

"That notwithstanding the written provision' 27

of said agreement, the parties did not, and do" riot

intend that the laws of the State of California shall

govern any or all questions that may arise concern-

ing the validit}', construction or interpretation of

this agreement, nor did they intend that any civil

action which might be filed had to be filed in the

State of California."

Mr. Smith: That is correct, vour Honor.
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Defendants' Testimony

RAYMOND RIGHTMIRE
one of the defendants herein, being first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. Mr, Rightmire, where do you live?

A. In Portland, Oregon.

Q. How long have you lived here*?

A. Since August, 1946.

Q. Where did you live prior to coming here in

August, 1946?

A. I lived in Vancouver, Washington, two years.

Q. When did you first go into the pest control

business? A. It was in May, 1946.

Q. May, 1946? A. Yes. [348]

Q. And where was that ?

A. It was in Portland, for the Paramount Pest

Control Service.

Q. Was it at that time that you signed this

statement about not—Wait until I find it—^this

statement appearing on page 8 of the complaint

starting out "Because I do have a limited knowl-

edge of the exterminating, pest control, or termite

business, and do not know any formulas, processes,

methods, or other trade secrets thereof, I agree,"

and so forth? Was it at that time that you signed

that statement? A. Yes, near that time.

Q. About in May? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you at that time have any knowledj^C' of

tlie exterminating^ business or pest control liiisinesHt

A. Very little.

Q. Who hired you?

A. Mr. Sibert of the Paramount Pest Control

Service and Mr. Brevier.

Q. After you were hired, what did you do?

A. Oh, I immediately began traveling around

with Mr. Duncan for about three days.

Q. What information did Mr. Duncan give you?

A. Well, he showed me how to cut up carrots

and apples and things like that and put them in a

one-gallon can and stir it up and put a little chem-

ical on it or poison, and we ran [349] around these

buildings, around the baseboards, and dropped little

pieces here and there; and he showed me a little

bit about roaches, how to exterminate them, or

about how it was done.

Q. Wliat did he show you about exterminating

roaches ?

A. He had a little bit of a puffer that laid in

the palm of his hand, with a little powder in it, and

he went around the cracks where roaches might be,

showed me where they might be in there—that was

the principal thing that Mr. Duncan show^ed me.

Q. You say you worked with him for about three

days? A. That is right.

Q. At BXiy time were any formulas, processes

or methods or trade secrets given to you?

A. No, not that I know of.
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Q. After these days what did you do, Mr.

Rightmire? A. I went to work by myself.

Q. Did you continue to work by yourself from

that time on? A. Yes.

Q. Just tell the Court how you would work. In

other words, would you be given the names of per-

sons to go and call on, or what?

A. There was a list of customers around there

in the office in the Kardex form, and principally

those at first was trouble calls, continuous trouble

calls. The phone was ringing whenever [350] I was

in the office, and when I was out I called in to the

office and it was always troubles. Two-thirds of my
time, after the first days, were spent on troubles.

Q. Then, after that period, how did you work?

A. Well, after that period of time, the salesman

that was with the organization at that time was

contacting people, and I was working behind him.

I did have to learn about exterminating these pests

myself. Something that no one seemed to be able

to show me in the Paramount organization was how
to exterminate them. They were servicing these

customers, and they didn't show me how to get

rid of them.

Q. You say you learned that yourself?

A. Yes.

Q. How long did you continue to work for them,

Mr. Rightmire?

A. Beginning or near the first of July I was

told by Mr. Hilts and I was told by Mr. Brewer
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flint I was MO longer at that time working for Para-

mount Pest Control Service, a i)artnershij); tliat

T was working for Charles 1^. Brewer, and I felt,

due to the fact of this little slip that I signed, that

I was no longer obligated to them, since I was not

working for them, for that partnership.

Q. Mr. Hilts told you that?

A. Mr. Hilts and Mr. Brewer.

Q. After July 1st, how did you contimie?

A. Well, we were continually making an effort

and endeavoring [^'51] to exterminate pests in order

to hold these accounts, and we did settle this can-

cellation business within three months or four^. I

recall in that time very long hours of hard work

and uncertainty, because I didn't know all about it.

It was during that time, it seems to me, about

three months after that Mr. Siliert came—I believe

he flew uj) here—and as I came to work that morn-

ing Mr. Brewer drove up with his car, with Mr.

Sibert in the car, as T was walking up Park Avenue

to our office.

Mr. Sibert step]ied out of his car in the pi'esenc^

of Mr. Brewer and myself and he said, '"Ray, you

fellows have done a wonderful job here,'' and he

said, "You have brought this thing out of the red

for the first time, the first time that the Portland

territory was ever out of the red."

I thanked him and told him that I thought we

had done all right, due to the fact that our knowl-

edge was limited and that our education had been
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slightly neglected along those lines, and he turned

to Mr. Brewer and said, '^ Charlie, remind me to

send this boy a course in chemistry right away,"

but I never got that course in chemistry.

Q. Can you figure about what month that was,

Mr. Rightmire?

A. Tt must have been in July, June or July.

Dates didn't mean much to me. I don't keep a

diary.

Q. Did you go on vacation in July?

A. That was in 1946, that other statement. Yes,

I did. [352]

Q. How long did you continue that work,

through 1946 and 1947?

A. I am going to make a correction here.

Q. Yes.

A. I didn't go on vacation in July, 1946.

Q. What work did you continue to do through-

out 1946, say, for the first half of 1946?

A. It was mostly in extermination of rats, mice

and roaches. There was an occasional ant job. I

think during my employment by Paramount that

there was not over eight or ten jobs of ant control

or ant extermination.

Q. How would you do those jobs?

A. Well, we had some ant cups, they call them,

and we put those around, but they didn't do any

good. In fact, it looked to me as if the ants was

getting fat on them, so we tried other things, and

eventually that roach powder and everything else
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that satisfied tlie customer, but to this date T am not

a good ant exterminator.

Q. Did you go on va/'ation in July, 1947?

A. Yes.

Q. When did you go?

A. Went to Camp Sherman.

Q. When?
A. It was the very last part of July.

Q. You went to Camp Sherman? [35)3]

A. Yes.

Q. How long were you down there?

A. I think we were up there three or four

months.

Q. Prior to your leaving, Mr. Rightmirc, did

you know that Mr. Brewer had severed or intended

to sever his connection with Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service? A. I did not.

Q. When did you first receive any information

that Mr. Brewer had severed oi' intended to sever

his connection with Paramount Pest Control

Service ?

A. When I nsked Mr. Brewci* for this vacation,

which was much overdue, he told me he would let

me have the vacation, that he thouglit it was earned,

that I was entitled to it, and then he didn't know

at that time whether he would still be manager of

Paramount when T returned.

Q. Did he make any further statement about

that? A. Not tliat T remember of.

Q. You returned when?

A. Three or four days later; the exact dates I

don't recall.
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: Q. Do you remember being over at Mr. and Mrs.

Brewer's house about July 30th when Wendy
Fisher came over there ?

A. I went over there and returned Mr. Brewer's

fishing equipment. I had borrowed it to go f±shing

on my vacation. I was visiting with Mrs. Brewer,

as Mr. Fisher said.

Q. Had you been informed then Mr. Brewer was

severing his [354] connection with the company?

A. I had not been completely informed then.

Q. You had not been completely informed?

What information did you have?

A. I knew by his statement before I went that he

was going to break with them, but I hadn't got to

talk to Charlie myself right at that time.

Q. That was about the time you went on your

vacation?

A. About the time I went on my vacation, yes.

Q. What was the conversation, as you recall it,

over in the Brewer home on July 30th when you re-

turned this fishing equipment to Mr. Brewer here?

A. Mr. Fisher was in there. I and Mrs. Brewer

was visiting there, and he came in and, I don't

know—we were all in a very jolly mood. I was

happy over having a vacation. I didn't make any

statement ; neither was there a statement made there

concerning the fact that I had my vacation pay and

if I hadn't got it I never would have got it. That

statement was never made, nor there was no state-

ment made there of that kind that I recall at all.
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Q. "Wliat is your rocolleetiou of the conversation

with Mr. Fi slier *?

A. I don't remember much of it. It was \iiTy

short. I returned Charlie's equii>ment. T really

don't recall riglit off.

Q. When did you receive any definite informa-

tion that Mr. Brewer had resigned or had severed

his connection, we will say. with [355] Paramount

Pest Control Service? !!

A. After we left the house—I left the house and

Mr. Brewer followed me to his car and told me that

he was done with Paramount. .. n.t.

Q. That was on July 30th?

A. I think so, yes. '
•

Q. Did you see Mr. Hilts within a day or t\Vo

of that time?

A. Yes, Mr. Hilts called at my home.

Q. Do you remember what date?

A. T think it was the 31st. I am not sure of that.

Q. What was the conversation between you land

Mr. Hilts at that time ?

A. Mr. Hilts came to my home. It was a nice

day and we sat out on the steps. He told me he re-

gretted that I had been sick and called mainly for

that purpose, that I had been sick and he was there

to console me.

I remember very distinctly that I told Mr.. Hilts

right there that I would not believe, under, ah}^ 6,dn-

sideration, anything that Mr. Sibert would have to

say to me, although I assure you tliere was no pro-

fanitv used in our conversation.
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Q. What else did you talk about?

A. Well, that immediately led to a conversa-

tion of Mr. Merriott.

Q. What was that?

A. Mr. Merriott, an employee.

Q. What was said about Mr. Merriott? [356]

A. He asked me if Mr. Merriott was a good ex-

terminator. I told him he was a good exterminator.

He said, "We might want to use him for a while."

Q. Anything further said that you recall?

A. He soon drifted to the subject of personal

affairs and we sat down and visited cordially of

what we had done in the past.

Q. When did you go to work for Brewer's Pest

Cotitrol ?

A. Shortly after the 1st of August, 1947.

Q. Tell the Court how you happened to go to

work for Brewer's Pest Control? Who approached

you? A. Mr. Brewer approached me on that.

Q. What did he have to say?

A. He asked me if I would care to work for him

in the pest control business. Knowing Mr. Brewer,

knowing he had dealt fair witli me and everybody

else that I ever saw him deal with, knowing he was

honest and had given me a fair deal, and not then

having a job or any way to make a living for my
family, I accepted the offer.

Q. By the way, how do you mean work? What
sort of an arrangement did you have as to compen-

sation? A. He pays us each week.
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Q. Is that the way you were paid prior to the

organization of Brewer's Pest Control?

A. Yes, we were paid weekly.

Q. Yon were getting a weekly wage? [357]

A. That is right.

Q. Mr. Rightmire, did you have any under-

standing, directly or indireetly, with Mr. Brewer,

or with any other person, that you would quit the

Paramount Pest Control Service and attempt to

take over their business? A. No.

Q. Was that matter discussed between you and

Mr. Brewer at all?

A. It was not discussed at all.

Q. But did you discuss it with any other person ?

A. No other person.

Q. Is your only interest in this thing as a wage

earner ?

A. That is right. I am just a working man.

Q. What kind of work have you done for

Brewer's Pest Control?

A. Exterminating work.

Q. Did you have any list of the customers of

Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. I did not.

Q. Have you done work for persons who were

former customers of theirs? A. Yes, sir.

Q. Have you secured other accounts as well ?

A. Yes, sir.

Q. What part of the state do you work in?

A. Well, I was—I did work for Mr. Brewer in

the Eastern [358] Oregon territory last but since
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the 1st of November, I believe, I have worked more

in the west and southern parts of the state.

Q. Have you done work for Brewer's Pest Con-

trol for the Sugar Bowl in The Dalles ?

A. Not for Brewer's Pest Control, no.

Q. Or for the Peasley Transfer or Transporta-

tion Company in Boise, Idaho f

A. I have not.

0. Or for The Dalles Hotel?

A. I have not for The Dalles Hotel. Explanation

there—The Dalles Coffee Shop which has an owner

by itself, I worked for them.

Q. You have worked for the coffee shop in The

Dalles Hotel? A. Yes.

Q. There is some evidence here that somebody

told somebody else that somebody representing

Brewer's Pest Control had told them that Para-

mount was dissolving, that Brewer was really a

change of name from the Paramount Pest Control

Service. Did you ever make any statement anywhere

like that to anybody connected with The Dalles

Hotel or The Dalles Coffee Shop?

A. Absolutely not.

Q. Did you make any statement of that kind to

any person at any time ? A. No.

Q. Have 3^ou at any time in your work for

Brewer's Pest Control [359] made any statement at

all regarding the Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. I have not.
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Q. Are you now in possession of nwy formulas,

trade secrets or processes of any kind furnished to

you by Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. No, T have none in my possession at all.

Q. Did they ever furnish you with any?

A. No.

Mr. Bernard : Yon may cross-examine.

Oross-Examination

By Mr. Rankin

:

Q. Mr. Rightmire, you said the matter of your

instruction when you first went to work for Para-

mount Pest Control Service was very meager?

A. Very simple, yes.

Q. In other words, it was very poor instruction ?

A. No, sir; it was just of very short duration.

Q. What Avas the character of that instruction

that you did receive?

A. As far as the instruction I had, it was good.

Q. When did you go to v.ork for them?

A. In May, 1946.

Q. As T gathered the import of your testimony a

moment ago it was that you had not had very much
instruction, that they [360] just showed you a few

places where you might put down something that

some pest or rodent might eat?

A. Yes, that was in the instructions.

Q. Will you tell the Court whether the instruc-

tion you received when you began in May, 1946, was
good or bad?

A. What instruction T had was 2:ood.
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Q. Who was in charge at that time?

A. The instructor, you mean?

Q. Yes. A. Mr. Duncan.

Q. Mr. Duncan? A. Yes.

Q. And he is now associated with you in the

Brewer's Pest Control, is he not?

A. He is an employee of Mr. Brewer.

Q. You are associated with him in that same

business, are you not?

A. I am an employee of Mr. Brewer.

Q. Will you answer the question?

(Question read.)

A. Yes.

Q. You were also a defendant in the case that

was brought by Paramount Pest Control Service in

August of 1947, were you not? A. Yes.

Q. And you were served with a copy of the

complaint in that [361] case? A. Yes.

Q. And that charged you, did it not, with vio-

lating your agreement that you would not go into

the business for a jDeriod of three years after your

employment ceased? A. Yes.

Q. And you went right in business with Mr.

BreAver even after you had been served with that

complaint, did you not?

A. I am an employee of Mr. Brewer's.

Q. Answer the question, please.

A. I am not in business with Mr. Brewer.

Q. You went on in the pest control business,

irrespective of the fact that you were served with

a copy of the complaint, didn't you? A. Yes.
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Q. You knew at the time you were going in the

pest control business tliat you were serving the same

accounts in behalf of Mr. Brewer that you had pre-

viously served in behalf of Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service? A. Some of them.

Q. Some of them? A. Yes.

Q. What percentage? A. I wouldn't know.

Q. You have a very good idea, haven't you?

A. I am not a bookkeeper.

Q. I didn't ask you that. I said you had a pretty

good idea?

A. I have no idea of the percentage.

Q. Many or very few?

A. I don't understand that question exactly.

Q. Well, let's go back to the beginning. You
served customers who wanted their services, services

of the Pai'amount Pest Control Service, in connec-

tion with ])ests, did you not?

A. For Paramount ?

Q. Yes, Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. Yes.

Q. You knew that they were under contract with

Paramount Pest Control Service, did you not?

A. Yes.

Q. And you made reports upon this service to

the Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. Yes.

Q. Whenever you serviced an account, you wrote

out a slip saying that you had serviced it on such

and such a date, for such and such a pest, did you

not? A. Yes.
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Q. After August 1st you did the same thing for

Mr. Brewer, didn't you? A. Yes. [363]

Q. When you found that you, in working for

Mr. Brew^er, were servicing some, at least, of the

same accounts that you had serviced for Paramount

Pest Control Service, did you inquire of Mr. Brewer

what his purpose was?

A. I don't quite understand that question.

Q. When you found that you were serving the

same accounts for Mr. Brewer that you had served

for Paramoimt Pest Control Service, did you in-

quire why you were doing so, from Mr. Brewer?

A. No.

Q. Did you have any discussion with him as to

how he could serve Paramount 's accounts that had

been under contract when he was no longer con-

nected with Paramomit?

A. I didn't discuss that with him.

Q. Why not? A. I had no reason to.

Q. Well, weren't you curious to know?
A. Not at all.

Q. How did .you get the names of Paramount

customers ?

A. I solicited all potential customers.

Q. That is not my question.

A. And that is how I got the names of Para-

mount customers.

Q. You knew^ they were Paramount customers

before you even went there?

A. There was no list.
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Q. Answer the question. You knew they were

Paramount customers [364] l^efore you went there,

didn't you? A. Why, sure.

Q. You liad served them, hadn't you?

A. Certainly.

Q. Did you have any list of Paramount cus-

tomers, as such? A. No.

Q. You romemhered them, didn't you?

A. Yes.

Q. If you served Al])ers Brothers, 3^ou would

know if you had served Alhers Brothers before

August 1st? A. Certainly.

Q. If you served them afterwards you knew that

you were serving them for a different person than

Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. Certainly.

Q. Now, you spoke particularly of July. Did

any of these customers of Paramount, after Mr.

Brew^er told them he was no longer associated with

Paramount, and you went in representing Brewer,

did they ask you what the trouble was ?

A. Yes.

Q. Did you tell them what the trouble was?

A. Surely.

Q. Did you tell them what Mr. Brewer had

told you? A. What w^as that

?

Q. I say, did you tell them what Mr. Brewer

had told you? [365] A. I told them

Q. Just answer my question. Did j^ou tell them

what Mr. Brewer had told you?

A. I don't know what you are contending Mr.

Brewer told me.
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Q. Did Mr. Brewer tell you anything?

A. Yes.

Q. What did he tell you?

A. He told me he was in business for himself.

Q. Did you make no inquiry about his contract

or his franchise?

A. I didn't have any reason to.

Q. That is not answering my question. Did you?

A. I didn't make any inquiry.

Q. You did not? A. No.

Q. You were willing to just accept the situation,

and go on, without finding out how Mr. Brewer had

any right to go on with this pest control business,

when you were advised b}^ the complaint that was

filed that he was violating his franchise, is that

correct ?

A. I don't understand the question.

Q. What do you want? Time to think?

Mr. Bernard : I object to that.

The Court: Go ahead.

(Question read.)

A. Yes. [366]

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : You only took a few

days out of July, 1947, for a vacation, didn't you?

A. That is right.

Q. What date did you leave Portland?

A. I don't remember dates, exactly.

(Testimony of Raymond Rightmire.)

Q. The first part or the last part?

A. The latter part of July, though, sir.
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Q. For yoin- vacation? A. Yes.

Q. What ])usiTioss were yon working in before

you left? A. Before I left for a vacation?

Q. Yes.

A. I was working for Paramount Pest Control

Service.

Q. And where were you working for Paramount

Pest Control Service?

A. I had been working in the Eastern Oregon

territory

Q. When did you leave Portland to work on the

Paramount Pest Control Service in Eastern

Oregon? A. Some time the first part of July.

Q. And where did you go?

A. Went to Eastern Oregon.

Q. Whereabouts in Eastern Oregon?

A. That would The Dalles, Hood River, Pendle-

ton

Q. Where did you go after you left there, do

you remember?

A. I imagine it was Hood River, up that way.

Q. Then where did you go?

A. From Hood River to The Dalles, Pendleton,

Heppner, Hermiston, LaGrande, Baker, Union

—

around that territory as the main highway runs.

Q. Did you go to Boise? A. Yes, sir.

Q. The record here shows that a cancellation

came in to Pai'amount Pest Control Service from

concerns on your route very shortly after your visit

to that section. Can you account for that fact?

A. I could, in one w^ay.
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Q. All right; any way that is the truth.

A. They sent their man into that territory and

he told patrons of Paramount Pest Control that I

was not only completely out of pest control but that

I was in jail and that I was in court, and those

people out there knew me personally, Mr. Rankin,

and they laiew I was not in jail.

Q. They saw you, didn't they?

A. They saw me after the man had told them

that. That is why they lost customers out there.

Q. What man told you that ?

A. The territory generally, in every town that

was told to me.

Q. Can you name an instance ?

A. At the Dairy Co-Operative Association in

Hood River.

Q. Who was the Paramount man that they said

told them that [368] you were in jail?

A. Mr. Elfers, if I remember right.

Q. Mr. Elfers? A. Yes.

Q. When did he see the accounts that you saw?

A. That I wouldn't know.

Q. This record will show that in some instances

there were accounts that you called on, and they

wanted to know whether you were still with Para-

mount. Would you think that Mr. Elfers was the

one who had breached any business ethics if they

laid the cancellations onto you?

A. It was through his contact

Q. What if a customer says that you made the

statement that they were not competent to carry

on this business?
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A. I would like to have you ^^ei one of tliose

customers in here.

Q. I suppose you would. Tt is a safe thin^ to

say. They did not believe you were in Jail when

they saw you there?

A. No, 1iut they formed an awfully bad opinion

of the man that had claimed that T was.

Q. I should think they would, if he made that

statement. You went on as far as Boise and you

also went to Bend, did you not? A. Yes.

Q. You wish to tell this Court that you didn't

know all the [369] time you were making this trip

that Mr. Brewer was going in for himself?

A. I don't wish to tell the Court that.

Q. What do you wish to tell the Court about

your knowledge of whethei*, when you were serving

on this trip, you were going to continue to serve

Paramount T^est Control customers?

A. Ts that a cjuestion? I didn't miderstand.

(Question read.)

A. I was serving the customers of Brewer's Pest

Control then. They had agreed to and wanted my
services.

Q. Did you solicit them?

A. Lots of them, yes. I solicited all potential

business in every town.

Mr. Rankin : That is all.

Mr. Bernard : That is all.

(Witness excused.) [370]
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was thereupon produced as a witness on behalf of

defendants and, being first duly sworn, was ex-

amined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bernard

:

Q. Mr. Merriott, where do you live, sir?

A. 706 Southeast Fourteenth Avenue, Portland,

Oresron.

Q. How long have you lived in Portland?

A. Oh, about twenty-four years.

Q. When did you go into the pest control

business ?

A. I went in in the first part of February, 1947.

Q. Had you ever been in that business before?

A. No.

Q. When you entered their employ, what did

you do?

A. I spent about three or four days with Ray
Rightmire, who was showing me more or less of

the groundwork on pest control.

Q. You went around with Mr. Ray Rightmire

What did Rightmire show you?

A. Oh, more or less putting out bait for rats.

Q. How did he tell you to do it?

A. We used vegetables, fish and meat, whatever

was called for, and mixed it up in a gallon can or

container and he showed me the use of the poisons,

or the amount to put in, and we placed it out at

what ho was telling me was safe places in res-

taurants or wherever the place was we was servicing.
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Q. How long did yon work with Ray ?

A. About four days.

Q. Were you at any time furnished with any

formulas or trade secrets or things of that kind?

A. No, sir.

Q. After working four days and watching Right-

mire do that work, what did you do then?

A. I went strictly on my own. I would be at the

office at 8:00 o'clock in the morning and either Mr.

Brewer or Mr. Rightmire would line me out on

my stops for the day, which I made.

Q. How long did you continue to w^oi'k in that

fashion ?

A. I worked until the last part of 'Tuly, about

the 30th or 31st.

Q. When, if at all, was the first time you knew

Mr. Brewer had severed or intended to sever his

connection with Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. I don't remember the exact date, but it was

on a Saturday around a little after noon. Mr. Hilts

and Mr. Brew^er and—I don't remember exactly if

Mr. Duncan was there at that time or not—but it

was out at Mr. Brewer's home and Charlie told me
that he was through, that I w^ould he no longer

working in his employment.

Q. You say that w^as the last of July %

A. Yes.

Q. On a Saturday afternoon? [372]

A. Yes.

Q. Mr. Hilts was there? A. Yes.
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Q. Did you have any information at all, either

directly or indirectly, from Mr. Brewer on that

subject prior to that time? A. No, sir.

Q. Had he ever talked to you about forming his

own company and you going to work for him?

A. No, he hadn't.

Q. There is testimony at some place in this case

that one of these Paramount Pest Control Service

men, about that time, asked you if you were going

to work for Paramount. A. Mr. Hilts.

Q. Was it at that time?

A. It was at that time.

Q. That was the first infomiation you had?
^ A. That is right.

Q. What did you tell him?

A. I didn't tell him anything. He told me. He
says, "You know that Brewer is breaking from

Paramount?" And I said, "I had heard something

but I didn't know what it was all about," and he

wanted to know if I would continue to work for

Paramount and I said, "Well, if Brewer is out, I

want to make a living and I do like pest control

and I will work for you."

Q. Why didn't you go to work for them? [373]

A. Well, at that time, that particular time, I

was having car trouble and was working on my car

at Brewer's home.

At that time I was working on my car. My car

had broke down and I was working on it at Brewer 's

home, and I finished the job, oh, late in the after-

noon. As Mr. Rightmire had been more or less on
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tlie sick list, I dropped out to see him, and that is

when I lieard tliat he was tlironj^h with them, that

tliey had offered him some agreement, hetter than

his position was in the past, and he had turned it

down. Well, T was more or less eurions to find ont

why.

The only thing he would tell me, he said, ''Well,

they want you to work for a while, but only for a

while," and that I probably would not last very

long. That statement was made to him by Mr. Hilts.

Mr. Rankin: How do you know?

Q. (By Mr. Bernard): Mr. Rightmire claimed

that statement was made by Mr. Hilts'?

A. Mr. Rightmire told me that statement was

made by Mr. Hilts.

Q. When did you go to work for Brewer?

A. Oh, I believe it was the following Monday^

Q. When did Mr. Brewer contact you about

going to work for him?

A. He didn't. I went over to talk to him, to

find out.

Q. You went over there? • "

A. To find out what the score was and what he

was going to do. [374]

Q. What?
A. I went over and talked to him, to see what

he was going to do. '.

Q. What did he tell you?

A. He told me that he was going into busiij^ss

for himself, and asked me if I wanted to go tO

work for him and I said, "Yes."
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Q. That was after this talk with Hilts'?

A. With Hilts.

Q. Did you at any time enter into any agreement

or understanding with Brewer or anybody else that

Brewer was to quit Paramount Pest Control and

that you boys would take over the business of the

Paramount Pest Control Service ? . A. No, sir.

Q. What relationship did you have to the busi-

ness ? Did you have any interest in the business ?

A. No, sir. I work for a weekly wage.

Q. What? A. I work for a weekly wage.

Mr. Bernard : I think that is all.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. You said that you applied whatever poison

there was for the pest. Did you know the kinds of

pests'? A. Yes. [375]

Q. Could you analyze what poison was best for

them I

A. Not at that time, but Mr. Rightmire showed

me.

Q. Did you know what ingredients were in the

poisons that you used? A. No, sir.

Q. How did you know what poison was for

what pest? A. Mr. Brewer told me.

Q. Mr. Brewer told you?

A, He supplied me with any poisons I needed.

Q. You were another one of the defendants in

the case brought in the Circuit Court, weren't you?

A. Yes, sir.
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Q. Did you ever know, before that case was

brought, about Mr. Brewer's franchise?

A. No, sir.

Q. You knew it then? A. I heard of it.

Q. You saw it in your complaint, didn't you*

A. Yes.

Q. In that complaint in that case? A. Yes.

Q. You knew about Mr. Riglitmire's agreement;

you knew about Mr. Duncan's agreement from that,

didn't you? A. Yes.

Q. Did that make any difference with you about

going on and [376] serving with these men ?

A. I was working for a living.

Q. It did not make any difference with you, then,

did it? A. No.

Q. Did you also serve customers of Paramount

Pest Control Service, whom you knew to be cus-

tomers of Paramount Pest Control Service, before

August 1st and Brewer's breach or leaving, the

same customers that he served aftei^wards or that

you served afterwards for Brewer?

A. Would you mind repeating that?

Q. Yes. Did you serve the same customers for

Paramount that you later served for Brewer?

A. Some, yes.

Q. Did you solicit those customers?

A. I solicited any potential business.

Q. Including those that you knew were under

previous contract with Paramount? A. Yes.

Mr. Rankin: That is all.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

(Witness excused.) [377]
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ROSALIE BREWER
one of the defendants herein, was thereupon pro-

duced as a witness and, being first duly sworn,

was examined and testified as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. Mrs. Brewer, you are the wife of C. P.

Brewer'? A. I am.

Q. You were his wife before coming to Oregon*?

A. Yes, 1 was.

Q. You and he moved to Oregon from Cali-

fornia? A. Yes, we did.

Q. Will you tell the Court what work you did

with reference to this pest control business for Mr.

Brewer ^

The Court: Do they have any children? Do
these people have children"?

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : Do you have any chil-

dren? A. I have a daughter, yes.

Q. How old is she?

A. She is going on fourteen, in June.

Q. Go ahead.

A. I help my husband in the office, post things

in the books. That only requires sometimes a couple

of hours, or three days a week, sometimes not that

much.

Q. I understand from Mr. Brewer just now that

the daughter is a daughter of yours by a former

marriage? [378] A. Yes, she is.

Q. How long have you and Mr. Brewer been

married? A. Six years in April.
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(^. do on with your answer.

A. I posted things in the books for my husband

because lie couldn't. At first, when T worked at

the office of Paramount was when my hus})and was

manager and the Paramount Pest Control Service

paid me $35 a month for i)art-time work in posting

things in the books, at that office, because tliey iig-

ured they could not afford to hire a full-time girl.

Q. That $35 a month, was that paid to you out

of Mr. Brewer's salary or paid by Paramount?

A. By Paramount Pest Control Service.

O. That is when he was acting as manager?

A. That is right.

Q. Go ahead.

A. And after Mr. I^rewer took the franchise, I

continued to help him because he could not afford

to hire a girl. I did not spend all my time at the

office, because I also ran my home.

Q. Did you do just book work?

A. Yes, that is all. I am not a bookkeeper.

Q. Do you, yourself, have any personal knowl-

edge as to the circumstances under which Mr.

Brewer changed from a manager's contract to a

franchise ?

A. Yes. I was there when Mr. Sibert offered

my husband a [379] franchise in our home.

Q. What was said at that time? That was in

Portland? A. This was in Portland.

Q. Go ahead.

A. It was in the breakfast room of our home.

My husband called me from the living room and
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told me what Mr. Sibert had told him and asked

me, *'What do you think, dear?" He said "It is

our money, you know."

I said, "Well, we haven't much of a choice. We
are here. We have our home here, and it is entirely

up to you just what you do."

Q. Had you heard any of the talk prior to that

time between Sibert and your husband?

A. Why, yes. Right after that Mr. Sibert told

me that within a few years' time my husband would

be giving me a thousand dollars a month to run my
home, and I laughed and said, "I would not know

what to do with a thousand dollars if he gave it

to me."

Q. Was that before this franchise contract was

signed 1 A. Yes.

Q. After that time you continued to do this book

work, did you?

A. I helped my husband whenever he needed it,

yes.

Q. Do you have any personal knowledge of what

took place in March when they had some dispute

over whether it was to be [380] divided on a 50-50

basis or not?

A. The only knowledge I had was when my
husband turned to me

Q. Just a minute. Was anybody there at the

time!

A. Mr. Hilts and my husband and I were in the

office when Mr. Hilts asked for franchise monev
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and my liiisband turned to me and asked me to

make out a check. I hesitated and got red in the

face. He yelled at me, which he doesn't usually do,

and told me to make it out.

Q. That was the check that was drawn in

March"? A. That is right.

Q. You say your husband yelled at you. Wliat

did he say?

A. My hus})and does not usually speak very

harshly to me.

The Court: You are lucky. Hardly any other

woman can say that.

A. Maybe not, but I can.

Mr. Bernard: Well, go ahead.

A. He told me to make out that cheek in a

certain tone of voice that he does not usually use.

Q. What did he say to Mr. Hilts?

A. Nothing at that time, except that he handed

him the check.

Q. Were you with him when ho talked to him?

A. No, sir, I wasn't.

Q. There is in evidence here a copy of a letter

dated March 15th from Hilts to your husband. You
are familiar with that letter, are you ? [381]

A. I signed for it.

Q. When did that letter come to your home?

A. On a Sunday morning.

Q. Was it a special delivery letter?

A. Yes.

Q. Sent by airmail? A. Yes.
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Q. And you signed for it ? A. Yes, I did.

Q. Did you go down to Oakland with your hus-

band in the latter part of June?

A. No, I didn't. I was in California, visiting

my sister.

Q. Did your husband meet you there?

A. Yes, he did.

Q. About what date?

A. Around the last part of June.

Q. Did you go to Oakland with your husband,

then? A. Yes.

(JT When did you get in Oakland?

A. We came from Cupertino, California, Mon-

day mornmg to Oakland to the Paramount office.

Q. Did you see Mr. Sibert?

A. Not at the office. Mr. Fisher took us to the

home.

Q. Mr. Fisher took you to Mr. Sibert 's home?

A. Yes. [382]

Q. Tell the Court about what the conversation

was, generally, in Mr. Sibert 's home?
"' A. Well, they were friendly when we came in.

That afternoon he told me that I didn't need to

work myself and I asked why. I didn't understand

it. I said, "I don't understand what you mean at

all," and he said, ''Well, Charlie can afford to hire

a girl now."

I said, "Well, I don't see where he can, where I

have been doing that," and I said, "I don't see why
he has to get a girl at $150 a month when it just
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takes me n short wliil(! to do tlint work, and I could

use it myself," and lie said, "Rosalie, Charles has

made $10,000 in this last year," nnd T said, "T

haven't seen a cent of it."

Q. What happened then?

A. I felt very bad about it, enough so I was mad

about it.

Q. You knew about what he was makincj ?

A. Yes, I did.

Q. Where did you p^o then?

A. Well, we had dinner there and then, later on

in the evening, I went upstairs and I cried.

Q. With reference to that time, when did you

return to Portland?

A. We came back to Portland the following day.

Q. By})lane? A. By plane. [383]

Q. Were you informed then by anybody that

there was any proposed change?

A. My husband did start to discuss it with me
on the plane but I got ill, and then we talked about

it after we got home.
.

;

Q. Well, what did he tell you?
' A. He told me they wanted him to go back on

the 20-80.

Q. Who wanted him to go back on the 20-80

plan ?

A. Mr. Sibert wanted him to go back.

Q. Did your husband seem agreeable to that?

A. No, sir.

Mr. Bernard: I think vou mav cross-examine.. .
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Cross-Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Did you know about the 20-80 plan, Mrs.

Brewer *?

A. Yes. My husband and I had talked about it,

yes.

Q. When did you first learn about the 20-80

plan?

A. When he first took the franchise?

Q. July 1, 1947? A. That is right.

Q. Did you know of the 20-80 plan before that?

A. No.

Q. Your husband had never discussed whether

or not he wanted to go under the franchise?

A. No, sir.

Q. Did he tell you when he had signed the 20-80

franchise? [384] A. I beg your pardon.

Q. Did he tell you when he had signed the 20-80

franchise ?

A. He told me when he signed it, yes. I mean
he signed it, yes, but I don't know the exact date.

I wasn't with him.

Q. Some time in July, 1947?

A. Some time in July, yes.

Q. He subscribes that there was a change made
in that 20-80 franchise some time after it was

signed. Do you know when that change was made?
A. My husband and I went to Oakland in No-

vember. He was telling me that he could not go

any longer on that 20-80 basis, that we were not
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makiTig any money, and that wo had used all of

our savinc^s to live on that we had, and that was the

reason we went to Oakland in Noveml)er.

Q. Had you tlien determined not to go on with

the franchise if you could not get a modification

of if?

A. I am sorry. I didn't have anything to do with

that myself.

Q. Did your husband

A- I didn't think so much about it. He only

discussed it with me.

Q. Your husband discussed it with you, did you?

A. He did talk about it, yes.

Q. Did he tell you whether or not he was going

on with the franchise if he could not get a modifi-

cation ?

A. He didn't sa}^ anything about that one way

or the other. [385]

Q. One way or the other?

A. No, sir, not to me.

Q. Your November conference was very satis-

factory, was it not?

A. Yes, they were very cordial. In fact, the only

conversation that I heard about was in the Athletic

Club when Mr. Fisher came in—we had not seen

him 3^et—and he shook hands around and said,

*'Hello." Ted Sibert said, '^Charlie has agreed,''

and told him about it, and all I remember is that

Mr. Fisher said, "Well, we can do that with Char-

lie, but we couldiTt with Ossie in Seattle."
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Q. How long was the 50-50 agreement, as you

described it, to last?

A. Well, what my husband told me, it was to

last from then on.

Q. You did not hear any conversation with any

of the Paramount people at all ?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Did anyone tell you any different, at any

time subsequently? A. What do you mean?

Q. Did anyone from Paramount tell you any-

thing different ? A. No, not me, no.

Q. You have testified that you were red in the

face, I believe. A. I was.

Mr. Rankin : May I see the exhibits, please, and

particularly [386] the check, the February check ?

Q. This check that I hand to you is dated Feb-

]'uary 6, 1947. Is that your signature attached

to it? A. That is my signature?

Q. Yes; is that your signature attached to it?

A. That is my signature, yes.

Q. Were they asking you for money at the time

you signed this check?

A. My husband asked me to make the check.

That is all I know about it.

Q. You don't know whether they were asking

you for money or not?

A. No, I don't. I wasn't at the office very often.

Q. How did you happen to select the $250.

A. He told me to make it out for that amount

and that is what I did. He ran the business. I

didn't.
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Q. Did you tell Mr. Hilts at that time you wished

it were was more? A. I don't recall.

Q. Were relations friendly at the time between

and Paramount Pest Control Service, at the time

that check was drawn?

A. I helieve so.

Q. As a matter of fact, they continued friendly

down to the 24th of July, didn't they?

A. The 24th of July?

Q. Yes. [387]

A. Yes, we were always friendly.

Q. They weren't friendly after Mr. Brewer ter-

minated his agreement?

A. No, they haA^e not been.

Q. But you don't recall whether or not you ad-

vised Mr. Hilts that you were not pleased about

this $250? A. I don't remember, sir.

Q. Let me hand you this letter. Your name is

Rosalie, is it not? A. Yes, it is.

Q. I hand you this and ask you if that is a copy

of your letter? A. Yes, it is.

Mr. Rankin : We oifer it in e\adence.

Mr. Bernard: May I see it? No objection.

The Court: Admitted.

(Copy of letter dated 2/6/47 ''From Rosalie

to Harold" thereupon received in evidence and

marked Plaintiff's Exhibit No. 81.)

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : This is the letter by

which you sent the check? A. Is it?

Q. I am asking you.
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A. I don't know whether it is or not. If it is

dated the same date the check is dated [388]

Q. The letter reads as follows—It is dated Feb-

ruary 6, 1947.

A. Was that the date the check was dated?

Q. That is right.

A. Then it accompanied.

Q. It reads: ''From Rosalie; to Harold." Who
is Harold? A. Harold Hilts.

Q. "Am sending $250 on the franchise. Best

I can do today. There will be more when we can

spare it without putting ourselves in a hole. I

wish it was more but no can do.

"Charlie is in Salem. Boy, John sure is giving

us the works. Most every account we have in that

territory has been neglected for months and are

the cancellations coming in fast and furiously. John

is telling all the customers which he has kept happy

some that we are going bankrupt and he is taking

over that territory. Charles and Ray are both in

there today and fighting it. It's like starting all

over again."

You sent that letter 1 A. Yes, I did.

Mr. Rankin : That is all.

Redirect Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. Who is this "John" that is mentioned as

"giving us the works"?

A. It is a former Paramount employee that was
here before [389] my husband came up here.
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Q. Do yon know wliat lie was mad about?

A. Yes, I do. lie was promised the mana^er-

sliip ol' Or(\5;on before my husband came here and

didn't get it,

Q. And he was mad about that?

A. Yes, he was.

Q. He was out there in the territory taking busi-

ness away from Paramount? A. He was.

Mr. Bernard : I think that is all.

Mr. Rankin: That is all.

(Witness excused.) [390]

CHARLES P. BREWER
one of the defendants herein, having- been previously

duly sworn, was recalled and was examined and tes-

tified as follows

:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Bernard

:

Q. As far as possible, I want to avoid covering

matters that you testified to previously and, unless

the question calls for it, please do not cover the

same ground.

It a])poars from the testimony of Mr. Conger that

you started ordering cards and blanks and things of

that kind about July 7th. Was that before or after

you had been informed that Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service desired to go back on the 20-80 basis

as of the 1st of July?

A. That was afterwards.
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Q. Wliy did you start ordering these articles at

that time?

A. Well, I had already told Mr. Sibert that I

was going to break, but, in my exact words, I would

carry the business through the month of July, and

that is all, and I figured that at any time he might

break in here with ten or twelve men and start to

grab, and, if he did, I was going to have some

printing handy. On July 9th, when Harold was up

here to audit the books, he pulled the first audit or

balance sheet, as you might call it, showing me
somewhere around $3,900 owing Paramount.

The Court: That has all been covered. [391]

Mr. Bernard: I don't care about that.

Q. Have you got in the courtroom here an

empty can containing this 1080 that you purchased

from the U. S. Fish and Wild Life?

A. I have.

Q. Is this the can in this bag?

A. That is one of them.

Q. In what shape did the can come to you that

you purchased from Paramount Pest Control

Service ?

A. Well, they were the same sized cans, iden-

tical with that, except that they had the Para-

mount labels.

Q. What did the Paramount label look like?

A. That is a long label. In the exhibits I be-

lieve they have somewhere around three of them

in there. They are red, more of a red label.
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Q. I notice that tliis label is scratched a little

bit. How did that happen ? A. I did that.

Q. When?
A. When I emptied tlie can. The can i« quite

empty with the exception of a little hit of residue

that has not been washed out thorouj^hly. Any time

I empty one of these cans, I invariably scratch the

label to tear it apart and try to get it off of there,

and then get rid of it so it cannot contaminate any-

thing and nobody can j)ick it up and come in con-

tact with any of the poison. [392]

Q. Was there a Paramount label ever on this

can? A. No, there never was one.

Q. Mr. Hilts has testified about the amomit of

money that was in the bank in Portland, the bank

account in Portland. A¥ho opened that bank ac-

count ?

A. I opened that bank account with money from

my savings. I opened it up in the First National

Bank and shortly thereafter they notified me that

Paramount had an assumed name certificate filed,

the partnership here in Oregon, and I couldn't have

a bank account there unless I filed an assumed name

and Mr. Sibert was here right—Oh, it was shortly

thereafter. I don't know. I guess it was around

the first of May, but I did let the bank account

ride, and I went up to the courthouse and got a

withdrawal slip and gave it to Mr. Sibert and asked

if he would fill it out so I could file an assumed name

and have the bank account. He said he would let
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me know. I got a letter back that may be along that

line. He said that their attorneys said that they

still had an interest in this business up here and

they would not release the assumed name certificate,

so I went down to the bank and talked to them

Q. I don't care to go into all these details.

When you finally opened up the bank account, who

could sign checks on it?

A. My wife, I know for sure—I gave her au-

thority at the [393] bank—and myself and no one

else.

Q. Was anybody present when you closed that

bank account?

A. Mr. Hilts was with me when that bank ac-

count was closed on August 2, 1947. I closed the

account and Mr. Hilts turned to the man, the minute

I said I w^anted the account closed, and said, "I

want to open an account."

Q. Mr. Wendy Fisher has testified that along

about July 30th he had a conversation with you and

Mrs. Brewer. He further said that you went to the

Roosevelt Hotel and, after dinner, went up to his

room and he quotes j^ou as saying that you were

quitting and taking all the Paramount employees

with you; that they had been collecting all the

money they could and if there was a dollar left

Paramount could be lucky; and that Paramount

would be in no position to take care of their ac-

counts for some months to come.
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Will you tell the Court what your rcrol lection is

of the conversation in Mr. Wendy Fisher's room

that nis'ht at the hotel "?

A. Why, yes, we had gone out to dinner, and

we came })ack up. We were friendly. We always

have been. He had come back down through Wash-

ington and when I found out from him that he had

not been near California, nor heard from them for

a week or so, then I told him that he did not know

the news.

I told him I was breaking with Paramount and

he said, ''What for?" And I told him. [394]

I told him of the different things that had come

up, that I was not getting along, and I just gave

him a re^sume of my relations with Paramount and

he told mv, "Well, Charles, you have just got to pro-

tect yourself, that is all there is to it," and—Well,

I will leave that out.

I didn't tell him, though, that I was taking all

the employees with me. I don't remember saying

anything about the bank account because there was

no bank account here of Paramount 's. It was mine.

Q. Mr. Brooks testified that he was here around

August 2nd, went out to your house. Do you recall

Mr. Brooks being there?

A. Oh, yes, he came out. Mr. Duncan was stay-

ing with us at the time. He was getting ready to

go on his vacation.

When I had taken my little girl to California,

we had met Mr. Sibert at the airport. Raymond
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Riglitmire and Carl Duncan had driven me and my
daughter to the airport to take the plane, and while

w^e vv'ere waiting for the plane to take off Carl Dun-

can asked Mr. Sibert to have Harold Hilts get his

vacation check ready for him, that he Vv^anted to go

the first of August to Oklahoma on his summer vaca-

tion and that he was supposed to be entitled to two

weeks' vacation. Mr. Sibert began to hem and haw

a little bit and said he wasn't working for Para-

mount, he was working for me, and Carl Duncan

said he wanted that time off from the 1st of August

for his summer vacation.

Q. This night on August 2nd, when Brooks came

out to your [395] house—That v/as August 2nd,

1947, he saj^s—you told him you were not going into

business.

A. I don't remember whether I told him I was

or was not or even mentioned it.

Q. Did you have any idea of telling him after

August 1st that you were not going into business?

Did you have any idea?

A. I don't remember telling him I was not going

into business. I do remember telling him I broke

from them.

Q. As a matter of fact, you were in that business

by that time, weren't you? A. Yes.

Q. Do I understand that this can is in a rather

dangerous condition to handle ?

A. It is. If everyone is willing, I or someone

who is acquainted with it can take the can and

dispose of it, but it must be washed out.
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Ml'. Boi'Tiard : I am not offerin.i; i1 in cvidenfe

unless counsel desires. It is here if anyljody

wants it.

Mr. Rankin : We do not want it.

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : Bid nnybody audit your

books every month ?

A. Mr. Hilts iuidited thcun most eveiy month.

Q. I am turning to Exhibit 51 whieh they say

consists of checks regarding which there is no sup-

porting data, totaling $925.99, charged to you. Have

you examined this exhibit ?

A. Yes, I have. [396]

Q. Were any of those items drawn by you per-

sonally, or for you personally?

A. They were drawn—Some of them were drawn

for me for expenses and things like that; drawn

to me, yes.

Q. They were drawn to you? A. Yes.

Q. Was any of the money expended by you oth-

erwise than for business? A. No.

Q. I see these checks start a way back in Sep-

tember, 1946. At the time that Mi-. Hilts would

make his audit, would those checks ap])ear?

A. Yes, had they come from the books.

Q. The books wcnild show what items of expense

those checks were for ? A. They do.

Q. Did Mr. Hilts audit the books each month ?

A. He did.

Q. Did he ever raise any question about those

books when he would make his monthly audit?
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A. If he did not understand one, he would ask

me what it was and I would explain it to him what it

was, and he accepted it.

Q. Was any attempt made to charge these checks

to you personally until after this lawsuit was

started? A. None whatsoever. [397]

Q. The books, you say, will show what these

checks were for? A. They will.

Q. Mr. Glenn Fisher has testified that down in

California, when you first talked with these people,

that he furnished you a form of manager's contract

and a form of the franchise, and you took them

home and studied them for a couple of days and

then brought them back. What is the fact as to

that?

A. That was not so. I never met Glenn Fisher

until after I had been on the job for Paramount

and he had come up from Los Angeles to Oakland.

I didn't meet him—Pardon me. I did meet him for

a few minutes in the office one time just before I

hired out, when he had just arrived from New
York, I believe it was, and the next time I saw
him was when I was working for the company.

Q. Regardless of when you met him, were you

ever furnished these two forms of contract in Cali-

fornia? A. I was not.

Q. Did you have them home or take them home
in California? A. I did not.

Q. Will you examine Exhibit 36 which purports

to be a sort of a settlement of accounts for twelve
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months fi-om July 1, 1046, to Jinic 30, 1947, and

will you oxamino that and state whether or not

that aeeountiTip^ is correet or substantially correct.

A. I think that account is very wronc^, and I

sat down with Mr. Hilts and talked with him for

quite a while about it. [398]

Q. What do you contend is wrong ?

A. I contend that it was far too much money

due Oakland. They have accounts receivable here;

besides, they have half of the bank account here,

money that lay in the bank, they have here, besides

the accounts receivable.

Q. In other w^ords, you, in that accounting here,

are charged with the accounts receivable?

A. I am.

Q. And charged with a part of this bank ac-

count ? A. Right.

Q. Do you know, in round figures in a general

way, what you figure you owed them for the year

ending Juno 30, 1947?

A. I owed them somewhere altogether—it is

somewhere between $2,500 and $3,000.

Q. In other words, you figured you owed them

that for the fiscal year ending June 30, 1947?

A. That is for the thirteen months.

The Court: Does he still owe them?

A. Minus $1,200 that has been ])aid.

Mr. Bernard: I was going to get to that.

Q. In other words, you drew out how much for

yourself?
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A. Besides what I took in and put back, I drew

$2,200.

Q. You drew $2,200. You still owe them between

$2,000 and $2,500, which would have left you in the

hole?

A. They got $1,200 and I got $2,200, and there

is around $3,600 [399] or more due and payable on

the books when I left them, and it leaves somewhere

around $1,500 or $1,600 that there is due off of the

due and payables on the books.

Q. Did you attempt, when these books were

turned over to you, to try to arrive at the amount

that was either owing by Paramount or due to

Paramount? A. I did.

Q. From your examination of the books, in the

time they were turned over to you here a few days

ago, you say you have attempted to arrive at how

this account stands between the two of you"?

A. I have.

Q. Did you make u]) a statement for that

purpose'? A. I did.

Q. Refreshing your recollection with that state-

ment, do you figure at the present date you owe

Paramount money or Paramount owes you money?

A, I would say Paramount owes me money.

Q. Would you explain to the Court, now, how
you arrive at that conclusion, based on the books'?

A. Well, the total business, as I have put it

down here—I will concede there may be a mistake

some place—is $22,000—the total business for 1947,

$22,734. The total business in 1946 was $12,321.70.
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In 1946 against $12,321.70 there Ks .$11,935.38

expenses, leavinc^ a net profit of $386.32, whieli was

made out and put on my ineome tax as a net profit

for that yepr.

That was taken to California and audited down

the7'e in 1947, as I have said. The total husiiiess in

1947, $22,734.60; the total ex])enses for 1947, $10,-

737.67 total business, minus $308 depreciation, whieh

is not the correct fij^ure—I found out since that

there is more—$16,000. Wait a minute.

The total business in 1947 is $22,734.60. The total

expenses, including depreciation, is $16,737.67, leav-

ing a difference of $5,996.93 net profit fur 1947.

Q. Now, tlien, how did you arrive at the state-

ment that Paramount was indebted to you?

A. I arrived at that by dividing half of the

$386.32 net profit in 1946, plus the net profit of 1947,

which is $5,996.93. Well, I divided each one of

these figures and added the two halves together.

Q. I see.

A. And it shows an a])proximate amomit due

Charles P. Brewer of $1,305.97. There is no place

in these books that I can find that shows any ac-

counts receivable at the end of July. The accounts

receivable which I have figured out here to the

best of my ability, figuied around $3,299 approxi-

mately.

Q. Accounts receivable?

A. Accounts receivable on the books when I

turned the books over to them. [401]
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Q. Has any accounting been made to you of that

at all ?

A. None to me. There has been an accoimting

pulled on the books, but I have never seen it.

Q. Who made that accounting?

A. That was made by Sawtell, Goldrainer &
Company.

Q. What is the amount that the accounting that

they compiled shows you owing 1

A. The amount shows $1,305.97 due me.

Mr. Bernard : You may cross-examine.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Rankin:

Q. Where did you get these figures'?

A. The books.

Q. You took them off yourself?

A. I took them off myself.

Q. You could have done that any time in regard

to the accounting that Mr. Hilts made to you in

June, could you not? You paid on it, didn't you?

A. Through errors in the books

Q. Just answer my question. You paid on the

accounting, didn 't you ?

A. I paid on the franchise.

Q. On the franchise? July 1, 1946?

A. I paid on the franchise, as modified. I never

paid at any time prior to the modification. [402]

Q. If you made up this audit for yourself, why
didn't you make it up early enough and submit us

a copy so we could scrutinize it?

A. Because you had the books.
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Q. How loii^ (lid it take you'?

A. I saw them three days beginning last Tlnirs-

day or Friday.

Q. They were given to yon immediately after the

Court denied an inspection of this audit, weren't

they"?

A. They were given to me some time aronnd last

Thursday or Friday. I don't know the exact date.

Mr. Rankin: We won't argue about that. I

think Mr. Bernard will admit they asked for them

and they were received immediately after the Court

denied an inspection of the audit.

Mr. Bernard : No question about that.

Q. (By Mr. Rankin) : You mentioned Mr. Carl

Duncan. Where is he ?

A. To the best of my knowledge, Mr. Carl Dun-

can is some place around Bend, Oregon, at the pres-

ent time.

Q. In your employ? A. He is.

Q. He has been at all times since August 1, 1947 f

A. He has not. He has been in my employ since

somewhere around August 18th to 20th.

Q. You pay him just like you iiay these other

men that are hired? A. T do.

Q. Where does he live? [403]

A. Well, that is a hard thing to say. He is

traveling twenty-eight days out of the month.

O. Does he ever come to Portland?

A. He does.

Q. Wlien? A. At the end of the month.
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Q. You knew we were looking for him I

A. Yes.

Q. You never advised us when he was in?

A. I never advised you when he was in, but I

did tell you where you could contact him in Idaho.

Q. Did you also know we could not serve him in

Idaho %

A. I did not. It is the U. S. Marshal—I thought

he could serve there.

Q. In the payment of the June accounting, you

paid down to $3,100, didn't you?

A. I gave him that check for $259.61 with the

provision that if this accounting was right, I would

pay the balance left.

Q. Why did you make that odd figure, $259.61 ?

A. Because I hadn't had a chance yet to study

this, and Mr. Hilts assured me himself that it was

correct. I said, "I will pay the odd figure," some-

where around $250, and he broke off the odd figures

and took $259.61.

Q. Did you ever advise them by letter that the

accounting was not right? [404] A. No, never.

Mr. Rankin : That is all.
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Redireet Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. May I ask yon a couple of questions? You

say Mr. Duncan went to work for you the 18th of

Au^-ust.

A. He had been going to go on his vacation and

Paramount threw this first lawsuit in the Circuit

Court and he was served with papers for that court

hearing, and he was going to take in a wedding of

one of his relatives down south and when that trial

was finally thrown out of court, he could not get

there in time for the wedding so he said he might as

well stay here.

Q, Had you talked with him at any time prior t<o

that time'?

A. No. I told him to go on his vacation.

Q. In this compilation that you have prepared,

on the first page you have the number "70.'' Wliat

are those numbers'?

A. Those are the page numbers taken from the

books.

Q. Then, on the second page I notice after cer-

tain items there will be "Expense, No. 70," and

"Expense, No. 71." What do they refer to?

A. Those are items of expense listed in the ledger

imder No. 70 or No. 85, or whatever number it is

here.

Mr. Bernard : I woidd like to offer that compila-

tion in evidence. [405]

Mr. Rankin : We object to that, your Honor, on

the ground and for the reason tliat very early in
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these proceedings we asked for a statement from

defendants as to these claims. Mr. Leo Smith took

the deposition of Mr. Brewer in my absence and in

that called for a statement of what these comprise.

The answer in that dejoosition is "We can't make it

until we get the books." Then they did not try to

get the books, although they were offered them, and

they were offered pre^dously and they were offered

subsequently, and then, when the motion was made

and the Court denied an inspection of the audit, for

the first time they accepted the books, and they just

brought them back this morning.

Now, to come in at the last minute, when there is

no opportunity for us to examine it thoroughly, I

submit to your Honor is not j^roper. Fairness in the

trial of a lawsuit would require, as we have done

here, the compilation to be put in at the pre-trial

and the other side given a little opportunity to

check the fairness or accuracy or the integrity of

a statement like that.

The Court: Objection sustained.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Mr. Rankin : That is all.

(Witness excused.)

Mr. Bernard : That is our case, your Honor.

Mr. Rankin: That is all.

The Court: The testimony is closed, is it?

Mr. Rankin : No rebuttal, your Honor.

The Court : When do you want to be heard ?

Mr. Ranl^:in: Whenever it suits the convenience

of the Court

:
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The Oou?-t: It makes no difference to me. The

record has never ])een cleaned up as to Duncan. He
has not been served.

Mr. Rankin: No.

The Court : He should be dismissed out. of the

case, I submit.

Mr. Rankin : Yes.

The Court: Dismissed without prejudice.

Mr. Rankin: Yes, if yon will.

Tlie Court: Is there any objection to that?

Mr. Bernard : No.
,

:

Mr. Rankin : Just a moment, please, your Honor.

We have tried our best to serve him. T think the

evidence has shown that. I wonder if it would not

be possible, since he has not put in an appearance,

to have the case continued as to him.

The Court: You cannot break up a case that

w^ay.

Mr. Rankin : This is a conspiracy case and I

thought possibly that might be done.

The Court: T don't think so.

Mr. Rankin: We wnll take a nonsuit as to him,

without [407] prejudice.

The Court: So ordered. Leave it this way: He
is dismissed out on my motion without prejudice.

That does not commit you.

Mr. Rankin: Yes, your Honor.

(Thereupon the hearing in the above-entitled

cause was continued until Saturday, January

24, 1948, at 10:00 o'clock a.m. for argument of

counsel.) [408]
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In the District Court of the United States

for the District of Oregon

Civil No. 3936

PARAMOUNT PEST CONTROL SERVICE, a

corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs.

CHARLES P. BREWER, individually and doing

business as Brewer's Pest Control; ROSALIE
BREWER, his wife; RAYMOND RIGHT-
MIRE, CARL DUNCAN, EARL MERRIOTT,
and all other persons associated with said de-

fendants as herein described,

Defendants.

REPORTER'S CERTIFICATE

I, Ira G. Holcomb, a Court reporter of the above

entitled Court, duly appointed and qualified, do

hereby certify that on the 20th, 21st and 23rd days

of January, A.D. 1948, I reported in shorthand the

proceedings of the trial had in the above-entitled

cause, that I subsequently caused my said shorthand

notes to be reduced to typewriting, and that the

foregoing transcript, pages numbered 1 to 408, both

inclusive, constitutes a full, true and accurate tran-

script of said proceedings, so taken by me in short-

hand on said dates as aforesaid, and of the whole

thereof.

Dated this 11th day of March, A.D. 1948.

/s/ IRA G. HOLCOMB,
Court Reporter. [409]
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In the District Coiirt of the United States

for the District of Oregon

Civil No. 3936

PARAMOUNT PEST CONTROL SP^RVICE, a

corporation,

Plaintiif,

vs.

CHARLES P. BREWER, et al.,

Defendants.

DEPOSITION OF CHARLES P. BREWER
DEFENDANT

Taken as an adverse party on behalf of l^laintiff.

Be It Remembered that, pursuant to the oral stip-

ulation hereinafter set out, the deposition of Cliarles

P. Brewer was taken on behalf of the plaintiff be-

fore Ira G. Holcomb, a Notary Public for Oregon,

residing in Portland, on the 7th day of January,

A.D. 1948, beginning at 1:30 o'clock p.m., at Room
503, United States Court House, in the City of

Portland, County of Multnomali and State of

Oregon.

Appearances

:

Mr. F. Leo Smith and Mr. George E. Birnie, of

Attorneys for Plaintiff.

Mr. E. F. Bernard and Mr. Plowden Stott, of

Attorneys for Defendants.

Stipulation

(It is stipulated and agreed by and between the

attorneys for the respective parties that the deposi-
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tion of the above-named defendant may be taken on

behalf of the plaintiff as an adverse party, at Room
503, United States Court House, in the City of

Portland, County of Multnomah, State of Oregon,

oh Wednesday, the 7th day of January, A.D. 1948,

beginning at 1:30 o'clock p.m., before Ira G. Hol-

comb, a Notary Public for Oregon.

(It is further stipulated that the deposition, when

transcribed, may be used on the trial of said cause

as by law provided; that all questions as to the

notice of the time and place of taking the same are

waived; and that all objections as to the form of the

questions are waived unless objected to at the time

the questions are asked; and that all objections as

to materiality, relevancy and competency of the

testimony are reserved to the parties until the time

of trial.

(It is further stipidated by the attorneys for the

respective parties that the reading over of the testi-

mony to or by the witness and the signing thereof

are expressly waived.) [2*]

Mr. Bernard: You understand, Mr. Brewer,

that, after your testimony has been transcribed by

the Court Reporter, you have the privilege of read-

ing it over and signing your deposition ; or you may
waive that.

Mr. Brewer: Let it go as it is. I will waive sign-

ing it.

Page numbering appearing at top of page of original Reporter's

Transcript of Record.
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CHARLES P. TJRKWER
one of tlic defendants hercMn, i)rodnced as an ad-

verse imriy on behalf of tlie plaintiff, having been

tirst duly sworn to testify the tnitli, the whole truth

and nothing but the truth, was examined and testi-

fied as follows:

Direct Examination

By Mr. Smith

:

Q. Mr. 'Brewer, according to the pleadings,.!

believe it is true that you acknowledge signing the

sales agent agreement with Paramount Pest Control

Service?

A. I signed the franchise, as I understand it.

Q. Did you consider that as a binding and valid

contract ?

A. At the time it was signed.

Q. Did the time ever come when you did not

consider it as a valid and binding contract?

A. After they had refused to live up to it, I

couldn't see where it was worth anything.

Q. What date was that?

A. That was shortly after the first of the lyear,

1947 ; was along about, oh, between the first of Feb-

ruary and March. [3] i

Q. Some time along the first of February or

March, you considered that the contract was no

longer binding?

A. It had not been lived up to at that time.

Q. But, prior to that time, you did acknowledge

it as a binding contract?

A. Prior to then, yes.
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Q. Is there any reason, other than your conten-

tion that they did not live up to it—Is there any

other reason why you did not consider it a binding

contract '?

A. Other than that they did not live up to it and

according to the way it was amended, shall we say,

amended verbally.

Q. I think ^'modified" is the better word.

A. Or modified. That is a better word, yes.

Q. But, other than that, you considered it a

binding contract?

A. It would have been had they lived up to it. I

don't understand just what you are asking, there.

Mr. Stott : If you do not understand a question,

I think 3^ou have the right to ask him to explain any

part of the question you do not understand.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : What part don't you

understand ?

A. I don't understand what you mean by did I

consider it a binding contract. It was a contract

—

It was acknowledged by both of us—and as long as

they live up to it—When they refused to live up to

it, I couldn't see that it was any more binding. [4]

Q. AVhen did you first notify them that you did

not consider it as a binding contract?

A. I didn't notify them in those exact words.

Q. What words did you use ?

A. I notified them I would no longer be con-

nected with them if they did not live up to it.

Q. When did vou notifv tliem of that?
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A. T notified them of that in Febniary or March
the first time, again in April and in Jnne.

Q. Was that notification in writing?

A. ^rhat was verbal.

Q. When was the first time yon made any writ-

ten notification to that effect?

A. Abont Jnly 24th I wrote them a confirmation

of my ])reaking fi'om tliern, I think somewhere

aroimd the 24th of Jnly.

Q. Will yon identify those occasions as to when

yon orally notified the company that yon were ter-

minating the contract nnless they lived np to its

terms ?

A. Dnring the times Avhen IMr. Harold Hilts was

here in Portland, balancing the books, checking the

books.

Q. Will yon state those dates as nearly as you

can?

A. I wouldn't know without checking the records

as to what dates it was, no. All I can say is some

time around the first of March and some time around

the first of April and again the latter part of June.

Q. On those occasions was there anycme present

besides yourself and Mr. Hilts?

A. My wife was present in February and J don't

know^ for sure whether she^ was there in April but

she was there again in June.

Q. When you say that the company was not liv-

ing up to its terms, will you state that fully and com-

l^letely and in detail just what you mean?
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A. Tliey are trying to get me to pay them 20

per cent on gross after it had been modified.

Q. That is your full and complete explanation?

A. That was the reason why.

Q. That is the only reason why?

A. That is why.

Q. That is the only reason?

A. That is the only reason why.

Q. When this contract was originally signed,

you worked under it according to its terms for how

long?

Mr. Bernard: May I ask you to qualify the

question? Do you mean ' 'worked under it" un-

modified ?

Mr. Smith: Yes.

Mr. Bernard: I see.

A. I worked under it until the end of—until

Thanksgiving, 1946.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : Then, would you tell the

story leading up to its modification? [6]

A. The company had been in the red when I

took it over, much to my disgust, and not wanting it,

and I carried it myself with the understanding that

there would be no pajrments asked for on the busi-

ness until it was out of the red and they came

through. Mr. Hilts checked the books and kept

handing me statements showing how much it was

costing me and how it Avas running in the red, as it

was, and, when I saw, even with that growth, it was

going to break me and not pay anything at all—so,

near the end of November, my wife and I drove to
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California and I went to tlie offiee of the corpora-

tion. I told them I could not carry the business any

longer under the conditions it was in. I couldn't

financially handle it.

Q. You sa}^ you told them. Who?
A. I told T. C. Sibert, the president, and he said

he would modify it to make it 50 per cent on net

profit if I would carry on. I said, "All right, under

that agreement, I can carry on." He asked me then,

*'Do you want this until the first of the 3'ear or do

you want it for a year or two, or how do you want

it? It is up to you.

I said, *'I want it for the life of the contract, as

long as we are operating," and he said, "All right.

That is the way it will be."

Q. I will ask you if he said that, " When you

take a dollar out of the business I will take a dol-

lar out of the business?"

A. He said the w^ords, '^A^Hien you take home a

dollar I take home [7] dollar."

Q. That was the understanding?

A. That was one of the remarks he made, yes.

It was understood to be 50 per cent on net profits,

because I had to live, regardless.

Q. Was it not finally agreed between you and

Ted Sibert that when you took a dollar out of the

business he would take a dollar out of the business ?

A. Not in that exact category, no. It was undei*-

stood to be 50 per cent on net ]U'ofits, equally. T

couldn't pay him dollar for dollar because the busi-
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ness was in the red and I was living out of my per-

sonal income as it was.

Q. Was there anybody besides you and Mr.

Sibert present when this modification was made?

A. There were several of the company in and

out of the office. He and I were talking more or less

personal]}^ His secretary was there, not recording

the conversation, though.

Q. Who would you say was present who could

have heard the conversation?

A. The conversation, as such, was not exactly

heard in its entirety by anyone except at the end of

the conversation, Glenn Fisher came in, also Harold

Hilts, and Ted Sibert told them that he had just

reached an agreement with me—that I could not

carry on the way it was, and that we had reached

an agreement where we would split the net profits.

Q. Ted Sibert said that in the presence of Glenn

Fisher and Harold Hilts? A. Right.

Q. And yourself? A. Right.

Q. And you four were the only ones present?

A. Yes.

Q. Your wife was not present?

A. Not at that particular time that I remember.

She could have been, but I would hate to make that

too emphatic because I do not remember the exact

circumstances.

Q. Was anyone present besides yourself when

Mr. Sibert agreed that the duration of this fifty-

fifty division of net profits should be continuous

and not limited to the first of the vear?
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A. He told that to Mr. Fisher and T lilts. 'I'liey

were not there when it was agreed upon, thougli.

Q. Yovi did run along on this contrar-t witli tlie

modification until the first of the year?

A. Yes.

Q. Up until that time you had no difficulty as

far as your remittances to the company were con-

cerned and your understanding with the company?

A. It was only one month practically and there

were no remittances paid.

Q. It was not retroactive to the first of July?

A. Was retroactive to the beginning of the

franchise.

Q. So, then, it covered a period of from July

1st on? A. Right.

Q. When did someone from the company tell

you that tluit modification agreement was effective

only until the first of the year?

A. Harold Hilts presented me with a statement

of what T was supposed to owe the company, some

time around the end of February or the first of

March, and the statement showed 20 per cent gross

business

Q. Pardon me. You mean 20 per cent of the

gross business subsequent to the first of the year?

A. Subsequent from July 1st, from the 1st of

July on up.

Q. From the 1st of July on up? A. Yes.

Q. In other words, that statement did not recog-

nize that modificntion agreement at all?
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A. None whatsoever. He presented me with that

statement. I had sent them $500, or close to it.

I gave them a check for a balance of four hundred

and some odd dollars, and told him after handing

him the check—I drove to the airport and told'him

I was completely done with the whole

Q. You are traveling a little too fast for me
there. Let's go back to this statement that Mr. Hilts

presented to you in the latter part of February or

the first part of March.

You say that was the first time when anyone from

the [10] Paramount Pest Control Service indicated

that the fifty-fifty agreement was not going to be

lived up to by the company?

A. That is the first, from the corporation, from

the time I talked with Sibert. They had not come

to balance the books during January.

Q. When Hilts presented you with such a state-

ment and you had a chance to look it over and to

analyze it, what did you say to him?

A. I did not look it over or analyze it. I only

glanced at it enough to see they were wanting me
to pay them 20 per cent. I turned to my wife and

told her to make them out a check for the exact

amoimt of dollars necessary, and handed it to him

and told him I was done.

Q. When you say you were done, that was at

this meeting the latter part of February or the first

of March? A. Yes.

Q. You told your wife to write out a check?

A. Riizht.
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Q. What was the amount of that check?

A. Four hundred and some-odd dollars.

Q. Mow did you arrive at tlie amoimt of that

check ?

A. His statement showed me owing them nine

hundred some dollars and I had already given them

$500, and I gave him the halance and told him I

was done.

Q. So, then, you did j^ay the balance owing, ac-

cording to his [11] statement?

A. According to the statement, which I knew

at the time was not correct.

Q. Even though you knew it was not correct, you

wrote out a check for that amount and handed it

to Hilts? A. I did.

Q. You did not stop payment on that check?

A. I did not.

Q. And you say that you told Hilts you were

done, that you were through?

A. I was through, yes.

Q. But you did not give him any written notice?

A. T did not.

Q. Did you continue to work for the company?

A. T continued in this respect—that was Friday

evening, and I would have given them time enough

to get someone to take my place.

Q. Yes.

A. And Sunday morning at 9:00 o'clock I re-

ceived a special delivery letter from Hilts, apolo-

gizing and stating that it was supposed to be a

fifty-fifty pro]^osition.
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Q. Yes. So, when you received that letter, what

did you do? A. I continued operating.

Q. Then did you have an adjustment?

A. No. You couldn't adjust anything. I never

could understand [12] their figures fast enough to

adjust them.

Q. After you received the letter—you received

it Sunday morning, is that right ? A. Right.

Q. That was around the first part of March?

A. Right.

Q. You continued to work for the company,

did you?

A. I continued to work for myself, under that

name.

Q. Under this franchise agreement?

A. Yes.

Q. As modified? A. Right.

Q. AVlien is the next time you had any difficulty

with Mr. Hilts regarding remittances?

A. That was some time the first part of April.

Q. About a month later?

A. Somewhere around that.

Q. Tell us, if you will, please, the full back-

ground and everything that led up to your dis-

agreement with Hilts around the first of April?

A. The first of April he came through to check

the books again and presented me with a statement

and asked for money. I told him I was not, at that

exact time, able to pay it and he said, well, he had

to have it.
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T told liiin I could not \)i\y it to liiin and lie said

there [lo] liad to be some arrangement where I

could borrow money or something. I told him ac-

cording to my agreement with the Paramount

Cori)oration I would not liave to i)ay them any

money until the business was on its feet and that,

if they were going to demand money, if it meant

my running into debt to pay them something, I

would get rid of it, and he immediately told me,

then, they were not wanting me to dump it and

get out of it in any way, that they wanted me to

hang on and that they would not press payment.

Q. Did you pay Hilts any money at that time?

A. No.

Q. What I meant to say was: Did you give him

a check? A. No

Q Payable to the Paramount Pest Control

Service? A. No, I didn't.

Q. Did you tell Hilts that you were going on,

then?

A. I told him I would dump it if they tried to

force payment on me, get me into debt.

Q. A^^at did he say?

A. He said they would not force payment in

that case.

Q. Then, was there any other conversation be-

tween you and him at that time pertaining

A. Not pertaining to that.

Q. Pertaining to keeping the franchise or not?

A. No. [14]
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Q. When is the next time that you and Hilts

came together to make an accounting*?

A. I think it was some time in June.

Q. So, between April 1st and June, you and

Hilts never got together regarding any accounting?

A. We never saw each other. I was out of town.

Q. Durmg all these times the dealings were with

you and Hilts? You never had any agent repre-

senting you, did you?

A. I never had any agent representing me?

Q. Like your wife? A. No.

Q. It was you who w^ould carry on your own

business ? A. Eight.

Q. Fine. About when was it in June, Mr.

Brewer, that you and Mr. Hilts came together

again for an accomiting?

A. The latter part—I don't know the exact date

;

some time, I would say after the 24th.

Q. Tell us, if you will, please, the full and com-

plete story in detail of what took place.

A. He told me—^lie presented me with another

statement from the books, showing moneys that I

did not believe I owed. We argued over moneys due

them for supplies and some equipment that I had

taken over from them and, after arguing around

all day, he preseiited me with a statement, showing

me owing them somewhere around $3,000. [15]

I told him I did not understand it as that and I

did not believe it was right. He said, well, he was

in a spot himself and wanted some money to take



vs. Charles P. Brewer, et al. 483

(Deposition of Charles P. Brewer.)

})a(:k witli liini and asked if I would give him a few

dollars, some kind of a token payment. I told him

—

He said it was correct, as far as he could see. I

told him, well, I couldn't see it. 1 did not have time

to check it, but I would give him a check. I gave

him a check for $200, two hundred some dollars.

If the statement had been correct, it would have

cut off the tail end of it, two hundred and some-odd

dollars.

Q. So you did make out a check in odd figures

as a payment on that statement which he sub-

mitted to you ?

A. As a payment on moneys due them.

Q. And that left a balance in round figures?

A. Yes.

Q. And that was on June 24th'?

A. Somewhere around the latter part of June,

between the 25th and the 1st of July.

Q. So, when Mr. Hilts left you that date, he

took a check with him %

A. Yes, I think he did.

Q. And that check was drawn on a Portland

bank? A. Yes.

Q. And you never stopped payment on that

check? A. No. [16]

Q. Did you ever at any time write any letters

to the Paramount Pest Control wherein you denied

that particular accounting that wa>^ had between

you and Mr. Hilts? A. No.

Q. AVlien did you send them a notification iu

writing of your termination?
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A. At the end of July. That was a confirmation

of the verbal.

Q. I beg your pardon?

A. That was the confirmation.

Q. What was the verbal language then?

A. I told Ililts according to their figures, accord-

ing to the way they were going—would not live up

to their contract—I was quitting Paramount and

getting away from it.

Q. When did you tell him that %

A. I told him that the first part of—it was either

the very end of Jmie or the first part of July.

Q. Was that after you had paid him the money ?

A. That was right around the time I paid him

the money. He was here twice. I can't recall which

time.

Q. Was there anybody present besides you and

Mr. Hilts when this conversation went on ?

A. I don't know whether there was or not.

Q. As to the moneys owing either you or the

company, by one or the other, what would you say

was the amount that either one of you owed to the

other at this time ? [17] A. At this time ?

Mr. Bernard: May I uiterrupt here just a mo-

ment? We have served a notice to produce the

audit made by Goldrainer & Sawtell or Sawtell,

Goldrainer & Company—whatever it is—have you

got that with you?

Mr. Smith: I do not have that with me, but I

think it can be obtained. I think it is in Mr. Ran-
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kin's file. Tlie reason tliut we did not produce it

is that we do not think we are required to produce

it. If the Court orders us to produce it, we will

b(^ jjjhxd to pi'oduce it.

Mr. Bernard: Well, T want to say to the witness

that if he needs any documentary evidence in order

to answer the question intelligently, he is entitled

to have it.

Mr. Smith : Well, I will jKit the question to the

witness and then we will let him answer it.

Mr. Stott : Mr, Brewer, did you understand what

Mr. Bernard said.

A. Will you repeat the question?

Mr. Stott : Repeat the question. Read the ques-

tion, Mr. Reporter.

(Question read.)

A. I can't say the exact amount because of not

having the audit.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : To the best of your knowl-

edge, what do you believe the amomit to be?

A. I don't know. I wouJd hate to say unless I

had the audit [18] and inventory of equipment

turned over to them.

Q. Are j^ou contending that the company owes

you any money? A. I am.

Q. How much are you contending that they owe

to you?

A. I don't know any i)articular figures except

I believe the audit will show around $2,000.
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Q. Have you at any time stated what you believe

the company owes you?

A. They won't talk to me. They won't even get

on the phone.

Q. I asked you if you have ever stated

A. I cannot.

Q. You have not stated it ? A. No.

Q. Do you deny that you owe any money to the

company? A. As a final settlement, yes.

Q. Did you at any time make a claim for $700

by reason of your performance of the contract as

modified? A. I cannot contact any of them.

Q. You have not answered the question.

A. I tried to.

Mr. Stott: Read it.

(Question read.)

A. Not to them.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : Did you make it through

your attorneys? A. In an affidavit. [19]

Q. In an affidavit?

A. Yes, or answer, I would say.

Q. So, in your pleadings you do contend that

the company is indebted to you in the sum of $700

by reason of your performance of the contract as

modified? A. I imagine I did.

Q. You also contend that the reasonable value

of the supplies and equipment belonging to your-

self and turned over by you to the plaintiff is the

reasonable amount of $1,350?
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A. That is as far as I can say, without the in-

ventory that we took at that time.

Mr. Smith : At this time I want to advise you

that I do have the books of the company, the books

that Mr. Brewer kept, and they are available to

you if you want them. You can also take them

providing—they will be given to you as an attorney.

Mr. Bernard: The books from which this Saw-

tell, Goldrainer & Company audit was made?

Mr. Smith: Yes. Do you want these books?

Mr. Bernard : I want the audit.

Mr. Smith: Do you want the books?

Mr. Bernard: No, I don't want the books now.

I may want them later. If I do, I will ask for them.

Mr. Smith : I wanted to make the offer and

wanted it to be in the record that I did offer you

the books at this time.

Q. Mr. Brewer, do you recall giving to the Para-

mount Pest Control [20] Service, on February 6,

1947, a check for $338?

A. I don't recall the figures or why that was

given.

Mr. Bernard : At the pre-trial hearing the Court

permitted these exhibits to be marked with the

understanding that we would be permitted an in-

spection of them. When will you be through with

them so that we can have them?

Mr. Smith: Any time now\

Mr. Bernard: All right.
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Q. (By Mr. Smith) : This check dated Febru-

ary 6th in the sum of $338, signed by Rosalie

Brewer, that is the check I am referring to*. Bid you

cause that check to be made out and given to the

Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. I am responsible for it.

Q. That is right.

A. That is all I can say. I don't recall—I can

imderstand it now.

Q. So, you did give that check to Mr. Hilts at

that time? A. No, it was mailed to them.

Q. And this is the statement which you prepared

along with it? A. Yes, that is the statement.

Q. Is there any explanation you want to make

of it at this time?

A. 1250 of that was half of the $500 I had paid

them before Hilts and I tangled the first of March.

Q. So, then, you did recognize the franchise

agreement up until that time? [21]

A. I always recognized it as modified. This was

to apply on moneys due to them.

Q. Then, is it your contention that this check

(Plaintiff's Pre-Trial Exhibit No. 30) which you

gave them, for $338—what was that payment for?

A. That was for Invoice No. 2733, Invoice No.

2776 and Invoice No. 2707 and $250 to apply to the

franchise.

Q. This $250 to apply to the franchise, was that

on a fifty-fifty basis or a 20 per cent basis ?

A. That was the fifty-fifty basis.
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Q. Tliat check is Exliibit No. 30, isn't it?

A. Yes.

Q. And the nienioranduni tliat we are speaking

of is Exliibit No. 31? A. Yes.

Q. Now, I will ask you, Mr. Brewer, if this is

your signature on this check dated March 6, 1947?

A. It is.

Q. We are speaking of Exhibit No. 30?

A. Right.

Q. That is a check for $250 to the Paramount

Pest Control Service? A. Right.

Q. And that is to apply on the 1946 franchise?

A. Right.

Q. Is that $250 calculated on a fifty-fifty basis

or a 20 per cent [22] basis ?

A. On a fifty-fifty basis.

Q. I show you a check dated March 13, 1947,

being Exhibit No. 34. That check is signed by you,

is it not ? A. It is.

Q. Payable to the Paramount Pest Control

Service? A. Yes.

Q. In amount $494.25? A. Right.

Q. Is that correct? A. Yes, sir.

Q. I notice on the memorandum, Exhibit No. 35^

which accompanied it, that you have here listed

*' Franchise Bal. for January ajid February," and

that franchise balance is $494.25, That is the cor-

rect amount, is it not?

A. That is what that covers, yes.

Q. You made up those figures, didn't you?

A. No, I didn't.
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Q. You recognized those figures to be correct,

didn't you?

A. I recognized that is what blew up the band-

wagon with Paramount and myself.

Q. But that was the amount which Mr. Hilts

submitted to you?

A. That is the amount he submitted.

Q. And, in turn, you wrote out a check for

$494.25? A. I did. [23]

Q. And that was the odd figure that would leave

a balance of $500 ?

A. That $500 had been paid.

Q. That is correct. Thank you for the correc-

tion. Then, that would pay it in full ?

A. That paid that statement in full, yes.

Q. This franchise, how is that figured, on what

basis ?

A. That is these other two checks of $250—
fifty-fifty net profits.

Q. Is the franchise for January and February

computed on a fifty-fifty basis or on a 20 per cent

basis ?

A. That statement was handed to me as a 20

per cent.

Q. Yes.

A. And I would not accept it. I did pay the

$494.25 only because I knew that I owed them at

least $494.

Q. But this is the statement and it was computed

on a 20 per cent basis? A. It was.
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Q. You were told by Mr. Ililts at tliat time

that the amount owing on the franchise was $994.25,

and that it was com})uted on a 20 per cent basis 'J'

A. He told irie that and I told him I was through

with him.

Q. But, nevertheless, you did pay liim the sum

of $494.25 on that statement? A. I did. [24]

Q. At that time did Mr. Hilts show you these

figures which are represented by Exhibit No. 36?

A. I don't know.

Q. I will ask you whether or not this is in your

handwriting, Exhibit No. 36?

A. That is in my handwriting, yes.

Q. And on that document which I refer to as

being in your handwriting, Mr. Brewer, is written

*'July 9, 1947, paid Check No. 413, $259.61." That

is your handwriting?

A. That is my handwriting, yes.

Q. You knew what you were writing when you

wrote it? A. I knew what I was writing.

Q. What? A. I did.

Q. 1 will ask you, Mr. Brewer, if that does not

represent a computation made at tliat time by Mr.

Hilts on the 20 ])er cent basis?

A. I don't know whether it is 20 per cent or not.

Q. That is wdiat you understood at the timef

Mr. Stott: What are you referring to, that

exhibit?

Mr. Bernard : That exhibit, No. 36.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : AVill you answer the

question? A. I can't answer that question.
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Q. Wlien you paid this check for $259.61 that

was a payment on a balance owing to the company

as represented by Mr. Hilts, is [25] that right ?

A. That is the check I gave them to knock off

the end and leave an even figure only, which I did

not have a chance to study nor understand at the

time.

Q. So, then, it is your contention that when you

paid him this check for $259.61 you did not have

any opportmiity to go over the figures %

A. I hadn't.

Q. Why didn't you?

A. Because I was in and out of town, and he

pulled a balance of the books and handed me a

statement showing what I owed him. If it looked

right to me as I understood the books, there wasn't

too much argument; if it did not look right to me,

there was an argument.

Q. Did this look right to you?

A. It didn't look right to me.

Q. Then why did you pay it ?

A. I gave it to him only because he wanted to

take home some money.

Q. You never wrote any letter confirming that,

did you? A. No.

Q. You haven't anything in writing confirming

that?

A. I only told him that I would carry it during

the month of July and I was done with it.

Q. Was anybody present when you told him

that? [26]
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A. I don't recall whether there was or not.

Q. Mr. Brewer, who kept th(; books of the Para-

mount Pest Control Service? A. T did.

Q. When you say you kept the books, you mean

you made all of the entries yourself ? A. No.

Q. The entiles were made either by you or your

wife? A. Most of them were.

Q. Who else made entries?

A. Harold Hilts.

Q. Who? A. Harold Hilts.

Q. Did he make any wrongful entries in -the

books? A. Not to my knowledge. - /.

Q. All of the entries which were made by your

wife were made under your direction and super-

vision ? A. Right. • !
;

Q. So you do admit responsibility of keeping

those books ? A.I do.

Q. Are those books correct?

A. To the best of our ability.

Q. And they are understandable by you?

A. They are.

Q. At any time, did you ever have an audit

made of those books ? [27]

A. Not by a certified public accountant. •

Q. Who did you have audit them? "v .^v^v

A. There was no complete audit ever pulled" on

them.

Q. What partial audit was made? ; ;•

A. Harold Hilts was supposed to have pulled

an audit somewhere around the first of March for

income tax purposes.
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Q. Was there any person, other, than Harold

Hilts, that ever made a partial or complete audit

of the books? A. Xot of the books, no.

Q. Well, of vour accounts, then? A. No.

Q. Did you ever have any bookkeeping service

that would check your books and your accounts ?

A. No.

Q. Or any accounting service of any kmd?
A. No.

Q. So, the only accountants who ever worked on

the books, that is, to your knowledge, were you and

your wife and Mr. Hilts ?

A. Until I left them, yes. I will take that back.

The books were set up by a bookkeeper for Para-

mount Pest Control Service, Mrs. Jacobs. She

worked for the first or second month, some time

around the first of July or August, something like

that.

Q. Mr. Brewer, the only written notice that you

ever gave to the company of the termination of this

franchise was your letter of July 24th, correct ? [28]

A. The only written

Q. Is that right? A. That is right.

Q. You had a copy of your sales agent's agree-

ment with the Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. I had.

Q. And do you recognize that it has a provision

in there as to how the agreement should be termi-

nated? A. It does.
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Q. And, at the time yovi sent this notice out,

you were acquainted witJi the provision whicli re-

quired that the agreement could be canceled Ijy

either pai-ty on ninety days' written notice?

A. I was acquainted with it.

Q. Why did you not abide by that jn-ovision?

A. Because they would have broke me if I had.

Q. What do you mean by saying they would

have broke you if you did tliat?

A. They would have tried to grab my books,

equipment and supplies, if I tried to stay with

them ninety days.

Q. Is that the only reason?

A. I notified them that I would not continue

with them beyond the month of July and I wrote

them a letter confirming that.

Q. When you say you wrote them a letter con-

firming that, that is the letter of July 24th?

A. It is. [29]

Q. When you asked them to accept your resigna-

tion as of August 1st? A. Right.

Q. The reason that you did not give them ninety

days' notice is that, if you had, they would have

broken you? A. Right.

Q. That is the only reason you did not give them

the ninety days ' notice ? A. Right.

Q. Mr. Brewer, after you ceased working under

this franchise agreement, what did you do? Did

you go into the pest control service ?

A. I went into business for myself under my
own name.



496 Paramount Pest Control Service

(Deposition of Charles P. Brewer.)

Q. You say that you went into business for your-

self under your own name. Is it not a fact, Mr.

Brewer, that you first went into business under

the name of Rosalie Brewer?

A. Yes. She signed the assumed name certifi-

cate. She is my wife.

Q. Yes, and that, in truth and in fact, was just

a dumm}^ organization, as far as she was concerned ?

A. No. She owns half of my business, re-

gardless.

Q. The first business that you went into, that

was called what? A. Brewer's Pest Control.

Q. Who filed the assumed business name certifi-

cate? A. My wife. [30]

Q. Did that certificate show you as having an

interest in the business? A. No.

Q. So you did not have a half interest in the

business? A. My wife and I owned it.

Q. But the original certificate which was on file

did not show you as a part owner ? A. No.

Q. After that Mr. Brewer, did you have your

wife withdraw that assumed business name certifi-

cate? A. Yes, she withdrew it.

Q. And, simultaneously, did you file a new as-

sumed business name certificate? A. I did.

Q. In that new certificate what did that show

regarding who was the owner of Brewer 's Pest Con-

trol Service ? A. Showed myself as the owner.

Q. Does it show your wife as a part owner?

A. No.

Q. Is she or is she not a part owner?
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A. There is a eommimity property law in Oie-

gon. Slie owns half of anything tliat is mine.

Q. Js that the only way that she has any inter-

est in it, by virtue of the community property law ?

A. Well, and being my wife, yes. [31]

Q. But she did not invest any money in it?

A. Our money was invested.

Q. Why was it, when you first went into busi-

ness, you did not use your own name?

A. I was too busy working Paramount business.

I didn 't want to take the time off to go up and file it.

Q. When was that filed? A. I don't re-

member.

Q. Is it not a fact it was filed on or about July

30th? A. On or about there, yes.

Q. Yes, and, to the best of your knowledge, it

was July 30th ? A. I suppose it was.

Q. You say the only reason that you had it filed

in her name was that you were too busy to do it

yourself? A. I was working as Paramount.

Q. Yes.

A. I did not feel like going up and filing any

assumed name certificate under the name of Brewer.

Q. Why?
A. T was busy and I was still with the Para-

mount.

Q. Was it for both of those reasons?

A. I was busy.

Q. Then, the fact you were still working for

Paramount did not make any difference?

A. Made a lot of difference. [32]
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Q. Well, I want you to tell the whole story. Just

don't answer one question halfway. Tell us why

it is that you had her fill out the assumed business

name certificate instead of you having it filled out

yourself. Tell us the whole story.

A. She could go out without interfering with

Paramount business. I could not.

Q. What do you mean by that?

A. Well, I was working in the interest of the

company named Paramoimt Pest Control Service.

Q. In other words, you felt you would be vio-

lating your franchise ?

A. No. I felt I would be violating my own

personal interests if I would take time off from

Paramount business to go and file an assumed name

certificate.

Q. In other words, you felt you owed all your

time to the Paramount interests? A. I did.

Q. And, being scrupulous about that, you did

not even want to take time off to go up to the Court

House to file this certificate? A. Right.

Q. Is it not a fact that you could have just

signed your name to the certificate and sent some-

body up to the Court House to file it for you?

A. Someone had to go up and get it.

Q. But the only reason that you put it in her

name was that you did not want to take the time

to go to the Court House, but you [33] wanted to

devote all your time to the Paramount Pest Control

Service? A. That is right.
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Q. Mr. Brewer, this assumed name of Brewer's

Pest Control, wlien did you coniuienee to woi'k for

it? A. August 1st.

Q. So you did work for your wife"?

A. We owu it together.

Q. So, since August 1st, you have beeu working

for Brewer's Pest Control, originally tiled by

Kosalie Brewer and then subsequently filed ])y you?

A. Right.

Q. And continuously all the time, right u}) to

the present moment ? A. Right.

Q. When did you first get the idea that you

would go into business for yourself?

A. In June, 1947, the end of June or the first

of July.

Q. Was that after Mr. Ililts left ?

A. Right.

Q. Try to fix the date, as best you can, if you

will, Mr. Brewer?

A. Oh, some time between the 9tli and 24th of

July.

Q. Some time between the 9th and 24th of July

is the first time you had definitely made up your

mind you were going to quit the Paramount Pest

Control Service? [:U] A. No.

Q. All right. Tell me when you had made up

your mind you definitely were going to quit the

Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. The end of June.

Q. The end of June?
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A. Yes. I told them I was ; told both Hilts and

Sibert.

Q. The end of June? A. I did.

Q. What date was that? Fix it.

A. Some time after the 25th.

Q. Some time after the 25th did you make an

unequivocal statement to Hilts and Sibert you were

going to quit Paramount Pest Control?

A. I told them I would carry the business

through the month of March—or July, rather.

Q. Yes. So there could have been no doubt in

their minds but what that was an oral notification

to them that you would work through the month of

July but no longer for Paramount Pest Control

Service ?

A. I don't know what to say. You start off to

say one thing and then change to another.

Q. You answer it.

A. If it can be read so I can understand it

(Question read.)

A. None whatever. [35]

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : Is that correct?

A. That is right.

Q. Prior to telling them that, Mr. Brewer, how
long prior to that had you made up your mind you

were going to go into the pest control service for

yourself ?

A. I hadn't made up my mind to do it.

Q. When did you make up your mind you were

going into the pest control service ?
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A. Some time in the month of July.

Q. Appjoximately when'?

A. Oh, between the 10th and 25th.

Q. Between the 10th and 25th, and when was

it that you made out your last cheek to Mr. Hilts?

A. I imagine somewhei'e around the 9th of July.

Q. The 9th of July?

A. I suppose. It is one of the exhibits here.

Q. Did you make up your mind you were going

into the pest control service for yourself before or

after you gave the company their last check ?

A. It was after.

Q. How soon after?

A. I couldn't say the exact date.

Q. About when?

A. Somewhere between a week or two weeks.

Q. When did you first begin to solicit Para-

mount Pest Control [36] Service customers?

A. The first day of August.

Q. And prior to that did you solicit any of their

customers? A. None whatever.

Q. Prior to that time did you tell any of their

customers that Paramount Pest Control Service was

not going to be rendering •i)est control service any

longer? A. I did not.

Q. Did you advise them that there was going to

be a change ? A. Who ?

Q. Any of the customers that you were servicing

for Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. Oh, yes. I notified some that I was leaving

Paramount.
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Q. When was the first time that you notified

any customers that you were leaving Paramount

Pest Control Service?

A. After I made up my mind to.

Q. Fix that on a calendar date.

A. Oh, well, it would be some time during July.

Q. During the month of June you never told

any customers you were leaving Paramount?

A. I had no intention of it at that time.

Q. But during the month of July you did ?

A. I told a few, yes.

Q. When you say you told a few, how many did

you tell ? A. I have no idea. [37]

Q. Well, then, if you have no idea, how can you

say you told a few ?

Mr. Bernard: I object to the question as being

argumentative; object to the form of the question.

Mr. Smith : Can it be answered ?

Mr. Bernard: Surely.

A. I don't know whether

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : Would you name some of

them that you told ?

A. I told Safeway Stores, Incorporated.

Q. Who else?

A. I told Albers Milling Company.

Q. Yes.

A. Fisher Flouring Mills—no, I didn't. Hudson-

Duncan Company.

Q. Who else? A. I know of those three.

Q. What did you tell them?
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A. I lold them that I was leaving Paramount.

Q. J)i(hi't you also tell them you were going into

business for yourself?

A. I don't know whether I did or not.

Q. Didn't you also tell them you could render

the same service to them ?

A. I told them that the first of July, or the first

day of August. 1 told them I could do that.

Q. Did you ever tell anyone, prior to the first

day of August, [38] that you could render pest

control service?

A. T don't remember the exact—not the exact

time.

Q. 1 think if you will just take a second to think

it over, Mr. Brewer, you can definitely say whetlier

or not you told any Paramount Pest Control cus-

tomer, prior to August 1st, that you could render

them pest control service.

Mr. Bernard: I object to that as not being a

question. It is merely a statement to the witness

that if he thinks it over he can definitely state some-

thing. There is no question.

Mr. Smith : That is right.

Q. Bearing in mind what I have said, Mr.

Brewer, 1 will ask you the same question again.

Would you care to answer it ?

A. What question?

Q. Wliether you told any Paramount Pest Con-

trol customers, prior to August 1st, that you could

render, as an individual, pest control service to

them ?
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A. I probably told one or two tliat I could.

Q. Then the purpose of telling them that was

to get their business?

A. I was asked what I was going to do, probably.

Q. As a matter of fact, on August 1st, you

stepped right in and took over a great number of

Paramount Pest Control Service customers?

A. No. We went soliciting August 1st.

Q. Of course, when you went soliciting, you went

to those whom [39] you, as a Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service agent, had previously solicited and

served? A. Some of them were, yes.

Q. Whom did you talk to at Hudson-Duncan?

A. Herb Lacey.

Q. At Albers, you talked to Mr. Flanagan ?

A. Right.

Q. Fisher Flouring Mills, did you talk to Mi^s

Dayton? A. I don't know.

Q. Some woman there anyway?

A. Some woman there. I never talked to Fisher

Flouring Mills myself.

Q. Safeway Stores, you talked to Mr. Blair

there ? A. Right.

Q. Who are some of the others that you had

spoken to ? A. Those are the ones I remember.

Q. How about over at this Pioneer Fruit Com-

pany ?

A. I never talked to anyone in Pioneer Fruit.

Q. Did you talk to any of these fruit people

over there ? A. I did not.
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Q. 'riiere is one other thing I want to gel to.

When you set ii]) tliis Brewer Pest Conti-ol Sei'vice,

whom did you hire to work for you'^

A. August 1st, I hired Raymond Riglitmire.

Q. What other men did you hive? [40]

A. And Earl Merriott, shoi-tly thereafter oi* at

that time. I don't rememl)ei' the exact dates.

Q. Following that, whom did you hire?

A. 1 hired Carl Duncan somewhere around the

20t]i of August.

Q. When did you hire Merriott ?

A. Some time around the first of August.

Q. When did you hire Rightmire?

A. The first of August.

Q. Whom else did you have working for you?

A. That was all.

Q. These three men, Riglitmire, Merriott and

Duncan, all three of them were employees of Para-

mount Pest Control Service ? A. Formerly.

Q. Yes. And these men knew the customers of

the Paramount Pest Control Service in the Oregon

vicinity %

A. They had a list of the territory that they

were to service.

Q. And they had serviced Paramount Pest Con-

trol customers and they still had that list with them ?

A. No.

Q. What happened to that list?

A. It was left at the office.

Q. Were any copies ever made of that list?

A. No, sir.
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Q. Even though copies were not made, Mr.

Brewer, you boys could, by memory, know the prin-

cipal customers of the Paramount Pest Control [41]

Service? A. We could remember some.

Q. In going your routes and soliciting customers,

you, of course, would pick up these old customers

of the Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. If they wanted our service, if they ordered

our service, we serviced them.

Q. You would solicit them, would you not?

A. We solicited not only Paramount but others.

Q. When you would go in to solicit their service,

their business, what would you tell them?

A. Tell them we were the Brewer Pest Control

looking for customers.

Q. What would you tell them, as far as the Para-

mount Pest Control Service was concerned?

A. We didn't tell them anything about the

Paramount Pest Control Service.

Q. Did you, at any time, ever say that the Para-

mount Pest Control Service was not servicing these

customers in this vicinity?

A. I never said that, nor any of my men.

Q. Mr. Brewer, at the termination of this agree-

ment, did you turn over to the Paramount Pest Con-

trol Service all of the stocks and merchandise,

chemicals and equipment that you had previously

used for pest control service?

A. After they agreed to settle according to an

audit of the books [42] made by a Portland concern.
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I agreed to turn over the equipment to theiri. An

inventory was taken of* all supplies and equipmc^nt

and office equipment and supplies, and I turned it

over to them, all except two articles which, were

inventoried and are still waiting for them to come

and get.

Q. What two articles were they?

A. It is a spray trailer and a fog machine.

Q. Where are those articles now ?

A. Those articles are at my home.

Q. They can come out and get them any time

they want to ? A. Yes. I told them that.

Q. Other than these two pieces of equipment, did

you retain any of their chemicals?

A. None whatever.

Q. Did you retain any of their stock?

A. Their stock—you are speaking as a corpora-

tion, and it was all my equipment and stock. I did

not retain it.

Q. In other words, you considered that you had

bought these supplies and they were yours ?

A. It was my money.

Q. Those things, you did not timi in to the

company ?

A. Those things, I turned all of them in to the

company.

Q. You did?

A. All except those two articles, one of which I

would have to park out on the street, and the other

one—I couldn't locate [43] it at that particular

time. The boys had it.
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Q. I am afraid you do not understand my ques-

tion. In pest control service you need poisons and

supplies, tilings of that kind ? A. We do.

. Q. Did you turn all of these poisons and supplies

and other chemicals back to the company ?

A. I turned over the warehouse keys and all

supplies in it, also the ofiice.

Q. You did not answer my question directly.

A. I did.

Q. Did you turn back every bit of poisons and

supplies which you had previously used?

A. I turned back all supplies and equipment on

hand.

Q. When you started out on August 1st, what

poisons and supplies did you have?

A. Only what I went out and bought.

Q. Where did you buy them?

A. At the chemical warehouses around town.

Q. From whom did you buy most of them?

A. I bought some of them from this and that and

the other.

Q. Where are they located ?

A. Northwest district. I don't know their ad-

dresses off hand. I bought from McKesson & Rob-

bins, I bought from Northern Wholesale Hardware

Company, the Chown Hardware Comi^any [44]

Q. Did you buy them for cash or did you set up

accounts with them?

A. No. Some of those were paid by accounts and

some were paid by cash.
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Q. In other words, all the supplies, poisoiih,

chemicals and other equipment which you used sub-

sequent to August 1st were things that you went out

and bought yourself as distinct from supplies which

you got from the Paramount Pest (,'ontrol Serviced

A. I believe that is misstated. J don't under-

stand it.

Q. Will you state it correctly, then.

A. What was the question?

(Question read.)

A. Those were all the snme sup])lies I had used

prior to August 1st.

Q. What J hixyQ been trying to get at for the last

fifteen minutes is: What have you done with all of

the supplies and equipment which you had received

from the Paramount Pest Control Sei'vice?

A. Didn't receive any from them. 1 left

—

all

supplies and equipment that I had on hand as of

July 31st I left there.

Q. Yes. Then, if such is true, doesn't it follow,

as a matter of fact, that all of the chemicals, sup-

plies and equipment, poisons and merchandise,

which you used in the Brewer Pest Control Service

subsequent to August 1st were equipment, supplies,

merchandise and poisons wliich you bought sep-

arately and did not [45] receive from the Para-

mount Pest Control Service?

A. I bought all supplies and equipment used in

the Brewer Pest Control Service after the first of

August.
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Q. Did you buy any before *? A. No.

Q. All that you bought after August 1st you

would naturally ])uy from someone other than

Paramount ? A. Right.

Q. So, all of the equipment, poisons and things

that you had on hand or which you obtained from

the Paramount Pest Control Service were either

used up or left in the warehouse and turned back to

Paramount ?

A. I had bought all the supplies and equipment

in the State of Oregon for Paramount Pest Control

Service, but I left all that with Paramount.

Q. In other words, you did not take anything

with you when you left there?

A. I did not take any supplies or equipment of

Paramount.

Q. And you did not take any of their poisons ?

A. No.

Q. Did you take any of their formulas ?

A. They did not have any formulas.

Q. Did you take any of their records ?

A. No, I didn't.

Q. Mr. Brewer, regarding this car which you

purchased, what [46] was that purchased with?

Whose funds? A. My own.

Q. Is that money you took out of the business?

A. Money I wrote a check out of the business for.

Q. Did you consider that money in the business ?

Did you consider that your money or Paramount 's

money ?
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A. It was iny money. J liad opened a bank ac-

count with my own money and J operated from that

bank acconnt.

Q. So, the money whicli you used to buy that car

witli was your own personal funds .^

A. It was my company funds.

Q. You were not indebted to the company at that

time ?

A. What do you mean, indebted to the company ?

Q. That was not money owing to the company at

that time? A. What company?

Q. Paramount. A. Corporation?

Q. Yes. A. I may have owed them money.

Q. But it was not due ?

A. It could not have been due because I did not

have it to pay to them,

Q. What?
A. I did not have money to pay to them. They

could not press me for payment according to our

agreement. [47]

Q. I see.

\ A. And when they refused to furnish me a car

or truck or any conveyance, I told them I had to

have a car and Ted Sibert told me personally that I

had to go and buy one if I wanted it.

Q. Did you go out and buy one? A. I did.

Q. When did you buy it ?

A. I don't remember the date.

Q. You can give us the approximate date.

A. I don't know\ It is someplace in your. com-

plaint I think.
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Q. Give us the date the best you can.

A. I don 't have any idea ; somewhere in that

spring.

Q. March?

A. Some time between March and June.

Mr. Stott: What year?

A. 1947.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : The money which you took

to buy that with was money that was drawn out of

the Paramount Pest Control account?

A. In Portland, yes.

Q. That car, was that put in the name of the

Paramomit Pest Control Service?

A. It was not.

Q. Was it put in your own personal name?

A. It was put in my personal name. [48]

Q. Do you have that car now? A. I do.

Q. Do you use that car in the business ?

A. I do.

Q. Mr. Brewer, you of course are acquainted

with this clause in the contract which x)i'Ovides:

.'*The agent further agrees that for a period of three

years after the termination of this agreement, or his

period of employment, he will not, directly or in-

directly, communicate or divulge to or make use of

for the benefit of any person, partnership or cor-

poration any of the trade secrets, formulas, process-

ing methods of the company, or the names, addresses

or requirements of any of the customers of the com-

pany or any other information related to the com-
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I)any's f)usiiiess whicli he may liav(* acquired or

Icairied during his emj)loyment."

Have you lived u]) to tliat provision ?

Mr. Bernard: I object to that as calling lor a

conclusion of the witness, calling for his opinion on

the issues as framed by the pleadings.

Mr. Smitli : Can he answer it, subject to tlie

objection?

Mr. Bernaid: No, I will not have him answer

that unless the Court orders it.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : Then, in this agreement,

you agreed further that you would not, either as an

employee, employer or otherwise, canvass, solicit or

cater to any of the customers of the company [49]

which you may have known by virtue of your em-

ployment. You have, however, solicited these cus-

tomers, have you?

A. I have solicited firms that were at one time

on Paramount 's books.

Q. Do you consider it is your right to go into

the pest control service in this area?

'A. There is nothing that says 1 can't in the

contract.

Q. There is a provision in the contract which

prohibits you from canvassing or soliciting these

customers, isn't there?

Mr. Bernard: I object to that as the contract

speaks for itself.

Mr. Smith: That is true, but I want to get this

man's idea on it.
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Mr. Bernard : His ideas are framed by the plead-

ings in this case, set out in writing. If you want

to inquire as to the fact as to what he has done, I

have no objection, but as to his opinion as to the

legal conclusion that followed from his actions, then

I object to that. In other words, you are asking for

his opinion on the legal questions involved in this

case. I have no objection to your asking what he

has done; I haven't the slightest objection. Then it

will be for the Court to say whether or not what he

has done is a violation of the contract under the

issues in the case and the facts in the case.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : Mr. Brewer, all the time

that you were worldng as agent for the Paramount

Pest Control Service, they were [50] a California

corporation; you, of course, knew that they were a

corporation?

A. I knew—I understood they were a corpora-

tion.

Q. You dealt with them as such?

A. As such.

Q. Yes. When is the first time you told the

Paramount Pest Control Service, if you told them

at all, that you were going into the pest control

service for yourself? A. About August 6th.

Q. So you were already in the business before

you notified them of it ? A. Yes.

Q. When you notified them of it, they had al-

ready known it before anyway ?

A. They asked me if I was.



vs. Charles P. Brewer, et al. 515

(Deposition of Cliavles V. J^niwer.)

C^. In other woi'ds, not so much a notification as

it was an admission ? A. Ri^lit.

Q. Mr. Brewei", if I understand you corre('tly,

regarding this conti'act, your only contention of a

breach is your contention that Mr. Hilts insisted on

a division of 20 per cent instead of the agreed divi-

sion of fifty-fifty, as made by him and Ted Sibert?

A. No, Ted Sibert revoked that himself in the

I)resence of Hilts, stating it would go back on a

20 i3er cent the first day of July. I told him 1 would

not have anytliing to do with them on a 20 per [51]

cent basis.

Q. When did he say that?

A. About tlie first of July.

Q. He said that about the first of July?

A. Yes.

Q. Who was present at that time?

A. I don't remember all that were there. It

was in the office of the corporation there in Oakland.

Q. But othei' than this question of whether it

should be a 20 per cent basis or fifty-fifty basis, you

did not make any other contention that the company

breached their contract?

A. They breached it on one point. They tried

to run it back to 20 per cent and 1 would not operate

imder that setup.

Q. As far as your present frame of mind is con-

cerned, you had no other complaint ?

A. I had lots of complaints.
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Q. Well, I mean complaints that were serious

enough to be considered a breach of contract.

A. Not any one of them.

. Q. Then what were your complaints in the

aggregate ?

A. It would take a long tune to try to enumerate

them.

Q. We have got the time. Go ahead and enu-

merate them.

. A. Well, for one thing, I couldn't trust them.

Q. You couldn 't trust whom f

A. They had broken too many managers over too

many pretenses [52] that I knew of up and down

the Coast; they had gotten too many managers in

the red by making them borrow money to give to

them ; they were always after me to try to get me to

borrow money and give to them; they tried to get

me to change my personal automobile from my name

into the name of the Paramount Pest Control Serv-

ice; in twelve months' time they were after me at

least nine times to do that; and I knew they had

broken managers up and down tlie line and run in

and grabbed supplies and equipment. I knew they

could not be trusted when they would not live up to

their contracts and I broke from them.

Q. Anything else.

A. That is a part of it ; a good part of it.

Q. What is the other parti

A. That is the majority of it.

Q. Is there anything else that is of any concern,

that is not trivial? A. Not too much so, no.
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Q. Mr. Brewer, what did you insti-uct Rightmire

and Duncan and Merriott to say when they ap-

proached eustoiners ?

A. I neve I* instructed them to say anytliing.

Q. In other words, they were on their own to say

anything they chose?

A. No. Tliey were not to knock anybody. That

has always been my policy.

Q. I appreciate that, but as to what explanation

that they [e5l5] should give as to why tliey were not

with Paramount any more "?

A. Tliey were working for Brewer's Pest

Control.

Q. Did you instruct them to alw^ays tell cus-

tomers, before they went in to make a sei-vice dnd

when they went in to make a canvass—did you in-

struct them to always explain to the customer that

they were not any longer working for Paramount

Pest Control Service?

A. I never instructed them on any sales talk.

They are men of integrity and they would not go in

talking about Paramount Pest Control Service

when they were working for the Brewer's Pest

Control.

Q. So you never gave them any instructions as to

what to say when they approached a customer ?

A. Never at any time.

Q. Regarding yovu'self, Mr. Brewer, when you

approached a customer, did you always explain to

the customer that you were no longer w^orking for

Paramount Pest Control Service?
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A. If it ever came up and they ever asked me,

I did.

Q. If they did not ask you

A. I told them I was with Brewer 's Pest Control.

Q. But you always skii3ped around that tender

point as best you could, is that right"?

A. There was no tender point.

Q. But you would never tell them, then, that you

were no longer representing the Paramount . Pest

Control Service, unless [54] they asked you?

A. If they had known I had been with Para-

mount Pest Control Service, I told them that I was

in business for myself under my own name.

Q. Did you do that in every instance?

A. Lord, no.

Q. So, tliere were instances, then, when you

would go in and do a servicing job for someone who

had previously been served by you when you were

working for Paramount Pest Control Service, and

at that time you neglected to tell them you were in

business for yourself?

A. They seldom asked me if I was. If so, I

always said yes. I solicited lots of accounts I had

never known before, never had been near under the

name of Paramount. I went in and told them I

was Brewer's Pest Control, and as to any accounts

that had previously been Paramount Pest Control

Service accoimts, I went in and told them I was

Brewer's Pest Control.
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Q. Any time you served in your owji individual

capacdty some customer wlio was previously a Para-

mount l^est Control Service cnstomer, you always

told them that you were no longer with Paramount?

A. I did not mention Paramount. Our talk was,

when we entered a building, regardless of whether

it was a sales pitch or service, "We are Brewer's

Pest Control." That is the way we enter buildings.

Q. Is it not a fact, Mr. Brewer, that there are

instances when you would go ahead and do your job

and then it was not until the job was finished and

the ticket was written out for it, for the job, after

the job was completed, that you would tell the party

you were no longer connected with Paramount *?

A. No, sir. Any time we do service, the people

know they are having service from Brewer's Pest

Control.

Q. Every time? A. Always.

Q, Going back to this assumed business name,

the business, you say, was put in Rosalie Brewer's

name, principally because you did not have time to

go up to the Court House that particular afternoon

;

then, later on, her certificate was withdrawn and

yours w^as put on record. Does she have an interest

in that business? A. She is my wife.

Q. Yes. Well, did you figure that you and she

started out from scratch and that she helped you

in that business and, therefore, she had an interest

in the business ? Is that it ?

A. Half the money that is used or made is hei-s.
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Q. So she really would have an interest in the

business even though we did not have the community

property law?

A. The community property law makes

Q. You don't answer the question.

. A. What was the question *? [56]

Mr. Bernard: If you are not familiar enough

with the law to answer that, you are free to say so,

Mr. Brewer.

•A. Well, all I know is that, as my wife, she has

an interest in anything I have.

. Mr. Smith : Does she have that by virtue of the

fact that she is your wife or by virtue of the fact

that she worked in the business ?

. A. By virtue of the fact that she is my wife.

Q. Well, did she work in the business with you?

A. She is not on the paja^oll, if that is what you

mean.

Q. Does she come down to the ofBice and do any

work ?

A. She helps me out now and then wlien I need

help.

Q. Does she work in the office ?

A. She does when she helps, yes.

Q. You are a little evasive. I want you to come

right out and lay it right on the line.

A. She is not a paid employee. If there is any

office work to be done that I don't do and I ask her

to do it, she does it.

Q. How many hours a week or a month or how
much time does she put in?
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A. It vaiics; sometimes an liovii- a day, days

when she works ; two or three or four hours a week.

Q. In other words, she does not get any salary*?

A. None wliatsoever.

Q. But she does participate in the profits of the

company ? [57]

A. There hasn't been any profits. Any money

I make, she is bound to enjoy part of it as my wife.

Q. In other words, she can draw money out of

the company and use it for family expenses or for

buying her clothes'?

A. Not for herself, she cannot.

Q. How is it her money, then?

A. It isn't her money as long as it is in the

company.

Q. Then, is it your contention that she has an

interest in the business because of the community

property law?

A. No, by virtue of being my wife.

Q. And not by virtue of the fact that she does

any work ?

A. The work is not the reason that gives lier any

part of the business?

Q. What?
A. The work that she does is not the reason '.for

her owning any part of the business.

Q. In other words, you just feel that any wife

has a financial interest in her husband's business?

A. She has an interest ui it.

Q. You consider her as a part c»wner f

A. I consider her as mv wife.
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Q. Answer the question. Do you consider her

as a part owner ?

' A. As my wife, she owns anything I ow^i.

Q. In other words, you and your wife own the

business together? A. Under the law^, we do.

Q. So, then, you consider, as far as title to this

business is concerned, it is just as much your wife's

aS: it is yours ?

A. As much her business as mine, I suppose. I

don't know how the law would read on that.

Q. Getting back to this question which was not

answered, for the purpose of the record, Mr. Brewer,

I want it made clear. Mr. Bernard made an objec-

tion to your answering this question about you doing

business within a period of three years. Of course,

this is not Mr. Bernard's deposition. It is your

deposition but, nevertheless, he is your attorney and

apparently I would conclude he advises you not to

answer the question, so I want the record clear as

to whether you, Mr. Brewer, refuse to answer the

question.

Mr. Bernard: If it is the question I objected to,

he certainly does object to it and I will advise him

not to answer the question.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : You are, Mr. Brewer, of

course, following the advice of your attorney?

A. Of course.

. Q. I will ask you, in conducting this pest control

service for the Brewer Pest Control Service, are

you using the same methods or sunilar methods as

used with the Paramount Pest Control Service?
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A. I use niethods used f)y tlie [)est eontrol

industry.

Q. You have not answered my question. [•'39]

A. Paramount—I don't know all of their

methods. I know our methods. Our methods were

not always Paramount 's methods.

Q. But you do use Paramount 's methods?

A. 1 don't know what their methods are except

the ones—I know the methods that we use.

Q. Did you work in pest eontrol service before

working for Paramount Pest Control Service ?

A. 1 did not.

Q. Did you go through any period of training

with them ? A. One week.

Q. Whom did you work under ?

A. Carl Duncan.

Q. During this period of one week, did Carl

Duncan show you the way they eradicated insects

and various pests ?

A. As much as he could, he did, yes.

Q. Whereabouts did you work with Carl

Duncan? A. In Oakland, California.

Q. Working with him tliat one week, that is the

first time you ever had any pest control experience ?

A. It is.

Q. Then, after working that one week with Carl

Diaican, what did you do ? A. I went selling.

Q. Does that mean soliciting accounts?

A. Soliciting accoimts. [60]

Q. How long did you solicit accounts?

A. Oh, a week or two weeks.
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Q. Whora did you work under then ?

A. They had a sales manager, I think you might

call him, in the office that was more or less the head

of the personnel.

Q. Was that out of the Oakland office?

A. Right.

Q. After these two weeks selling, what did

you do ?

A. Did a little trouble shooting here and there.

Q. Who were you working under ?

A. The same party, personnel—John Kehoe.

Q. John what? A. John Kehoe.

Q. How long did you do this trouble shooting?

A. Oh, for a week or two.

Q. Then what did you do ?

A. I was shipped to Oregon.

Q. When you came up to Oregon, did you im-

mediately take over the Oregon office?

A. Shortly thereafter, yes. There was no office

at that time.

Q. You replaced Taylor, did you not?

A. Yes.

Q. Taylor had a place where he received office

phone calls? A. Yes.

Q. And stored supplies and things ? [61]

A. Yes, in his apartment.

Q. So you took over where Taylor left off?

A. Right.

Q. Who came up here to help you?
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A. Harold Hilts came u]) to liclp iiic ^^et the

l^ooks—to f'lieek the books over, and tlien lie went

back to California.

Q. Did any])o(ly else work with yon?

A. Not at that time. Had somebody working for

the company

Q. Who was that?

A. Some yonng fellow with a crippled leg.

Q. How long did he continue to work with you?

A. I took over the 10th of April and I think he

stayed on the payroll until the first of May.

Q. Then he was the only man working with you

from April to May ?

A. Here in Portland. There was one man on the

payroll in Salem.

Q. Then, after that, whom did you work with

that were Paramount Pest Control employees?

A. Some time around tlie first of May, Ted

Sibert came to Oregon and saw the condition I was

in, no help, no work, and he called California and

got Carl Duncan to come up and, shortly thereafter,

I hired Rightmire to go to work—and Carl Dun-

can—had him up and worked with him three or

four days, something like that. [62]

Q. Carl Duncan, is that the man who taught you

and Rightmire most of the tricks of pest control and

pest eradication?

A. All that he could, during the time that he

was with us.

Q. These methods you were taught while work-

ine: for the Paramount Pest Control Service, vou
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used tliose in your own biisiuess, or you use tliose in

your own business now? A. Hardly any.

Q. l>ut you do use some of them?

A. None that the entire pest control industry

does not use.

Q. Kegarding the formulas and poisons that von

put {iromid—you are not a chemist, are you ?

A. I am not.

Q. How did you learn to mix these poisons'?

A. By going to the County Agent and going and

talking to my competitors here in Portland.

Q. Did you learn any of that while you were

working for Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. No, they had no formulas.

Q. The Paramount Pest Control Service had

fornuilas, though, didn't they?

xV. They didn't have any to my knowledge; at

least, they could not supply me with any.

Q. Didn't they have poisons?

A. Yes, they had poisons.

Q. Didn't they supply you with poisons? [63]

A. Raw poisons, yes.

Q. Didn't they tell yoTi how the poisons were to

be mixed? A. How they were what?

Q. Mixed.

A. They were not mixed. They were bought

direct from the stores.

Q. Is it your contention that all the poisons used

by Paramount Pest Control Service are poisons

which can be bought over the counter from stores,

or prepared? A. Ahnost exclusively.
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Q. (live m(\ ili(^ oxccptions'?

A. Tlioy used to rnako a spray that they said

they made th(!ins(ilves. I have no idea what it was

or what it consisted of. It was fin-nishcd to iis in

))nlk, if we wanted to huy it.

Q. But all other poisons can be bought in stores

the same as patent medicines can be bought in

stores ?

A. 'I'o the best of my knowledge, they can.

Q. Is it your contention that there is no such

thing as secret formulas that the Paramount Pest

Control Service have that you used?

A. None that I ever heard of.

Q. You came to Oregon because you were sent

up here by Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. Right.

Q. And some of the customers that you are now

serving are customers that you met and knew of

because of work you did as [64] agent for the Para-

mount Pest Control Service?

A. Some of them.

Q. And those you have canvassed and solicited

to give their trade to you?

A. I have solicited some customers of theirs.

Mr. Smith : That is all that we have.

Mr. Bernard : I have a question or two that I

want to ask.

Mr. Smith: Before I forget about it, I might

reiterate that you are welcome to the books or the

exhibits any time you want them.
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used those in your own business, or you use those in

your own business now? A. Hardly any.

Q. But you do use some of them?

A. None that the entire pest control industry

does not use.

Q. Regarding the formulas and poisons that you

put around—you are not a chemist, are you ?

A. I am not.

Q. How did you learn to mix these poisons'?

A. By going to the County Agent and going and

talking to my competitors here in Portland.

Q. Did you learn any of that while you were

working for Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. No, they had no formulas.

Q. The Paramount Pest Control Service had

formulas, though, didn't they?

A. They didn't have any to my knowledge; at

least, they could not supply me with any.

Q. Didn't they have poisons?

A. Yes, they had poisons.

Q. Didn't they supply you with poisons? [63]

A. Raw poisons, yes.

Q. Didn't they tell you how the poisons were to

be mixed? A. How they were what?

Q. Mixed.

A. They were not mixed. They were bought

direct from the stores.

Q. Is it your contention that all the poisons used

by Paramount Pest Control Service are poisons

which can be bought over the counter from stores,

or prepared? A. Almost exclusively.
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Q. Give me the exceptions?

A. They used to make a spray that they said

they made themselves. I have no idea what it was

or what it consisted of. Tt was fin'nished to iis in

bulk, if we wanted to })uy it.

Q. But all other poisons can be bought in stores

the same as patent medicines can be bought in

stores ?

A. To the best of my knowledge, they can.

Q. Is it your contention that there is no such

thing as secret formulas that the Paramount Pest

Control Service have that you used?

A. None that I ever heard of.

Q. You came to Oregon because you were sent

up here by Paramount Pest Control Service?

A. Right.

Q. And some of the customers that you are now

serving are customers that you met and knew of

because of work you did as [64] agent for the Para-

mount Pest Control Service?

A. Some of them.

Q. And those you have canvassed nnd solicited

to give their trade to you ?

A. I have solicited some customers of theirs.

Mr. Smith : That is all that we have.

Mr. Bernard: 1 have a question or two that I

want to ask.

Mr. Smith: Before I forget about it, I might

reiterate that you are welcome to the books or the

exhibits any time you want them.
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Mr. Scott: We want the audit and you won't

give us that.

Mr. Smith: If you ask for it in the right man-

ner and the Court orders it, orders us to give it to

you, we will abide by the ruling of the Court.

Mr. Bernard: I should hope you would. That

is very generous of you.

Cross-Examination

By Mr. Bernard:

Q. In questioning you about one of these ac-

counts or statements that Hilts presented to you,

presented you with, Mr. Smith asked you if you had

written any letter denying the account that had been

reached between you and Hilts. As a matter of fact,

did you and Hilts reach any accounting?

A. Never reached an account.

Q. Now, about this inventory : Tell me what that

inventory was [65] and how it was delivered.

A. It was an inventory taken around the first or

second day of August by Harold Hilts and myself

of the office equipment and office supplies, exter-

minating equipment and exterminating supplies

that I had at the time.

Q. Who took that inventory?

A. That was in the handwriting of Harold Hilts.

He and I together made it. He jotted it down as I

checked it and called it off and he checked it.

Q. And all of these articles were delivered to

the Paramount Pest Control Service?
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A. Those were all delivered with the exception

of these two items, and I took Harold Hilts out

and let him see those items and

Mr. Smith: If you don't mind an interruption,

could you give me those items and tell me where

they are ?

A. There is one hi-fog machine and one spray

trailer.

Q. One hi-fog machine and one what?

A. One trailer.

Q. One spray trailer?

A. A spraying machine trailer.

Q. Whereabouts are they?

A. Those are at my home.

Q. Where is tliat located ?

A. That is at 4929 Northeast 28th Avenue. [66]

Q. 4929 Northeast 28th?

A. Yes. If they are willing to pay for those,

they can have them.

Q. That is different. How much?

A. Their value, minus depreciation.

Mr. Smith: I trust you don't mind this inter-

ruption ?

Mr. Bernard : Go ahead.

Q. (By Mr. Smith) : In other words, you have

those, but you won't give them up unless you are

paid their ])urchase value less depreciation?

A. That is what they were to pay me for, all of

my supplies, and they have not paid me for any of

theni yet. I do not feel I should turn over more of

them under tlie same conditions.
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Q. So, then, if they went out to get them now,

they would not get them?

A. At the present moment, no. At the time of

the contract, they would.

Q. What?
A. Had they wanted them at the time, when they

agreed to settle with me according to the audit, they

would have had them if they had come and got them.

Q. They could have had them on August 1st

without paying you anything further?

A. They could have.

Q. (By Mr. Bernard) : Now, outside of the

property that was in [67] the office at the time,

about August first, where was the other property,

Mr. Brewer?

A. It was in a warehouse at 15th Northwest and

Marshall.

Q. How was that delivered to the Paramount

people ?

A. It w^as delivered to them in this respect: I

had refused them entrance to there until such time

as we had made an agreement or reached an agree-

ment that was reached between T. C. Sibert and

Harold Hilts and a few others and myself in the

presence of the others.

Q. What was that agreement?

A. The agreement was that they would pay me
for my supplies and my equipment, both office and

extermination, and we would settle our accounts

according to a C. P. A. audit of the books done by

a Portland accounting firm.
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Q. What did you do then tov/ards turning; the

supplies over to them?

A. I met TTarold Hilts and Wendy Fisher uj» at

the building in which our office was and our supi»lies

were stored. J called the manaj^er of the ))uilding

out there and told him as of that date forward the

Paramount Pest Control Service would have the use

of that buihling that I had rented, the room that I

had rented there.

Q. And did you have a key to if?

A. At that time I had a key, and I gave them a

key then.

Q. Did you discuss with these men who should

make that audit? [68]

A. Yes. They asked me who to go to to make

an audit and I said I didn't know of any firm in

town except one that I knew of that was in the same

building where the office was at that time.

I said, " sphere is a firm there. I know they are

accountants," and the next morning—their names,

by the way, are Jones and Young.

The next morning T. C. Sibert went to Ihem and

told them about the split-up between myself and

Paramomit, and asked them if they would audit the

books. And Mr. Young, as I understand, told him

he would.

Mr. Young asked me for my copy of the franchise

and got a copy from them, and went in and sat

down to do an audit of the books. T. C. Sibert came

back and jumped on him and said he understood he

was going to try to hang the Paramount Pest Con-
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trol Service, and Mr. Young threw both of his hands

in the air and told him he wouldn't have anything to

do with the books, that is all, and he in turn took

up the phone and called Sawtell, Goldrainer & Com-

pany.

Q. Who did you say took up the phone?

A. Mr. Young told Mr. Sibert he could recom-

mend him or he would call and, from what I under-

stood, Mr. Young called Sawtell, Goldrainer & Com-

pany and told them that there was a set of books

there that we wanted an audit made of and would

they do it and they said they would and they sent

a man down there [69] and pulled an audit on those

books.

Q. Is that the audit that you have requested an

Inspection of? A. Yes, sir.

Mr. Bernard: That is all.

Mr. Smith: You don't want the books?

Mr. Bernard: If I want the books, I know how
to get them.

Mr. Smith: All right.

And Further Deponent Saith Not.

(Signature of witness to the foregoing depo-

sition expressly waived by the witness and by

counsel for the respective parties.) [70]
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[Title of Dtstri(rt Court and Cause.]

State of Orep^on,

County of Multnomah—ss.

I, Ira Ct. IJolcomb, a Notary Public for Oregon,

do hereby certify that on the 7th day of January,

A.D. 1948, before me as such Notary, at Room 503

United States Court House, in the City of Portland,

County of Multnomah, State of Oregon, personally

appeared at the time and place mentioned in the

ca])tion and stipulation set out on pages luimbered

1 and 2 of the foregoing transcript Charles P.

Brewer, a defendant, produced as an adverse party

on behalf of the plaintiff.

Mr. F. Leo Smith and Mr. George E. Eirnie, of

attorneys for plaintiff, appearing in its behalf; and

Mr. E. F. Bernard and Mr. Plowden Stott, attor-

neys for defendants, appearing in their behalf;

and the said witness being by me first duly sworn

to testify the truth, the whole truth and nothing but

the truth, [71] and being carefully examined, in

answer to oral interrogatories and cross-interroga-

tories propounded by the attorneys for the respective

parties, testified as in the foregoing annexed depo-

sition, pages numbered 1 to 70, both inclusive, set

forth.

I further certify that all interrogatories and

cross-interrogatories propounded to said witriess, to-

gether with the answers of said witness thereto

and all objections and motions taken or made, and

other proceedings occurring upon the taking of said
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deposition, were then and there taken down by me
in shorthand and thereafter reduced to typewriting

under my direction; and that the submission of the

deposition, when fully transcribed, to the witness

for examination and reading to or by him, and op-

portunity to the witness to make any changes in

form or substance and signing of same by the wit-

ness were waived by the witness and by the parties

;

and that said deposition has been retained by me for

the purpose of sealing up and directing it to the

Clerk of the above-entitled Court, as required by

law.

I further certify that I am not a relative or em-

ployee or attorney or counsel for any of the parties,

or a relative or employee of such attorney or coun-

sel, or financially interested in the action.

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my
hand and notarial seal this 9th day of January,

A.D. 1948.

[Seal] /s/ IRA G. HOLCOMB,
Notary Public for Oregon.

My Commission Expires July 21, 1948. [72]
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[Endorsed]: No. 11892. United States Circuit

Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Para-

mount Pest Control Service, a corporation, Appel-

lant, vs. Charles P. Brewer, individually and doin^

business as Brewer's Pest Control, Rosalie Brewer,

his wife, Raymond Rightmire, Carl Duncan and

Earl Merriott, Api:)ellees. Transcript of Record.

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United

States for the District of Oregon.

Filed April 8, 1948.

/s/ PAUL P. O'BRIEN,
Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

for the Ninth Circuit.
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In the United States Circuit Court of Appeals

Ninth Circuit

No. 11892

PARA^IOUNT PEST CONTROL SERVICE, a

corporation,

Plaintiff and Appellant,

vs.

CHARLES P. BREWER, individually and doing

business as BREWER'S PEST CONTROL;
et al.,

Defendants and Respondents.

ORDER RELIEVING APPELLANT FROM
PRINTING OR REPRODUCING EXHIBITS

On the Application of Paramount Pest Control

Service, a Corporation, Appellant in the above en-

titled matter, and the Affidavit of Kemieth C. Gillis

supporting said Application, and good cause appear-

ing therefore;

It Is Hereby Ordered that Appellant, Paramount

Pest Control Service, a Corporation, be and it is

hereby relieved from printing or reproducing the

Exhibits to be used on Appeal in the above entitled

matter and that said Exhibits shall be used in their

original form.

Dated : April 19, 1948.

/s/ FRANCIS A. GARRECHT,
Judge.

[Endorsed] : Filed April 19, 1948.
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8^rATEMF.NT OF THE POINM^S ON WJIICIF

APPELLAN^r. INTENDS 'VO RELY ON
APPEAL; DESIGNATION OF PARTS OF
RECORD TO BE PRINTED

1. Ap|)ellant adopts in full the Points on which

he intends to rely as specified in the record on file

with the above entitled Court.

2. Ai)pellant designates the following parts of

the record to be printed, namely: (1) The entire

certified typewritten record, the Deposition of

Charles P. Brewer, and this statement and certifi-

cate, excluding Exhibits. (2) The Order of this

Court relieving Appellant from printing or repro-

ducing Exhibits and permitting them to be con-

sidered in their original form.

Dated: April 21, 1948.

/s/ ROBERT R. RANKIN,
/s/ KENNETH C. GILLIS,

Attorneys for Appellant.

[Affidavit of service by mail attached.]

[Endorsed] : Filed April 22, 1948.
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IN THE
UNITED STATES

CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS
FOR THE NINTH CIRCUIT

Paramount Pest Control Service, a

Corporation, Appellant

vs.

Charles P. Brewer, individually and
doing business as Brewer's Pest / No. 11892

Control, Rosalie Brewer, his wife,

Raymond Rightmire, Carl
Duncan, Earl Merriott and all

other persons associated with said

appellees, Appellees

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the

United States for the District of Oregon

APPELLANTS OPENING BRIEF

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION
This is an appeal from the District Court's re-

fusal to grant appellant an injunction against

former employes to prevent their taking appellant's

business and the Court's refusal to award damages

caused by these employes.

1. Appellant made allegations of "Diversity of

Citizenship" (2). Exhibit 3 proved appellant a

California corporation, authorized to do business



in Oregon since August 25, 1947 (117-8). The an-

swer of appellees admits the allegations of diversity

(2, 68) and jointly and severally alleges the appel-

lees' citizenship in Oregon (69). There was un-

denied proof of such diversity (264, 414, 434, 440).

2. A claim was made in the complaint for the

amount of $15,169.79 (21-25). With credits sub-

sequently allowed, this was reduced to $12,950.00

(372-388). Appellant recovered nothing (77). Such

claims and denial thereof provided jurisdiction

both in the trial and appellate courts. Hilton v.

Dickinson, 108 U. S. 165, 175.

3. The District Court had jurisdiction of this

suit of a civil nature in equity, exceeding, exclusive

of interests and costs, the sum of $3,000.00, as be-

tween citizens of different states. 28 U. S. C. A. §^/

(V.

4. This Circuit Court of Appeals has jurisdic-

tion over the District Court of Oregon (28 U.S.C.A.

§ 21V and of this appeal from a final judgment

thereof. (28 U. S. C. A. ^ 225).

STATEMENT OF CASE

The pest control service was separately started

by T. C. Sibert in 1927 (114) and G. H. Fisher in

1935 (399) and consolidated in a partnership in

1938 (172) and brought to Oregon in July, 1942

(115) with a new idea in chemicals (116). They

worked long hours, trained employes (115-6, 125),

manufactured their poisons (Ex. 5 (1) to 5 (26);



118, 12.3), some unique (124, 174, 187-201), em-

ployed an enlomologist (124, 185) who is extremely

efficient (184-205), spent lots of money (160) which

was invested in the business (107), and invented

formulae to get a particular j)ioduct to do a cer-

tain job aj^ainst a sj)ecific pest (125, 174). Some of

the formulae were furnished Brewer (170) and

Duncan (175) when necessary to do their work in

an efficient professional way (169). It owns its own
building (173) and does business in four states

(126).

Brewer applied for employment in January,

1940 (135, 142) without previous experience (135).

He trained from February to April and w^as further

instructed in Oregon under Duncan (Ex. 22, Ex. 51;

140). In April he was given a Branch Manager ap-

pointment (144), groomed for the Oregon territory

(177) and trained by Duncan, Hilts (178) and

Fisher (178) and in February, 1940, given copies

of the Managers and Sales Agents Agreements (401

)

which were read (144-0), explained to him and ap-

proved by him (370, 401). He was ready to assume

active service. The Sales Agents Agreement, also

herein called franchise, was mailed to him two

days before he signed it in July, 1940 (144).

From July, 1940, to September 12, 1940, the

franchise was in full etfect, including its Section 5

(147, 210). In September, at Brewer's request and

for his reasons (181), Section 5 alone of the fran-

chise was changed with respect to payment, to the

effect that if Brewer took any money for himself.



an equal amount was to be paid Paramount (147,

181, 307), which was effective until December 31,

1946 (155). This for brevity is called "the dollar

for dollar basis" and is admitted by Brewer (475).

For emphasis, we repeat no other section of this

franchise was ever changed. However, in October,

he received an accounting on the original Section 5

basis and paid it witiiout objection (211 ).

From January to March 1, 1947, the original

franchise was again in full effect and Brewer made
three voluntary payments thereon after a confer-

ence with Hilts (214) in accordance with the origi-

nal Section 5 (214-217) (Ex. 57 to 61, Ex. 30 to 35).

He admits recognizing the original franchise and

making these three voluntary payments (303-4).

Rosalie Brewer sent the February, 1947 payment

and apologized for not sending it in full (Ex. 81)

although she testified she did not know Paramount

was asking for money (449).

In March, 1947, compensating for developing

the Eastern Oregon territory. Paramount again vol-

untarily (155-6) changed the amount of payments

under Section 5 to the "dollar for dollar" basis ef-

fective from January 1st to March 1, 1947 (Ex. 29;

257). This w^as done by Hilt's letter of March 15,

1947 (157; Ex. 29).

To satisfy Brew^er and because relations were

so friendly on June 17, 1947, both parties agreed to

put the whole fiscal year from July 1, 1946 to June

30, 1947 on the "dollar for dollar" basis (238). From

M



July 1, 1947, Brewer was again on the original fran-

chise at his own suggestion (161, 201 ).

On July 24, 1947, Brewer attempted to resign,

effective August 1, 1947, in violation of a 90-(lay

notice rc(|uirement in his franchise (163, 308,

308-9). lie had given no notice of dissatisfaction

(164, 403, 342, 405) and attempted to excuse his

action at one time because of "his family" (165)

and at another time because he was not on an equal

share basis (306).

Fifteen days before his resignation, he made a

part payment on his admitted obligation (310; Ex.

36) and 23 days later took the company's property,

all its bank balance, its employees, and on August

1, 1947 started serving the same customers of ap-

pellant wdiich he and his associates knew were

under contract for service with Paramount. In the

next few weeks appellees admit taking over 142 of

their former employer's customers into their own
business (47-50). This was in violation of Brewer's

(39, K 31) and Rightmire's (12 (b)) contracts not

to solicit or go into the pest control business re-

spectively, for a period of three years after termi-

nation of employment. Employees not under con-

tract knowingly joined with those who were, to

take Paramount Pest Control business into that of

Brewer Pest Control, for which they now all worked

(54, 248, 252). This condition gave rise to this liti-

gation.



ERROR NO. 1—DOING BUSINESS IN OREGON
Specification. Appellant cites as error the

Court's failure to make a finding on a material

issue created by the allegations in its complaint

describing its business (4) and appellees answer

that appellant was not "engaged in the business

described, in the State of Oregon" (68 (2) (b)).

Argument. The question is one of fact. To sup-

port appellant's prayer for permanent injunction,

it was necessary to prove appellant was not acting

ultra vires and was authorized to and doing such

established business in Oregon.

Exhibit 1 is the California Articles of Incorpor-

ation, Exhibit 2 is its declaration to so engage in

Oregon, Exhibit 3 is the Oregon Corporation Com-

missioner's Certificate of Authorization to do such

business in said state and Exhibit 4 is the receipt

for fees to June 30, 1948 ( 1 18 )

.

Appellant trains men in its central office in

California to apply chemicals, prepare bait and in-

sert poisons in the right manner and amounts. This

training was extensive and unique (117), per-

formed under the more severe laws of California

(126). Thereafter its trained men were sent to

establish the same business in Oregon, Washington

and Arizona (126). Such personnel included

Brewer and Duncan (140) who were sent to Ore-

gon (140-1) to do this business. The officials of

appellant made periodical visits to Oregon territory

(179, 208, 213, 405) and the entomologist in charge



of pests, poisons and i)rocesses gave information

and instruction over the entire territory from the

central office (119-201). Insliuclions and informa-

tion were constantly circularized to all employes

wherever located (127-1.'^; Kx. 7-2G).

The proof shows Ihere was identity in Oregon,

with appellant's corporate powers and purposes in

California, the same executives operated in both

states, the same employes were trained in Califor-

nia who operated in Oregon, with the exception of

Merriott who was trained by a California trained

man (434), the same poisons, ingredients and meth-

ods were used and the one entomologist supervised

the work in both slates. There was not even a sug-

gestion of evidence by appellees lo support their

issue that the two businesses were not the same.

Under such a record, appellant had a reasonable

expectation the trial court would enter a finding in

its favor on this issue. This was the business the

court was asked to protect by injunction if other

rights entitled ai)pellant thereto. No findings were

made thereon as required. ( F. R. C. P. 52-a

)

ERROR NO. 2—CONSPIRACY
Specification. The gravamen of this suit was

appellant's charge of appellees' conspiracy to (a)

breach the valid written and subsisting employment

contracts between appellant and (i) Brewer (29-40)

and (ii) Rightmire (12), also (b) to seek and ac-

quire the business of appellant in Oregon by inter-

fering with and causing the breach of service con-
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tracts between appellant and its many customers,

and (c) intentionally causing destruction of appel-

lant's business in Oregon. Appellees denied these

charges. Material issues were so presented to the

court which erred in not making specific findings

and separate conclusions thereon (Rule 52-a) and

in not deciding in favor of appellant.

Points and Authorities. 1. A conspiracy is a

combination between two or more persons by con-

certed action to accomplish an unlawful purpose

by lawful means or a lawful purpose by unlawful

means. Alaska SS. Co. v. Int'l. Longshoremen's

Ass'n., 236 Fed. 964; Spaulding et at v.Evensonetal,

149 Fed. 913; Heitkemper v. Central Labor Council,

99 Or. 1; Dowdell et al v. Carpy et al, 129 Cal. 168.

2. Civil liability rests on proof of something

done by one or more of the conspirators in further-

ance of its object, which resulted in damage to

complainant. The overt act and the damage are the

gist of the civil action. National Fireproofing Co.

V. Masons Builders Assn., 169 Fed. 259; Motley,

Green & Co. v. Detroit Steel S: Spring Co. et al, 161

Fed. 389; Alder u. Fenton, 16 L. Ed. 696.

3. Liability is established by proof of showing

concerted action from which the natural inference

arises that the unlawful act was in furtherance of

a common design, intention and purpose. Calcutt

u. Gerig, 271 Fed. 220.

4. Any person entering a conspiracy already

formed is deemed a party to all acts committed by



other conspirators, if done with knowledge and in

furtherance of the common design. Jdyne v. Loder,

149 Fed. 21.

5. A conspiracy lo cause a breach of contract

is an unlawful one. Hitchman Coal and Coke Co. v.

Mitchell, 245 U. S. 229; Mollei), Green & Co. v. De-

troit Steel & Sj)ring Co. et al, IGl Fed. 389; Sorenson

V. Chevrolet Motor Co., 171 Minn. 260; E. L. Hlisting

Co. V. Coca Cola Co., 205 Wis. 350.

0. Repudiation is where one part}' to a contract

refuses to perform the remaining obligations ex-

cept on material modification. It must be a present,

positive unequivocal refusal. Jordan v. Madsen et

al, 69 Utah 112; Holden & Martin v. Gilfeater, 78

Vt. 405; Atkinson v. District Bond Co., 5 Cal. App.

(2d) 738.

7. The renunciation of a contract by the pro-

missor before the 90-day period stipulated for no-

tice is not efTective unless accepted by the promis-

see. Peeler v. Tarola Molar Car Co., 170 Or. 600;

12 ^/7?. .////•. "Contracts" § 448; p. 1030.

ARr,u>[ENT. 1. Conspiracy—Facts; Employment

Contracts :

—

(a) Brewer's franchise (Ex. 1 attached to the

complaint, Ex. 27 in evidence) (29) is the basis of

one theory of unlawful conduct. He admits the

franchise as genuine with a modification (45) not

involved on this point. He testifies that he signed

it and believed it "binding and valid" (471). He
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had received and read the contract in Oakland, be-

fore he came to Oregon (407). Paragraph 31 pro-

vides that Brewer shall not solicit or cater to any of

the customers of the company whom he had known
because of his employment (39). This section and

all the franchise, except Section 5, was and has al-

ways remained the agreement between the parties

without change.

(b) The contract of Rightmire to refrain from

competitive service was pled (12) (Ex. 7) and ad-

mitted (68). He claims it was written with a part-

nership (56) but as such it was later assigned to

the appellant corporation (Ex. 28) and never de-

nied as a contract between him and appellant. Carl

Duncan's contract (Ex. 8) followed the same

course.

Customers Service Contracts :

—

In addition to the above employment contracts

there are admittedly many service contracts with

customers in Oregon whom appellant was serving.

These were all on "Service Order," a form of con-

tract (Ex. 11). Most were on an annual (Ex. 54),

others on a monthly basis (Ex. 55). Others were

verbal or "one shot orders" (6). Appellees admit-

tedly knew them, were ordered to serve customers

named therein periodically, did so and reported to

appellant, but after the conspiracy, served them

and reported to Brewer's Pest Control (427-9, 439).

In appellees' answer (46-50, 53, 54, 57) all admit

taking and serving 142 Paramount accounts in var-
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ious ])arls of (lie slate i'M)]). Actually the numl)er

is much greater ((34). When appellant promptly on

August 1, 194() called on these accounts, some were

already served by Brewer (348) who did not at-

tempt to terminate his contract until July 31, 194()

(1()) and whose agreement provided he would not

solicit or serve appellant's customers for three

years after the termination of his employment (39).

The pest control business initiated, financed and

manned by appellant, it endeavored to reestablish

after August 1st and found that some former cus-

tomers prefeired to remain with Brewer's Pest Con-

trol because it was the personnel and service they

previously knew (297, 423). In addition to the 142

admitted accounts, they acquired others until, based

on their commercial piracy of appellant's estab-

lished business, appellees were able to carry on

their own.

Appellees knew of appellant's customer con-

tracts as well as the contents thereof because such

were brought to their knowledge by virtue of their

work for api)ellant and also by the service of the

complaint in the state suit as that action was finally

pled (465) which appellees stipulated "involves the

same matters involved here" (413). Appellees were

willing to go on acquiring Paramount business not-

withstanding they knew their acts violated appel-

lant's customer contracts and their own agree-

ments (430, 439). The conspiracy is proven by the

above description of what the appellees did.
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Individual Participation :

—

There were five conspirators: Duncan was ap-

pellant's field instructor (140). His conduct can be

proven as part of the conspiracy. He was employed

by appellant since 1942 and being a good teacher

(167), he was sent to Oregon to instruct Brewer, by

whom he is now employed (140, 463) and with

whom he stayed (455). He was a fugitive from

process (168, 463), a defendant in the state case,

and the trial court refused to continue his case but

of its own motion dismissed it without prejudice

(467). He, with Mrs. Brewer, made a five cent bet

in endeavoring to get another employe to join their

conspiracy (357).

Rosalie Brewer is "the family" to whom Brewer

referred (165). They own the pest control business

together (311, 499). She came to Oregon with her

husband, helped him in the office, posted the books

(219, 440, 441) set up by the company (209), did

office work and answered the phone (341), wrote

checks (448), carried on correspondence (450) and,

as she expressed it, "helped whenever he needed it"

(442). She aided Brewer in falsifying state records

regarding the assumed business name (Ex. 45, 46,

47,48) (18).

Rightmire made the agreement alleged in the

complaint (12) (Ex. 7). At first he had little knowl-

edge of the business, was hired by Brewer and

Sibert (415) in 1946 as a service man (141). He had

good training under Duncan (273, 425-6), was so-

licited (422) and went to work for and is associated
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with Brewer in llie same business (426) since

August 1, 1947 (291, r^ih}) in eastern, western and

southern Oregon and Idaho (424). The same de-

tailed reports and methods he performed for Para-

mount in connection with their contract accounts

prior to August 1, 1947, lie now performs for

Brewer Pest Control (427-8), in Oregon and Idaho

(431) and is paid weekly (423). He admits he is

now serving the same customers for Brewer Pest

Control and he "solicited all potential business in

every town" (433). His and Brewer's names appear

on service slips of former Paramount customers as

early as the 3rd and 4th of August, 1947 (245).

Merrioit was never in the pest control business

before he was employed in February, 1947 by

Brewer w4io, contrary to his franchise, did not re-

([uire him to sign the employees' non-competitive

contract (168). He went to work with Rightmire

(434) and worked until July 31, 1947 for Para-

mount (435) and had heard "something" previously

of Brewer breaking with Paramount (43()). He

works for Brewer for a weekly wage (438) and

serves the same customers for Brewer as he served

for Paramount and solicited new potential business,

including those he knew were under contract with

Paramount (54,439).

Brewer had no previous pest control service or

knowledge (135) (Ex. 15). He came into the Oak-

land office and applied for work (142; Ex. 15). He

had a short training in California (143, 177), then

trained under Duncan in Oregon (140). He inten-
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tionally concealed from appellant that he was going

into a competitive business (245, 315, 405-6) until

the third of August, 1947 (245). He did the follow-

ing things to take over appellant's business: (a)

Though he says somewhere between June (318)

and July 25th (501), not later than June he deter-

mined to go into his own business. During that

time, while concealing his ultimate purpose, he

compiled with Hilts the June accounting (Ex. 36)

and secured a reduction in payment, and voluntar-

ily made a part payment of $259.61 thereon (Ex.

37. (b) On July 7th, he admittedly (313-5) placed

his order for 5000 service contracts, 2000 service

orders, 2000 receipts in duplicate, 1500 business

cards with the telephone numbers thereon (246)

and on July 11th, 2000 statements (325), all de-

livered July 14, 1947, on forms prepared by Brewer

from those used by Paramount (316, 327) and paid

for them (Ex. 64-66), then notified Paramount on
July 24th he was leaving their service (502, 303, 310-

311). (c) He collected outstanding accounts (342),

drew $1,017.00 from the bank (236, 384), leaving a

$4.00 balance (384). He attempted to prevent com-

pany representatives from seeing Rightmire (243),

yet testified he made no definite arrangements

about going into business for himself until August

1, 1947 (319, 321). (d) Admittedly he and his wife

owned Brewer Pest Control business from July 30,

1947 (311). With his wife, not under contract with

appellant, he filed a certificate of assumed business

name on July 30, 1947 (Ex. 46), falsely asserting
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she alone owned the business (490). Slie did this

because Brewer was "busy working" (497, 312).

Encouraged in this commercial piracy by the dis-

missal of the state case, Uosalie Brewer filed a Cer-

lificate of Retirement August 27, 1947 (Ex. 47),

falsely asserting she had no interest in the business.

(x)ncurrently at that time Brew^er filed a Certificate

of Assumed Business Name (Ex. 48) for business^

located in his home (344), falsely certifying he was

the sole owner (312, 496-7). His excuse for not in-

cluding his wife's name is "we did not consider it

necessary" (312). Their conduct was not only con-

trary to statute (4 0. C. L. A. § 43-501), but a mis-

demeanor (4 0. C. L. A. § 43-507). On July 30, 1947,

Brewer and wife said they were going into com-

petitive business for themselves, taking all Para-

mount employes with them (341 ) and all employes

thereupon left Paramount (248, 341). They were

hired by Brewer on August 1, 1947 (169, 291, 320).

No one but Brewer gave notice of leaving. To Par-

amount, it was a "big surprise" ( 1()9), "a bombshell

in our camp" (241, 345) and Paramount "was

dumbfounded" (406), but thought they were the

"best of friends" and those relations "were going

to continue" (183). Appellees hung up service

cards (Ex. 40-b) like Paramount's (Ex. 40-a; 328).

Brewer declared they would have Paramount's

equipment, stock, experienced personnel and it

would be months before the company could regain

its status (343). Customers could call Brewer's

Pest Control men individuallv (321).
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Overt Acts are too numerous to mention except

by classification. They include, but are not con-

fined to solicitation and serving of each one of ap-

pellant's contract customers (506, 349), soliciting

other employees to join the conspiracy (357), with-

drawal of monej^ (342, 385), undenied by Brewer

(454), taking equipment and supplies (344) and

office records (367) and filing false records (Ex.

46-8).

Damages: To be actionable, a civil conspiracy

must cause damage. (See Error No. 4, p. 32 infra).

2. Conspiracy—Law:—
The above acts are admittedly voluntary. The

law presumes each conspirator "intends the ordi-

nary consequences of his voluntary act." 0. C. L. A.

§ 2-407 (3). The acts were done "wilfully" because

of "a purpose or willingness to commit the acts."

0. C. L. A. § 23-108. They were done to "* * * vex,

annoy or injure another * * *," and were therefore

maliciously done (O. C. L. A. § 23-111), and "a

malicious and guilty intenf is conclusively pre-

sumed "from the deliberate commission of an un-

lawful act, for the purpose of injuring another."

0. C, L. A. § 2-406 (2) ; Hitchman Coal and Coke Co.

V. Mitchell 245 U. S. 229.

The employment contracts of Brewer and Right-

mire, wherein said employees agree to refrain from

either solicitation or competitive service, are ad-

mitted as executed and genuine and are legal con-

tracts. Thev have a reasonable limit of time (three



17

years) and of space (the State of Oregon) and as

such receive legal sanction (17 C. J. S. 622, § 240).

Columbia Tent S: Awning Co. v. Thiele, 135 Or. 511.

The trial court refused to find Brewer's franchise

was "not fair and reasonable" and crossed out ap-

pellees' proposed finding to the contrary (76). The

question of fairness or reasonableness was only a

verbal attack in this case. There was no pleading

to that effect. Brewer had for periods of time per-

formed his contract and made payments there-

under (214-222).

This case fits the legal pattern of an unlawful

civil conspiracy. It is a combination of five people

associated under the assumed business name of

Brewer's Pest Control Service who, by the unlawful

means of violating or aiding the violation of per-

sonal contracts not to solicit or serve appellant's

customers, concert their joint and several action

not only upon soliciting, procuring and serving

former customers of appellant in violation of their

personal contracts, but also as third parties solicit,

aid or effect the violation of legal contracts of serv-

ice between appellant and its own customers. No
formal agreement is necessary for a conspiracy,

a tacit understanding is sufficient, nor is it neces-

sary each conspirator have knowledge of the details

or the means to be used, or that the agreement be

enforceable (Alaska SS. Co. v. International Long-

shoremen s Assn., 236 Fed. 964, 969), although all

these elements are clearly proven herein. The case

can be prosecuted without Duncan being served



-18

(Spaulding et al v. Evenson et al, 149 Fed. 913).

The acts of these appellees are not lawful com-

petition, but are to suppress competition by break-

ing customer contracts and destroying appellant's

lawful business (Spaulding et al v. Evenson et al,

149 Fed. 913, 919). There is a natural inference

which arises from their acts that all was done in

furtherance of a common design, but here appel-

lees admit a common design to build up business

for Brewer Pest Control by soliciting all potential

business (Calciitt v. Gerig, 271 Fed. 220, 222). This

included appellant's contract customers.

All that is needed to make this conspiracy an

actionable one wherein an injunction will issue is

(1) the commission of overt acts, necessary to put

the conspiracy into effect, and (2) that damage re-

sult from the combination or conspiracy (Nat'L

Fireproofing Co. v. Masons Builders Assn., 169 Fed.

259,265).

Appellees attempt to make some point of their

claim that all appellees did not enter this conspiracy

on August 1, 1947. The undenied proof is that all

entered the combination sometime during August;

they did so with knowledge of the contractual rela-

tions involved because served with summons and

complaint in the state case "the same as here."

They also after entry confessedly promoted the

common cause. This makes them all liable, irre-

spective of the actual date of employment (Jayne

v.Loder, 149 Fed. 21, 30).
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Appellees' defense to the charge of unlawful

conduct has been confined to the claim that the

franchise of Brewer was repudiated by appellant.

That defense is hereinafter disproved. But there is

other unlawful conduct. Appellees make no de-

fense, but on the contrary, boast they solicited the

appellant's customers under contract for service,

and admit acquiring at least 142 of such accounts.

In such solicitation and service each conspirator

was an agent for all, so the act of one was the act

of all (Hitchman Coal & Coke Co. v. Mitchell 245

U. S. 229, 249), and contracts are legal property and

entitled to be protected in their enjoyment, and

this is true even though the service was for "one

shot," or at will (Hitchman case, 245 U. S. 229, 251).

The pecuniary value of the reasonable probabili-

ties of performance and profit are recognized in

law (Hitchman case, 245 U. S. 252).

Even if the charge of conspiracy should fail, the

unlawful conduct of appellees w^ould entitle appel-

lant to an injunction (E. L. Husting Co. v. Coca

Co/aCo., 205 Wis. 356).

3. Alleged Repudiation of Brewer's Contract :

—

In this case there are two kinds of unlawful

acts: (1) The breach by the conspirators of their

own contracts of employment, aided by the non-

contracting employees; and (2) the coordinated

action of all conspirators to nullify the customers'

service contracts of appellant.

To appellant's charge of conspiracy against
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these appellees intending to break the service con-

tracts between appellant and its many customers,

appellees neither plead nor claim any defense. To

the contrary, appellees admit taking 142 of their

former emplo3^er's accounts b}^ their solicitation

and service. On this ground alone it would appear

that an injunction should issue.

To appellant's charge of conspiracy between

former employees violating their own and other

employment agreements, there is no defense pled

by Rightmire, other than he made his contract with

the partnership. He imposes no defense to the fact

that Exhibit 28 discloses this contract was assigned

by the partnership to the corporation.

To appellant's charge of conspiracj^ against

Brewer to break his franchise agreement. Brewer

pleads the simple defense of repudiation in the fol-

lowing language: "* * * because of the plaintiff's

repudiation by the plaintiff (sic) of the contract as

modified, the defendant Charles P. Brewer wrote

his notice of resignation as set forth in Paragraph

numbered V of the complaint."

(a) The following facts disprove any repudia-

tion of the franchise by appellant:

The contract, with the exception of Paragraph

5, was never denied or rendered ineffectual by

either party and Section 5 (474) was the only one

where a modification as to amount of payment was
made. Therefore, the contract as a whole was never

repudiated by either party up to the date of Brew-
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er's letter on July 24, 1947. President Siberl, Secre-

tary-Treasurer Hills and Agent Brewer alone (153,

230) met in Portland on June 17, 1947, and went

over the books of Brewer's agency (154, 230, 159).

Agent Brewer admits at that interview he agreed to

carry on the business for the month of July (315).

There is no issue but what the franchise was orig-

inally in etfect (471). Now the only issue is: Was
§ 5 of the original franchise revived in June, 1947?

Brewer admits the franchise was revived in June

because he claims that he told Sibert and Hilts he

would continue during July (315).

With a $3,000 per month business (147, 154, 230)

Agent Brewer had a sufficient profit to go on the

franchise. Brew^er's own evidence, Ex. 77, (Tr. 82)

shows a gross business sales of $33,394.30. Brewer

claims that this exhibit was introduced as a means

of his borrowing money from The Bank of Califor-

nia, but admits that he never borrowed anj^ money

(284). After the June audit, business was on an

"even keel" and no mention was made of dissatis-

faction (229, 242) nor any mention of terminating

Brewer's relationship and no indication from him

of any dilTerent payment than that which was then

agreed upon (231). His franchise was now better

for him and it was his suggestion that he go back

to it (154, 161, 233). Relations were so friendly

(160, 161, 164) that Sibert bought the airplane

tickets for Brewer and his daughter to go South

to Mrs. Brewer (162), and they stayed at the Sibert

home four or five days and left good friends (162).
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Brewer's slogan for his business was "The Best in

the West" (405, 164). He also admits no modifica-

tion of this contract nor of any of its terms, except

that part of Section 5 which provided for an 80-

20% distribution when he wanted a 50-50% division

of the profits. In giving Brewer's reason for cancel-

ling his franchise. Brewer says Paramount's refusal

to give the 50-50% distribution was the "entire rea-

son—there was no other" (306). Brewer denies

many of the foregoing statements, but there are

several circumstances which disprove his position

and do prove that it was Brewer who repudiated the

contract and not appellant. He further admits that

when the contract was modified it was not on a 50-

50 basis, but on the basis that when Paramount got

a dollar, he was to get a dollar (475, 307) and that

he was going to pour back into the business what he

did not need for himself and the equal payment to

Paramount (308).

The circumstances refuting Brewer's claim of

appellant's repudiation and establishing Brewer's

repudiation are as follows:

(1) If Brewer had notified Paramount in June

or July, 1947 as he claims, that he was through with

Paramount (315, 452) if they did not give him a

50-50 division of profit and Paramount knew they

were not and would not give him such division,

why would Paramount not have prepared to take

over the business? In place of that they were

stunned and struggled to get back on their feet

(242-249, 377) after Brewer took the bank account,

men, supplies and equipment.
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(2) Brewer, in si)ite of his other statements to

the contrary, admits he gave no declaration or

notice thai he was through with Paramount, except

his letter of July 24th (Ex. 42), received by Sihert

on his vacation (105), when he says, "* * * if I gave

them 90 days (notice) they (Paramount) would
move in here with a dozen men and take over pos-

session of everything in sight, and I would be left

sitting here broke" (308). He says he knew of the

90-day provision and purposely avoided it (308).

This same reasoning applies to his claim that he

gave such notice in November, 1946 (475) and in

March, 1947 (478). The alleged defense of repudi-

ation rests on Brewer's testimony alone. His said

claim is in direct contradiction to the testimony of

Sibert, Hilts and the circumstances of the case as

herein recited. It is presumed that when the law

says there must be some testimony to support any
proposition, that at least under equitable principles

enforceable in a court of conscience, it must be

testimony worthy of belief to the extent that the

court can with confidence predicate its decision on

that testimony.

(3) Since Brewer must take the heavy burden

of establishing repudiation and attempts to do so

by his testimony alone, it is relevant and material

that we inquire into his integrity as disclosed by the

facts in this case. The following indicates that he

is to be distrusted in his testimon3\ If any one of

the following instances appeal to the court as one

in which Brewer falsified his evidence, then under



24"

the statute "a witness false in one part of his testi-

mony is to be distrusted in others." (0. C. L. A.

§2-1001 (3)).

Examples of falsification are: (a) Brewer swore

he determined to go into business for himself be-

tween the 20th and 25th of July, 1947, and that he

devoted every minute of his "best efforts to Para-

mount Pest Control business up to August 1st"

(289, 315). Yet the record shows he placed his order

for all the above mentioned business supplies on

July 7, 1947 (314, 324, 330) and admits if he placed

these orders, he would be going into business for

himself (315). (b) He claims he did not recognize

the franchise after January 1, 1947, yet he delivered

three checks bearing that designation as payment

thereon (Ex. 30-35) and in another place he says

he made them "on the original franchise basis"

(490). (c) He claims he bought poison No. 1080

from the Government Department of Fish and Wild

Life in August, 1947 (294-297) and the Deputy

Agent of the Department says he could not (331-

338). (d) He admittedly falsified public records

connected with his assumed business name (Ex. 45-

48, inc.). (e) He claims he paid for the air trips

South in June, 1947, by certain checks (289). This

was at the same time he claimed he notified Para-

mount officers he was quitting (315, 452), but the

trip was arranged by Sibert (162, 385), paid by

Paramount (385), and one of the three checks he

says he used, was for tires (385) and the other

drawn after he left Portland (385). (f) He claims
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he was practically "forced under duress to sign

the franchise in July, 1946" (302), yet stayed on

for over a year in what his wife at least described

as "friendly" relations down to the time of Brewer's

resignation letter of July 24, 1947 (449), yet he had

read this contract and had it for two days before

he came to work for Paramount (144) on February

2, 1946 (143, 145) and knew of the franchise for

six months from February to July, 1946 (145).

(g) The undenied statements of appellant's wit-

nesses that Brewer said they were leaving and

would be the worst "so-and-so's" in the world as of

August 1st, shows they saw themselves through

other eyes (341).

(b) The Law has certain specific requirements

for proof of repudiation: "* * * where one party

to a contract refuses to perform except on a mate-

rial modification or addition of new terms, such

conduct amounts to a repudiation." Jordan v. Mad-

sen et al, 252 P. 570. It must consist of a present,

positive, unequivocal refusal to perform the con-

tract and a mere threat alone to abandon is not re-

pudiation. Gold Mining and Water Co. v. Swinerton

et al, 23 Cal. (2d) 19. Here the evidence worthy of

belief shows decidedly there was a present, positive

and unequivocal agreement to continue the fran-

chise on the part of Paramount until Brewer's let-

ter. At no time did appellant make a present, posi-

tive and unequivocal refusal to perform as required

in Atkinson n. District Bond Co., 5 Cal. App. (2d)

738.
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It is reasonable to assume from the evidence

that Brewer felt himself firmly enough entrenched

to send his letter of July 24, 1947 (16) and to con-

tinue to serve Paramount's customers. All this he

actually did. The one point on which he miscalcu-

lated was his failure to realize his old friends would

actually institute legal proceedings against him to

protect their business.

Assuming, for the sake of argument only, that

Brew^er is correct when he claims he was willing to

go on with the franchise on a 50-50 split of profits,

then such was a conditional renunciation, and re-

nunciation of a contract by the promissor is not

effective unless such repudiation is unequivocally

accepted by the promissee. 17 Corpus Juris Secun-

dum, "Contracts," § 472 (3) p. 978. Brewer does

not testify that his repudiation was accepted by

Paramount and where he repudiated without com-

plying with the contract requirement of 90-day

notice, there could be no repudiation by appellant.

The requirement of a contract as to notice—as to

the time of its giving, its form and the manner of

service thereof—must be strictly observed in can-

celling the franchise; there must be exact compli-

ance with such provisions. 12 Am. Jur. "Contracts,"

§ 448, p. 1030. There was no compliance with the

time of notice (163), and Brewer's letter of July 24,

1947 (16) was ineffectual for anything except to act

as his own repudiation of the franchise.

Appellees made some contention that they were

not all employed as of August 1st and that they re-
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ceived simply a weekly wage (423, 4.38). These

matters are entirely immaterial because any person

knowingly entering a conspiracy already formed

is deemed a party to all acts committed by the other

conspirators. Each conspirator, by the service of

the complaint in the State case, was made fully

aware of the conspiracy. Whether he received a

weekly wage or a division of the loot in the rapine

of plaintiff's business, is likewise immaterial as

long as he damaged appellant thereby. It seems

conclusively established that there was a conspiracy

in which all the appellees joined. When Brewer did

not comply with his contract with respect to notice,

he on the 24th of July repudiated his agreement

and the others joined in the unlawful purpose to

the damage of the appellant.

It seems proven beyond doubt that these appel-

lees combined, if not by specific agreements, then

by concerted action, to break their own employ-

ment contracts and those service agreements be-

tween appellant and its customers. They knew this

concerted action would and intended it should cause

damage to appellant (341-343). Although this con-

spiracy was the gravamen of appellant's complaint

(13), and an issue between the parties, the trial

court made no specific finding or conclusion, or

any finding or conclusion on this issue as required

bvrule. (Rule 52 (a)).
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ERROR NO. 3—EQUITABLE REMEDY-
INJUNCTION

Specification. The trial court erred in not (1)

enjoining the appellees' unlawful conspiracy and

interference with appellant's contract customers,

(2) invoking upon certain individual appellees the

prohibitions which they had invited by virtue of

their employment contracts (12, 29), and (3) invok-

ing equitable remedies, since damages were inade-

quate, not capable of determination, and there was

necessity for the avoidance of a multiplicity of

actions.

Points and Authorities. Rights to perform con-

tracts and reap the profits therefrom and the right

of performance by the other parties thereto, such

as appellant's customers, are property rights and

entitled to equitable protection. 84 A. L. R. 43-100,

Note.

Equit}^ will enforce covenants in partial restraint

of trade and are upheld by the courts when made
by an agent or employe to prevent competition

with his principle or employer after the expiration

of service when such restrictions are reasonably

necessary to protect the employer from business

loss. Donohue v. Peterson, 161 Or. 65; Thompson

Optical Institute v. Thompson, 119 Or. 252.

Equity will enjoin when damages are inade-

quate or uncertain and to avoid a multiplicity of

actions. Bernard v. Willamette Box and Lhr. Co.,

64 Or. 223; Roots v. Boring Junction Lhr. Co., 50
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Or. 298; Phez Co. u. Salem Fruit Union, 103 Or. 514.

Argument. It would be unthinkable if having

established the unlawful conduct of these conspira-

tors, the law could afford no remedy to protect a

business which had taken so much hard work to

establish and which had unique features in poisons

and their application as described by appellant's

entomologist (184-205). This specification of error

describes those remedies and charges the trial court

with error in failing to invoke them.

(a) Reasons of Trial Court Refuted. Appar-

ently the trial court agreed with appellant in many
of the positions it assumed, but denied the remedies

and assigned but two reasons for its refusal to

invoke them.

1. When this suit was filed October 22, 1947,

appellant concurrently moved for a temporary re-

straining order (41). Promptly after appellees'

answers to interrogatories were filed (45-66), a

hearing was had November 18th. The court denied

the motion "until there is disclosure in more detail

of the secret nature of the processes * * *" (66).

The "secret processes" were facts in the case,

but immaterial on the matter of issuing an injunc-

tion. Where admitted contracts of employment and

service w^ere admittedly violated, a court of con-

science was entitled to enjoin the unlawful conduct.

Such w^as true whether the business involved secret

processes or all its phases were open to the public.

The gist of injunctive relief rested in the violation
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of valid and existing contracts. Secrecy was no

necessary requisite to secure injunctive relief.

2. With the court's assurance of an "early pre-

trial and trial date" (66), no appeal was taken from

the denial of a temporary injunction. Delay oc-

curred in order to suit the convenience of appellees

and a burdened trial court. Pre-trial was had De-

cember 26, 1947, and trial on January 20 to 23, 1948,

and an opinion rendered on January 30th. It is

reasonable to assume the trial court felt the urge

for appellant's relief when it said, "I would not

think I should enjoin defendant generally from

re-engaging in the pest control business; but if this

were August, 1947, I would feel that defendant

should be restrained from any business with plain-

tiff's former customers, as Customer Lists are pro-

tected by the law" (73). It seems equally apparent

that the only reason why the court did not so enjoin

appellees was because "Considerable time has gone

by and the interest of 140-odd third parties who

have continued service with defendants has to be

kept in mind. So an injunction will be denied."

(73). The actual time after appellant qualified to

sue in this state on August 25, 1947 (Ex. 3; 118) and

the filing of this suit on the following October 22nd,

was fifty-eight days, and was occupied with investi-

gation, preparation of the case and the filing of

the pleadings herein. Such was not an unreason-

able delay because the violation of appellees was at

first slight and later definitely progressive. An anal-

ysis of Exhibit 54 shows there were cancellations
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of the contracts ("or one year as follows: 30 in

August, 9 in September, 40 in October, and of the

36 cancelled in August, 20 were on or after the loth.

All these customers were under contract with ap-

l)ellant. The trial court's statement that these "140-

odd third parties have continued service with the

defendant has to be kept in mind" (73), does not

take into consideration that said customers violated

their contracts undoubtedly at the instigation of

appellees, and definitely no court approval should

be given the commercial piracy of the appellees or

the unlawful breach of contract by illusioned cus-

tomers.

(b) Contracts Protected by Equity. Even if

appellant's employes were under no contractual

obligation, the law would prevent a conspiracy to

and a breach of appellant's customers' service con-

tracts by appellees. These customer contracts call

for a continuing service over a period of time,

varying from one to twelve months, with an aver-

age of over six months to run. These contracts

were appellant's proi)erty, gained from active serv-

ice, experience, time and expense and protected

from commercial piracy. The trial court must have

overlooked the fact that all these contracts were

not broken on August 1st, nor did the activity of

the conspirators all appear to appellant as of that

date. Appellees could not solicit so many customers

on that particular date, but this was an active pro-

gressive piracy, continuing for several weeks.

There has been no change in the circumstances
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of the parties as would bring this cause within the

rule of a lost remedy because of laches. E. L.

Hiisting Co, u. Coca Cola Co., 205 Wis. 356, 371.

Rights in customers and employees contracts

were property from which the appellant was en-

titled to receive its profits. That principle is well

established. Appellant does not here elaborate upon

the authorities. The note in 84 A. L. R. p. 43 et seq.,

contains a list of federal and state authorities, as

well as of England. It is so complete in its declara-

tion of support for the relief here sought, that to

reiterate the authorities or their holdings would

occupy unnecessary space in this brief devoted to

particular issues also presented at the trial.

ERROR NO. 4—LEGAL REMEDY—DAMAGES
Specification. The trial court erred in failing

to award appellant a monetary judgment upon cer-

tain specific proven contract obligations against

Brewer and certain specific items of damage against

all appellees.

Points and Authorities. Compensator^^ dam-

ages may be recovered. Nalle v. Oyster, 230 U. S.

165; E. L. Hasting Co. v. Coca Cola Co., 205 Wis.

356; 1 Sutherland "Damages," 4th Ed. § 78, p. 283;

11 Am. Jur. "Conspiracy," § 57, p. 587.

In Oregon the rate of interest is 6% on all

monies after the same become due. 0. C. L. A. § 66-

101.

All conspirators may be joined as particular de-
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fendanls in an aclion for damages caused by their

unlawful acts, (^lein el al v. Citij of Atlanta el at,

1()4 (;a. 529; 11 Am. Jiir. "Conspiracy," §§ 53, 54, p.

584. The lia})ility is joint and several. Lijnes v.

Standard Oil Co. el al, 300 Fed. 812; Fountain

Spring Park Co. v. Roberts el al, 92 Wis. 345. Inter-

est is the ordinaiy incident for non-payment of

obligations and compensation is a fundamental

principle of damages. Prager v. N. J. Fidelity and

Plate Glass Ins. Co., 245 N. Y. 1. Interest must be

allowed as an incident to "just compensation"

where property has been taken. United States v.

Rogers, 255 U. S. 163; Prager v. N. J. Fidelity &
Plate Glass Ins. Co. (supra.)

Argument. In addition to injunctive relief, ap-

pellant asked for a monetary judgment on the basis

of contract obligations from Brewer and damages

in tort from all appellees.

1. Contract Ohlic.ations: The following sums
are due under Brewer's contracts:

(a) On June 17, 1947, Sibert, Hilts and Brewer

met in Portland (158, 159, 230). They agreed upon

an accounting running from July 1, 1946 to June

30, 1947 (231). Brewer's books (159-160) showed

he had over $3,000 i)er month business and could

keep his franchise, pay his bills, operate his terri-

tory and have $855.00 per month for himself. He
concluded, and it was his own suggestion that he go

on the franchise (161). It was also Brewer's sug-

gestion that they extend the "dollar for dollar" basis
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for the fiscal year above mentioned (238). Hilts

prepared a statement (Ex. 36) (230, 236, 237, 241,

242) on that basis. Brewer helped make this com-

pilation. The figures were from his books and Hilts

explained the method of making the accounting

(230-242). Brewer agreed the amount due was

$3,359.61, of which he paid $259.61 on July 9, 1947

(Ex. 36, 37, 38) (242). He entered this payment on

the accounting in his own handwriting (242, 310;

Ex.36).

The balance of $3,100.00 Brewer promised to

pay (241), but never paid (373) and demand was

made therefor (Ex. 56). He admits between $2,500

and $3,000 was due (460). In the last few moments
of trial he offered an accounting, conceding that

there "might be a mistake some place" in this ac-

counting (460). Appellant made objections thereto

which were sustained (465). This $3,100 is definitely

due.

(b) The next contract obligation is for $478.15

under the original franchise for the month of July

1947 (Ex. 39). After the June accounting (Ex. 36)

Brewer wanted to and agreed to go back on the

franchise payments (161, 233, 261). He admits he

was to carry the business during the month of July

(500, 318). The amount for distribution was

$2,390.75 and the 20% due the company was $478.15

(392). Brewer does not question the amount.

(c) There is the amount of $973.30 (Ex. 50) due

on fixed assets not turned in as per contract (305).
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(d) There is a claim of $925.89 for unsupported

expenditures (Ex. 51; 375) and no eil'ort was made
by Brewer to su])port these items that he claims

were for business, by voucher or supporting evi-

dence (375, 392). He admits their withdrawal and

alleges they were "for business," but does not say

whose business (475).

(e) The sum of $678.50 (Ex. 51 (a)) was for

one-half of the income derived from the Eastern

Oregon run for business for the months of Febru-

ary, March and April, 1947 (376). Brewer asked for

this help and the agreement was that Paramount
would send men into Eastern Oregon, pay their ex-

penses, get more business, and Brewer and Para-

mount w^ould share the profit or loss and expenses

(150-2). Paramount paid the expenses and Brewer

collected and kept the profits. The expense is in-

cluded in Ex. 36 and said sum is due from the

profits (376).

2. Tort Obligations: The following sums are

due jointly and severally from the appellees:

(a) Appellant's business is a personal service,

built on organization and experienced men and poi-

sons and inert igredients (377 etseq). When Brewer

Pest Control made the coup to take all Oregon busi-

ness, appellant sent men from other localities into

Oregon to try and save it. Exhibit 53 is a statement

of $3,596.95 paid to these men (379) and is an ex-

pense allocated solely to salvage operations caused

by appellees' conduct. Appellee's cross-examination
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to the effect that this included Paramount's employ-

ees at regular salary (393, 394) is immaterial. But

for appellee's conduct, these men would have been

engaged in their regular duties.

(b) Exhibit 54 represents contracts, which w^ere

all on Paramount's form (Ex. 11), of customers

having an original term of a year or some part

thereof yet to run, which customers appellees caused

to desert appellant and do business with appellees.

This amount of $4,596.75 represents the total sum
of money that they would have received out of this

business and the amount that appellant would have

received on the franchise basis is $2,849.99 (382)

which is claimed here as actual damage and which

appellant would have received but for appellee's

interference (380-384).

(c) Exhibit 55 represents contracts like those in

Exhibit 54 but wherein the original term had ex-

pired and they were operating on a monthly basis

under the contract terms. The total of earnings

from these monthly contracts amounted to $566.50

(Ex. 55) (383) and Paramount's share was $351.00

(382). Exhibits 54 and 55 represent 185 accounts

taken by appellees who confess taking 142 thereof

(391, 47). All these cancellations were, by appel-

lant's officers, carefully segregated and those due to

Brewer Pest Control listed (395).

3. Law. Since appellant has an exclusive right

in Oregon to service its contract customers with its

equipment and poisons and by its methods, it is
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entitled to injimctive iclief against the breach of

its express and implied negative covenants and

against service of its customers by former employes

(E, L. Hiisting Co. v. Coca Cola Co. et al, 205 Wis.

356).

But in addition, lliese appellees have maliciously

induced appellant's former customers to breach

their contracts of service. They are therefore

jointly and severally liable (Lynes v. Standard Oil

Corp. et at, 300 Fed. 812, 815) for damages resulting

from the breach.

Under the above authorities, damages are recov-

erable on a compensatory basis and all conspirators

are jointly and severally liable for whatever dam-
age their conspiracy caused in an amount that will

compensate the appellant. The legal rate of interest

in Oregon is 6% and interest is allowable on dam-
ages when the amount is so definite and certain that

the court can say that appellant lost the use of that

money for which interest is to compensate. Such

interest is acknowledged on all items in accordance

with the exhibits evidencing the obligations and the

date from which they were due.

In Conclusion, appellant has shown it brought

to Oregon, a business to better public health and

welfare and established it by personal sacrifice,

great labor and much money. It sought to protect

its investment by contracts with both employes and

customers. As employes, appellees occupied a



38

unique position because they were the only person-

nel known to the customer who paid direct to ap-

pellees for their service.

Obviously goaded by avarice, the employes be-

came disloyal, ignored the contracts, and sought

and acquired a very substantial part of appellant's

Oregon business. Appellant asks this court to pre-

vent the continuance of this wrong and compen-

sate for injury done. "A faithful man shall abound

with blessings, but he that maketh haste to be rich

shall not be innocent."

Respectfully submitted,

Kenneth C. Gillis

and

Robert R. Rankin,

Attorneys for Appellant



No. 11892

In the United States

CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS
for the Ninth Circnit

PARAMOUNT PEST CONTROL SERVICE,
a corporation,

Appellant.

V.

CHARLES P. BREWER, individually and
doing business as Brewer's Pest Control,

ROSALIE BREWER, his wife, RAY-
MOND RIGHTMIRE, CARL DUNCAN
and EARL MERRIOTT,

Appellees.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEES

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United
States for the District of Oregon.

FILc
AUb 53-1948

Plowden Stott,
Yeon Building,
Portland 4, Oregon. PAUL P» O'BRIEN,

Collier and Bernard, OUERK
Spalding Building,
Portland 4, Oregon.

Attorneys for Appellees.

•TKVms-NKaS LAW PUB. CO.. PORTLAND





SUBJECT INDEX
Page

Statement of Jurisdiction 1

Statement of Case 2

Findings of fact shall not be set aside unless

clearly erroneous, and due regard shall be
given to the opportunity of the trial court

to judge of the credibility of the witnesses 4

The appellant did not disclose to the appellees

any receipts, formulae or secret processes 6

An injunction should not issue against a former
employee if the employer has been guilty of

inequitable conduct 7

Points and Authorities 7

Argument - 9

Conclusion ,. 11



TABLE OF AUTHORITIES
Page

Briggs V. Boston, 15 Fed. Supp. 763

(Dist Court — N. D. of Iowa, 1936) 6, 8

Byram v. Vaughn, 68 F. Supp. 981, 984 (D.C. 1946) -9

Dutch Maid Bakeries, Inc. v, Schleicher,

58 Wyo. 374, 131 P. 2d 630 (1942) 8

Economy Grocery Stores Corporation v. McMenamy,
290 Mass. 549, 195 N. E. 746 (1935) 8

Hartford Accident & Indemnity Co, v. Jasper et al.,

9 Cir. 1944, 144 F. 2d, 266, 267 5

Hydraulic Press Mfg. Co. v. Lake Erie Engineering,

Corporation, 2 Cir. 1942, 132 F. 2d 403, 404 7

Love V. Miami Laundry Co., 118 Fla. 137, 160

So. 32 (1935) 8

Public Laundries, Inc. v. Taylor, 26 S. W. 2d 1085

(Tex. Civ. App. 1930) 8

Putnam v. Coates, 220 Mo. App. 218, 222, 283

S. W. 717 (1926) - .- - 7

Ridly V. Krant, 180 P. 2d 124 (Wyo. 1947) 7

Seaboard Oil Co. v. Donovan, 99 Fla. 1296, 128

So. 821, 824 (1930) 8

Smith et al v. Porter et al, 8 Cir. 1944, 143 F.

2d, 292, 295 5

Smith Baking Co. v. Behrens, 125 Neb. 718, 251

N. W. 826 (1933) 8

Super Maid Cook-Ware Corporation v. Hamil, 5

Cir. 1931, 50 F. 2d 830, 831 .7, 8

State V. Beaverton Portland Cement Co., 169

Or. 1, 20, 124 P. 2d 524, 126 P. 2d 1094 (1942) 7

United States v. Aluminum Co. of America et al,

2 Cir. 1945, 148 F. 2d, 416, 433 .- 5

Wilson v. Gamble, 180 Miss. 499, 177 So. 363,

368 (1937 - 8

NOTE:

Reference numbers in the Brief without other de-

signation denote pages of the Transcript of Record.



No. 11892

In the United States

CIRCUIT COURT OF APPEALS
for the Ninth Circuit

PARAMOUNT PEST CONTROL SERVICE,
a corporation,

Appellant.

V.

CHARLES P. BREWER, individually and
doing business as Brewer's Pest Control,

ROSALIE BREWER, his wife, RAY-
MOND RIGHTMIRE, CARL DUNCAN
and EARL MERRIOTT,

Appellees.

BRIEF FOR APPELLEES

Upon Appeal from the District Court of the United
States for the District of Oregon.

STATEMENT OF JURISDICTION

The District Court had jurisdiction of this action in

the nature of a civil suit in equity between citizens of

different states as the amount involved, exclusive of in-

terest and costs, exceded $3,000.00. 28 U.S.C.A. Sec. 4L

The Circuit Court of Appeals has jurisdiction of
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2 Paramount Pest Control Service

STATEMENT OF CASE
In February, 1946, appellee Charles P. Brewer was

employed in California by Paramount Pest Control Ser-

vice, a partnership. After observing for about a week

how bait was mixed and put out for rats, mice and

cockroaches, Brewer went out selling by himself for a

week and then went out with other men on "trouble

checks" to help out and learn what he could (265-266).

About two months after entering into such employment

Brewer was sent to Oregon to manage the Portland ter-

ritory. He was promised a salary of $250 a month and a

franchise when the business reached a volume of four

thousand to five thousand dollars a month—a sum

deemed sufficient to make a franchise profitable to an

agent (269, 272). Up to the time Brewer severed his

employment with appellant the monthly business had

never approximated that sum (272, 273).

In June, 1946, Brewer was told that he would have

to abandon the salary arrangement and take a fran-

chise (275, 302). The franchise that was signed gave to

the company twenty per cent of the gross income.

The expenses of maintaining the business, namely,

wages service, materials and expense service, wages

salesmen, commissions, advertising, auto expense—gas,

oil and repairs, depreciation, insurance, taxes and lic-

enses, traveling expenses, wages office, bad debts, dona-

tions, gas, light and water, legal and accounting, miscel-

laneous expense, office expense—stationery, printing and

supplies, telephone and telegraph, discounts and allow-

ance received, profit and loss on sales of capital assets,
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tithing, discounts and allowance paid, interest paid,

"together with such other expense as in the judgment

of the company should be charged against said business,"

were to be paid by Brewer (31-32). The company agreed

to furnish Brewer such trucks as in its judgment might

be necessary for him to start operations (34) and fur-

ther agreed to pay the premium on a surety bond to the

company (39). No automobile was ever furnished (276).

On the franchise basis of twenty per cent of the

gross to the company the business was operating at a

loss to Brewer (276-277). Accordingly, in November,

1946, the franchise was modified so that the net profits

would be divided on a 50-50 basis as long as the fran-

chise was in force (277-278, 306, 308). The trial court

found this fact to be true (74).

On March 13, 1947, the auditor for the company

told Brewer that he owed $994.25 for the months of

January and February, 1947, an amount arrived at by

allotting twenty per cent of the gross to the company.

Brewer, thoroughly aroused, gave the auditor a check

and told him that he, Brewer, was through (278-279).

On Sunday morning, March 16, Brewer received at his

home an air mail special delivery letter which re-cast

the account so that the net profits would be divided on

a fifty-fifty basis (280, Ex. 29). On receipt of the letter

Brewer continued to carry on the business.

In the latter part of June, 1947, Brewer was noti-

fied that as of July 1, he would have to pay the com-

pany twenty per cent of the gross (284-285, 315). The

appellant claimed this was done at Brewer's behest and
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Brewer claimed otherwise. The trial court found that

"the defendant Charles P. Brewer continued the busi-

ness under the agreement as modified, and about the

30th day of June, 1947, the plaintiff in violation of its

agreement repudiated the contract as modified and noti-

fied the defendant Charles P. Brewer that he would

thereafter be required to pay the plaintiff twenty per

cent (20%) of the gross business done by him (75).

On July 24 Brewer resigned his employment (284-

285, 315). The company contended that this was done

pursuant to a conspiracy. Brewer claimed otherwise and

the trial court found as a fact that "because of the re-

pudiation by the plaintiff of the contract as modified,

the defendant Charles P. Brewer sent in his resignation

as agent to be effective August 1, 1947" (75).

FINDINGS OF FACT SHALL NOT BE SET

ASIDE UNLESS CLEARLY ERRONEOUS, AND
DUE REGARD SHALL BE GIVEN TO THE OP-

PORTUNITY OF THE TRIAL COURT TO JUDGE
OF THE CREDIBILITY OF THE WITNESSES.

(Rule 52, Federal Rules of Civil Procedure.)

ARGUMENT. Where there is a conflict in the evi-

dence the findings of the trial court are presumptively

correct and should not be disturbed unless clearly er-

roneous. The findings of fact are to be accepted as true,

and the sufficiency of the evidence to sustain the findings

remains the only consideration of the appellate court.

An appellate court will not disturb findings of the trial
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court based on conflicting evidence taken in open court

except for clear error. Though the appellate court may

be convinced that the finding could have been other-

wise upon the evidence, the findings of the trial court

are conclusive, as they have the same force and effect

as the verdict of a jury. Hartford Accident & Indem-

nity Co. V. Jasper et al. 9 Cir. 1944, 144 F. 2d. 266, 267.

In determining whether findings are supported by the

evidence, evidence most favorable to appellees must be

accepted. Smith et al v. Porter et al. 8 Cir. 1944, 143 F.

2d. 292, 295. Where a trial judge has seen the witnesses,

his findings, in so far as they depend upon whether

they spoke the truth must be treated as unassailable.

United States v. Aluminum Co. of America et al. 2 Cir.

1945, 148 F. 2d. 416, 433.

It is admitted that in the latter part of 1946 para-

graph 5 of the franchise was changed to provide for a

fifty-fifty division of the net profits. The company

claimed the change was for the year 1946, Brewer that

it was for the full term of the contract. Brewer is cor-

roborated by the speed with which the company re-

tracted in March, 1947, when it attempted then to re-

pudiate the modification. The company admitted that

it intended to collect twenty per cent of the gross after

July 1, 1947, and offers as an excuse that Brewer, who

had been wanting the fifty-fifty arrangement, suddenly

desired to go back to the original—ruinous to him

—

twenty per cent of the gross to the company. A ques-

tion of fact was thus presented to the trial court and it

found that the franchise had been modified as claimed
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by Brewer, that in June, 1947, the company notified

Brewer that as of July 1 it would not be bound by the

contract as modified, and that because of the actions

of the company Brewer resigned. These findings nega-

tive the conspiracy claimed by the appellant. If it sus-

tained a loss it was because of its own misconduct and

inequitable dealing with Brewer.

THE APPELLANT DID NOT DISCLOSE TO
THE APPELLEES ANY RECEIPTS, FORMULAE
OR SECRET PROCESSES.

There is substantial evidence in the case that the

company never disclosed to the appellees any receipts,

formulae, or secret processes (265-268, 434-435, 415)

and that since going into business Brewer has used no

products or formulae of the company (268-269). The

trial count found against the appellant on this issue,

finding **the plaintiff did not disclose to the defendant

Charles P. Brewer or to any of the other defendants

any receipts, formulae or secret processes and at the

defendant Charles P. Brewer has not used in his busi-

ness any receipts, formulae or processes of the plain-

tiff" (75).

Trade secret is plan or process, tool, mechanism, or

compound known only to its owner and those of its

employees to whom it is necessary to confide it in order

to apply it to use it was intended. Briggs v. Boston, 15

Fed. Supp. 763.
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AN INJUNCTION SHOULD NOT ISSUE
AGAINST A FORMER EMPLOYEE IF THE EM-

PLOYER HAS BEEN GUILTY OF INEQUITA-

BLE CONDUCT OR HAS HIMSELF BREACHED
THE CONTRACT.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIES. 1. A petition to

grant the extraordinary remedy of injunction requires

great caution and deliberation on the part of the court.

State V. Beaver Portland Cement Co., 169 Or. 1, 20,

124 P. 2d. 524, 126 P. 2d. 1094 (1942); Putnam v.

Coats, 220 Mo. App. 218, 222, 283, S. W. 717 (1926).

2. Generally, a private employment contract which

curtails the right of an employee to practice his occupa-

tion in earning his living wherever he may find work to

do will not be enforced in a court of equity unless the

rights of the employer reasonably need such protection.

Super Maid Cook-Ware Corporation v. Hamil, 5 Cir.

1931, 50 F. 2d. 830, 831; Hydraulic Press Mfg. Co. v.

Lake Erie Engineering Corporation, 2 Cir. 1942, 132 F.

2d. 403, 404.

3. The burden is on the plaintiff to show that the

franchise is fair, the restrictive covenants reasonable, and

that they have a real relation to, and are really neces-

sary for the protection of the plaintiff in the business to

which the covenants are incident. Super Maid Cook-

Ware Corporation v. Hamil, 5 Cir. 1931, 50 F. 2d. 830,

831; Ridly v. Kraut, 180 P. 2d. 124 (Wyo. 1947).

4. Reasonableness and fairness of a contract is

measured by what may be done under the terms there-
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of and not what has been done. Love v. Miami Lumber

Co. 118 Fla. 137, 160 So. 32, 38 (1935).

5. It must appear that plaintiff has performed all

obligations imposed on it by the contract, before it is

entitled to injunctive relief. Wilson v. Gamble, 180 Miss.

499, 177 So. 363, 368 (1937).

6. Injunction will be denied when it appears that

plaintiff's conduct in obtaining the contract was unjust

or unfair, or that plaintiff acted unjustly or unfairly un-

der the contract, or that the contract is unjust, harsh,

unfair or unreasonable, or that the entire matter ap-

pears to be inequitable. Dutch Maid Bakeries, Inc., v.

Schleicher, 58 Wyo. 374, 131 P. 2d. 630 (1942); Econo-

my Grocery Stores Corporation v. McMenamy, 290

Mass. 549, 195 N. E. 746 (1935); Super Maid Cook-

Ware Corporation, 5 Cir, 1931, 50 F. 2d. 830; Briggs v.

Boston, 15 F. Supp. 763 (Dist. Court—N. D. Iowa,

1936). Love v. Miami Laundry Co. 118 Fla. 137, 160

So. 32 (1935).

7. One is not entitled to an injunction against a

breach of contract if he has himself already breached

the contract, or has given good cause for the defend-

ant's breach thereof. Smith Baking Co. v. Behrens, 125

Neb. 718, 251 N. W. 826 (1933); Public Laundries, Inc.

v. Taylor, 26 S. W. 2d, 1085 (Tex. Civ. App. 1930);

Seaboard Oil Co. v. Donovan, 99 Fla. 1296, 128 So. 821,

824 (1930).

8. If an employer prefers to leave himself free to

terminate the employment at will in his own discretion
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he should not be accorded an injunction to enforce a

stipulation that would exclude the former employee

from freely engaging in the same business. Byram v.

Vaughn, 68 F. Supp. 981, 984 (D. C. 1946).

ARGUMENT. The plaintiff sold his home in Oak-

land, California, and moved to Portland on the promise

of a salary of $250 per month and a franchise when the

volume of business was sufficient to make one profit-

able (269, 272, 275). Apellant says Brewer was to re-

ceive $200 per month and twenty per cent of the gross

income (259-260). After Brewer had moved his family

to Portland and purchased a home he was told that he

would have to accept a franchise or that he was through

(275-302).

The contract was harsh. The company reserved the

right to cancel the franchise on ninety days notice. In

Byram v. Vaughn, supra, it was said:

"Compliance with a covenant to refrain from
competition with a former employer may lead to

a serious hindrance and a substantial handicap in

one's efforts to earn a legitimate livelihood. It

may deprive the employee of the right to pursue
a calling for which he is best fitted or of the op-
portunity to work in his chosen field of endeavor.

An employer, who seeks to subject a former em-
ployee to such severe and drastic restrictions on
his activities, should at least extend to him some
assurance of financial security for a reasonable

time. Otherwise, the employee may find himself

completely at his employer's mercy. Such a re-

sult would seem inequitable and at times even
contrary to the dictates of humanity. One who
seeks to restrict another's freedom of action

should be willing to surrender his own inde-
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pendence to a corresponding degree. If the em-
ployer prefers to leave himself free to terminate

the employment at will in his own discretion, he
should not be accorded the drastic and far reach-

ing remedy by way of an injunction to enforce

a stipulation that would exclude the former em-
ployee from an opportunity freely to engage in

the same business. These considerations lead the

court to the conclusion that unless the contract

which binds one not to compete with his former
employer, also obligates the employer to con-
tinue the employment for a specified term, the

negative covenant should not be enforced by in-

junction."

The contract required Brewer to devote all his time

to the business (30), to carry all the expenses of oper-

ating (31-32), to pay ten per cent of his net profit to a

charitable organization (32), to purchase necessary

trucks and equipment (34), to purchase all stock, mer-

chandise, chemicals and materials from the company

(34), to "do whatever shall be necessary or required by

the company to increase the business of said company

(34), to pay for such "advertising matter, contract

forms, letterheads and any other printed matter which,

in the opinion of the company is necessary in the opera-

tion of the business of the agent" (35), to pay for all

fire, theft, liability and compensation policies and "such

other insurance as company shall deem necessary" (37),

to hire only employees satisfactory to the company and

to discharge those who were not (38). All rules and

regulations of the company, in existence or in futuro,

became or would become part of the contract (35), and

the company was made the sole and final judge as to

whether Brewer was complying with the contract (40).
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The inequitable conduct of the appellant in forcing

this harsh contract on Brewer when he had scarcely

settled himself in Portland would be grounds for a court

of equity to deny relief. However, the lower court based

its conclusion on findings, supported by substantial evi-

dence, that the appellant had repudiated the contract.

Under the authorities cited, this finding required the

court to decline to enforce the contract to the benefit

of the party who had been guilty of the wrong.

CONCLUSION. The plaintiff was never qualified to

do business in the state of Oregon until August, 1947.

The business was treated as belonging to Brewer. (82,

282, defendant's Exhibit 71). Neither Rightmire nor

Merriott nor Mrs. Brewer was a party to the contract

between appellant and Brewer. None of them were un-

der contract obligation to appellant, and Rightmire had

been told by appellant's representative that as of July 1,

1946, he (Rightmire) was working for Brewer. None of

them had anything to do with Brewer's severing his

connection with the appellant.

It is respectfully submitted that the decree of the

lower court should be affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

Plowden Stott,

Collier & Bernard,

Attorneys for Appellees.
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APPELLANT'S REPLY BRIEF

INTRODUCTION
This court may desire appellant's position on

the matters contained in appellees' brief which for

the most part admits the contentions of appellant.

Some further statement of the true facts of the case

and a brief analysis of appellees' position may be

desirable. Naturally, appellees would like to leave

the impression with this court that appellant was



running its business in a haphazard way, working

against its managers and franchise holders and

preventing them from mal^^ing any money and that

Brewer in particular was abused, mistreated and

unfairly dealt with in the Oregon territory. The
record will show the facts to be directly to the

contrary.

ADDITIONAL STATEMENT OF CASE
Appellees' statement of the case is neither com-

plete nor always accurate. In five hundred pages

of record there are but two references that are not

to Brewer's testimony shown by appellant to be

untrustworthy (Appellant's Br. 24).

Mr. Sibert began this business in 1927 (114) and

Mr. Fisher in 1935 (399). They made their partner-

ship in 1938 (115), came to Oregon in 1942 (115)

and incorporated in 1945 (Ex. 1). They worked

sixteen to twenty hours a day (116) and increased

their business, and developed two forms of contract

known as the managerial and franchise contracts

for individuals to handle their business in allotted

territory. The managerial form provided a salary

of $250.00 a month, with certain additions when he

started a new territory, but when the business in

that territory was developed to about $3,000 a

month gross, he was given a franchise (233) under

which the agent could make more money.

At the time of this trial, appellant had in ex-

istence eight franchise (370) and three managerial

contracts (371). Experience showed it cost the
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franchise holder forty-five to seventy-five per cent,

of the gross business to pay expenses. The average

was about 60% (235) which would leave 20% each

for the company and the agent. On a $3,000 a

month business, the agent would make $850.00 and

the company $600.00 (233). No agent, manager or

franchise holder had ever gone broke (370). Some
franchise operators were making a net of $6,000 to

$24,000 annually (371). These contracts were iden-

tical with Brewer's.

When Brewer came with the company in 1946,

he was given both forms to take home and study

(401). He wanted a franchise, but it was pointed

out it was better for him to start on a manager's

contract which he did until July 1, 1946 (403-4).

Brewer was treated no different than anyone else

holding similar contracts and had he been honest

and worked he w^ould have developed a fine busi-

ness which would have paid him good money
through the years. If this was not true, why did he

conspire to leave Paramount, take its customers,

its employees and immediately go into business

for himself? If the business had been as bad as he

attempts to claim before the trial court, he would

never have gone into it on his own responsibility

without the financial backing and good name of

Paramount. Obviously he, early in his employ-

ment, determined to make the business his own and

to build it on Paramount's money. He asked to have

the payments changed so that he would only have

to pay the company a dollar if he personally drew



a dollar and he could use the rest of the money to

develop a business which he intended to appropri-

ate to himself. In contrast to this commercial piracy,

Paramount has always been fair in its treatment

even to the extent of paying the expenses of the

Eastern Oregon development for Brewer's busi-

ness, one-half of which he agreed to but never paid.

ADMISSIONS IN APPELLEES' BRIEF
1. Of Appellant's Error No. 1 : Appellant asks for

a finding to the effect that it does in Oregon, the

same business that it does in California, as a basis

for an injunction to protect that business. The right

to the finding is clearly established (App. Br. 6, 7)

and there is not one word of denial in appellees'

record.

2. Of Appellant's Error No. 4 : In Assignment of

Error No. 4 appellant points out that it was en-

titled to a monetary judgment on various accounts

upon two bases: (i) contract obligations that have

in some instances been partly paid in acknowledg-

ment of the obligation, and (ii) in the other in-

stances, specific statements of damages unpaid.

There is no answer to this section of appellant's

brief (pp. 32-7). Perhaps appellees feel that a mon-

etary judgment is of little benefit to appellant or

detriment to them. Nevertheless, appellant feels its

right to such has been clearly established and it

claims when equity rightly assumes jurisdiction

over a cause for any purpose, ordinarily it retains

the cause for all purposes, and proceeds to final

examination of the entire controversy and estab-



lishcs purely legal rights and grants purely legal

remedies therein, and the jurisdiction of equity is

tested by the tacts existing at the inception of the

suit, and in this case an injunction was the domi-

nant relief sought. ManU'll v. Inlenialional Plastic

Harmonica Corpn. et al (1947) N. J. , 55 A.

(2d) 250, 17:J A.L.R. 1185, supported by note at

pages 1198 to 1202.

3. By Appellees other than Charles P. Brewer:

Appellant wonders what happened to the other

appellees besides Brewer. Have they abandoned

him? Other than a reference to their immaterial

testimony that they received no secret formulae

(Appellee's Brief p. 6), there is no mention of them

or any defense in their behalf. All other citations

of testimony are to Brewer's, all argument in his

behalf, all references to his contract and none to

that of other employees. There is no answer by

defendants Rosalie Brewer, Raymond Rightmire,

or Earl Merriott to the claims of appellant.

APPELLEES' FAILURE TO ANSWER
APPELLANT'S ERROR NO. 2—CONSPIRACY

1. Twenty out of thirty-eight pages in appel-

lant's brief were given to citations in the record and

to legal authorities to prove a conspiracy between

these appellees.

There is but one reference to conspiracy in ap-

pellees' brief, to-wit: "These findings negative the

conspiracy claimed by the appellant" (Appellees'

Br. 6).



2. This means that appellees rely solely on the

trial court's alleged finding without naming it.

There is no finding on conspiracy, as to its existence

or non-existence, made by the trial court.

The nearest approach is finding No. 4 (75), say-

ing that Brewer engaged in the pest control business

and employed Rightmire and Merriott and admits

serving "upwards of one hundred customers of the

plaintiff." Nowhere in appellees' record is there

any effort to support the trial court in failing to

comply with the Federal Rules of Civil Procedure,

No. 52 (a) on so obvious and prominent an issue.

Appellant has no quarrel with the principle that

findings of fact shall not be set aside unless clearly

erroneous, but denies its application here because

there is no finding on conspiracy, and if Finding

No. 4 (75) is an attempt to negative conspiracy, then

clearly the law permits an appellate court to in-

quire into the evidence the court had in mind to

support its finding.

Wisely, the appellate court does not put too

much stress upon the findings of a trial court when

prepared by the prevailing parties' attorney with

as little direction as was herein given by the court's

"Memorandum Opinion" (73).

Under Rule 52 (a), when findings are contrary

to the weight of the evidence, even though they are

sustained by the spoken word from the witness

stand, the appellate court has power to reverse any

judgment based thereon. While the findings are



presumptively correct, they are not conclusive on

appeal as against the clear weight of evidence.

In the case of Slate Farm Mutual Automobile

Insurance Co. u. Bonacci (CCA 8th) 111 F. (2d) 412,

the court said:

"The rule plainly contemplates a review by the

Appellate Court of the sufficiency of the evi-

dence to sustain the Findings." (p. 415).

The court, in its decision, quoted Simpkins Fed-

eral Practice (3rd ed.) p. 488, as follows:

"Under the new practice where Findings are

made by the Court without a Jury, the Appel-
late Court is not limited to the mere question
whether there is any substantial evidence to

support them but may set them aside if against

the clear weight of the evidence, at the same
time giving full effect to the specific qualifica-

tion of the Trial Judge to pass on creditability."

Appellant urges upon this court that there is no

finding on the question of conspiracy and no fact

or reason given in appellees' brief why such finding

should not be made in accordance with the evidence

and as contended by appellant (Appellant's Br.

7-27, inch).

APPELLEES' FAILURE TO ANSWER
ERROR NO. 3—EQUITABLE RELIEF

The only phase of this case which apparently

alarms Charles P. Brewer is the possibility of in-

junctive relief in favor of the appellant. It was the

relief which the trial court came nearest to grant-
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ing (Tr. 73). It would prevent Brewer or any asso-

ciate still with him, from continuing their commer-

cial piracy. Brewer's contentions on this point pre-

sent the only semblance of an issue upon this ap-

peal. They may be classed as follows:

—

1. Injunction should not issue because no secret

processes were disclosed to appellees (Appellees'

Br. 6). Owing to the business relations that were

disturbed and the contractual relations between

employer and customer that were broken, this con-

tention is immaterial, and Finding No. 5 (75), based

on such claim, is equally immaterial and goes to

no real issue in this case. (See Appellant's Br. pp.

28-29, incl.)

2. Repudiation of Contract: The claim by Brewer

that Paramount repudiated his franchise, was the

only defense that he pled in this case (70). It has

been fully refuted in appellant's brief (pp. 19 to

27).

3. In the remaining portion of appellees' brief

there are confused and irrelevant claims whose

only purpose could be to cloud the issue. One of

these claims is that Paramount "breached the con-

tract" (Appellee's Br. p. 7). This is an affnmative

defense and should be pled, but there was no plead-
^

ing that Paramount breached its franchise in ap-

pellees' Answer (67 to 71). There is no evidence of

a breach submitted as such. There was no finding

to that effect (74-77). The question cannot be raised

for the first time on appeal.



4. Appellee Brewer elaims his franchise was

unreasonable and unfair. This claim was not pled

in his Answer (()7-71). If he is sincere in such a

claim, as the asserter of the fact, he has the burden

of proving it and there is no proof. The lack of

proof was so obvious to the trial court (even hold-

ing in Brewer's favor on other issues) that it de-

leted any proposed finding that the contract was

"not fah^ and reasonable" (76). The appellees took

no appeal from this holding of the court. Appellant

has shown eight individuals, operating in dilferent

territories under these contracts, have earned sub-

stantial incomes, and under such conditions a con-

tract could not be considered unfair or unjust.

In effect. Brewer claims though he contracted

that he would give ninety days' notice of terminat-

ing his agreement and contracted to refrain from

canvassing, soliciting or catering to any customers

of his employer known to him, and admits he did

not give such notice because he was afraid that the

company would take prompt steps against his con-

duct, and he did solicit and serve not less than a

hundred and forty-two of appellant's customers,

that no injunction should prohibit him from con-

tinuing his unlawful conduct, but should leave him

free, irrespective of his contract or the appellant's

alleged violation thereof, to continue to interfere

and cause the breach of contracts to which he was

not even a party.

It is well established in law that this appellant

has a right to perform a contract which it has made
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with its customers and to reap the profits resulting

from that contractual relation and performance,

and appellant has a right to expect and demand

performance by these customers, and such rights

are declared property which either the customer or

Paramount may ask to be performed, and certainly

freed of the unlawful interference by Brewer or

his associates. (84A.L.R. 43)

This principle is clearly recognized in Snow Cap

Dairy u. Robanske (1935) 151 Or. 59 (47 P. 2d)

977, where the court said

:

"We agree with counsel for appellant, that a

party will be enjoined from soliciting custom-
ers of another party in violation of his con-

tractual obligation to refrain therefrom. In

every case cited by appellant in support of this

proposition, the contract of employment had a

clause to the effect: That when the employ-
ment should cease, the employee would there-

after refrain from soliciting the customers of

the employer to give their patronage to some
one else * * *. Where one sells a professional

business and its good will, there would seem to

be an implied contract that the vendor would
not thereafter enter into competition with the

vendee and thus destroy the good will he sold."

(p. 61).

See Columbia Tent and Awning Company v. Thiele,

135 Or. 511.

In Fairbanks Morse & Co. v. Texas Electric

Service Co, (CCA 5th 1933) 63 F. (2d) 702, the court

said:

"It must be conceded that, generally speaking,

it is tortuous for one, without justification, to
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induce anolhei- to breach a contract, and that it

is quite generally assumed as a matter of course
that an injunction will be granted when the
breach of valid contracts is, without legal justi-

fication, being oi* about to be induced." (p. 705)
(No contractural relation here involved.)

See Paramount Pictures, Inc. et al v. Leader

Press, Inc. et al (CCA 10th 1929) 106 F. (2d) 229

(no contract involved); Falstaff Brewing Corp'n u.

Iowa Fruit & Produce Co. (CCA 8th 1940) 112 F.

(2d) 101 (employment contract involved).

Even strangers to a contractual relation may be

enjoined from aiding the violation thereof by

others. Lijle et al v. Haskins et al (1946) 24 Wash.

(2d) 883, 168 P. (2d) 797.

CONCLUSION
Tlie record must impress the court that appel-

lant has used diligent efforts to keep abreast of the

times in the treatment of all pests, that it has de-

veloped contractual relations satisfactory to all ex-

cept Brewer and his associates, and that it had

trained Brewer and given him assistance beyond

the contractual obligations.

It must also be apparent that Brewer and wife

could not resist the temptation to take that business

for themselves when at their employer's expense it

had been developed to be a profitable and going

concern.

The failure of appellees to answer the proposi-

tions made is a confession of their legal liability
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and their servicing for themselves customers that

they knew were under contract with appellant and

their preparation to take over that business by pro-

curing printed matter in their own name long before

they made any disclosure of their intention to leave

appellant's employ, is an indication of the lack of

moral as well as legal responsibility, and their ad-

mission in securing the business of appellant for

themselves clearly renders them liable to injunctive

and legal relief.

Respectfully submitted,

Kenneth C. Gillis

and

Robert R. Rankin,

Attorneys for Appellant
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APPELLEE'S BRIEF

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT
Appellant, who was the defendant below, brings this

appeal from his conviction of the crime of Murder in

the First Degree in violation of Section 4757, Compiled

Laws of Alaska, 1933, upon the verdict of a jury after

a trial in the District Court of Alaska, First Division.

The Honorable George W. Folta, presiding, sentenced

appellant to the mandatory sentence of death by hang-

ing.

STATEMENT OF FACTS

Appellant, Eugene La Moore, in company with one



Austin Nelson left a down town bar in Juneau, Alaska,

at about 12:30 A.M., December 22, 1946, and walked

together to a neighborhood combinaton grocery-liquor

store in Juneau where they, after finding both the

liquor and grocery store sections closed, rapped on the

store door to get the owners' attention. Jim Ellen, the

store owner, had his living quarters at the rear of the

store and this fact as well as the fact that he fre-

quently waited on customers after regular store clos-

ing hours was known to LaMoore and Nelson. When,

in response to their rap Ellen appeared at the door, he

was struck with a blunt instrument on top of the

head several times, causing lacerations. He was then

taken forcibly or carried to the rear of the liquor store

which was part of the grocery store, where his throat

was cut nearly from ear to ear, severing every large

blood vessel in his neck. His exsanguinated body was

found in a slumped position shortly before noon the

same day and although Ellen was generaly known to

have always carried a considerable amount of money

on his person none was in his possession when his body

was discovered. Likewise his safe, which was located

in his living quarters at the rear of the store, had been

opened and robbed.

Investigation led to the immediate apprehension

and subsequent jury trial and conviction of Austin

Nelson of Murder in the First Degree. Shortly be-

fore the date set for his execution Nelson confessed

to his participation in the robbery and murder, and

2



implicated the ai)]j(illHnt. Shortly thereafter, appellant

in an oral statement to a Deputy U. S. Marshal, ad-

mitted his participation in the robbery of Ellen and

later on the same day he signed a statement after

again relating his participation in the plan and act-

ual robbery of Ellen. His written statement was

made in the presence of and to a Deputy Marshal

and a local attorney whom he had requested to see.

The attorney present advised him on his first seeing

appellant that he could not represent him and was

not there for that purpose and repeated words to

the same effect before taking down appellant's state-

ment which was made to the Deputy Marshal and the

attorney jointly and while both of them were present.

During appellant's trial a Government witness testi-

fied that he saw Nelson and LaMoore standing in

front of Ellen's Store, in the doorway at approxi-

mately between 12:15 and 12:20 A. M., December

22, 1946. His identification of both Nelson and

Appellant was positive and he further testified that

he spoke to one of them on seeing them as he passed

Ellen's Store. Likewise, the 32-caliber automatic

pistol admittedly used by Nelson and appellant in

connection with the robbery and killing of Ellen was

recovered from the home of the appellant's parents-

in-law with whom appellant and his wife lived.

It was on the basis of this and other evidence and

numerous other corroborative circumstances, that the

appellant was found guilty by a jury in the District

3



Court for the Territory of Alaska at Juneau, of First

Degree Murder, in violation of Section 4757, Compil-

ed Laws of Alaska, 1933.

ISSUES

I

NO ERROR WAS COMMITTED BY THE
TRIAL COURT IN PERMITTING THE IN-

TRODUCTION OF DEFENDANT'S STATE-
MENT, GOVERNMENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 4,

INTO EVIDENCE AS IT WAS A PURELY
VOLUNTARY STATEMENT AND NOT GIV-

EN UNDER IMPROPER INFLUENCES.

Appellant suggests his confession was given under

improper influences, and was not admissible in evi-

dence, it being unreliable and untrustworthy. It

is apparent, however, from his argument that the

real contention is that the statement was made in-

voluntarily. This argument is based entirely upon

the supposition that the statement was in fact in-

voluntarily made. The involuntary character of the

statement is nowhere pointed out, and appellant's

proposition is not supported by the testimony.

Confessions are presumed to have been voluntarily

made.

Murphy v. United States (CCA-7) 285 F. 801,

Cert. Den. 261 U.S. 617.

Evidence was introduced to show that appellant

made his confession on the day of July 1, 1947, to

Walter Hellan, Deputy United States Marshal, des-

4



cribing his participation with Austin Nelson in the

robbery and murder oi deceased, (Tr. 28, 32) and

at the same time appellant offered to execute a writ-

ten statement to be made in the presence of Hellan

and H. L. Faulkner, a Juneau attorney. (Tr. 30,31)

At about 8:00 P. M. on the evening of July 1, 1947,

Faulkner, after advising appellant that he could

not and would not represent him as his attorney, was

told by appellant of the details of his, appel-

lant's, participation in the robbery and murdei', and

shortly afterward dictated his confession to Faulkner

and Hellan. At appellant's request Faulkner typed

the confession as it was described by defendant,

Faulkner reading each paragraph as it was typed.

(Tr. 31, 32, 34, 55, 56, 58) When the confession was

completely typed Faulkner read it to appellant (Tr.

33, 34) and then appellant read it, and upon finish-

ing reading it appellant said it was all right and

signed it. (Tr. 33) Thus, on three different oc-

casions appellant voluntarily confessed to his partici-

pation in the crimes of robbery and murdei'. Both

witnesses, Faulkner and Hellan, testified appellant

was informed that Faulkner would not represent him

as his attorney and further that he did not have to

make a statement unless he wanted to, and no force,

threats, coercion, or promises were made as an in-

ducement. (Tr. 28, 32, 33, 52-58, 61, 179)

That appellant's confession was given freely and

voluntarily may be inferred from his own testimony.

5



On direct examination in answer to the question,

''Why did you make your statement as you did . . .
?"

appellant stated, 'To help him" . . . Austin Nelson . . .

"by prolonging his life" . . . "to help save his life."

(Ti. 120, 121, 122). On cross examination appel-

lant admitted that he had a conversation with Walter

Hellan en July 1, 1947, and told him, Hellan, that

he, appellant, was with Austin Nelson when the rob-

bery and murder of deceased was committed, and

that the statement was voluntary with no force be-

ing used. (Tr. 125 and 126)

In Wilson v. United States (Sup. Crt. U.S.) 162

U.S. 613, 40 L Ed. 1090, it is said "The true test of

admissibility is that the confession is made freely

and voluntarily and without compulsion and induce-

ment of any sort." The Court held as admissible

statements made by the appellant to a United States

Commissionei' which were contradictory to statements

made by him at his trial.

Confinement, imprisonment and being in irons in

itself was not sufficient to justify the exclusion of a

confession, where it appeared to have been voluntary,

and not obtained by putting the prisoner in fear and

by promises.

Sparf and Hansen v. United States (Sup. Crt.

U.S.) 156 U.S. 51,55.

A confession made while the defendant was in cus-

tody under armed guards, wearing handcuffs was ad-

6



mitted in evidence as being voluntary where no prom-

ises or threats w^ere made.

Greenhill v. United States (CCA-5) 6 F 2d 134

These authorities along with the following support

the ruling of the trial court in admitting appellant's

confession

:

Lewis V. United States (CCA-9) 74 F 2d 173
Young, et al v. Terr, of Hawaii (CCA-9 163 F
2d 490

Murphy v. United States (CCA-7 285 F 801,

Cert. Den. 261 U.S. 617

Marcus et al v. United States, 86 F 2d 854

Regarding appellant's mental strain, H. L. Faulk-

ner testified appellant was not under any great men-

tal stress or strain of any kind (Tr. 57) and his only

physical restraint consisted of leg irons. (Tr. 45, 57)

If defendant's own testimony merits belief, in view

of the many contradictory statements he made con-

cerning his confession while testifying in his own

behalf, it must be resolved that he was not suffer-

ing from any mental condition which rendered the

confession unworthy of consideration by the jury.

On direct examination he described his mental con-

dition as ''all up in the air," and when again asked

what mental condition he was in, replied, *'I don't

know." (Tr. 110, 111) It is not argued that he was

mentally ill or that he was mentally exhausted from

extended or harassing questioning by officers or other

persons.

Skiskoivski v. United States, 158 F 2d 177
7



Obviously the only mental strain and stress in

which he was laboring was that of a man conscious

of his own guilt in the robbery and murder of an-

other. No authority has been found holding confes-

sions made while under such mental stress and other-

wise voluntary, inadmissible as evidence, and it is

submitted that none can be found.

II

PLAINTIFF'S STATEMENT GOVERN-
MENT'S EXHIBIT NO. 4 WAS NOT GIVEN
TO ATTORNEY IN THE COURSE OF PRO-

FESSIONAL EMPLOYMENT AND DID NOT
THEREFORE CONSTITUTE A CONFIDEN-

TIAL DOCUMENT— ALSO THE STATE-

MENT WAS MADE TO AND IN THE PRES-

ENCE OF A THIRD PERSON.

Appellant contends that his confession given to H.

L. Faulkner and Walter Hellan is a privileged com-

munication made to his attorney. Presumably the

argument is based upon the Alaska Statute Section

4310, Compiled Laws of Alaska, 1933, which provides

*'An attorney shall not, without the consent of his

client, be examined as to any communication made by

his client to him, or his advice given thereon, in the

course of his professional employment." This pro-

vision is identical with the Oregon Code, Vol. 1, Sec.

3-104-2, Oregon Compiled Laws Annotated 1940 and

is said to be a declaration of the Common Law rule.

8



state ex rel. Hardy v. Gleason (Sup. Crt. Ore.)
April 23, 1890, 23P, 817, 818

People ex rel. Vogelstein v. Warden of County
Jail of New York County, (Sup. Crt. N.Y.
Co.) 270 NYS 362

Wigmore on Evidence, 3rd Ed. Sec. 2292
The statute therefore must be construed in the

light of the decisions on the subject. In order that

communications to attorneys be classed as privileged

and made inadmissible as evidence it is necessary that

the professional relation of attorney and client exist

at the time the communication is made; that the

commnuication be made on account of that relation;

and the communication is relevant to the subject-

matter of the attorney's engagement, to enable the

attorney to use his ability, skill, and learning in the

discharge of his office of attorney in relation thereto.

York V. United States (CCA-8) 224 F 88

When tested by this principle it is submitted that

the facts of instant case do not reveal a relation-

ship of attorney and client exisiting betv^een appel-

lant and H. L. Faulkner, the Government witness, at

any time; before, after, or during the time appellant

made his confession.

H. L. Faulkner testified that he was never an at-

torney for appellant and when he first talked with

him, July 1, 1947, advised appellant that he could

not and would not represent him, and that he wanted

appellant to clearly understand that he, Faulkner,

was not his attorney. (Tr. 53) Again in the presence

9



of appellant and Walter Hellan, Faulkner told ap-

pellant he could not represent him as an attorney.

(Tr. 56, 58, 61, 179) This testimony is verified by

Walter Hellan. (Tr. 32, 182)

Authorities supporting the ruling of the trial court

in holding that attorney and client relationship did

not exist in instant case, and the general principle

that where no attorney-client relationship exists, com-

munications to an attorney, where relevant, are not

privileged and are admissible as evidence, are as

follows

:

York V. United States, Supra

Steiiier v. United States (CCA-5) 134 F 2d
931, 934-935

Boiling v. United States (CCA-5) 76 F 2d 390

Smale v. United States (CCA-7) 3 F 2d 101,

Cert. Den. 276 U.S. 602

State V. Rush (Sup. Crt. W. Va.) 150 SE 740,

741

It has also been held that privilege does not extend

to communications voluntarily made to a lawyer after

he has informed the person making them that he will

not accept employment in the matter to which the

communication relates. 5 ALR Pg. 729

In People v. Hess, Supreme Court, New York, 40

NYS 486, 5 ALR Pg. 729, defendant was accused of

shooting deceased. The examining magistrate who

inquired into the homicide was attorney for defen-

dant in other matters, and on being requested to rep-

resent defendant in the homicide prosecution, declin-

10



ed. Later, while visiting defendant in jail, defendant

told the attorney as a friend, the details of the shoot-

ing. The Court held that under a statute providing

for non-disclosure by attorney of communications of

clients to them ''given in the course of professional

employment" the relation of attorney and client did

not exist and defendant having been distinctly in-

formed of the fact, the communication was admissible.

Even if the Court should have considered Mr.

Faulkner as the appellant's attorney at the time the

confession was made, another element prevails which

takes the communication out of the privileged cate-

gory. Appellant first told Walter Hellan of his par-

ticipation in the robbery and murder of deceased.

Then later he told Mr. Faulkner substantially the

same story and later dictated the confession to Hellan

and Faulkner while both were present and while the

latter typed it. Hellan was in no way associated

with the law office or practice of H. L. Faulkner.

He was in fact a Deputy United States Marshal, well

known to appellant, and at best could have been con-

sidered nothing less than an opposite and hostile par-

ty. ''In order that the rules as to privileged com-

munications between attorney and client or its rea-

son shall apply, it is necessary that the communica-

tion by the client to the attorney or his clerk be con-

fidential and be intended as confidential." 58 Am.

Jur. Pg 274 Sec. 490. Appellant, in disclosing the

facts first to Hellan and later to Hellan and Faulk-

11



ner, certainly indicated he did not regard the con-

fession confidential. Therefore, the reason for the

privilege ceases to exist, and the rule which protects

privileged communications between attorneys and

clients does not apply.

York V. United States, Supra
Livezeyv. United States, (CCA-5) 279 F 496

State V. Mickle, (Sup. Crt. Iowa) 202 NW 549

Crawford, et al v. Raible, (Sup. Crt. Iowa)
221 NW 474

28 RCL Pg. 561 Sec. 151

58 Am. Jur. Pg. 275 Sec. 492

Wigmore on Evidence, 3rd Ed. Sec. 2311

CONCLUSION

No reversible error was committed by the Trial

Court in this case. It clearly appears from the trans-

script of the record that the Signed Statement of the

Defendant, Government's Exhibit No. 4, was a purely

voluntary statement made by appellant after being

advised that he did not have to make a statement

unless he wished to, and that it was made without

any inducement, threats, coercion, physical or men-

tal force, and without any offers or promises of re-

ward. Further, that the defendant read the state-

ment and that it was read to him before he signed

it. The record also shows that the attorney to whom
appellant made his statement told appellant several

times in no uncertain language that he couldn't repre-

sent him and was not representing him as his attor-

ney, prior to the taking of the statement which was

12



not in any event a statement of a confidential nature,

as it was related at the same time to a third person

and in the presence of said third person, and had been

previously made by appellant to a Deputy U. S. Mar-

shal.

The Judgment of the Trial Court should, therefore,

ba affirmed.

Respectfully submitted,

P. J. GILMORE, JR.,

United States Attorney

STANLEY D. BASKIN,

Assistant U. S. Attorney.
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2 Printing Specialties and Paper Converters, etc.

In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of California

Central Division

No. 7859-M

HOWARD F. LeBARON, Regional Director of the

21st Region of the NATIONAL LABOR RELA-
TIONS BOARD, on Behalf of the NATIONAL
LABOR RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner,

V.

PRINTING SPECIALTIES AND PAPER CON-
VERTERS UNION, LOCAL 388, AFL, and

WALTER J. TURNER,
Respondents.

PETITION FOR AN INJUNCTION UNDER SEC-

TION 10(1) OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RE-
LATIONS ACT, AS AMENDED [2]

To the Honorable District Judge of the United States

District Court for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, Central Division:

Comes now Howard F. LeBaron, Regional Director of

the 21st Region of the National Labor Relations Board

(hereinafter called the board), and petitions this Court on

behalf of the Board, pursuant to Section 10(1) of the

National Labor Relations Act, as amended June 23, 1947,

(Public Law 101, 80th Congress, Chapter 120, 1st Ses-

sion, hereinafter called the Act), for a temporary restrain-

ing order and for appropriate injunctive relief pending

the final adjudication of the Board with respect to the

matter pending before the Board on charges alleging that
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respondents have engaged in and are engaging in viola-

tion of Section 8(b), subsection 4(A) of the Act. In

support thereof, Petitioner respectfully shows as follows:

1. Petitioner is Regional Director of the 21st Region

of the Board, an agency of the United States Govern-

ment, and files this petition on behalf of the Board.

2. Respondent Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, Local 388, AFL (hereinafter called Local

388) is a labor organization within the meaning of Sec-

tion 2(5) of the Act. and has its principal office at 1543

West 11th Street, Los Angeles, California, within this

judicial district.

3. Respondent Walter J. Turner is and has been at

all times herein material, an agent of Local 388 and is

engaged in this judicial district in promoting or protecting

the interests of employee members of respondent Printing

Specialties and Paper Converters Union, Local 388, AFL.

4. The jurisdiction of this proceeding is conferred

upon this Court by Section 10(1) of the Act.

5. On or about November 18, 1947, Sealright Pacific

Ltd. (hereinafter called Sealright), pursuant to the pro-

visions of Section 10(b) of the Act, filed a charge alleging

that respondents have engaged in and are engaging in

unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section

8(b), subsection 4(A) of the Act and aflfecting com-

merce within the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the

Act. A copy of said charge is attached hereto marked

"Exhibit 1" and made [3] a part hereof.

6. Said charge was thereafter duly referred to Peti-

tioner as Regional Director of the 21st Region of the

Board for investigation. Petitioner has investigated the

said charge.
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7. After such investigation, Petitioner has reason to

beheve and beheves such charge is true and that a Com-

plaint of the Board based thereon should issue against

respondents. More specifically, from the investigations,

Petitioner has reason to believe and believes that respond-

ents and each of them have engaged in and are engaging

in conduct in violation of Section 8(b), subsection 4(A)

of the Act, within the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7)

of the Act as follows:

(a) Sealright Pacific Ltd. is a corporation organized

under and existing by virtue of the laws of the

State of California. Its principal office and place

of business is located at 1577 Rio Vista Avenue,

Los Angeles, California, where it is engaged in the

manufacture, sale and distribution of paper food

containers and milk bottle caps. In the course and

conduct of its business, it purchases and causes to

be transported to its Los Angeles plant from points

outside the State of California, paper, steel, ship-

ping cases, etc., all valued at an excess of

$1,000,000.00 annually. Its finished products com-

prising milk bottle caps, milk bottle closures and

food containers, are valued at an excess of

$1,000,000.00 annually and more than 50 per cent

of such products are shipped outside the State of

Cahfornia.

(b) Los Angeles Seattle Motor Express, Inc. (herein-

after called L. A. Seattle), 1147 Staunton Avenue,

Los Angeles, is a common carrier operating motor

trucks between Los Angeles and points in the Pa-

cific Northwest. It has carried Sealright's products

for a number of years.
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(c) On November 13, 1947, respondent Walter J.

Turner, vice president of Local 388, advised L. A.

Seattle that if it continued to handle Sealright's

products, L. A. Seattle would be picketed by [4]

Local 388.

(d) On about November 14, 1947, representatives of

Local 388 followed two trucks loaded with Seal-

right's products to the L. A. Seattle terminal where

by forming a picket line around the two trucks con-

taining the products of Sealright and telling the

employees that the trucks contained "hot cargo"

and not to "handle it," induced and encouraged

the employees of L. A. Seattle, by orders, force,

threats, or promises of benefits, not to transport

or handle the goods of Sealright. After November

14, 1947, as a result of the above conduct of Local

388 the employees of L. A. Seattle refused to

transport or handle the goods of Sealright. Local

388 engaged in the foregoing conduct to force or

require L. A. Seattle to cease handling or trans-

porting the products of Sealright.

(e) West Coast Terminals Co. (hereinafter called West

Coast) is a public wharfinger with its docks and

wharves located on Pier A, Berths 2 and 3. Ter-

minal Island. Long Beach (2), California. On or

prior to November 17, 1947, West Coast received

from Panama Pacific Lines Vessell S. S. Green

Bay Victory, a consignment of rolls of paper

destined for Sealright's Los Angeles plant.

(f) On November 17, 1947, while employees of West

Coast were engaged in loading the rolls of paper

onto freight cars consigned to Sealright in Los
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Los Angeles, a group of pickets representing Local

388 appeared at the docks of West Coast and, by

forming a picket line around the freight cars be-

ing loaded with the rolls of paper for Sealright,

induced and encouraged the employees of West

Coast, by orders, force, threats, or promises of

benefits, not to handle or work on the paper con-

signed to Sealright. Since November 17, 1947, as

a result of the above conduct of Local 388 and

the continued picketing by Local 388 of the docks

of West Coast, the employees of West Coast have

refused to handle or work on the goods consigned

to Sealright. Local 388 [5] engaged in the fore-

going conduct in order to force or require West

Coast to cease handling or transporting the prod-

ucts of Sealright.

8. Unless restrained, the acts above described are in

imminent likelihood of being repeated. Thereby irre-

parable damage will be done to the policies of the Act.

To avoid such results, it is just and proper, and appro-

priate and necessary, that, pending the final adjudication

by the Board of the matters involved in said charge,

respondents be enjoined and restrained from the commis-

sion of said acts, similar acts or repetitions thereof.

Wherefore, Petitioner prays:

1. That the Court issue a rule directing respondents

Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union, Local

388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner, and each of them, to

appear to show cause before this Court, at a time fixed

by this Court, why an injunction should not issue enjoin-
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ing or restraining respondents and each of them and their

agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in

active concert or i)articipation with them, pending final

adjudication of the Board of such matters, from:

(a) Engaging in or inducing or encouraging the em-

ployees of West Coast Terminal Co. and Los An-

geles Seattle Motor Express, Inc. by orders, force,

threats, or promises of benefits, or by permitting

any such to remain in effect, or by any other like

acts or conduct, to engage in a concerted refusal

in the course of their employment to transport, or

otherwise handle any goods, articles, materials, or

commodities or perform any services in order to

force or require West Coast Terminals Co. and

Los Angeles Seattle Motor Express, Inc. to cease

handling, transporting the materials or products

of Sealright Pacific Ltd., or to cease doing busi-

ness with Sealright Pacific Ltd.

(b) Engaging in, or inducing or encouraging the em-

ployees of any employer to engage in, a strike or

a concerted refusal in the course of their employ-

ment to transport or otherwise handle any goods,

articles, materials, or commodities or to perform

any [6] services, in order to force or require any

employer or other person to cease using, selling,

handling, transporting, or otherwise dealing in the

products of Sealright Pacific, Ltd., or to cease do-

ing business with Sealright Pacific, Ltd.

2. That upon return of the rule the Court issue an

order enjoining and restraining respondents and each of

them in the manner set forth above.
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3. That the Court grant such other and further re-

lief as may be just and proper.

HOWARD F. LeBARON
Regional Director National Labor Relations Board

Twenty-First Region

GEORGE H. O'BRIEN
Attorney National Labor Relations Board

[Verified.]

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 17, 1947. Edmund L. .Smith,

Clerk. [7]

[Title of District Court and Cause]

MOTION

To the Honorable District Judge of the United States

District Court for the Southern District of Cali-

fornia, Central Division [8]

Comes now George H. O'Brien, attorney, National

Labor Relations Board, and respectfully moves that this

Court enter an order requiring respondents to appear

before this Court on a date and time certain and show

cause if any there be why said respondents should not be

enjoined and restrained as prayed in the petition hereto-

fore filed herein.

GEORGE H. O'BRIEN
Attorney National Labor Relations Board Twenty-First

Region

111 West Seventh Street

Los Angeles 14, California

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 13, 1947. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [9]
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[Title of District Court and Cause
J

ORDER TO SHOW CAUSE

Upon petition of Howard F. LeBaron, Regional Di-

rector of the Twenty-First Region of the National Labor

Relations Board, for an [10] injunction enjoining and

restraining Printing Specialties and Paper Converters

Union, Local 388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner, respond-

ents herein, from engaging in certain acts in violation

of the National Labor Relations Act, as amended, pend-

ing the final adjudication of said Board with respect to

such matters, and good cause appearing therefor,

It Is Ordered that Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, Local 388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner,

the respondents herein, appear before this Court at Los

Angeles, California, on the 30th day of December, 1947,

at ten o'clock A. M., or as soon thereafter as counsel can

be heard, and then and there show cause, if any there be,

why, pending the final adjudication of the Board with

respect to such matters, they and each of them, and their

agents, servants, employees, attorneys, and all persons in

active concert or participation with them, should not be

enjoined and restrained as prayed in said petition.

it is Further Ordered, ^h^ rogpondcnts Printing

Specialties afi4 Paper Convortcrs Union, Local ^^§87

AFL, aed Walter } Turner, aft4 eaefe ei them, r,hall

fi4e awy anowcrs te the allegations et fraid petition aftd

the affidavits attached thereto m the office et the Clerk

ei this Court, a«4 serve a copy thereof upon petitioner
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at -77 Oft ^¥- before -r^-^^-^^-r-^^^^^^^ o'clock

A. Mr eft the day el ^^^^v^-^^-t-^^-t-^ i94--- [PJM]

It Is Further Ordered that service of a copy of this

rule together with a copy of said petition upon which

it is issued be made by U. S. Marshal upon respondents

Printing- Specialties and Paper Converters Union. Local

388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner in any manner provided

in the Rules of Civil Procedure for District Courts of

the United States, or by registered mail; that similar

service be made upon Sealright Pacific [11] Ltd., the

charging party; and that proof of such service be filed

herein by the U. S. Marshal.

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge

Signed at Los Angeles, California, at 1 :50 P. M. this

18th day of Dec, 1947.

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 13, 1947. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [12]

[Title of District Court and Cause]

NOTICE OF MOTION TO DISMISS PETITION
FOR AN INJUNCTION UNDER SECTION
10(1) OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELA-
TIONS ACT AS AMENDED

To Winthrop A. Johns and George H. O'Brien, Attorneys

for Petitioner, National Labor Relations Board,

Twenty-First Region, 111 West Seventh Street, Los

Angeles 14, California, Please Take Notice That:

On the 30th day of December, 1947. at 10:00 A. M,.

or as soon thereafter as counsel can be heard, respondents
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will appear before this Court at the United States Post

Office and Court House Buildinj^ in the City of Los

Angeles, State of California, and will bring the following

motion on for hearing

:

1. To dismiss this proceeding on the ground that the

Court lacks jurisdiction over the same, in that the petition

herein has been filed under [13] color of authority of

Section 10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act as

amended June 23, 1947. (Public Law 101, 80th Cong.,

Ch. 120, 1st Sess.), and more particularly said petition

has been filed pursuant to that provision of Section

10(1) which purports to confer jurisdiction upon this

Court to grant injunctive relief against activities pro-

scribed by paragraph (4) (A) of Section 8(b) of said

amended Act, which Sections 8(b) (4) (A) and 10(1)

are contrary to the Constitution of the United States.

Amendments I, V, and XIII, and are therefore wholly

invalid and without any legal force and effect.

2. To dismiss this proceeding on the ground that the

Court lacks jurisdiction over the person of the respondents

and the subject matter of this proceeding in that the sole

allegation relating to said jurisdiction set forth in the

petition herein invokes the purported authority of Section

10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act as amended

June 23. 1947, (Public Law 101, 80th Cong., Ch. 120,

1st Sess.), which portion of said enactment is unconstitu-

tional and void in that it contravenes the Constitution of

the United States, Amendments I, V, and XIII.

3. To dismiss this proceeding for lack of jurisdiction

on the ground that the petition herein prays for injunc-

tive relief a.^ainst lawful acts of respondents, which relief

in substance and in form would be contrary to the Con-

stitution of the United States, Amendments I, \\ and
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XIII, and that no other claim upon which relief can be

granted has been stated.

ROBERT W. GILBERT
CLARENCE E. TODD
ALLAN L. SAPIRO

By Robert W. Gilbert

Attorneys for Respondents Specially Appear-

ing for Purpose of this Motion

Dated: December 24, 1947

Good cause being shown, the time of notice is hereby

shortened to two days.

PAUL J. McCORMICK
Judge, United States District Court

Signed at Los Angeles, California, at 11 :30 A. M. this

24th day of December, 1947. [14]

RESPONDENTS' MEMORANDUM OF POINTS
AND AUTHORITIES

L

Members of Labor Organizations as Well as Other Per-

sons Are Constitutionally Guaranteed the Right to

Express Themselves on Matters of Public Concern

Without Being Subject to Prior Restraint

Near v. Minnesota, 283 U. S. 697, 51 S. Ct. 625, 75 L.

Ed. 1357

Grosjean v. American Press Co., 297 U. S. 233, 56 S.

Ct. 444, 80 L. Ed. 660

Thornhill V. Alabama, 310 U. S. 88, 60 S. Ct. 736, 84

L. Ed. 1093
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Carlson v. California, 310 U. S. 106, 60 S. Ct. 746,

84 L. Ed. 1104

In re Pjlaney (decided October 3, 1947) 30 A. C. 648,

654, 184 P (2d) 892

II.

Denial of the Ri^ht of Working-men to Jointly Publicize a

Labor Dispute With the Purpose of Persuading

Other Employees to Cease Dealing With the Em-
ployer in the Dispute Abridges the Cognate Rights

of Free Speech and Assembly Embodied in the First

Amendment and Amounts to a Denial of Liberty

Without Due Process of Law in Contravention of

the Fifth Amendment

The rights secured by the First Amendment are cognate

rights, or facets of one right, and all are upheld by the

"Free Speech" decisions of the Supreme Court of the

United States.

Milk Wagon Drivers v. Meadowmoor Dairies, 312

U. S. 287, 293, 61 S. Ct. 552, 85 L. Ed. 497, 132 A. L. R.

1200

Murdock v. Pennsylvania, 319 U. S. 105, 111, 63 S. Ct.

870, 87 L. Ed. 1292, 146 A. L. R. 81

Thomas v. Collins, 323 U. S. 516, 530, 531, 65 S. Ct.

315, 89 L. Ed. 436 [15]

De Jonge v. Oregon, 299 U. S. 353, 57 S. Ct. 255, 81

L. Ed. 278

The right of all persons to gather together and peace-

ably address their attention to matters of common con-

cern as a means' of furthering their political, social, eco-

nomic or religious objectives is basis to our form of

representative democracy, irrespective of statutory law.
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United States v. Cruikshank, 92 U. S. 542, 552, 23 L.

Ed. 588

Herndon v. Lowry, 301 U. S. 242, 259, 57 S. Ct. 732,

81 L. Ed. 1066

De Jonge v. Oregon, supra,

'The First Amendment is a charter for govern-

ment, not for an institution of learning. Tree trade

in ideas' means free trade in the opportunity to

persuade to action, not merely to describe facts . . .

and the right either of workmen or of unions under

these conditions to assemble and discuss their own

affairs is as fully protected by the Constitution as

the right of businessmen, farmers, educators, political

party members, or others to assemble and discuss

their affairs and to enlist the support of others."

Thomas v. Collins, supra, 323 U. S. at 537, emphasis

supplied.

See also In re Porterfield, 28 Cal. (2d) 91, 168 P.

(2d) 706, 167 A. L. R. 675

III.

Peaceful Picketing and Threat of Peaceful Picketing

Which Constitute the Only Charges Made Against

Respondents Come Within the Constitutional Safe-

guards of the First Amendment

Cafeteria Employees' Union v. Angelos, 320 U. S. 293,

64 S. Ct. 126, 88 L. Ed. 58

Hotel Employees' Local v. Board, 315 U. S. 437, 62

S. Ct. 706, 86 L. Ed. 946

Bakery Wagon Drivers' Local v. Wohl, 315 U. S. 769,

62 S. Ct. 816, 86 L. Ed. 1178
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Carpenters' Union v. Ritter's Cafe, 315 U. S. 722,

62 S. Ct. 807, 86 L. Ed. 1143

A. F. of L. V. Swing, 312 U. S. 321, 61 S. Ct. 568,

85 L. Ed. 855 [16]

Carlson v. California, 310 U. S. 106, 60 S. Ct. 746,

84 L. Ed. 1104

Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S. 88, 60 S. Ct. 736,

84 L. Ed. 10<;3

Senn v. Tile Layers' Protective Union, 301 U. S. 468,

57 S. Ct. 857, 81 L. Ed. 1229

In re Blaney, supra, 30 A. C. at 652

In re Porterfield, supra, 28 Cal. (2d) at 114

Park and Tilford Import Corp. v. Int'l. Brotherhood

of Teamsters, 27 Cal. (2d) 599, 608, 165 P. (2d) 891,

162 A. L. R. 1426

In re Bell, 19 Cal. (2d) 488, 497, 122 P. (2d) 22

McKay v. Retail Automobile Salesmen's Local Union,

16 Cal. (2d) 311, 319, Z^^, 106 P. (2d) 2>72>

Fortenbury v. Superior Court, 16 Cal. (2d) 405, 106

P. (2d) 411

In re Lyons. 27 Cal. App. (2d) 293, 81 P. (2d) 190

Hughes V. Superior Court, (decided November 20,

1947,) ^2 A. C. A. 491, 508

This "modern trend of decision" makes it plain that

publicizing the facts of a labor dispute, whether verbally,

by the publication of printed matter, or by peaceful picket-

ing, comes within the sphere of protection from prior

restraint which is guarded with a jealous eye by the

highest tribunals of state and nation.

Emde v. San Joaquin County Labor Council, 2?) Cal.

(2d) 146, 154, 161, 143 P. (2d) 20, 150 A. L. R. 916
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IV.

Fairly Construed and With Conclusions of Law Elimi-

nated, the Petition Herein Merely Charges Respond-

ents With Picketing and Threatening to Picket the

Products of the Employer With Whom a Labor

Dispute Is Pending. Picketing of Such "Unfair"

Products Is Well Recognized as Coming Within the

Protection of the First Amendment

Carpenters' Union v. Ritter's Cafe, supra, 315 U. S.

at 727

Bakery Wagon Drivers' Local v. Wohl, supra

In re Blaney, supra, 30 A. C. at 655, 184 P. (2d) at 897,

col. 2

Park and Tilford Import Corp. v. Int'l. Brotherhood of

Teamsters, supra [17]

Fortenbury v. Superior Court, supra

See also Emde v. San Joaquin County Labor Council,

supra

V.

This Statute Comes Before the Court Aided by No Pre-

sumption of Constitutionality, Since the Usual Pre-

sumption Must Yield to the High Favor Accorded

to the Rights Secured by the First Amendment

Thomas v. Collins, supra, 323 U. S. at 529, 530

Hague V. C. I. O., 307 U. S. 496, 59 S. Ct. 954, 83

L. Ed. 1423

Cantwell v Connecticut, 310 U. S. 296, 60 S. Ct. 900,

84 L. Ed. 1213, 128 A. L. R. 1352

Schneider v. New Jersey, 308 U. S. 147, 60 S. Ct. 315,

89 L. Ed. 430

Lovell v. Griffin, 303 U. S. 444, 58 S. Ct. 666, 82 L.

Ed. 949
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VI.

'I'hese Personal Rip^hts, of Worship, Assembly, Petition,

Free Speech and Free Press Enjoy Precedence and

High Favor Not Accorded to Property Rights and

Are Susceptible of Restriction Only to Prevent Grave

and Impending- Public Danger

Tucker v. Texas, 326 U. S. 517, 66 S. Ct. 274, 90 L.

Ed. 274

Marsh v. Alabama, 326 U. S. 501, 66 S. Ct. 276, 90

L. Ed. 265

Thomas v. Collins, supra, 323 U. S. at 529, 530

West Virginia Board of Education v. Barnette, 319

U. S. 624, 638-39, 63 S. Ct. 1178, 1186 Col. 1

Murdock v. Pennsylvania, supra

In re Porterfield, supra

See Also People v. Oyama, 29 Cal. (2d) 164, 176

Whatever the legislative judgment, the Court must de-

termine independently in the light of our constitutional

tradition whether a clear and present danger of the gravest

abuses endangering society as a whole exists to justify

the intrusion upon the domains of free speech and

assembly under Sections 10(1) and 8(b) (4) (A) of

the National Labor Relations Act as amended June 23,

1947. [18]

VII.

Section 8(b) (4) (A) of the Amended National Labor

Relations Act, Incorporated by Reference in Section

10(1) of Said Act, Is Void on Its Face as an

Abridgment of Free Speech and Assembly

The existence of such a statutory provision "which

docs not aim specifically at evils within the allowable area

of (government) control, but on the contrary sweeps

within its ambit other activities that in ordinary circum-
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stances constitute an exercise of freedom of speech

. .
." inevitably ''results in a continuous and prevasive

restraint on all freedom of discussion that might reason-

able be regarded as coming within its purview."

Where such regulation of the dissemination of informa-

tion is involved, there are special reasons for testing the

challenged section of the statute on its face. If certain

of its provisions operate to prohibit peaceful picketing,

they are invalid even though they might also prohibit acts

that may properly be made unlawful.

Jones V. Opelika, 316 U. S. 584, 319 U. S. 103, 63 S.

Ct. 890, 87 L. Ed. 1290

Thornhill v. Alabama, supra, 310 U. S. at 97

Carlson v. California, supra

Schneider v. New Jersey, supra, 308 U. S. at 162-165

Hague V. C. I. O., supra, 307 U. S. at 518

Lovell V. Griffin, supra, 303 U. S. at 451

Stromberg v. California, 283 U. S. 359, 369, 51 S. Ct.

532, 75 L. Ed. 1117

In re Blaney, supra, 30 A. C. at 656-658

In re Porterfield, supra

In re Bell, supra, 19 Cal. (2d) at 495

VIII.

The Terms of Section 8(b) (4) (A), Which Are In-

corporated in the Proposed Injunction Sought Herein

Almost Verbatim. Are Violative of Due Process of

Law Because They Are Vague, Indefinite and Un-
certain

A statute which declares unlawful the doing of an act

in terms so vague [19] than men of common intelligence

must necessarily guess at its meaning and differ as to its

application violates the first essential of due process of
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law. Language i)rohibiting conduct that may be pro-

hibited and conduct that may not afford no reasonably

ascertainable standard and is therefore too uncertain and

vague to be enforced.

Lanzetta v. New Jersey, 306 U. S. 451, 59 S. Ct. 618,

81 L. Ed. 888

In re Blaney. supra, 30 A. C. at 656

In re Bell, supra, 19 Cal. (2d) at 495

IX.

The Separability Clause of the Amended National Labor

Relations Act Set Forth in Section 16 Cannot Save

Section 8(b) (4) (A) as Incorporated in Section

10(1) From Being Declared Totally Invalid

Smith V. Cahoon, 283 U. S. 553, 563

In re Bell, supra, 19 Cal. (2d) at 498

In re Porterfield, supra, 28 Cal. (2d) at 120

In re Blaney, supra, 30 A. C. at 658-660

Where there is no possibility of mechanical severance,

as where the language is so broad as to cover subjects

within and without the legislative power, the general lan-

guage of the statutory provision infringing upon the

constitutional right of free speech leaves the count with

no alternative but to nullify the entire section.

X.

The Application of Section 10(1) in the Manner Prayed

for by Petitioner Herein Would Violate the Inhibi-

tion of the Thirteenth Amendment Against Involun-

tary Servitude

See Podlock v. Williams, 322 U. S. 4. 64 S. Ct. 792,

88 L. Ed. 1095

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 24, 1947. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [20]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

AFFIDAVIT OF WALTER J. TURNER IN

SUPPORT OF MOTION TO DISMISS

State of California

County of Los Angeles—ss.

Walter J. Turner, being duly sworn, deposes and says

that:

Affiant is now, and was on December 17, 1947, and has

been for some time previous to December 17, 1947, Secre-

tary-Treasurer of the Printing Specialties and Paper

Converters Union, Local 388, AFL, with offices at 1543

West 11th Street, Los Angeles, California;

Affiant is the same Walter J. Turner who is named as

a respondent in the above-entitled proceeding;

Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union, Local

388, hereinafter [21] referred to as Local 388, is a sub-

ordinate union of the International Printing Pressmen

and Assistants' Union of North America, affiliated with

the American Federation of Labor, and includes within

its membership approximately 1,800 employees of the

paper conversion and allied industries in the City of Los

Angeles and nearby communities

;

Local 388 is a party to numerous collective bargaining

agreements with the various employers of its members

engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale of en-

velopes, paper boxes of both the folding and set-up varie-

ties, waxed paper, manifold sales books, bank checks, tags,

labels, corrugated boxes, and other similar paper products,

in addition to paper food containers and milk bottle caps.

Local 388 has consummated agreements with various

employers engaged in the manufacture, distribution and
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sale of said paper products during the past twelve months

by the terms of which approximately 1,5CX) members of

the union are assured of a prevaihn^ scale of minimum
wages ranging from $1.20 to $1.33j/2 per hour for the

lowest skilled male job classification, and from $1.10 to

$1.22 per hour for the lowest skilled female job classifica-

tion, with progressively higher rates for the several skilled

job classifications set forth in said agreements.

All of the aforementioned collective bargaining agree-

ments negotiated by Local 388 within the immediate

past twelve months provide the approximately 1,500 union

members coming within the scope of their terms and

provisions with at least six (6) designated holidays for

which they have received or are entitled to receive full

compensation according to their regular wage scales.

Local 388 was recognized as the exclusive bargaining

agent of the production employees of the Los Angeles

plant of Sealright Pacific, Ltd. during the month of

September. 1941 by said corporation, and a collective

bargaining agreement was entered into between said

union and said employer at or about that date. Each

year thereafter from 1941 to the year 1946 successive

collective bargaining agreements were negotiated and

executed between Local 388 and Sealright Pacific, Ltd.

Each collective bargaining agreement from the initial

agreement in 1941 to the last agreement entered into in

1946 was arrived at by [22] negotiations between Local

388 and Sealright Pacific, Ltd. without any strike, lock-

out, or other similar interruption of production taking

place

;

The latest collective bargaining agreement executed

between Local 388 and Sealright Pacific. Ltd. provided

for opening for modification or termination as of Octo-
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ber 16, 1947 by either party upon sixty days' notice on or

after the 16th day of August, 1947. Pursuant to said

provision of the agreement (and in accordance with Sec-

tion 8 (d) (1) of the National Labor Relations Act as

amended June 23, 1947), Local 388 gave notice to Seal-

right Pacific, Ltd. of proposed modifications thereof on

August 16, 1947.

Between August 16, 1947 and September 16, 1947

approximately six (6) meetings were held between repre-

sentatives of Local 388 and representatives of Sealright

Pacific, Ltd. for the purpose of negotiating with respect

to said proposed contract modifications, but no agree-

ments were reached during the course of these meetings.

On September 15, 1947, in compliance with Section 8

(d) (3) of the National Labor Relations Act as amended

on June 23, 1947, Local 388 notified the Federal Media-

tion and Conciliation Service and the California State

Department of Industrial Relations that a dispute existed.

BetvN^een September 16, 1947 and October 29, 1947 five

additional negotiating meetings were held between repre-

sentatives of Local 388 and representatives of Sealright

Pacific, Ltd., during the course of which meetings mutual

consent was arrived at between the two parties as to all

terms of a new collective bargaining agreement, except

wage rates and holiday pay. At the last of these meet-

ings on October 29, 1947 Sealright Pacific Ltd. offered

to raise the hourly rate for the lowest skilled male job

classification from $1.02>^ to $1.10 per hour, (the prevail-

ing male base rate ranging from $1.20 to $1.33>^ per hour

as aforementioned). It also offered to raise the hourly

rate for the lowest skilled female job classification from

$0.87 >^ per hour to $0.92>^ per hour, (the prevailing

female base rate ranging from $1.10 to $1.22 per hour).
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Corresponding wage adjustments in the rates for the more

highly skilled job classifications were proposed, and in

addition Sealright Pacific, Ltd. expressed its willingness

to offer a further general wage increase of two and one-

half cents ($0.02>^) more per hour to become effective

on or about January 16, 1948. Sealright [23] Pacific,

Ltd. then expressed its unwillingness to increase the num-

ber of designated paid holidays from three (3) to the

prevailing six (6) as requested by Local 388.

Basing its request for proposed modifications with re-

spect to wages and holiday pay on the standards con-

tained in the various existing agreements between Local

388 and the several employers of nearly 1,500 members

of said local union mentioned hereinabove. Printing

Specialties and Paper Converters Union, Local 388 was

unwilling to accept the wage offer proposed by Sealright

Pacific. Ltd. on or about October 29, 1947, after that

employer had rejected the compromise proposal made by

Local 388 for a male base rate of $1.17^ per hour and

a female base rate of $1.02^^ per hour, together with a

provision for six (6) paid holidays. Being unable to

reach agreement with said employer with respect to the

sole disputed matters of wage rates and holiday pay,

Local 388 called a lawful strike of its members against

Sealright Pacific, Ltd. on or about Monday, November 3,

1947.

At the time said strike was instituted on or about

November 3, 1947, all of the approximately 70 production

employees of the Los x'Kngeles plant of Sealright Pacific.

Ltd. were members in good standing of Local 388. All but

three of said employees joined said strike against their

employer, Sealright Pacific. Ltd. Peaceful picket lines

were established bv Local 388 in front of or near the
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entrances to the struck plant upon the occasion of the

commencement of the strike, and have continued from

that date to this.

At some time between November 3, 1947 and Novem-

ber 17, 1947. affiant met and conferred with a Mr. Lacey,

whom affiant is informed and beHeves is manager of the

Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc. Affiant at that

time informed Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc.

that Local 388 was engaged in a strike due to a wage

dispute with Sealright Pacific, Inc. Affiant also informed

Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc. that Local 388

intended to peacefully picket the Sealright products manu-

factured under strike conditions and at substandard wages

for the purpose of publicizing the dispute and soliciting

the assistance of other workers asking that they decline to

handle this merchandise. At no time did affiant advise

Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, [24] Inc. that Local

388 would picket all or any of that firm's operations as

such, if it continued to handle Sealright products, nor

did affiant in any way indicate or imply that Local 388

would picket any other products being handled or trans-

ported by said firm for companies other than Sealright

Pacific, Ltd., under any circumstances whatsoever.

On or about November 14, 1947, members of Local 388

on strike at Sealright Pacific, Ltd., formed a peaceful

picket line around two truck-loads of Sealright products

at the Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc. terminal.

Said striking members of Local 388 then and there ad-

vised the employees of Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express,
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Inc., that the Sealright products were manufactured under

strike conditions and for substandard wages and requested

them not to handle said products. At no time did any

officer, agent, representative, or member of Local 388

order, force, threaten any reprisal against or promise any

specific benefit to any employee of the Los Angeles-Seattle

Motor Express, Inc., for the purpose of bringing about

the refusal of said employee to transport or handle the

aforementioned or any other Sealright products, or for

any other purpose.

On or about November 17, 1947 and for several days

thereafter. Local 388 peacefully picketed Sealright prod-

ucts being loaded onto three box cars at the West Coast

Terminals Company, Terminal Island, Long Beach, Cali-

fornia. Said Sealright products consisted of rolls of

paper consigned from a New York plant of Sealright

Pacific, Ltd. to the Los Angeles plant of said corporation

for use in continued manufacturing operations under

strike conditions. At no time has Local 388 picketed any

or all of the operations of the West Coast Terminals

Company as such, nor has Local 388 picketed any other

products being handled or transported by said firm for

companies other than Sealright Pacific, Ltd. At no time

has Local 388 interfered in any manner with the unloading

of any ship or ships of the Panama Pacific Lines or of any

other steamship company.

Said three box cars were located on a siding alongside

of the warehouse of the West Coast Terminals Company,

when Local 388 commenced picketing the same, and at no

time during the course of such picketing did the picket
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lines established by Local 388 pass in front of the doors

of the warehouse. Whenever [25] during such picketing,

it was necessary for the West Coast Terminals Company

to move these three box cars in order to bring other cars

on to or remove other cars from the siding, Local 388

temporarily discontinued its picketing activities and did not

in any way interfere with the moving of the three box

cars in question incidental to these operations. When
the three cars had been moved from and returned to their

previous position alongside the warehouse, as took place

on several occasions, the picketing of said box cars con-

taining Sealright products was resumed.

At no time in connection with the peaceful picketing of

said Sealright products alongside the warehouse of the

West Coast Terminals Company did any officer, agent,

representative or member of Local 388 order, force,

threaten any reprisal against or promise any specific

benefit to any employee of said firm for the purpose of

bringing about the refusal of said employee to transport

or handle the aforementioned or any other Sealright

products, or for any other purpose.

Further affiant sayeth not.

WALTER J. TURNER

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 23rd day of

December, 1947.

MARIAN A. HAUGER
Notary Public in and for the State of California,

County of Los Angeles

My Commission Expires June 26, 195 L [26]

[Affidavit of Service by Mail.]

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 24, 1947. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [27]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

EXHIBIT 1 TO PETITION FOR INJUNCTION [28]

NLRB 508 (10-20-47) Copy

united states of america
nationAj. labor relations board

charge against labor organization or
its agents

1. Pursuant to Section 10(b) of the National Labor

Relations Act, the undersigned hereby charges that

Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union,
(Name of labor organization or its agent)

Local 388, AFL, at 1543 West Eleventh, Los An-

geles, California, has engaged in and is engaging in

unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section

8(b), subsections (4) (A) of said Act, in that: (Re-

cite in detail in paragraph 2 the basis of the charge.

Be specific as to names, addresses, plants, dates,

places, and other relevant facts)

2. It engaged in, induced and encouraged the employees

of L. A. Seattle Motor Express and the employees of

West Coast Terminals Co. to engage in a concerted

refusal in the course of their employment to trans-

port or otherwise handle any goods, articles, mate-

rials or commodities of Sealright Pacific, Ltd. for

the purpose of forcing or requiring L. A. Seattle

Motor Express and West Coast Terminals Co. to

cease handling, transporting or otherwise dealing in

the products of Sealright Pacific, Ltd., or to cease

doing business with Sealright Pacific, Ltd.
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Said violations occurred in that, on November 14

and 17, 1947, Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, Local 388, AFL, compelled L. A.

Seattle Motor Express, under threat of picketing said

company, to refuse to handle any freight tendered

it by Sealright Pacific, Ltd., at said time L. A.

Seattle Motor Express having 5,500 pounds of paper

products of Sealright Pacific, Ltd. on its dock to be

shipped out of the State of California which L. A.

Seattle Motor Express has refused and does now re-

fuse to ship; and said L. A. Seattle Motor Express

has refused and does now refuse to handle any

products of Sealright Pacific, Ltd., due to the threat

of Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union,

Local 388, AFL, to picket L. A. Seattle Motor Ex-

press; and on November 17, 1947, Printing Special-

ties and Paper Converters Union, Local 388, AFL,

picketed Berths 232 A and B, Terminal Island, Cali-

fornia, and thereby caused longshoremen employed by

West Coast Terminals Co. Working at said berths

to cease unloading paper supplies shipped via Pan

Pacific Lines from New York State to Sealright Pa-

cific, Ltd.

The threats and activities of Printing Specialties and

Paper Converters Union, Local 388, AFL, set out in

the paragraphs above, and the actions of L. A.

Seattle Motor Express and West Coast Terminals

Co., above set out, in response to said threats and

activities of Printing Specialties and Paper Con-
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verters Union, Local 388, AFL, have continued from

the dates set forth above to the present and the afore-

said companies and the aforesaid union do now

threaten to continue said activities.

The undersigned further charges that said unfair

labor practices are unfair labor practices affecting

commerce within the meaning of said Act.

3. Name of Employer Sealright Pacific, Ltd.

4. Location of plant involved 1577 Rio Vista Ave.,

(Street)

Los Angeles, Calif. Employing 135

(City) (State) (Number of workers)

5. Nature of business Manufacturers of paper milk bot-

tle caps and closures and sanitary food containers

6. (Paragraphs 6, 7, and 8 apply only if the charge is

filed by a labor organization) The labor organiza-

tion filing this charge, hereinafter called the union,

has complied with Section 9(f) (A), 9(f) (B)(1),

and 9(g) of said Act as amended, as evidenced by

letter of compliance issued by the Department of

Labor and bearing code number The

financial data filed with the Secretary of Labor is

for the fiscal year ending A Cer-

tificate has been filed with the National Labor Rela-

tions Board in accordance with Section 9(f) (B)(2)

stating the method employed by the union in furnish-

ing to all its members copies of the financial data

required to be filed with the Secretary of Labor.
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7. Each of the officers of the union has executed a non-

communist affidavit as required by Section 9(h) of

the Act.

8. Upon information and behef, the national or inter-

national labor organization of which this organiza-

tion is an affiliate or constituent unit has also com-

plied with Section 9(f), (g), and (h) of the Act.

SEALRIGHT PACIFIC, LTD.
(Full name of party filing charge)

1577 Rio Vista Avenue, Los Angeles, Calif.

(Address) (Street) (City) (State)

ANgelus 6104
(Telephone number)

By /s/ Wm. S. Lee
(Signature of representative or person filing charge)

William S. Lee

Executive Vice-President

(Title or office, if any)

Do Not Write in This Space

Case No. 21-CC-13

Date filed 11-18-47

9(f), (g), (h) cleared

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 18th day of

November, 1947, at Los Angeles, California, as true to

the best of deponent's knowledge, information and belief.

/s/ Daniel J. Harrington (Board Agent)

Daniel J. Harrington, Attorney

[Endorsed] : Filed Dec. 29, 1947. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [29-30]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
IN SUPPORT OP^ PETITION FOR INJUNC-
TION UNDER SECTION 10(1) OF THE NA-
TIONAL LABOR RELATIONS ACT, AS
AMENDED [31]

I. Preliminary Statement

A. Jurisdiction

This proceeding is before the Court on petition filed on

behalf of the National Labor Relations Board, herein

referred to as the Board, by Howard F. LeBaron, Re-

gional Director of the 21st Region of the National Labor

Relations Board, Los Angeles, California, pursuant to

Section 10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act, as

amended (Pub. Law 101, 80th Cong., Ch. 120, 1st Sess.,

June 23, 1947) herein referred to as the Act. This peti-

tion was filed after preliminary investigation by petitioner

of a charge filed by Sealright Pacific Ltd., herein called

Sealright, that respondents have engaged in unfair labor

practices within the meaning of Section 8(b) 4 (A) of

the Act. The unfair labor practices charged were com-

mitted at Los Angeles, California, within this judicial

district. Respondent Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union. Local 3SS, AFL, hereinafter called Local

38S, is a labor organization within the meaning of the

Act. It has its principal office at Los Angeles, California.

Respondent Walter J. Turner is an agent of Local 388

within the meaning of Section 2(13) and 10(1) of the

Act. Respondents are engaged in this judicial district

in promoting and protecting the interests of employee

members of Local 388. This Court has jurisdiction

under the provisions of Section 10(1) of the Act.
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B. The statute pursuant to which reUef is sought

The National Labor Relations Act, as amended, is an

exercise of the power of Congress to prevent and mitigate

interruptions to interstate commerce arising out of labor

disputes which affect such commerce. The constitution-

ality of such legislation is not open to question. N. L.

R. B. V. Jones & Laughlin Steel Co., 301 U. S. 1. For

the purpose of protecting the public interest in such

commerce. Congress proscribed practices on the part of

labor unions and employers which it deemed inimical to

the public welfare (Section 1, 8). To effectuate the

statutory policy thus declared, and to administer the pro-

visions of the Act, Congress created the National Labor

Relations Board, and charged it with the duty, inter alia,

of hearing and determining complaints that employers

or labor organizations have engaged in the proscribed

practices (Section 3, 10). [32] The scheme of the

statute permits any person to file with the Board charges

that unfair labor practices have been committed (Section

10(b)), Upon the filing of such charges, the Board is

authorized to issue a complaint (Section 10(b), 3(d)).

The statute further provides that upon the issuance of such

a complaint a hearing shall be held and testimony taken

(Section 10(b)). Upon such testimony the Board is

empowered to issue an order requiring cessation of any

unfair labor practice found to have been committed, and

requiring the offending party to take such affirmative

action as may be necessary to effectuate the policies of the

Act (Section 10(b) and (c)). Section 10(e) and (f)

provide that such orders issued by the Board may be

reviewed in appropriate Circuit Courts of Appeals. The

power thus conferred upon the Board to determinq

whether unfair labor practices violative of Section 8 have
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been committed, and the power conferred upon Circuit

Courts of Appeals to review Board orders remedying

such unfair labor practices is exclusive (Section 10(a),

(e), (f)).

However, Congress recognized that unfair labor prac-

tices committed by labor organizations under Section

8(b) 4 (A) (R) (C), gave or tended to give rise to

such serious and unjustifiable interruptions to commerce

that their continuation during the period of investigation,

hearing, and consideration between the filing of the

charges and the issuance of a final order by the Board

remedying such unfair labor practices, would result in

irreparable injury to the national policy. Congress, there-

fore, in Section 10(1) of the Act, made it mandatory

upon the officer or regional attorney of the Board to

whom such a charge was referred, upon determining after

investigation that there is reasonable cause to believe

that the charge is true and that a complaint should issue,

to file a petition in the appropriate District Court of the

United States for appropriate injunctive relief pending

final adjudication of the matter by the Board. The in-

stant petition, alleging a violation of Section 8(b) 4 (A),

was filed pursuant to this statutory mandate.

C. This Court is empowered to grant injunctive

relief pending final relief pending final adjudica-

tion by the Board of the alleged violation of

Section 8(b) 4 (A)

Section 10(1) of the Act vests jurisdiction to grant

appropriate [2)i\ injunctive relief in the appropriate Dis-

trict Courts of the United States "upon the filing," by the

designated officer of the Board, of a petition therefor and

the notification thereof of the parties affected. The

jurisdiction of this Court to grant the relief prayed was
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therefore established by the hUng of the petition herein

and the notification of the parties respondent, who are

subject to the jurisdiction of this Court, that this pro-

ceeding has been instituted. The parties respondent are

properly before this Court (Section 10(1)).

Section 10(1) expressly provides that in granting in-

junctive rehef in Section 8(b) (4) cases pending final

adjudication by the Board, the jurisdiction of District

Courts shall not be limited by "any other provisions of

law." Section 10(h) also provides that, "When granting

appropriate temporary relief or a restraining order,

* * * the jurisdiction of courts sitting in equity shall

not be limited by the [Norris-LaGuardia] Act [47 Stat.

70, 29 U. S. C. §101]." The jurisdiction conferred

upon this Court is therefore entirely statutory and is

not limited in any manner other than the limitations con-

tained in the Act itself. That Congress can properly

confer such jurisdiction upon the District Courts is

settled beyond question. I. C. C. v. Brimson, 154 U. S.

447; Endicott Johnson Corp. v. Perkins, 317 U. S. 501,

510.

II. Upon the Facts Alleged in the Petition an Injunc-

tion Should be Issued Pending Final Adjudication

by the Board of the Matters Presented

A. This Court is required to decide only whether

the Board's Regional Director has reasonable

cause to believe that the charge herein involved

is true and that a complaint should issue

thereon

The relief sought is in the nature of an interlocutory

injunction. The Board's Regional Director is authorized

by the terms of Section 10(1) to petition for injunctive
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relief only "pending the final adjudication of the Hoard

with respect to such matters." Consequently, the relief

herein sought is limited to such time as may expire

before the Board issues its final order in the case arising

out of the charges filed with it that respondents have

violated Section 8(b) 4 (A). The nature of the relief

sought, the entire statutory scheme, as well as the express

terms of Section 10(1), demonstrate [34] that the sole

prerequisite to the granting of injunctive relief is a

finding by this Court that the Regional Director has

reasonable cause to believe that the charge is true and

a complaint should issue. It cannot be contended that

this Court is called upon to decide whether in fact the

charge is true, or whether a violation has, in fact, been

committed. These issues, as indicated in 1 (B) above,

were reserved by Congress for determination by the Board

in appropriate proceedings before it. subject to review by

the appropriate Circuit Court of Appeals.

1. It is an elementary rule of equity practice that

the granting of interlocutory relief pending determination

of an issue on the merits does not turn upon a decision as

to which party is ultimately entitled to prevail, but upon

the existence of facts which indicate reasonable prob-

ability that the plaintiff is entitled to final relief. Douds,

Reg. Dir. v. Wine etc. Union, F. Supp., C. C. A. 13,

Labor Cases 564, 186 (D. Ct. S. D. N. Y.); Bowles v.

Montgomery Ward, 143 F. 2d 38 (C. C. A. 7): Sinclair

Refining Co. v. Midland Oil Co., 55 F. 2d 42 (C. C. A.

4) ; Northwestern Stevedoring Co., et al v. Marshall,

41 F. 2d 29 (C. C. A. 9). Indeed, if interlocutory

relief could not be granted prior to ultimate determination

of the rights of the parties, such relief could not be

granted at all ; the subject matter of the litigation before
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the court might in the meanwhile be destroyed, irreparable

injury inflicted, and the judicial process frustrated. Con-

sequently, it is universal equity practice to grant inter-

locutory injunctive relief where necessary, simply upon

a showing of a prima facie case for equitable relief.

Bowles V. Montgomery Ward, supra; City of Louisville

V. Louisville Home Telephone Co., 279 F. 949 (C. C. A.

6); Premier-Pabst Sales Co. v. McNutt, 17 F. Supp. 708;

Walling V. Stylish Embroidery Studio, Inc., 63 F. Supp.

343; U. S. V. Hughes, 28 F. Supp. 977; Eastern Texas

Railroad Co. v. Railroad Commission of Texas, 242 F.

300.

2. In providing for interlocutory relief in appropriate

cases under the Act, Congress adopted this essential rule of

equity practice and conditioned the right to such relief not

upon a determination of the ultimate rights of the

parties, but upon a determination that reasonable cause

exists to believe that a violation has been committed.

In addition to the precedents in equity practice. Congress

drew upon its own precedents in the Federal Trade Com-

mission Act, 52 [35] Stat. Ill, 15 U. S. C. Sec. 53, and

the Securities and Exchange Act of 1933 (48 Stat. 86,

15 U. S. C. Sec. 77t), in which administrative agencies

had similarly been authorized to obtain interlocutory in-

junctive relief simply upon a proper showing of "reason-

able cause." See F. T. C. v. Thompson-King & Co., 109

F. 2d 516 (C. C. A. 7). Compare, I. C. C. v. Brimson,

154 U. S. 447; Endicott Johnson Corp. v. Perkins, 317

U. S. 501, 510; Oklahoma Press Co. v. Walling, 327

U. S. 186; N. L. R. B. v. Northern Trust Co., 148 F.

2d 24 (C. C. A. 7), certiorari denied, 326 U. S. 731;

Goodyear Tire and Rubber Co. v. N. L. R. B., 122 F. 2d

450 (C. C. A. 6) ; Cudahy v. N. L. R. B., 117 F. 2d 692
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(C. C. A. 10). Compare also, buch federal statutes as

R. S. § 1014, 18 U. S. C. § 591, authorizing removal of

an accused for trial from one federal district to another.

3. Congress, in providing for interlocutory injunc-

tive relief under Section 10(1) of the Act, did not im-

pose on Board agents the burden of proving, or upon

the courts the burden of deciding, that the facts alleged

in the charges were true, or that a violation of Section

8(b) 4 had in fact occurred. If the Board agents had

been required to establish the truth of the charges as

a condition to obtaining an injunction, the entire purpose

of the provision for interlocutory relief would be frus-

trated, for the trial of such issues before the courts

would presumably be no less time consuming than would

similar proceedings before the Board, which is explicitly

directed by statute to process such cases in the most

expeditious manner (Section 10(1)). The purpose of

providing for injunctive relief pending final determination

by the Board was to assure that interstate commerce

would not be adversely affected by labor disputes in the

time necessarily consumed by trial and consideration of

the issues of fact. This purpose hardly can be achieved

if those very issues must be decided by the court prior

to the issuance of the injunction.

Moreover, if the district courts had been charged with

the duty of determining the truth of the charges, or the

existence of a violation, a duplication of functions would

have been created. For these are the very issues which

the Board is empowered to and charged with the duty of

deciding in complaint proceedings contemplated by Sec-

tion 10(b) of the Act, subject to review by the Circuit

Courts of Appeals under Section 10(e) and (f). Sec-

tions 10(a) of [36] the National Labor Relations Act,
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prior to its amendment, expressly provided that the

Board's power ''to prevent any person from engaging

in any unfair labor practice (listed in Section 8) affecting

commerce * * * shall be exclusive, and shall not be

affected by any other means of adjustment or prevention

that has been or may be established by agreement, code,

law or otherwise." In amending Section 10(a), Congress

retained the language which provides that the Board's

power shall not be affected, etc., but omitted the phrase

which vested the power to prevent unfair labor practices

exclusively in the Board. The Conference Committee,

which drafted the final version of the amendment, ex-

plained in its report that the word "exclusive" was

omitted because the bill as finally drafted contained

"provisions authorizing temporary injunctions enjoining

alleged unfair labor practices" and a provision (Section

303 of the Labor Management Relations Act) which

authorized private persons to bring suits against labor

organizations in federal district courts to recover damages

for violations of that Section, which imposes duties on

labor organizations similar to the duties imposed upon

them in Section 8(b). (H. Rep. No. 510, 80th Cong.,

1st Sess., p. 52). Since an injunction issued by a district

court pursuant to Section 10(1) would prevent alleged

unfair labor practices from continuing, it was no longer

appropriate to describe the Board's power to prevent un-

fair labor practices as "exclusive." But by retaining the

provision that the Board's power to prevent unfair labor

practices "shall not be affected by any other means of

* * * prevention that has been or may be established

by * * * law * * *" (Section 10(a)), Congress

made it clear that it did not intend the district courts

to exercise, in connection with the issuance of interlocutory
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injunctions against alleged unfair labor practices, the

])ower vested in the Hoard to decide whether unfair labor

practices had been committed. For, if the district courts

decided that question in a suit by a regional officer on

behalf of the Board, in which both the alleged violator

and the person filing the charge were parties, the deci-

sion of the district court, on familiar res judicata prin-

ciples, would be binding upon the Board in the unfair

labor case pending before it. See, e. g., Sunshine Anthra-

cite Coal Co. V. Adkins, 310 U. S. 381, 402-403; George

H. Lee Co. v. F. T. C, 113 F. 2d 583 (C C. A. 8; [2>7]

U. S. V. Willard Tablet Co., 141 F. 2d 141; Tait v.

Western Md. Ry. Co., 289 U. S. 620; Mitchell v. First

Nat'l Bank, 180 U. S. 471; New York State Labor Rela-

tions Board v. Holland, 294 N. Y. 480, 63 N. E. 2d 68.

Such an exercise of jurisdiction by a district court would

"afifect" the power of the Board to remedy unfair labor

practices in a most drastic fashion. In sum. Congress

contemplated, as the Committee report quoted above in-

dicates, that district courts under Section 10(1) would,

pending the determination of the issue by the Board on

the meritS; enjoin "alleged" unfair labor practices, under

Section 8(b) 4, provided there is reasonable cause to

])elieve the allegations of the charge to be true, and that

only the Board, subject to review by the Circuit Courts of

Appeals, would decide the question of the truth of the

charges, and issue appropriate "final orders" as provided

in Section 10(e). The provision of Section 10(1) which

provides for the expiration of any relief which may be

granted by district courts upon "final adjudication by the

Board with respect to such matter," further demonstrates

that only the Board, and not district courts, was em-

powered, in cases arising out of charges filed with the

Board alleging violatit)ns of Section 8(b) 4, to decide
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whether, in fact and in law, unfair labor practices had

been committed. Consequently, if this Court is satisfied

that the Regional Director's belief that the charge is true

and a complaint should issue, is reasonable, an injunc-

tion should be issued as prayed.

B. Upon the investigation made, the Regional

Director has reasonable cause to believe that

the charge herein involved is true and that a

complaint should issue thereon

1. The Regional Director has reasonable cause to be-

lieve that the unfair labor practices charged affect com-

merce within the meaning of Section 2(6), (7), and 10(a)

of the Act.

The Regional Director, upon information obtained}

through his investigation, believes that the unfair labor

practices charged affect commerce. Sealright, the charg-

ing party, is engaged at Los Angeles, California in the

manufacture, sale and distribution of paper food con-

tainers. In the course of its business it purchases and

causes to be transported to its Los Angeles plant from

points outside California various materials valued at an

excess of [38] $1,000,000 annually. It ships various

products to points outside California valued at an excess

of $500,000 annually. The unfair labor practices with

which respondents are charged tend to interrupt the busi-

ness of Sealright. On the basis of the applicable author-

ity, the Regional Director's belief that Sealright is en-

gaged in commerce within the meaning of the Act and

that the unfair labor practices charged affect commerce

within the meaning of the Act is reasonable. N. L. R. B.

V. Fainblatt, 306 U. S. 601 ; N. L. R. B. v. Santa Cruz

Fruit Packing Co., 303 U. S. 453; N. L. R. B. v. Sub-
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urban Lumber Co., 121 F. 2d 829 ( C. C. A. Z), certiorari

Z22 U. S. 754; Brandeis & Sons v. N. L. R. B., 142 F. 2d

977 (C. C A. 8), certiorari denied, 323 U. S. 815;

N. L. R. B. V. Van de Kanip's Holland-Dutch Bakers,

152 F. 2d 818 (C. C A. 9) ; of. Wickard v. Filburn, 317

U. S. Ill, 118-129.

2. The Regional Director has reasonable cause to be-

lieve that the charge against respondents is true.

The investigation of the charges herein made by the

Regional Director discloses the following substantially

undisputed facts: On or about November 3, 1947 Local

388 called a strike of its members, employed by Sealright.

in support of the demands of Local 388 with respect to

terms and conditions of employment. On about Novem-

ber 13, 1947 respondent Turner, Secretary-Treasurer of

Local 388, advised the Los Angeles Seattle Motor Ex-

press, Inc. (hereinafter called L. A. Seattle), a common
carrier which has transported Sealright's products, that

if L. A. Seattle continued to handle Sealright's products,

Local 388 would picket Sealright products handled by

L. A. Seattle On about November 14, 1947 representa-

tives of Local 388 formed a picket line around two trucks

loaded with Sealright's products at the terminal of L. A.

Seattle. Said representatives informed the employees

of L. A. Seattle that the trucks contained hot cargo and

told or requested them not to handle it. After Novem-

ber 14, as a result of said picketing by Local 388, the

employees of L. A. Seattle refused to transport or handle

the goods of Sealright. On about November 17, Local

388 placed a picket line around three freight cars at

the docks of West Coast Terminals Co., Long Beach,

California (hereinafter called West Coast) upon which

rolls of paper consigned to Sealright were being loaded.
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As a result of [39] the foregoing conduct of Local 388,

and the continued picketing by Local 388 of the docks

of West Coast, the employees of West Coast have refused

to handle or work on the goods consigned to Sealright.

Local 388 is engaged in the conduct summarized above

to force or require L. A. Seattle and West Coast to cease

handling or transporting the products of Sealright.

On the basis of the foregoing facts there is reasonable

cause for petitioner to believe that a violation of Section

8(b) 4(A) has been committed as charged and that a

complaint should issue.

Section 8(b) 4(A) of the Act provides that

(b) It shall be an unfair labor practice for a labor

organization or its agents— (4) to engage in, or

to induce or encourage the employees of any em-

ployer to engage in a strike or a concerted refusal

in the course of their employment to use, manu-

facture, process, transport or otherwise handle or

work on any goods, articles, materials or comodi-

ties, or to perform any services, where an object

thereof is

(A) forcing or requiring any employer or other per-

son to cease using, selling, handling, transporting

or otherwise dealing in the products of any other

producer, processor, or manufacturer, or to cease

doing business with any other person;

Petitioner believes that respondents by picketing the

goods of Sealright at L. A. Seattle and West Coast have

induced and encouraged the employees of L. A. Seattle

and W^est Coast to engage in a concerted refusal in the

course of their employment to transport or handle the

goods of Sealright, an object thereof being to force or
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require L. A. Seattle and West Coast to cease handling

or transporting^ (lie ]jroducts of Sealright and that re-

spondents have thereby violated Section 8(b) 4(A) of the

Act. This belief, we submit, is clearly reasonable.

C. Upon the foregoing showing, an order which

enjoins respondents, pending final adjudica-

tion of the charges by the Board, from [40]

engaging in the illegal conduct charged, is

just and proper

Section 10( 1 ) embodies the determination of Congress

that the continued disruption of interstate commerce by

acts which, there is reasonable cause to believe, were per-

petrated in violation of Section 8(b) 4, is unjustified

and contrary to national policy. Congress placed a

mandatory duty upon the officer or regional attorney

investigating a charge of violation of Section 8(b) 4 to

seek injunctive relief if he believes that a violation has

occurred. Congress further declared that "just and

proper'' injunctive relief should be granted if the Court

finds that the officer or regional attorney had reasonable

cause to believe that a violation has occurred.

Under these circumstances the propriety of injunctive

relief turns not upon traditional equity criteria applicable

in suits between private parties, but upon the necessity for

effectuating the statutory policy. The Hecht Company

v. Bowles. Administrator, 321 U. S. 321, 331. It is well

settled that where Congress sets the standard for the

issuance of injunctions, those standards, and no others,

need be satisfied to obtain injunctive relief. S. E. C. v.

Jones, 85 F. 2d 17 (C. C. A. 2); S. E. C. v. Torr, ^7

F. 2d 446 (C. C. A. 2): American Fruit Growers v.

United States, 105 F. 2d 722 (C. C. A. 9); U. S. v.
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Adler's Creamery, Inc., 110 F. 2d 482 (C. C. A. 2);

Douds, Reg. Dir. v. Wine etc. Union, .... F. Supp
,

C. C. H. 13 Labor Cases § 64, 186 (D. Ct. S. D. N. Y.).

The scope of the order sought by the Regional Director

in the instant case falls well within the "just and proper"

criteria established by the Act. The order sought is

directed only against the labor organizations and its agents

charged with having committed unfair labor practices,

and against persons acting in concert with them. N. L.

R. B. V. Regal Knitwear Co., 140 F. 2d 746 (C. C. A. 2).

The conduct sought to be enjoined is limited to the acts

respondents have been charged with committing and to

similar acts in violation of Section 8(b) 4. Cf. N. L.

R. B. V. Express Publishing Co., 312 U. S. 426; N. L.

R. B. V. May Department Stores Co., 326 U. S. 2>76',

N. L. R. B. V. Cheney California Lumber Co., 327

U. S. 385. The order is drawn to prevent a specific evil

which Congress desired to eradicate and is therefore

clearly warranted under the Act. [41]

IIL The Constitution Presents No Bar to the Relief

Sought Here

Respondents assert in their motion to dismiss the peti-

tion that the picketing engaged in by Local 388 is con-

stitutionally protected and that the relief sought by peti-

tioner infringes the First Amendment's guarantee of

freedom of speech, the Fifth Amendment's guarantee of

liberty, and the Thirteenth Amendment's prohibition of

involuntary servitude.

At the outset it is important to note that whatever the

rights of employees may be to leave work individually or

in concert or to work on any terms they may themselves

choose, those rights are in no way affected by the order
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which petitioner here seeks. Neither the refusal of the

employees of L. A, Seattle nor that of the employees of

West Coast to handle or transport the goods of Sealright

constitutes any part of the unfair labor practices which

petitioner believes, and has alleged, respondents have com-

mitted. The statute does not make it an unfair labor

practice for employees voluntarily to cease work for any

purpose. Employees as such are not subject to the unfair

labor practice provisions of the Act. Congress has thus

avoided any possible challenge to the Act which might be

predicated upon the Thirteenth Amendment.

The unfair labor practice alleged in the petition and

against which the order sought is directed is respondents'

action in inducing and encouraging, by means of the

picket lines established by Local 388, the employees of

L. A. Seattle and West Coast to engage in a concerted

refusal in the course of their employment to handle or

transport the goods of Sealright, an object thereof being

to compel or require West Coast and L. A. Seattle to cease

transporting or handling the goods of Sealright.

It follows that the only constitutional question which

can be presented here is whether respondents can lawfully

be enjoined from encouraging and inducing the employees

of L. A. Seattle and West Coast by means of picketing,

or any other like acts or conduct, not to handle or trans-

port tlie goods of Sealright where an object thereof is

to compel L. A. Seattle and West Coast to cease handling

or transporting the products of Sealright.

Congress, we submit, may, without infringing consti-

tutional guarantees, [42] enjoin picketing such as that

engaged in bv respondents in the instant case.

In the National Labor Relations Act Congress created

a mechanism for the determination of the basic question
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whether an employer was required to bargain collectively

with a labor organization which sought to represent his

employees. Essential to this statutory scheme was the

concept of an appropriate bargaining unit generally com-

posed of employees employed by a single employer. It

was within this group that Congress sought to vest the

power to make the determination whether or not to bar-

gain and by clear implication it was to this group that

Congress sought to extend the right, by engaging in

concerted activities against their employer, to better their

wages, hours and working conditions. In other words,

Congress adopted the basic principle that industrial dis-

putes over unionization, wages, hours, and working con-

ditions were to be resolved by the employees in the

appropriate bargaining unit on one side and their em-

ployer on the other. This principle was not realized under

the National Labor Relations Act. Accordingly, Con-

gress addressed itself to this problem in considering

amendments to the National Labor Relations Act and

by enacting Section 8(b) 4(A) it sought to localize

industrial conflict between employees and their immediate

employer by prohibiting labor organizations or their agents

from inducing or encouraging the employees of any

employer to engage in a concerted refusal in the course

of their employment to perform services where an object

thereof was to force or require that employer to cease

doing business with any other person. In other words,

Congress sought to prohibit a labor organization from

conscripting the aid of employees and through them of

their employer who had no immediate relation to a labor
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dis])ute in order to bring" pressure to bear upon an em-

ployer with whom the labor organization had a dispute

over terms and conditions of employment. A familiar

weapon used by labor organizations in conscripting such

aid and pressure is the picket Hne ])laced at the place of

business of the neutral employer and calculated, among

other things, to induce or encourage his employees to

cease handling the products of the employer with whom

the labor organization sponsoring the picketing is having

difficulties. In proscribing such picketing and thereby

narrowing the permissible area of |43J industrial conflict,

we believe that Congress did not transgress constitu-

tional limitations.

It has been stated that peaceful picketing may be a

phase of the constitutional right of free speech. But, as

the Supreme Court has pointed out, even peaceful picket-

ing, which is a form of coercive technique, is subject to

regulation in the public interest on any reasonable basis.

Carpenters and Joiners Union of America v. Ritters

Cafe. 315 U. S. 722; Bakery and Pastry Drivers v. Wohl,

315 U. S. 769, 775, 776; Stapleton v. Mitchell, 60 F.

Supp. 51, 58-59.

The Act was enacted by Congress, in the exercise of its

power to regulate commerce, to protect "the normal flow

of commerce and to present practices" which jeopardize

the public health, safety, or interest." Sec. 1 of the Act.

And as the Supreme Court stated in N. L. R. B. v. Jones

&: Laughlin. 301 U. S. 1, 36-37: "The power to regulate

commerce is the pmver to enact all appropriate legislation

'for its protection and advancement' (Daniel Ball, 10
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Wall. 557, 561); to adopt measures 'to promote its

growth and to insure its safety' (Mobile County v. Kim-

ball, 102 U. S. 691, 696, 697) ; to foster, protect, control

and restrain' (Simond Employers Liability Cases, 223,

U. S. 1, 47) * * * That power is plenary and may

be exerted to protect interstate commerce no matter what

the source of dangers which threaten it." In the exercise

of this broad power Congress under Section 8(b) 4 has

sought to make unlawful incitation to economic coercion

including what is commonly called a secondary boycott.

The power of Congress to protect interstate commerce and

the public interest from the harmful effects of such boy-

cott cannot be seriously questioned. Duplex v. Deering,

254 U. S. 443.

The use of weapons, including picketing, to accomplish

a substantive evil forbidden by a valid act of Congress

can be made illegal. And we submit, the right peacefully

to picket loses its constitutional protection against legisla-

tive or judicial infringement when it is, as here, part

of a course of conduct calculated to accomplish the evil

forbidden by Congress in Section 8(b) 4(A) of the

Act. Cf. Carpenters and Joiners Union v. Ritter, 315

U. S. 722. [44]

Section 8(c) of the Act does not immunize respondents'

conduct. Section 8(c) provides that.

The expressing of any views, arguments, or opinion,

or the dissemination thereof * * * shall not

constitute or be evidence of an unfair labor practice

under any provision of this Act, if such expression

contains no threat of reprisal or promise of benefit.
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A picket line is more than the expression of views, argu-

ments or opinion. It is, as even respondents' counsel con-

ceded at the oral argument, a coercive technique designed

to bring pressure to bear u])on, among others, employees

so that they will align themselves with the picketing

group and aid in advancing its interests. Ritter, Wohl and

Stapleton, cases, supra.

Respondents assert that Section 8(b) 4(A) is vague,

indefinite, and uncertain and therefore violative of due

process of law. We submit that in view of Section 8(c)

of the Act in conjunction with which Section 8(b) 4(A)

must be read, "the language Congress used provides an

adequate warning as to what conduct falls under its ban,

and marks boundaries sufficiently distinct for judges

—

fairly to administer in accordance with the will of Con-

gress" N. S. V. Petrillo, 67 S. Ct. 1538.

The Court, at the oral argument, raised the question

whether these proceedings should be heard by a three

judge court pursuant to the provisions of Title 28, Sec.

380a of the Judicial Code. That section provides that

"no interlocutory or permanent injunction suspending or

restraining the enforcement, operation, or execution of, or

setting aside, in whole or in part any Act of Congress

upon the ground that such Act or any part thereof is

repugnant to the Constitution of the United States shall

be issued or granted by any district court of the United

States, or by any judge thereof, or by any circuit judge

acting as district judge, unless the application for the
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same shall be presented to a circuit or district judge,

and shall be heard and determined by three judges, of

whom at least one shall be a circuit judge." This sec-

tion, we believe, does not as shown by its express language

apply to the instant proceedings. The instant [45] pro-

ceedings are before the Court upon the petition of the

Board's Regional Director at Los Angeles for injunctive

relief against the unfair labor practices with which re-

spondents are charged. The circumstance that respond-

ents have moved to dismiss the petition on constitutional

grounds does not transform the instant proceedings into

the type of proceedings contemplated by the above-men-

tioned section of the Judicial Code.

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT N. DENHAM
General Counsel

DAVID P. FINDLING
Associate General Counsel

WINTHROP A. JOHNS

GEORGE H. O'BRIEN

D. L. MANOLI
Attorneys National Labor Relations Board

January 2, 1947.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 3, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [46]
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[Title of District Court and CauseJ

RESPONDENTS' SUPPLEMENTARY MEMORAN-
DUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES [47J

I.

Statement of the Issues

A. The Undisputed Facts

Fairly construed and with conclusions of law eliminated,

the petition herein merely charges respondents with picket-

ing and threatening to picket the products of the em-

ployer with whom a labor dispute is pending.

A consideration of the petition and the uncontroverted

affidavit of respondent Walter J. Turner filed in this

proceeding reveals the undisputed facts to be as follows:

(1) On or about November 3, 1946 Local 388 called

a lawful strike of its members, employed by Seal-

right Pacific, Ltd., in support of the demands of

Local 388 for wages and holiday pay more nearly

comparable to the prevailing union standards in

the paper converting industry in this area, than the

final offer made by Sealright after extended collec-

tive bargaining negotiations;

(2) At some time between November 3. 1947 and

November 17, 1947 respondent Turner, Secretary-

Treasurer of Local 388, advised the Los Angeles-

Seattle Motor Express, Inc. that Local 388 was

engaged in a strike due to a wage dispute with

Sealright Pacific, Ltd., and intended to peace-

fully |)icket Sealright's products manufactured un-

der strike conditions and at substandard wages for

the purpose of publicizing the dispute and solicit-
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ing the assistance of other workers asking that

they decHne to handle this merchandise.

(3) On or about November 14, 1947 members of Local

388 on strike at Sealright Pacific, Ltd. formed a

peaceful picket line around two trucks loaded [48]

with Sealright's products at the terminal of L. A.

Seattle, and informed the trucking concern's em-

ployees that the Sealright products were manufac-

tured under strike conditions and for substandard

wages, or that the products were "hot cargo," and

solicited them not to handle the same.

(4) On or about November 17, 1947 Local 388, peace-

fully picketed Sealright products being loaded onto

three freight cars located at a siding adjacent to

the warehouse of the West Coast Terminals Com-

pany, Long Beach, California, which products con-

sisted of rolls of paper consigned from a New
York plant of Sealright Pacific, Ltd. to the Los

Angeles plant of the struck concern for use in

continued manufacturing operations.

(Compare Petitioner's Memorandum, pp. 9-10.)

As in the similar case of Bakery Wagon Drivers Local

V. Wohl, 315 U. S. 769, 776, the record here does not

contain the slightest suggestion that the picketing was

anything but completely peaceful. Counsel for petitioner

conceded at the hearing upon the order to show cause on

December 30, 1947 that the picketing sought to be pre-

vented herein was peaceful, and apparently did not dispute

respondents' denial that any threat of reprisal or force

accompanied the picketing activity complained of. No
circumstances have been charged from which the in-

ference might be drawn that the picketing was attended
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or likely to he attended by violence or force, or conduct

otherwise unlawful or oppressive; and it is not indicated

that there was any actual or threatened abuse of the

right to free speech throuj:^h the use of excessive picketing,

B. The Contentions of Petitioner

Petitioner's contentions as expressed through oral argu-

ment on December 30, 1947 and in his Memorandum, may
be sunmiarized as follows: [49]

(1) The Respondents' challenge to the jurisdiction of

this Court in this proceeding is disposed of by

Section 10(1) of the amended Act, since the con-

stitutionality of such a Congressional enactment

under the "Commerce Power" is not open to ques-

tion.

(2) The function of this Court in this proceeding is

limited by Congress to the issuance of injunctions

upon the application of Board agents as an ancillary

remedy to assist the National Labor Relations

Board in exercising its exclusive power to adjudi-

cate unfair labor practice charges.

(3) The absolute right of a Board agent to injunctive

relief in proceedings such as the instant case is

conditioned only upon a determination that "rea-

sonable cause" exists for his stated belief that

an unfair labor practice has been committed; how-

ever, the Court is not entitled to require prima

facie evidence of facts forming the basis for the

Board agent's belief in making such determination.

(4) The First, Fifth and Thirteenth Amendments to the

Constitution present no bar to the relief sought

here, namely to localize the dispute between the
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members of respondent Union and the charging

Employer by enjoining respondent Union and its

representatives, and all persons in active concert

or participation with them, from picketing the

products of the struck concern. [50]

11.

Congress Cannot Preclude This Court From Passing on

the Validity of a Statutory Provision Purporting to

Confer Jurisdiction to Grant Relief Contrary to the

First Amendment

Counsel for petitioner seeks to preclude this Court from

passing on the validity of Section 8(b) (4) (A) of the

amended Act, as incorporated in Section 10(1) thereof,

by asserting the following legal propositions

:

(1) This Court received a grant of jurisdiction over

this proceeding under Section 10(1); (Petitioner's

Memorandum, p. 2, lines 19-20).

(2) The constitutionality of the amended Act as an

exercise of the power of Congress to prevent and

mitigate interruptions to interstate commerce aris-

ing out of labor disputes which affect such com-

merce is not open to question. (Petitioner's Memo-

randum, p. 2, lines 22-25, and p. 14, lines 10-25,

citing N. L. R. B. v. Jones & Laughlin Steel Co.,

301 U. S. 1 and Duplex v. Deering, 254 U. S.

443.)

(3) The jurisdiction conferred upon this Court by

Section 10(1) is entirely statutory, and is not

limited in any manner other than the limitations

contained in the Act itself. (Petitioner's Memo-

randum, p. 4, lines 15-17.)
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Insofar as C(3unsel seeks to establish by these legal argu-

ments that Congress has the power to regulate interstate

commerce by preventing dangerous interruptions thereto,

subject to the limitations of the First Amendment, there

can be no disagreement. If, however, the contention is

being made that this "plenary power" may be exercised

without regard for the guarantees of the right of free

speech and assembly, we must express strong disagree-

ment with so destructive a concept of constitutional law.

The Jones & Laughlin case 301 U. S. 1, upholding the

validity of the [51] original National Labor Relations

Act of 1935, did not involve the right of free speech

and assembly under the First Amendment. There a cor-

porate employer unsuccessfully invoked the "due process

clause" of the Fifth Amendment and the right of trial

by jury contained in Article III, Section 2 of the Con-

stitution and the Seventh Amendment, in support of its

attack upon the Act.

The invasion of free speech contained in Section 8(b)

(4) (A) is also sought to be justified on the authority

of an early decision that the so-called secondary boycott

lay within the purview of the Sherman Act (Duplex

Printing Co. v. Deering, 254 U. S. 443), decided a

([uarter-century ago before "the modern trend of decision"

identifying picketing with free speech and assembly.

See dissenting opinion of Mr. Justice Brandeis in the

Duplex case, 254 U. S. at 481, wherein he queried:

"May not all with a common interest join in refus-

ing to expend their labor upon articles whose very

production constitutes an attack upon their standard

of living and the institution which they are con-

vinced supports it?"
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He also pointed out (254 U. S. at 482) that:

".
. . courts, with better appreciation of the

facts of industry, recognized the unity of interest

throughout the union, and that, in refusing to work

on materials which threatened it, the union was only

refusing to aid in destroying itself."

Six years later, dissenting in Bedford Stone Co. v.

Journeymen Stone Cutters Association of North America,

274 U. S. 37, he said:

".
. . If, on the undisputed facts of this case,

refusal to work can be enjoined. Congress created

by the Sherman Law and the Clayton Act an instru-

ment for imposing restraints upon labor which re-

minds one of involuntary servitude."

We submit that a worker is free, whether "privileged

under congressional enactments" or not, "acting either

alone or in concert with his fellow workers, to associate

or refuse to associate with other workers, to accept, re-

fuse to accept, or to terminate a relationship of employ-

ment" (Hunt V. Cromboch, 325 U. S. 821) and that

"the publication unaccompanied by violence of a notice that

the employer is unfair to organized labor and requesting

the public not to patronize him is an exercise of the

right of free speech guaranteed by the First Amendment

which cannot be made unlawful by act of Congress."

(See concurring [52] opinion of Chief Justice Stone in

United States v. Hutcheson, 312 U. S. 219 at 243.)
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III.

The Threat to Free Speech and Assembly Under Section

8(b) (4) (A) Is Heightened Under Petitioner's

View of the Limited Discretion Afforded This Court

in Performing an Ancillary Function to the Board's

Adjudicative Powers Under Section 10

Petitioner contends "the sole prerequisite to the grant-

ing of injunctive relief (under Section 10(1)) is a

finding by this Court that the Regional Director has rea-

sonable cause to believe that the charge is true and a

complaint should issue." (Petitioner's Memorandum, p.

5, lines 1-3.)

"The propriety of such injunctive relief," petitioner

further contends, "turns not upon traditional equity

criteria applicable in suits between private parties, but

upon the necessity for effectuating the statutory policy."

(Petitioner's Memorandum, p. 11, lines 11-13.)

Again, "It cannot be contended that this Court is called

upon to decide whether in fact the charge is true, or

whether a violation has, in fact, been committed." (Pe-

titioner's Memorandum, p. 5, lines 3-5.)

In short, the argument is made by petitioner that the

court is required to grant relief upon a petition in com-

pliance Vv'ith the bare provisions of Section 10(1) as a

matter of course, with judicial discretion limited to the

scope and extent of the relief granted. It might be ex-

pected, rather, that judicial discretion under traditional

equity principles, recjuiring a showing of irreparable injury

and the absence of an adequate remedy at law, would be
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afforded the Court in view of the nature of the acts pro-

scribed by Section 8(b) (4) of the amended Act.

Petitioner implies that the showing necessary for an

injunction against engaging in a strike or concerted re-

fusal to work, or "inducing or encouraging" others to do

so need not be any greater than that required for an

administrative agency to invoke the assistance of the

Court to enforce a subpoena issued in the course of an

official investigation. (Petitioner's Memorandum, p. 6,

lines 2-11, citing I. C. C. v. Brimson, 154 U. S. 447;

Endicott Johnson Corp. v. Perkins, [53] 317 U. S. 501,

and other "subpoena enforcement" cases.)

Moreover, the cases cited by petitioner for the proposi-

tion that traditional equity criteria do not apply to the

issuance of so-called interlocutory injunctive relief ancil-

lary to an administrative determination do not hold that

way at all.

Hecht Company v. Bowles, 321 U. S. 321, involved an

application of the OPA Administrator for an injunction

under the Emergency Price Control Act against alleged

violations of that Act. The trial court denied injunctive

relief for want of equity. (49 Fed. Supp. 528.) The

United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the District

of Columbia reversed on the grounds that the Adminis-

trator was entitled to injunctive relief as a matter of

course. (137 F. (2d) 689.) The Supreme Court re-

versed that decision and remanded to the Circuit Court of

Appeals to determine whether the trial court had "abused

its discretion." Mr. Justice Douglas speaking for the

Court says in part:

".
. . Only the other day we stated that 'An

appeal to the equity jurisdiction conferred on federal

district courts is an appeal to the sound discretion
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which guides the determinations of courts of equity.'

, , . We do not believe that such a major depar-

ture from that lonp^ tradition as is here proposed

should be lightly implied. . . . Hence we resolve

the ambiguities of §205 (a) in favor of that interpre-

tation which affords a full opportunity for equity

proceedings under this emergency legislation in

accordance with their traditional practices, as condi-

tioned by the necessities of the public interest which

Congress has sought to protect."

(321 U. S. 329-330)

Douds v. Wine Workers' Union (D. Ct., S. D. N. Y.,

decided December 11, 1947), Fed. Supp , 13

C. C. H. Labor Cases pgh. 64,186, 21 LRRM 2120,

involved the granting of a five-day temporary restraining

order under Sections 8(b) (4) (A) and 10(1) of the

amended Act, but any statement therein with regard to the

exclusive and controlling character of statutory standards

for obtaining injunctive relief is pure dictum, since it

was found by the Court that "substantial and irreparable

injury to the charging parties will be unavoidable unless

a temporary restraining order issues," and "the tradi-

tional equity criteria applicable in suits between private

parties" were held to be present. Moreover the Douds

decision misstates the holding in the Hecht Company

case, supra, and [54] cites it for the reverse of the actual

holding, in the same manner as petitioner herein.

Such an expression obiter dictum by the judge in the

Douds case deserves to be accorded less weight than the

statements on the subject in Styles v. Local 74. Carpen-

ters & Joiners ( D. Ct., E. D. Tenn., decided October 2S.

1947), Fed. Supp , 13 C. C. H. Labor Cases
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pgh. 64,093, 21 LRRM 2010, denying injunctive relief

under Sections 8(b) (4) (A) and 10(1) of the amended

Act for want of "an existing condition that would war-

rant the issuance of an injunction as being just and

proper," and lack of "a fair anticipation of future viola-

tions." There District Judge Darr announced:

"The provisions of the Act concerning the in-

junction give to the court authority to issue such

extraordinary process 'as it deems just and proper.'

Therefore it would seem that the situation should

be such as to disclose some immediate urgency of

action whereby the right of a citizen would have

temporary protection pending the proceedings of the

controversy upon its merits."

IV.

The Portion of the Statute Which Respondents Attack

as Unconstitutional Being Clearly an Attempted

Abridgment of the Right of Free Speech, Is Not

Protected by the Usual Presumption of Constitution-

ality

The Supreme Court of the United States in a case in

which a statute of the State of Texas was not permitted

to contravene rights secured by the First Amendment,

said:

"The case confronts us again with the duty our

system places on this Court to say where the in-

dividual's freedom ends and the State's power begins.

Choice on that border, now as always delicate, is

perhaps more so where the usual presumption sup-

porting legislation is balanced by the preferred place

given in our scheme to the great, the indispensable
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democratic freedoms secured by the First Amcnd-

ment. . . . That priority gives these liberties a

sanctity and a sanction not permitting dubious intru-

sions. And it is the character of the right, not of the

limitation, which determines what standard governs

the choice." (Emphasis supplied.)

Thomas v. Collins, 323 U. S. 516 at 529

Cited with ap])roval in In re Porterfield, 28 Cal. (2d)

91, 168 Pac. (2d) 705.

And, to the same effect: [55]

''There may be a narrower scope for operation of

the presumption of constitutionality when legislation

appears on its face to be within a specific prohibition

of the Constitution, such as those of the first ten

Amendments, which are deemed equally specific when

held to be embraced within the Fourteenth. See

Stromberg v. Carlson, 283 U. S. 359, 369, 51 Sup.

Ct. 532, 535, 536, 75 L. Ed. 1117, 7Z A. L. R. 1484;

Lovell V. Griffin, 303 U. S. 444, 58 Sup. Ct. 666,

82 L. Ed. 949, decided March 28, 1938."

U. S. V. Carolene Products Co., 304 U. S. 778 at

783 (Note 4)

"We mention these constitutional provisions not to

stir the constitutional issues which have been argued

at the bar but to indicate the approach which we

think should be made to an order of the Chief

Executive that touches the sensitive area of rights

specifically guaranteed by the Constitution. This

Court has quite consistently given a narrower scope

for the oj^eration of the presumption of constitu-

tionalitv when legislation appeared on its face to
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violate a specific prohibition of the Constitution/'

(Emphasis supplied.)

Ex Parte Mitsuye Endo, 323 U. S. 283 at 299

"The right to jury trial and the other constitutional

rights of an accused individual are too fundamental

to be sacrificed merely through a reasonable fear of

military assault. There must be some overpowering

factor that makes a recognition of those rights in-

compatible with the public safety before we could

consent to their temporary suspension. If those

rights may safely be respected in the face of threat-

ened invasion no valid reason exists for disregard-

ing them."

Duncan v. Kahanamoku, 66 Sup. Ct. 606 at 618

(Concurring Opinion) Hawaiian Martial Law,

January 1946

See also:

Prince v. Massachusetts, 321 U. S. 158 at 167

Schneider v. New Jersey, 308 U. S. 147 at 161

These recent decisions of the Supreme Court represent

the culmination of the doctrine suggested by Mr. Justice

Holmes in Schenck v. United States (249 U. S. 47, 52)

and amplified by the concurring opinion of Mr. Justice

Brandeis in Whitney v. California, 274 U. S. 357, 374.

The latter opinion emphasized

:

",
. , although the rights of free speech and

assembly are fundamental, they are not in their nature

absolute. Their exercise is subject to restriction, _if

the particular restriction proposed is required in

order to protect the state from destruction or from

serious injury, political, economic or moral." [56]
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However, the learned jurist quickly added that "Fear

of serious injury cannot alone justify suppression of free

speech and assembly,"

In West Virginia State Board of Education v. Bar-

nette, 319 U. S. 624 at 639, the Supreme Court stated:

"The rijj;ht of a State to regulate, for example a

public utility, may well include, so far as the due

process test is concerned, power to impose all of the

restrictions which a legislature may have a 'rational

basis' for adoping. But freedom of speech and

press, of assembly and of worship may not be in-

fringed on such slender grounds. They are sus-

ceptible of restriction only to prevent grave and

immediate danger to interests which the State may

lawfully protect."

V.

The Right of Peaceful Picketing Is Guaranteed Under the

First Amendment as Constituting the Right of Free

Speech

Senn v. Tils Layers' Protective Union, 301 U. S. 468,

478:

"Members of a union might, without special statu-

tory authorization by a state, make known the facts

of a labor dispute, for freedom of speech is guaran-

teed by the Federal Constitution."

Carlson v. CaHfornia, 310 U. S. 106, 112, 113

Cafeteria Employees Union v. Angelos, 302 U. S.

293 at 295

Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S. 88, 102, 104

American Federation of Labor v. Swing, 312

U. S. 321 at 325, 326

In re Blaney, 30 A. C. 648
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As elsewhere pointed out herein, the ruling cases up-

holding the right of peaceful picketing, including those

mentioned above, refer to picketing for the purpose of

inducing action on the part of other persons. In Thorn-

hill V. Alabama, after holding that the picketing therein

sought to be enjoined, which consisted of picketing for

the purpose of boycott, is protected by the First Amend-

ment as the right of free speech, the Court goes on to

say, at 310 U. S. 104:

"It may be that effective exercise of the means of

advancing public knowdedge may persuade some of

those reached to refrain from entering into advan-

tageous relations with the business establishment

which is the scene of the dispute. Every expression

of opinion on matters that are important has the

potentiality of inducing action in the interests of

one rather than another group in society."

The Supreme Court in this language effectually answers

the contention of [57] Petitioner herein that peaceful

picketing may be outlawed because it may result in damage

to the business of another party.

VI.

The Personal Rights Secured by the First Amendment

Occupy a Preferred Position and Are Not Judged by

the Same Constitutional Principles Which Govern

Property Rights

"When we balance the Constitutional rights of

owners of property against those of the people to

enjoy freedom of press and religion, as we must

here, we remain mindful of the fact that the latter

occupy a preferred position. As we have stated be-

fore, the right to exercise the liberties safe guarded
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by the First Amendment 'lies at the foundation of

free government by free men' and we must in all

cases 'wei^h the circumstances and appraise . . .

the reasons ... in support of the regulation of

(those) rights. Schneider v. State, 308 U. S. 147,

161, 60 Sup. Ct. 146, 151, 84 L. Ed. 155."

Marsh v. Alabama. 326 U. S. 501, 509

In Follett V. Town of McCormick, 321 U. S. 573, the

vSupreme Court in annulling an ordinance purporting to fix

a license fee for the sale of books, where the ordinance

was sought to be applied to the sale of religious literature,

the Court said at page 576:

"We pointed out in the Murdock case that the

distinction between 'religious' activity and 'purely

commercial' activity would at times be 'vital' in

determining the constitutionality of flat license taxes

such as these. 319 U. S. page 110, 63 Sup. Ct.

page 873, 87 L. Ed. 1292, 146 A. L. R. 81. But

we need not determine here by what tests the exis-

tence of a 'religion' or the 'free exercise' thereof in

the constitutional sense may be ascertained or meas-

ured. For the Supreme Court of South Carolina

conceded that 'the book in question is a religious

book'; and it concluded 'without difficulty' that 'its

publication and distribution come within the words,

"exercise of religion," as they are used in the Con-

stitution.' We must accordingly accept as bona fide

appellant's assertion that he was 'preaching the gos-

pel' by going 'from house to house presenting the

gospel of the kingdom in printed form.' Thus we
have quite a different case from that of a merchant

who sells books on a stand or on the road."
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See also:

Tucker v. Texas, 326 U. S. 517 at 520

In the Thomas case, 323 U. S. 516 at 529, the Court

reaffirmed the views expressed in the Thornhill case,

supra, that the power of the state to regulate labor rela-

tions must not trespass upon the domains set apart for

[58] free speech and free assembly, saying:

"Where the line shall be placed in a particular

application rests ... on the concrete clash of

particular interests and the community's relative

evaluation of both of them and of how the one will

be affected by the specific restriction, the other by

its absence. That judgment in the first instance is

for the legislative body. But in our system where

the line can constitutionally be placed presents a

question this Court cannot escape answering inde-

pendently, whatever the legislative judgment, in the

light of our constitutional tradition. Schneider v.

State, 308 U. S. 147, 161. The answer, under that

tradition, can be affirmative to support an intrusion

upon this domain, only if grave and impending public

danger requires this." (Emphasis supplied.) [59]

VII.

The Power of a Legislative Body to Pass Legislation for

the Prevention of Violence and for General Regula-

tion of Industrial Relations Is Strictly Limited by

the Provisions of the Bill of Rights

Hotel & Restaurant Employees Local v. Employment

Relations Board, 315 U. S. 437, where the Supreme Court

said, at page 442

:

>

"What public policy Wisconsin should adopt in

furthering desirable industrial relations is for it to
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say so long- as rights guaranteed by the Constitution

are respected."

A. F. of L. V. Swing, 312 U. S. 321, where the Supreme

Court said, at 325 and 326:

"We are asked to sustain a decree which for pur-

poses of this case asserts as the common law of a

state that there can be no 'peaceful picketing or

peaceful persuasion' in relation to any dispute be-

tween an employer and a trade union unless the

employer's own employees are in controversy with

him.

"Such a ban of free communication is inconsistent

with the guarantee of freedom of speech. That a

state has ample power to regulate the local problems

thrown up by modern industry and to preserve the

peace is axiomatic. But not even these essential

powers are unfettered by the requirements of the

Bill of Rights. The scope of the Fourteenth Amend-

ment is not confined by the notion of a particular

state regarding the wise limits of an injunction in an

industrial dispute, whether those limits be defined by

statute or by the judicial organ of the state . ( Em-
phasis supplied.) A state cannot exclude working-

men from peacefully exercising the right of free

communication by drawing the circle of economic

competition between employers and workers so small

as to contain only an employer and those directly em-

ployed bv him. The interdependence of economic

interest of all engaged in the same industry has

become a conimon])lace. American Foundries v. Tri-

City Council. 257 U. S. 184, 209, 42 Sup. Ct. 72,

78, 66 L. Ed. 189, 27 A. L. R. 360. The ricrht of
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free communication cannot therefore be mutilated by

denying it to workers, in a dispute with an em-

ployer, even though they are not in his employ."

In discussing the right of free speech in connection with

the right of assembly, and disapproving what might be

deemed a mild abridgment, the Supreme Court recently

said:

"The restraint is not small when it is considered

what was restrained. The right is a national right,

federally guaranteed. There is some modicum of

freedom of thought, speech and assembly which all

citizens of the Republic may exercise throughout its

length and breadth, which no State, nor all [60]

together, nor the Nation itself, can prohibit, restrain

or impede. If the restraint were smaller than it is,

it is from petty tyrannies that large ones take root

and grow. This fact can be no more plain than

when they are imposed on the most basic rights of all.

Seedlings planted in the soil grow great and, grow-

ing, break down the foundations of liberty."

Thomas v. Collins, 323 U. S. 516 at 543

In Senn v. Tile Layers, 301 U. S. 468, the Supreme

Court said at page 478:

"The state may, in the exercise of its police power,

regulate the methods and means of publicity as well

as the use of public streets. If the end sought by

the unions is not forbidden by the Federal Constitu-

tion, the state may authorize workingmen to seek

to attain it by combining as pickets, just as it per-

mits capitalists and employers to combine in other

ways to attain their desired economic ends."
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The corollary of this same thought was reiterated in

Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S. at 103, namely that:

''It is true that the rights of employers and em-

ployees to conduct their economic affairs and to com-

pete with others for a share in the products of in-

dustry are subject to modification or qualification in

the interests of the society in which they exist. . . .

It does not follow that the State in dealing with the

evils arising from industrial disputes may impair the

effective exercise of the right to discuss freely in-

dustrial relations which are matters of public con-

cern."

And again, in the Carlson case, 310 U. S. at 113, the

Supreme Court declared:

"The power and duty of the State to take adequate

steps to preserve the peace and protect the privacy, the

lives, and the property of its residents cannot be

doubted. But the ordinance in question here abridges

liberty of discussion under circumstances presenting

no clear and present danger of substantive evils with-

in the allowable area of State control."

Such pronouncements of the high court were con-

sidered by the Supreme Court of California in the Blaney

case decided October 3, 1947, 30 A. C. 648 at 653, which

interpreted them to mean that although the purpose of

the economic pressure exerted by a labor organization

against an employer and the means used to exert it must

be lawful, "the question still remains as to what purposes

or means may be declared unlawful by the Legislature or

the courts without violating the provisions of the Con-

stitution." [61]
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In other words, the guarantees of the First Amend-

ment cannot be abridged by legislative action, by munici-

pality, state or the Nation itself. The attempt by the

Taft-Hartley Act to prevent a union engaged in a labor

dispute with its employer from picketing the product of

that employer must be disapproved and annulled, as was

the similar attempt by the State of California in the

Blaney case, supra, or the State of New York in the

Wohl case, supra.

Similarly, the attempt by means of the Taft-Hartley

Law, to draw ''the circle of economic competition between

employers and workers so small as to contain only an

employer and those employed directly by him," must be

judicially disapproved and set aside as was the similar

attempt of the State of Illinois in A. F. of L. v. Swing,

supra, and the State of New York in Cafeteria Employees

Union v. Angelos, supra.

VIII.

The Right of Picketing Is Protected by Definite Guar-

antees and Is Controlled by Definite Boundaries

(a) It must be in a dispute reasonably related to

employment conditions.

Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S. 88, 102, 103;

Carlson v. California, 310 U. S. 106, 112, 113;

A. F. of L. V. Swing, 312 U. S. 321, 326;

Cafeteria Employees Union v. Angelos, 320 U. S.

293, 295, 296;

McKav V. Retail Automobile Salesmen's Local

Union, 16 Cal. (2d) 311, 318, 319;

Smith Metropolitan Market v. Lyons, 16 Cal. (2d)

389, 394.
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(b) Picketing is not approved where it is outside of

such a controversy reasonably related to employment

conditions.

Dorchy v. Kansas, 272 U. S. 306, 311. (Picket-

ing to enforce collection of a stale claim belong-

ing to an individual.)

See:

James v. Marinship, 25 Cal. (2d) 721. (Did not

involve picketing but concerned union pressure

to preserve a closed shop and a closed union.)

See also

:

Bautista v. Jones, 25 Cal. (2d) 746. (Same situa-

tion.) [62]

(c) The picketing must be writhin the economic nexus

or context of dispute.

Carpenters and Joiners v. Ritters Cafe. 315 U. S.

722, 727. (Picketing of a product approved.)

Allen Bradley Local 1111 v. Wisconsin Employ-

ment Relations Board, 315 U. S. 740, 748.

(Picketing the homes of strikebreaker employees

disapproved.)

(d) The picketing must be peaceful.

Milkwagon Drivers v. Meadowmoor Dairies, 312

U. S. 287.

(e) Violent acts will be enjoined.

Hotel & Restaurant Employees Local v. Employ-

ment Relations Board, 315 U. S. 437, 441.

(Mass Picketing—prevention of ingress and

egress.

)

Lisse V. Local Union, 2 Cal. (2d) 312, 321;

In re Bell, 19 Cal. (2d) 488, 504, 505.
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(f) Picketing cannot be limited to a dispute between

an employer and his own employees.

A. F. of L. V. Swing, 312 U. S. 321, 326;

Cafeteria Employees Union v. Angelos, 320 U. S.

293, 295, 296.

(g) Picketing within the boundaries thus set out is

protected by the courts.

Bakery Wagon Drivers' Local v. Wohl, 315 U. S.

769, 773;

Carpenters' Union v. Ritter's Cafe, 315 U. S. 722,

727;

Stapleton v. Mitchell, 60 Fed. Supp. 51;

Restatement of Torts, Vol. 4, Sees. 798, 799;

Fortenbury v. Superior Court, 16 Cal. (2d) 405;

Park & Tilford Import Corp. v. Int'l. Brotherhood

of Teamsters, 27 Cal. (2d) 599, 603, 608.

(h) A person dealing with an employer within such

nexus is not a neutral.

Fortenbury v. Superior Court, 16 Cal. (2d) 405,

408;

Goldfinger v. Feintuch, 276 N. Y. 281, 11 N. E.

(2d) 910.

In the Memorandum of Points and Authorities on be-

half of petitioner herein, the constitutional question as

to the right of free speech is touched upon very lightly

indeed in three and a half pages beginning at the top

of [63] page 12.

The acts sought to be enjoined here consist of peaceful

picketing. The picketing is said to be for the purpose of

inducing and encouraging certain action on the part of

certain employees. The decisions of our highest courts

which have upheld the right of peaceful picketing have
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involved cases where the picketing was carried on for

a definite purpose. In Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S.

88, the terms of the statute of the State of Alabama

purporting to prohibit peaceful picketing are set out at

pages 91 and 92. The statute there does not prohibit

picketing carried on as an afternoon's diversion or for

the mere purpose of disseminating a piece of news. The

statute prohibits picketing pursuant to a boycott to in-

duce or influence members of the public not to patronize

a certain establishment. That was the picketing referred

to by the Supreme Court at page 95, as freedom of

speech and of the press to be safeguarded in order that

men may speak as they like on matters vital to them.

In Senn v. Tile Layers' Protective Union, 301 U. S.

468, the picketing which was referred to at page 478 as

freedom of speech, guaranteed by the Federal Constitution,

consisted of picketing to prevent a master tile layer from

working as a journeyman in his own business and to

''encourage and induce" or "compel," if you please, him to

hire a journeyman.

In Cafeteria Employees' Union v. Angelos, 302 U. S.

293, the picketing was for the purpose of compelling the

owaiers of a cafeteria who, according to their allegations,

did all their own work and made use of no employees

whatever, to hire members of the Union.

Similarly, in A. F. of L. v. Swing, 312 U. S, 321, the

])icketing was by members of a beauticians' union to com-

pel the proprietor of a beauty shop to employ union mem-
bers, there being at that time no union members in his

employ.

The very frank admission by counsel for the petitioner

at page 13 of the memorandum, lines 11 to 14. to the effect

that the intent of the Taft-Hartley Act is to limit the
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area of the industrial dispute to a circle comprising only

an employer and his own employees flies directly in the

face of the consistent rulings of the Supreme Court of

the United States, particularly the Angelos case, 320 U. S.

at page 296 and the Swing case, 312 U. S. at pages [64]

325 and 326.

Furthermore, the picketing in the case at bar, as clearly

shown by the charge and affidavit on file, was picketing

directed at the product of the employer with whom the

union is in dispute. Such picketing was expressly upheld

in the Wohl case, 315 U. S. 769 (by a unanimous deci-

sion) which is expressly affirmed in Carpenters' Union v.

Ritter's Cafe, 315 U. S. 722 at 727.

Counsel for petitioner in their very brief and sketchy

citation of authorities, rely upon the Ritter's Cafe case,

but they fail to consider page 727 of the decision which

spells out the principle of law that the picketing of the

product of a party to a labor dispute is within the allow-

able circle of economic action upheld under the First

Amendment.

See also Fortenbury v. Superior Court, 16 Cal. (2d)

405, where the picketing of a product was upheld as a

constitutional right under the rules laid down in the com-

panion case of McKay v. Retail Automobile Salesmen's

Local Union, 16 Cal. (2d) 311.

"The First Amendment is a charter for govern-

ment not for an institution of learning. 'Free trade

in ideas' means free trade in the opportunity to per-

suade to action, not merely to describe facts.

"Indeed, the whole history of the problem shows

it is to the end of preventing action that repression

is primarily directed and to preserving the right to

urge it that the protections are given.
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"Accordingly, decision here has recognized that

employers' attempts to persuade to action with re-

spect to joining or not joining unions are within the

First Amendment's guaranty. National Labor Rela-

tions Bd. V. Virginia Electric & P. Co., 314 U. S.

469. . . When to this persuasion other things

are added which bring about coercion, or give it that

character, the limit of the right has been passed.

But short of that limit the employer's freedom can-

not be impaired. The Constitution protects no less

the employees' converse right. Of course espousal of

the cause of labor is entitled to no higher protection

than the espousal of any other lawful cause. It is

entitled to the same protection."

Thomas v. Collins, 323 U. S. at 537.

See also Section 8(c) of the amended Act. [65]

DC.

The Relief Prayed For by Petitioner Is Designed to

Curtail the Right of Workingmen to Combine For

Their Mutual Protection by Restraining V^arious

Concerted Activities, Including Peaceful Picketing

and the Boycott, Thereby Requiring Involuntary

Servitude Contrary to the Thirteenth Amendment

Petitioner's Memorandum argues that "Congress has

. . . avoided any possible challenge to the Act which

might be predicated upon the Thirteenth Amendment."

Furthermore, "whatever the rights of employees may be

to leave work individually or in concert or to work on

any terms they may themselves choose, those rights are

in no way affected b\- the order which petitioner seeks

herein." (P. 12, Imes 7-18.)
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"The scope of the order" is defined by petitioner to be

such that it ''is directed only against the labor organiza-

tion and its agents charged with having committed unfair

labor practices, and against persons acting in concert with

them." (P. 11, lines 22-24.)

Actually the proposed order would run against Local

388 and its Secretary-Treasurer, respondent Turner, "and

their agents, servants, employees, attorneys and all per-

sons in active concert or participation with them."

("Agent" is defined by Section 2(13) of the amended Act

so that "the question of whether the specific acts per-

formed were actually authorized or subsequently ratified

shall not be controlling" in the determination of whether

"any person is acting as an 'agent' or any other person."

(Section 2(1) defines "person" as including inter alia

"labor organizations" and "associations." The term "par-

ticipation" as used in the proposed order is particularly

significant in view of the definition of "labor organiza-

tion" in Section 2(5) as a group "in which employees

participate.")

The proposed order seeks to enjoin or restrain the above

persons from themselves "engaging in ... a con-

certed refusal to work, or strike in the course of their

employment for the designated purposes described therein.

Therefore, [66] how can it be said with any degree of

sincerity that the relief prayed for would not enjoin or

restrain concerted activities of union members.

In any event, the fallacious nature of any argument

based upon the separation of any unincorporated volun-

tary association from its membership as a distinct entity

is patent to say the least. Whatever may be the rule

of law in a particular jurisdiction as to the right of the
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union to sue in its own name or tJie liability of the union

to be sued in such fashion, the ultimate enforcement of

any injunctive order forbidding picketing must run against

the individual members of the union, at least to the extent

of denying the right to engage in "concerted activities."

See

Pollock V. Williams, 322 U. S. 4;

Bailey v. Alabama, 219 U. S. 210;

American Federation of Labor v. McAdory, 246

Ala. 1, 18 So. (2d) 810;

Henderson v. Coleman, 150 Fla. 185, 7 So. (2d)

117;

In re Blaney, 30 A. C. 648;

Stapleton v. Mitchell, 60 Fed. Supp. 51.

X.

Section 8(b) (4) (A) Is Void for Vagueness.

Petitioner relies upon an abridged quotation of Section

8(c) of the amended Act to defend Section 8(b) (4) (A)

from the attack that it is so vague, indefinite and uncer-

tain as to amount to a denial of due process of law con-

trary to the Fifth Amendment.

It is significant that petitioner has not responded to

respondents' contention that the separability clause set

forth in Section 16 of the amended Act cannot save the

disputed Section 8(b) (4) (A) from being declared totally

invalid, if in fact it is, as claimed, excessively vague or

too sweeping in its terms.

Construing Section 8(c) and Section 8(b) (4) (A)

together, it would seem to us that peaceful picketing as in

the present case cannot be held to constitute an unfair

labor practice, since such picketing "contains no threat

of reprisal, or force or promise of (specific) benefit." If
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the immunized utterances include "the expressing of any

views, argument, or opinion, or the [67] dissemination

thereof, whether in written, printed, graphic or visual

form," we are firmly convinced that peaceful picketing

must fall within that category. Yet, counsel for peti-

tioner insists that because picketing is a "coercive tech-

nique" it is more than the expression of views, etc. and

may be deemed to constitute or serve as evidence of an

unfair labor practice. In effect, counsel seeks to turn

back the hands of the clock and revive the early judicial

pronouncements, long since overruled, that "there can

be no such thing as peaceful picketing." (Atchison etc.

V. Gee, 139 Fed. 582; see also Pierce v. Stablemen's

Union, 156, Cal. 70, Rosenberg v. Retail Clerks' Assn.,

39 Cal. App. 67, and Moore v. Cooks Union, 39 Cal. App,

538, all expressly renounced in Lisse v. Local Union, 2

Cal. (2d) 312, and McKay v. Retail Automobile Sales-

men's Local Union, 16 Cal. (2d) 389.

If petitioner is upheld in his contention that peaceful

picketing may constitute or serve as evidence of an unfair

labor practice under Section 8 of the amended Act, then

those portions of said amended Act are so vague that

men of common intelligence must necessarily differ as to

their meaning. Lanzetta v. New Jersey, 306 U. S. 451.

The statute held not subject to this objection in United

States V. Petrillo, 67 Sup. Ct. 1538, 91 L. Ed. 1403, does

not mention "picketing" as such in setting forth the pro-

scribed activities. It refers to "the use or express or

implied threat of the use of force, violence, intimidation,

or duress, or implied threat of the use of other means,

to coerce, compel or constrain" an employer to hire un-

needed employees. However, the Supreme Court points

out that the "gist of the offense here charged in the statute
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and in the information" is that respondent "willfully, by

the use of force, intimidation, duress and by the use of

other means, did attempt to coerce, compel and constrain"

the licensee to hire unneeded employees. (Italics are the

Court's.) All that the Court holds is that if the allega-

tions that the prohibited result was attempted to be

accomplished by picketing are so broad as to include

peaceful constitutionally protected picketing, the trial

court would be free to strike them, or the Government

might amend the information, so that ''this case had not

reached a stage where the decision of a precise constitu-

tional issue was a necessity." [68]
5|C 5^C 37C 3fC *^C J|k 3(C 3|K

With respect to the question as to whether these pro-

ceedings should be heard by a three judge court pursuant

to the provisions of Title 28, U. S. C. A. Section 380a,

Counsel for the Respondents are in accord with the view

expressed by Counsel for the Petitioner. The various

statutes providing for a determination by three judges

and direct appeal to the Supreme Court do not apply

where an Act of Congress is merely "drawn in question"

and may be invoked only where there is an application

to restrain enforcement of an Act of Congress. See

International Ladies' Garment Workers Union v. Don-

nelly Garment Company, 304 U. S. 243.

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT W. GILBERT
CLARENCE E. TODD
ALLAN L. SAPIRO

Attorneys for Respondent Local 388

By Robert W. Gilbert

Dated: January 10, 1948. [69]

[Affidavit of Service by Mail.]

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 10, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [70]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

MOTION FOR LEAVE TO FILE SUPPLEMENT
TO PETITIONER'S MEMORANDUM OF
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES [71]

To the Honorable Paul J. McCormick, United States Dis-

trict Judge:

Comes now Howard F, LeBaron, Petitioner, by his

Attorneys and asks leave to file a supplement to his

Memorandum of Points and Authorities, this supplement

being the opinion handed down December 31, 1947, by

the Honorable S. W. Brennan, United States District

Judge for the Northern District of New York, in Civil

Action No. 3084 entitled: Charles T. Douds, Regional

Director of the Second Region of the National Labor

Relations Board, on behalf of the National Labor Rela-

tions Board, Petitioner vs. Local No. 294, International

Brotherhood of Teamsters, Chaufifeurs, Warehousemen

and Helpers of America, A. F. of L., Respondent, includ-

ing the Court's letter of transmittal dated January 2, 1948.

ROBERT N. DENHAM
DAVID P. FINDLING
WINTHROP A. JOHNS
DOMINICK MANOLI
GEORGE H. O'BRIEN

Attorney Twenty-First Region, N. L. R, B. ,

The undersigned counsel for Respondents herein have

received copies of the decision hereinbefore referred to

and consent to the filing of said decision and letter of

transmittal as a supplement to Petitioner's Memorandum
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of Points and Authorities, reserving the right to make

such written comment thereon as this Honorable Court

may allow.

ROBERT W. GILBERT
CLARENCE E. TODD
ALLAN L. SAPIRO
By Robert W. Gilbert

Dated at Los Angeles, California, this 15th day of

January, 1948.

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 19, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [72]

[Title of District Court and Cause]

ORDER [7^

On motion of Howard F. LeBaron, Petitioner herein,

and with the consent of counsel for Respondents, it is

hereby

:

Ordered

1. Leave is hereby granted to Petitioner to file in-

stanter as a supplement to his Memorandum of Points and

Authorities a certain opinion handed down December 31,

1947 by the Honorable S. W. Brennan, United States

District Judge for the Northern District of New York,

in Civil Action No. 3084 entitled: Charles T. Douds,

Regional Director of the Second Region of the National

Labor Relations Board, on behalf of the National Labor

Relations Board, Petitioner v. Local No. 294, National

Brotherhood of Teamsters, Chauffeurs, Warehousemen and

Helpers of America, A. F. of L., Respondent, and the

Court's letter of transmittal dated January 2. 1948.
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2. Leave is hereby granted Respondents to file their

comments on said opinion on or before the 19th day of

January 1948.

Enter

:

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge

Dated at Los Angeles this 19th day of January, 1948.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 19, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [74]

[Title of District Court and Cause]

SUPPLEMENT TO PETITIONER'S MEMORAN-
DUM OF POINTS AND AUTHORITIES [75]

United States District Court

Northern District of New York

Chambers of Judge Stephen W. Brennan

Utica 1, New York

January 2, 1948

Mr. David P. Findling and Mr. Samuel Ross

815 Connecticut Avenue

Washington, D. C.

Mr. John J. Cuneo

120 Wall Street

New York, N. Y.

Mr. Harry Pozefsky

Gloversville, New York

Re: Douds, Regional Director, etc. v. Local 294, etc.

Civil 3084

Douds, Regional Director, etc. v. Local 294, etc.

Civil 3083
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Gentlemen

:

I am enclosing copy of decision in the Conway case,

(No. 3084), and copy of memorandum in the Montgom-

ery Ward case, (No. 3083), the originals of which were

filed with the Clerk today. Although I am not sending

copies to all attorneys who appeared, 1 am trying to make

certain that both the Washington and New York office

of the Board receive a copy, and 1 am also sending a copy

to Judge Walsh.

I am assuming that an appeal will be taken, at least

from the order in the Conway case, and it, therefore, be-

comes important that proper findings and conclusions are

made so that the rights of both parties are protected. I

suggest that you try to agree upon the findings, conclu-

sions and order, or that each side prepare same, and they

can be settled before me.

I think it is evident that I intended that the restrain-

ing order in the Conway case, at least insofar as the boy-

cott provision is concerned, would be broad enough to

cover all employees, and, therefore, make it unnecessary

to issue a second injunction order. If you disagree, I

shall be glad to have you make such fact known.

I expect to be holding court in Buffalo during January,

but exi^ect to be at my Utica chambers on Saturday of

each week.

Allow me to express my appreciation for the manner in

which the proceedings were tried, and I assure you that

decision would have been given earlier were it not for the

press of pending matters.

Very truly yours,

/s/ S. W. Brennan

SWB:C U. S. D. J.

Enclosure [76]
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J-1093a INJ.

United States District Court

Northern District of New York

Civil 3084

X
Charles T. Douds, Regional Director of the Second Region

of the National Labor Relations Board, on behalf of the

National Labor Relations Board,

Petitioner,

-vs-

International Brotherhood of Teamsters,

Warehousemen and Helpers of America,

Local 294,

Chauffeurs,

A. R of L
Respondent.

X
Appearances

:

Mr. Robert N. Denham

Mr. David P. Findling

Mr. Winthrop A. Johens (sic)

Mr. Samuel Ross

Mr. William W. Kapell

Mr. John J. Cuneo,

Attorneys for Petitioner,

815 Connecticut Avenue

Washington, D. C.

Mr. Harry Pozefsky Hon. John J. Walsh

Attorney for Respondent Of Counsel,

30 South Main Street Utica, New York

Gloversville, New York

Proceeding tried at Utica, New York, December 9-12,

1947; decided December 31, 1947

Brennan, U. S. D. J.
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DECISION

This proceeding requires the consideration of the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, (hereinafter referred to as

the "Act"), as amended by Congress June 23, 1947, by

the Labor Management Relations Act, 1947, and popu-

larly known as the Taft-Hartley Labor Act.

A petition has been filed in this Court under the pro-

visions of Section 10(j), and 10(1) of the Act, in which

the petitioner prays [77] that an injunction issue re-

straining the respondent and its agents from engaging

in activities which petitioner avers constitute unfair labor

practices within the meaning of Section 8 of the Act.

The respondent has filed its answer, in substance denying

the commission of any activities which might be deter-

mined to be unfair labor practices, and further alleges

matters in avoidance of petitioner's averments. The pro-

ceeding came before the Court through the procedural

means of an order to show cause.

A considerable amount of oral evidence was oflfered by

the plaintiff for the purpose of showing the activities of

the respondent which are alleged to constitute unfair

labor practices. The respondent offered no evidence in

contradiction to the evidence of plaintiff's witnesses, and

for all practical purposes the decision must be based upon

the evidence of the petitioner, and upon the applicable

law. Decision of motions made by the respondent was

reserved.

The proceeding arises out of a factual situation which

may be concisely described as follows. For some years

Harry Rabouin has conducted an express or transporta-

tion business under the name and style of Conway's

Express. The principal place of business is located at
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Pittsfield, Mass. with branch terminals at Rensselaer,

New York, and Springfield, Mass. The business con-

ducted consists of the transportation of freight by motor

truck and trailer over public highways to various destina-

tions in about seven different states.

Prior to September, 1947, Rabouin had leased part of

its equipment to the Middle Atlantic Transportation Com-

pany located at New Britain, Conn. The leasing arrange-

ment is complicated, but it is sufficient to say that Rabouin

was paid upon a mileage and freight weight basis for

the equipment so leased. The operators of such equip-

ment were employees of Mid-Atlantic, were under its

complete [78] control and their wages were paid by that

company. Rabouin's employees, that is, the operators of

the Rabouin equipment, used in his own business, were

members of the Respondent Union, and Rabouin carried

out the terms of a written instrument which is referred

to as a contract, which instrument attempted to define

the rights of Respondent Union members who were

employees of Rabouin. The instrument was not in fact

signed by Rabouin, although it appears, as above indi-

cated, that he complied with the obligations thereof.

Prior to September 10, 1947, respondent had negotiated

with Rabouin to the end that equipment leased by Rabouin

should only be operated by union members. Rabouin

agreed either to sell the equipment or to arrange for union

operators. The arrangement was not carried out. About

September 10, 1947, respondent, through its business

agent, learned that Rabouin equipment leased to Mid

Atlantic had transported or was engaged in transporting

freight from New Britain, Conn, to Cleveland, Ohio; the

operator of the truck on that occasion not being a mem-

ber of the union, and, of course, not being an employee
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of Rabouin. On September 10, 1947, a strike which

still continues was called by respondent against Rabouin.

The above statement, together with evidence of acts or

occurrences performed or happening during the progress

of the strike form the factual background of this pro-

ceeding.

Rabouin later filed charges with the Regional Director

of the National Labor Relations Board, (hereafter re-

ferred to as the "Board"), pursuant to Section 10(b)

of the Act, which charges the respondent with having

engaged in unfair labor practices as defined in Section

8(b) of the Act. A complaint was thereafter served by

the Regional Director upon the respondent, and this

proceeding followed.

The specific charges which the petitioner claims con-

stitute [79] unfair labor practices may be concisely stated

as follows.

1. The calling of a strike which had for its purpose to

force or require Rabouin to cease doing business with

the Mid Atlantic Company. (Sec. 8(b) (4) (A).)

2. The refusal to bargain collectively with Rabouin.

(Sec. 8(b) (1)(B).)

3. The demand for a closed shop agreement between

Rabouin and respondent. (Sec. 8(b) (1)(A).)

4. The demand for the payment by Rabouin to the

respondent of money for services not performed or to

be performed; to-wit, an amount equal to the wages of

a member of Respondent Union for the trip from New
Britain, Conn, to Cleveland, Ohio, about September 10,

1947. (Sec. 8(b) (6).)

5. The threatening or coercion of Rabouin's employ-

ees. (Sec. 8(b) (1)(A).)
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6. The inducing and encouraging by the respondent

(sic) of employees of other employers to refuse to re-

ceive or deliver articles and materials which had been

handled and transported or were to be handled and trans-

ported by Rabouin's employees and equipment. (Sec.

8(b) (4)(A).)

The facts as shown by the evidence require little dis-

cussion, but there arose sharp differences of opinion as

to the extent of the power of the Court to grant relief

herein, and the procedure to be followed in arriving at a

determination as to whether or not such power should be

exercised.

Since the litigants herein fail to agree as to the mean-

ing of the statute upon which the proceeding is based,

on the extent of the Court's jurisdiction, upon the relief

which may be granted, and the procedure to be followed

in the granting or denial of such relief [80] reference is

made to the statute itself and to the principles which

must govern the decision of the disputed contentions.

Arguments addressed to the fairness or efficiency of

the statute are of no value here. Congress alone has the

legislative power. The courts may only construe, apply

and enforce the statute in accordance with the language

and intent thereof. They are not concerned with whether

or not the litigants consider the statute either good or bad.

A reading of the Act under consideration leads to the

conclusion that, as far as material here, Congress has de-

fined certain activities of employers and employees as

unfair labor practices, and devised a means and pro-

cedure whereby such practices may be halted. It has

also provided procedure by which activities, which are

charged by any aggrieved person to amount to unfair
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labor practices, may be prohibited or regulated during"

the time necessarily consumed in the ultimate determina-

tion of the facts constituting such charges. (Sec. 10(j)

and (1).) It is with the latter procedure and sub-

sections of the Act with which we are primarily con-

cerned in this proceeding.

It is plain that the remedy proscribed takes the form

of injunctive relief, and it is equally clear that the Board

has the exclusive power to determine whether unfair

labor practices have been committed and to issue the

appropriate orders upon such determination. (See Sec.

10(a) (e) and (f).)

The procedural steps have been taken herein, and the

Board seeks the order of this Court prohibiting the com-

mission of such acts pending its final action and deter-

mination. We are concerned here primarily with the

temporary relief which may be afforded under the provi-

sions of Sec. 10(j) and (1) of the Act.

The primary purpose of the Act is to promote and safe-

guard [81] the free flow of commerce. It is recognized

that employers, employees and the public are affected

thereby, and the Act must be construed in the light of

their interest therein.

In this proceeding the Board has invoked the discre-

tionary power invested by Sec. 10(j), and has complied

with the mandate of Sec. 10(1), in the institution of

this proceeding: it being evident from the language of the

last sub-section that Congress determined that unfair

labor practices loosely described as boycotts were espe-

cially harmful to the public interest. The measure of

the court's jurisdiction is similar in both sub-divisions

(j) and (1); to-vvit, to grant such injunctive relief or
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temporary restraining order as it deems just and proper.

No other grant or limitation of power is found.

Respondent contends with earnestness that the provi-

sions of the Norris-LaGuardia Act (29 U. S. C. A. 101-

115), which substantially eliminates the granting or use of

the injunction in labor disputes must be applied here, or at

least the bases of irreparable injury, and lack of an

adequate remedy at law must be shown before the peti-

tioner may be granted injunctive relief. Both conten-

tions are rejected. The relief provided is entirely statu-

tory. The common law requirements do not apply. The

statutory scheme is complete in itself.

"As the issuance of an injunction in cases of this

nature has statutory sanction, it is of no moment

that the plaintiff has failed to show threatened

irreparable injury or the like, for it would be enough

if the statutory conditions for injunctive relief were

made to appear. Securities and Exchange Commis-

sion V. Jones (C. C ), 85 F. (2nd) 140."

Securities and Exchange Commission v. Torr, 87

F. 2nd 446 at 450, and See also

Bowles V. Swift & Co., 56 F. Supp. 679 and cases

cited.

To impose the limitations of the Norris-LaGuardia Act

upon the [82] Act would be to impute to Congress an

intention to grant to the Court a jurisdiction with restric-

tions thereon which would prevent its exercise. No evi-

dence of Congressional intent is drawn from the language
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of Sec. 10(h) which specifically excludes the limitations

of the Norris-LaGuardia Act from effecting injunctive

relief applied for after the making of an order by the

Board. This provision was carried over from the original

Act, and has no effect upon sub-divisions (j) and (1)

which are new provisions in the amended Act. Neither

does the phrase "notwithstanding any other provisions of

law" as found in Sec. 10(1) indicate that Congress in-

tended that a different statutory requirement must be

applied to the jurisdiction of the Court under 10(j) and

10(1). When the Court is given jurisdiction without

limitation, the Act means just that; the phrase may be

considered as surplusage. Certainly, it can not be used

to imply a limitation upon another sub-section where the

phrase is not found.

Since this Court has jurisdiction to render only inter-

mediate relief, it would seem logical that something less

than a finding of the ultimate facts is contemplated in

the Act. To hold otherwise is to subject both petitioner

and respondent to two trials, for the Act plainly con-

templates a trial by the Board. This Court does not

decide which litigant is ultimately entitled to prevail.

While all of plaintiff's evidence was offered and re-

ceived herein, it is concluded that such detail was neither

contemplated by the Act or necessary in fact. There is

nothing in the statute which would prompt the Court to

depart from the recognized rule of equity that inter-

locutory relief may be granted upon a showing of rea-

sonable probability that the moving party is entitled to
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final relief. A showing of a prima facie case for equit-

able relief [83] satisfies the statute.

Bowles V. Montgomery Ward & Company, 143 F.

2nd 38 at 42;

Northwestern Stevedoring Company vs. Marshall,

41 F. 2nd 28;

Sinclair Refining Co. vs. Midland Oil Company,

55 F. 2nd 42.

The requirement is the same under either 10(j) or

10(1). The provision of the latter subsection; viz:

*Tf, after such investigation, the officer or regional attor-

ney to whom the matter may be referred, has reasonable

cause to believe such charge is true and that a complaint

should issue, he shall, on behalf of the Board, petition

any district court of the United States—," is the measure

of the requirements which must exist before such officer

is required to petition this Court for the authorized

relief. It is not the measure of the proof required before

this Court may grant such relief.

The requirements of a prima facie case are met when

the factual jurisdictional requirements are shown, and

credible evidence is presented which, if uncontradicted,

would warrant the granting of the requested relief, hav-

ing in mind the purpose of the statute and interests in-

volved in its enforcement. Such requirement has been

met in this proceeding, and petitioner is entitled to relief.

There remains to be considered the type and extent of

relief which is considered "just and proper" under the

Act. The Court is aware of the frequent admonition
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that injunctive relief is not lightly granted, and that such

relief looks to the future rather than the past. The

Court also appreciates that such rules are applied with

different degress of rigidity in private litigation, and when

the public [84] interest is involved. (U. S. v. Morgan.

307 U. S. 163 at 194.) In any event injunctive relief

may only enjoin those activities which are condemned

in the Act. The evidence here tends to establish acts of

the respondent constituting unfair labor practices. Such

acts are not isolated, but rather are deliberate, wilful and,

if not continuous, at least sporadic. No evidence of

respondent's efforts to alter its position in reference to

such acts is offered. In addition, the Court may consider

a similar proceeding instituted in this Court against the

same respondent requesting relief under Section 10(1).

The above proceeding, based upon the complaint of Mont-

gomery Ward and Company, was instituted at the same

time; the order to show cause was returnable at the

same time, and the evidence was taken immediately fol-

lowing the trial of the instant proceeding. The decision

therein is filed concurrently herewith. In fact, reference

to such proceeding is contained in respondent's answer.

The conclusion is reached that the motions made by

respondent should be denied, and that an order should

issue restraining the respondent from the commission or

continuance of the activities set forth in Paragraph "6"

of the petition.

Order may be settled on three days' notice.

Stephen W. Brennan

U. S. D. J. [85]
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MEMORANDUM
This proceeding is similar to and may be considered as

a companion proceeding to No. 3084, decision in which

is filed concurrently herewith, although Section 10(1) of

the Labor Management Relations Act, 1947, alone is

involved herein.

This proceeding arises out of the following factual

situation. Montgomery Ward & Company maintain a

place for the transaction of business near Albany, New
York, and is engaged in the sale of merchandise. [86]

It hires no truck operators; it has no contractual rela-

tionship with, and none of its employees are members of

the respondent union.

On or about October 15, 1947, the business representa-

tives of the respondent were advised by a guard employed

by Montgomery Ward that they must have a pass in

order to remain upon the company's property. Such

representatives without making themselves known or with-

out attempting to obtain the necessary passes then re-

([uired operators of transportation equipment, who were

members of respondent union, to leave the premises and

to refrain from entering thereon. This action resulted

in an inability or refusal to handle incoming or outgoing

Montgomery Ward merchandise. The situation existed

approximately forty-eight hours. No settlement was

made, but thereafter it is apparent that respondent union

officials allowed or permitted drivers to resume their

regular activities insofar as they affected Montgomery

Ward and Company.

There was no strike and no dispute between the Mont-

gomery Ward Company and any of its employees.
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A charge was filed by Montgomery Ward & Company

against the respondent based upon the above facts, which

in substance charged that the acts of the respondent, as

described above, constituted an unfair labor practice in

violation of Section 8(b) (4) (A) of the Act. The

charge was followed by the usual procedure and later

this proceeding was instituted.

It will serve no purpose to discuss again the legal issues

and conclusions which are set forth in the proceeding

No. 3084, above referred to. Neither is it necessary to

refer to the evidence offered herein. It is sufficient to

state that the evidence indicated a course of conduct on

the part of respondent's agents which appears to be with-

out justification either in law or in fact. [87]

The conclusion is readily reached that the petitioner is

entitled to the relief requested in the petition, but inas-

much as a restraining order is granted to the petitioner

against the same respondent in case No. 3084, above

referred to, it would seem unnecessary that an additional

injunction should issue, and this proceeding is retained

upon the docket of this Court pending the final determina-

tion of the issues involved herein by The National Labor

Relations Board. Petitioner, however, upon showing the

necessity for the issuance of an injunction herein may

apply to this Court for such relief upon twenty-foiiir

hours' notice.

Stephen W. Brennan

U. S. D. J.

[Endorsed] : Filed Jan. 19, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [88]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

REPLY TO PETITIONER'S SUPPLEMENTARY
MEMORANDUM OF POINTS AND AU-
THORITIES [89]

With the readily granted consent of the undersigned,

counsel for petitioner has cited to your Honor, after

submission of the above-entitled matter on December 30,

1947, two recent decisions by the United States District

Court for the Northern District of New York, con-

struing Section 10(j), 10(1), and 8(b) (4)(A), (B)

and (C) of the National Labor Relations Act, as

amended June 23, 1947. (Douds v. Local 294, Int'l.

Brotherhood of Teamsters, 13 CCH Labor Cases, Pgh.

64,214 and Pgh. 64,215, 21 LRRM 2150 and 21 LRRM
2154, decided January 2, 1948.)

While in general terms District Judge Brennan dis-

cusses the issue of whether traditional equity discretion

remains vested in the court under the statutory proceed-

ings called for by Sections 10(j) and 10(1) of the

amended Act, this opinion does not bear out petitioner's

contention as to the extent of the showing required of

the Board's agent herein. (The constitutional questions

are not even considered.)

In the "Conway's Express" case (No. 3084). and pre-

sumably also in the ''Montgomery Ward" case (No.

3083)—

*'a considerable amount of oral evidence was offered

by the plaintiff for the purpose of showing the acti-

vities of the respondent which were alleged to

constitute unfair labor practices. The respondent

offered no evidence in contradiction to the evidence
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of plaintiff's witnesses, and for all practical purposes

the decision must be based upon the evidence of

the petitioner, and upon the applicable law."

(Decision, Case No. 3084, p. 2; 13 CCH Labor

Cases page 74,424; 21 LRRM at 2151.)

The theory advanced by counsel for petitioner in the

present case is that the verified petition of the Board's

agent. Regional Director LeBaron, reciting that he ''has

reason to believe and believes that respondents have

engaged in and are engaging in conduct in violation of

Section 8(b) subsection (4) (A) of the Act" (Petition

p. 3) is per se an adequate showing for injunctive relief

upon an order to show cause pursuant to Section 10(1)

of the amended Act. This contention stands or falls on

the accuracy of Petitioner's claim that under Section

10(1) ''injunctive relief should be granted if the Court

finds that the officer or regional attorney had reasonable

cause to believe that a violation has occurred." (Peti-

tioner's Memorandum, p. 11, lines 8-10) [90]

The "Conway's Express" case (No. 3084) cited by

petitioner to support this theory, actually holds to the

contrary, as is demonstrated by this language from the

decision

:

"The requirement is the same under either 10(j) or

10(1). The provision of the latter subjection, viz

'If after such investigation, the officer or regional

attorney to whom the matter may be referred, has

reasonable cause to believe such charge is true and
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that a complaint should issue, he shall, on behalf

of the Board, petition any district court of the

United States
—

' is the measure of the requirements

which must exist before such officer is required to

petition this Court for the authorized relief. It is

not the measure of the proof required before this

Court may grant such relief."

(Decision, Case No. 3084, p. 8; 13 CHH Labor

Cases, page 72,426; 21 LRRM at 2154, Em-
phasis supplied.)

According to District Judge Brennan, "the require-

ments of a prima facie case are met when the factual

jurisdictional requirements are shown and credible evi-

dence is presented which, if uncontradicted, would war-

rant the granting of the requested relief." (Ibid.)

In any event, we believe that these nisi prius decisions

are only entitled to slight persuasive authority, if any,

in passing upon the statute here under attack. (See

Respondents' Supplementary Memorandum, p. 8-9, dis-

cussing Douds V. Wine Workers' Union (D. Ct., S. D.

N. Y., decided December 11, 1947) 13 CCH Labor

Cases, Pgh. 64,186; 21 LRRM 2120, and Styles v. Local

74, Carpenters & Joiners (D. Ct., E. D. Tenn., decided

October 28, 1947), 13 CCH Labor Cases, Pgh. 64,093:

21 LRRM 2010). They do not relate to the constitu-

tional issues at all.

The difficulty of giving weight to such lower court

decisions construing the amended National Labor Rela-

tions Act is emphasized by the statutory scheme as out-
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lined by counsel for petitioner, which permits the United

States District Courts, the Board's Trial Examiner, the

National Labor Relations Board itself, and the United

States Circuit Court of Appeals to apply the law to the

same facts, at various stages of the ^'unfair labor prac-

tice" proceedings under Section 10.

Thus, following the decision in Styles v. Local 74,

Carpenters & Joiners, supra, denying injunctive relief

under Section 8(b) (4) (A) as incorporated in [91] Sec-

tion (101), Trial Examiner J. J. Fitzpatrick recom-

mended that a cease and desist order be issued against

Local 74 for violation of that identical portion of the

Act, in Matter of Watson's Specialty Store and Local

74, Carpenters & Joiners. The trial examiner's recom-

mendation (which under Section 10(c) automatically

becomes the order of the Board if no appeal is taken

therefrom within 20 days) states in part:

"With all due deference to the findings of Judge

Parr, it is clear that the facts as presented to him

in the injunctive hearing are not identical with the

evidence as testified to by witnesses in the present

proceeding. ... In this type of case the tribunal

exclusively authorized to try the case on the merits

is the National Labor Relations Board."

(21 L. R. R. 99 at 100; Report No. 380, CCH
Labor Law Reports p. 6.)

We submit that the appellate courts will have to pass

upon the constitutionality of the Act before any con-

clusive authority will exist regarding the same, and that

the Wine Workers' Carpenters & Joiners', and Team-

sters' cases are barely persuasive at most. They are

really no more helpful to the disposition of the instant
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case than the findinj^^ of Trial Examiner Fitzpatrick in

Watson's case that peaceful picketing is privileged un,der

Section 8(c) of the Act, and therefore may not con-

stitute or serve as evidence of an unfair labor practice

under Section 8(b) (1)(A).

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT W. GILBERT
CLARENCE E. TODD
ALLAN L. SAPIRO

Attorneys for Respondent Local 388

By Robert W. Gilbert

Dated: January 19, 1948. [92]

[Affidavit of Service by Mail.]

[Endorsed]: Filed Jan. 19, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [93]

[Title of District Court and Cause]

MEMORANDUM OF RULING AND ORDER
GRANTING INJUNCTION UNDER SECTION
10(1) OF THE NATIONAL LABOR RELA-
TIONS ACT, AS AMENDED

Sealright Pacific Ltd., manufacturers of paper milk

bottle caps and closures and sanitary food containers

(hereinafter called Sealright), under the authority of

Section 10(b) of the Labor-Management Relations Act,

1947 (hereinafter referred to as the Act), filed with the

National Labor Relations Board (hereinafter called the

Board), a charge that Printing Specialties and Paper

Converters Union, Local 388, A. F. L. (hereinafter called
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the Union), has engaged in "unfair labor practices"

within the meaning of Section 8(b), subsection 4(A) of

the Act, affecting commerce within the terms of Section

2(6) and (7) of the Act.

The charge was duly referred to the Regional Director

of the Board for investigation.

Howard F. LeBaron, the accredited and designated

[94] officer of the Board, has officially investigated such

charge and as the result of his preliminary investigation

he avers in a petition pending before the court his belief

in the verity of the charge preferred by Sealright and he

asseverates that a complaint based upon such charge

should issue against the Union and its secretary-

treasurer.

In line with the expressed Congressional purpose and

policy of the amendment to the National Labor Relations

Act as legislatively declared in Section 1(b) of the Act

and conformable to the rewritten Findings stated in the

Act (Title 29, Section 151, U. S. C. A.), and as required

by the terms of Section 10(1) thereof, the accredited

Regional Director, upon his supplementary factual ascer-

tainment on behalf of the Board, petitions this court for

appropriate injunctive relief against the Union and its

above named officer pending final adjudication of the

charge of Sealright against the Union.

In his verified petition the investigating Regional

Director specifies as the basis and reason for his belief

that injunctive process of this court is necessary as an

aid and cooperative instrumentality to the Board during

its consideration, and until its decision in the matter of

Sealright's charge of unfair labor practices by the Union,



vs. Howard P. LeBaron, etc. 103

the following factual situation concomitant to the dispute

between Sealright and the Union:

"(a) Sealright Pacific Ltd. is a corporation organized

under and existing by virtue of the laws of the

State of California. Its principal office and place

of business is located at 1577 Rio Vista Avenue,

Los Angeles, California, where it is engaged in

the manufacture, sale and distribution of paper

food containers and milk bottle caps. In the

course and conduct of its business, it purchases

and causes to be transported to its Los Angeles

plant from points outside the [95] State of Cali-

fornia, paper, steel, shipping cases, etc., all valued

at an excess of $1,000,000.00 annually. Its fin-

ished products comprising milk bottle caps, milk

bottle closures and food containers, are valued at

an excess of $1,000,000.00 annually and more

than 50 per cent of such products are shipped

outside the State of California.

(b) Los Angeles Seattle Motor Express, Inc. (here-

inafter called L. A. Seattle), 1147 Staunton Ave-

nue, Los Angeles, is a common carrier operating

motor trucks between Los Angeles and points

in the Pacific Northwest. It has carried Seal-

right's products for a number of years.

(c) On November 13, 1947. respondent Walter J.

Turner (vice-president) of Local 388. advised

L. A. Seattle that if it continued to handle Seal-

right's products, L. A. Seattle would be picketed

by Local 388.

(d) On about November 14, 1947. representatives of

Local 388 followed two trucks loaded with Seal-
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right's products to the L. A. Seattle terminal

where by forming a picket line around the two

trucks containing the products of Sealright and

telling the employees that the trucks contained

*'hot cargo" and not to "handle it," induced and

encouraged the employees of L. A. Seattle, by

orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits,

not to transport or handle the goods of Sealright.

After November 14, 1947, as a result of the

above conduct of Local 388 the employees of

L. A. Seattle refused to transport or handle the

goods of Sealright. Local 388 engaged in the

foregoing conduct to force or require L. A.

Seattle to cease handling or transporting the

products of Sealright.

(e) West Coast Terminals Co. (hereinafter called

West Coast), is a public wharfinger with its

docks and wharves located on Pier A, Berths 2

and 3, Terminal Island, Long Beach (2), Cali-

fornia. On or prior to November 17, 1947, West

Coast received from Panama Pacific Lines Ves-

sel S. S. Green Bay Victory, a consignment of

rolls of paper destined for Sealright's Los

Angeles plant.

(f) On November 17, 1947, while employees of

West Coast were engaged in loading the rolls

of paper onto freight cars consigned to Seal-

right in Los Angeles, a group of pickets repre-

senting Local 388 [96] appeared at the docks

of West Coast and, by forming a picket line

around the freight cars being loaded with the

rolls of paper for Sealright, induced and

encouraged the employees of West Coast, by
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orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits,

not to handle or work on the paper consigned to

Sealright. Since November 17, 1947, as a result

of the above conduct of Local 388 and the con-

tinued picketing by Local 388 of the docks of

West Coast, the employees of West Coast have

refused to handle or work on the goods con-

signed to Sealright. Local 388 engaged in the

foregoing conduct in order to force or require'

West Coast to cease handling or transporting

the products of Sealright."

Upon motion of George H. O'Brien, Esq., one of the

accredited attorneys of the Board, an order to show

cause has been issued directed to the Union and to Mr.

Walter J. Turner, an officer thereof, requiring the show-

ing of cause herein by them why pending final adjudica-

tion by the Board with respect to the matter of the

accused unfair labor practices they should not be en-

joined and restrained from continuing such activities.

Both respondents duly appeared on the return day of

the order to show cause and through their attorneys,

Messrs. Gilbert, Todd and Sapiro, they interposed a

motion to dismiss the Board's petition for injunction

upon jurisdictional grounds that the invoked sections

8(b), (4), (A) and 10(1) are violative of Amendments
I, V and XIII of the Constitution of the United States.

In support of the motion the respondents filed simul-

taneously therewith an affidavit of Mr. Turner, recount-

ing various steps that have occurred in a labor dispute

relating to wage rates and holiday pay between the Union

as the collective bargaining agency of the production

employees of the Los Angeles plant of Sealright and
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such corporation which he avers culminated in a strike

of [97] 67 of the approximately 70 production workers

in such local plant of Sealright on November 3, 1947.

The only variance between the factual situation ascer-

tained by the Regional Director of the Board and speci-

fied in his verified petition and that attested in the affi-

davit of Mr. Turner in his statement that the picketing

at each of the described locales was ^'peaceful."

While, in conformity to the rule enunciated by the

Supreme Court in Hecht Co. v. Bowles, Admr., 321 U. S.

327, 329, we have given appropriate consideration to

all of the evidential material before the court, we have

concluded that under the unequivocal procedural man-

dates incorporated in the Act, a finding should be made,

and is accordingly made, in this proceeding of the exist-

ence of "reasonable cause" for the Regional Director's

belief that an ''unfair labor practice" as defined in

Section 8(b), (4), (A), has occurred.

Therefore it seems clear that the specific injunctive

processes expressly conferred upon this court by Section

10(1) of the Act become operable upon the credible peti-

tion of the administrative agency as provided in the Act,

unless some constitutional limitation supervenes to fore-

stall the restrictive restraint which the Act provides for

the situation before us in this matter. Switchmen's Union

V. National Mediation Board, 320 U. S. 297. Endicott

Johnson Corp. v. Perkins, 317 U. S. 501, 510; United

States V. San Francisco, 310 U. S. 16, at pages 30, 31;

Securities & Exchange Comm. v. Torr et al. (C. C. A.

2), 87 F. 2d. 446; Otis & Co. v. Securities & Exchange

Comm. (C. C. A. 6), 106 F. 2d, 579, at page 583; Wall-

ing, Admr. v. T. Buettner & Co. (C. C. A. 7), 133 F.
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2d. 306; Henderson, Admr., etc. v. Burd et al., 133 F. 2d.

515, 517; Bowles v. Swift & Co., [98] 56 F. Supp. 679;

Porter, Admr. v. Elliott, 5 F. R. D. 223, at page 225;

Douds, Regional Director, N. L. R. B. v. Local 294

International Brotherhood of Teamsters, etc., A. F. L.

(D. C, N. D. N. Y.), decided December 31, 1947.

Before turning to the very delicate constitutional issue

that is involved under the established concrete factual

situation before the court, attention should be given to

the significant and broad change in legislative policy

that is definitely declared and clearly expressed by Con-

gress relative to the use of injunctive processes avail-

able in the District Court to ameliorate the public inter-

ests in the federal area of labor disputes. Not only is

it stated in Subsection (h) of Section 10 of the Act

that the equitable jurisdiction of federal courts is no

longer to be circumscribed by limitations specified in the

Act approved March 23, 1932, 29 U. S. C. A., Section

101, et seq. (Norris-LaGuardia Act), but Subsection (1)

of Section 10 further amplifies the National policy of

utilizing appropriate judicial injunctive methods in the

specific activities that are made unlawful in Section 8(b),

(4), (A), of the Act "notwithstanding any other pro-

vision of law."

It is evident that unless the decisions of the United

States Supreme Court indisputably show the unconstitu-

tionality of Section 8(b), (4), (A) of the Act as incor-

porated in the new restraint processes now applicable

in labor disputes pursuant to the limitations in Section

10(1) of Labor management Relations Act, 1947, this

court should grant an appropriate injunction auxiliary to

the proceedings in the Board and until the labor dispute
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pending before the Board is finally adjudicated by the

Board.

The substantive provisions of the Act that are here

challenged as constitutionally assailable read thus: [99]

"It shall be unfair labor practice for a labor

organization or its agents

—

to engage in, or to induce or encourage the em-

ployees of any employer to engage in, a strike or

a concerted refusal in the course of their employment

to use, manufacture, process, transport, or other-

wise handle or work on any goods, articles, mate-

rials, or commodities or to perform any services,

where an object thereof is: (A) forcing or requir-

ing any employer or self-employed person to join

any labor or employer organization or any employer

or other person to cease using, selling, handling,

transporting, or otherwise dealing in the products

of any other producer, processor, or manufacturer,

or to cease doing business with any other person."

We find no support whatever, under the record before

us or within the provisions of the Act that are involved

in this matter, for a finding or conclusion that the Thir-

teenth Amendment has been transgressed.

We are not here considering a criminal statute or

parts of an act which relate to outlawed activities char-

acterized as crimes.

The measure involved pertains solely to activities clas-

sified in the law as torts, or in other words, wrongs of a

civil nature, and the inherent and statutory rights of
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employees, as such are preserved by saving provisions

in the Act, which read thus:

''Nothing- in this Act shall be construed to require

an individual employee to render labor or service

without his consent nor shall anything in this Act

be construed to make the quitting of his labor by an

individual employee an illegal act; nor shall any

court issue any process to compel the performance

by an individual employee of such labor or service,

without his consent; nor shall the quitting of labor

by an employee or employees in good faith because

of abnormally dangerous conditions for work at the

place of employment of such employee or employees

be deemed a strike under this Act."

The provisions of the Act under scrutiny are products

of legislation that clearly under the Constitution is within

the power of Congress to enact. Labor Board v. Jones

& Laughlin Steel Corp., 301 U. S. 1, 46. They are regu-

latory [100] statutes directed at the control of acts and

practices of labor organizations and their agents in the

field of interstate commerce that to Congress seemed

contrary to the public interest and inimical to general

welfare.

The words employed by the legislative body to reach

the evil contemplated are clear and precise. It is only

coercive and compulsive conduct that is proscribed, and

even measured by the stricter rule which applies to crim-

inal statutes Section 8(b), (4), (A), is not unconstitu-

tionally vague or indefinite. See United States v. Petrillo.

332 U. S. 1.
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But it is contended that the provisions of the Act

upon which the Regional Director, on behalf of the

Board, seeks injunctive relief from this court infringe

the freedom of speech and assembly guaranteed to all

by the due process clause of the Fifth Amendment and

by the First Amendment to the Constitution. We think

such contention untenable in the situation before us.

It will of course be admitted that the statute, doubt-

less designated by Congress to effect a practical and

beneficial purpose in the federal regulation of industrial

controversies, should be upheld if it can be construed

in harmony with the fundamental law, and as stated by

the Supreme Court in Brown v. Walker, 161 U. S. 591

at page 596:

"Instead of seeking for excuses for holding acts of

the legislative power to be void by reason of their

conflict with the Constitution, or with certain sup-

posed fundamental principles of civil liberty, the

effort should be to reconcile them if possible, and

not to hold the law invalid unless, as was observed

by Mr. Chief Justice Marshall, in Fletcher v. Peck,

6 Cranch 87, 128, 'the opposition between the Con-

stitution and the law be such that the judge feels a

clear and strong conviction of their incompatibility

with each other.'
"

We think it indisputable that if the factual [101]

situation disclosed by the Regional Director is con-

sidered realistically it will be manifest that an object of

the picket line at "L. A. Seattle Terminal" and at the

harbor in Long Beach, California, was coercion, and the

type of coercion that is attended with serious repercus-

sions and dire consequences upon the interests of the
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two stranp^ers to the labor dispute between Sealrig-ht and

the Union. Cf. Bakery Drivers Local v. Wohl, 315

U. S. 769.

The picketinp^ activities, which prompted the repre-

sentatives of the Board to petition the court for injunctive

relief, can in truth hardly be said to have been motivated

by ''dissemination of information concerning the facts

of a labor dispute." A candid and forthright appraisal

of the picketing activities in question classifies them as a

form of forcible technique that has been held to be sub-

ject to restrictive regulation by the State in the public

interest on any reasonable basis. Carpenters Union v.

Ritter's Cafe, 315 U. S. 722. And in the exclusive fed-

eral field of protecting the interests of the public in

interstate commerce against forcible obstruction to the

free flow of such commerce. Congress has, we think,

in Section 8(b), (4), (A), kept within the permissive

restrictions on free speech and assembly that have been

approved by the Supreme Court in comparable le^^risla-

tion. See Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S. 88 at 105.

The observation of Mr. Justice Douglas in the con-

curring opinion in Bakery Drivers Local v. Wohl, supra,

delineates the evils of "the secondary boycott" which has

met disapproval by the Supreme Court in Duplex Print-

ing Press Co. v. Deering, 254 U. S. 443. The learned

Justice in the cited recent labor case aptly stated: [102]

"Picketing by an organized group is more than

free speech, since it involves patrol of a particular

locality and since the very presence of a picket, line

may induce action of one kind or another, quite

irrespective of the nature of the ideas which are

being disseminated. Hence those aspects of picket-

ing make it the subject of restrictive regulation."



112 Printing Specialties and Paper Converters, etc.

We find that the provisions of the Labor Management

Relations Act, 1947, here under attack are vaHd Congres-

sional legislation and are not unconstitutional.

The respondents' motion to dismiss the petition for

temporary injunction is denied in toto.

Accordingly, the attorneys for the Board will within

two days from notice hereof serve and present a pro-

posed temporary injunction against respondents in the

terms of Section 8(b), (4), (A) of the Act and pur-

suant to Section 10(1) of the Act, without costs.

Dated February 3, 1948.

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 3, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [103]

[Minutes: Friday, February 6, 1948]

Present: The Honorable Paul J. McCormick, District

Judge.

George H. O'Brien, Esq., one of the attorneys for the

petitioner herein, having this day, pursuant to Rule 50 F.

R. C. P., and in accordance with the directions of the court

in its memorandum of ruling, etc., filed herein February

3, 1948, presented proposed findings of fact, conclusions

of law and order, and inspection of such instrument in-

dicates service of same upon Robert W. Gilbert, Esq.,

Allen L. Sapiro, Esq., and Clarence E. Todd, Esq., as of

date February 5, 1948.

Now, Therefore, said proposed findings of fact, con-

clusions of law and order being this day lodged with the
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clerk, pursuant to local rule 7(a) of this court, the judge

withholds and postpones consideration and determination

of appropriate findings of fact, conclusions of law and

injunctive order herein, as specified in said local rule

7(a) and attorneys for the respective parties hereto will

govern themselves accordingly. [104]

[Title of District Court and Cause]

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND ORDER

This cause came on to be heard upon the verified

petition of Howard F. LeBaron, Regional Director of

the 21st Region of the National Labor Relations Board,

on behalf of said Board, for a temporary injunction,

pending final adjudication by the Board of the matters

involved, and upon issuance of an order to show cause.

The Court has fully considered the verified petition and

the motion to dismiss the petition and affidavit of re-

spondent Walter J. Turner, attached thereto. Upon the

entire records, briefs, and arguments of counsel, the

Court lists the following: [105]

FINDINGS OF FACT

First: Petitioner is Regional Director of the 21st

Region of the National Labor Relations Board (herein

called the Board).

Second: Respondent Printing Specialties and Paper

Converters Union, Local 388, AFL (hereinafter called

Local 388) is a labor organization having its principal

office within this judicial court, and engaged in promoting

and protecting the interests of its employee members

within this judicial district.
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Third: Respondent Walter J. Turner is and has been

at all times herein material, an agent of Local 388 and

is engaged in this judicial district in promoting or pro-

tecting the interests of employee members of respondent

Local 388.

Fourth: On or about November 18, 1947, Sealright

Pacific, Ltd. (hereinafter called Sealright), pursuant to

the provsions of Section 10(b) of the National Labor

Relations Act, as amended (June 23, 1947, Public Law

101, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., Chap. 120, herein called the

Act), filed the Charge alleging that respondents have

engaged in and are engaging in unfair labor practices

within the meaning of Section 8(b), subsection (4) (A)

of the Act and affecting commerce within the meaning of

Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

Fifth: Said Charge was thereafter duly referred to

petitioner for investigation. Petitioner has investigated

said Charge.

Sixth: There is reasonable cause to believe that:

(a) Sealright Pacific Ltd. is a corporation organized

under and existing by virtue of the laws of the

State of California. Its principal office and place

of business is located at 1577 Rio Vista Avenue,

Los Angeles, California, where it is engaged in

the manufacture, sale and distribution of paper

food containers and milk bottle caps. In the

course and conduct of its business, it purchases

and causes to be transported to its Los Angeles

plant from points outside the State of California,

paper, steel, shipping cases, etc., all valued at

an excess of $1,000,000.00 annually. Its finished

products comprising milk bottle caps, milk bottle
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closures and food containers, are valued at an

excess of $1,000,000.00 annually and more than

50 per cent of such products are shipped outside

the State of [106] California.

(b) Los Angeles Seattle Motor Express, Inc. (here-

inafter called L. A. Seattle), 1147 Staunton

Avenue, Los Angeles, is a common carrier oper-

ating motor trucks between Los Angeles and

points in the Pacific Northwest. It has carried

Sealright's products for a number of years.

(c) On November 13, 1947, respondent Walter J.

Turner (vice-president) of Local 388, advised

L. A. Seattle that if it continued to handle Seal-

right's products, L. A. Seattle would be picketed

by Local 388.

(d) On about November 14, 1947, representatives

of Local 388 followed two trucks loaded with

Sealright's products to the L. A. Seattle terminal

where by forming a picket line around the two

trucks containing the products of Sealright and

telling the employees that the trucks contained

"hot cargo" and not to "handle it," induced and

encouraged the employees of L. A. Seattle, by

orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits,

not to transport or handle the goods of Sealright.

After November 14, 1947, as a result of the

above conduct of Local 388 the employees of

L. A. Seattle refused to transport or handle the

goods of Sealright. Local 388 engaged in the

foregoing conduct to force or require L. A.

Seattle to cease handling or transporting the

products of Sealright.
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(e) West Coast Terminals Co. (hereinafter called

West Coast), is a public wharfinger with its

docks and wharves located on Pier A, Berths 2

and 3, Terminal Island, Long Beach (2), Cali-

fornia. On or prior to November 17, 1947, West

Coast received from Panama Pacific Lines Ves-

sel S. S. Green Bay Victory, a consignment of

rolls of paper destined for Sealright's Los

Angeles plant.

(f) On November 17, 1947, while employees of West

Coast were engaged in loading the rolls of paper

onto freight cars consigned to Sealright in Los

Angeles, a group of pickets representing Local

388 appeared at the docks of West Coast and,

by forming a picket line around the freight cars

being loaded with the rolls of paper for Seal-

right, induced and encouraged the employees of

West Coast, by orders, force, threats, or prom-

ises of benefits, not to handle or work on the

paper consigned to Sealright. Since November

17, 1947, as a result of the [107] above conduct

of Local 388 and the continued picketing by

Local 388 of the docks of West Coast, the em-

ployees of West Coast have refused to handle

or work on the goods consigned to Sealright.

Local 388 engaged in the foregoing conduct in

order to force or require West Coast to cease

handling or transporting the products of Seal-

right.

Seventh: Unless restrained from engaging in the

aforementioned acts and conduct, there is imminent like-

lihood that respondents will continue to engage in such

acts and conduct.
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Eighth: The acts and conduct of respondents above

set forth, occurring in connection with the operation of

Sealright, described above, have a close, intimate, and

substantial relation to trade, traffic, and commerce among

the several states and tend to lead and have led to labor

disputes burdening and obstructing commerce and the

free flow of commerce.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
First: Sealright is engaged in commerce within the

meaning of Section 2, subsections (6) and (7) of the

Act.

Second: Respondent Printing Specialties and Paper

Converters Union, Local 388, AFL, is a labor organiza-

tion within the meaning of Section 2, subsection (5) of

the Act.

Third: Respondent Walter J. Turner is and has been

at all times herein, an agent of Local 388 within the

meaning of Section 8(b) of the Act.

Fourth: This Court has jurisdiction of the proceedings

and of respondents, and can grant injunctive relief under

Section 10(1) of the Act.

Fifth: Said jurisdiction of the Court is not limited

by the Norris-LaGuardia Act. (U. S. C, Supp. VH,

Title 29, Sect. 101-15.)

Sixth: Section 8(b), subsection (4) (A) of the Act

is not repugnant to, or in controversion of, the guaran-

tee of freedom of speech, the guarantee of liberty, and

the prohibition of involuntary servitude contained in the
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First, Fifth, and Thirteenth Amendments, respectively,

of the Constitution of the United States.

Seventh: There is reasonable cause to believe that

respondents have engaged in unfair labor practices with-

in the meaning of Section 8(b), subsec- [108] tion

(4) (A) of the Act, obstructing commerce within the

meaning of Section 2, subsections (6) and (7) of the

Act.

Eighth: It is appropriate, just, and proper that, pend-

ing final adjudication by the Board of said matter, re-

spondents and each of them, their agents, servants,

employees, attorneys, and all persons acting in active

concert or participation with them, be enjoined and re-

strained from the commission or continuance of the

acts and conduct set forth in the Findings of Fact above,

or like or related acts or conduct whose commission in

the future is likely or may be fairly anticipated, from

respondents' acts and conduct in the past.

It is, therefore, by this Court:

Ordered that Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, Local 388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner

and each of them and their agents, servants, employees,

and attorneys and all persons in active concert or partici-

pation with them be and hereby are restrained and en-

joined, pending final adjudication by the Board of this

matter, from:

Engaging in, or inducing or encouraging, the em-

ployees of any employer to engage in, a strike or

a concerted refusal in the course of their employment
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to use, manufacture, process, transport, or otherwise

handle or work on any goods articles, materials, or

commodities, or to perform any services, where an

object thereof is forcing or requiring any employer

or other person to cease using, selling, handling,

transporting, or otherwise dealing in the products

of, or to cease doing business with, Sealright Pacific,

Ltd.

It Is Further Ordered that respondents' Motion to

Dismiss the Petition for a Temporary Injunction herein

be and hereby is dismissed in toto.

Dated at Los Angeles, California, this 6th day of Feb-

ruary, 1948.

United States District Judge

Presented by: George H. O'Brien, Attorney for Peti-

tioner.

Approved as to form this 5th day of February, 1948.

, Attorneys for Respondents. [109]

[Affidavit of Service by Mail.]

[Endorsed] : Lodged Feb. 6, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [110]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

RESPONDENTS' MEMORANDUM IN OPPOSI-

TION TO PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT
AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND PRE-

LIMINARY INJUNCTION [HI]

Come now Printing Specialties and Paper Converters

Union, Local 388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner, respond-

ents herein, and aver that petitioner's Proposed Findings

of Fact, and Conclusions of Law And Proposed Order

do not conform to Rule 65(d) of the Rules of Civil Pro-

cedure for the District Courts of the United States,

which provides:

"Every order granting an injunction and every

restraining order shall set forth the reasons for its

issuance; shall be specific in terms; shall describe

in reasonable detail, and not by reference to the com-

plaint or other document, the act or acts sought to

be restrained; and is binding only upon the parties

to the action, their officers, agents, servants, em-

ployees, and attorneys, and upon those persons in

active concert or participation with them who re-

ceive actual notice of the order by personal service

or otherwise."

Respondents hereby object to the following paragraphs

in said proposed Order:

I.

Respondents object to petitioner's description of the

order as a "temporary injunction" (p. 1, line 26), and

hereby request that one of the following be substituted

for the same: "interlocutory injunction," "preliminary

injunction" or "injunction." It is to be noted that the

Rules of Civil Procedure do not refer to "temporary
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injunctions," and do discuss "injunctions" (Rule 65),

"interlocutory injunctions" (Rule 52) and "preliminary

injunctions" (Rule 65). Perhaps petitioner may have

confused this order with a Temporary Restraining Order

(Rule 65(b-e)), from which no appeal may be had.

II.

OBJECTIONS TO PETITIONER'S PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT

It is obvious from the proposed Order that petitioner

has adopted almost in haec verba those allegations ap-

pearing in the Petition For An Injunction (pp. 2-5) as

the "Findings of Fact" in the present Order. The defects

in such proposed Findings of Fact, including the omis-

sion of any and all uncontroverted facts adduced by

respondents become patent upon comparison of said pro-

posed [112] Findings with the facts as conceded in

petitioner's Memorandum of Points and Authorities In

Support Of Petition For Injunction (pp. 9-10) and the

Affidavit of Walter J. Turner In Support Of Motion To

Dismiss (pp. 1-6).

The Sixth Finding of Fact encompasses the basic

facts in the labor dispute in question. Since the order

granting the preliminary injunction is based upon con-

duct flowing from this dispute, respondents contend that

the statement must show accurately all facts relating

thereto presented by both parties, and must not contain

legal conclusions. This Honorable Court has pointed

out the variance between the factual conclusions of the

Regional Director of the Board and those incontroverted

facts attested in the affidavit of Mr. Turner (Mem. Op.

p. 5, lines 2)-7), and thus it can be seen that the facts

presented by both sides must be so included.
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1. Sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) of the Sixth Finding

of Fact are exact copies of the allegations set forth in

Section 7 of the Petition For An Injunction (p. 3, parags.

(a) and (b).

2. Sub-paragraph (c) of the Sixth Finding is likewise

an exact duplication of Section 7(c) of the Petition For

An Injunction, This sub-paragraph illustrates the in-

accuracies which occur from what might be termed a

"short-cut" method of using the statements in the peti-

tioner's initial pleading, rather than trying to present

a comprehensive statement of fact which is not based

solely on the complaint.

In this subsection, Walter J. Turner is described as

the "vice-president" of Local 388, which follows a similar

description set forth in the original petition (p. 3, Sec-

tion 7(c)). In his subsequent affidavit, Mr. Turner

alleged that he is and was the secretary-treasurer of the

union. That this is the true office held by Mr. Turner is

best evidenced by the statement in petitioner's Memor-

andum of Points and Authorities In Support Of Petition

For Injunction, wherein it is correctly alleged that Mr.

Turner was the secretary-treasurer of Local 388 (Memo,

of Pts. & Auths., p. 9, line 19).

However a more serious error is found in petitioner's

erreonous allegation that Turner "advised L. A. -Seattle

that if it continued to handle Sealright's products, L. A.

Seattle would be picketed by Local 388." [113]

This allegation is specifically refuted by the Affidavit

of Walter Turner (p. 4, etc.), wherein it is alleged that

"At no time did affiant advise Los Angeles-Seattle Motor

Express, Inc. that Local 388 would picket all or any of

the firm's operations as such, if it continued to handle
|

Sealright products, nor did affiant in any way indicate
|
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or imply that Local 388 would picket any other products

being handled or transported by said firm for companies

other than Sealright Pacific, Ltd., under any circum-

stances whatsoever." In addition, petitioner himself, in

his Memorandum of Points and Authorities of January

2, 1948 (at p. 9) refutes his statement of December 17,

1947, made in the Petition for Injunction, for in the

January 2, 1948, pleading, it is stated that "On about

November 13, 1947, respondent Turner, Secretary-Treas-

urer of Local 388, advised the Los Angeles Seattle Motor

Express, Inc. (hereinafter called L. A. Seattle), a com-

mon carrier which has transported Sealright's products,

that if L. A. Seattle continued to handle Sealright's

products. Local 388 would picket Sealright products han-

dled by L. A. Seattle."

There can be no doubt that this quotation is in sharp

conflict with the petitioner's proposed Sixth (c) Finding

of Fact.

3. Sub-paragraph (d) of the Sixth Finding of Fact,

being a duplicate of Section 7(a) of the Petition,

attempts to incorporate conclusions of law into the facts.

A more factual description of the identical incident ap-

pears on Page 9 of petitioner's Memorandum of Points

And Authorities In Support Of Petition For Injunction,

wherein it is stated that . . . "On about November 14,

1947, representatives of Local 388 formed as a picket

line around two trucks loaded with Sealright's products

at the terminal of L. A. Seattle. Said representatives

informed the employees of L. A. Seattle that the trucks

contained hot cargo and told or requested them not to

handle it. After November 14, as a result of said picket-

ing by Local 388, the employees of L. A. Seattle refused

to transport or handle the goods of Sealright."
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The foregoing statement of the petitioner incorporates

far less legal conclusions than does the proposed Sub-

paragraph (d), which seeks to use legal phrases rather

than factual descriptions.

4. Sub-paragraph (e) of the Sixth Finding is a dupli-

cation of Paragraph [114] 7(e) of the Petition, with the

words "(hereinafter called West Coast)" added.

5. Sub-paragraph (f) similarly is exactly the same as

Paragraph 7(f) of the Petition (Petition, pp. 4-5), and

in the same pattern as the aforementioned sub-para-

graphs, seeks to incorporate the charges made on Decem-

ber 17, 1947, as the findings of fact. In the Memorandum

of Points and Authorities In Support Of The Petition,

the petitioner makes a more factual and less-legalistic

description of the incident which sub-paragraph (f)

attempts to describe. (See Memo, of Pts. and Auths. p.

9, lines 29-32.)

A more important error in this sub-paragraph is the

omission from the findings of fact that on or about

November 17, 1947, Local 388 peacefully picketed Seal-

right products being loaded onto three freight cars

located at a siding adjacent to the warehouse of the West

Coast Terminals Company, which products consisted of

rolls of paper consigned from a New York plant of

Sealright Pacific Ltd. to the Los Angeles branch plant of

the struck concern for use in continued manufacturing

operations. (See Respondents' Supplementary Memo, of

Pts. and Auths. p. 3, parag. (4) ; Affidavit of Walter J.

Turner, p. 5, lines 20-23.)

6. Respondents request this Honorable Court to strike

Paragraphs Seventh and Eighth of the Findings of Fact

on the grounds that no evidence or factual matter what-
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soever was presented by petitioner in support of either

of these paragraphs, and therefore the same are merely

petitioner's conclusions. (See Petition for Injunction,

p. 5, parag. 8.)

Additional Findings of Fact

As discussed above, the uncontroverted facts presented

by both parties which arc pertinent to the case herein,

should be included in the Findings of Fact. To accom-

plish this, respondents have prepared the Proposed Find-

ings of Fact which is attached to this Memorandum,

marked as "Exhibit A" and incorporated by reference

herein.

In summary, respondents make the above objections to

the Proposad Findings of Fact because the Petition for

Injunction is not in reality a verified petition in that

no proof was offered in any manner whatsoever that the

facts and incidents alleged by the petitioner did occur.

The only verification present is that of [115] the regional

director that he had reason to believe that certain acts

occurred, but proof of the facts upon which such reason

is based has not been offered by petitioner. No witnesses

and no affidavits were presented by petitioner, and there-

fore it is improper to make any finding of fact where

such has not been admitted or conceded by respondents.

III.

OBJECTIONS TO PETITIONER'S PROPOSED
CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

1. Respondents object to the language of the Fourth

Conclusion of Law. This Honorable Court has jurisdic-

tion of the proceedings and of respondents, and pursuant
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to the provisions of Section 10(1) of the Act, may grant

such injunctive reHef as it deems just and proper.

2. Respondents object to the Fifth Conclusion of Law

as being surplusage and having no part in the case herein,

and therefore request this Honorable Court to strike

the same from the Proposed Conclusions of Law.

3. Respondents object to the Seventh Conclusion of

Law as misstating the evidence submitted in the case

herein. As stated in, and according to, the affidavits and

pleadings on file in this case, the petitioner claims reason-

able cause to believe that respondents have engaged in

unfair labor practices within the meaning of Section

8(b), subsection (4) (A) of the Act.

4. Respondents object to the Eighth Conclusion of Law

in that petitioners violate Rule 65(d) of the Rules of

Civil Procedure, set forth hereinabove, in that the appli-

cation of the injunction is not limited to the respondents,

their officers, agents, servants, employees and attorneys,

and upon those persons in active concert or participation

with them who receive actual notice of the order by per-

sonal service or otherwise.

IV.

OBJECTIONS TO PETITIONER'S PROPOSED
INJUNCTION ORDER

Respondents object to petitioner's couching the pro-

posed Order in the language of the Act, which language

is so vague and indefinite that it will be impossible for

petitioner and respondents to know what conduct is

allowed and what conduct is limited by the Order. It is

the intention of the respondents to comply with the Order

of this Honorable Court pending the taking of an appeal
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[116] therefrom. However respondents cannot ascertain

from the proposed Order whether they would be re-

strained from picketing Sealright Pacific, Ltd., Los

Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc., or West Coast Ter-

minals Co., or any employer; from causing Sealright

Pacific, Ltd., to be placed on the "We Do Not Patro-

nize" list of the Los Angeles Central Labor Council and

of said list of the California State Federation of Labor;

whether respondents are prohibited thereby from pub-

licizing the facts of the labor dispute in issue by express-

ing any views, arguments or opinions, or disseminating

the same in written, printed, graphic or visual form.

Finally respondents object to said proposed Order on

the ground that it fails to comply with the requirement of

Rule 65 (d) of the Rules of Civil Procedure, set forth

hereinabove, in that it is not specific in terms; does not

describe in reasonable detail the act or acts sought to be

restrained; and violates Rules 65(d) in that it is not

limited to the parties herein, their ofificers, agents, ser-

vants, employees and attorneys, and those persons in

active concert or participation who receive actual notice

of the order by personal service or otherwise.

Respectfully submitted,

ROBERT W. GILBERT
CLARENCE E. TODD
ALLAN L. SAPIRO

Attorneys for Respondent Printing Specialties and

Pai)er Converters Union, Local #388

By Allan L. Sapiro [117]
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EXHIBIT "A"

PROPOSED FINDINGS OF FACT

First, Petitioner is Regional Director of the 21st

Region of the National Labor Relations Board (herein

referred to as the Board).

Second, Respondent Printing Specialties and Paper

Converters Union, Local 388, AFL (hereinafter referred

to as Local 388) is a labor organization having its prin-

cipal offices at 1543 West 11th Street, Los Angeles,

California, within this judicial district and is engaged

in promoting and protecting the interests of its employee

members within this judicial district.

Third, Respondent Walter J. Turner is and has been

at all times herein mentioned, an officer of Local 388,

to wit, the secretary-treasurer, and is engaged in this

judicial district in promoting and protecting the interests

of employee members of respondent Local 388.

Fourth, On or about November 18, 1947, Sealright

Pacific Ltd. (hereinafter called Sealright) pursuant to

the provisions of Section 10(b) of the National Labor

Relations Act, as amended June 23, 1947, Public Law

101, 80th Cong.. 1st Sess., Chap. 120, herein called the

Act), filed the Charge alleging that respondents have

engaged in and are engaging in unfair labor practices

within the meaning of Section 8(b), subsection (4) (A)

of the Act and afifecting commerce within the meaning

of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

Fifth, Said Charge was thereafter duly referred to

petitioner for investigation. Petitioner has investigated

said Charge.

Sixth, Local 388 is a party to numerous collective bar-

gaining agreements consumated with various employers
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engaged in the manufacture, distribution and sale of

various boxes and paper products in addition to food

containers and milk bottle caps. By the terms of said

agreements, contracted during the past twelve months,

1,500 members of the union are assured of a prevailing

scale of minimum wages ranging from $1.20 to $1.33^2

per hour for the lowest-skilled male job classifications

and from $1.10 to $1,223/^ per hour for the lowest-skilled

female job classifications, with progressively higher rates

for skilled job classifications set forth in said con-

tracts. [118]

Seventh, Sealright Pacific Ltd. is a corporation organ-

ized under and existing by virtue of the laws of the State

of California. Its principal ofhce and place of business

is located at 1577 Rio Vista Avenue, Los Angeles, Cali-

fornia, where it is engaged in the manufacture, sale and

distribution of paper food containers and milk bottle caps.

In the course and conduct of its business, it purchases

and causes to be transported to its Los Angeles plant

from points outside the State of California, paper, steel,

shipping cases, etc., all valued at an excess of $1,000,-

000.00 annually. Its finished products comprising milk

bottle caps, milk bottle closures and food containers, are

valued at an excess of $1,000,000.00 annually and more

than 50 per cent of such products are shipped outside the

State of California.

Eighth, Local 388 was recognized as the exclusive bar-

gaining agent of the production employees of the Los

Angeles plant of Sealright Pacific, Ltd. in September,

1941, by said corporation. Each year thereafter, from

1941 to 1946, collective bargaining agreements were

negotiated and executed between Sealright Pacific, Ltd.

and Local 388 through negotiations, and without any

strike or interruption of work.



130 Printing Specialties and Paper Converters, etc.

Ninth, On August 16, 1947, Local 388 gave notice to

Sealright Pacific, Ltd. pursuant to provisions in the

union contract, of proposed modifications in the agree-

ment, which terminated October 16, 1947. On September

15, 1947, in comphance with Section 8(d)(3) of the

National Labor Relations Act as amended on June 23,

1947, Local 388 notified the Federal Mediation and Con-

ciliation Service and the California State Department of

Industrial Relations that a dispute existed. Thereafter

between August 16, 1947, and October 29, 1947, eleven

(11) meetings were held between representatives of Local

388 and of Sealright Pacific, Ltd. for the purpose of '

negotiating a new contract, during the course of which

meetings mutual consent was arrived at between the two

parties as to all terms of a new collective bargaining

agreement, except wage rates and holiday pay. At the

final meeting on October 29, 1947, Sealright Pacific,

Ltd. offered to raise the hourly rate for the lowest-skilled

male job classification from $1.02^ to $1.10, whereas

the prevailing industry male base rate ranged from $1.20

to $1.33j^ per hour. The company also offered to raise

[119] the hourly rates for the lowest-skilled female job

classification from $.87^ to $.92^ per hour, although

the industry rate ranged from $1.10 to $1.22 per hour.

Tenth, Local 388 was unwilling to accept the wage

offers proposed by Sealright Pacific, Ltd. on October

29, 1947, because of standards contained in the various

existing contracts between Local 388 and the other

employers of the 1,500 members of the local union, and

therefore called a strike of its members against Sealright

Pacific, Ltd., on November 3, 1947.

Eleventh, At the time said strike was instituted, all'

of the seventy (70) production employees of the Los
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Ano^eles plant of Sealright Pacific, Ltd. were members

in good standinp^ of Local 388, and all but three of said

employees joined in said strike against their employer.

Twelfth, Los Angeles-vSeattle Motor Express, Inc.

(hereinafter referred to as L. A.-Seattle), at 1147 Staun-

ton Avenue, Los Angeles, California, is a common car-

rier operating motor trucks between Los Angeles and

points in the Pacific Northwest. It W2is carried Seal-

right's products for a number of years.

Thirteenth, On or about November 13, 1947, respond-

ent Walter J. Turner, Secretary-Treasurer of Local 388,

advised the L. A.-Seattle Motor Express Inc. that Local

388 was engaged in a strike due to a wage dispute with

Sealright Pacific, Ltd., and that Local 388 intended to

picket Sealright's products manufactured under strike

conditions and at substandard wages for the purpose of

publicizing the dispute and soliciting the assistance of

other workers asking that they decline to handle this

merchandise.

Fourteenth, On or about November 14, 1947, members

of Local 388 on strike at Sealright Pacific, Ltd., formed

a peaceful picket line around two trucks loaded with Seal-

right's products at the terminal of L. A.-Seattle. and

informed the trucking concern's employees that the Seal-

right Pacific, Ltd. products were manufactured under

strike conditions and for substandard wages, and re-

quested them not to handle said products. After Novem-
ber 14, 1947, the employees of L. A.-Seattle refused to

transport or handle the goods of Sealright Pacific, Ltd,

Fifteenth, West Coast Terminals Co. (hereinafter re-

ferred to as West Coast), is a public wharfinger with its

docks and wharves located on Pier A, [120] Berths 2
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and 3, Terminal Island, Long Beach, California. On or

prior to November 17, 1947, West Coast received from

the Panama Pacific Lines' vessel, S. S. Green Bay Vic-

tory, a consignment of rolls of paper from a New York

plant of Sealright Pacific, Ltd., destined for the Los

Angeles plant of Sealright.

Sixteenth, On November 17, 1947, and for several

days thereafter, members of Local 388 picketed Sealright

Pacific, Ltd. products being loaded onto three freight

cars by employees of West Coast Terminals Co., which

products were rolls of paper consigned from the New

York plant to the Los Angeles plant of Sealright Pacific,

Ltd., for use in manufacturing operations. The three

freight cars in question were located on a siding along-

side a West Coast warehouse, and the picket lines estab-

lished by Local 388 did not pass in front of the doors

of the warehouse. Whenever it was necessary for the

West Coast to move these three freight cars in order to

bring on or remove other freight cars from the siding,

the members of Local 388 did not interfere with said

moving. Subsequent to November 17, 1947, the em-

ployees of West Coast have refused to handle or work

on goods consigned to Sealright Pacific, Ltd. [121]

[Affidavit of Service by Mail.]

[Endorsed]: Filed. Feb. 10, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [122]

[Minutes: Wednesday, February 11, 1948]

Present: The Honorable Paul J. McCormick, Districti

Judge.

Petitioner having submitted pursuant to memorandumi

of ruling, proposed findings of fact, conclusions of law
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and order, and respondents having filed memorandum in

opposition thereto, the Court fixes and sets for hearing,

settlement and entry of findings of fact, conclusions of

law and injunctive relief in this action, Friday, February

13th, 1948, at 2:00 P. M. of said day, and the Clerk will

notify respective attorneys accordingly. [123]

[Minutes: Friday, February 13, 1948]

Present: The Honorable Paul J. McCormick, District

Judge.

For hearing, settlement and entry of Findings of Fact

and Conclusions of Law, and Injunctive Relief in this

action, pursuant to order entered Feb. 11, 1948; Geo. H.

O'Brien, Esq., appearing as counsel for petitioner; Robert

W. Gilbert and Allan L. Sapiro, Esqs., appearing as coun-

sel for respondents; and both sides answering ready, it is

ordered that counsel proceed.

Attorney Gilbert makes a statement; Attorney O'Brien

makes a statement; Attorney Gilbert makes a further

statement; the Court makes a statement; and counsel

makes further statements re proposed amendments to

documents before the Court. The Court orders that pro-

posed Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and injunc-

tive relief issue as requested and as amended at this hear-

ing to show ( 1 ) incorporation of the Court's ruling by

reference in Findings of Fact, and (2) addition to final

page of proposed injunction, certain words defining acts

])rohibited. Attorney for petitioner is directed to prepare,

serve, and present to the Court said documents in final

form by Feb. 16, 1948, 4 P. M. [124]
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In the District Court of the United States for the

Southern District of Cahfornia

Central Division

No. 7859-M.

HOWARD F. LeBARON, Regional Director of the 21st

Region of the NATIONAL LABOR RELATIONS
BOARD, on Behalf of the NATIONAL LABOR
RELATIONS BOARD,

Petitioner,

V.

PRINTING SPECIALTIES AND PAPER CON-
VERTERS UNION, LOCAL 388, AFL, and

WALTER J. TURNER,
Respondents.

FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW AND ORDER

This cause came on to be heard upon the verified peti-

tion of Howard F. LeBaron, Regional Director of the

21st Region of the National Labor Relations Board, on

behalf of said Board, for a temporary injunction, pend-

ing final adjudication by the Board of the matters in-

volved, and upon issuance of an order to show cause. The

Court has fully considered the verified petition and the

motion to dismiss the petition and affidavit of respondent

Walter J. Turner, attached thereto. Upon the entire

record, briefs, and arguments of counsel, the Court lists

the following: [125]

FINDINGS OF FACT
First: Petitioner is Regional Director of the 21st

Region of the National Labor Relations Board (herein

called the Board).
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Second : Respondent Printing Specialties and Paper

Converters Union, Local 388, AFL (hereinafter called

Local 388) is a labor organization having its principal

office within this judicial district and engaged in promot-

ing and protecting the interests of its employee members

within this judicial district.

Third: Respondent Walter J. Turner is and has been

at all times herein material, an agent of Local 388 and is

engaged in this judicial district in promoting or protect-

ing the interests of employee members of respondent

Local 388.

Fourth: On or about November 18, 1947, Sealright

Pacific, Ltd. (hereinafter called Sealright) pursuant to

the provisions of Section 10(b) of the National Labor

Relations Act, as amended (June 23, 1947, Public Law
101, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., Chap. 120, herein called the

Act), filed the Charge alleging that respondents have

engaged in and are engaging in unfair labor practices

within the meaning of Section 8(b), subsection (4) (A)

of the Act and affecting commerce wathin the meaning

of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act.

Fifth : Said Charge was thereafter duly referred to

petitioner for investigation. Petitioner has investigated

said Charge.

Sixth : There is reasonable cause to believe that

:

(a) Sealright Pacific Ltd. is a corporation organized

under and existing by virtue of the laws of the

State of California. Its principal office and place

of business is located at 1577 Rio Vista Avenue,

Los Angeles, CaHfornia, where it is engaged in

the manufacture, sale and distribution of paper

food containers and milk bottle caps. In the course
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and conduct of its business, it purchases and causes

to, be transported to its Los Angeles plant from

points outside the State of California, paper, steel,

shipping cases, etc., all valued at an excess of

$1,000,000.00 annually. Its finished products com-

prising milk bottle caps, milk bottle closures and

food containers, are valued at an excess of

$1,000,000.00 annually and more than 50 per cent

of such products are shipped outside the State of

[126] California.

(b) Los Angeles Seattle Motor Express, Inc., (here-

inafter called L. A. Seattle), 1147 Staunton Ave-

nue, Los Angeles, is a common carrier operating

motor trucks between Los Angeles and points in

the Pacific Northwest. It has carried Sealright's

products for a number of years.

(c) On Novemiber 13, 1947, respondent Walter J.

Turner (vice-president) of Local 388, advised

L. A. Seattle that if it continued to handle Seal-

right's products, L. A. Seattle would be picketed

by Local 388.

(d) On about November 14, 1947, representatives of

Local 388 followed two trucks loaded with Seal-

right's products to the L. A. Seattle terminal

where by forming a picket line around the two

trucks containing the products of Sealright and

telling the employees that the trucks contained

"hot cargo" and not to "handle it," induced and

encouraged the employees of L. A. Seattle, by

orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits, not

to transport or handle the goods of Sealright.

After November 14, 1947, as a result of the above

conduct of Local 388 the employees of L. A.
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Seattle refused to transport or handle the goods

of Sealright. Local 388 engaged in the foregoing

conduct to force or require L. A. Seattle to cease

handling or transporting the products of Sealright.

(e) West Coast Terminals Co., (hereinafter called

West Coast) is a public wharfinger with its docks

and wharves located on Pier A, Berths 2 and 3,

Terminal Island, Long Beach (2), California. On

or prior to November 17, 1947, West Coast re-

ceived from Panama Pacific Lines Vessel S.S.

Green Bay Victory, a consignment of rolls of paper

destined for Sealright's Los Angeles plant.

(f) On November 17, 1947, while employees of West

Coast were engaged in loading the rolls of paper

onto freight cars consigned to Sealright in Los

Angeles, a group of pickets representing Local 388

appeared at the docks of West Coast and, by form-

ing a picket line around the freight cars being

loaded with the rolls of paper for Sealright, in-

duced and encouraged the employees of West Coast,

by orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits,

not to handle or work on the paper consigned to

Sealright. Since November 17, 1947, as a result

of the [127] above conduct of Local 388 and the

continued picketing by Local 388 of the docks of

West Coast, the employees of West Coast have

refused to handle or work on the goods consigned

to Sealright. Local 388 engaged in the foregoing-

conduct in order to force or require West Coast

to cease handling or transporting the products of

Sealright.

Sevenlli : Unless restrained from engaging in the

aforementioned acts and conduct, there is imminent likeli-
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hood that respondents will continue to engage in such acts

and conduct.

Eighth : The acts and conduct of respondents above set

forth, occurring in connection with the operation of Seal-

right, described above, have a close, intimate, and sub-

stantial relation to trade, traffic, and commerce among

the several states and tend to lead and have led to labor

disputes burdening and obstructing commerce and the

free flow of commerce.

Ninth: This Court's February 3, 1948, Memorandum

of Ruling and Order Granting Injunction Under Section

10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act as amended

is hereby reaffirmed and made a part hereof with the

same force and effect as though fully set forth herein.

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
First: Sealright is engaged in commerce within the

meaning of Section 2, subsection (6) and (7) of the Act.

Second: Respondent Printing Specialties and Paper

Converters Union, Local 388, AFL, is a labor organiza-

tion within the meaning of Section 2, subsection (5) of

the Act.

Third : Respondent Walter J. Turner is and has been

at all times herein, an agent of Local 388 within the

meaning of Section 8(b) of the Act.

Fourth : This Court has jurisdiction of the proceedings

and of respondents, and can grant injunctive relief under

Section 10(1) of the Act.

Fifth : Said jurisdiction of the Court is not limited

by the Norris-LaGuardia Act. (U. S. C, Supp. VII,

Title 29, Sect. 101-15.)

Sixth: Section 8(b), subsection (4) (A) of the Act

is not repugnant to, or in controversion of, the guarantee
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of freedom of speech, the guarantee of liberty, and the

prohibition of involuntary servitude contained in the

First, 1 1281 Fifth, and Thirteenth Amendment, respec-

tively, of the Constitution of the United States.

Seventh : There is reasonable cause to believe that

respondents have engaged in unfair labor practices within

the meaning of Section 8(b), subsection (4) (A) of the

Act, obstructing commerce within the meaning of Sec-

tion 2, subsections (6) and (7) of the Act.

Eighth : It is appropriate, just, and proper that, pend-

ing final adjudication by the Board of said matter, re-

spondents and each of them, their agents, servants, em-

ployees, attorneys, and all persons acting in active concert

or participation with them, be enjoined and restrained

from the commission or continuance of the acts and con-

duct set forth in the Findings of Fact above, or like or

related acts or conduct whose commission in the future

is likely or may be fairly anticipated, from respondents'

acts and conduct in the past.

It is, therefore, by this Court:

Ordered that Printing Specialties and Paper Converters

Union, Local 388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner and each

of them and their agents, servants, employees and attor-

neys and all persons in active concert or participation

with them be and hereby are restrained and enjoined,

pending final adjudication by the Board of this matter,

from

:

Engaging in, or inducing or encouraging, the em-

ployees of any employer, by picketing, orders, force,

threats, or promises of benefit, eF fey permitting afty

sttefe te remain m effect, fPJM, J] or by any other

like or related acts or conduct to engage in, a strike
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or a concerted refusal in the course of their employ-

ment to use, manufacture, process, transport, or

otherwise handle or work on any goods, articles, ma-

terials, or commodities, or to perform any services,

where an object thereof is forcing or requiring any

employer or other person to cease using, selling,

handling, transporting, or otherwise dealing in the

products of, or to cease doing business with. Seal-

right Pacific, Ltd.

It Is Further Ordered that respondents' Motion to Dis-

miss the Petition for a Temporary Injunction herein be

and hereby is dismissed in toto. [129]

Dated at Los Angeles, California, this 16th day of

February, 1948, at 4:12 p. m.

PAUL J. McCORMICK
United States District Judge

Presented by: George H. O'Brien, Attorney for Peti-

tioner.

Approved as to form this 16th day of February, 1948.

'.

, Attorneys for Respondents.

Judgment entered Feb. 16, 1948. Docketed Feb. 16,

1948. Book 48, page 551. Edmund L. Smith, Clerk; by

E. M. Enstrom, Jr., Deputy. [130]

Received copy of the within Findings of Fact, etc., this

16th day of February, 1948. Marian A. Hauger for

Robert W. Gilbert, Allan L. Sapiro.

[Endorsed] : Filed Feb. 16, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [121]
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United States District Court

Southern District of California

Central Division

NOTICE BY CLERK OF ENTRY OF JUDGMENT

Georg-e H. O'Brien, Esq., et al.

National Labor Relations Board

111 W. 7th St., Rm. 704

Los Angeles 14, Calif.

Robert W. Gilbert, Esq., et al.

117 W. Ninth St.

Los Angeles 15, Calif.

Re: Howard F. LeBaron v. Printing Specialties

Union, et al., No. 7859-M-Civ.

Gentlemen

:

You are hereby notified that Order for Injunctive Re-

lief has been entered this day in the above-entitled case,

in Civil Order Book, No. 48, page 551.

Feb. 16, 1948

EDMUND L. SMITH
Clerk

By E. M. Enstrom

Deputy Clerk [132]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

NOTICE OF APPEAL TO CIRCUIT COURT OF
APPEALS [133]

Notice is hereby given that Printing Specialties and

Paper Converters Union, Local 388, AFL, and Walter

J. Turner, respondents above named, hereby appeal to the

Circuit Court of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit from the

order and temporary injunction enjoining and restraining

the respondents Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, Local 388, AFL, and Walter J. Turner

and each of them and their agents, servants, employees

and attorneys and all persons in active concert or par-

ticipation with them pending final adjudication by the

Board of this matter, from:

Engaging in, or inducing or encouraging, the em-

ployees of any employer, by picketing, orders, force,

threats, or promises of benefit, or by any other like

or related acts or conduct to engage in, a strike or a

concerted refusal in the course of their employment

to use, manufacture, process, transport, or otherwise

handle or work on any goods, articles, materials, or

commodities, or to perform any services, where an

object thereof is forcing or requiring any employer

or other person to cease using, selling, handling,

transporting, or otherwise dealing in the products

of, or to cease doing business with, Sealright Pacific,

Ltd.,
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entered in this action on February 16, 1948.

Dated: March 1, 1948.

ROBERT W. GILBERT
CLARENCE E. TODD
ALLAN L. SAPIRO

Attorneys for Appellants

By Allan L. Sapiro

[Endorsed] : Filed & mid. copy to Geo. H. O'Brien,

Mar. 1, 1948. Edmund L. Smith, Clerk. [134]

[Title of District Court and Cause]

CERTIFICATE OF CLERK

I, Edmund L. Smith, Clerk of the District Court of

the United States for the Southern District of California,

do hereby certify that the foregoing pages numbered from

1 to 138, inclusive, contain full, true and correct copies

of Petition for an Injunction Under Section 10(1) of the

National Labor Relations Act, as amended; Motion for

Order to Show Cause; Order to Show Cause; Notice of

Motion to Dismiss Petition for an Injunction Under Sec-

tion 10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act, as

amended together with Respondents' Memorandum of

Points and Authorities and Affidavit of Walter J. Tur-

ner in Support of Motion to Dismiss; Exhibit 1 to Peti-

tion for Injunction ; Memorandum of Points and Au-

thorities in Support of Petition for Injunction Under Sec-

tion 10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act, as
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amended; Respondents' Supplementary Memorandum of

Points and Authorities ; Motion for Leave to File Supple-

ment to Petitioner's Memorandum of Points and Authori-

ties; Order; Supplement to Petitioner's Memorandum of

Points and Authorities; Reply to Petitioner's Supple-

mentary memorandum of Points and Authorities; Memo-

randum of Ruling and Order Granting Injunction Under

Section 10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act as

amended; Minute Order Entered February 6, 1948; Find-

ings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Order (Pro-

posed) ; Respondents' Memorandum in Opposition to Pro-

posed Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law and Pre-

liminary Injunction; Minute Orders Entered February

11 and 13, 1948; Findings of Fact and Conclusions of

Law and Order; Copy of Notice by Clerk of Entry of

Judgment; Notice of Appeal to Circuit Court of Ap-

peals and Designation of Contents of Record on Appeal

which, together with copy of Reporter's Transcript of

Proceedings on December 18 and 30, 1947 and February

13, 1948, transmitted herewith, constitute the record on

appeal to the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.

I further certify that my fees for preparing, compar-

ing, correcting and certifying the foregoing record amount

to $35.45 which sum has been paid to me by appellants.

Witness my hand and the seal of said District Court

this 8th day of April, A. D. 1948.

(Seal) EDMUND L. SMITH
Clerk

By Theodore Hocke

Chief Deputy
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

Honorable Paul J. McCormick, Judge Presiding

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Los Angeles, California, December 18, 1947

Appearances

:

For the Petitioner: George H. O'Brien, Esq.

For the Respondents: Robert W. Gilbert, Esq., Clar-

ence E. Todd, Esq. [1*]

Los Angeles, California, Thursday, December 18, 1947.

1 :30 P. M.

The Clerk: No. 7859-M, Civil. Howard F. Lebaron,

Regional Director of 21st Region of National Labor

Relations Board v. Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, et al., for hearing petition for order to

show cause.

The Court: Proceed, Mr. O'Brien.

Mr, O'Brien: This is definitely an extraordinary pro-

ceeding, both for me and for the court. It is a new

jurisdiction conferred upon this court by Section 10(1)

of the Labor-Management Relations Act of 1947.

My motion this morning, if it please the court, is for

entry of an order to show cause, if any there be, why

the respondents named in the petition filed here yesterday

should not answer and reply. In substance, that is my

motion.

T am not prepared to argue the merits of the case

at this time, although if necessary I can do so. I do

*Page numl>cr appearing at top of page of original Reporter's Transcript
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suggest that the court require the respondents Printing

Specialties and Paper Converters Union, Local 388,

A.F.L., and Walter J. Turner, who are here today rep-

resented by counsel, to appear and answer this complaint

on a day certain to be set by the court.

The Court: Counsel appear to be here. Is there any

objection to the motion, gentlemen?

Mr. Todd: If your Honor please— [2]

The Court: Gentlemen, if you will state your appear-

ances, please. We have a new clerk, and I think he is

not familiar with the counsel.

Mr. Todd: I am Clarence E. Todd, and I appear

with Mr. Robert W. Gilbert. We two represent the

respondent to be if this order is made.

Our contention, if your Honor please, is that the

portion of the Labor-Management Relations Act, com-

monly known as the Taft-Hartley Act, which is invoked

here, is wholly unconstitutional, and our appearance will

be special for the purpose of making that contention, and

that contention will be adhered to throughout any pro-

ceedings that may be had.

Our objection to this preliminary procedure is that

it is an idle act on the part of the court to receive the

petition and to issue the order to show cause. We are

quite ready to argue the merits, also, but, of course,

this is not the place or the time for that to be done; but

we question the jurisdiction of the court and we contend

that we have ruling authorities to the effect that this

portion of the Act is wholly unconstitutional and no judg-

ment could be issued by this or any other court in

enforcement of the portion of the Act which is invoked.
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The Court: The section cited by counsel, as far as it

is material, reads thus:

Section 10, isn't it? [3]

Mr. O'Brien: 10(1), sir.

The Court: Under the title "Prevention of unfair

labor practices," Section 10(a) :

"The Board is empowered, as hereinafter pro-

vided, to prevent any person from engaging in any

unfair labor practice (listed in section 8) affecting

commerce. This power shall not be affected by any

other means of adjustment or prevention that has

been or may be established by agreement, law, or

otherwise; Provided, That the Board is empowered

by agreement with any agency of any State or

Territory to cede to such agency jurisdiction over

any cases in any industry (other than mining, manu-

facturing, communications, and transportation ex-

cept where predominantly local in character) even

though such cases may involve labor disputes affect-

ing commerce, unless the provision of the State or

Territorial statute applicable to the determination

of such cases by such agency is inconsistent with the

corresponding provision of this Act or has received

a construction inconsistent therewith."

Subsection ( 1 ) of the Act provides thus

:

"Whenever it is charged that any person has [4]

engaged in an unfair labor practice within the mean-

' ing of paragraph (4) (A), (B). or (C) of section

8(b), the preliminary investigation of such charge

shall be made forthwith and given priority over

all other cases except cases of like character in the

office where it is filed or to which it is referred.
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If, after such investigation, the officer or regional

attorney to whom the matter may be referred has

reasonable cause to believe such charge is true and

that a complaint should issue, he shall, on behalf

of the Board petition any district court of the United

States (including the District Court of the United

States for the District of Columbia) within any

district where the unfair labor practice in question

has occurred, is alleged to have occurred, or wherein

such person resides or transacts business, for appro-

priate injunctive relief pending the final adjudica-

tion of the Board with respect to such matter. Upon

the filing of any such petition the district court

shall have jurisdiction to grant such injunctive relief

or temporary restraining order as it deems just and

proper, notwithstanding any other provision of law:

Provided further. That no temporary restraining

order shall be issued [5] without notice unless a

petition alleges that substantial and irreparable in-

jury to the charging party will be unavoidable and

such temporary restraining order shall be effective

for no longer than five days and will become void

at the expiration of such period. Upon filing of

any such petition the courts shall cause notice

thereof to be served upon any person involved in

the charge and such person, including the charging

party, shall be given an opportunity to appear by

counsel and present any relevant testimony: Pro-

vided further. That for the purposes of this sub-

section district courts shall be deemed to have juris-

diction of a labor organization (1) in the district

in which such organization maintains its principal

office, or (2) in any district in which its duly
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authorized officers or agents are engaged in pro-

moting or protecting the interests of employee mem-

bers. The service of legal process upon such officer

or agent shall constitute service upon the labor or-

ganization and make such organization a party to

the suit. In situations where such relief is appro-

priate the procedure specified herein shall apply to

charges with respect to section 8(b)(4)(D)." [6]

The court has before it a copy of the petition filed in

this court December 17, 1947, and unless it is desired

I shall not read it into the record, gentlemen. I have

read it in chambers, and it seems to recite for the j)ur-

poses of this proceeding, and not otherwise, sufficient

cause to justify the issuance of an order to show cause.

Mr. Todd: Would your Honor hear me for just a

moment ?

The Court: Yes.

Mr. Todd: Would your Honor set down the motion

for argument? That might save a good deal of time of

the court.

The Court: I thought I would specify the return day,

and then on that day we will hear such argimient as you

desire to present, and such other methods of approach.

In other words, I see no difiference between the ordinary

processes in a suit in equity under the rules, except as

modified by the procedure adopted in this Act, and this

case.

Mr. Todd: Except that— I don't mean to interrupt

your Honor.

The Court: Go ahead.

Mr. Todd: Since we raise the objection of lack of

jurisdiction in limine, it might be appropriate—your
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Honor might make some other order—it might be appro-

priate just to set the petition for the order to show cause

for hearing. The petition sets out the facts on which it

is based. If those facts are true, and the law is con-

stitutional, certainly [7] you have a right to issue the

order. If those facts are true and the law is unconstitu-

tional, the facts certainly do not confer jurisdiction on

the court.

The Court: That is the thought I had in mind. For

a court to act, there must be a vehicle which brings the

suitors before the court.

I appreciate the good offices of counsel for the re-

spondents in coming here. They were not required to

come, and it is appreciated that they have come. But,

after all, in a matter of this importance the procedural

steps should be very carefully taken, and c -e of the pro-

cedural steps necessary in an action in the courts is the

issuances of a vehicle to bring the parties before the

court for consideration, and I presume that in this case

is the order to show cause.

When did you want it returnable, Mr. O'Brien, or

gentlemen, if you can agree upon a date?

Mr. O'Brien: I suggested to Mr. Gilbert, after talk-

ing with Mr. Winthrop A. Johns who will argue the

case before this court, December 30th. Of course, sub-

ject to the convenience of this court.

The Court: What is your attitude, gentlemen?

Mr. Gilbert: If that is convenient to the court, your

Honor, that will be satisfactory to us.

The Court: I have a matter set on the 29th at 2:00

o'clock that may possibly run over into the next day. [8]
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Mr. Todd: Wc would like as early a date as con-

venient to the court. If your Honor could give us one

or two days after that, that would be all right with us.

The Court: How long do you think it will take to

present the matter?

Mr. Todd: If your Honor please, it takes a little

time to go into these constitutional matters. I believe that

the constitutional points involved will be the same as in

the recent hot cargo cases before the courts of Cali-

fornia, and where we have had a day for argument it

hasn't been too long.

The Court: I think you are entitled to that time.

What it your estimate, Mr. O'Brien?

Mr. O'Brien: May it please the court, I regard the

word "shall" in Section 10(1) as being mandatory. As

fast as possible. I have talked with Mr. Winthrop Johns

in Washington, who will argue this case before the court,

and he says the earliest date that he can be out here is

December 30th, and any date after that he will be

available.

The Court: It would suit our calendar a little better

to have it the week following New Year's Day, I think.

That matter that was on today, was that continued

until January 6th, Mr. Clerk, that tax matter?

The Clerk: It was continued to January 8th, your

Honor, at 2:00 o'clock. [9]

The Court: I think perhaps we might just as well

set it for the 30th, as later. The order to show cause

will issue and be made returnable on December 30th at

10:00 o'clock, the morning of that day, and we will allow
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that entire day, and, if necessary, over into the next

day for argument.

I would hke to have the memoranda under the rules,

gentlemen. I presume you are all familiar with our

rules, although I am not sure that you are all familiar

with the rules. We have a rule here that requires the

submission of memoranda before the hearing of these

motions, and if you will consult that and comply with it

so that the court will have your memoranda a few days

before the argument, it will facilitate the hearing of the

return.

Do you have your order to show cause in form,

Mr. O'Brien?

Mr. O'Brien: Yes, sir, and I have submitted copies

to counsel.

In the order to show cause, if it please the court, it

requires three things: one, the date of return, which has

already been settled; two, a date for answer, which has

not been discussed, and I am perfectly willing to waive

that; and, three, requiring service by the United States

Marshal, which again might be changed on the form of

the order.

The Court: You say you are waiving the provisions

on [10] lines 16 to 22 on page 2 of the proposed order,

Mr. O'Brien?

Mr. O'Brien: I think that would be proper, sir.

The Court: That will be stricken, then.

Order to show cause, issued, returnable on the 30th

of December at 10:00 o'clock.

Mr. Gilbert: May it please the court, just before this

matter is completely disposed of, I wonder if it would

be permissible to inquire whether any affidavits which
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the Board might submit in support of its petition will

be served with the order to show cause? I don't believe

that the latter part of the order to show cause specifies

so, but I just wanted to ask as a matter of information

what procedure would be followed.

The Court: Are there any affidavits to be filed in

addition to the pettion, Mr. O'Brien?

Mr. O'Brien: No, may it please the court. In re-

checking these documents I found two defect in the

petition itself. The first one, on page 2, line 9, a tem-

porary restraining order is not requested. I think that

is clear from this proceeding now. The words "tem-

porory restraining order" should be deleted. But, again,

I do not consider that material.

On page 2, line 32, a copy of the charge is not

attached, and as to that I am very sorry, it is due entirely

to my own negligence that it was not attached. However,

we do have [11] parties here who have received copies

of the original charge.

Mr. Gilbert: That is correct.

The Court: That portion is waived without any

waiver of the constitutional objection.

Mr. Gilbert: Yes.

The Court: I presume that answers your question,

then, does it, Mr. Gilbert?

Mr. Gilbert: That is right.

The Court: Nothing further, gentlemen?

(No response.)

(Whereupon at 2:00 o'clock p.m. court adjourned.)

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 7, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [12]
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[Title of District Court and Cause]

Honorable Paul J. McCormick, Judge Presiding

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Los Angeles, California, Tuesday, December 30, 1947

Appearances

:

For the Petitioner: Robert N. Denham, General Coun-

sel, by Dominick Manoli, Esquire, and George H. O'Brien,

Esquire, 111 West 7th Street, Room 704, Los Angeles 14,

California.

For the Respondents: Robert W. Gilbert, Esquire,

Clarence E. Todd, Esquire, and Allan L. Sapiro, Esquire,

117 West 9th Street, Los Angek . 15, California. [1]

Los Angeles, California, Tuesday, December 30, 1947,

10 A. M.

The Court: Mr. Carter?

Mr. James M. Carter: If the court please, in the

matter pending in this court, Lebaron v. Printing Spe-

cialties, I want at this time to move the admission of

two attorneys who are not members, as I understand it,

of the State Bar of California, for the purpose of appear-

ing in this case alone. One of them is Dominick Manoli,

who is an attorney for the National Labor Relations

Board, is a member of the bar of the Supreme Court

of the United States, the Federal District Court in

Nebraska and the State Bar in Nebraska. The other

gentleman is Mr. George O'Brien, member of the bar of

the Supreme Courut of Illinois and the District Court

for the Northern District of Illinois, and is also a

member of the bar of the Ninth Circuit. I am personally

acquainted with Mr. George O'Brien, have been for a
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number of years. Both of these men are attorneys for

the National Labor Relations board, and the casual check

of the code which 1 have had a chance to make indicates

that under the express wording of the statute the attor-

neys for this Board possess the statutory right to com-

mence civil litigation. I, therefore, move the admission

of these gentlemen for the purposes of this case.

The Court: Any objection, gentlemen?

Mr. Gilbert: No objection. [2]

The Court: For the purposes stated they will be

admitted.

Call the case, Mr. Clerk.

The Clerk: 7859-M, Civil, Howard F. Lebaron v.

Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union, et al.;

order to show cause why respondents should not be re-

strained as prayed in petition, and motion of respondents

to dismiss petition for an injunction. Attorneys Gilbert

and Todd appear for the respondents. Attorneys Manoli

and O'Brien appear for the petitioners.

The Court: Are you ready, gentlemen?

Mr. Todd: Yes.

Mr. O'Brien: Yes, we are ready, your Honor.

The Court: We will have to segregate the argument,

gentlemen, on these matters. At the previous hearing

the court stated that the argument would be permitted

to not exceed one day of court time. We will divide the

argument two hours on each side, with the respondent

having the right to open and close the argument. But

the opening must be an opening and not simply the

holding in reserve of matters that are not disclosed in

the opening.

You may proceed.
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Mr. O'Brien: Your Honor, I have a copy of the Act

here.

The Court: I have the Act in the code.

Mr. O'Brien: Very well. [3]

Mr. Gilbert: If it is agreeable with the court, with

respect to the matter of the opening argument on behalf

of the respondents, Attorney Todd and I would like to

divide the time which you have allotted to us.

In this proceeding, if it please the court, there is on

file, as the court well knows, a petition for an injunction

filed by the petitioner under color of authority of Sec-

tion 10(1) of the Nat^'onal Labor Relations Act as

amended. In substance I believe that the petition seeks

to invoke that portion of Section 10(1) purporting to

confer jurisdiction upon this court to grant injunctive

relief against activities proscribed by paragraph (4) (A)

of Section 8(b) of this Act, as amended on June 23,

1947. The pertinent portions of Section 10(1) and

8(b)(4)(A) of the Act, we believe, are as follows,

quoting first from Section 10(1):

"Whenever it is charged that any person has

engaged in an unfair labor practice within the mean-

ing of paragraph (4) (A)"—then omitting some

language
—

"of Section 8(b), the preliminary inves-

tigation of such charge shall be made forthwith and

given priority over all other cases except cases of

like character in the office where it is filed or to

which it is referred. If, after such investigation,

the officer or regional attorney to whom the matter

may be referred has reasonable [4] cause to believe

such charge is true and that a complaint should

issue, he shall, on behalf of the Board, petition any
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district court of the United States"—omitting lan-

guage
—

"within any district where the unfair labor

practice in question has occurred, is alleged to have

occurred, or wherein such person resides or trans-

acts business, for appropriate injunctive relief pend-

ing the final adjudication of the Board with respect

to such matter. Upon the filing of any such petition

the district court shall have jurisdiction to grant

such injunctive relief or temporary restraining order

as it deems just and proper, notwithstanding any

other provision of law: . . ."

The balance of Section 10(1) deals with a proviso with

respect to the matter of a temporary restraining order

without notice, which is not raised in this proceeding,

and the matter of the jurisdiction over a particular labor

organization in terms of the district wherein such juris-

diction purports to lie. Then Section 10(1) states:

"The service of legal process upon such officer or

agent shall constitute service upon the labor organi-

zation and make such organization a party to the

suit."

The balance of the section deals with matter forbidden

by [5] Section 8(b)(4)(D) of the amended Act, and

not applicable herein.

Section 8(b)(4)(A), the section incorporated by

reference in Section 10(1), as invoked in this proceeding

states, insofar as is relevant to this proceeding:

"(b) It shall be unfair labor practice for a labor

organization or its agents

—
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''(4) To engage in, or to induce or encourage

the employees of any employer to engage in, a strike

or a concerted refusal in the course of their employ-

ment to use, manufacture, process, transport, or

otherwise handle or work on any goods, articles,

materials, or commodities or to perform any serv-

ices where an object thereof is: (a) forcing or

requiring any employer or self-employed person to

join any labor or employer organization or any

employer or other person to cease using, selling,

handling, transporting, or otherwise dealing in the

products of any other producer, processor, or manu-

facturer, or to cease doing business with any other

person; . . ."

The petition which has been filed recites in paragraph

5 on page 2 that:

"On or about November 18, 1947, Sealright [6]

Pacific, Ltd. (hereinafter called Sealright), pursuant

to the provisions of Section 10(b) of the Act, filed

a charge alleging that respondents have engaged in

and are engaging in unfair labor practices within

the meaning of Section 8(b), subsection (4) (A) of

the Act and aflfecting commerce within the meaning

of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act."

The petition thereafter recites that:

"A copy of said charge is attached hereto marked

'Exhibit r and made a part hereof."

In completing service upon the respondents in this

matter the conformed copies of the petition and order

to show cause did not have attached to them copies of

the charge, but counsel for the respondents are familiar
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with and have received otherwise copies of that charge

and make no objection on that ground. I would Hke to

be permitted to inquire of the court, however, whether

a copy of that charge is now an official part of the

record.

The Court: I am just now examining the file again

this morning to ascertain that. It is not there, unless it

has been placed there recently. There is not appended to

the copy which was supplied at the time of the filing of

the petition the charge.

Mr. Manoli: We will file a copy, your Honor. [7]

The Court: It was not filed, was it?

Mr. Manoli: Apparently it was not. I was not aware

of that.

The Court: I haven't seen that. I want to look at

it, if you will first submit it to counsel.

(The document referred to was handed to the court.)

The Court: It may be considered as a part of the

record, gentlemen?

Mr. Gilbert: Yes, your Honor.

Mr. Manoli: And may we have leave to substitute

copies for that, your Honor? It is the original.

Mr. Gilbert: No objection.

The; Court: Yes. The court has perused the instru-

ment.

Mr. Gilbert: The charge referred to as Exhibit 1 in

substance employs the language of Section 8(b)(4)(A)

of the statute itself to allege that the respondent. Local

388, "engaged in, induced and encouraged the emplovees

of L. A. Seattle Motor Express and the employees of

West Coast Terminals Co. to engage in a concerted
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refusal in the course of their employment to transport

or otherwise handle any goods, articles, materials or

commodities of Sealright Pacific, Ltd., for the purpose

of forcing or requiring L. A. Seattle Motor Express and

West Coast Terminals Co. to cease handling, transport-

ing or otherwise dealing in the products of Sealright

Pacific, Ltd., or to cease doing business with Sealright

[8] Pacific, Ltd."

Without taking the court's time to read the charge,

which the court has before it, the acts alleged in this

charge to have been committed by respondent. Local 388,

stripped of legd. conclusions, in essence amount to a

threat of picketing the L. A. Seattle Motor Express and

picketing in the vicinity of the warehouses of the West

Coast Terminals Co.

The petition itself relates that the charge involved was

referred to the regional director of the 21st Region of

the National Labor Relations Board, the petitioner here-

in; that the petitioner investigated the charge, and be-

lieves it to be true. And in specifying the acts, again

which the respondent local union is alleged to have com-

mitted and which is the sole basis for the filing of the

petition herein and the claim for the right to injunctive

relief under this statute, are acts set forth in paragraph

7, subparagraph (c), (d) and (f), found on pages 3

and 4 of the petition.

(c) is:

''On November 13, 1947, respondent Walter J.

Turner, vice-president of Local 388, advised L. A.

Seattle that if it continued to handle Sealright's

products, L. A. Seattle would be picketed by Local

388."
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(d) is that: [9]

"On about November 14, 1947, representatives

of Local 388 followed two trucks loaded with Seal-

right's products to the L. A. Seattle terminal where

by forming a picket line around the two trucks con-

taining the products of Sealright and telling the

employees that the trucks contained 'hot cargo' and

not to 'handle it,' induced and encouraged"—using

the statutory language
—

"the employees of L. A.

Seattle, by orders, force, threats, or promises of

benefits, not to transport or handle the goods of

Sealright."

In connection with this portion of the petition I would

like to call the attention of the court to the language of

Section 8(c) of the Act. herein involved:

"The expressing of any views, argument or opin-

ion, or the dissemination thereof, whether in writ-

ten, printed, graphic, or visual form, shall not con-

stitute or be evidence of an unfair labor practice

under any of the provisions of this Act, if such

expression contains no threat of reprisal or force

or promise of benefit."

It will be the position of the respondents throughout

this proceeding that the inclusion of the language in the

petition herein "by orders, force, threats, or promises of

benefits," constitutes merely a conclusion of law, to be

[10] disregarded by the court, and that in fact this

language is simply inserted in the petition for the pur-

pose of immunizing this proceeding from the eflfects of

the proviso set forth in Section 8(c) of the amended

Act. So that if the factual material in paragraph 7(d).

from which 1 have just read, were considered alone bv
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the court, without such a conclusion of law, in effect the

acts alleged would be that representatives of Local 388

formed a picket line around the trucks which they located

at the L. A. Seattle terminal containing the products of

Sealright, told the employees certain things, and requested

them, or to use the language of the statute which the

petition uses "induced or encouraged" them not to trans-

port or handle the goods of Sealright.

The remainder of the paragraph alleges that after

this picketing took place, the employees of L.A. Seattle

refused to transport or handle the goods of Sealright;

and reading from the bottom of paragraph 7 (d) the

statement that:

''Local 388 engaged in the foregoing conduct to

force or require L.A. Seattle to cease handling or

transporting the products of Sealright."

There again, is a reliance upon the statutory language.

Paragraph (f) alleges that:

"On November 17, 1947, while employees of West

Coast were engaged in loading the rolls of paper"

described in the preceding paragraph "onto [11]

freight cars consigned to Sealright in Los Angeles,

a group of pickets representing Local 388 appeared

at the docks of West Coast and, by forming a picket

line around the freight cars being loaded with the

rolls of paper for Sealright,"—again the statutory

language
—

"induced and encouraged the employees

of West Coast,"—and, again, this language is

couched similar to the terms of Section 8(c)
—

"by

orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits, not

to handle or work on the paper consigned to Seal-

right."
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Then there is a further allegation of the refusal by

the employees of West Coast to handle or work on the

goods consigned to Sealright, and an allegation which,

in effect, might be paraphrased as an allegation that an

object of this picketing was to force or require West

Coast to cease handling or transporting the products

of Sealright, again couched in the statutory language.

Respondents desire to move this court to dismiss this

petition on the ground that the court lacks jurisdiction

over the same. It is stated in the notice of motion that

it is the contention of the respondents that this petition

was filed under color of authority of that portion of Sec-

tion 10(1) of the amended Act, incorporated by refer-

ence, paragraph 8 (b)(4)(A) of said Act "whch pur-

ports to confer juris- [12] diction upon this court to

grant injunctive relief against activities proscribed" by

that latter paragraph, and that such portions of the

statute as invoked herein are contrary to the Constitu-

tion of the United States, Amendments I, V and XIII,

and are therefore wholly invalid and without any legal

force and effect; that the sole allegation relating to the

jurisdiction set forth in the petition herein is based upon

the same statutory proceeding, and we move this court

to dismiss this proceeding on the ground that the court

lacks jurisdiction over the person of the respondents

and over the subject-matter of this proceeding for the

lack of jurisdiction, and on the ground that the petition

prays for injunctive relief against lawful acts of respon-

dents, which relief in substance and form would be con-

trary to the Constitution of the United States. Amend-
ments I, V and XIII. and that no other claim upon which

relief can be granted has been stated.
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The prayer for injunctive relief to which I have re-

ferred is set forth on page 5 of the petition, and the

acts which the petitioner seeks to have enjoined by this

court are set forth again in the statutory language:

"(a) Engaging in or inducing or encouraging

the employes of West Coast Terminals Co. and Los

Angeles Seattle Motor Express, Inc. by orders,

force, threats, or promises of benefits, or by [13]

permitting any such to remain in effect, or by any

other like acts or conduct, to engage in a concerted

refi^ al in the course of their employment to trans-

port, or otherwise handle any goods, articles, mate-

rials, or commodities, or perform any services in

order to force or require West Coast Terminals Co.

and Los Angeles Seattle Motor Express, Inc. to

cease handling, transporting the materials or prod-

ucts of Sealright Pacific, Ltd., or to cease doing

business with Sealright Pacific, Ltd."

The second prayer for injunctive relief in paragraph

(b) requests a substantially similar order affecting the

employees of any employer, but omits the language relat-

ing to "orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits."

Respondents raise the issue here as to whether or not

Section 10(1), to the extent that it incorporates Sec-

tion 8(b)(4)(A) of the amended Act, and purports to

confer jurisdiction upon this court to restrain acts such

as those alleged to have been committed by the respond-

ent. Local 388, herein, namely, picketing and the threat

of picketing in connection with a lawful strike over

the issue of wages and holiday pay, picketing and threat

of picketing the products of the struck plant, if the court

please, produced under strike conditions,—whether or
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not such a provision of law [14] is not contrary to the

cognate rights of free speech and assembly set forth

in the first amendment to the Constitution of the United

States, and whether its object and its effect, if enforced

and carried out, would not amount to a deprival of

hberty without due process of law, contrary to the

fifth amendment of the Constitution, and whether or

not the injunctive relief sought herein does not or would

not contravene the thirteenth amendment to the Constitu-

tion, prohibiting involuntary servitude.

We have requested and received permission of the

court to divide this argument, and I will not, in order

to avoid repetition, dwell at great length upon the

numerous authorities which we have cited in our memor-

andum of points and authorities, which Attorney Todd
would like to present to this court, but I would like

to state at the commencement of this portion of the argu-

ment that the basic position of the respondents is set

forth in paragraphs 3 and 4 of our memorandum of

points and authorities, namely, that peaceful picketing

and threat of peaceful picketing which constitute the

only charges made against respondents in this proceeding

come within the constitutional safeguards of the First

Amendment; and that, fairly construed and with conclu-

sions of law eliminated, the petition herein merely charges

respondents with picketing and threatening to picket the

products of the employer with whom a labor dispute is

pending, and that [15] picketing of such unfair products

is well recognized as coming within the protection of the

First Amendment. There is appended to the notice of

motion to dismiss this petition an affidavit of one of the

respondents herein, Walter J. Turner, whose affidavit

is, of curse, in the record and I shall not attempt to
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take the time of the court to read all of its many details,

but in sum and substance it describes the respondent,

Local 388, as a labor organization including within its

membership approximately 1,800 employees of the paper

conversion and allied industries in the city of Los Angeles

and nearby communities. It sets out the fact that Local

388 is a party to numerous collective bargaining agree-

ments in this industry with various employers and its

members engaged in the manufacture, distribution and

sale of products, paper products comparable to the paper

food containers and milk bottle caps produced by the

charging party in this proceeding, Sealright Pacific, Ltd.

Some of these products are set forth in lines 8 and 9

of page 2 of the Turner affidavit: envelopes, paper boxes,

waxed paper, manifold sales books, et cetera.

It sets forth in the paragraph immediately following,

in lines 12 to 19, of page 2 of the affidavit, the fact

that Local 388 has consummated agreements covering

approximately 1,500 of its members and establishing

certain prevailing scales of minimum wages, which are

set forth in the exact [16] sums in the affidavit; but all

of these agreements covering some 1,500 members of

the union, negotiated within the immediate past 12

months, provide at least six paid holidays for those

members of Local 388.

The following paragraph describes the history of bar-

gaining between Sealright Pacific, Ltd. and this local

union from 1941 to 1946, during which successive col-

lective bargaining agreements were negotiated without

any strike, lockout, or other similar interruption of pro-

duction taking place.

The affidavit proceeds to relate the circumstances under

which the former contract, the latest contract, was
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opened, and it is worth noting here that Local 388 com-

plied with Sections 8(d)(1) and 8(d)(3) of the amended

Act, by giving the company the required 60-day notice

of the proposed modifications in the agreement, and on

September 15, 1947 by notifying the Federal Mediation

and Conciliation Service and the California State Depart-

ment of Industrial Relations that a dispute existed, as

set forth on lines 14 to 17 at page 3.

The following paragraph describes the content of those

negotiations and points out that after a number of meet-

ings, some eleven meetings, the parties were agreed on

all terms of the new agreement except wage rates and

holiday pay; that the company's offer was substantially

below the prevailing rates established by the union for

some 1,500 members; that [17] the company offered for

the seventy-odd members of the union employed at its

plant a raise from $1.02^ to $1.10 per hour, whereas

the prevailing wage rate ranged from $1.20 to $1.33;^

per hour for the lowest skilled job performed by a man
in the plant. Similarly, the union detailed similar inade-

quate rates as proposed by the company for the lowest

skilled female classification in the plant and, as related

at the top of page 4, the company's proposal with respect

to holiday pay was merely a continuation of the three

designated holidays, although the union had established

for a preponderance of its members, some 1,5(X) in the

industry, the prevailing standard of six paid holidays.

The strike which gave rise then to the picketing com-

plained of herein was a strike solely over the issues of

wages and holiday pay, based upon the desire oi the

members of Local 388 to protect the standards which

they had established in the paper conversion and allied

industries in this area by means of negotiated agree-

ments with various employers during the past 12 months.
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As set forth in the next to the last paragraph on page

4, at the time the strike was instituted all of the approxi-

mately 70 production employees of the plant were mem-

bers in good standing of the union and no question of

majority status was raised by that fact. All but three

employees of said plant joined said strike against their

employer. Peaceful [18] picket lines were established in

front of or near the entrances to the struck plant.

The succeeding paragraphs of the Turner affidavit

describe the conduct of the respondents in connection

with the incidents in statutory rather than factual lan-

guage by the petitioner herein.

It is admitted in the Turner affidavit that at some

time between November 3, 1947 and November 17, 1947

Mr. Turner met and conferred with a Mr. Lacey, sup-

posedly the manager of Los Angeles Seattle Motor

Express; that at that time Mr. Turner, the secretary-

treasurer of the union, informed L. A. Seattle Motor

Express that Local 388 was engaged in a strike due to

a wage dispute with its employer, Sealright Pacific;

also informed him that Local 388 intended to peacefully

picket the Sealright products manufactured under strike

conditions and a sub-standard wage for the purpose of

publicizing the dispute and soliciting the assistance of

other workers, asking that they decline to handle this

merchandise. At no time did affiant advise Los Angeles

Seattle Motor Express that Local 388 would picket all

or any of that firm's operations, as such, if it continued

to handle Sealright products, nor did Mr. Turner in any

way indicate or imply that Local 388 would picket any

other products being handled or transported by the L.A.

Seattle Motor Express for companies other than the

struck plant under [19] any circumstances whatsoever.
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On or about November 14, 1947 members of the union

on strike at Sealri^ht in this waj^e dispute, it is admitted

by this affidavit, formed a peaceful picket line around

two truckloads of Sealrif^ht products at the Los Angeles

Seattle Motor Express terminal ; that these members of

the union advised the employees of the motor truck con-

cern that the Sealright products were manufactured under

strike conditions and for sub-standard wages and re-

quested them not to handle those products. At no time

did any officer, agent, representative, or member of the

local union order, force, threaten any reprisal against

or promise any specific benefit to any employee of that

concern for the purpose of bringing about the refusal of

said employee to transport or handle Sealright products,

or for any other purpose.

It is also admitted in the following paragraph of the

affidavit that on or about the 17th day of November

of this year, and for several days thereafter, Local

388 peacefully picketed Sealright products being loaded

onto three boxcars at the West Coast Terminals Com-
pany; that these products consisted of rolls of paper

consigned from a New York plant of Sealright, the

struck employer, to the Los Angeles plant of that cor-

poration for use in continued manufacturing operations

under strike conditions. At no time has Local 388

picketed any or all of the operations of the West Coast

[20] Terminals Company, as such, nor has Local 388

picketed any other products being handled or transported

by said firm for companies other than the struck plant.

At no time has Local 388 interfered in any manner with

the loading or unloading of any ship or ships of the

Panama Pacific Lines or of any other steamship

company.
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The following paragraph and the next concluding para-

graph of the affidavit describes the fact that this picket-

ing of the boxcars containing Sealright products took

place alongside a siding near the warehouse; that the

picket lines did not pass in front of the entrance to the

warehouse, and that when during the course of the

picketing it was necessary for the Terminal Company

to move those cars incidental to its other operations

Local 388 temporarily discontinued its picketing to per-

mit it, rather, Local 388 temporarily discontinued its

picketing and there was no interference with the moving

of these boxcars, and when the cars had been moved on

several occasions and returned to their previous position,

then the picketing was resumed.

Again there is a denial in the affidavit that any force

or promise of benefit or threat of reprisal or order of

any sort was made by any representative of Local 388

to the employees at the West Coast Terminals Company.

With this factual background set forth in the affidavit,

we believe that the issue is very sharply presented, as

to whether or not the members of the respondent union

and the representatives of the respondent union [21]

have a right to seek to persuade employees of companies

other than their own employer not to lend their assistance

to the struck plant, and whether or not they have a

constitutional right to seek to disseminate the fact of

the labor dispute in the hope that they may be able to

convince other working people of the merits of their

cause within the immediate area of the industrial dis-

pute by picketing the products manufactured at the struck

plant under strike conditions and at wage rates below

the level estabHshed by the union in the industry in

the community.
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specifically the lanp^uagc of Section 8(b)(4)(A) does

not mention picketing as such, as it does not mention

speech as such. It seeks to embrace in verbal speech the

communication of ideas by means of carrying a placard

back and forth in the vicinity of the plant, and, appar-

ently, other means of communication of the labor dispute

by the very broad language which would make it an

unfair labor practice for a union or its representative

to induce or encourage the employees of an employer

to strike or concertedly refuse to handle the products of

the struck plant. Such language has been passed upon

by the Supreme Court of the United States in the vari-

ous cases identifying picketing with free speech. And

the issue here is particularly vivid in the minds of the

members of the local bar because on October 3, [22]

1947 the Supreme Court of this State applied the con-

stitutional guarantees set forth in the First Amendment

to strike down a State law which, in effect and with

similarly vague language, sought to include within its

ambit activities within the protection of the guarantees

of free speech and assembly. Of course, I am referring

to the case of In re Blaney, which is cited under point I

of our memorandum of points and authorities. This deci-

,sion of the Supreme Court of the State of California,

like the decision of a three-judge court sitting in the

District of the State of Kansas, in the case of Stapleton

V. Mitchell, which is reported at 60 Fed. Supp. page 51,

—

The Court: Is that cited in the memorandum? I don't

remember it.

Mr. Gilbert: I don't believe it is, your Honor.

The Court: You say 60 Fed. (2d),—what page?

Mr. Gilbert: Federal Supplement, your Honor, page

51. We believe that both of those decisions are highly
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persuasive authority, that they rely expressly upon the

decisions of the Supreme Court of the United States,

identifying the right of picketing with free speech and

delimiting and defining the scope of this constitutional

right to disseminate the facts of a labor dispute.

The Court: Pardon me, Mr. Gilbert.

Mr. Gilbert: Yes, your Honor. [23]

The Court: Was that last citation a decision under

the Labor Management Act of 1947?

Mr. Gilbert: No, your Honor. Like the California

case, it is a decision under a State statute, the so-called

Kansas Industrial Peace Act, but the language and the

design and plan of these State laws invalidated by these

decisions is extremely comparable to the provisions under

attack in the present proceeding.

In the Blaney case the Supreme Court of the State

of California dealt with the so-called ''hot cargo" and

secondary boycott act of this State, which defined a

secondary boycott as "any combination or agreement to

cease performing or to cause any employee to cease

performing any services for any employer, or to cause

any loss or injury to such employer, or to his employees,

for the purpose of inducing or compelling such em-

ployer to refrain from doing business with, or handling

the products of any other employer because of a dispute

between the latter and his employees or a labor organiza-

tion."

That particular provision of California law which was

held invalid as contrary to the protections of the First

Amendment contained as well a so-called separability

clause, which I would like to touch upon briefly. That

separability clause, set forth in Section 1136 of the
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Labor Code of the State of California and a part of

this general Act stated: [24]

"If any provision of this chapter, or the applica-

tion of such provision to any person or circum-

stances, shall be held invalid, the remainder of this

chapter, or the application of such provisions or

persons or circumstances other than those as to

which it is held invalid, shall not be affected

thereby."

The comment of the court in the decision in that case

by a vote of six members of that court was that that

separability clause could not save the Act and that the

Act was subject to objection because its language was

so vague and indefinite that men of common intelligence

might differ as to its meaning and application ; and, fur-

ther, that its terms were so sweeping and broad as to

include within its scope acts which the State might law-

fully prohibit, and speech and assembly which the State

might not lawfully prohibit, and since the provisions of

that Act, generally describing the prohibited conduct,

were not mechanically severable, there was not a sec-

tion directed to picketing, a section directed to a publica-

tion of an unfair list, a section directed to making

-speeches at meetings, a section directed to, let us say

acts of violence, and so on, mechanically severable so

that the various descriptions of conduct described or

proscribed might be segregated by the court, the court

had no choice but to invalidate the entire Act. [25]

The Court: Is there any provision in the California

statute that used, either expressly or synonymously, the

word "force"?

Mr. Gilbert: The California Act uses the word "com-

pelling,"—uses the term "for the purpose of inducing or

compelling."
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Now, I confess, your Honor, difficulty with some of

these very broad terms like "promises of benefits" or

"threats of reprisal," or "inducing" or "encouraging"

or "compelling," rather than a description of the subjec-

tive acts.

The Court: I am speaking of "force," not the other

connotations.

Mr. Manoli: The word "force" is not used.

Mr. Gilbert: The word "force" is not used. There is

the term "compelling," which would be perhaps the

closest approach to it, alhough that would perhaps call

for an analysis of the legislative intent.

The Court: Isn't the connotation of the word "force"

perhaps the enforcing of some physical effort?

Mr. Gilbert: I think so.

The Court: I am not speaking of the economical pur-

pose. I am speaking of physical acts.

Mr. Gilbert: Of physical acts. Of course this Act

itself does not describe the prohibited conduct in terms

of using force, or compelling, or inducement, or re-

prisal. [26]

The Court: You are speaking of the Federal Act

now?

Mr. Gilbert: The Federal Act. It only refers to

threat of reprisal or force or promise of benefit in Sec-

tion 8(c), to which I have referred.

The Court: The terms there used are as follows:

".
. . if such expression contains no threat of

reprisal or force or promise of benefit."

Mr. Gilbert: Yes. And it is interesting to note

there

—
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The Court: Let's follow it a little further to get

your views of the analogy of the decision of the Cali-

fornia Supreme Court. It is conceded by your associate,

as I understand it, in the Federal Act there is a dif-

ferentiation, in that the Federal Act uses the word

"force," and there is no use of such word in the Cali-

fornia statute.

Mr. Gilbert: That is true.

The Court: Is it your argument that the use of the

word "force" in the Federal statute is so broad and all-

inclusive that it would necessarily involve these other

features that were discussed in the main opinion of the

California Supreme Court?

Mr. Gilbert: No, your Honor. I believe that the

problem here is raised by the fact that the terms "threat

of reprisal or force or promise of benefit" are used in

the alternative: in the disjunctive rather than in the

conjunctive; that the expression of any views will not

constitute or be [27] evidence of any unfair labor practice

under the Act if it does not contain force, that is one

thing, but then it states in the alternative "or threat of

reprisal or promise of benefit," so that it is not limited

simply to situations in which force exists.

* We would concede, and I know that my associate

would certainly want to elaborate upon the fact that

there is clear indication by the Supreme Court that where

force or violence is present a basis exists under existing

law for relief. In other words, that a State may adopt

as a matter of policy, or the Federal Government could

adopt as a matter of policy the idea of injunctive relief

against acts of force or violence. But in the present

statute, and in the petition itself filed in this action

there is no allegation that force of any sort was em-
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ployed. The affidavit of Turner clearly establishes the

completely peaceful character of the picketing, and the

language used in the petition is again in this disjunc-

tive sense, that the respondent by threat of reprisal,

order, or force, or promise of benefit brought about

this result, with no factual material supporting that

conclusion of law based upon the statutory language.

The Court: Is there a statutory provision in the

Federal Act of segregation of rights, as there is in the

State statute which you have just read?

Mr. Gilbert: The separability provision? [28]

The Court: Yes.

Mr. Gilbert: Yes, Section 16.

The Court: Read that.

Mr. Gilbert: "If any provision of this Act, or the

application of such provision to any person or

circumstances, shall be held invalid, the remainder

of this Act, or the application of such provision to

persons or circumstances other than those as to

which it is held invalid, shall not be affected

thereby."

It is almost verbatim from the separability provision

in the California statute. In that connection I would

like to call the attention of the court to Section 12, or,

rather than that section, it refers to a section imme-

diately following Section 12 of the Kansas Statute

invalidated in Stapleton v. Mitchell, and the portion of

the statute to which I have referred is found in 60 Fed-

eral Supplement, page 56, where the court says

:

"The Act also contains a severability clause to

the effect that if any provision of the Act or the

application thereof," and so on, using almost iden-

tical language with Section 16 of this Act.
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The Court: Supposing there had been the use of

the word "force" in the CaHfornia statute, do you think

the main opinion of the court would still stand? |29]

Mr. Gilbert: If I understand the question of the

court, it is as to whether if in the California statute

there had been an effort to prevent interference with the

handling of goods or merchandise by force,

—

The Court: That is not what I said.

Mr. Gilbert: I am trying my best to understand.

(Continuing) —if there was language in the California

statute which made unlawful a combination or agreement

or any act to cause any employee to cease performing

services by force or threat of reprisal or promise of

benefit, I would believe that the decision would be exactly

the same. To summarize the basic position which I have

attempted to outline, I would like to just make brief

reference initially to the language contained in the Kansas

statute invalidated in Stapleton v. Mitchell. There sub-

section 12 of Section 8 of that Act was declared by the

court to be unconstitutional and void on its face, making

it unlawful for any person to refuse to handle, install,

use or work on particular materials or equipment and

supplies because not produced, processed, or delivered bv

members of a labor organization. And, also, the court

held invalid and void on its face Section 8(3) of that

statute, making it unlawful ''to participate in any strike,

walkout or cessation of work or continuation thereof

without the same being authorized by a maioritv \ote of

the employees to be governed. . . ." [v30]

There was in the Kansas statute a provision. Section

12, "except as specifically provided in this Act. nothing

therein shall be construed so as to interfere with or

impede or diminish in any way the right to strike or the
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right of individuals to work; or shall anything in this

Act be so construed to invade unlawfully the right to

freedom of speech."

That is the so-called saving clause.

There is a so-called saving clause in Section 502 of

the entire Labor Management Relations Act of 1947 of

similar scope. The result in the Stapleton case, as in

the Blaney case in California, was to state that individual

citizens should not be placed upon their peril to determine ,

whether or not conduct, which is traditionally regarded

as an exercise of their right of free speech, publication

and assembly falls within the purview of the statute

which expresses its prohibition in vague and indefinite

terms.

We have cited to the court in this connection in point

VII of the memorandum of points and authorities the

various decisions holding that a statutory provision which

does not aim specifically at particular evils, but attempts

to blanket conduct in general terms and sweeps within

its ambit activities that in ordinary circumstances con-

stitute an exercise of freedom of speech would be held

to be invalid on its face. And under point VIII we have

dealt with the [31] doctrine as to vague, indefinite and

uncertain terms, as set forth by the Supreme Court of

the United States, and as applied in the Blaney case, and

in another picketing case, the Bell case, by the Supreme

Court of the State of California.

We have also dealt in this memorandum, and I will

not now belabor the separability clause in Section 16,

with the fact that where there is no possibility of

mechanical severance, but the general language of the

statutory provision covers both activities which might be
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prohibited and activities which might not, that the entire

section must be nuHified.

Finally, there is here the entire question of involuntary

servitude. That matter is dealt with briefly in the case

of Stapleton v. Mitchell. The petition herein seeks to

secure injunctive relief against members of Local 388,

and Mr. Turner, from engaging in a concerted refusal

in the course of their employment to transport, or other-

wise handle any goods, and from inducing or encouraging

others by orders, force, threats, or promises of benefits,

or by any other like acts or conduct to engage in a con-

certed refusal to handle these struck products.

There is one statement that I would like to quote from,

which is set forth on page 2 of the memorandum, which

I think is the nub of this case. It is a statement of Mr.

Justice [32] Rutledge in the case of Thomas v. Collins,

that:

".
. . 'Free trade in ideas' means free trade in

the opportunity to persuade to action, not merely

to describe facts . . . and the right either of

workmen or of unions under these conditions to

assemble and discuss their own affairs is as fully

protected by the Constitution as the right of busi-

nessmen, farmers, educators, political party mem-
bers, or others to assemble and discuss their affairs

and to enlist the support of others."

Again. Mr. Justice Rutledge in another portion of the

same opinion, for the court states:

".
. . Indeed, the whole history of the i)roblem

shows it is to the end of preventing action that

repression is primarily directed and to preserving the

right to urge it that the protections are given."
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Whether the device, the statutory device, to narrow

the circle of a labor dispute is that it only includes an

employer and his own employees, and would prevent

members of the public or prevent including other work-

ing people from getting the facts of the dispute, whether

that is achieved by a statutory definition of the term

"labor dispute/'

—

The Court: Pardon me, Mr. Gilbert. I will have to

interrupt to answer a phone call. One of our judges is

very sick, and I would like to answer a call from his

wife. We [33] will recess for about five minutes.

(A short recess was taken.)

The Court: I am sorry to interrupt you, gentlemen.

You may proceed.

Mr. Gilbert: In the memorandum of points and

authorities there is reference to two cases standing for

the proposition that whatever the legislative judgment,

the court must determine independently in the light of

our constitutional tradition whether a clear and present

danger of the gravest abuses endangering society as a

whole exists to justify the intrusion upon the domains of

free speech and assembly, which we believe are created

by virtue of Section 10(1) and Section 8(b)(4)(A) of

the amended Act.

It is true, as was stated by the court in the Thomas

case, that:

*'.
. . Where the line shall be placed in a par-

ticular application rests, not on such generalities, but

on the concrete clash of particular interests and the

community's relative evaluation both of them and of

how the one will be affected by the specific restric-

tion, the other by its absence."
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The answer to the question as to where that line can

constitutionally be placed under our tradition can be

affirmative to supjwrtin^ an intrusion upon the domain

of [34] free speech only if grave and impending public

danger requires, and we believe that there is no showing,

either in the legislative history of this particular statute,

or the facts that may be gleaned from an analysis of

the factual matter in the petition or the charge filed in

this proceeding that such an injunction against peaceful

picketing and other forms of free speech and assembly

is warranted by an immediate threat to the existence of

our society, as we have known it.

I appreciate the courtesy of the court in listening to

this portion of the argument, and I would like now to

retire in favor of Mr. Todd.

Mr. Todd: May it please the court, would your

Honor indicate exactly the amount of time that I have

left?

The Court: I think I took out about twenty-five

minutes. That would leave you about an hour and thirty-

five minutes.

Mr. Todd: Tf I have an hour, I would like to reservt

half of it for rebuttal, because we haven't been favored

with any brief by the complainant, and I would like to

be able to answer them.

The Court : Yes. I noticed that the government has

not complied with the local rule with respect to a memor-

andum. If you gentlemen are going to practice in this

district you had better get a copy of our local rules and

read them, and be governed accordingly. [35]

Mr. Todd: May I move that any particularitv mav

be suspended, if the court please?
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The Court: We will take that under advisement.

Mr. Manoli: We shall want to submit a memor-

andum, your Honor.

Mr. Todd: With regard to the question asked by

your Honor about the use of the word ''force," which

is not found in the California Act, but is found in the

Federal statute which we have before us. I call your

Honor's attention to the fact that the word "force" is

not used in describing the offense. The offense is de-

scribed in substantially the same language as found in

the "hot cargo" Act. In legal effect, the legal phraseology

is not exactly the same.

I shall want to show you in a few minutes, as far as

I have time, the pattern, the definite pattern laid down

by the Supreme Court of the United States, and, inci-

dentally, by the Supreme Court of California also, as

to the allowable limits of picketing, and the use of force

is absolutely outlawed by both courts. Any use of force

in connection with picketing is entirely unlawful.

I might refer just very briefly to the decision of the

Supreme Court of California in the Bell case, which is

reported at 19 Cal. (2d) 488, and I want to refer very

briefly to page 491, in which there appears the test of

an ordinance of the County of Yuba, which was invali-

dated by the Supreme Court of [36] California insofar

as it sought to prohibit peaceful picketing, and the par-

ticular section referred to there is:

"It is unlawful for any persons to beset or picket

the premises of another, or any approach thereto,

where any person is employed or seeks employ-

ment, or any place or approach thereto where such

employee or person seeking employment lodges or
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resides, for the purpose of inducing such employee

or person seeking employment, by means of com-

pulsion, coercion, intimidation, threats, acts of vio-

lence, or fear to quit his or her employment or to

refrain from seeking or freely entering into em-

ployment."

Now, the portion of the ordinance which sought to

l)revent peaceful inducement of a person working at a

certain place through a picket line was set aside, but

insofar as the ordinance sought to prevent acts of vio-

lence or fear, it was upheld.

Similarly, I notice in the decision of the Supreme

Court of the United States, that the case of Carlson v.

California involved a statute of the county of Shasta.

That decision is cited at 310 U.S. 106, and there was a

long ordinance prohibiting anyone from carrying a ban-

ner, loitering in front of, or in the vicinity of, or to picket

in front of, or in the vicinity of, or to carry, show or

display any banner, [37] transparency, badge or sign

in front of, or in the vicinity of, any works, or factory,

"for the purpose of inducing or influencing, or attempt-

ing to induce or influence, any person from doing or

performing any service or labor in any works, factory,

place of business or employment, or for the purpose of

intimidating, threatening or coercing, or attempting to

intimidate, threaten or coerce any person. . . ."

That uses the word "intimidation" and uses the word

"coercion," which our Supreme Court of California has

defined as being perfectly lawful, if lawful means are

used, and providing only peaceful means are used. That

entire ordinance was set aside by the Supreme Court.

That was a companion case to Thornhill v. Alabama,

where the Alabama statute was set aside.
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The issue here has been tendered by the government,

and the issue is very narrow. The issue is really the

lawfulness of three or four elements of the Taft-Hartley

Act, which attempts to prohibit the boycotting or picket-

ing of a product,
—

"hot cargo," in other words. That is

the entire matter, that is the entire factual issue which

is before the court, and we have it on the authority of

Chief Justice Marshall, and I believe it was in the case

of Ogden v. Saunders, and I have forgotten just what

the case was about, but I know he said that the jurisdic-

tion of the court is limited by the facts before the court.

So that the court's [38] jurisdiction here, the court's

power here is limited to a consideration of the facts

that are before the court, and the facts before the court

are, first, a statute which seeks to prevent the picketing

of the products of a struck employer, and the acts alleged

as constituting the offense are the acts of picketing those

products.

As my colleague has pointed out, the use of the word

"threat," or whatever the language is in that saving

clause, is simply thrown in. It is really "fear," and that

is really a frank way of presenting the issues here.

This section under which the court is proceeding, that

is, the section purporting to set out the unfair acts, Sec-

tion 8(b)(4)(A) is:

"(4) To engage in, or to induce or encourage

the employees of any employer to engage in. a strike

or a concerted refusal in the course of their employ-

ment to use, manufacture, process, transport, or

otherwise handle or work on any goods, articles,

materials, or commodities, or to perform any serv-

ices where an object thereof is:
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"(A) Forcing or requiring any employer or

self-employed person to join any labor or employer

organization or any employer or other j^erson to

cease using, selling, handling, transporting, or other-

wise dealing in the products of any other [39] jjro-

ducer, processor, or manufacturer, or to cease doing

business with any other person;"

That must be read along with the language of sub-

section (c) later:

''The expressing of any views, argument, or opin-

ion, or the dissemination thereof, whether in written,

printed, graphic, or visual form, shall not constitute

or be evidence of an unfair labor practice under any

of the provisions of this Act, if such expression con-

tains no threat of reprisal or force or promises of

benefit."

That has to be read with it, and what it means is

that if this encouraging or inducing an employer is

carried on by means of speech, either oral or written,

it is not unlawful unless it contains a threat of reprisal

or force or promise of benefit. That is the language

of the Act that must be given effect, and if it is given

proper effect, under the very terms of the Act T submit

there is no offense here. But I would like to go into

the constitutional question which we had up for so manv

years in our fight against the "hot cargo" Act in Cali-

fornia. The reason why the Blaney case cited by Mr.

Gilbert is pertinent here is that the decision there, bv

six out of seven of the California Supreme Court jus-

tices, that the "hot cargo" Act was unconstitutional

and could not serve as a basis for imprisoning a man
for [40] contempt of court for picketing a product, rests
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on the decision of the Supreme Court of the United

States and only secondarily on the decisions of the

Supreme Court of California.

In order that I may make my opening a real opening

so far as the constitutional phase is concerned, which

your Honor very properly required should be done, I

am going to state that the Supreme Court of the United

States has set out a definite pattern of what picketing is

lawful and what picketing is unlawful, and that the

picketing of a product such as is found here is definitely

within the lawful area. I will show you the decisions,

or, I will cite the decisions as far as I have time within

the half hour, and I will invite counsel's comments upon

them.

The Court: Pardon me' Mr. Todd. If you want to

recess now until this afternoon, I think this would be a

good time. It is just about 12:00 o'clock.

Mr. Todd: Very well. Thank you, your Honor.

The Court: 2:00 o'clock, gentlemen.

(Whereupon, at 12:00 o'clock noon, a recess was taken

until 2:00 o'clock p.m. of the same day.) [41]

Los Angeles, California, Tuesday, December 30, 1947.

2 P.M.

The Court: You may proceed.

Mr. Todd: May it please the court: I am going to

try to cover quite a little territory in a little time, so if

I move rapidly from one point to another that will be

the reason. I would like to remind your Honor at this

time that practically every case I am going to cite is a

decision annulling some statute for contravening the

provisions of the First Amendment. Almost every deci-
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sion will be such a case, so that there is nothinj^ new

about the situation we have here.

The Taft-Hartley bill is the subject of a very heated

discussion in the newspapers and elsewhere, but in this

court it is just a law, and another statute that has to

be measured up by the Bill of Rights. The charge made

against our clients here is picketing, and we must under-

stand what picketing is. Picketing is variously referred

to as merely carrying a banner up and down, and the

exercise of free speech without having any particular

effect upon anybody, but let us see what the Supreme

Court of the United States means when it speaks of

picketing.

We turn to the Thornhill case, which was the first case

in which picketing was upheld in a decision discussing

the ^ matter elaborately. Of course, in the same case

picketing [42] was referred to as a constitutional right

in the year 19Z7, but it wasn't until April, 1940. when

the Thornhill and Carlson cases came down, that the

Supreme Court actually argued out the question. I want

to refer to the Thornhill case for two reasons: first, for

the purpose of showing just what the court means when

it speaks of picketing as a means of publicizing a labor

dispute. Rut, first, T would like to speak of what we

mean when we say that the rights secured b}- the First

Amendment are cognate rights, and that the rights

secured to us by the Constitution are freedom of speech,

freedom of worship, freedom of assembly, and freedom

of the press. And freedom of picketing is referred to

there with freedom of speech. When the Supreme Court

decided that that is the exercise of free speech, it had

no previous line of decisions to cite, but here are the

cases which it cites to support the proposition that free-
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dom of speech is protected by the First Amendment,

referring, of course, to the facts before the court, which

were peaceful picketing. They cited the Schneider case.

That is all found at page 95, 310 U. S. The Schneider

case was a case holding it was a constitutional right to

distribute handbills, Dejonge v. Oregon was a case which

upheld the freedom of assembly. Grosjean v. American

Press Co. involved freedom of the press, and Near v.

Minnesota held that a State statute of Minnesota which

sought an injunction against the [43] publication of a

libel was unconstitutional. Stromberg v. California,

which we cite, was the red flag case, holding that anyone

had a constitutional right to raise the red flag if they

wanted to. And Gitlow v. New York is the case which

was the criminal anarchy case, in which the conviction

of Gitlow was upheld, but Justice Brandeis and Justice

Holmes dissented.

Now, that will illustrate what I mean by saying that

these rights are cognate rights, as stated in Thomas v.

Collins. In the Meadowmoor case the Supreme Court

said they are all facets of the same right, so that all the

rights stand or fall together; the right of free speech,

freedom of assembly, freedom of worship and freedom

of the press all stand or fall together.

I want to refer to the Thornhill case to show what

the Supreme Court meant when it says that the petitioner

has the right to picket. Here is the statute of the State

of Alabama:

''Loitering or picketing forbidden.—Any person

or persons, who, without a just cause or legal

excuse therefor, go near to or loiter about the prem-

ises or place of business of any other person, firm,

corporation, or association of people, engaged in a
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lawful business, for tlic purpose, or with the intent

of influencing, or inducing other [44] persons not

to trade with, buy from, sell to, have business deal-

ings with, or be employed by such persons, firm,

corporation, or association, or who picket the works

or place of business of such other persons, firms,

corporations, or associations of persons, for the

purpose of hindering, delaying, or interfering with

or injuring any lawful business or enterprise of

another, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, but noth-

ing herein shall prevent any person from soliciting

trade or business for a competitive business."

All right. Now, that describes picket for the pur-

pose of boycotting,—picketing pursuant to a boycott.

When the Supreme Court in the course of the opinion

several times refers to picketing as being the exercise

of the right of free speech, it refers to it as publicizing

of a labor dispute. That is what they mean; for the pur-

pose of keeping people from trading with that place

where they have a labor dispute. That was the opinion

of the Supreme Court of the United States handed down

in April of 1940 unanimously,—a unanimous decision

that has always been upheld. So we know now when the

Supreme Court of the United States speaks of picketing

they speak of it for the purpose of establishing a boycott.

I want to refer again to the case of Thomas v. Collins

[45] on this point. Counsel may tell you that this statute

must be presumed to be constitutional. This statute stands

here naked, without any presumption of constitutionality

because of the high favor granted to free speech, and I
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will read you the language of the Supreme Court of the

United States in Thomas v. Collins, 323 U.S., reading

from pages 529 to 530:

"The case confronts us again with the duty our

system places on this Court to say where the indi-

vidual's freedom ends and the State's power begins.

Choice on that border, now as always delicate, is

perhaps more so where the usual presumption sup-

porting legislation is balanced by the preferred place

given in our scheme to the great, the indispensable

democratic freedoms secured by the First Amend-

ment."

So there is no question of the constitutionality in favor

of this right secured by the First Amendment. On that

same point see the case, which is possibly not in our

memorandum, but I would like to cite it: Ex parte

Mitsuye Endo, 323 U.S. 283, at 289.

It is hardly necessary to cite to your Honor other

authorities holding that these personal rights preserved

by the First Amendment are highly favored by the courts,

as indicated by Thomas v. Collins, and they are favored

over [46] property rights. Property rights are not in

the same class with personal rights, so far as the favor

of the courts is concerned, and that is illustrated by

two cases which are in our points and authorities, Marsh

V. Alabama and Tucker v. Texas, two cases which involve

somewhat the same facts. They involved the right of

free speech in trespass. In each case there was a statute

of the State prohibiting anybody from trespassing after

being ordered to leave. I believe it was a Jehovah's

Witness case, in which the person persisted in exercising

the right of free speech. She chose not to get away the

i
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ten feet necessary to get off the property, she was con-

victed, and the conviction was reversed in each case by

the Supreme Court of the United States.

Now, I said T would define the meaning of lawful

picketing, and in doing so I must watch my time. In

the first place, picketing is defined by the Supreme Court

of California, and in much the same language and intent

by the Supreme Court of the United States as being

picketing wnth regard to a dispute having some reasonable

relevance to labor conditions. That was the Thornhill

case, Carlson v. California, Swing v. A. F. of L.,

Cafeteria Employees Union v. Angelos, and in California

the McKay and Smith Market cases. One decision which

is cited against me in almost every one of these cases is,

namely, Dorchy v. Kansas, an old case, 272 U.S. 306,

at 311, where a union was picketing to collect a stale

claim [47] belonging to one of its members, and the

Supreme Court of the United States, through Mr. Justice

Brandeis, very properly held it was not a proper subiect

of picketing, that it had no relevancy to a labor dispute.

So that fixes the fence or bar or boundary on that side,

that picketing must have relevance to a labor dispute.

Then, picketing must be peaceful. The Meadowmoor

case has been cited, where it was held where there was

violence and a threat of violence continued the picketing

must be stopped while the imminence of the threat of

violence continued, but only so far; that the picketing

could go on whenever it became peaceful.

The pattern will be shown by four decisions in one

volume of the Reports of the Supreme Court of the

United States, in Volume 315. There we have the Hotel

c^' Restaurant Employees Local v. Employment Relations

Board, 315 U.S. 437. That possibly may not be in our
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points and authorities. That was a case where the

Supreme Court—just let me check my citation on that

to be sure that I have it exactly right. There were four

cases involving the right of limiting the picketing.

The Court: Is that the Ritter's Cafe case?

Mr. Todd: That is one of the four cases.

The Court: I see.

Mr. Todd: I am right on the Hotel & Restaurant

Employees [48] case. That is 315 U.S. at 437. and

there it was held that where an injunction or where a

restrictive action by the Employment Relations Board

forbid only violence, it would not be disturbed by the

Supreme Court. There was a very hot fight over the

case, and a petition for rehearing was granted; the

Supreme Court of the State of Wisconsin explaining that

all they were preventing was violence. That illustrates

that violence may be prevented by a State, because the

State always had the right to keep the peace.

Now, another case there was the Allen-Bradley case.

That also came from Wisconsin, the Allen-Bradley case,

315 U.S. 740. That was where the Supreme Court upheld

the injunction so far as it prevented violence or physical

obstruction of entry and egress or mass picketing, or

picketing at the homes of employees. Picketing of those

various types was prohibited because the State has the

right to keep the peace in connection with picketing or in

connection with anything else. That is two of the cases.

The other two are the Wohl case, 315 U.S. 769. That is

a case that comes very close to the facts in the case at bar.

That was a case in New York where the Bakery Drivers I

were having a controversy with the wholesale bakers and

picketed the bread in the hands of customers of their for-
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mcr employers. That, a^ain, was a unanimous decision of

the Supreme Court of the United States upholding that

picketing is a constitutional [49] right, although appar-

ently prohibited, or the courts of New York thought it

was prohibited by the State of New York as not being a

true labor dispute. Yet the Supreme Court of the United

States upheld that right of picketing a product, which is

just exactly what we have before us in this case.

The fourth case is the Ritter's Cafe case, which I have

cited against me in every case of this character that I

have had in recent years since the case was decided, and

there is one paragraph which they always leave out. and

I am going to read that paragraph to your Honor so

that you will have it.

That was a case where a man who owned a cafe down

in Houston, or one of the Texas cities, which was fully

unionized, w^as putting up a building a mile and a half

away which, so far as the record showed, had no con-

nection whatever with the cafe. His contractor had some

trouble with the Carpenters & Joiners Union, and the

Carpenters & Joiners first picketed the contractor. The

case got to the Supreme Court eventually and they said

they had a perfect right to picket the contractor and

picket the contractor's business, but they could not picket

the cafe because it had no nexus, it had no economic

interdependence with the construction job which was

the subject of the dispute. Now, I want to just read you

the paragraph which the other side never cites, at [50]

page 737. No, it isn't 7Z7. It must be 727. Yes, 727:

"Texas has undertaken to localize industrial con-

flict by prohibiting the exertion of concerted pres-

sure directed at the business, wholly outside the

economic context of the real dispute,"—by definition
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that would not have included that among the defini-

tions of picketing
—

"of a person whose relation to

the dispute arises from his business dealings with

one of the disputants. The State has not attempted

to outlaw whatever psychological pressure may be

involved in the mere communication by an individual

of the facts relating to his differences with another.

Nor are we confronted here with a limitation upon

speech in circumstances where there exists an 'inter-

dependence of economic interest of all engaged in

the same industry,' " citing the famous Swing case,

and others.

Then it goes on:

"Compare Journeymen Tailors Union Local No. 195

V. Miller's," and so on, and then it goes on further

:

"The line drawn by Texas in this case,"—that is

holding that there must be a common interdepend-

ence
—

"is not the line drawn by New York in the

Wohl case. The dispute there related to the condi-

tions under which bakery products were sold [51]

and delivered to retailers. The business of the re-

tailers was therefore directly involved in the

dispute."

Just as you have here, the product is directly involved

in the dispute.

"In picketing the retail establishments, the union

members would only be following the subject-matter

of their dispute."

And the Wohl case, as I say, was decided unanimously,

upholding the right to picket the product.

I want to read just a short paragraph from a leading;

case with regard to the picketing of a product in the
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State of California, and I am referring to the case of

Fortenbury v. Superior Court, 16 Cal. (2d) 405, and,

as I say, I want to read just a paragraph from page 408.

This was one of the McKay cases in which picketing was

upheld as a constitutional right:

"Although the respondent argues that a person

secondarily boycotted is an innocent third party

caught between the upper and lower millstones of

an industrial dispute in which he has no interest,

this is clearly not correct."—This is the language of

Mr. Justice Edmonds, speaking for the Court
—"One

who sells a product of a merchant or manufacturer

engaged in a labor dispute with his [52] employees,

inescapably becomes an ally of the employer. He has

a direct unity of interest with the one against whom
labor's complaint is directed. By providing an outlet

for that product, he enables the employer to maintain

the working conditions against which labor is pro-

testing."—Which Mr. Gilbert told you about this

morning from the affidavit
—"And unless the union

is allowed to follow the product to the place where

it is sold and to ask the public by peaceful represen-

tations to refrain from purchasing it, the workers

^ have no real opportunity to tell their story to those

whose interest or lack of interest will, in large

measure, determine the issues in dispute." Citing the

New York case of Goldfinger v. Feintuch, which I

believe was one of Mr. Justice Cardozo's decisions.

Now, to get back here a moment, the Supreme Court

in fixing this area within which picketing will be up-

held, and this area is referred to in the Blanev case, in

general said that picketing cannot be limited to a dispute

between an employer and his own employees. That reallv
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brings up the whole issue of secondary action. If picket-

ing of a labor dispute could be limited to an employer

and his own employees, then, of course, the worker would

be very much hampered in collective action. So our

Supreme Court in Swing v. A. R of L. [53] which is

cited in our memorandum held that workers in the same

industry, though not working for the same employer,

were interested in the conditions at his place. That was

a case where there was picketing by the beauticians of

beauty parlors not unionized. That is reported in 312

U.S. It is right along as a companion case to the

Meadowmoor case, in 312 U.S. I can give you the cita-

tion, although I am sure it is in our points and authori-

ties. It is 312 U.S. 321. That was decided and that is

reported in 312 U.S. In 315 U.S. we have the Ritter's

Cafe case.

Now I want to cite another case decided after the

Ritter's Cafe case, and making exactly the same holding

as in the Swing case. I am referring to the Angelos

case, Cafeteria Employees Union v. Angelos, reported

in 320, I believe it is, 320 U.S. I am sure it is. Yes,

here we are. Cafeteria Employees Union v. Angelos,

320 U.S. 293. That was where a cafeteria was appar-

ently, according to one contention, being run by its own-

ers, they had no employees, and they were picketed by

the Culinary Workers, and the point was raised, or, in

the first place, they claimed the pickets should not have

said things about them, that they were Fascists, and so

forth, and Justice Frankfurter said that was a part of

the key and character of industrial disputes. But one

of the points raised was that these people were outsiders,

they were not employees, and it was argued tliey had

[54] no right to demonstrate or picket this particular
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place. vSo the Supreme Court upholds the right to picket

and uses the same language previously used in the Swing

case. The court said, and this is quoting from the deci-

sion at the end of page 295 and page 296:

".
. . The court here, as in the Swing case,

was probably led into error by assuming that if a

controversy does not come within the scope of State

legislation limiting the issue of injunctions, efforts

to make known one side of an industrial controversy

by peaceful means may be enjoined. But, as we

have heretofore decided, a State cannot exclude

working men in a particular industry from putting

their case to the public in a peaceful way 'by draw-

ing the circle of economic competition between em-

ployers and workers so small as to contain only

an employer and those directly employed by him.'
"

That quotation is from the Swing case.

The court does not permit such a restriction of the

circle of economic comj^etition, and, as I say, that raises

the whole question of secondary action, which is involved

in the case we have before us.

Now, the cases I have cited hold that where picketing

fulfills these various conditions, that is, where picketing

is in a dispute reasonably relevant to labor conditions,

where [55] it is peaceful, where it is not limited to the

economic nexus, or, rather, where it is where it does

come within the economic nexus, within the economic

interdependence, it may be freely carried on.

That is so held in the Ritter's Cafe case, the W'ohl

case, the Park & Tilford case, which is a California case

cited in our points and authorities, and in the Blaney

case.
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Incidentally, I might refer to this case. I have many

other authorities here which I could cite, but I don't think

it is necessary in this opening argument. Your Honor

is familiar with the fine set of works called the Restate-

ments of the Law. The Restatement of Torts came out,

I believe, in 1939. That was before the constitutional

decisions upholding the constitutional right of picketing,

so those volumes must have been worked up way along in

the '30s, long before there was any recognition of the

constitutional right of picketing. The authors of the work

found great difficulty in defining "boycott," as many other

people have found. So they did not use the word "boy-

cott." They described the acts, and they upheld the

secondary boycott. That isn't binding upon this court

in this particular case because we say you have no juris-

diction because this statute contravenes constitutional

rights. But it is certainly interesting to note that a

group of representative lawyers working up a restate-

ment of the law should recognize a secondary [56] boy-

cott as one of the normal incidents of an industrial

dispute and should have upheld the secondary boycott

if carried on without violence and without fraud and

the other norms.

I should like to save the rest of my time for rebuttal,

and I thank your Honor for your attention.

Mr. Manoli: I would like to take a moment, if the

court please, at the outset to discuss the nature of these

proceedings. These proceedings' are brought on behalf

of the Board's Regional Director in the Los Angeles

office by virtue of Section 10(1) of the Act. Section

10(1) of the Act provides that whenever it is charged

that a violation of Section 8(b)(4)(A) has been com-

mitted, or other subsections of Section 8(b)(4), and
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the regional director finds there is reasonable cause to

believe that the charges are true and that a complaint by

the Board should issue, then the regional officer or the

person to whom the investigation has been assigned shall

make application to a District Court for appropriate

injunctive relief, pending the adjuciation of the matter

by the Board.

Under the Board's rules, whenever we apply for or

file a petition of this kind, we are required, or, the

regional office is required to issue a complaint against the

respondents. The complaint starts the proceedings before

the Board, the matter then is taken up before the Board's

trial [57] examiner, who hears the evidence, the testi-

mony in the case, and then he, in turn, files an interme-

diate report. The intermediate report goes to the Board

and the Board then decides the case for itself. Upon
the Board's order either denying relief to the charging

party, or finding that there is an unfair labor practice

committed by the respondents, whatever party is

aggrieved may then appeal to the Circuit Court of

Appeals, whichever one is appropriate, and there test the

Board's order as to whether or not it is proper and

lawful, and u|X)n the decision of the Circuit Court of

Appeals there may be an appeal to the Supreme Court.

What I am trying to bring out is the narrow issue

which is before the court, as we conceive it, apart from

the constitutional questions involved in this case. The

issue, as we see it, before this court is not so much to

determine the merits of the case. The merits of the case

under the statutory scheme would be decided by the

board initially, and by the Circuit Court of Appeals, and

possibly by the Supreme Court.
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Before this court we are here in what we may call

an interlocutory injunction proceeding; in other words,

to compel the respondents to quit doing what they are

doing, which we think is an unfair labor practice, until

such time as the Board has a chance to pass upon this

case and determine whether or not the respondents are,

in fact, committing [58] an unfair labor practice in

violation of this statute. Whenever the Board issues its

decision, if we obtain an injunction from the court, that

injunction then expires, and then we may go to the Cir-

cuit Court of Appeals for whatever relief is needed, pend-

ing decision by the Supreme Court.

So the issue before this court is whether or not upon

the investigations made by the Regional Director there

is reasonable cause for him to believe, probable cause,

or, reasonable cause is the way the statute is framed,

that a violation of the Act has been committed as

charged, and that a complaint should issue. Our position

is that if this court agrees there is reasonable cause to

believe that such a violation has been committed, then

we are entitled to injunctive relief; that it is not for this

court to determine the disputed questions of fact or

even disputed questions of law, except in a very narrow

sense, and that is whether or not the Regional Director

has reasonable cause to believe, as I say, that a violation

has been committed. ^

I want to call attention to that because since these

proceedings are rather new, not only to us, but I am

quite sure to the District Courts as well; we didn't have

this sort of thing under the old National Labor Relations

Act. It is something entirely new, set up by the so-called

Taft-Hartley Act. [59]
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The Court: Do you argue that this Act brings into

play new principles of equity?

Mr. Manoli: No, your Honor, I do not say that, but

I say that under the statute we are required, whenever

the Regional Director has reasonable cause to believe

that a violation has been committed, to come into a court

of equity; that it is mandatory upon us to come in and

ask for injunctive relief, and for that injunctive relief,

we do not have to show, as we see it, irreparable harm,

as is usually the case—as is the case in an equity pro-

ceeding. We are enjoined to show that only when we

are asking for a temporary restraining order, and the

language of the statute says—this is Section 10(1), your

Honor

:

"Whenever it is charged that any person has

engaged in an unfair labor practice with the mean-

ing of paragraph (4) (A), (B) or (C) of Section

8(b) the preliminary investigation of such charge

shall be made forthwith and given priority over all

other cases except cases of like character in the

office where it is filed or to which it is referred. If.

after such investigation, the officer or regional attor-

ney to whom the matter may be referred has reason-

able cause to believe such charge is true and that

a complaint should issue, he shall, on behalf of the

Board, petition any District Court [60] of the

United States (including the District Court of the

United States for the District of Columbia) within

any district where the unfair labor practice in ques-

tion has occurred, is alleged to have occurred, or

wherein such person resides or transacts business,
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for appropriate injunctive relief pending the final

adjudication of the Board with respect to such

matter."

Then the statute goes on to say:

"Provided Further, That no temporary restraining

order shall be issued without notice unless a petition

alleges that substantial and irreparable injury to

the charging party will be unavoidable and such

temporary restraining order shall be effective for

no longer than five days and will become void at

the expiration of such period."

We are not asking for a temporary restraining order.

We are asking for what I have described as an inter-

locutory injunction, which will be good, if issued, until

the Board decides the case, and we submit that since the

statute makes no provision in an injunction proceeding

of this kind for a showing of irreparable harm, that we

do not have to show it. The statute says we have to make

that showing only when we ask for a temporary restrain-

ing order. It makes no reference to a matter such as

this, to an injunction such as [61] this.

The Court: What is the purpose of the interlocutory

injunction?

Mr. Manoli: I think the purpose of it, your Honor,

is to sort of undo, have certain things undone, until there

is a legal determination by the Board,—until there is a

determination with respect to the legal issues by the

Board and ultimately by the Circuit Court of Appeals.

It does involve a certain amount of duplication, I grant

you, your Honor; that cases will be frequently heard

before District Courts and at the same time before the

Board, but that is the scheme of the statute.
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The Court: That argument is tantamount to saying,

is it not, that the act of an administrative officer ex

proprio vigore, without any substantial basis, would be

sufficient to put into operation a court of equity to issue

an injunction?

Mr. Manoli : Not exactly that, your Honor. We
would have to make a showing by testimony that the

Regional Director does have reasonable cause to believe

that a violation has been committed. I think it will come

out in this particular case that there is very little dispute

as to the facts, and the chances are that we will not have

to put on any testimony. But let us assume that in the

case there was an answer filed to the Board's petition

denying the facts [62] or the allegations in the Board's

petition. Then we would be compelled to bring in wit-

nesses here showing the basis of the Regional Director's

determination that he has reasonable cause to believe

that a violation has been committed. I don't think that

is quite as narrow an action as your Honor indicated in

your question.

The court still does have the question of determining

whether or not the regional director does have reasonable

cause to believe that a violation has been committed. The

Regional Director cannot simply come in and say, "I think

a violation has been committed, and I want the court to

issue an injunction." It is not quite that simple. We
do have to show^ that upon the facts the Regional Director

can properly entertain reasonable cause that a violation

has been committed.

Now, as to the facts in this case I think I can sav

that there is little disagreement between the petitioner,

on the one hand, and the respondents, on the other. The

facts, briefly, are something like this: The union in this
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case has a dispute with this Sealright Company, the

charging party here, over terms of conditions of employ-

ment. The union has gone out on strike. So far as I

know, the strike is perfectly lawful. Then the union

has gone to the Express Company which handles the

goods of Sealright, and it has also gone over to the

Terminal which likewise handles certain [63] products of

Sealright, and has established a picket line at these

places so as to induce or persuade the employees of these

two particular outfits that do business with Sealright

not to handle the goods of Sealright. We do not assert

that there has been any violence on the picket line, or

that any threats have been made, any express threats

have been made. The picketing I think can be termed

peaceful picketing in the sense that there has been no

violence on the picket line, no disturbance of any kind.

Nevertheless, we feel that this sort of picketing is a

violation of Section 8(b)(4)(A) of the Act. Congress

in enacting Section 8(b)(4)(A) of the Act had, as

legislative history of the Act shows, this in mind: it

sought to localize industrial dispute between the employer

immediately concerned and his employees and the labor

organization which represented them. Congress was very

much concerned over the fact that frequently unions

who were involved in a dispute with employer A would

seek to bring pressure to bear upon the employees of

employer B, who did business with employer A, so as to,

in turn, put pressure on employer B not to do business

with employer A. Congress felt that sort of thing, and

I think ' it has been frequently described as secondary

boycott,—felt that sort of thing was inimical to the

general welfare of the country, and it sought to put

certain limitations upon it. One of the common ways
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in which this sort of i)ressure is brought upon [64] the

employees of an employer with whom the union has no

dispute is, of course, the picket line.

There has been a great deal said about free speech,

whether it is free speech, and as to what its char-

acter is. There are a great number of decisions by

the Supreme Court, and I am not attempting to mini-

mize the force of the decisions. They are hard to

explain away, but I think the Ritter's Cafe case, de-

cided in 1942, furnishes us with a basis for the

argument that Congress may limit industrial conflict

so that the conflict takes place only between the employer

immediately concerned and his employees, and so as to

prevent the unions from bringing pressure to bear upon

the employees of another employer so that they will

engage in a concerted refusal to handle the goods of the

employer with whom the union is having the real dis-

pute, and, therefore, force the second employer to cease

doing business with that particular employer. The Ritter

decision is not, of course, on the motion, but I think the

maxim of the case furnishes us with a basis which justi-

fies the upholding of the constitutionality of this section

of the Act. In that case Ritter owned a restaurant, and

he had contracted with one Plaster—it is very easv for

me to remember his name—he had contracted with one

Plaster to build another building for him. Plaster was

having trouble with the Carpenters union because he

would not employ union i)eople on the [65] construction

site. The union then began to picket Ritter's restaurant.

The union had no trouble with Ritter over his restaurant,

and Ritter's employees had no difficulty with their em-

ployer. The State of Texas brought proceedings against

the union in that case—or, before I get to that, the union
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then began, as I say, to picket Ritter's Restaurant, and

proceedings were brought against the union under the

Texas Antitrust Law, alleging that this sort of picketing,

which was perfectly peaceful and no threats were being

made, was contrary to the Texas Antitrust Law. In that

case Mr. Justice Frankfurter in the opinion for the

majority of the court said:

"It is true that by peaceful picketing workingmen

communicate their grievances. As a means of com-

municating the facts of a labor dispute, peaceful

picketing may be a phase of the constitutional right

of free utterance. But recognition of peaceful

picketing as an exercise of free speech does not

imply that the states must be without power to con-

fine the sphere of communication to that directly

related to the dispute. Restriction of picketing to

the area of the industry within which a labor dispute

arises leaves open to the disputants other traditional

modes of communication. To deny to the states the

power to draw this [66] line is to write into the

Constitution the notion that every instance of peace-

ful picketing—anywhere and under any circum-

stances—is necessarily a phase of the controversy

which provoked the picketing. Such a view of the

Due Process Clause would compel the state to allow

the disputants in a particular industrial episode to

conscript neutrals having no relation to either the

dispute or the industry in which it arose.

"In forbidding such conscription of neutrals, in

the circumstances of the case before us, Texas rep-

resents the prevailing, and probably the unanimous,

policy of the states. We hold that the Constitution



vs. Howard f. LeBaron, etc. 207

does not forbid Texas to draw the line which has

been drawn here. To hold otherwise would be to

transmute vital constitutional liberties into doctrin-

aire dogma. We must be mindful that 'the rights

of employers and emi)loyees to conduct their eco-

nomic affairs and to compete with others for a

share in the products of industry are subject to

modification or qualification in the interests of the

society in which they exist. This is but an instance

of the power of the State to set the limits of ])er-

missibledontestopento industrial combatants.' " [67]

In this case we say that Congress in the exercise of

its plenary power over commerce, which is like a State

in the exercise of its police case, as in the Ritter case

that Congress, in the exercise of their power, may draw

this line and say that a labor organization or its agents

shall not induce or encourage the employees of another

employer to engage in a concerted refusal to handle

goods where the purpose is to cause that employer to

cease doing business with the employer with whom the

union is having difiiculties.

That, in substance, your Honor, is the position we

take in this case. Congress has given a great deal of

thought to this problem, has given a great deal of thought

to the matter of the secondary boycott upon tlie general

welfare of the nation, and has come to draw this line,

and we think, under the principle enunciated in the Ritter

case, Congress can properly draw that line.

Now, I would like to also quote, in connection with

the Ritter case, from the case of Stapleton v. Mitchell,
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as to which counsel for the union has already argued.

That is in 60 Fed. Supp., page 51. I think the language

in that case is helpful to a decision in this case. In

that case Judge Murrah of the Tenth Circuit, speaking

for a three-judge court said:

"As we have said, the process of self-organization,

collective bargaining and all other [68] allied union

activities necessarily involve the rights of free

speech, press and assembly which may not be condi-

tioned by statute or previous restraint by injunctive

process, but we must also recognize that the sum

total of all union activities are directed toward eco-

nomic objectives and necessarily involve purely com-

mercial activities which may be regidated in the

public interest on any reasonaole basis. In short,

when used as an economic weapon in the field of

industrial relations or as coercive technique, speech,

press and assembly are subject to reasonable regu-

lation in the public interest and in that respect the

State is the primary judge of the need, and it is

not required ^to wait until the danger to the commu-

nity which it seeks to avoid is 'clear and present.'
"

There is one other point I want to cover before I am

through here, and that is Section 8(c) of the Act. Sec-

tion 8(c) of the Act provides that:

"The expressing of any views, argument, or

opinion, or the dissemination thereof, whether in

written, printed, graphic, or visual form, shall not

constitute or be evidence of an unfair labor practice

under any of the provisions of this Act, |69] if

such expression contains no threat of reprisal or

force or promise of benefit."
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That section of the Act must be read—or, ])erhaps

the other way around. Section 8(b)(4)(A) reads:

"(b) It shall be an unfair labor practice for a

labor organization or its agents

—

********
"(4) To engage in or to induce or encourage

the employees of any employer to engage in, a

strike,"

and so on, and that must be read in conjunction with

Section 8(c), because Section 8(c) says,

**The expressing of any views, argument, or opinion,

or the dissemination thereof, whether in written,

printed, graphic, or visual form, shall not constitute

or be evidence of an unfair labor practice under

any of the provisions of this Act . . ."

We say, your Honor, that the picketing as being con-

ducted in this case is more than an expression of views,

or argument, or opinion. It is a coercive technique, and

the Supreme Court has recognized that, I think, in the

Ritter case, and it is also recognized in the quotation I

just read from Stapleton v. Mitchell, and that is, where

you have a coercive technique, it is not within the protec-

tions of Section 8(c) so as not to be an unfair labor

practice because it is the expressing of views, argument,

or opinion, or the dissemination [70] thereof. This pick-

eting is something more than that, and for that reason

we believe it comes within the prohibition of Section

8(b)(4)(A).

Counsel for the other side, in addition to their argu-

ments on the basis of the First Amendment, have also

sought to sustain their position on the basis of the Thir-
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teenth Amendment, which prohibits involuntary servi-

tude. I do not believe that that amendment is in this

case at all, your Honor.

Section 8(b) (4) of the Act provides that it shall be

an unfair labor practice for a labor organization or its

agents to engage in various conduct. There is nothing

in this act which makes it an unfair labor practice for

an individual employee to quit. What is the unfair labor

practice is something which is done by the labor organiza-

tion or its agents. We are not asking in this case here

for an order which compels the employees here to handle

the goods of Sealright. That is their privilege. If they

do not want to do so, they have a perfect right to follow

that course. What we are asking for is an order to

restrain the labor organization or its agents from induc-

ing or persuading them to engage in a concerted refusal

of this kind that has taken place in this case.

The Court: How would you frame that kind of an

injunction? What would you say in the edict? [71]

Mr. Manoli : Well, your Honor, I must be frank and

say that I haven't given a great deal of thought to the

framing of the injunction as yet.

The Court: You have all the facts here. You say

there is no dispute on the facts. What kind of an in-

junctive order would you hold should be made?

Mr. Manoli: I think you might perhaps enjoin them

from engaging in this concerted picketing by threats of

reprisal or by promises of benefits, and other like acts.

The Court: Those are simply the words of the

statute.

Mr. Manoli : Yes, they are, your Honor.
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The Court: You think those words are self-inter-

pretive ?

Mr. Manoli : I think that if we made it as sj)ecific

as that we coukl not have too much trouble with under-

standing what is meant.

The Court: If that argument goes to its logical con-

clusion, doesn't it prohibit picketing?

Mr. Manoli: Does it prohibit picketing?

The Court: Yes,

Mr, Manoli : We think it does, your Honor, because

we think by means of this picketing the union here is

applying a coercive technique to persuade these employees

in the Express Company and the Terminal to engage in

a concerted refusal in the course of business to handle

the products of Sealright, so that their employer, in turn,

would he required [72] to cease doing business with Seal-

right.

Your Honor, I am sorry I wasn't aware of the rules

of this court requiring the submitting of a memorandum

in support of our postion. I would like to have a few

days so that I could do that. Would your Honor desire

to set any time limit, or would by the end of this week

be all right?

The Court : Yes, I think so.

Mr. Manoli : Thank you. your Honor.

Mr. Todd : Your Honor, please, counsel cites the

Stapleton v. Mitchell case, and he cites the general lan-

guage of the court to the effect that Congress, as a legis-

lative body, has the right to limit or to regulate picket-

ing. I can give him where the general language T refer

to is used. What we are concerned with is whether or
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not the Supreme Court has laid down the general rule.

It says, "Yes, you have the general right, but here is

what you cannot do, and here is what the legislative body

can do." Then in Stapleton v. Mitchell, and this is

Justice Murrah's statement w^e are concerned with, in 60

Fed Supp., page 56, column 1, and here is paragraph

(3) of the statute that is before the court, which makes

it unlawful for any person:

"(3) To participate in any strike, walk-out or

cessation of work or continuation thereof without

the same being authorized by a majority vote of the

employees '

. . ." [73]

That is not what we are concerned with here, but

that is one of the sections that is set out. Yes, now here

is Section 12, where it is unlawful:

"(12) To refuse to handle, install, use, or work

on particular materials or equipment and supplies

because not produced, processed, or delivered by

members of a labor organization: (13) to cause

any cessation of work or inter fer with the progress

of work by reason of any jurisdictional dispute,

grievance or disagreement between or within labor

organizations; . . ."

"Jurisdictional,"—it is very similar to the situation we

have here. And if you turn over then to page 62, it

says:

"We conclude that subsections (3), (12) and

(13) of Section 8 of the Act are unconstitutional

and void on their face, and the defendants are

enjoined from enforcing or giving effect thereto."
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vSo wc have the language of tlic Circuit Court telling

legislative bodies exactly what they can and wliat they

cannot do.

Counsel was very frank in saying that the purpose

of this Act is to limit industrial disputes to an employer

and his own employees. Now, let us see what the Su-

preme Court said. I cited this before, but it is worth

reading again. Let us [74] see what the Supreme Court

said in the Angelos case. That is, Cafeteria Employees

Union v. Angelos, 320 U.S. 293, decided November 22,

1943, which was a year and a half after the Ritter's

Cafe case. That was a case which involved the conten-

tion that the State of New York had a right to limit

the area of an industrial dispute to an employer and

his own employees, almost exactly what counsel said,

almost his exact language. Now, let us see what the

Supreme Court said at page 295 and 296:

. The Court here, as in the Swing case,

was probably led into error by assuming that if

a controversy does not come within the scope of

State legislation limiting the issue of injunctions,

efforts to make known one side of an industrial

controversy by peaceful means may be enjoined. But,

as we have heretofore decided, a State cannot ex-

clude workingmen in a particular industry from

putting their case to the public in a peaceful way"

—

that is what our people are doing; they are putting

their case to the public in a peaceful way—" 'bv

drawing the circle of economic competition lietween

employers and workers so small as to contain onlv

an employer and those directly employed by him.'
"
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The Supreme Court says you cannot do it, the legisla-

tive [75] body cannot do it, and that is quoting from

the language of the Swing case, 312 U.S. at 326. So we

have the court in two cases within a period of two or

three years using exactly the same language and saying

that a legislative body cannot limit the area of industrial

disputes to a circle including only one employer and his

own employees.

I do not know whether it is necessary to go very

deeply into counsel's argument. He says that "we do not

claim violence or threats." In other words, I suppose

he would say that he doesn't claim any promise of benefits

either, so that the language of the immunizing statute

does not apply here. He admits there wasn't any violence

and threats, and probably admits there wasn't any prom-

ise of benefits. Therefore, what they are seeking to

enjoin is picketing, which was upheld by the Supreme

Court, certainly since April, 1940. And he says the

picketing has coercive force. Of course it has. That is

what picketing is. It is publicizing a dispute for the

purpose of helping the union and helping to keep away

business from the particular employer, and also to picket

his product wherever it goes, because both in the Wohl

case, the decision of the Supreme Court, and in the

Fortenbury case, the decision of the Supreme Court of

California, in which they cited the Supreme Court of

New York, Goldfinger v. Feintuch, they hold that the

only opportunity that the union has to publicize the dis-

pute is by going where the product is [76] transported

or is on sale.

Then, as T pointed out, they are trying to fly exactly

in the face of the decisions of the Supreme Court with

regard to limiting the area of an industrial dispute. There
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is the Wohl case, as I pointed out to you, which was

a unanimous decision. Let me look at the Angelos case

and see whether that is also a unanimous decision. The
Wohl case was. There is no dissenting opinion, appar-

ently, in the Cafeteria Employees v. Angelos case, and

they say in both cases that you cannot limit the dispute

to an employer and his own employees.

Counsel says that the conditions which brought on

the "hot cargo" Act,—for that matter, more or less says

you must not have that. Now, I didn't go into a second-

ary boycott, except as here, boycotting a product which

we contend is proper and a true secondary boycott. That

is all.

Would your Honor allow us to reply to counsel's

memorandum in writing?

The Court: Yes.

Mr. Todd: We thank you for your attention, and we
would be glad to file the argument in a little more sub-

stantial way.

The Court: You may file your memorandum by

Saturday of this week, Mr. Manoli, and then the other

side will have—how many days do you want? Three or

four days?

Mr. Todd: I imagine it will be rather a formidable

[77} document. Could we have a week?

The Court: Any objection?

Mr. Manoli : No objection.

The Court: Very well.

Mr. Todd : Thank you.

The Court: Gentlemen, the court posed to counsel,

and I don't know whether it was done in the presence

of all of you or not, but the question was as to whether
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this might not be a three-judge case, in view of the

manner in which the argument has developed? Have you

given that any thought at all?

Mr. Gilbert: Yes, we have, your Honor. All of the

cases which we can find in which that particular section

of the Judicial Code—I believe it is Section 266 to which

I have reference—has been invoked have been cases in

which a private party has sought injunctive relief against

the enforcement of either a Federal or a State law.

In Hague v. C.I.O., which is one case, that was action

brought under the Civil Rights Act by a labor organiza-

tion to enjoin the enforcement of a municipal ordinance.

In Stapleton v. Mitchell, to which we have referred here,

that was a case of seeking an injunction against the

Kansas statute. There is a recent case, the title of which

escapes me, but which is a decision, I believe, which

counsel for the Board can perhaps enlighten us on, in

which the validity of [78] Section 10(h) has been

brought into play, the question of so-called loyalty affi-

davits, and there was an action to enjoin the Board from

proceeding. I know of no case in which it holds that

the enforcement of a purported statutory proceeding or

statutory right by the governmental agency itself requires

the three-judge court under that particular section.

Mr. Manoli: I didn't know that your Honor posed

that question, but my understanding of the law is as Mr.

Gilbert has stated it.

The Court: What was that case under Section

10(h)?

Mr. Manoli : I expect you are referring to the case

in Texas?

Mr. Gilbert: That is right.
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Mr. ManoH: That was a case with only one judge.

The Court: What was that case?

Mr. ManoH: That is the Oil Workers Union

against

—

The Court: You can cite it in your memorandum, if

you will.

Mr. Manoli: Yes.

Mr. Todd : I was going to suggest that we might

cover it in that memorandum. I am sure we all want

to have it before the court that has the proper juris-

diction.

The Court: Very well.

(Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 7, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Clerk. [79]

Los Angeles, California, Friday, February 13, 1948,

2:00 P.M.

The Clerk: No. 7859 Civil, Howard F. Lebaron. etc.

vs. Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union.

Hearing settlement and entry of Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law. George H. O'Brien for the Peti-

tioner. Gilbert and Sapiro for the Respondents.

The Court: May I have the file? Gentlemen, I

thought it well, in view of the objections filed by the

Respondents, to advise all of you that this is the time

fixed for the settlement of the Findings of Fact and

Conclusions of Law. and Injunctive Relief, pursuant to

order entered February 11, 1948. Tf there is anything

further to add to what you have stated in your objections,

I shall be glad to hear it.
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Mr. Gilbert: On behalf of the Respondents, your

Honor, I believe that we have nothing further to add.

I would like to make one brief statement.

We have submitted to your Honor proposed Findings

of Facts and particularly with reference to those pro-

posed findings relating to the economic background of

this dispute, from which the situation flowed. That is

before this Court. It is our very conscientious desire

to have the Court, if it will, and if it desires, make find-

ings in respect to those matters, in order to have complete

findings for the purpose of any appeal which might be

taken upon constitutional [2] grounds.

With respect to the order for injunctive relief itself,

as stated in the memorandum, I simply would like to

reaffirm here orally today our conscientious desire to

advise our clients, once the order is made, in such a

fashion that they will be able to scrupulously observe

the order of this Court; and it is for that reason we

have urged upon the Court that the order should have

such particularity that we will be able to accomplish that

result.

Without in any way reflecting upon the merits of the

situation, we frankly and most sincerely state to the

Court that we find ourselves incapable of advising our

clients as to the exact scope of an order couched in

the language of the Act itself, because there is some con-

fusion in our minds as to whether the dictionary defini-

tion of the language of this particular section of the Act

is intended to apply, or whether there are any construc-

tions or representations in that language. As I say, it

is not raised in any way to reflect upon the merits, but

we want to be in a position to advise our clients so they

will scrupulously obey the order of this Court, and not

I
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find themselves not hewing strictly to the line, according

to the scope of this Court's injunctive relief.

Mr. O'Brien: With reference to the first point raised

by Mr. Gilbert, on the economic background, I think that

can [3] probably be covered by language substantially

as follows, in the Findings of Fact:

"That on or about November 3, 1947, Local 388,

having failed to reach an agreement with Sealright,

caused a strike against Sealright."

On the second matter raised by Mr. Gilbert, as to the

particularity of the order, I endeavored to follow the

Court's instructions, or decision, by following strictly the

language of the Act. 1 do suggest that to the following

language, on line 16, page 5, of the proposed order, which

reads

:

''Engaging in, or inducing or encouraging, the

employees of the employer"

that there be added the following words:

"by picketing, orders, force, threats, or promises of

benefit, or by permitting any such to remain in force,

or by any like or related acts or conduct"

then the text of the proposed order would resume as

stated on line 17:

"to engage in, a strike or a concerted refusal in the

course of their employment to use,"

I have had the final page of the proposed order retvped,

and would like to submit it to counsel and to the Court.

The Court: You may do so. As to the first sugges-

tion [4] that you made, where would you propose that

that be incorporated into the findings?
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Mr. O'Brien: If the Court please, that could be

incorporated, and I think the proper place for it would

be at the end of Findings Sixth, as a new Section 7, and

Section Seventh and Section Eighth should thereafter

be renumbered.

The Court: Will you read the first proposal, Mr.

Dewing?

(Record read by the reporter.)

The Court: What is your reaction to that, Mr.

Gilbert?

Mr. Gilbert: May it please the Court, particularly

in view of the decisions of the Supreme Court of the

United States with respect to picketing matters, I think

it is clear that in almost every one of these cases the

court has had before it, and properly should have before

it, the factual situation giving rise to picketing activities.

We have submitted in our proposed findings of fact

certain uncontroverted factual material drawn from the

affidavit of Mr. Turner, which does give the background

in this situation and the exact issues in dispute between

the employer and his employees : the fact that the Union

was a statutory bargaining representative of the em-

ployees; and the number of employees who joined in the

strike; the relationship between the wages paid and the

wages offered by this employer, and the prevailing stand-

ards established in the industry, and so on. [5]

I recognize that this Court may feel that such factual

economic background would not in any respect alter its

view of the validity of the legislation, and its view of

the lawfulness or unlawfulness of the conduct of the

Respondents. But I have in mind particularly such cases

as Bakery and Pastry Drivers vs. Wohl, Carpenters and
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Joiners Union of America vs. Ritters Cafe, and other

cases we have cited in support of our position. In each

of these instances at least the findings have indicated

what the economic background of the labor dispute in

question was.

In the present instance petitioner called no witnesses;

filed no affidavits, through which this material might have

been introduced. The sole material relating to it is the

affidavit of one of the respondents, but an affidavit which

in this particular is uncontroverted, and it is our feeling,

in order that findings may be made on all of the matters

of fact brought to the attention of the Court, that these

proposed findings which we have suggested in Exhibit A
attached to our memorandum of objections—I have par-

ticularly in mind the Sixth, Eighth, Ninth, Tenth and

Eleventh of our proposed findings of fact—I believe that

findings should be made with respect to all of those mat-

ters, and particularly since the affidavit with respect to

them was not controverted in any respect by any counter

affidavits or witnesses, by the Petitioner. [6]

I have in mind also, may it please the Court, the fact

that the National Labor Relations Act of 1947 has a

number of provisions dealing with and passing upon the

legality of certain forms of contractual arrangements

between employers and employees, such as the provision

making unlawful the so-called closed shop; the provision

establishing the requirement of a conduct of an election

as a condition precedent to entering into an agreement,

and the so-called Union shop restriction on welfare funds,

restriction on Union dues, and so forth. We think it

is important to have findings of fact on these particular

situations which will show issues of fact according to

the record here:
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First of all, that the Respondent Union in this case

was not in dispute with the employer on any issue of

active bargaining, except wages and holidays, and that

none of the demands of the Union in giving rise to this

dispute would fall within the type of arrangement pro-

scribed by the Labor Management Relations Act itself.

Second, that in view of the various decisions of the

Supreme Court concerned with the matter of economic

justification for certain strike and picketing activities

on the part of labor organizations, concerned with wheth-

er or not the purpose of the picketing activity was in

furtherance of the legitimate objective of the employees,

I cite cases like Dorchy v. Kansas, for example; cases

dealing with the [7] question of whether there is suffi-

cient economic connection between the object of the

picketing activities and the primary labor dispute, such

as the Ritter's Cafe case, and also the Wohl case in

which the Court discusses the subject matter of the

dispute.

Therefore, we believe that it is material, and whether

or not it would be considered to be material here, at

least, in order that a full and proper presentation of the

contentions of the Respondents may be made, in the

event that an appeal should be taken in this case, that

the findings to which I have alluded, concerning the

economic background of the dispute, should be entered

in this proceeding.

The Court: Do you want to say anything further,

Mr. O'Brien?
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Mr. O'Brien: If the Court please, Mr. Gilbert has

repeated very much of the argument that we had here

before, and insofar as there is any merit in it, that

would be, I think, covered by the proposed new l^^inding

Seventh which I suggested.

The Court: Of course, it would be j-ust supereroga-

tion and unnecessary repetition for the Court to reiterate

his views as they are incorporated in the opinion filed.

The opinion, which has been denominated in the file as

Memorandum of Ruling and Order Granting Injunc-

tion under Section 10(1) of the National Labor Relations

Act, as amended, [8] contains some of the suggestions

Mr. Gilbert has made, and I think that by having the

findings recite the filing of that written opinion, any of

the matters therein that are considered by a reviewing

agency or tribunal to be material and relevant can be

examined.

The Supreme Court of the United States, in the Duplex

case, which is still the final pronouncement of the court

of last resort on what has been characterized as "the

secondary boycott," has spoken in no uncertain words,

and until that tribunal, or some other applicable superior

judicial body indicates otherwise, it is a binding pro-

nouncement upon this Court, and it cannot be removed

by argument, except such arguments as would lend sup-

port to the pronouncement of the Supreme Court of the

United States.

In the decision in Dpulex Printing Press Co. v. Deer-

ing 254 U. S. 443, which is cited in the memorandum,
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and I am just enlarging upon that citation for the pur-

pose of illustrating what is in the Court's mind, the

Supreme Court says:

"The substance of the matters here complained

of is an interference with complainant's interstate

trade, intended to have coercive effect upon com-

plainant, and produced by what is commonly known

as a 'secondary boycott'; that is, a combination not

merely to refrain from dealing with complainant, or

to advise or by peaceful means persuade complain-

ant's customers to refrain [9] ('primary boycott'),

but to exercise coercive pressure upon such custom-

ers, actual or prospective, in order to cause them to

withhold or withdraw patronage from complainant

through fear of loss or damage to themselves should

they deal with him.

"As we shall see, the recognized distinction be-

tween a primary and a secondary boycott is material

to be considered upon the question of proper con-

struction of the Clayton Act. But, in determining

the right to an injunction under that and the Sher-

man Act, it is of minor consequence whether either

kind of boycott is lawful or unlawful at common law

or under the statutes of particular states. Those

acts, passed in the exercise of the power of Congress

to regulate commerce among the states are of para-

mount authority, and their prohibitions must be

given full effect irrespective of whether the things

prohibited are lawful or unlawful at common law

or under local statutes."

The Court: In a very erudite and comprehensive

work of the American Law Institute, Volume IV on

Restatement of the Law of Torts, and particularly in the
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section under Topic 7, Injunctive Relief, in labor dis-

putes, we find some helpful suggestions.

Section 813, in black letter type, states:

"Injunctive Relief. [10]

"Subject to the limitations stated in Sees. 814-816,

injunctive relief against wrongful concerted action

by workers is appropriate under the rules applicable

to injunctive relief against torts."

Section 814 of the same work, entitled, "Discretion in

Injunctive Relief." In black letter type:

"Injunctive Relief against concerted action of

workers under the rule stated in Sec. 813 is not

demandable as of right. In determining whether

such relief should be granted in a specific case the

following factors are important:

(a) the extent of the interests and the number

of workers and employers directly or indi-

rectly involved in the case.

(b) the nature of the conduct sought to be

enjoined

;

(c) the possible efifects of the injunction on the

labor dispute;

(d) the existence and action of public tribunals

empowered to act in the dispute b\- media-

tion, conciliation, arbitration, or command

;

(e) the problems of enforcement that the issu-

ance of the injunction would create:

(f) the adequacy of the hearings or testi-

[11] mony on the basis of which the injunc-

tion is sought:

(g) the conduct of the plaintiflf in the course of

the labor dispute;
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(h) the detriment that the plaintiff is likely to

suffer by conceding the object of the workers'

concerted action."

Sec. 815 of the same work, entitled: Scope of Injunc-

tion. In black type:

*'In framing an order enjoined concerted action

by workers under the rule stated in Sec. 813, the

following are important guides:

(a) the order should enjoin only tortious conduct,

except as stated in Sec. 816;

(b) the order should be specific as practicable

in describing the conduct enjoined and should

avoid as far as possible question-begging or

omnibus words or provisions;

(c) the order should be written in simple lan-

guage intelligible to workers without the aid

of lawyers;

(d) the order may describe generally or specifi-

cally the kind of conduct which it does not

restrain; [12]

(e) the order may impose restraints on the plain-

tiff as conditions of its restraints on the

defendants."

Section 816, which is referred to in the first statement

of 815, where in subdivision (a) it is stated that

"the order should enjoin only tortious conduct, ex-

cept as stated in Sec. 816,

entitled Injunction Against Non-Tortious Conduct, says,

in black type:

"A decree stated under the rule stated in Sec. 813

may enjoin non-tortious conduct connected with the

enjoined tortious conduct, but only if,
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(a) it is clear from the past behavior of the

defendants that, unless they are enjoined

from engaging in the non-tortious conduct,

they will continue the tortious and

(b) the court finds that the non-tortious conduct

should be enjoined under the rule stated in

Sec. 814."

It seems to me that the court has appropriately covered,

in its opinion filed in this case, the facts that are prop-

erly to be included in injunctive relief, and if the opin-

ion becomes a part of the findings of fact by reference,

I think any reviewing court will have before it precisely

[13] what the views of this court were.

There are certain portions of the opinion which I

think should be emphasized, with respect to the matters

just discussed. On page 4 of the opinion, commencing

with line 26, it is stated:

"In support of the motion the respondents filed

simultaneously therewith an affidavit of Mr. Turner,

recounting various steps that have occurred in a

labor dispute relating to wage rates and holiday pay

between the Union as a collective bargaining agency

of the production employees of the Los Angeles

plant of Sealright and such corporation which he

avers culminated in a strike of 67 of the approxi-

mately 70 i)roduction workers in such local plant of

Sealright on November 3, 1947.

'The only variance between the factual situation

ascertained by the Regional Director of the Board

and specified in his verified petition and that attested

in the affidavit of Mr. Turner in his statement that

the picketing at each of the described locales was

'peaceful'
"
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Then the court proceeds to state that it has followed

the rule of the Supreme Court in Hecht Co. v. Bowles,

and has considered the evidence and weighed it, and,

accordingly, has made its findings in view of the conclu-

sions. [14]

It seems to be that Mr. Gilbert's suggestion as to the

date of the strike is covered by that statement in the

opinion, and we must assume that any reviewing court

will examine the record, and if the record is examined

the facts should be made clear as to what the views of

the lower court were.

Is there any objection, Mr. Gilbert, to the incorpora-

tion of the oral suggestions that have been made by Mr.

O'Brien?

Mr. Gilbert: May it please the Court, I do not believe

that this last suggestion by Mr. O'Brien cures the defect

in the original proposed order, that we believe exists.

We have suggested some of the problems, and while

I believe that portions of the statements which the Court

has read are applicable in cases for injunctive relief in

disputes between picketing parties, I would certainly

subscribe to the criteria there with respect to the scope

of injunctive relief, with respect to specificity, and so

forth. Some of the questions we have in mind, and

which perhaps may be covered by one of the sections of

the statement which the Court read, namely, that acts

not sought to be enjoined are sometimes referred to in

that fashion in order that it may be made i^erfectly plain,

not only what is prohibited in the injunction, but what

is permitted under its terms. And in many of these

instances, in recent years, where a [15] labor situation

has been involved, the order has excepted such conduct.
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namely, i)icketing-, which is not sought to be reached by

the scope of the order.

I call the Court's attention to point IV of our memor-

andum of objections, which outlines some of the prob-

lems. It cannot be ascertained from this proposal, wheth-

er the continued existence of a picket line at or near

the premises of Sealright Pacific, Ltd., would be re-

strained. This does clarify a portion of it with respect

to the matter of dissemination of information by means

of ordinary picketing, that is, pamphlets, radio or adver-

tising and publications of general interest, and so on,

to some extent, by including the terms "orders, force,

threats, or promises of benefits." We have on previous

occasions pointed out to the Court our confusion when

these terms are put in the disjunctive, rather than the

conjunctive, and we are by no means clear as to what

constitutes a promise of benefits.

The language which we employ in stating this problem

is on page 7 of our memorandum, inquiring whether it

was intended by the original proposed order to prohibit

respondents from publicizing the facts of the labor dis-

pute in issue by expressing any views, arguments, or

opinion, or the dissemination of the same in written,

printed, graphic or visual form. Of course, we have

reference to Section 8 (c) of the amended National

Labor Relations Act, [16] declaring that such publication

of views, argument or opinion should not constitute or

be evidence of any unfair labor practice.

We have diligently and as carefully as possible,

searched for guidance in that matter in the opinion on

file, and we have attempted to read and reread that sec-

tion in the light of the decision made herein; but we
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are not exactly clear as to whether or not, for example,

it is intended that the order should reach the matter of

the picketing, irrespective of local, or pamphleteering,

or other methods of the dissemination of the facts of

the dispute coincident with peaceful picketing. Or wheth-

er or not it is proposed by this order to close the other

media to the respondents, in addition to restraining

picketing activities. And I do not believe that this pro-

posal shows us the way out of that dilemma.

If I am permitted, I would like to make one additional

comment with respect to the other matter. We have not

conceded throughout this proceeding the position taken

by the Petitioner, that this Court is limited in its dis-

cretion to the extent that the usual considerations which

may be considered and passed upon by a court of equity

in issuing, or decHning to issue, injunctive relief are

ruled out by Section 10 (1) of the amended Act.

We have felt, and we feel, that if that were the case

then [17] that section of the Act would be subject to

a further and additional objection, that it destroys the

separation of powers under our Constitution, with re-

spect to executive and judicial branches of Government,

and in balancing the equity upon a situation of this kind

we believe that findings with respect to economic justifi-

cation, if there be any, for the concerted labor activity

of these striking employees, is warranted, and that the

findings should show whether or not the specific economic

factors giving rise to the dispute were considered by the

Court.

With respect to the portion of the opinion referred

to, which would be incorporated by reference, many

of these matters are contained therein that T have re-

ferred to in the proposed findings, but the specific issue
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involved, that is to say, the contention, at least— 1 think

the affidavit of Mr. Turner will support the contention

of the respondent here—that this activity was justified

by the desire of the respondent Union to maintain, and

to picket the prevailing wage and holiday standards in

this community, that the findings should show whether

or not that was considered, and I do not believe that that

portion of the opinion deals with the details of the rela-

tionship between the wages paid in this plant, and the

wages paid in the community as the prevailing rate, and

other economic issues involved. [18]

I am not arguing the merits, but I mention the case

to show the point we are trying to get at. That is the

case of Dorchy v. Kansas, and one of the situations

the Court took into account was the objective of the

activity; and we have attempted to point out,—and I

won't attempt here to go into all of the details which are

set forth in written form in the memorandum, unless

the Court desires me to—but many of the matters which

we have objected to were conceded by the Petitioner in

its memorandum of points and authorities, wherein it

restated the facts or restated the substance, in the same

terms that we contend for at the present time. And I

do believe that, in this particular situation, if possible,

the exact nature of the dispute should be determined on

the basis of the material presented.

There is one other matter that I would like to call

the Court's attention to at this time. The statement in

the opinion that the only variance between the factual

situation is the question as to whether or not the activi-

ties were peaceful, might be amplified at least by consid-

eration of subparagraph (c) of the Sixth proposed find-

ing, appearing on page 3, at line 7 through 9.
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In that connection I would like to call the attention of

the Court to the matter set forth on page 3 of our

memorandum of objections, being point 2, commencing

on line 16, and the paragraphs following. First of all, I

think [19] it is clear from the affidavit, and from the

subsequent memoranda filed by the Petitioner, that a

correction should be made with respect to the office held

by the Respondent Turner in the Respondent Union.

The Court: You will observe in the opinion that

the Court used the term "officers."

Mr. Gilbert: Yes, and I believe the Petitioner would

concede that fact, that Mr. Turner is the secretary-

treasurer of that organization, rath'er than the vice

president, and the findings should so show.

Next I have particularly in mind that portion of the

Sixth proposed finding. Sixth (c) that Mr. Turner

allegedly advised L. A. Seattle that if it continued to

handle Sealright's product, L. A. Seattle would be

picketed by Local 388.

At the top of page 4 of our memorandum of objec-

tions we call the Court's attention to the fact that this

allegation is specifically refuted by Mr. Turner's affidavit

in the following words:

"At no time did affiant advise Los Angeles-Seattle

Motor Express. Inc. that Local 388 would picket all

or any of the firm's operations as such, if it con-

tinued to handle Sealright's products, nor did affiant

in any way indicate or imply that Local 388 would

picket any other products being handled or trans-

ported by said [20] firm for companies other than

Sealright Pacific, Ltd., under any circumstances

whatsoever."
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Then following the filing of that affidavit, the petitioner,

in his memorandum of points and authorities, stated the

fact in these words:

"On about November 13, 1947 Respondent Turn-

er, Secretary-Treasurer of Local 388, advised the

Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc. (herein-

after called L. A. Seattle), a common carrier which

has transported Sealright's products, that if L. A.

Seattle continued to handle Sealright's products,

Local 388 would picket Sealright products handled

by L. A. Seattle."

The significance of this particular variation, I think

is apparent. I would understand the view of this Court

to be that a material boycott following the products of

the struck plant, and picketing those boycotts, for the

purpose of persuading employees of other employers,

as a matter of individual conviction and view, to de-

cline to handle or transport those products, that this

situation I have just described, is a material boycott,

and constitutes a secondary boycott within the meaning

of the Duplex case, and as I understand the Court's

views, the Duplex case, decided many years ago, is still

relevant authority on that subject.

But T think that the Court would be willing to recog-

nize the situation between a material boycott, and a [21]

situation in which a Labor Union might advise a busi-

ness firm, without reference to the presence of auA- goods

or products of the struck firm at or near the premises;

that is, if it would try to service, or do business with, or

deal with the struck firm, saying, "We will attempt to

induce your employees to go on a strike. W^e will attempt

to induce the public not to do business with you. \\'e will
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place your firm on the ''Do not patronize" list of the

Central Labor Body.

I am not contending or arguing that this Court would

make any distinction between the first situation I have

described, and the second, as a matter of law, but I am

contending that they are difTerent situations, and all of

the treatises and all of the articles on the subject of the

law regarding boycott by members of striking labor

organizations,—all of them recognize these are two

different factual situations; and the precise issue which

we believe was presented to this Court, is whether or not

a material boycott,—the following of the products, and

narrow conduct of picketing that product as such, with-

out interference with any of the other operations of

the business establishment handling those products,

—

whether that constitutes an unlawful secondary boycott

which may be prohibited under 8 (b) (4) (A) and 10

(1) of the Act.

And it is for that reason we expressly request that [22]

our proposed finding numbered Thirteenth, on page 3

of our Exhibit A of our memorandum, lines 17 through

23, be adopted as a finding of fact rather than the

ambiguous statement in subparagraph (c) of the Peti-

tioner's proposed findings of fact.

Mr. O'Brien: If it please the Court, I don't want to

reargue this case at all. There are two things that I do

want here. No. 1. I do want the Respondents to know

specifically what they are prohibited from doing by the

Court's order. I have endeavored to handle that matter

as specifically as I could.

The second matter T hardly regard as material. That

is, the precise definition of the findings of fact. The

Court's memorandum opinion includes findings of fact
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and conclusions of law, and the Federal Rules of Civil

Procedure as they will certainly be amended, if they

have not already been amended, will certainly include a

provision that when the Court hands down an opinion

that findings of fact and conclusions of law are incor-

porated.

I think that everything that was raised by Mr. Gilbert

in his argument was fully covered in the Court's opinion,

and it is my sincere belief that the retyped final page

of the proposed order will sufficiently advise all of the

Respondents of what action they are prohibited by the

Court from taking.

The Court: Have you now before the Court the

specific [23] and concrete suggestions that you make

in that regard?

Mr. O'Brien: Yes, I have had the final page retyped,

and the proposed order, as originally drawn reads, on

line 16, page 5:

''Engage in, or inducing or encouraging, the em-

ployees of any employer"

It appears in exactly the same words as on the same

line in the proposed correction. In the proposed correc-

tion, which the Court has before it are the words added

on line 17:

"by picketing, orders, force, threats, or promises

of benefit, or by permitting any such to remain in

effect, or by any other like or related acts or

conduct"

That concludes the proposed insertion ending on page

19. From there on the words

"engage in, a strike or a concerted refusal in the

course of their employment"
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are the same as line 17 in the original proposed order.

From there on the order differs in no particular.

The Court: Do you want to say anything further,

Mr. Gilbert?

Mr. Gilbert: If I might make a brief statement, and

then I believe I will have presented to this Court, so far

as I know at this time, all of the matters we are particu-

larly [24] concerned about, and which we believe the

latest proposals of the Petitioner do not meet.

As I read the amended proposals of the Petitioner

with respect to the order granting injunctive relief, it

is specifically not clear on the question I have raised, as

to whether or not it is intended to prohibit picketing

activities at or in the vicinity of the Los Angeles plant

of Sealright Pacific Ltd. The charging part, in the case

of where the National Labor Relations Board, states

that the Respondent would be restrained and enjoined

from engaging in

"a strike or a concerted refusal in the course of

their employment to use, manufacture, process,

transport, or otherwise handle or work on any goods,

articles, materials, or commodities, or to perform

any services, where an object thereof is forcing or

requiring an employer or other person to" cease using,

selling, handling, transporting, or otherwise dealing

in the product of, or to cease doing business with,

Sealright Pacific, Ltd."

I am not clear from that language which T have just

read as to whether it is intended to enjoin the Sealright



vs. Howard F. LeBaron, etc. 227

employees from engaging in a strike or concerted refusal

to work at the plant of Sealright.

It is also not clear, reading that portion of the order

[25] which would enjoin Respondents from inducing or

encouraging the employees of any employer by picketing,

to engage in a strike, and so forth,—whether or not

that is intended to reach picketing at the Sealright plant.

For those reasons, at least, I believe it is certainly

unclear.

With respect to the findings of fact, I want to make

just one more point, in order that I might not have

emitted calling it to the attention of the Court specifi-

:ally. That is, with respect to the proposed findings con-

tained in subparagraph (f) of the Sixth proposed finding

of fact, relating to the loading of certain rolls of paper.

There has been a contention made here, and the facts

have been adduced here by the Respondents relating to

the ownership of that paper, and that matter is set out

more fully in page 5 of our memorandum, lines 9 through

17, and the proposed finding is contained in our Exhibit

A relating thereto, namely, that the paper was consigned

from the New York plant to the Los Angeles plant of

Sealright, for use in continued manufacturing operations.

I certainly want to call that to the attention of the Court,

and particularly our Sixteenth proposed finding of fact

:overing that matter.

And finally, we believe that the law itself is clear on

the point. The order, as read, would run to all agents,
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service, employees, and attorneys of the Respondent,

whether [26] or not they had actual notice of the order i

itself, and we have, therefore, called this matter to the

attention of the Court, both with respect to the Eighth i

conclusion of law and with respect to the order itself,

suggesting that the language should be modified, or

clarified, by the addition of the words: "who receive

actual notice of the order by personal service or other-

wise."

The Court: The Act has a provision which I think is

adequate and sufficient on that point. In the final part

of Section 10 (1) of the Act, as amended there is a

proviso clause, which reads as follows

:

"Provided further. That for the purpose of this

subsection district courts shall be deemed to have

jurisdiction of a labor organization (1) in the dis-

;

trict in which such organization maintains its prin-

cipal office, or (2) in any district in which it duly

authorized officers or agents"

I suppose that means "its," but the printed copy has no

"f." I think it should read:

"in any district in which its duly authorized officers

or agents are engaged in promoting or protecting

the interests of employee members. The service of

legal process upon such officer or agent shall con-

stitute service upon the labor organization and

make such organization a party to the suit. In situa-

tions where [27] such relief is appropriate the pro-

cedure specified herein shall apply to charges with

respect to section 8 (b) (4) (D)."
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I want to say, not in amplification, but just in reitera-

tion of what the Court said in its opinion, that which

seems to have been lost sight of by counsel, quoting from

l>age 6 of the ruling, commencing with line 5:

''Before turning to the very delicate constitu-

tional issue that is involved under the established

concrete factual situation before the Court, attention

should be given to the significance and broad change

in legislative policy that is definitely declared and

clearly expressed by Congress relative to the use

of injunctive processes available in the District

Court to ameliorate the public interests in the federal

area of labor disputes. Not only is it stated in Sub-

section (h) of Section 10 of the Act that the equi-

table jurisdiction of federal courts is no longer to

be circumscribed by limitations specified in the Act

approved March 23, 1932, 29 U.S.C.A., Section 101,

et seq. (Norris-LaGuardia Act), but Subsection (1)

of Section 10 further amplifies the National policy

of utilizing appropriate judicial injunctive methods

in the specific activities that are made unlawful in

Section 8 (b), (4), (A) of the Act 'notwithstand-

ing any other [28] provision of law.'
"

That is a clear line of demarcation, and when con-

sideration is given to the other provisions of the amend-

ments to the National Labor Relations Act, incorporated

in the Labor-Management Act of 1947, as to the juris-

diction of the Circuit Court of Appeals, and of the

administrative agencies, it is clear to this Court's mind,

and it is obvious to the Court's mind, what Congress

meant when it conferred the power of injunctive relief
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upon the District Courts. So some of the able argument

that has been made by counsel, I think, loses sight of

that aspect of this regulation.

I am satisfied that the process should issue as it is

requested. It is clear, explicit, and precise.

I want to say also I am hopeful th^t this suggestion

that counsel make in their memorandum, that there is a

denial on the part of the workers that they will not ob-

serve the injunction, is going to be respected; and I also

hope that there will be an appeal in this case. I think it

would have a tendency to clarify the situation.

If those two aspects of the case are pursued sincerely,

I am confident that we will have accomplished something.

If you will present the modified finding, Mr. O'Brien,

with the incorporation in it of the ruling of the Court, at

the appropriate place, stating that the Court has made its

ruling conform to the memorandum which is on file, [29]

referring to it, and that all of it includes the enlargement

I have spoken about, I think it will be sufficient. Do

you want him to serve that on you, Mr. Gilbert, before

it is presented to the Court for signature?

Mr. O'Brien: May it please the Court, the enlarge-

ment has already been typed, and was submitted to the

Court as a substitute for the final page of the original

suggested order. If it could be substituted and signed

now, I would be happy to serve it upon Mr. Gilbert.

The Court: With the exception of the incorporation

of the statement about the opinion of the Court. That

is not included.

1
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Mr. O'Brien: I shall do that.

The Court: Do you want it served on you, Mr.

Gilbert?

Mr. Gilbert: I think it would be advisable.

[Endorsed] : Filed Apr. 7, 1948. Edmund L. Smith,

Qerk. [30]

[Endorsed]: No. 11894. United States Circuit Court

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit. Printing Specialties

and Paper Converters Union, Local 388, A. F. L., and

Walter J. Turner, Appellants, vs. Howard F. LeBaron,

Regional Director of the 21st Region of the National

Labor Relations Board, on Behalf of the National Labor

Relations Board, Appellee. Transcript of Record. Upon

Appeal From the District Court of the United States for

the Southern District of California, Central Division.

Filed April 9, 1948.

PAUL P. O'BRIEN,

Clerk of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for

the Ninth Circuit.
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In the Circuit Court of Appeals of the United States

in and for the Ninth Circuit

No. 11894

PRINTING SPECIALTIES, LOCAL #388, etc.

Appellants,

vs.

HOWARD F. LeBARON, etc.,

Appellees.

APPELLANTS' STATEMENT OF POINTS

The appellants state that the points upon which they

intend to rely in the appeal in this action are as follows

:

1. The District Court erred in denying the motion of

appellants and respondents to dismiss the petition for an

injunction under Section 10(1) of the National Labor

Relations Act, as amended.

2. The District Court lacked jurisdiction over the in-

stant proceeding, in that the entire matter was heard and

decided under color of the purported authority of Sections

8(b)(4)(A) and 10(1) of the National Labor Relations

Act as amended, which portions of said enactment are un-

constitutional and void in that they contravene Amend-

ments I, V, and XIII of the Constitution of the United

States.

3. The Order for Injunctive Relief, from which this

appeal is taken, restrains lawful acts of the appellants and

respondents and in substance and in form, is contrary to
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the Constitution of the United States, Amendments I, V,

and XIII.

4. The District Court erred by failing to give any

force or effect to Section 8(c) of the National Labor Re-

lations Act, as amended, in deciding the merits of the

instant petition.

5. Section 10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act

as amended, and the Order for Injunctive Relief issued

herein, are violative of Article III of the Constitution of

the United States, in that non-judicial powers may not

be conferred by Congress upon the inferior Courts nor

validly exercised by said Courts.

6. The Findings of Fact, upon which the Order for

Injunctive Relief is based, are contrary to and unsup-

ported by the evidence, and omit material, uncontroverted

facts established by the record herein.

7. The Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and

Order herein are subject to the objections raised by ap-

pellant and respondents prior to the Settlement and Entry

thereof, which objections erroneously were disregarded by

the District Court.

Dated: April 16, 1948.

ROBERT W. GILBERT
ALLAN L. SAPIRO

CLARENCE E. TODD
By Allan L. Sapiro

Attorneys for Appellants

[Endorsed]: Filed Apr. 21, 1948. Paul P. O'Brien,

Clerk.
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JURISDICTION AND STATUTE INVOLVED.

The jurisdiction of this Court is invoked under Sec-

tion 129 of the Judicial Code, as amended, 28 U.S.C.A.

§227, page 379.

Pertinent provisions of the National Labor Rela-

tions Act, as amended by the Labor Management

Relations Act, 1947, Public Law 101, 80th Cong., Ch.

120, 1st Sess. (popularly referred to as the ''Taft-

Hartley Act") are as follows:

Section 8(b) (4) (A).

"It shall be an unfair labor practice for a labor

organization or its agents

—

'*to engage in, or to induce or encourage the em-

ployees of any employer to engage in, a strike or

a concerted refusal in the course of their employ-

ment to use, manufacture, process, transport, or

otherwise handle or work on any goods, articles,

materials, or commodities or to perfomi any serv-

ices, where an object thereof is:

"forcing or requiring any employer or self-em-

ployed person to jom any labor or employer

organization or any employer or other person to

cease using, selling, handling, transporting, or

otherwise dealing in the products of any other

producer, processor, or manufacturer, or to cease

doing business with any other person; * * *"

Section 8(c).

"The expressing of any views, argument, or opin-

ion, or the dissemination thereof, whether in writ-

ten, printed, graphic or visual form, shall not

constitute or be evidence of an unfair labor prac-

tice mider any of the provisions of this Act, if

such expression contains no threat of reprisal or

force or promise of benefit."



Section 10(1).

"Whenever it is cliaiged that any pet-son has
engaged in an unfaii- laboi- practice within the

meaning ol' pai*agraph (4) (A), (B), or (C) of

section 8(b), the preliminary investigation of sucli

charge shall be made forthwith and given priority

over all other cases except cases of like char-

acter in tJie office where it is filed or to which it is

referred. If, after such investigation, the officer

or I'egional attorney to whom the matter may be

referred has reasonable cause to believe such

charge is true and that a complaint should issue,

he shall, on behalf of the l>oard, petition any dis-

trict court of the United States * * * within any
district where the unfair labor practice in ques-

tion has occurred, is alleged to have occurred, or

wherein such person resides or transacts busi-

ness, for apf)ropriate injunctive relief pending the

final adjudication of the Board with respect to

such matter. Upon the filing of any such petition

the district court shall have jurisdiction to grant

such injimctive relief or temporary restraining

order as it deems just and proper, notwithstand-

ing any other provision of law: * * * Upon filing

of any such })etition the courts shall cause notice

thereof to be served upon any person involved in

the charge of such person, including the chai'ging

Ijarty, shall be given an opportunity to appear by
comisel and present any relevant testimony: Pro-

vided further, That for the purjioses of this

subsection district courts shall be deemed to have

jurisdiction of a labor organization (1) in the

district in which such organization maintains its

principal office, or (2) in any district in which its

duly authorized officers or agents are engaged in

promoting or protecting the interests of emjiloyee



members. The service of legal process upon such

officer or agent shall constitute service upon the

labor organization and make such organization a

party to the suit * * *"

Section 16.

'*If any provision of this Act, or the application

of such provision to any person or circumstances,

shall be held invalid, the remainder of this Act, or

the application of such provision to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is

held invalid, shall not be affected thereby."

STATEMENT OF THE CASE.

This appeal arises out of the prohibition of peace-

ful picketing of the products of a struck concern in

the course of a bona fide labor dispute and lawful

strike over wages and holiday pay by means of an

injunctive order of the District Court mider color of

authority of Section 10(1) of the amended National

Labor Relations Act.

Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union,

Local 388, appellant herein, is a subordinate union

of the International Printing Pressmen and Assist-

ants' Union of North America, affiliated with the

American Federation of Labor. Local 388 includes

within its membership approximately 1,800 employees

of the paper conversion and allied industries in the

City of Los Angeles and nearby communities. The

Union membership is covered by numerous collective

bargaining agreements with employers engaged in the



manufacture, distribution and sale of a variety of

paper products. (R. 20.)

By the terms of said ag'reements, contracted during

the twelve months period immediately prior to the

commencement of this action, 1,500 members of the

union were assured of a prevailing scale of minimum

wages ranging from $1.20 to $1,331/2 per hour for the

lowest-skilled male job classifications and from $1.10

to $1.22^/^ per houi- for the lowest-skilled female job

classifications, with progressively higher rates for

skilled job classifications. (II. 20-21.) These 1,500

union members also received six paid holidays an-

nually under said agreements. (R. 21.)

Sealright Pacific, Ltd., the charging party, is a

corporation engaged in the manufacture, sale and

distribution of paper food containers and milk bottle

caps in Los Angeles. (R. 29, 101, 135.) It recognized

Local 388 as the exclusive bargaining agent of its

production employees at the Los Angeles plant in

September, 1941. Each year thereafter, from 1941

to 1946, collective bargaining agreements were negoti-

ated and executed between Sealright and Local 388

through negotiations, and without any strike or other

interruption of work. (R. 21.)

On August 16, 1947, Local 388 gave notice to Seal-

right of proposed modifications in the latest union

agreement which had an anniversary date of October

16, 1947. Said 60-days' notice of reopening was given

in accordance with the terms of the contract, and in

accordance with the procedure contemplated by Sec-



tion 8(d)(1) of the amended National Labor Rela-

tions Act. (R. 21-22.)

Between August 16, 1947 and October 29, 1947,

approximately eleven meetings were held between

representatives of Local 388 and officers of Sealright

for the purpose of negotiating a new labor contract,

during the course of which meetings mutual consent

was arrived at between the two parties as to all terms

of a new collective bargaining agreement except wage

rates and holiday pay. (R. 22-23, 105.)

On September 15, 1947, in compliance with Section

8(d)(3) of the amended National Labor Relations

Act, Local 388 notified the Federal Mediation and

Conciliation Service and the California State Depart-

ment of Industrial Relations that a dispute existed.

(R. 22.) After the required 30-day waiting period

had expired, Sealright having rejected a compromise

proposal offered by the union, and having refused to

meet the established industry standards for wages and

holidays. Local 388 called a lawful strike of its mem-

bers against Sealright. (R. 22-23.)

The final offer of Sealright prior to the instituting

of the strike would have provided the employees with

three (3) paid holidays as against the prevailing

standard of six (6) holidays, and fell between 17c

to 231/^c per hour below the prevailing male base rate,

and between 22^c to 29^c per hour below the pre-

vailing female base rate. (R. 22-23.)

At the time the strike was instituted, all of the a])-

proximately seventy (70) production employees of the



Los Angeles plant of Seal right were members in good

standing of Local 388, and all but three (3) of said

employees Joined in said strike against their em-

ployer. (R. 23, 106.)

Peaceful j)icket lines were established by striking

members of Local 388 in front of or near the entrances

to the struck plant upon the occasion of the com-

mencement of the strike. (R. 23-24.) C Appellee has

made no contention that said strike and picket lines

in the vicinity of the struck plant were in any respect

unlawful.)

On or about November 14, 1947, members of Local

388 on strike at Sealright Pacific, Ltd. formed a

picket line around two trucks loaded w^ith Seah-ight^s

products at the local terminal of the Los Angeles-

Seattle Motor Express, Inc. The strikers informed

the trucking concern's employees that the Sealright

products were manufactured under strike conditions

and foi- substandard wages, and requested them not

to handle the products. After November 14, 1947, the

employees of the trucking concern refused to trans-

port or handle Sealright goods. (R. 24-25; cf. R. 13(i-

137.) The only evidence relating to the character of

these picketing activities shows that they were peace-

ful, and "at no time did any officer, agent, representa-

tive, or member of Local 388 order, force, threaten

any reprisal against or promise any specific benefit to

any employee of the Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Ex-

press, Inc." (R. 24-25; cf. R. 104, 13(>.)

At about the same time, according to the record

herein, Appellant Walter J. Turner, Secretary-
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Treasurer of Local 388, advised one Mr. Lacey, man-

ager of the Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc.

that the union was engaged in a strike due to a wage

dispute with Sealright, and that members of Local

388 intended to picket Sealright 's products manufac-

tured under strike conditions and at substandard

wages for the purpose of publicizing the dispute and
,

soliciting the assistance of other workers asking that

they decline to handle this merchandise. (R. 24; cf. R.

103, 136.)

The uncontradicted affidavit filed herein by Appel-

lant Turner specifically denies that he ever advised

Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc. that Local

388 would picket all or any of that firm's operations

as such, if it continued to handle Sealright 's products,

and furthermore denies that he ever in any way indi-

cated or implied that Local 388 would picket any

other products being handled or transported by that

firm for companies other than Sealright under any

circumstances whatsoeA^er. (R. 24.)

On November 17, 1947, and for several days there-

after, striking members of Local 388 picketed Seal-

right products being loaded onto three freight cars by

employees of the West Coast Terminals Co., which

products were rolls of paper consigned from the New
York i^lant to the Los Angeles plant of Sealright

Pacific, Ltd. for use in manufacturing operations

under strike conditions. The three freight cars in

question were located on a siding alongside a West

Coast warehouse at Terminal Island, Long Beach,

California, and the picket lines did not pass in front

I



of the door of the warehouse; or otherwise interfere

with the normal operations of the West Coast Ter-

minals Co. not involving Sealright products. When-
ever during such picketing, it was necessary for the

West Coast Terminals Company to move these three

l)ox cars in order to move other cars on to or remove

other cars from the siding, the striking members of

Local '388 temi)orari]y discontinued their picketing

activities and did not in any way intei* fere with tlie

moving of the three box cars in question incidental

to these operations. Subsequent to November 17, 1947,

the employees of West Coast refused to handle or

work on goods consigned to Sealright.

Here again, the only evidence relating to the charac-

ter of these picketing acti^dties shows that they were

peaceful, and ''At no time in connection with the

peaceful picketing of said Sealright products along-

side the wareliouse of the West Coast Terminals Com-

pany did any of&cer, agent, representative or member
of Local 388 order, force, threaten any reprisal

against or promise any specific benefit to any em-

ployee of said firm." (R. 25-26; cf. R. 104-105, 137.)

On or about November 18, 1947, Sealright Pacific,

Ltd. filed a charge Avith the National Labor Relations

Board alleging that Tiocal 388 had engaged in and was

engaging in unfair labor practices contrary to vSeetion

8(b) (4) (A) of the amended National Labor Relations

Act by means of threats of y)icketing allegedly com-

municated to Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express.

Inc., and picketing at the West Coast Terminals Com-
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pany docks in Terminal Island. (R. 27-30, 101-102,

135.)

After investigating the charge, Appellee LeBaron,

who is the Regional Director of the 21st Region of

the National Labor Relations Board, filed a document

with the District Court entitled '^Petition for an In-

junction under Section 10(1) of the National Labor

Relations Act, as Amended." (R. 2-8; 102; 134.) This

dociunent, which the District Court refers to as a

'S^erified petition" (R. 102, 134), is completely devoid

of any allegations of fact relating to the activities

herein complained of. The sole allegation relating to

the acts of the respondents and appellants is a legal

conclusion that
'

'
* * * Petitioner has reason to believe

and believes that respondents and each of them have

engaged in and are engaging in conduct in volation

of Section 8(b), subsection 4(A) of the Act, mthin

the meaning of Section 2(6) and (7) of the Act as

follows", coupled Avith six subparagraphs lettered ^'a"

to *'f" enumerating the factual matter which the

appellee alleges he ''has reason to believe and be-

;

lieves." (R. 4-6.) Attached to the petition as "Ex-

hibit 1," is a copy of the charge referred to above,

which merely alleges threats of picketing and picket-

ing by Local 388. (R. 27-30.)

Appellee filed no affidavits and presented no wit-

nesses in support of his petition. (R. 152-153.)

Upon return of the order to show cause issued upon

motion of the appellee (R. 8-10), appellants inter-

posed a motion to dismiss the petition for injunctive
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relief under Section 10(1) of tiic amended National

Labor Relations Act for lack of jurisdiction, on the

ground that the invoked sections, 8(b)(4)(A) and

10(1) as well as the relief sought are violative of

Amendments I, V, and XITF of the Constitution of

the United States. (R. 10-19.) The motion was sup-

ported by an affidavit of Appellant Turner, which

represents the only direct evidence relating to the

factual situation involved herein in the entire record.

(R. 20-26.)

Following the submission of memoranda of points

and authorities by both parties (R. 12-19, 31-50, 51-79,

82-96, 97-101) and the receipt of oral argument (R.

154-217), the District Court issued its *'Memorandum
of Ruling and Order Granting Injunction under Sec-

tion 10(1) of the National Labor Relations Act as

Amended" on February 3, 1948 (R. 101-112; reported

at 75 F. Supp. 678), and, over the written (R. 120-

127) and oral (R. 217-241) objections of counsel for

appellants, on February 16, 1948 made its findings of

fact and conclusions of law and order for injunctive

relief, together with the dismissal of appellants' mo-

tion to dismiss. (R. 134-140.)

The order appealed from enjoins and restrains

appellants "pending the final adjudication by the

Board of this matter" from:
'^ Engaging in, or inducing or encouraging the

employees of any employer, hy picketing, orders,

l\>rce, threats o»- jn-omises of benefit, or by ani/

other like or relaied acts or couduct to engage in.

a strike or a concerted refusal in the course of
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their employment to use, mamifacture, x^rocess,

transport, or otherwise handle or work on any

goods, articles, materials or commodities, or to

perform any services where an object thereof is

forcing or requiring any employer or other per-

son to cease using, selling, handling, transporting

or otherwise dealing in the products of, or to

cease doing business with Sealright Pacific, Ltd.''

(R. 142.)*

GENERAL COMMENT ON THE ISSUES.

Whatever may be the propriety of commenting in

such fashion upon pending litigation before the Na-

tional Labor Relations Board and the Courts, both the

Joint Congressional Committee on Labor-Management

Relations and the General Counsel of the Board have

stated rather fully and publicly their views concern-

ing the issues raised by this case.

The Joint Committee on Labor-Management Rela-

tions, established pursuant to Section 401 of the so-

called '^ Taft-Hartley Act" (Public Law 101, 80th

Cong. Ch. 120, 1st Sess.) filed its first report with the

Senate and House of Representatives on March 15,

1948. (Senate Report No. 986, 80th Cong., 2d Sess.).

This report says in part

:

^'A total of 132 charges alleging secondary boy-

cotts under the act were filed between August 22,

1947, and February 1, 1948. During such period

*Unless otherwise indicated, all emphasis in quotations indi-

cated by italics has been supplied.
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the Board tiled ])etitioiis I'oi- injunctions ])ursuant

to Section 10(1) in 9 of the 132 eases * * *

"In the most recent case the Board's petition was
granted by the United Staters District Court for

the Southern District oC Califoi'nia. Local 388

of the Printing Specialties and l^aper Convei-tei-s

Union, A. F. of L., had called a strike of the

employees of Scuilright Pacific, T^td., over wage

rates and holiday pay * * *

''The Board charged that the action of I^ocal 388

in inducing the employees of the [T^os Angeles-

Seattle] Motor Express and West Coast Termi-

nals Cos. not to handle Sealright's goods consti-

tuted a secondary boycott x^i'ohibited ])y the act.

The court found the union's defense, that the

act's provisions violated amendments 1, 5, and 13

of the Constitution, was mtliout merit, and on

February 3, 1948 granted the requested injunction

pending consideration of tlie case on its merits by

the Board. (LeBaron v. Printing) Specialties and

Paper Converters Union, Local 388, AFL, et al.,

21 L.R.R.M. 2268, F. Supp )
* * *

''It is anticipated that tests will l)e made in the

Supreme Court on the constitutionality of the

new act's restrictions on secondary boycotts * * *

Unions may be expected to seek such a test in

a case where the only act complained of is peace-

ful picketing in support of a secondary boycott,

contending that such conduct is an exercise of

their constitutional right of free speech. Such

argument has been made and rejected by a lower

coui-t in granting a temi)orary I'estraining oidci-.

This committee will continue its study of these

cases in the interest of being prepared to offer
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remedial legislation should defects in the present

provisions become apparent/'

(Senate Report No. 986, 80th Cong. 2d Sess.,

pp. 16-19.)

Similarly, the General Counsel of the National

Labor Relations Board has disseminated his views

concerning the instant case in the form of remarks

made to a Conference of Circuit and District Judges

of the Fifth Judicial Circuit at New Orleans, Louis-

iana on June 4, 1948. (Board Press Release R-87.)

In this speech, the general counsel declared

:

''The mandatory injunctive proceedings brought

under Section 10(1) involved alleged violations

of Section 8(b)(4)(A), the secondary boycott

provision, in almost all of which the protection of

Section 8(c), the 'Free Speech' provision has been

claimed. In none of these cases has the Board
handed down its decision, but in several, the Trial

Examiners have issued their intermediate reports.

A comparison of the treatment by the courts and
the Examiners is worthwhile:*******
''The main attacks on this provision have been

that it violates the First, Fifth, and. Thirteenth

Amendments. In every instance these attacks

have been overruled by the District C^ourts.

{LeBaron v. Printing Specialties Union, 75 F.

Supp. 678 (S. D. Cahf.) ;
* * *) There can be no

serious quarrel with these rulings * * *

"The issue, if there is one, seems to lie in the

interpretation of the words, 'induce or encour-

age'. Do they forbid inducement or encourage-
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inoiit by mci'c pci-snasioii ! J)(>(;s pcacoCul picket-

ing fall within the prohibition? In the Thornhill
and Carlson cases {Thornhill v. Alahnma, 319 U.
S. 88 (1940); Carlson v. California, MO IT. S.

106 (1940).), the Supreme dourt has classified

peaceful y)icketiu,L;' as protected free speech.

Whether it will do so under this statute remains
to be seen, but meanwhile there is no question

that picketing-, though peaceful, loses its consti-

tutional protection when indulged in pui'suit of

an illegal objective, or in an industry unrelated

to the controversy. The Ritter's Cafe case,

{Brotherhood of Carpenters v. Hitter's Cafe, 315

U. S. 722 (1942).) * * * seems to have settled that.

And in view of the Duplex Deeriufj and Bedford
Stone Cutters cases decided about 25 years ago,

there should be no doubt that peaceful picketing

in pursuit of a secondary strike or boycott does
not enjoy constitutional protection.

''Doubt has arisen, however, because of several

cases decided by the Supreme Court between
1941 and 1943, which reversed as contrary to

the First Amendment, State Court decrees eu-

joininij peaceful picketinf/ hy strangers to the

picketed estahlishment, because in the State

Court's opinion there could be no labor dispute

between an employer and strangers to his employ.
{A. F. L. V. Siving, 312 U. S. 321 (1941) ; Bakery
Drivers Union v. Wohl, 315 U. S. 769 (1942)

;

Cafeteria Employees v. Angelos, 320 U. S. 293

(1943).)

''These cases have been heavily reUed upon by
the unions in several of the injunction cases, as

establishing the right of labor organizations under
the Free Speech amendment, to peacefully picket
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employers \\dth whom they have no direct dispute,

but who deal in the j)roducts of an employer mth
whom they have such dispute, and, thereby as

supporting their contention that Section 8(1)) (4)

(A) is unconstitutional insofar- as it is construed

to fordid such picketing * * *

''The question has been squarely raised in three

cases, two against the Carpenters Union * * *

and the third against the AFL Printing Special-

ties Union, involving a paper container company

in Los Angeles. {LeBaron v. Printing Specialties

Union (Sealright Pacific, Ltd.), 75 F. Supp. 678

(S. D. CaUf.)) * * *

*'The General Comisel's office agrees with the

District Courts which * * * not only overruled

the contention that such picketing tvas protected

by the First Amendment, Ixit also overruled the

contention that it ivas protected by Section 8(c)

of the Act.

"The Trial Examiners' treatment of the questions

has been generally more detailed in the three

cases I have just noted. In accordance with

Board doctrine, they assume the constitutionality

of the challenged provisions of the statute, and

merely considered the contention that the conduct

was immmie under the statute itself * ^" *

"In * * * two cases, the Trial Examiners both

assumed a general premise: First, that the im-

munity granted under Section 8(c) to non-threat-

ening expressions of views applies to the exercise

of speech by labor organizations, as well as by

employers—a ijroposition su^jported by the lan-

guage of the provision and its legislative history ;

;

and, second, that peaceful picketing is an expres-
{

sion of views, argument, or opinion tvithin the

1
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mcaninf) of Seciion s(r,), and unless it contains

threats ot' is attcmdcd by circumstances making^ it

the e^iuivalent ol* a threat, it enjoys the immunity
of Section 8(c).

a* * * 11,^^
rji^.j.^j f^xamincr in the Los Aiifjelcs

case (Matter of Printhu) Specialties Union
(A.F.L.) and Sealright Pacific, Ltd., Case No.

21-CC-13 (May 4, 1948) concluded tliat ]>eaceful

picketing- had no such threatening- significance in

respect to cnif)loyecs who were not members of

the respondent union, or of a union associated in

picketing witli the respondent union, and, in such

a case, was protected by Section 8(c) * * *

'*Where the Trial Examiners part company with

the General Counsel is upon the question of

whether, in the light of present day realities, a

picket sign of a union, whether one to which an

employee belongs or not, is not such as to put the

employee in fear of his standing with his own
union, or his fellow meml^ers, or his fellow^ work-

ers, as the case may be, so as, in effect, to coerce

his will. Or a promise of benefit that 'If you
don't cross my picket line, I'll not cross youi's.'
» * *

"That question, as well as other choice issues

which time does not permit me now to go into, is

still to be passed upon by the Board, and ulti-

mately, the reviewing courts."

(National Labor Relations Board Press Re-

lease R-87, pp. 21-26.)

As will ])e am|)lified by tlie argument set out below,

appellants contend that il' the interpretation o\' the

legislation contended for by the general counsel is
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to be deemed correct, then Section 8(b)(4)(A) is

contrary to the First, Fifth, and Thirteenth Amend-

ments, and the District Court lacked jurisdiction to

proceed under Section 10(1). On the other hand, if

Section 8(c) protects peaceful picketing of the prod-

ucts of a struck plant under the circumstances of this

case then the fact of such picketing cannot ''consti-

tute or be evidence of an unfair labor practice" in a

proceeding under Section 10(1), and the petition

herein should have l^een dismissed by the District

Court for that reason.

SPECIFICATION OF ERRORS TO BE URGED.

The Court below erred: ^

1. In holding that Congress clearly has i)ower

under the Constitution to enact the provisions of the

amended National Labor Relations Act here in ques-

tion;

2. In holding that "the provisions of the Lal^or

Management Relations Act, 1947, here under attack

are valid congressional legislation and are not uncon-

stitutional"

;

3. In holding that the provisions of the amended

Act here in question do not infringe upon the freedom

of speech and assembl}^ guaranteed to all )>y the due

process clause of the Fifth Amendment and hy tlic

First Amendment to the Constitution

;

4. In holding that Congress lias in Section 8(]))

(4) (A) of the amended Act "kept within the permis-
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sive restrictions on free sj)eech and asseml)ly that

have l)een apijroved by the Supreme Court in eom-

paral)le legislation";

5. In holding that an object of the picketing activi-

ties here involved was "the type of* coercion that is

attended with serious repercussions and dire conse-

quences upon the interests of the two strangers to the

labor disjjute between Sealright and the Union";

6. In holding that such picketing activities are a

''form of forcible technique" which is "subject to

restrictive regulation by the State in the public inter-

est on any reasonable basis.''

7. In holding that the prohibition against involun-

tary servitude in the Thirteenth Amendment to the

Constitution of the United States and the guarantee

of liberty set forth in the Fifth Amendment have

not been contravened by any of the provisions of the

amended Act here in question;

8. In holding that the inherent and statutory

rights of employees as such are preserved by "saving

provisions" in Section 502 of the Labor Management

Relations Act, 1947;

9. In holding that Section 8(b)(4)(A) of the

amended National Lal)or Relations Act is not imcon-

stitutionally vague or indefinite;

10. In failing to give anj' force or effect whatso-

ever to Section 8(c) of the amended Act in deciding

the merits of the instant petition for injunctive relief;

11. In making the Injunctive Order from which

this appeal has been taken, restraining in vague and
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indefinite tei*ms lawful acts of the appellants, and
\

thereby contravening the Constitution of the United

States, Amendments I, V and XIII;

12. In exercising non-judicial powers by the issu-

ance of said Order for Injunctive Relief contrary to

Article III of the Constitution of the United States;

13. In holding that "under the unequivocal pro-
J

cedural mandates incorporated in the Act" the Dis-

trict Court is compelled to accept as true the Regional

Director's allegation in the petition that he has "rea-

sonable cause" for believing that an unfair labor

practice as defined in Section 8(b)(4)(A) has oc-

curred, without requiring the introduction of any

evidence in support of said conclusion of law

;

14. In holding that the District Court under Sec-

tion 10(1) of the amended Act is required to, and

may constitutionally "grant an appropriate injunc-

tion auxiliary to the proceedings in the Board";

15. In adopting the purported factual matter

which appellee merely alleges he has "reason to be-

lieve and beheves" in his petition almost in haec

verba as a part of the Court's "Memorandum" opin-

ion and Findings of Fact, to the exclusion of the

uncontroverted facts set forth in the affida^dt of

Appellant Turner filed in response to the order to

show cause herein;

16. In holding that the District Court had juris-

diction of the proceedings below and of appellants

and possessed power to grant injunctive relief under

Section 10(1) of the amended Act;
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17. In lioldinj;- tliat tlu^rc is rc^asonablc causo to

believe that appellants have engaged \\\ "unfaii* labor

practices" within tlie meaning of Section 8(1)) (4) (A)

of the amended Act;

18. In adopting the Findings of Fact herein, whicli

findings are contrary to and nnsnp])orted by the evi-

dence, and omit material ni icontroverted facts estab-

lished by the record;

19. In adopting the Conclusions of l^aw herein,

whicli conckisions are contrary to law;

20. In disregarding ai)pellants' objections to said

T^indings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Injunctive

Order herein, which objections were raised prior to

the Settlement and Entry thereof;

21. In denying 'Mn toto" a})pellants' Motion to

Dismiss the Petition for Injunctive Relief, and re-

fusing to dismiss said petition.

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT.

I.

Members of labor organizations as well as other

persons are constitutionally guaranteed the right to

express themselves on matters of public concern with-

out being subject to prior 'restraint. Denial of the

right of working men to peacefully and effectively

publicize the existence of a labor dispute with the

purpose of persiuuling others to voluntarily refrain

from aiding the employer party to such dispute
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abridges the cognate rights of free speech and assem-

hly embodied in the First Amendment and amounts

to a denial of liberty without due process of law in

contravention of the Fifth Amendment.

II.

The power of Congress to enact legislation for the

general regulation of industrial relations affecting

commerce is strictly limited by the provisions of the
:

Bill of Rights.

Peacefully picketing and threatening to peacefully

picket the products of an employer with whom a bona

fide labor dispute is pending and against whom a,

laAvful strike has commenced definitely comes within

the constitutional safeguards of free speech.

III.

Section 8(b)(4)(A) of the Act in question cannot

A'alidly be applied to restrain peaceful picketing pur-

suant to a "product lioycott". Said section must be

held to be invalid on its face, unless peaceful picket-

ing under the circumstances of this case is deemed

excluded from its terms by the immunizing language

of the "free speech proviso" of Section 8(c).
j

The usual presumption of constitutionality afforded

legislative enactments may not be invoked in pro-

1

ceedings involving an attempted abridgment of free

speech. Fundamental personal rights /enjoy prece-

'

dence not accorded to property rights and are sus-

1

ceptible of restriction only to prevent grave and im

pending public danger.
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Section 8(b)(4)(A) is void for vagueness and un-

certainty.

IV.

'Plio application of Section H)(l) and the oi-der of

the District Court herein violate the inliihition of the

Thirteenth Amendment against involuntary servitude.

The ancillary functions of the District C^ourt under

Section 10(1) in aid of the National Laboi* Relations

Board's administrative duties violate Ai-ticle III of

the Federal Constitution.

V.

The findings of fact specified as error herein are

contrary to and unsupported by the e\ddence, and

omit matc^rial, uncontroverted facts established by

the record.

ARGUMENT.

I.

THIS CASE INVOLVES ATTEMPTED OVERRIDING BY A STAT-

UTE OF SPECIFIC AND FUNDAMENTAL CONSTITUTIONAL
PROHIBITIONS.

In discussing the constitutional aspects of the case

before us, we first wish to compliment the District

judge who, in his Memorandum Opinion (R. 105-112)

has set forth the very strongest arguments which could

be advanced in support of abridgment of the right

of free speech under the terms of the Taft-Hartley

Act. As we shall show, we disagree categorically witli

the learned judge's conclusions, with the arguments in
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support thereof, and with his interpretation of the

authorities which he mentions.

At page 107 of the record, the District Court re-

ferred to the ''very delicate constitutional issue" in-

volved in the case, which language is immediately

followed by a reference to the "significant and broadi

change in legislative policy" expressed in the Taft->

Hartley Act. Later in his opinion, the Court char-?

acterizes the peaceful picketing shown by the plead-i

ings and the evidence to have been carried on as^

"forceful technique" and "coercive" as to third par-

ties (R. 110, 111).

I

Now, let us look at the constitutional picture gen-

erally. There is not a word in the e\ddence as to any

'

language or acts of the pickets even remotely sug-

gesting violence, threat of violence, forci]:)le obstruc-

tion of ingress or egress, or any form of breach of

the peace (See Point XI infra). Therefore we have

a decision by the judge, from which this appeal is

taken, that the mei'e walking up and down hy a picketj}

in a peaceful manner in the attempt to persuade

those dealing with a struck employer to cease their

dealings is in itself "coercive" and not the "dissemi-

nation of information" referred to in the Thornhill!'!

(310 U. S. at p. 88) and subsequent cases. 1

Previously this type of patrolling for precisely this,o

purpose was held to be a constitutional right in April,i

1940, by the decision in the Thornhill case. The Court:!

does not question the validity of the Thornhill case,i,

but he claims that those acts which were lawful and!

constitutional in 1940 are unlawful in 1948.
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Tlie judge claims, in effect, that these acts of free

speech by the pickets constituted **an incitement".

Now ill VJ2^>, in the Git low case (Gitlow v. New York,

268 U. S. 652, 45 S. Ct., 625, 69 L. Ed. 1138) Justice

Oliver A¥endell Holmes, in his dissenting opinion

(which is now the law of tlic land), referred to the

contention that a certain document or ''manifesto"

was not an exercise of the constitutional riglit of free

speech because it was "an incitement," and Justice

Holmes followed that statement with this:

"Every idea is an incitement which offers itself

for belief and, if believed, is acted on unless some
other belief outweighs it or some failure of energy

stifles the movement at its birth."

Now this statement of the law by Mr. Justice

Holmes in 1925, which began to be followed by ma-

jority o])inions of the Supreme Court within half a

dozen years, is, according to the learned trial judge in

tliis case, not the law in 1948.

We therefore inquire what has happened to abridge

this constitutional right, and the answer of course is

the passage by Congress of the Taft-Hartley Act.

In all of the constitutional authorities on the subject

of free speech in general and of peaceful picketing in

particular, it is either stated specifically and emphati-

cally or implied as being too clear and elementary to

require elaboration that no statute may abridge the

rights secured by the Constitution. In some of the

cases, as A. b\ of L. r. Swing, 312 U. S. 321, 61 S. Ct.

568, 85 L.Ed.855, it was not a statute but a state policy

which sought to abridge the constitutional riirht of



26

peaceful picketing. In other cases the attempted in-

fringement of the constitutional right was by means

of a statute, and in a large number of cases by a

penal statute, but these statutes have been stricken

down.

The learned judge does not suggest in his opinion

that this particular statute, having been passed by

the Congress of the United States, stands on any

higher plane than the statute of a state or subdivision

thereof; and of course no such contention could be

made. As a matter of fact, the prohibitions of the

First Amendment are aimed directly at Congress,

—

"Congress shall pass no law" etc.

At page 107 of the record, the District Court said:

"It is evident that unless the decisions of the

United States Supreme Court indisputably shoAv

the unconstitutionality of Section 8(b)(4)(A)
* * *, this court should grant an appropriate in-

junction * * »n

To that statement by the court of the issues in-

volved, let us add this additional issue, "Unless the

Taft-Hartley Act, and in particular the cited por-

tions, has in some way amended the First Amendment

to the Constitution, the court had no jurisdiction to

issue the injunction in this case."

We wish to ask the Court to take judicial notice

that the First Amendment has not been amended, and

that it is still in full force and effect. We shall show

that the Supreme Court of the United States has in

the last two decades more and more strongly upheld
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the rights secured by the First AmendmcMt subject

only to the clear and present danger rule.

II.

IF SECTION 8(b)(4)(A) SEEKS TO ABRIDGE THE RIGHT OF
PEACEFUL PICKETING PURSUANT TO A PRODUCT BOY-
COTT, AS IN THE CASE AT BAR, THEN SECTION 8(b)(4)(A)
STANDS BEFORE THE COURT WITHOUT THE BENEFIT OF
ANY PRESUMPTION OF CONSTITUTIONALITY.

As will be shown lioreaftcr, tlic rights secured })y

th(; First Amendment have the special favor of the

(.V)urts for their protection—a special favor because

they stand on a liigher ])lane than rights of property.

However, let us first consider the argument w^hich will

undoubtedly be made in support of Section 8(b)(4)

(A), which is in question here, namely, that the sec-

tion is presumed to be constitutional. We agree, of

course, that the general rule is that a legislative act

is presumed to be constitutional, l)ut there is a special

rule which applies to legislation seeking to infringe

the proA'isions of the J>ill of Rights, and in particular

legislation which seems to abridge the rights secured

by the First Amendment.

Thus, Mr. Justice Reed in the very recent decision

in United States v. Congress of Industn'al Organiza-

tions, decided June 21, 1948, U. S , con-

struing and applying another portion of the Labor

Management Relations Act, 1947, quotes with a[)-

proval the following language of earlier o])inions of

the high Court:
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"Free discussion of the problems of society is a

cardinal principle of Americanism—a principle

which all are zealous to preserve." (Pennekamp <

V. Florida, 328 U.S. 331, 346, 66 S. Ct. 1029, 90

L. Ed. 1295.)

a* * * ^i^g First Amendment does not speak

equivocally. It prohibits any law ' abridging the

freedom of speech or of the press.' It must be
;

taken as a command of the broadest scope that

explicit language, read in the context of a li]:)erty-
j

loA^ng society will allow." (Bridges v. California, \

314 U. S. 252, 263, 62 S. Ct. 190, 86 L. Ed. 192.)

In the leading case of Thomas v. Collins, 323 U. S.

516, at 529, 65 S. Ct. 315, 89 L. Ed. 436, the Supreme

Court of the United States had before it a statute of

the State of Texas, a statute whose validity and con-

stitutionality had already been upheld by the Supreme

Court of the State of Texas. This legislation sought

to abridge, in a very mild and indirect manner to be

sure, the right of assemblage secured by the First
,

Amendment. It was not such a direct abridgement as
\

the ordinance construed in Hague v. Committee, 307
;

U. S. 496, 59 S. Ct. 954, 83 L. Ed. 1423, which sought
\

to prevent absolutely a peaceful assemblage unless
j

approved by the chief of police. However, the Texas
j

statute, by requiring a labor organizer to register
j

with the Secretary of State, before doing any organ- i

izing work, that is to say, before soliciting any mem-
j

hers for the union, did interfere with and restrict the
j

activities of a labor organizer to some extent, and the

section was held unconstitutional insofar as it sought
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to aecoinplisli that pui-poso. 'Vho Supreme Coui't in

that case, said:

"The case confronts us aj2^ain with the clut}' our

system places on this (Vnirt to say where the in-

dividual's f*T'e(doni ends and the State's power

begins. Choice on that border, now as always

delicate, is perhaps more so where the usual pre-

sumption supportiiuj h'fjislatioi} is halanced by

the preferred place given in our scheme to the

great, the indispensable deinocralic freedoms se-

cured, by the First Amendment * * * That prior-

ity c'ives tliese liberties a sanctity and a sanction

not permitting: dubious intrusions. And it is the

character of the right, not of the limitation, which

determines what standard govems the choice."

(323 U.S. at p. 529, cited with approval in

United States v. Congress of Industrial Organ-

izations, supra, and Tn re Porterfield (April 30,

1946), 28 Cal. (2d) 91, 103, 168 P. (2d) 705.)

It must be borne in mind that the Taft-Hartley Act

is an Act of Congress and therefore it comes directly

within the prohibitions of the First Amendment,

which is a direct and positive prohibition in the fol-

lowing language

:

"Congress shall make no law respecting an estab-

lishment of I'cligion or prohibiting the free exer-

cise thereof, or abridging the freedom of speech

or of the press ; or the right of the people peace-

fully to assemble and to jietition the Govermnent

for redress of grievances."

We therefore do not have before us the question

involved in lu- re Blaney, 30 Cal. (2d) 643, 184 P.
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(2d.) 892, of a state anti-secondary boycott statute

abridging freedom of speech, nor Carlson v. Cali-

fornia, 310 U. S. 106, 60 S. Ct. 746, 84 L. Ed. 1104,

Hague v. Committee, supra, nor In re Bell, 19 Cal.

(2d) 488, 122 P. (2d) 22, nor the Porterfield case,

supra, concerning anti-labor ordinances with the same

effect. We have here a situation where Congress has

done precisely the thing which the First Amendment

says that Congress cannot do. It is the First Amend-

ment which is therefore directly disobeyed, and not

the First Amendment as incorporated by the Four-

teenth, j

In U. S. V. Carolene Products, 304 U. S. 144, at J

page 154 (Note 4), 58 S. Ct. 778, 82 L. Ed. 1234:

^' There may be narrower scope for operation of

the presimiption of constitutionality when legis-

lation appears on its face to be within a specific

prohibition of the Constitution, such as those of

the First ten Amendments, which are deemed

equally specific when held to be eml^raced within

the Fourteenth." (At the end citing Stromherg v.

California, 283 U. S. 359, 369, 370, 51 S. Ct. 532,

535, 536, 75 L. Ed. 1117, 73 A.L.R. 1484; Lovell

V. Griffin, 303 U. S. 444, 58 S. Ct. 666, 82 L. {Ed.

949, decided March 28, 1938. See also Cantivell

V. Connecticut, 310 U. S. 296, 60 S. Ct. 900, 84 ,

L. Ed. 1213, 128 A.L.R. 1352; Schneider v. New
\

Jersey, 308 U. S. 147, 60 S. Ct. 315, 89 L. Ed. I

430.) J

In another recent case the Supreme Court has made
\

it clear that these constitutional provisions mean
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exactly what they say and that they cannot be over-

ridden by legislation:

"The \evy f)n7-i)os(* of a I>ill of Riglits was to

withdraw certain subjects from the vicissitudes

of ])olitical controversy, to i)lace them beyond tlic

I'cach of majorities and officials and to establish

them as legal principles to be applied by the

courts. One's right to liPe, liberty and property,

to free speech, a Uv.v press, freedom of worship

and assembly, and other fundamental rights may
not be submitted to vote. They depend on the

outcome of no elections." (West Virffinia State

Board of Education v. Barnette, 319 TJ. S. b24,

638, 63 S. Ct. 1178, 1186, 87 L. Ed. 1628.)

In another leading case the court used similar

language

:

"Accordingly, in view of the preferred position

the freedoms of the First Article occupy, statute

in its present application must fall. Tt canvot he

sustained on any presumption of validity."

{Prince v. Commontvealth of Massachusetts, 321

U.S. 158, at 167, 64 S. Ct. 438, 88 L. Ed. 645.)

In still another recent decision involving wartime

conditions where the Supreme Court might have pre-

sumed the "clear and present danger rule" to apply,

the Supreme (\Hirt again denied the presumption of

constitutionality to legislation abi'idging the Bill of

Rights in Ex Parte Mitsuye Endo, 323 U.S. 283, at

299, 65 S. Ct. 208, 89 L. Ed. 243.

"We mention these constitutional provisions not

to stir the constitutional issues which have been

argued at the bai' but to indicate the approach
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which we think should be made to an order of

the Chief Executive that touches the sensitive

area of rights specifically guaranteed by the Con-

stitution. This Court has quite consistently given

a narrower scope for operation of the presump-

tion of constitutionality when legislation ap-

peared on its face to violate a specific prohibition

of the Constitution.''

III.

THE PERSONAL RIGHTS SECURED BY THE FIRST AMEND-
MENT, AND PARTICULARLY THE RIGHT OF FREE SPEECH,

TAKES PRECEDENCE IN THE EYES OF THE COURT OVER
PROPERTY RIGHTS, AND ARE NOT JUDGED BY THE SAME
CONSTITUTIONAL PRINCIPLES.

It must be borne in mind that the rights of the

employer in tliis case who is the charging party are

property rights, pure and simple. Any detriment

which he suffers from any acts of the union consists

of a loss of profits, and of that alone. It has been

repeatedly held that damage to an employer in such

cases is damnum absque injuria. In one of the lead-

ing cases in California {McKay v. Retail Automohile

Salesmeyi, 16 Cal.(2d) 311, 106 P. (2d) 373), the

picketing which was held by the State Supreme Court

as being the exercise of the right of free speech had,

according to the evidence in the case, resulted in clos-

ing down the business.

The rights of the workers on the other hand, the

union members, are personal rights. The right to
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picket, the right to boycott, tlie right to work or to

refrain from working:

Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U.S. 88, at pp. 104,

105, 60 S.Ct. 890, 87 L.Kd. 1290;

A.F. of L. V. Swing, 312 U.8. 321, 61 S.Ct. 568,

85 L.Ed. 855;

Cafeteria Employers Union v. Aufjelos, 320

U.S. 293, 64 S.Ct. 126, 88 L.Ed. 58;

Hunt V. Critmhoch, 325 U.S. 821, 65 S.Ct. 1545,

89 L.Ed. 1954.

In the recent case of Marsh v. Alabama, 326 I'.S.

501, m S.Ct. 276, 90 L.Ed. 265 the Court said (at

page 509) :

"When we balance the constitutional rights of

owners of property against those of the people to

enjoy freedom of press and religion, as we must

here, we remain mindful of the fact that the lat-

ter occupy a preferred position. As we have

stated before, the right to exercise the liberties

safeguarded by the First x\mendment lies at the

foundation of free government l)y free men and

we must in all cases weigh the circumstances and

appraise * * * the reasons * * * in 8up})ort of the

regulation of (those) rights."

See also Tucker v. Texas, 326 U.S. 517, 66 S.Ct. 274,

90 L.Ed. 274.

The following cases are cited by the Court in Marsh

V. Alabama in support of the principle thus stated

:

"The constitutional ])rotection of the Bill of

Rights is not to be evaded by classifying with

business callings an activity whose sole purpose



34

is the dissemination of ideas * * *" (Jones v.

City of Opelika, 316 U.S. 584, (Stone, C.J. dis.)

319 U.S. 103, 63 S.Ct. 890, 87 L.Ed. 1290.)

''The fact that the ordinance is 'nondiscrimina-

tory' is immaterial. The protection afforded by

the First Amendment is not so restricted. A
license tax certainly does not acquire constitu-

tional validity because it classifies the privileges

protected by the First Amendment along with the

wares and merchandise of hucksters and i)eddlers

and treats them all alike. Such equality in treat-

ment does not save the ordinance. Freedom of

press, freedom of speech, freedom of religion ai-e

in a preferred position." (3{nrdock v. Pemisyl-

vania, (Douglas, J.), 319 U.S. 105, 115, 63 S.Ct.

870, 87 L.Ed. 1292, 146 A.L.R. 81).

"The exaction of a tax as a condition to the ex-

ercise of the great liberties guaranteed l:)y the

First Amendment is as obnoxious (Grosjean v.

American Press, supra, (297 U.S. 233, 56 S.(H.

444, 80 L.Ed. 660) ; Murdoch v. Pennsylvania,

supra), as the imposition of a censorship or a

previous restraint. Near v. Minnesota, 283 U.S.

697, 51 S.Ct. 625, 75 L.Ed. 1357. * * *

"The exemption from a license tax of a preacher >

who preaches or a parishioner who listens does

not mean that either is free from all financial

burdens of government * * * But to say that they
^

like other citizens may be subject to general taxa-

tion does not mean that they can be required to

pay a tax for the exercise of that which the First

Amendment has made a high constitutional

privilege." {Follett v. Totvn of McCormich,

(Douglas, J.), 321 U.S. 573, 64 S.Ct. 717, 88 L.Ed.

938, 152 A.L.R, 317).
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Members of labor urbanizations as well as other

persons are constitutionally guaranteed the right to

express themselves on matters of public concern with-

out being subject to [)rior restraint.

Near v. Minnesota, Grosjean v. American Press

Company, Thorn hill v. Alabama, Carlson v.

California, all cited supra.

In the Blaneij case, discussed infra, 30 Cal. (2d) f>43,

184 P. (2d) 892, invalidating the California anti-

boycott law, it was thus said:

''Regardless of the area to which the concerted

labor activity, such as picketing or boycotting

may be (constitutionally limited, and the facts of

the case at bar as above disclosed, the statute here

involved cannot stand * * * It pemiits the prior

censorship of matters undeniably protected by the

constitutional guarantee of free speech and free

press. (See Near v. Minnesota, 283 U.S. 697, 51

S.C^t. ()25, 75 J..Ed. 1357.) It makes oiijoinable

the mere combination or agreement resulting in

the refusal by employees to handle goods for their

employer because of a disi)ute between some other

employer and his employees or a labor organiza-

tion.'^

As was stated in Thomas v. Collins, supra:
u* * * ^YiQ right either of w^orkmen or of unions

under these conditions to assemble and discuss

their own affairs is as fully pi'otected by the Con-

stitution as the right of businessmen, farmers,

educators, j)olitical party members, or others to

assemble and discuss their affairs and to rnlisf

the support of others/'
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In the Thomas case, the Court reaffirmed the views '•

exj^ressed in the ThornhiU case and Hague v. Com- '{

mittee, both supra, that the power of the state to regu- '

late labor organizations must not trespass upon the i

domains set apart for free speech and free assembly,
\

saying:
j

''Where the line shall be placed in a particular
;

application rests * * * on the concrete clash of
j

particular interests and the commmiity's relative

evaluation of both of them and of how the one
i

will be affected by the specific restriction, the

other by its absence. That judgment in the first

instance is for the legislative body. But in our "

system where the line can constitutionally he

placed presents a question this Court cannot

escape answerinf/ indej)endently, whatever the

legislative judgment, in tlie light of our constitu-

tional tradition. Schneider v. State, 308 U.S. 147,

161. And the answer, under that tradition, can ])e
\

affirmative to sup])ort an intrusion upon this

domain, only if grave and inijDending ])ublic

danger requires this."

IV.

THE RECOGNITION BY THE SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES OF THE COGNATE RIGHTS SECURED BY THE
FIRST AMENDMENT AND SUBJECT ONLY TO THE CLEAR
AND PRESENT DANGER RULE HAS DEVELOPED STEADILY
FOR THE LAST QUARTER CENTURY.

It is extremely interesting to note that the argu-

ments we are making in favor of the rights of free

speech in general, and in particular of peaceful picket-

ing, are neither new nor are they what mightbe called

II
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radical. Tlu^ ri.ii^lit of f'l'eo spcccli, suhjoft only to the

clear and present danger rule, goes baek to Schenck v.

U. \S., 249 U. S., 47, 39 S. (^t. 247, 63 T..Ed. 470, in the

following language

:

''The ({uestion in every case is whether the words
used are used in such circumstances and are of

such a nature as to create a clear and present

danger that they will bring about the substantive

evils that (^ongi'ess has a right to prevent."

A luuubcr of cases about that time discuss or men-

tion this rule and the language just quoted as pre-

sented in the dissenting opinion of Mr. Justice

Holmes, concui'vcd in by Justice IJrandeis in Gitlotv

V. New York, supra, 268 U. S. at pp. 672-673. This

was the same Oliver Wendell Holmes who while on the

Supreme J3ench of Massachusetts, away back in 1896

in another dissenting opinion, recognized and upheld

the right of picketing by a imion as an act of com-

petition with the employer. I^his dissenting opinion,

cited by the Supreme €ourt of California in McKay v.

Retail Antomobile Salesmen, supra, 16 Cal. (2d) at

p. 321, is now the law of the land, the case being

Vegelahn v. Guntner, 167 Mass. 92, 36 L.R.A. 722.

The concurring opinion of Mr. Justice Brandeis in

Whitney v. California, 274 U. S. 357, 374, 47 S. Ct.

641, 71 L.Ed. 1095, amplified the clear and present

danger test by declaring that "Fear of serious injuiy

cannot alone justify suppression of free speech and

assembly.
'

'

The Gitlotv case was followed by Stromherg v. Cali-

fornia, 283 U. S. 359, 51 S. Ot. 532, 75 L.Ed. 1117, in
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which the Supreme Court set aside a statute of the

State of California wJiich would have prohibited the

display of a red flag as being a denial of constitutional

rights. This opinion was written by Chief Justice

Hughes, concurred in by Justices Holmes, Brandeis,

Roberts, Vandervanter and Sutherland, Avith Justices

McReynolds and Butler the only dissenters. Next

came the epochal decision written by Chief Justice

Hughes, in which a statute of the State of Minnesota

was set aside on the ground that in attempting to per-

mit an injunction against the publication of a libel it

would have made possi])le the suppression of a scur-

rilous and defamatorv newspaper. {Near v. Minne-

sota, supra.) Chief Justice Hughes upheld the consti-

tutional right of free speech in elaborate, voluminous

and ekxjuent language. Incideutally, in this case

there were four dissentei's: Justices Butler, Yande-

vanter, McReynolds and Sutherland.

The next case in the line is Grosjean v. American

Express, supra, where, in a unanimous opinion, the

Sui)reme Court set aside a statute of Huey Long's

legislature in the State of Louisiana which would have

abridged freedom of the press by the levy of unreason-

able taxes.

Next follows De Jonye v. State of Oregon, 299 U. S.

353, 57 S. Ct. 255, 81 L. Ed. 278, which was a sedition

case involving the criminal syndicalism law of Oregon.

Although the opinion describes what may well have

been a seditious meeting participated in by Commu-
nists and others mth no love for our Constitution,

still the particular defendant who was prosecuted was
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not shown to have done any uiilawriil act (other than

to attend and jjarticipate in a [)eaceful meeting), and

the Supreme (\jurt in a unanimous opinion set aside

his conviction, ('liiei* Justice Hughes for the Court

said (at page 283) :

''Freedom of speecli and of the y)ress are funda-

mental rights which arc safeguarded by the due

process clause ol' the Fourteentli Amendment of

the Federal Constitution." (Citing the Gitlow,

Stromberg, Near and Grosjean cases just referred

to.)

The Chief .Justice continued,

''The right of peaceful assembly is a right cognate

to those of free speech and free press and is

equally fundamental."

Next is Herndou r. Lowrj/, 301 U. S. 242, 57 S. Ct.

732, 81 L. Ed. 1066, another sedition case where it

appeared there was an actual plot against the United

States Government w^hich might have led to rebellion

and the secession of cei'tain states or parts of states.

But there again it appeared that no unlawful act was

committed by the defendant, other than as compre-

hended in free speech and assembly, so his conviction

was set aside by an opinion by Mr. Justice Roberts,

with Justices Vandevanter, Sutherland and Butler

dissenting. In this case the clear and present danger

rule is emphasized as follows:

"The power of a state to abndge freedom of

speech and of assembly is the exception rather

than the rule and the penalizing even of utter-

ances of a defined character must find its justifica-
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tion in a reasonable apprehension of danger to

organized government. '

'

Now we come to the first case in which picketing is

mentioned

—

Senn v. Tile Layers Protective Union, 301

U. S. 468, 57 S. Ct. 857, 81 L. Ed. 1229, in which the

action of the Courts of Wisconsin, permitting the

picketing by the tile layers union of a tile layer who

insisted on doing his own work and in refusing to hire

a journeyman was approved. Mr. Justice Brandeis

wrote the opinion, with Justices Butler, Vandevanter,

McReynolds and Sutherland dissenting. In this case,

Mr. Justice Brandeis used this language, which has

been frequently quoted in subsequent cases,

'

' Members of a union might without special statu-

tory authorization by a state, make known the

facts of a labor dispute, for freedom of speech is

guaranteed by the Federal Constitution."

Next follow two cases in which the distril^ution of

handbills was upheld as a constitutional right even

though in violation of local ordinances (Lovell v. Citjf

of Griffin, 303 U. S. 444, 58 S. Ct. 666, 82 L. Ed. 949

(a unanimous decision), and Schneider v. New Jer-

sey, 308 U. S. 147, 60 S. Ct. 315, 89 L. Ed. 430, in

which in one instance the handbills were distril)uted

by a picket (Justice McReynolds being the sole dis-

senter) .

Now we come to Thornhill v. Alabama, frequently

referred to herein in which peaceful picketing in vio-

lation of a penal statute of the State of Alal^ama was

held as a constitutional right. This was a unanimous
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decision, except Coj" flic dissent oC Justice McReyri-

olds. 'Ilie companion case was ('arlson v. California,

supra, tlie same rnlinjj^ involving a coimty statute

with the same dissent. An interestini? thin^ about

the Thornhill decisi(^n is tliat since the Court had no

line of cases to refer to in wliich tlie rii;lit of picketing-

had been upheld as a constitutional ri^ht, exce})t the

passing reference of Justice Brandeis in the Scnn

case, which miglit have been dictum, and the circum-

stance referred to in tlie Schneider case, the Supreme

Court without hesitatiton and without dissent except

by Justice McReynolds, u))held the ri.o-ht of peaceful

picketing as a constitutional right, citing and relying

upon the following authorities referred to herein : the

Schneider, Lovell, De Jouge, (rrosjean. Near, Strom-

herg and Gitlow cases, showing the recognition by the

Supreme Coui't of the cognate character of all of

these rights protected by the First Amendment—as-

sembly, free speech and free press.

In the March 1948 munber of the California Law

Review appears a very intei'esting 40 page article en-

titled, ''Where ^Are We Going with Picketing?" This

article discusses the constitutional decisions of the

State of California ])ut lays particular stress on the

decisions of the Supreme Court of the Ignited States,

some of which have been referred to herein. This

article discusses also the constitutional cases involving

the organization known as Jehovah's Witnesses, nine-

teen decisions, from Schneider v. State, in 308 F. S.

down to Marsh r. AJahama, :V26 U. S. 501. These

cases involved freedom of worship combined in the

--v*^
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various cases with either freedom of speech, freedom

of the press, or freedom of assembly. Some of the

cases mil be referred to later.

Next in line come two cases decided on the samc^

day: Milk Wagon Drivers v. Meadowmoor Dairies,

312 U. S. 287, 61 S. Ct. 552, 85 L. Ed. 836, 132 A.L.K.

1200, and A. F. of L. v. Swing, supra, 312 U. S. 321. In

the Meadowmoor case the right of peaceful j^icketino'

was upheld but an injunction granted and ai)proYC(l

by the Illinois courts was affirmed because of the im-

minent danger of a recurrence of extreme violence

which had gone on over several years. The Supreme

Court made it clear that as soon as the pressure of

the danger of violence should be removed, then tlie

injunction should be set aside. In other words, the

Meadowmoor case absolutely upheld the right of

peaceful picketing.

In A. F. of L. V. Swing, supra, it appeared that tlie

beauticians were picketing a beauty shop for the pur-

pose of organization, no member of the union l)eing

employed therein. The Illinois courts held, according

to the public policy of the state as approved by its i

Supreme Court, that picketing could not be permitted

except in a dispute involving an employer and his own

employees. The Supreme Court said (312 U. S. at !

pages 325, 326) :

|

"The scope of the Fourteenth Amendment is not i

confined by the notion of a particular state re- '

garding the wise limits of an injunction in an
]

industrial dispute, whether those limits be de- -

fined by statute or by the judicial organ of the
j
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state. A state cannot exclude workingmen from
peacefully exercising the right of free communi-
cation by drawing the circle of economic competi-

tion between employers and workers so small as

to contain only an employer and tliose directly

employed by him."

in connection with this language of the Supreme

Court in the Swing case to the effect that no statute

may limit the allowable area of a labor dispute to an

emi^loyer and his own employees, we find (on page

205 of the record herein) that this was the jjrecise

contention made by the appellee in this case where

the learned and active attorney for the General Coun-

sel said:

''I think the Bitter's Cafe case, decided in 1942,

furnishes us with a basis foi* the argument that

Congress may limit industrial conflict so that the

conflict takes place only between the employer

immediately concerned and his employees, and so

as to prevent the unions from bringing j^ressure

to bear U])on the employees of another employer

so that they will engage in a concerted refusal to

handle the goods of the employer with whom the

union is having the real dispute, and, therefore,

force the second employer to cease doing business

with that particular employer."

This is undoubtedly the basic contention of the

prosecution in this case.

The next case in the development of this recognition

of constitutional rights is Bridges v. California, supra,

314 U. S. 252, G2 S. Ct. 190, 86 L. Ed. 192, where the
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Supreme Court of California was overruled in a case

involving the right of free speech, it being alleged

that the free speech constituted contempt of court.

In the case of a labor leader and of a conservative

newspaper (the Los Angeles Times) the right of com-

ment even upon pending and undecided cases was

upheld on constitutional grounds under the clear and

present danger rule:

a* * * j.^^ 'clear and present danger' language of

the Schenck case has afforded practical guidance

in a great variety of cases in whicli the sco])e of

constitutional protections of freedom of (>x])r(^s-

sion was in issue. It has been utilized by eithev

a majority or minority of this Court in passing

upon the constitutionality of convictioiis imder

espionage acts, ScJienck v. United States, supra;

Ahrams v. United States, 250 U. S. 616, 40 S. Ct.

17, 63 L. Ed. 1173; under a criminal syndicalism

act, Whitney v. California, supra; under an 'anti-

insurrection' act, Herndon v. Lotvnj, supra; and

for breach of the peace at common law, CantwvU

V. Connecticut, supra. And very recently we have

also suggested that 'clear and present danger' is

an appropriate guide in determining the consti-

tutionality of restrictions upon expression where

the substantive e\il sought to be prevented by the

restriction is 'destruction of life or property, or

invasion of the right of privacj^' Tlwrnhill v.

Alabama, 310 U. S. 88, 105, 60 S. Ct. 736, 745,

84 L. Ed. 1093.

"Moreover, the likelihood, however great that a

substantive evil will result cannot alone justify

a restriction upon freedom of speech or the press.

The evil itself must be 'substantial', Brandeis,
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J., concurriiiu,- in Whitu( ij r. Califorvio, supra,

274 U. S. at page :574, 47 S. Ct at page 647, 71
L. Ed. 1095; it iTiust be 'serious', Id., 274 U. S.

at page 'Sliy, 47 S. Ct. at pag(; f;48, 81 L. Kd. 1095.

And even the ex})ressi()n of 'legislative i)T'efei--

ences or beliefs' cannot ti'anst'orm minor niatt(;rs

of public inconvenience or annoyance into sub-

stantive evils of sufficient weight to wai-rant thc^

curtailment of liberty of expression. Schneider
V. State, :}08 U. S. 147, 161, 60 S. Ct. 146, 151, 84
L. Ed. 155.

"What finally emerges from the 'clear and i)res-

ent danger' cases is a working principle; that the

substantive evil must be exti-emely serious and
the degree of irmninence extremely high before

utterances can be punished. Those cases do not

purport to mark the fui'thermost constitutional

boundaries of i)rotected exj^ression, nor do we
here. They do more than recognize a mininuim
compulsion of the Uill of Rights. For the First

Amendment does not speak equivocally. It pro-

hibits any law 'abridging the freedom of speech,

or of the press'. Jt must be taken as a command
of the broadest scope that explicit language, read

in the context of a hberty-loving society, will

allow."

This luminous statement of the clear and present

danger has been followed in subsequent cases and has

never been questioned in the slightest degree. It nuist

therefore ])e recognized as the law' and must be ap-

jilied l)y the Court in the case at bai-.

The next two cases are frecjuently misunderstood

and frequently misquoted and misinterpreted. The

r^
/»»^
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ruling in the two cases, however, is very clear. In

the Bitter's Cafe case {Carpenters' Union v. Bitter's

Cafe, 315 U. S. 722, 62 S. Ct. 807, 86 L. Ed. 1143), it

was held that in a labor dispute picketing might ])e

prohibited where directed against a business having-

no economic nexus with the business against which

the original dispute was pressed. The Wohl case

{Bakery Wagon Drivers Jjocal v. Wohl, 31e5 U. S.

769, 62 S. Ct. 816, 86 L. Ed. 1178), held that picketing-

of a ijroduct of a struck employer is Avithin the alloAv-

able area and must be permitted. The district ,iud^('

herein (R. Ill) states that tlie Bitter's Cafe case

was decided on the ground that tlie picketing there
j

was a form of "forceful technique". As a matter of .

fact, the decision had nothing whatever to do with i

force of any kind, and the sole l)asis of the decision
'

was that the fully unionized cafe which was ]:>eing

picketed was entirely outside of the nexus of tlic

.

dispute which arose over the construction job of a^

building a mile and half distant. As applied to tlic

case at bar, these two decisions are controlling. h\

the Wohl case the Court upheld picketing of a prod-
1

uct, even in violation of the statutes of the state of
]

New York. In the case at bar, the Court must uphold

the picketing of a product even though prohibited ])y

a statute of commerce.

A significant feature of the Bitter's Cafe decision

is that it does not refer in any way to the clear and

present danger rule, aiid it is interpreted l)y opposing

counsel in the case at bar as furnishing a basis for

the limiting of picketing to a dispute between an|

employer and his own employees.
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It is very significant that tlic next case in line

{Cafeteria Employeeh' Union v. Angelos, 320 U. S.

293, 64 S. Ct. 126, 88 L. Ed. 58, decided a yeaT and a

hall' after the Ritter's Cafe case and bein^ a nnanim-

ous decision of* the Court) repeats the language of the

Swing case and holds that a statute may not limit the

area of an industrial disj)nt(' to an cmployei* and his

own employees.

Now we come to the very im])ortant case of Thomas

V. Collins, supra, in which the Court confirmed sev-

eral fundamental principles: First, that a statut(i

abridging- the right secured by the First Amendment

has no presumption of constitutionality in that the

usual presumption is balanced by the favor accorded

these constitutional rights; second, that these personal

rights take precedence over propert}' rights. x\gain,

that these rights may be interfered with only nndor

the clear and present danger rule. At })age 530 the

Court said:

'^For these reasons any attempt to restrict those

liberties must be Justified by clear public interest,

threatened not doubtfully or remotely, but by

clear and present danger. The rational connec-

tion between the I'emedy ])ro^'ided and the evil to

be curbed, which in other contexts might sup])ort

legislation against attack on due jn'ocess grounds,

will not suffice. These rights rest on firmer foun-

dation. Accordingly, whatever occasion would

restrain orderly discussion and persuasion, at

appropriate time and i)lace, must have clear suj)-

port in public danger, actual or im])ending. Ou\y

the gravest abuses, endangering paramount inter-

ests, give occasion for permissible limitation. It
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is therefore in our tradition to allow the widest

room for discussion, the narrowest range for its

restriction, particularly when this right is exer-

cised in conjunction mtli peaceable assemlilv. It

was not ))y accident or coincidence that the rights

to freedom in speech and press w^ere coupled in

a single guaranty with the rights of the peoj^le

peaceably to assemble and to petition for redress

of grievances. All these, though not identical,

are inseparable. They are cognate rights, cP.

De Jonge v. Oregon, 299 U. S. 353, 364, 57 S. Ct.

255, 259, 81 L. Ed. 278, and therefore are united

in the First Article's assurance. Cf. 1 Annah of

Congress 759-760."

V.

THE PICKETING COMPLAINED OF HEREIN WAS FOR A LAW-
FUL OBJECT AND WAS IN THE EXERCISE OF CONSTITU-

TIONAL RIGHTS.

In Thornhill v. Alabama, supra, the picketing

therein described which was for the purpose of en-

forcing a boycott against a certain struck estabhsli-

ment and which was moreover in ^dolation of a final

statute (31 U. S. at pp. 91, 92) was held to be the

exercise of a constitutional right. In other words,

,

picketing pursuant to a labor dispute directed at the'

premises of the emj^loyer or at the products of the.;;

emi^loyer is a constitutional right.

Bakery Wagon Drivers' Local v. Wohl, supra ;%

McKay v. Retail Auto Salesmen's Union, sii-\

pra, 16 Cal. (2d) at p. 319, 106 P. (2d) 373 ;l

*.
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Smith Metropolitayi Market v. Lyons, U) Cal.

(2d) 389, 394, 106 P. (2(1) 414;

Shafer v. Registered Pharmacists Union, Ki

Cal. (2d) 379, 382, 106 P. (2d) 403;

Fortenbiirjf v. Superior Court, 16 Cal. (2d)

405 and 408, 106 P. (2d) 411.

See also

Park d' Tilford Import Corp. v. Int'l Brother-

hood of Teamsters, 27 Cal. (2d) 599, 608, 16.'3

P. (2d) 891, 162 A.L.R. 1426.

'^It may be that cifoctivo exercise of the means

of advancinji- |)u))lic knowledge may persuade

some of those reached to refrain from entering

into advantageous relations with the business es-

tablishment which is the scene of the dis])ute.

Every ex]n-essioii of oj)inion on matters that are

important has the ])otentiality of inducing action

in the interests of one rather than another group

in society.^' (310 U. S. at p. 104.)

Picketing for a purjjose reasonably related to em-

ployment conditions and to the purposes of collective

bargaining is picketing for a lawful purj^ose, as per

the authorities last cited. In A. F. of L. v. Swing,

supra, the Supreme Court stated the purpose in still

stronger terms in this language:

''Communication by such employees of the facts

of a dispute deemed hi/ them to he relevant to

their interests can no more be barred because of

the concern for economic interests against wliich

they are seeking to enlist public opinion than

could the utterance protected in ThornhilVs

case." (312 U. S. at p. 326.)

^'
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This primary purpose or objective of picketing,

that is as a demonstration for the protection of the

interests of the workers in connection with their em-

ployment has been repeatedly upheld in the face of

a contention that in the course of the picketing some

other incidental purpose or objective appeared or was

charged to exist.

Speaking frankly, as ex-Justice Byrnes would say,

this contention of ''lawful purpose" for picketing has

been used and misused to justify the abridgement of

this constitutional right. The contention wliich is

made in the case at 1:)ar is that because Congress

passed a statute which apparently prohibited picket-

ing of the product of a struck employer, therefore

such picketing immediately ?jm'o facto l)ecomes un-

lawful as "being against pul)lic policy". Now the

Supreme Court of the United States has ])een very

definite in indicating exactly what regulation of tlie

exercises of these constitutional rights is allowable

and what form of prohibition of the exercise of these

rights cannot be tolerated. Briefs in opposition to

these constitutional rights always refer to general

statements by various Courts to the elfect that these

rights secured by the First Amendment are not a])so-

lute but are subject to regulation. However, that

statement does us no good in the resolution of tlie

issues before the Court in this case. What we ai-e

concerned with is what form of regulation is allowable

and what extent of regulation or jjrohibition lias been

definitely disapproved by the Court.



51

As pointed out ahovo, it is li(;l(l that economic

action, including boycott and ])icketing, is .justifiable

where it is reasonably lelated to employment i-elations

and the purposes of collective bargaining. VVlien this

is tlie primary ])ur])os(' of the economic action, the

action is legal and it does not become illegal because

some othei' incidental pur])ose is being achieved, as,

for instance, damage to the employer or to some one

allied with him, nor does it become illegal because

of the passage of some statute j)ni-])orting to prohibit

the activity. In A. F. of L. v. Sirhifi, supra, the

publicizing of a Inboi- dispute by ])icketing is held

to be lawful where the subject of the dis])ute is

"deemed" by the union to be relevant to its interests

even though the economic action was absolutely j)ro-

hibited by the policy of the particular state.

In the case of Carpenters Union v. Bitter's Cafe,

supra, the Texas courts disapproved of picketing out-

side of the nexus of the disj)ute, and the Supreme

Court of the United States with strong dissenting

opinions refused to interfere with this action of the

Texas courts. While this case has apparently been

disap})roved by subse(iuent decisions {Cafeteria Em-
ployees V. Angelos, supra; Thomas v. Collins, supra),

still, if it be accepted as stating the law api)licable to

the case at bar, it does no more than to disapjjrove

of a sympathetic boycott or picketing pursuant thereto

while defiJiitely upholding the right to picket an un-

fair product (315 U. S. at 727) which is exactly what

the defendants ai*e contending for here.

r-^-
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In some other cases, including Allen-Bradley Local

No. 1111 V. Wisconsin Employment Relations Board,

315 U. S. 740, 748, 62 S. Ct. 820, 86 L. Ed. 1154, and

one or two other cases arising in Wisconsin, the state's

police power, that is to say, the right of the state to

keep the peace, has been upheld.

The question of whether the picketing here was

for an unlawful i)urpose does not require lengthy or

numerous citations. The picketing here was peaceful,

in connection \^dth a legitimate labor dispute, and was

directed at the employer and at the products of the

employer. This precise foi*m of product boycott was

involved in Bakery and Pastry Drivers v. Wohl,

supra, approved in Carpenters Union v. Bitter's Cafe,

supra, in the case of Fortenhnry v. Superior Court,

supra, 16 Cal. (2d) 405, 106 P. (2d) 411, and was the

same type of picketing—except that it was entirely

peaceful—as that involved in Milk Wagon Drivers

V. Meadowmoor Dairies, supra, where the picketing

was disapproved only because of its manner.

This picketing has taken place in violation of a

statute purporting to prohibit i3icketing pTirsuant to

a boycott. That was precisely the situation in Thorn

-

hill V. Alahama where the picketing was held to be a

constitutional right.

To argue that this picketing was for an unlawful

purpose is simply to contend that a statute may pro-

hibit w^hat the Constitution permits.
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VI.

SECTION 8(b)(4)(A) OF THE ACT IN QUESTION CANNOT
VALIDLY BE APPLIED TO RESTRAIN PEACEFUL PICKET-
ING PURSUANT TO A PRODUCT BOYCOTT.

As District Jiid^c Rifkiud said recently with re-

spect to Section (S(1))(4)(A) in f)oH(ls v. Metropoli-

tan Federatiou of Architects, decided Jannarv 2(i,

1948, 75 'F. Snj)]). (;72:

''The Taft-Hartley Act has thus fai- had hut little

judicial attention. * * * No case thus far has

reached an appc^llate court. Even cursory exami-

nation of the stated facts and the (pioted portions

of the Act reveals that the case hristles with (jues-

tions of constitutional law, statutory construction

and practical ap{)lication. * * *

"Certainly it is an ohject of veiy many strikes

and ])icket lines to induce a reduction in the

struck employer's husiness l)y an a])])eal to cus-

tomers—'any person'—to cease dealing' with the

employer. This is one of the most cons])icuous

weapons employed in many lahor disputes. TJte

effect of a strike would he vastly attenuated if its

appeals were limited to the emplojier's conscieiice.

I shall proceed on the assumption, w^arranted hy

the history of the Act, that it was not the intent

of Congress to ban such activity, although the

words of the statute, given their broadest meaning

may seem to reach it.

"* * * recourse may l)e had to the lefjislative

historij to discover the mischiel' which Congress

intended to remedy * * * with the aid of the

glossary provided by the law of secondary boy-

cott * * *"

^OTf*'
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The conference agreement adopted the provisions

of the Senate version of Section 8(b), with clarifying

changes and with one addition to the category of un-

lawful objectives of strikes and boycotts. ''Under

clause (A)— [of Section 8(b)(4)] strikes or boycotts,

or attempts to induce or encourage such action, were

made unfair labor practices if the purpose was to

force an employer or other person to cease using,

selling, handling, transporting or otherwise dealing in

the products of another, or to cease doing business

with any other person. Thus it was made an unfair

labor practice for a union to engage in a strike ayainsi

employer A for the purpose of forcing that employer

to cease doing business with employer B. Similarly,

it would not be lawful for a union to boycott employer

A because employer A uses or otherwise deals in the

good of, or does business with, employer B." (House

Conference Report No. 510 on H. R. 3020, June 3,

1947, p. 43.)

In other words, this clause is aimed at ;the true

secondary boycott, where full scale economic sanctions

are placed by a imion against an employer with whom
no dispute exists for the jjurpose of compelling him

to shun commercially the firm where the primary

dispute exists. (Senate Report No. 105 on S. 112(),

April 17, 1947, j). 22.) While the House provision

differed from the Senate version which was adopted,

the problem was similarly described by the Hartley

Committee on Education and La])or in these terms:

''His (the emploj^er's) business on occasions have

been virtually brought to a standstill by disputes
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to which he has not heoii a i)ai'ty, and in which he

had no interest."

(House Report No. 24.'') on PI. R. 3020, April

11, 1947, p. 5.)

Senator Pepper cojitended that ''tlie language

would, forbid one man or one agent of a labor union

going to tlie employees ot" another employer working

on a product put out by a mamifacturei' who would be

unfair to them in their opinion and attempting to

persuade or induce those workers not t(j handle the

output of the factory in wliic^h th(;re was a disagi-ee-

ment with the workers." To which, Senator Taft

immediately repUed

—

"I do not quite understand the case which the

Senator has put. Tins provision makes it unlaw-

ful to resort to a secondary boycott to injure the

business of a third person who is wholly uncon-

cerned' in the disagreem,eut between an employer

and his employees/'

(93 Daily Cong. Rcc. 4322-4323, 4/20/47.)

'* Examination of these expositions of Congressional

purpose," says Judge Rifkind, "indicates that the

provision was understood to outlaw what was there-

tofore known as a secondary boycott. It is to tlu^

history of the secondary bo^X'ott, therefore, tliat at-

tention should be directed,"

Under the modern trend of decision, a clear distinc-

tion has been drawn between ])icketing the products

of the struck plant, and boycotting or striking a cus-

tomer, supplier, or distributor of the struck plant.

<<"
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(Gromfine, Labor's Use of the Secondary Boycott

(1947), 15 Geo. Wash. L. Rev. 327; Goldfinger v. Fein-

tuch, 276 N. Y. 281, 11 N. E. (2d) 910; Fortenhury

V. Superior Court, 16 Cal. (2d) 405, 106 P. (2d) 411.)

In terms of the unmistakable trend in the law of

boycotts, the legitimate interests of the labor union in

prosecuting its dispute and the "unity of interest"

between the manufacturer and the distributor are both

relevant to the construction and applicatiton of this

legislation. (Cf. Senate Minority Report No. 105, Pt.

2, on S. 1126, April 22, 1947, j). 20; 93 Daily Con^.

Rec. 4156, 4/25/47.)

The act of picketing the Sealright finished products

at the Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc., and

of picketing the Sealright paper (consigned by the

employer's New York plant to the Los Angeles plant

for manufacturing goods under strike conditions),

peacefully and without interference with the normal

course of lousiness at either of these two concerns

cannot be held to constitute an unlawful "secondary-

boycott" within the meaning of 'Section 8(b)(4)(A).

Nor can it properly be said that such peaceful picket-

ing is "the type of coercion that is attended with

serious repercussions and dire consequences upon the

interests of the two strangers of the la])or dispute

between Sealright and the Union". (R. 110-111.)

In the recent decision of the high Court in United

States V. Congress of Industrial Organizations, de-

cided June 21, 1948, U. S , construing and

applying another portion of the Labor Management

Relations Act, 1947, Mr. Justice Reed said: J

i
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''The xnirposc of ('(.ii^r,-(.,ss is a dominant fartui*

in determining- nuianin^-. 'Plioi'e is no Ix'ttc^r key
to a difficult f)Tol)lem of* statutory construction

than the law from wliich the cha]len,e:ed statute

emerged. RenuHlial laws are to he interpreted in

the light of* ])revious ex])ei-i(!nce and j)iior enact-

ments. Nor, where doubt exists, should we dis-

regard ini'ormed congressional discussion."

The District Court herein condenms j)ick('ting of

the products oi* Seali'ight Pacific Ltd. "as a form ol*

forcihk^ techniciue that has been held to he sul)ject

to restrictive regulation hy tlie State in the public

interest on any reasonable basis.'

^

This holding ignores the clear statement ol' the

Supreme Court in West Virginia State Board of

Kdueation v. Barnette, supra, that

—

''The right of* a State to regulate, for exam])le, a

public utility, may well include, so far as the due
process test is concerned, ])ower to im])ose all ol*

the restrictions which a legislature may have a

'rational basis' foi* adopting. But freedom of

speech and press, of assembly and of worship may
not be infringed on such slender grounds. Thoy
are susceptible of restriction only to prevent

grave and immediate danger to interests which

the State may lawl'ully protect."

^-•r«*
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yii.

SECTION 8(b)(4)(A) MUST BE HELD INVALID ON ITS FACE,

UNLESS PEACEFUL PICKETING UNDER THE CIRCUM-

STANCES OF THIS CASE IS DEEMED EXCLUDED FROM ITS

TERMS BY THE IMMUNIZINCJ LANGUAGE OF THE "FREE
SPEECH PROVISO" OF SECTION 8(c).

Where regulation or infringement of liberty of

discussion and. the dissemination of information and

opinion are involved, there are special reasons for

testing the challenged statute on its face. (Jones v.

Opelika, 316 U. S. 584, 319 U. S. 103, 63 S. Ct. 890,

87 L. Ed. 1290.)

As was said in Thornhill v. Alabama, supra, 310 U.

S. 86, 96, 60 S. Ct. 736, 84 L. Ed. 1093, concerning a

statute prohibiting joicketing:

''There is a further reason for testing the section

on its face. Proof of the abuse of power in the

particular case has never been deemed a reciuisito

for attack on the constitutionality of a statut*^

purporting to license the dissemination of ideas."

The existence of such a statutory provision ''wbicli

does not aim specifically at evils within the allowa])]e

area of state control, but on the contrary sweeps

within its ambit other activities that in ordinary

circumstances constitute an exercise of freedom of

speech" inevitably "results in a continuous and per-

vasive restraint on all freedom of discussion that

might reasonably be regarded as within its purview".

Carlson v. Califorriia, supra;

Schneider v. New Jersey, supra, 308 U. S. 147,

162-165, 60 S. Ct. 315, 89 L. Ed. 430;
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llayue v. C. J. ()., 307 U. S. 49(), W.) S. Ct. 954,

83 L. Ed. 1423;

Lovell V. OrilJin, 303 U. S. 444, 451, 58 S. Ct.

666, 82 L. Ed. 949;

Strombcrg v. California, 283 U. S. 359, 369, 51

S. Ct. 532, 75 L. Ed. 1117.

If certain provisions of a statute, or particular

applications of broad statutory language operate to

prohibit peaceful picketing, the entire section is in-

valid even though it may also i)rohibit acts that may
properly l)e made illegal. Thus, on October 3, 1947,

the Supreme Court of California invalidated the so-

called "Hot Cargo and Secondary Boycott Act'' of

this State (California Labor Code §§ 1131-1136) in

a 6-to-l decision, previously cited herein: In re

Blaney, 30 Cal. (2d) 643, 651-653, 184 P. (2d) 892.

(See also In re Porterfield, 28 Cal. (2d) 91, 168 P.

(2d) 706, 176 A.L.li. 675; In re Bell, 19 Cal. (2d)

488, 495, 122 P. (2d) 22.)

There the California Sux^reme Court discusses in

detail the application of decisions of the Su^jreme

Court of the United States to the state enactment

rendering unlawful and subject to injunctive re-

straint :

''* * * any co]n])ination or agreement resulting in

a refusal by cm])loyees to handle goods or to per-

form any services for their employer because of

a dispute between some othei' employer and his

employees or a labor oigaiiization * * *

a* * * .^j^y combination or agreement to cease

performing, or to cause </»// ewplm/rr to crafie
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performing any services for any employer, or to

cause any loss or injury to such employer, or to

his employees, for the purpose of inducing or

compelling such other employer to refrain from

doing business tvith, or handling the products of

any other employer, because of a dispute between

the latter and his employees or a labor organiza-

tion * * *"

(California Labor Code § 1134.)

As the single dissenting justice correctly i:)ointed out

:

''It may be noted that by the enactment of tlie

Labor Management Relations Act of 1947 (Cli.

120, Public Law 101), including amendment of

the National Lal)or Relations Act, the Congress

had declared 'secondary l^oycott' operations l)y

concerted action to be an unfair labor practice

with provisions for civil remedies. That legisla-

tion is cast in language the same in substance and

effect as section 1134 liere under consideration."

(Dissenting opinion of Associate Justice Shenk,

30 Cal. (2d) at p. 675.)

Associate Justice Carter, citing numerous United

States Supreme Court constitutional authorities, sum-

marized the vice of the California law api^roximating

Section 8(b)(4)(A) in these words:

"The Legislature manifestly sought in the instant

case to prohibit every form of boycott, including;'

some kinds which are occasionally characterized

as 'primary'. The deliberately chosen language,

covering all such activities in general terms, with

no attempt at segregation or classification, leaves

this court with no alternative l)ut to nullify the

I
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act. Only by a carefully di'awu statute wliicli

separately treats the various forms of concerted

action loosely tei'med 'secondary boycotts' can the

Legislature hof)e to accomplish the object of rei^u-

latinj^- those forms wliich inny ultimately be held

to be within its coustitutional power."

(30 Cal. (2d) at p. 658.)

Section 8(b)(4)(A) nuist, under these same Su-

preme (yourt decisions, be declared invalid on its face,

unless peaceful picketing under the cii'cumstances

herein is deemed excluded from its terms by the

immunizing language of Section 8(c). The District

Court in the instant case failed to give Section 8(c)

any effect whatsoever, or to rule as to its ai)])licability

to Section 8(b)(4)(A).

Appellants are familiar with the long-standing

canon of judicial construction that when the consti-

tutionality of a statute is assailed, if the statute be

reasonably susceptible of two interpretations, by one

of which it would be unconstitutional, and by the

other valid, the Courts will adopt that construction

which will save the statute from constitutional in-

firmity. Only recently in United States v. Covc/ress

of Industrial Orfjanizations, supra, the Sujjreme

Court quoted this canon of construction in considering

Section 304 of the Taft-Hartley Act, opining:

"* * * it is deal' that Congress was keenly aware
of the constitutional limitations on legislation and
of the dnuijer of the incalidatio}! hif the eourts

of any enartnient that threatened abridijement

of the freedoms of the First Amendment. It

did iy>t,^want to pass any legislation that would
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threaten interferences ^^^.th the privileges of

speech or press or that would undertake to su-

persede the Constitution. The obligation rests

also upon this Court in construing congressional

enactments to take care to interpret them so as

to avoid a danger of unconstitutionality."

Confronted mth this same problem of construction

in passing upon a proposed ai^plication of Section

8(b)(4)(A) requested by the Regional Director for

the Second Region of the Board, in proceedings for

injunctive relief under Section 10(1), District Judge

Rifkind said:

''It must he ajjparent that a construction of the

Act which outlaws the kind of miion activity here

involved would almost certainly cast grave doubts

upon its constitutionality. It is preferahJe to in-

terpret the disputed section so as to restrain only

that kind of union activity ivhich does not enjoy

constitutional immunity."

{Bonds V. Metropolitan Federation of Archi-

tects, supra, 75 F. Supp. 672.)

The legislative history of Section 8(c) makes it

plain that Congress had no intention of interfering

with the normal rights of either an employer or of

his employees and their miion, to effectively present

views, arguments and opinions in the course of a labor

controversy. (See for example, 93 Daily Cong. Rec.

4141, 4/25/47 where Senator Taft states, "The pro-

vision regarding free speech applies both to employer

and employee". Also, statements of Senators Mo-

Clellan, Morse, and Taft, at 93 Daily C^ong. Rec. 5091-
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5095, 5/9/47; IluiLse liepuit No. 245 on H. R. :j020,

April 11, 1947, p. 6.)

Prior to the cnac-tinent of the Labor Manafrement

Relations Act of 1947, the Courts eoiistniinfr Section

8(1) of the Wagner Act (.f 1935, held that an anti-

union statement of* an employer to his employees,

standing alone, even if made on the eve of a repre-

sentation election, was f)rotected fully by the First

Amendment and did not therefore constitute a Eola-

tion of the statute, if the statement contained no

threats of repiisal or promises of rewards. (N. L. B. B.

r. Virqi)]ia KJectrir cf- Power Companj/, .314 U. S. 469,

cited infra in Thomas v. Collins; N. L. B. B. v. Amrri-

can Tube Bendinc) Co. (CCA. 2d), 134 F. (2d) 093,

cert. den. 320 U. S. 768. See also Maiter of Bamch
and Lomh Optical Co., 72 N.L.R.B. No. 21.)

Section 8(c) not only established in statutoiy form

the decisional law eliminating as an unfair labor prac-

tice expressions of opinions, or argument in any form

by an em])loyer to his employees (proWded it con-

tained no threats or promises) and extended it to simi-

lar statements by employees and their imions—it de-

clared that the expression or dissemination of such

Ndews, argument, or opinion, whether in wTitten,

l)rinted, graphic or visual foi'm, shall not be evidence

of an imfair labor practice, ''under ant/ of the provi-

sions of this AcC\

As the Suj)reme Court of the United vStates said in

Thomas v. Collins,

"The First Amendment is a charter for govern-

ment not for an institution of learnings. 'Free
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trade in ideas' means free trade in the oppor-

tunity to persuade to action, not merely to de-

scribe facts.

'^ Indeed, the whole history of the problem shows

it is to the end of preventing action that repres-

sion is primarily directed land to preserving the

right to urge it that the protections are given.

"Accordingly, decision here has recognized that

employers' attempts to persuade to action with

respect to joining or not joining unions are within

the First Amendment's guaranty. National Labor

Relations Bd. v. Virginia Electric <£ P. Co., 314

U. S. 469 * * * When to this persuasion other

things are added which bring about coercion, or

give it that character, the limit of the right has

been passed. But short of that limit, the em-

ployer's freedom cannot he impaired. The Con-

stitution protects no less the employees' converse

right. Of course espousal of the cause of labor is

entitled to no higher protection than the espousal

of any other lawful cause. It is entitled to the

same protection." (323 U. S. at 537.)

It is significant that the language of Section 8(c)

closely approximates the references in Thornhill v.

Alabama and Carlson v. California to appropriate

methods for "the dissemination of information con-

cerning the facts of a labor dispute". In the Thorn-

hill case, the Supreme Court refers to "the means used

to publicize the facts of a labor dispute, whether by

printed sign, by pamphlet, by word of mouth, or other-

wise". The Carlson case holds that "The carrying of

signs and banners, no less than,the raising of a flag, is

\
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a natural and ap2)i'opriat(; nutans of conveying in-

formation on Tnatteis of public concern", citing Strom-

herg v. California, supra, and refers to '^ appropriate

means, whether by pamphlet, by word of mouth or hy

banner*', which is certainly equivalent to the "written,

printed, graphic or visual form/' of ex|)resHion con-

templated by Section 8(c).

A thorongh search of the record herein will fail to

disclose any evidence to sustain a finding that ''orders,

force, threats or promises of benefit" were emj)loyed hy

members of a[)pellant Local 388 at any time to induce

or encourage the employees of the trucking concern

and terminals company not to transport or handle

Sealright goods. There is not a- single instance where

any ''threat of reprisal, force, or promise of benefit"

characterized the picketing of the Sealright products,

or the statements made in connection therewith. (As a

matter of fact, the mention of ''promise of benefit" in

Section 8(c) would indicate that the language was

meant to apply to employers rather than pickets.)

Moreover, as has already been pointed out, the

picketing in question did not materially affect or in-

terfere with the normal business being conducted at

those concerns, and thei'e was no intention on the pari

of the strikers to physically or othermse obstruct the

operations at those locations, or to picket any mer-

chandise other than Sealright products.

Thus, unable to bring this picketing of the Sealright

products within the exception clause of Section 8(c),

appellee contended, and the District Court held that
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such picketing is ''a forcible technique". In effect,

this holding seeks to turn back the hands of the clock

and to revive early judicial pronoimcements, long since

overruled that ''there can he no such thing as peace-

ful picketing". {Atchison etc. v. Gee, 139 Fed. 582;

see also Pierce 'v. Stablemen's Union, 156 Cal. 70;

Rosenberg v. Retail Clerks' Assn., 39 Cal. App. 67,

and Moore v. Cooks Uniov, 39 Cal. App. 538, all ex-

pressly renoimced in Lisse v. Local Union, 2 Cal. (2d)

312, 41 P. (2d) 314, and McKay v. Retail Automobile

Salesmen's Union, supra.)

The charge originally fled before the Board (R. 27-

30) contains no reference to threats of reprisal or

force or promise of benefit. However, the petition for

injunction (R. 2-8) based directly upon the charge has

inserted in it (R. 5 and 6) the words above quoted,

that is to say, an allegation that the pickets used force,

threats, or promises of benefit, all without the slight-

est evidentiary support. In fact, the insertion of those

words in the petition and in the findings of the Court

(R. 136 and 137) is just a little bit unfair. It is evi-

dent that the onl}^ purpose of inserting those words

was to attempt to deprive the pickets of the protection

which appears to be specifically granted by the statute.

In fact, the opinion of tlie Court (R. 104, 105) con-

tains this very language as tending to support the

correctness of the injunction and the jurisdiction of

the Court to grant it.

In the leading case upholding the constitutional

right of peaceful picketing (Thornhill v. Alabama,

supra), the picketing there upheld as a constitutional
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ri^lit (with elaborate citations of authority) describes

precisely the acts of the j)ickets as immunized l)y the

laiiftuap^c; of S(^ctio]i 8(c). The |)icketiMS is there re-

ferred to as publicizi 11,12: 'i labor dispute. (310 U. S. at

p. 102.) The intent <>(' tlic i>icketin^ is referred to at

page 100, namely, "to hinder, delay or interfere with

the law^ful business" and the effects, that is, actual in-

terference with tlie business, are referred to at pages

104, 105.

At page 111 of the record herein the District Court

refers to the concurring o])inion of Mr. Justice Doug-

las in the WoJil case (315 U. S. at p. 775) and states

that Mr. Justice Douglas tlierein "delineates the evils

of the secondary boycott * * *" Now% the facts are

that the Wohl case involved the boycott of a product

which is iiiot generally referred, to as a secondary boy-

cott, although it is so denominated by the district

judge ill the case at bar. The Supreme Court with jio

dissent approved the product hoycott carried on in

the Wohl case. And the lan,guage of Mr. Justice Doug-

las, quoted by the district jud.ge here and quoted in

many anti-picketing o^nnions and briefs, "was used in

approval of the ])roduct boycott found to exist in the

Wohl case.

The quotation taken from the concuri'ing o])inion of

Mr. Justice Douglas in Bakcri/ Wafjon Drivers r.

Wohl, supra, reads as follows

:

"Picketing y)y an organized group is more than

free s])eech, since it imolves patrol of a paT*ticu-

lar locality and since the very presence of a ])icket

line mav induce action of one kind or another.
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quite irrespectiA^e of the nature of the ideas being

disseminated. Hence those aspects of picketing

make it the subject of restrictive regulation." (R.

111-112, quoting from 315 U. S. at p. 776.)

The paragraph immediately following in the quoted

opinion Avas omitted by the District Court, although it

amounts to a definite qualification of the language

reproduced, saying:

''But since 'dissemination of information concern-

ing the facts of a labor dispute' is constitutionally

protected, a State is not free to define 'labor dis-

pute' so narrowly as to accomplish indirectly what

it may not accomplish directly. That seems to mc
to be what New York has done here. Its statute

(Ci^al Practice Act §867a) as construed and ap-

i:>lied in effect eliminates communication of ideas

through peaceful picketing in connection with a

labor controversy arising out of the business of a

certain class of retail bakers. But the statute is

not a regulation of picketing per se, narrowly

drawn, of general application, and regulating the

use of the streets by all picketeers. In substance

it merely sets apart a particular enterprise and

frees it from all i^icketing. If the principles of

the Thornhill case are to surAdve, I do not see how
New York can be allowed to draw that line.

'

'

As a matter 'of fact, in the Thornhill case itself, the

Court recognized "the power of the State to set the

limits of permissible contest open to industrial com-

batants" but quickly added that "It does not follow

that the state in dealing with the evils arising from

industrial disputes may impair the effective exercise

I
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ol' thv right to discuss Irocly industrial relations which

are matters of public concern".

The; authority ol' the Wohl decision in upholding on

coiistitutiona] principles the rit^ht to conduct a product

boycott is further emphasized in the Hitter's Cafe

case, supra, decided the same day and i-eported at 315

U. S. 722. In that case the Suj)reme Court of the

United States refused to interfere with action of the

Courts of Texas in prohibiting picketing of a fully

unionized cafe in a dispute over a constructioTi job

located oiie and a half miles distant. At page 727 of

the opinion the Court goes to the trouble to T'eaffirni

the Wohl case, decided on the same day, as illustrating

the permissible limits of ])icketing. In other words,

the ruling of the Court in the Wohl case, concurred in

by Mr. Justice Douglas and by all the other justices

who participated, is as far as i)ossible ifrom the im-

plication of the District Court (R. Ill) with reference

to the '^ evils of the secondary boycott''. In other

words, according to the ruling of the Supremo Court.

a product boycott in the Wohl case was lawful and

constitutional. Therefore, since the Constitution re-

mains the same, the product boycott in the present

case is lawful and constitutional, and the only argu-

ment that it is unlawful and unconstitutional must be

based on the contention that in some way the Taft-

Hartley Act is more potent than the Constitution

itself.

As stated above, we contend that the provisions of

Section 8(c) protects the pickets in their product boy-

cott, if, in fact, they needed any statutory ]irotection
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in view of the explicit rulings of the Supreme Court

of the United States and in the plain language of the

First Amendment. In the light of the Thornhill deci-

sion and others which followed, the peaceful picketing

constituted the ''expressing" of 'Sdews, argument or

opinion" and ''dissemination thereof". If it be con-

ceded or held that Section 8(c) is to be read in con-

nection with the various provisions of Section 8(b),

then Sections 8(b) and 8(c) in prohibiting acts whicli

Congress may or may not have had the right imder the

Constitution to jirohibit certainly do not prohibit tlu^

exercise of the right of free speech. Under that inter-

pretation this portion of the statute may stand, but of

course in that case the injunction cannot stand. The

General (/ounsel, therefore, may have it either way.

If he is willing to concede that Section 8(c) protects

the right of free speech of the pickets as well as the

employer, then he is not entitled to the injunction;

while if he contends that Section 8(1)) must be read

without the protection of Section 8(c) and if he fur-

ther contends that Section 8(b) must also be construed

without the protection of the First Amendment, then

those portions of Section 8(b) are clearly unconsti-

tutional.

i
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VIII.

SECTION 8(b^(4)(A) IS VOID FOR VAGUENESS
AND UNCERTAINTY.

A. The terms of Section 8(b)(4)(A), which are incorporated in

the injunctive order herein appealed from almost verbatim,

are violative of due process of law because they are vague,

indefinite, and uncertain.

Mr. Justice Iliitled^e, concurring in the very recent

decision in Ignited States v. CongrcHH of IndiiHtrial

Orf/anizatioiis, supra, sets fortli an extremely learned

exposition of the principle of constitutional law indi-

cating- that "hlurred signposts" to illegality, will not

suffice to create it.

So far as the guarantees of the First Amendment

are concerned, "* * * statutes restrictive of or pur-

j)orting to ])lace limits to those freedoms must he nar-

rowly drawn to meet the precise e^dl the legislature

seeks to curh" and ''* * * the conduct proscribed must

be defined sp(K*ifically so that the person or persons

affected remain secure and unrestrained in their rights

to engage in activities not encompassed by the legis-

lation".

The District Court herein holds that Section 8(b)

(4) (A) is not unconstitutionally vague or uncertain,

citing United States v. Petrillo, 332 U. S. 1, 67 S. Ct.

1538, 91 L. Ed. 1403. (R. 109.) The statute there in-

volved (Act of April 16, 1946, 60 Stat. 89, eh. 138, 47

U.S.C.A. §506) refers to "the use or express or im-

plied threat of the use of force, violence, intimidation

or duress or implied thr-eat of the use of other means

to coerce, compel or constrain" an employer to hire

imneeded employees. In the Petrillo case, the Su-
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preme Court pointed out that the ''gist of the oifense

here charged iii the statute and in the information"

is that the defendant ''willfully, by the use of force,

intimidation, duress and by the use of other means did

attempt to coerce, compel and constrain" the licensee

to hire unneeded employees. (Italics are the Court's.)

All that was held in the Petrillo case was that if the

allegations of the information that the prohibited re-

sult was attempted to be accomplished by picketing-

are so broad as to include peaceful constitutionally

protected picketing, the trial Court would be free to

strike them, or the Government could have amended

the information, so that ''this case had not reached a

stage where the decision of a precise constitutional

issue was a necessity".

In invalidating the California "Hot Cargo and Sec-

ondary Boycott Act" drawn in language comparable

to Section 8(b)(4)(A), the Supreme Court of this

State cited Lanzetta v. New Jersey, 306 U. S. 451, 59

S. Ct. 618, 81 L. Ed. 888, and niunerous other United

States Supreme Court decisions for the proposition

that:

"Language prohibiting conduct that may be pro-

hibited and conduct that may not affords no rea-

sonably ascertainal)]e standard of guilt and is

therefore too uncertain and vague to be enforced."

(Ju re Blaney, supra, 30 Cal. (2d) at p. 652 ; see

also In re Bell, 19 Cal. (2d) 488, 495, 122 P. (2d)

22.)

A statute which declai*es unlawful the doing of an

act in terms so vague that men of common intelligenco
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must necessarily j^uess at its meaning and differ as to

its application violates the first essential of due process

of law.

Lanzetta v. New Jersey, supra;

Connalhf v. General Construction Company, 269

U. S. :}85, 4() vS. Ct. 126, 70 L. Fxl. 322;

Ilerndon v. Lowry, 301 U. S. 242, 57 S. Ct. 732,

81 T.. Ed. 1066.

The order for injunctive relief appealed from here-

in (R. 139-140) is couched in the statutory lanp:uaffe

almost verbatim, the sole change consisting 'of the

addition of the words "by picketincj, orders, force,

threats or promise of benefit, or by any other like or

related lacts^or conduct" to describe the proscribed

methods of inducing' or encouraging refusal to per-

form specified services by the employees of any em-

ployer.

Appellants submit that the language of Section 8(b)

(4) (A) as incorporated in and amplified by the in-

junctive order in question (employing the disjunctive

expression '^ picketing or orders, force, threats, etc."

as distinguished from the conjunctive) is so vague and

uncertain as to amount to a denial of due process. (See

Appellants' Objections to Petitioner's Proposed In-

junction Order, R. 126-127; Reporter's Transcript of

Proceedings, dated February 13, 1948, R. 218-219, 228-

230, 236-237.)

The following quotation from the opinion in the

Blaney case is particularly applicable to the dilemma

confronting appellants in the present case:

"While the instant statute does not directly im-

pose criminal penalties, it does provide for injunc-
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tive relief in the event of its violation and the

penalty for disobeying an injunction is contempt

of court. It is a coercive measure and a person

does not know in advance whether its application

to his conduct will he constitutional or unconstitu-

tional. He should not be required at his peril to

make that determination." (30 Cal. (2d) at pp.

653-654.)

B. The separability clause of Section 16 of the act in question

cannot save Section 8(b)(4)(A) from being declared totally

invalid.

Section 16 of the amended National Labor Relations

Act provides:

"If any provision of this Act, or the application

of such provision to any person or circumstances

shall be held invalid, the remainder of the Act, or

the application of such provision to persons or

circumstances other than those as to which it is

held invalid, shall not be affected thereby."

However, if there is no possibility of mechanical

severance, as in the case of Section 8(b) (4) (A) where

the lang'uage is so broad as to cover subjects within

and without the legislative power, the general lan-

guage of the statutory provision infringing upon the

constitutional right of free speech leaves the Court

with no alternative but to nullify the entire section.

Smith V. Cahoon, 283 U. S. 533, 563, 51 S. Ct.

582, 75 L. Ed. 1264;

In re Blaney, supra, 30 Cal. (2d) at pp. 653-

656;

In re Porterfield, supra, 28 Cal. (2d) at p. 120 ;|

In re Bell, supra, 19 Cal. (2d) at p. 498.
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''The statute in quostion contains the provision

that 'If any provisions of this chapter, or the

application of sucli provision to any persons or

circumstance shall bo held invalid, the remainder
of this ('l)aptei', oi- the ap])lication of* such pro-

visions to persons or circumstances other than

those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be
affected thereby'. (Lab. (^)de §l]:^f).) Thnf sep-

arahility clause cannot save it * * *

"By this type of provision, the FiCj^islature has in

effect sought to delegate to the courts the task of

rev^riting- the statute, directing them to set foi-th,

in a succession of Judicial opinions upholding or

aruiullint;- judgments enforcing the ])i-ovisions of

the act, thus determining in advance the extent to

v^hich the Legislature may go in providing regu-

lations in this field.

"It is an inescapable result that, in the meantime,

those individuals who guess correctly will be re-

leased by the courts, and those who guess incor-

rectly will be punished; but that no one, employer,

employee, union or any one will know what the

law is until, after violation of the statute and
judgment thereon, a higher court is given an op-

portunity to pass on the question of its validity as

applied to the particular 'person or circumstance'.

"Such a theory of judicial construction camiot be

supported on either practical or legal grounds."

(In re Blaney, supra, 30 Cal. (2d) at pp. 653-656.)
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IX.

THE APPLICATION OF SECTION 10(1) AND THE ORDER OF THE
DISTRICT COURT HEREIN VIOLATE THE INHIBITION OF
THE THIRTEENTH AMENDMENT AGAINST INVOLUNTARY
SERVITUDE.

The District Court herein held that there was *'no

support whatever, under the record before us or within

the provisions of the Act that are involved in this

matter, for a finding or conclusion that the Thirteenth

Amendment has been transgressed". It concluded that i

^Hhe inherent and statutory rights of employees, as
j

such are preserved hy the sa^dng provisions in the i

Act * * *" (R. 108-109.)
I

The '^ saving provisions" quoted in this connection

consist of Section 502 of the Lal)or Management Rela-

tions Act, 1947, which reads as follows

:

*^ Nothing in this Act shall be construed to re-

quire an indi^ddual employee to render labor or

service mthout his consent or shall anything in

this Act be construed to make the quitting of his

labor by an individual employee an illegal act;

nor shall any court issue any process to compel

the performance hy an individual employee of

such labor or service, tvithout his consent; nor shall

the quitting of labor by an employee or employees

in good faith because of abnormally dangerous

conditions for work at the place of employment
of such employee or emploj'-ees be deemed a strike

imder this Act.
'

'

Although the inelfectiveness of this same '' saving

provision", so-called, to avoid the imposition of in-

volmitary servitude if the relief sought by appellee
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herein sliould be granted was s])ecifically pointed

out to the District Court upon the argument of this

niattei* (R. 177-178), an injunction was issued which

by its terms

:

"Ordered tluit Printing Si)ecialties and Paper
Converters Union, Local :]88, AF\j and Walter J.

Turner and each of tliem and their agents, serv-

ants, employees and attorneys and all jtrrsons in

active concert or participation with them be and
hereby are restrained and enjoined pending final

adjudication by the Boai'd of this matter from:
E)\(ia()in() in, or inducing or encouraging the em-

l)loyees of any employer, by picketing, orders,

force, threats, or promises of benefit or by any

other related acts or conduct to engage in, a strike

or a, concerted refusal in the course of their em-

plojpnent to use, manufacture, process, transport,

or otherwise handle or work on any goods, arti-

cles, materials or commodities, or to perform any
services, where an object thereof is forcing or

requiring any emj)loyer or other person to cease

using, selling, handling, transporting, or other-

wise dealing in the products of, or to cease

doing business with, Sealright Pacific Ltd." (R.

139-140.)

As emphasized above, the order runs against Tx)cal

388 and its secretary-treasurer, appellant Turaer,

"and their agents * * * and all persons in active con-

cert or participation ivith them'^

"Agent" is defined by Section 2(13) of the amended

Act so that "the question (»f wliethcr the s])ecific acts

performed were actually authorized or subsequently

ratified shall not be controlling" in the determination
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of whether ^'any person is acting as an 'agent' of any

other person". Section 2(1) defines "person" as in-

cluding inter alia "labor organizations" and "associa-

tions". The term "participation" as used in the order

is particularly significant in view of the definition of

"labor organization" in Section 2(5) as a group "in

which employees partieipate'\ It is perfectly obvious

that the order runs to individual employees and not

just to the legal fiction of a separate entity known as

an unincorporated association.

The order restrains these individual employees from

themselves "engaging in a strike or a concerted re-

fusal" to work "in the course of their employment"

for the proscribed purposes. It enjoins concerted

activities of itnion memhers as such, including striking

and picketing.

This injunctive order was designed to curtail the

right of workingmen to combine for their mutual pro-

tection by restraining various concerted activities, in-

cluding peaceful picketing and the boycott, thereby

requiring involuntarj^ ser^dtude contrary to the Thir-

teenth Amendment.

Pollock V. Williams, 322 U. S. 4, 17, 18, 64 S. Ct.

792, 88 L.Ed. 1095;

Bailey v. Alabama, 219 U. S. 219;

American Federation of Labor v. McAdory, 246

Ala. 1, 18 So. (2d) 810;

Henderson v. Coleman, 150 Fla. 185, 7 So. (2d)

117;

In re Blaney, supra;

Stapleton v. MitcJiell, 60 Fed. Supp. 51.
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The ordoi- appealed from lierein is directed against

concei'ted activities of union members in the same

fashion as the unconstitutional California ''Hot Cargo

and Secondary 1 boycott Act" whicli prohibited "any

com])ination or agreement i*esuiting in a i-efusal by

employees to handle goods or to i)erform any services

for their emj)loyer because of a disi)ute between some

otlu^r employer and his employees or a labor organiza-

tion'' as well as "any combination or agreement to

cease performing * * * any services for any employer
* * * for the pui'pose of inducing or compelling such

employer to refi'ain from doing business with, or

handling the ])roducts of any other employer because

of a dis])ute between the latter and his employees or a

labor organization * * *" (Labor Code §1134, cited

supra.) It was this restriction on the inherent rights

of employees which was struck down as invalid by the

Blanctf decision in reaffirmation of earlier declarations

of the California Courts that:

"It is now settled law that workmen may lawfully

combine to exert various forms ofi economic pres-

sure upon an employer, provided the obicct sought

to be accom])lished thereby has a reasonable rela-

tion to the betterment of labor conditions, and
they act peaceably and honestly * * * This right is

guaranteed by the federal Constitution * * * and
it is not dependent upon the existence of a labor

controversy between the employer and his em-
ployee." (in re Lifom, 27 (^al. App. (2d) 293, 81

P. (2d) 190.)

"Various means of economic suasion such as

picketing, the primary and secondary boycotts,

and refusal to win'k together, often go to make up
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concerted efforts * * * Such conduct may be per-

formed in the exercise of civil liberties, guaran-

teed by both our federal and state Constitutions.
'

'

(In re Porterfield, 28 Cal. (2d) 91, 114, 168 P.

(2d) 706, 167 A.L.R. 675.)

Both state and federal courts have repeatedly recog-

nized that attempts by government to prohibit a con-

certed refusal by union members to handle or work

on non-union goods contravene the Thirteenth Amend-

ment. In Stapleton v. Mitchell, 60 F, Supp. 51, a statu-

tory three-judge Court composed of iCircuit Judges

Huxman and Murrah and District Judge Rice held

unconstitutional Section 8(12) of the 1943 Kansas

Labor Law (Session Laws of 1943, c. 191) which made

it milawful to ''refuse to handle, install, use or work

on particular materials or equipment and supplies

because not produced, processed, or delivered by mem-

bers of a labor organization". Judge Murrah, speak-

ing for the Court, said:

''The right to peaceably strike or to participate in

one, to work or refuse to work, and to choose the

terms and conditions under which one will work,

like the right to make a speech, are fimdamental

human liberties which the state may not condition

or abridge in the absence of grave and immediate

danger to the community."

The opinion in. Stapleton v. Mitchell points out that

the statute in question contained both a "saving-

clause" stating that "except as specifically provided

in this Act, nothing therein sliall be construed so as to

interfere with, impede or diminish in any way the



81

right to strike or the right of individuals to work; or

shall anything in this Act be construed to invade the

right of freedom of speech" and *'a severability clause

to the effect that if any provision of the Act or the

application thereof to any person or circumstance

shall be held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect

other provisions or applications of the Act "
Neither the *' saving clause", conii)avabIe to Section

502 of the Labor Management Relations Act, 1947,

nor the "severability clause", com])arable to Section

16 of the amended National Labor Relations Act and

Section 508 of the full Taft-Hartley Act, could save

Section 8(12) of the U)4^] Kansas Labor Law fi-om

being invalidated as an unconstitutional imposition

of involuntary servitude.

Employees have a constitutional right to leave em-

ployment singly or in concert, and consequently ajt-

pellants cannot he guilty of unlawful conduct for

causing them to do so. (See United States v. Petrillo,

supra, where the Supreme Court indicated that it

would pass upon the question of whether the applica-

tion of the statute there in question violated the

Thirteenth Amendment when it is "appropriately

presented.")
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X.

THE ATTEMPTS OF CONGRESS TO CONFER UPON THE DIS-

TRICT COURT AND OF THE DISTRICT COURT TO PERFORM
HEREIN AN ANCILLARY FUNCTION TO THE BOARD'S AD-

MINISTRATIVE DUTIES UNDER SECTION 10 OF THE
AMENDED ACT VIOLATE ARTICLE HI OF THE FEDERAL
CONSTITUTION.

The District Court concluded herein that ''* * *

the specific injunctive processes expressly conferred

upon this Court by Section 10(1) of the Act become

operable upon the credible petition of the adminis-

trative agency as provided in the Act * * *" and

therefore, ''* * * this court should grant an appro-

priate injunction Auxiliary to the proceedings in the

Board * * *" (R. 106-107.)

Thus, the Court below adopted the view contended

for by the General Counsel of the National Labor

Relations Board that its function in a proceeding

under Section 10(1) is limited by Congress to the

issuance of injunctions upon the application of Board

agents as an ancillary remedy to assist the Board in

exercising its exclusive power to adjudicate unfair

labor practice charges. The District Court also ac-

cepted the General Counsel's argument that a Board

agent has an absolute right to injunctive relief in

proceedings such as the instant case conditioned only

upon a determination that ''reasonable cause" exists

for his stated belief that an unfair labor practice has

been committed; however, the Court is not entitled

to require prima facie evidence of facts forming the

basis for the Board agent's belief in making that

determination.
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The District Court has adoiited the (ieucral Coun-

sel's position tliat "the projihety of such injuiictive

relief turns not u[)on traditional equity criteria a])-

])licable in suits between private i)arties, but ui)oii the

necessity for effectuating tlie statutory i)oUcy" (R.

43) and that tlie showing necessary foi' an injunction

against engaging in a strike or concerted refusal to

work or "inducing or encouraging" others to do so

need not be any greater than that re( quired f<jr an

administrative agency to invoke the assistance of the

Courts to enforce a subpoena issued in tlie course of

an official investigation. (See Endicott Johnson Corp.

V. Perkins, 317 U. S. 501 and other cases cited at R.

106.)

The District Court herein says that "in conformity

to the rule enunciated by the Supreme Court in Hcclit

Co. V. Bowles, Admr., 321 U. S. 327, we have given

appropriate consideration to all of the evidential ma-

terial before the court". The fact is that the appellee

did not present any evidential material to the Court,

either by means of affidavits or direct testimony.

Actually, the District Court has rejected the au-

thority of Hecht Com pan y v. Bowles, 321 U. S. 327,

64 S. Ct. 587, 88 L. P]d. 754, which reversed a decision

of the United States Circuit Court of Appeals for the

District of Columbia holding that the administrator

was entitled to injunctive relief as a matter of course

under the Emergency Price Control Act. There ^Ir.

Justice Douglas confirmed again the view that "An
appeal to the equity jurisdiction conferred on 1'ederal

district courts is an appeal to the sound discretion
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which guides the determinations of courts of equity"

saying ''We do not beheve such a major departure

from that long tradition as is here proposed should be

lightly imphed."

We respectfully submit that the District Court

erred in rejecting appellants' argument below that

"the threat to free speech and assembly under Section

8(b)(4)(A) is heightened under [this] view of the

limited discretion afforded this Court in performing

an ancillary function to the Board's adjudicative

powers under Section 10." (R. 57-60, commenting in

detail on cases which were to be cited later in the

memorandum opinion of the District Court.)

While Congress has great powers over inferior

courts, it can only require them to exercise the power

vested by Article III and cannot clothe them Avith

non-judicial powers. {Federal Radio Commission v.

General Electric Co., 281 U. S. 464, 469, 74 L. Ed.

969.) Constitutional Courts cannot "exercise or par-

ticipate in the exercise of functions which are essen-

tially * * * administrative."

Section 10(1) on its face violates the fundamental

principle of separation of powers laid down by Article

III of the Constitution with respect to the judiciary.

This principle has been clearly summarized by the

Attorney General's Committee on AdministratiA^e

Procedure, when it said:

"Federal courts created under Article III can

be authorized only to decide 'cases and contro-

versies' to use the constitutional phrase; and from

an early day the Supreme Court has regarded
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this restriction as an imi^urtant oiio, to be scru-

pulously observed. 'Cases and controversies',

broadly speakin*;-, are matters in which a coui-t

can determine the rij^hts of adverse parties by

applying- the law to the facts as found."

(Sen. JJoc. 8, 77th Cong., 1st Sess., p. 12.)

XI.

THE FINDINGS OF FACT SPECIFIED AS ERROR HEREIN ARE
CONTRARY TO AND UNSUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE.
AND OMIT MATERIAL UNCONTROVERTED FACTS ESTAB-
LISHED BY THE RECORD.

The failure of the District Court to require the

appellee to make even a prima facie showing of the

purported facts which he claims to have reasonable

cause to believe to be true and the ol)vious refusal to

give any weight to the uncontroverted atBdavit of

Appellant Turner are aijparent from a reading of the

record.

The petition for injunction (R. 2-8) is not in

reality a verified petition, since the only verification

present is that of the regional director that he had

reason to believe that certain acts took place and cir-

cumstances existed. No direct allegation or proof was

offered in any manner whatsoever that the facts and

incidents in question did occur. No witnesses and no

affidavits were presented by apijellee, and therefore

it was error to make any findings of fact where such

facts were not admitted or conceded by a])])ellants.

The District Court accepted the })ruj>(>se(l findings

presented by the general counsel of the Board almost
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without change, despite the detailed objections of ap-

pellants. (R. 120-127.)

Perhaps the most serious error has to do with the

findings that the picketing activities herein com-

plained of are characterized as inducing and encour-

aging conduct on the part of employees of the Los

Angeles-Seattle Motor Express and West Coast Ter-

minals Companies ''hy orders, force, threats or prom-

ises of benefits". (R. 136-137.)

As in the Wohl case, 315 U. S. at p. 776, the record

here
a* * * ^j^gg j-^^^ contain the slightest suggestion of

embarassment in the task of govei'nance; there

are no findings and no circumstances from which

we can draw the inference that the publication

was attended or likely to l)e attended by violence,

force or coercion or conduct otherwise unlawful

or oppressive; and it is not indicated that there

was an actual or threatened abuse of the right

to free speech through the use of excessive

picketing."

The absence of factual material to supi^ort the con-

clusion of law that the emj^loyees in question were

induced or encouraged "by orders, force, threats, or

promises of benefits" and the ob\'ious inference that

this language was simply inserted in the petition for

the purpose of attempting to avoid the application

of Section 8(c) were called to the attention of the

District Court during argument. (R. 161 and 176.)

Moreover, during the course of that same argu-

ment, the attorney for the general counsel of the

Board plainly stated

:
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*'We do not assert tlial tliciT lias bcon ariy

violence on tlie picket line, oi' that any threats

Imve lieen made, any ex])ress threats have lK*en

made. The pickefinfj I think can he trrmrd

peaceful picketinfj in tlie sense that there has

been no violence on the picket line, no distni-b-

ance of any kind. Nevertheless we feel that this

sort of picketing;' is a violation of Section 8(b)

(4) (A) of the Act * * *.'' (R. 204.)

CONCLUSION.

In his si^eech before the Conference of Circuit and

District Judges at New Orleans on June 4th, General

Counsel Robert N. Denham personally sought to

justify his interpretation of Section 8(b)(4)(A) by

expounding the notion that:

"* * * ij^ view of the Duplex Deeriny and Bed-

ford Stone Cutters cases decided about 25 years

ago, there should be no doubt that peaceful

picketing in pursuit of a secondary * * * boycott

does not enjoy constitutional protection."

(National Labor Relations Board l*ress Re-

lease R-87, p. 22.)

These decisions of a quarter century ago were ren-

dered before the "modern trend of decision" identi-

fying picketing with free speech and assembly. See

the dissenting opinion of Mr. Justice Brandeis in the

Duplex case, 254 U. S. 443, at 481, 41 S. Ct. 172, 65

L. Ed. 349, 16 A.L.R. 196, wherein he queried, "May
not all with a common interest join in refusing to

expend their labor upon articles whose \ei'y produc-

tion constitutes an attack upon their standard of
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living and the institution which they are convinced

supports it?", and answered his own inquiry by say-

ing, "* * * in refusing to work on materials which

threatened it, the union was only refusing to aid in

destroying itself." (Cf. R. Ill, citing the Duplex

case.)

This dissent and a similar opinion six years later

in the Bedford Stone Cutters case, 274 U. S. 37, 47

S. Ct. 522, 71 L. Ed. 916, 54 A.L.R. 791, wliere he

condemned legislative restrictions on the l)oycott as

''an instrument for imposing restraints upon lal)or

which reminds one of involuntary servitude", ulti-

matelj^ led to the identification of picketing with free

speech in Mr. Justice Brandeis' majority opinion in

Senn's case, supra, 301 U. S. 468.

These modern constitutional doctrines, such as that

expressed by Chief Justice Stone in United States v.

Hutdieson, 312 U. S. 219 at p. 243, 61 S. Ct. 463,

85 L. Ed. 788 (namely, "the publication unaccom-

panied by violence of a notice that the employer is

unfair to organized lal^or * * * is an exercise of the

right of free speech guaranteed by the First Amend-

ment which cannot be made unlawful by Act of

Congress") should not have been overlooked by the

general counsel, nor by the District Court herein.

Dated, July 9, 1948.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert W. Gilbert,

Clarence E. Todd,

Allan L. Sapiro,

Attorneys for Appellayits.
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Printing Specialties and Paper Converters Union,

Local 388, A. F. of L. and Walter J. Turner,

appellants

V.

HoAVARD T. LeBaron, Regional Director of the
Taventy-first Region of the National Labor
Relations Board, appellee

OA' APPEAL FROM A^' ORDER OF THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE
UNITED STATES FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALI-

FORNIA, CENTRAL DIVISION

BRIEF FOR APPELLEE

JURISDICTION

This is an appeal from an order of the District

Court for the Southern District of California grant-

ing a petition filed on behalf of the National Labor

Relations Board, herein referred to as the Board,

by Howard T. LeBaron, the Regional Director for

the Twenty-first Region of the Board, pursuant to

Section 10 (1) of the National Labor Relations Act,

as amended (61 Stat. 136, 29 U. S. C. A., 1947 Supp.,

Sec. 151, et seq.), herein referred to as the Act. The

(1)



order enjoins appellants from engaging in certain

unfair labor practices as defined by Section 8 (b)

(4) (A) of the Act, pending final adjudication of the

matter by the Board (R. 139).' The order was en-

tered on February 16, 1948 (R. 140). Notice of Ap-

peal to this Court was filed on March 1, 1948 (R. 142).

The opinion of the court below is reported at 75 F.

Supp. 678.

Appellant Printing Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, Local 388, A. F. of L., herein referred

to as the Union, is a labor organization within the

meaning of the Act, and has its principal office within

the Southern District of California (R. 135). Ap-

pellant Walter J. Turner is an agent of the Union

within the meaning of Sections 2 (13) and 10 (1) of

the Act (R. 135). Both appellants are engaged in

the Southern District of California in promoting and

protecting the interests of the members of the Union

(R. 135). The unfair labor practices charged were

committed within the Southern District of California

(R. 136-137).

As shown by the petition (R. 2, et seq.), the juris-

diction of the court below was based on Section 10

(1) of the Act. The jurisdiction of this Court is

invoked under Sections 128 and 129 of the Judicial

Code (28 U. S. C. 225 and 227).

STATUTE INVOLVED

The statutory provisions primarily involved are

Sections 8 (b) (4) (A), 8 (c) and 10 (1) of the National

^ References to the printed transcript of record are des-

ignated "R."



Labor Relations Act, as amondod. Those provisions

are set forth in the Argument (infra, pp. 9-10, 11-12,

35).
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

The petition in tlie couii l)elo\v alleged that Seal-

right Pacific, Limited, herein referred to as Seal-

right, had filed a charge with the Board alleging that

appellants had engaged in unfair labor practices

within the meaning of Section 8 (1)) (4) (A) of the

Act and affecting commerce as defined in Sections

2 (6) and 2 (7) ; that the charge had been refeiTed

to apj)ellee for investigation; and that, after making

a preliminary investigation, appellee had reasonable

cause to believe that the charge was true and that a

complaint should issue. The petition prayed for an

injunction restraining the unfair labor practices pend-

ing final adjudication by the Board (R. 2-9). Appel-

lants moved to dismiss the petition on the ground that

the provisions of the Act relied on were violative of

the First, Fifth and Thirteenth Amendments to the

Constitution (R. 10-11). The court below overruled

appellants' motion and thereupon, on the basis of the

substantially undisputed facts as set forth in the

verified petition and an affidavit submitted by appel-

lants in support of the motion to dismiss, entered its

order granting the relief prayed (R 112, 133-142).

The verified petition and the affidavit submitted in

support of the motion to dismiss, showed, without

dispute, the following facts:

Sealriglit is engaged at Los Angeles, California, in

the manufacture, sale, and distribution of paper food

containers. In the course of its business it purchases



and causes to be transported to its Los Angeles plant

from points outside California, various materials

valued in excess of $1,000,000 annually. It ships

various products to points outside California valued

in excess of $500,000 annually (R. 4).

On November 3, 1947, the Union called a strike of

its members employed by Sealright in support of its

demands with respect to certain terms and conditions

of employment (R. 23). Thereafter, appellant

Turner, as Secretary-Treasurer of the Union, in-

formed the Los Angeles-Seattle Motor Express, Inc.,

herein referred to as L. A.-Seattle), a common car-

rier which transported Sealright 's products, that if

L. A.-Seattle continued to handle Sealright 's products,

the Union would picket Sealright 's products handled

by L. A.-Seattle (R. 24). On November 14, 1947,

representatives of the Union followed two trucks

loaded with Sealright 's products to the terminal of

L. A.-Seattle and there formed a picket line around

the two trucks (R. 25). The representatives of the

Union forming the picket line informed the emploj^ees

of L. A.-Seattle that the trucks contained *'hot cargo"

and told or requested them not to handle it (R. 25).

As a result of the picketing the employees of L. A.-

Seattle refused and continued to refuse to handle or

transport Sealright 's products (R. 5). On or about

November 17, 1947, and thereafter, the Union also

placed a picket line aromid three freight cars at the

docks of the West Coast Terminals Company, herein

referred to as West Coast, at Long Beach, California,

upon which rolls of paper consigned to Sealright were



being loaded (R. 5, 25). As a result, the employees of

West Coast likewise refused to handle the goods con-

signed to Sealright (R. 5-f)). The purpose of the

Union's conduct was to require L. A.-Seattle and

West Coast to cease handling and transporting the

goods and products of Sealright (R. 5-^^, 24-26).

Upon the foregoing undisputed facts, the court

below found that there was reasonable cause to believe

that appellants had engaged in unfair labor practices

within the meaning of Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the

Act, affecting commerce within the meaning of vSec-

tion 2 (6) and (7) of the Act (R. 134). The court

below also concluded that Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the

Act was not repugnant to the First, Fifth, or Thir-

teenth Amendments to the Constitution of the United

States (R. 140). Accordingly, it overruled appel-

lants' motion to dismiss the petition and issued an

order enjoining appellants from (R. 139-140) :

Engaging in, or inducing or encouraging, the

employees of any employer, by i^icketiug, or-

ders, force, threats, or promises of benefit or

by any other like or related acts or conduct to

engage in, a strike or a concerted refusal in the

course of their employment to use, manufac-
ture, process, transport, or otherwise handle or

work on any goods, articles, materials, or com-

modities, or to perform any services, where an
object thereof is forcing or requiring any em-
ployer or other person to cease using, selling,

handling, transporting, or otherwise dealing in

the products of, or to cease doing business

with, Sealright Pacific, Ltd.

802554—48-



SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

The instant case was initiated pursuant to Section

10 (1) of the Act. Section 10 (1) empowers the

district courts of the United States to grant, upon

application of the Board, such interlocutory injunc-

tive relief as is just and proper pending determination

by the Board of unfair labor practice charges filed

under Section 8 (b) (4) of the Act, where there is

reasonable cause to believe that such unfair labor

practices are being committed. The court below

properly found that there was reasonable cause to

believe that appellants, by means of picketing, were, in

violation of Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act, induc-

ing and encouraging the employees of L. A.-Seattle and

West Coast to engage in a concerted refusal to handle

or transport the goods of Sealright, an object thereof

being to compel the former to cease doing business with

the latter.

Neither Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act, nor the

order of the court below enjoining such conduct on the

part of appellants, violates the constitutional guaranty

against involuntary servitude. The Act and the order

merely prohibit labor organizations or their agents

from engaging in strikes or inciting employees to en-

gage in strikes or concerted refusals to perform services

for the stated object. Neither the Act nor the order of

the court below requires employees to continue working

against their will.

The Act, insofar as it enjoins picketing where used

to induce or encourage employees to engage in a strike

or concerted refusal to perform services for the ob-



jects eniimoratod therein, does not violate the con-

stitutional guaranty of free 8i)eech but represents a

valid exercise of the Congressional power over com-

merce. Congress may, in order to narrow the area

of industrial conflict and protect the public interest

in the free flow of commerce, illegal ize picketing

where it is utilized to conscript the employees of a

neutral employer in order to bring pressure to bear

upon an employer involved in a labor dispute. Con-

gress may prohibit picketing for an unlawful purpose,

without transgressing constitutional limitations.

Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act draws no distinc-

tion between the incitation of employees to engage

in a total strike or a "product boycott'' in further-

ance of the enumerated objectives. Such a distinc-

tion is not supported either by the Act itself or its

legislative history.

Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act cannot be success-

tully challenged on the ground that it is so vague and

indefinite as to violate the due process provision of

the Constitution. The statute furnishes an adequate

guide as to w^hat conduct is proscribed and is as

specific as the nature of the problem permits.

The protection which Section 8 (c) of the Act

extends to the expression of views, arg-ument, or opin-

ion which contain no threat of reprisal or force or

promise of benefit does not innmuiize the picketing

engaged in here by appellants. Picketing is more than

speech; it is a coercive technique, possessing elements

of compulsion. Apai-t from its coercive aspect in this

sense, picketing im2)licitly contains a threat of reprisal
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and a promise of benefit in that it is an appeal to all

workers to make conmion cause with the picketing

gToup with the promise that if they respond they will

receive similar aid w^hen the occasion arises and with

the threat that if they ignore the appeal, they will be

refused assistance when they are similarly situated.

These elements of picketing satisfy the requirements

of Section 8 (c) of the Act.

Section 10 (1) of the Act does not confer non-judi-

cial functions on the district courts. A proceeding

under Section 10 (1) is a case or controversy within

the meaning of Article III of the Constitution.

ARGUMENT

Preliminary Statement: The statutory scheme pursuant to

which the present proceedings were initiated in the court

below

As already stated, these proceedings were initiated

pursuant to the provisions of Section 10 (1) of the

Act. The Act empowers the Board, upon the filing

of appropriate charges, to issue, hear and determine

complaints that employers or labor organizations have

engaged in unfair labor practices within the meaning

of the Act (Section 10 (a), (b) and (c) of the Act).

Proceedings of this character, requiring as they do

investigation, hearing and consideration of the alleged

unfair labor practices, are necessarily protracted and

time consuming. Congress believed that certain unfair

labor practices committed by labor organizations gave,

or tended to give, rise to such serious and unjustifiable

interruptions to commerce that their continuation,

pending adjudication by the Board, would result in



9

irreparablo injury to the jjurposes of the Act." Ac-

cordingly, in order to prevent such a frustration of the

statutory purpose, Congress provided in Section 10

(1) of the Act that—

Whenever it is charj^ed that any person ha.s

engaged in an unfair labor practice within the

meaning of paragraph (4), (A), (B), or (C)

of Section 8 (b), the preliminary investigation

of such charge shall be made forthwith and
given priority over all other cases except cases

of like character in the office where it is filed

or to which it is referred. If, after such in-

vestigation, the officer or regional attorney to

whom the matter may be referred has reason-

able cause to believe such charge is true, and
that a complaint should issue, he shall, on be-

half of the Board, petition any district court of

the United States (including the District Court

of the United States for the District of Colum-

bia) within any district where the unfair labor

practice in question has occurred, is alleged to

have occurred, or wherein such person resides

or transacts business, for appropriate injunc-

tive relief pending the final adjudication of the

Board with respect to such matter. Upon the

tiling of any such petition, the district court

shall have jurisdiction to grant such injunctive

relief or temporary restraining order as it

deems just and proper, notwithstanding any

other provision of law: Provided further, That

no temporary restraining order shall be issued

without notice miless a petition alleges that

substantial and irreparable injury to the charg-

S. Rep. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., p. 8.
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ing party will be unavoidable and such tem-

porary restraining order shall be effective for

no longer than five days and will become void

at the expiration of such period. Upon filing

of any such petition, the courts shall cause

notice thereof to be served upon any person

involved in the charge, and such person, in-

cluding the charging party, shall be given an

opportunity to appear by counsel and present

any relevant testimony: Provided further, That

for the purposes of this subsection district

courts shall be deemed to have jurisdiction of

a labor organization (1) in the district in which

such organization maintains its principal office,

or (2) in any district in which its duly author-

ized officers or agents are engaged in promoting

or protecting the interests of employee mem-
bers. * * *

The relief contemplated in Section 10 (1) of the

Act, and herein prayed for and granted, is in the

nature of an interlocutory injunction. It is limited

to such time as may expire before the Board issues

its final order with respect to the unfair labor prac-

tices charged. As in the case of traditional equity prac-

tice with respect to interlocutory relief,^ the prerequisite

to the granting of the relief contemplated by Section

3 Bowles V. Montgomery Ward <& Co., 143 F. 2d 38, 42 (C. C. A.

7) ; Colorado Eastern R. Co. v. Chicago., etc., By. Co., 141 F.

898, 901 (C. C. A. 8) ; Sinclair Befining Co. \. Midland Oil Co.,

55 F. 2d 42, 45 (C. C. A. 4) ; Northwestern Stevedoring Co. v.

Marshall, 41 F. 2d 28, 29 (C. C. A. 9) ; City of Louisville v.

Louisville Home Telephone Co., 279 F. 949, 956 (C. C. A. 6) ;

United States v. Parrott, 27 Fed. Cas. 417, 430, 435 (C. C. N. D.

Cal.) ; Eastern Texas R. Co. v. Bailroad Commission, 242 Fed.

300 (D.C.W.D. Texas).
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10 (1) of the Act is a finding by the district court

that there is reasonable cause to believe that a viola-

tion of the Act, as charged, has been committed, and

that equitable relief would be "just and proper."

The court is not called upon to decide whether in fact

the charges are true or whether in fact a violation has

been committed. The ultimate determination of the

truth of the charges and the existence of a violation

is reserved exclusively to the Board, subject to review

by the circuit courts of appeals pursuant to Section

10 (e) and (f) of the Act.^

The District Court properly found that there is reasonable

cause to believe that appellants have, as charged, engaged

in unfair labor practices in violation of Section 8 (b) (4) (A)

of the Act

Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act provides, in part,

that:

(b) It shall be an unfair labor practice for a

labor organization or its agents

—

(4) to engage in, or to induce or encourage

the employees of any employer to engage in, a

strike or a concerted refusal in the course of their

employment to use, manufacture, process, trans-

port or otherwise handle or work on any goods,

articles, materials, or commodities or to per-

form any services, where an object thereof is:

* Douds V. Teamsters Union Local 29J^^ 75 F. Supp. 414 (N. D.

N. Y.) ; Styles v. Local 74, 74 F. Supp. 499 (E. D. Tenn.) ; Douds
V. Wine^ Liquor <k Distillery Workers Union Local i, 75 F. Supp.
447 (S. D. N. Y.) ; LeBaron v. Printing Specialties and Paper
Converters Unio^i, Local 3SS, 75 F. Supp. 678 (S. D. Calif.) ; Cf.

Evans v. International Typographical Union^ et al.^ 76 F. Supp.
881 (S. D. Ind.).
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(A) forcing or requiring * * * any em-

ployer or other person to cease using, selling,

handling, transporting, or otherwise dealing in

the products of any other producer, processor,

or manufacturer, or to cease doing business with

any other person.

The undisputed evidence summarized above fully

supports the holding of the court below that there is

reasonable cause to believe that (R. 136) :

(d) On about November 14, 1947, represen-

tatives of [the Union] followed two trucks

loaded with Sealright's products to the L. A.-

Seattle terminal where by forming a picket line

aroimd two trucks containing the products of

Sealright and telling the employees that the

trucks contained *^hot cargo" and not to ''handle

it," induced and encouraged the employees of

L. A.-Seattle, by orders, force, threats or prom-
ises of benefits, not to transport or handle the

goods of Sealright. After November 14, as a

result of the above conduct of [the Union] the

employees of L. A.-Seattle refused to transport

or handle the goods of Sealright. [The Union]

engaged in the foregoing conduct to force" or

require L. A.-Seattle to cease handling or trans-

porting the products of Sealright.

* * * * *

(f) On November 17, 1947, while employees

of West Coast were engaged in loading the rolls

of paper onto freight cars consigned to Seal-

right in Los Angeles, a group of pickets repre-

senting [the Union] appeared at the docks of

West Coast and, by forming a picket line

around the freight cars being loaded with rolls
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of i)a])('i' for Scalri^lit, iiiducod and cncrmi-aged

the eiiii)loyee« of West Coast, by oideis, force,

threats or promises of benefits, not to handle

or work on tlie ])ai)er consigned to Sealri^lit.

Since November 17, 1947, as a result of the

above conduct of [the Union] and the con-

tinued picketing by [the Union] of the docks of

the West Coast, the employees of West Coast

have refused to handle or work on the goods

consigned to Sealright. [The Union] engaged

in the foregoing conduct in order to force or

require West Coast to cease handling or trans-

l^orting the products of Sealright.

It is clear, we submit, that appellants' conduct, sum-

marized above, clearly falls within the proscription of

Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act and constitutes an

unfair labor practice within the meaning of that sec-

tion. Plainly, appellants did, in the language of Sec-

tion 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act—
* * * induce and encourage [l^y i)icketing]

tlie employees of any emjiloyer [L. A.-Seattle

and West Coast] to engage in a strike or a con-

certed refusal in the course of their emj^loy-

ment to * * * transport or otherwise

handle or work on any goods, articles, mate-

rials or commodities or to perfomi any services

[for L. A.-Seattle and West Coast] where an

object thereof is (A) forcing or requiring any
employer [L. A.-Seattle and West Coast] * * *

to cease * * * handling, transporting * * *

or otherwise dealing in the products of any
other producer, processor or manufacturer

[Sealright], or to cease doing business with any
other person [Sealright].

802554—48 3
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Accordingly, a clear basis for granting the relief

required under the Act is established unless, as ap-

pellants' argue (1) Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act

violates either the First, Fifth or Thirteenth Amend-

ments to the Constitution, or (2) appellants' conduct

is privileged under Section 8 (c) of the Act, or (3)

the provisions of the Act conferring jurisdiction on

the district courts to grant interlocutory relief are in-

valid under Article III of the Constitution. We dis-

cuss these contentions below.

II

Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act and the order of the court

below based thereon do not invade any constitutional rights

of appellants

1. The nature of the evil dealt with by Congress in Section 8 (b) (4) (A)

of the Act

In 1935, the 74th Congress, which enacted the Na-

tional Labor Relations Act, found that the denial by

employers of the right of employees to organize for

purposes of collective bargaining with respect to wages

and other conditions of employment led to industrial

strife which burdened and obstructed commerce. In

order to eliminate this prolific source of industrial

unrest and thereby promote the free flow of commerce,

Congress, by enactment of the statute, sought to pro-

tect against employer interference the exercise by

workers of full freedom of association and self-organ-

ization for purposes of collective bargaining and other

mutual aid and protection. The constitutionality of

the statute was upheld in N. L. B. B. v. Jones db

Laughlin Steel Corp., 301 U. S. 1.
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Under the aegis of the statute labor organizations

grew in strength and power/ Twelve years of ex-

perience under the National Labor Relations Act led

the 80th Congress to conclude in 1947 that certain

practices by labor organizations, whose growth and

power had been in no small measure promoted and

strengthened by the statute, were also a prolific source

of widespread industrial unrest and seriously ob-

structed interstate commerce and impaired the in-

terest of the public in the free flow of such commerce.

One of these disruptive practices was the so-called

labor secondary boycott. On the basis of the personal

experience and observations of its meml>ei's as well

as extensive testimony before Congressional commit-

tees, the 80tli Congress concluded that such boycotts,

extending, as they do, labor-management disputes

beyond the plant or company where the dispute orig-

inally arose to other employers or companies who are

not directly involved in, and are powerless to correct,

the basic dispute, were a serious threat to the well-

being of the Nation."

^ Peterson, Florence, Survey of Labor Economics^ pp. 493-494

(1947). Tlie membership of unions in this country was placed

at 4,000,000 in 1935 (ibid.). By 1947 this membership, according

to a press release, dated December 1947, issued by the U. S. ^

Department of Labor, had increased to approximately 15.500,000.

•^ Hearinirs before Senate Connnittee on Labor and Public Wel-

fare, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., pp. 59-63, 969, 1496-1497. 1717-1718,

1732-1733, 1801, 20()0-20()l. 2148; Hearin«rs before House Com-
mittee on Education and Labor, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., pp. 467-477,

539, 547-548. 549, 1001-1002, 1860, 1876, 2149-'2150, 2530, 2547,

2572-2586, 2690; S. Rept. No. 105, 80th Cono:.. 1st Sess., pp. 7-8;

H. Rept. Xo. 245, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., pp. J^5, 23-24 ; 93 Cong.
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Experience also demonstrated, as the legislative

hearings show, that one of the most effective devices

for achieving such boycotts was the picket line placed

at the plant of an employer who, while not himself

involved in a labor dispute, did business with an em-

ployer who was involved in such a dispute. Congress

found that by means of such picketing labor organiza-

tions had sought to induce and encourage employees

of neutral employers to strike or to engage in con-

certed refusals to perform services in the course of

their employment and thereby compel their employer

to cease transporting or handling or otherwise deal-

ing in the products of, or otherwise doing business

with, the employer involved in the labor dispute.

The effectiveness of picketing in achieving these

objectives, as Congress was informicd, is notorious.

Union workers simply do not, save in exceptional

circumstances, cross a picket line. The attention of

Congress was directed to numerous instances where

important segments of the Nation's economy had

been seriously disrupted as a result of picketing in

furtherance of such boycotts." Congress believed that

such activities represented a potentially far reaching

threat to the economic well being of the Nation, partic-

ularly in view of the extensive unionization of em-

ployees occurring since the passage of the National

Labor Relations Act in 1935 and the consequent power

Eec. 1910, A 1099, A 1296, 3560, A 2012, 3950, 3954, 4323,

4492, 5038, A 2378. Keferences to the Congressional Record
throughout this brief are to the daily Congressional Record and
not to the bound volumes.

^ See note 6, supra.
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wielded by labor organizations. As Senator Taft, one

of the si)()nsors of the Act, pointed out in the course

of the legislative debate on the bill which became the

Act, the incitation of employees by labor organiza-

tions to engage in strikes or concerted refusals to

handle goods or perform sei'vices in the course of their

employment for the purpose of compelling an em-

ployer to cease doing business with an em] )1oyer who

is involved in a labor dispute can bring about a
'

' chain

reaction that will tie up the entire United States in

a series of sympathetic strikes * * *."^

The enactment of this section of the Act represents

therefore a deliberate legislative judgment and pur-

pose to protect the interest of the public in the free

flow of commerce by limiting the area of unrestricted

industrial warfare and confining it to the extent pro-

vided by the section to the employer or company

whose employees are directly involved in a labor

dispute.

2. Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act and the order of the court below do not

infringe upon the constitutional guaranties of freedom of speech, due

process or freedom from involuntary servitude

Appellants contend that Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of

the Act and the order of the court below, insofar as

they purport to enjoin picketing in furtherance of the

objectives proscribed by the Act, are an invasion of

the First Amendment's guarantee of freedom of

speech, the Fifth Amendment's guaranty of due proc-

ess, and the Thirteenth Amendment's prohibition of

involuntary servitude. We submit that no constitu-

« 93 Coiiff. Rec. 4323.
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tional infirmity attaches either to Section 8 (b) (4) (A)

of the Act as construed by the court below, or to the

order of that court.

(a) The instant case presents no invasion of the guarantee against

involuntary servitude

At the outset it is important to define the precise

boundaries of the issues presented in the instant case.

Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act is an exercise of

the power of Congress to eliminate interruptions to

interstate commerce, whatever their source. N. L.

B. B. V. Jones & Laiighlin Steel Corp., 301 U. S. 1. The

power to regulate commerce is ''the power to enact

'all appropriate legislation' for its 'protection or

advancement' * * *; to adopt measures 'to pro-

mote its growth and insure its safety' * * *; to

'foster, protect, control and restrain' * * *. That

power is plenary and may be exerted to protect inter-

state commerce 'no matter what the source of the

dangers Avhich threaten it.' " Jones (& LaughJin case,

supra, pp. 37-38. In the exercise of this plenary

power, Congress, just as it may constitutionally regu-

late employer practices giving rise to labor disputes

affecting commerce (Jones & LaugJilm case, supra),

may also regulate the activities of labor organizations

where those activities interfere with or restrain the

free flow of commerce. Texas d N. 0. By. Co. v.

Brotherhood, 281 U. S. 548; Wilson v. New, 243 U. S.

332; Apex Hosiery Co. v. Leader, 310 U. S. 469,

488 ; United States v. Hutcheson, 312 U. S. 219, 232

;

Allen Bradley Co. v. Local Union, No. 3, 325 U. S.

797, 810.
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Contrary to ni)j)ellants' contention (Br. 76-81),

no question arises here as to the right of employees

to quit work or to work on any terms they may them-

selves choose. The statute does not make it an unfair

labor practice for employees to cease work for any

purpose." Employees as such are not subject to the

unfair labor practices provisions of the Act. The

limitation prescribed by Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the

Act is imposed u])on lahor organizations and their

agents and the statute makes it an unfair labor prac-

tice for a labor organization or its agents to engage

in a strike or to induce or encourage employees in the

course of their employment to engage in a concerted

refusal to perform services for the objectives enumer-

ated in the Act. In conformity with these pro-

visions of the Act, the order of the court below enjoins

appellants and their agents (not employees as such)

from engaging in conduct violative of Section 8 (b)

(4) (A) of the statute.

Thus, it is clear that Congress has precluded any

possible successful challenge to Section 8 (b) (4) (A)

of the Act, or court orders based thereon, which might

be predicated upon the Thirteenth Amendment. Xo

® Section 502 of the Act specifically provides

:

"Nothing; in this Act sliall be construed to require an individual

employee to render labor or service without his consent, nor shall

anythino; in this Act be construed to make the quitting of his labor

b}^ an individual employe-e an ille<ral act ; nor shall any court

issue any process to compel the performance by an individual

employee of such labor or service, without his consent : nor shall

the quitting of labor by an employee or ejnployees in gfood faith
'

because of abnormally dan<2:erous conditions for work at the place

of employment of such employee or employees be deemed a strike

under this Act."
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claim can be made that to restrain a labor organiza-

tion from inducing- or encouraging employees to en-

gage in a strike or a concerted refusal to perform

services in the course of their employment is a viola-

tion of the guarantee against involuntary servitude.

Indeed, the Supreme Court recently brushed aside

such a contention tersely as being ''without merit. '^

United States v. United Mine Workers, 330 U. S. 258.

And in Dorcliaj v. Kansas, 272 U. S. 306, at p. 311,

the Court, speaking through Mr. Justice Brandeis,

implicitly rejected such a contention when it de-

clared ''* * * and it [the legislature] may sub-

ject to punishment him w^ho uses the power or in-

fluence incident to his office in a union to order the

strike."

The order entered herein is wholly consistent with

the foregoing principles. It enjoins appellant Union

and its agent from engaging in the unfair lalior prac-

tices charged. Insofar as the order runs against all

persons in active concert or participation with them,

the order does no more than ])ind appellants and

''those identified with them in interest,^ in 'privity'

with them, represented by them or subject to their

control. In essence, it is that [appellants] may not

nullify [the order] by carrying out prohibited acts

through aiders and abettors, although they w^ere not

parties to the original proceeding." Begal Knitwear

Company v. N. L. R. B., 324 U. S. 9, 14. Nothing

contained in the order enjoins employees from quit-

ting work.

Moreover, apart from the foregoing considerations,

it is well settled that the constitutional privilege
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against iiivoliintaiy sei'vitude is essentially a personal

onv {SJaught(^rh(mHe cases, 8'5 U. S. 36, 39), belonging

hei'e to the individual employees wlio liavc ])eoji in-

duced by appellants to engage in a concei-ted i-efusal

to perform services. Accordingly, the privilege, even

if it were involved, which it is not, could be invoked

solely by them and not by appellants on their behalf.

Cf. UniteAl States v. White, 322 U. S. 694, 705.

(b) Congress may constitutionally prohibit peaceful picketing to induce

strikes or concerted refusals to perform services in furtherance of

secondary boycotts

Appellants' principal contention is, in substance

(Br. 27-52), that Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act,

and the order of the court below, insofar as they

enjoin appellants from inducing or encouraging, by

picketing, employees to engage in strikes or concerted

refusals to perform services, for the objectives set

forth in the Act, violate the constitutional guaranty

of free speech.

The Supreme Court has said that peaceful picket-

ing as a means of communicating the facts of a labor

dispute ''may be a phase of the constitutional right

of free utterance." Carpenters Union v. Bitters'

Cafe, 315 U. S. 722, 727. But the Supreme Court has

also said, in substance, that this does not mean, and
has never meant, that ''A state is * * * required

to tolerate in all places and all circumstances even

peaceful picketing by an individual." Bakery
Drivers Local v. Wohl, 315 U. S. 769, 775. For, as

Mr. Justice Douglas pointed out in his concurring

opinion in the Wohl case (315 U. S., at pp. 776-777) :

802554—48 4
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Picketing by an organized group is more than

free speech, since it involves patrol of a par-

ticular locality and. since the very presence of

a ]3icket line may induce acfion of one kind

or another, quite irrespective of the natui'e of the

ideas which are being disseminated. Hence

those aspects of picketing make it the subject

of restrictive regulation.

It is clear that the assimilation of picketing to

speech does not mean that picketing, however peace-

ful, is wholly immune from regulation by the com-

munity in order to protect the general welfare. The

community still has powder to confine the use of this

weapon of industrial combat, as the Supreme Court

has recognized it to be, within reasonable bounds.

And the community may, for the purpose of advanc-

ing and protecting the public interest and without

infringing constitutional guaranties, confine **the

sphere of communication" and thereby localize indus-

trial warfare. As pointed out by the Supreme Court

in the Bitter case, supra (at pp. 724-727, 727-728).

The economic contest between employer and
employee has never concerned merely the iiti-

mediate disputants. The clash of such con-

flicting interests inevitably implicates the well

being of the community. Society has therefore

been compelled to throw its weight into the con-

test. The law has undertaken to balance the

effort of the employer to carry on his business
free from the interference of others against the

effort of labor to further its economic self in-

terest. And every intervention of government
in this struggle has in some respect abridged
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1li(' Creodoiii of a^tinll of one <>i- tlio otlioi* or

both.

Tlio task of mediatin^^ botween these compet-

ing interests has, until recently, been left lai'gely

to judicial lawmaking and not to legislation.

"Courts were required, in the absence of legisla-

tion, to determine what the public welfare de-

manded ;—whether it would not be best subserved

by leaving the contestants free to resort to any

means not involving a breach of the ])eace or

injury to tangible property, whether it was con-

sistent with the public interest that the con-

testants should be permitted to invoke the aid of

others not directly interested in the matter in

controversy; and to what extent incidental in-

jury to persons not parties to the controversy

should be held justifiable." Mr. Justice Bran-

deis in Trua.r v. Corri(/nu, 257 U. S. 312, 363.

The right of the state to determine whether the

connnon interest is best served by imposing

some restrictions upon the use of wea])ons for in-

flicting economic injury in the struggle of con-

flicting industrial forces has not previously been

doubted.

* * » * *

Where, as here, claims on behalf of free

speech are met with claims on behalf of the

authority of the state to im])ose reasonable

regulations for the protection of the conununity

as a whole, the duty of this Court is plain.

Whenever state action is challenged as a denial

of *' liberty," the question always is whether the

state has violated "the essential attributes of

that liberty" * ^ * While the right of free

speech is embodied in the liberty, safeguarded
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by the Due Process Clause, that Clause postu-

lates the authority of the states to translate into

law local policies ^'to promote the health, safety,

morals and general welfare of its people.

* * * The limits of this sovereign power must

always be determined with appropriate regard

to the particular subject of its exercise."****}«•
It is true that by peaceful picketing working-

men communicate their grievances. As a means
of communicating the facts of a labor dispute,

peaceful picketing may be a phase of the consti-

tutional right of free utterance. But recogni-

tion of peaceful picketing as an exercise of free

speech does not imply that the states must be

without power to confine the sphere of communi-
cation to that directly related to the dispute.*****
We must be mindful that ''the rights of em-

ployers and employees to conduct their economic
affairs and to compete with others for a share

in the products of industiy are subject to modi-
fication or qualification in the interests of the

society in which they exist. This is but an in-

stance of the power of the State to set the limits

of permissible contest open to industrial com-
batants." Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S. 88,

103-04.

In enacting Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the statute,

Congress carefully balanced and weighed the conflict-

ing interests of labor to further its economic self-in-

terest, of the employer to carry on his business free

from interference of others, and, particularly, of the

public in the free and unrestricted flow of commerce.



25

It found, as already stated, that strikes in furtherance

of boycotts of the type proscribed hy the Act were,

particularly in the aggregate, a substantive evil of

sufficient magnitude as seriously to interfere with and

restrain commerce and impair the national well-being.

Accordingly, Congress concluded that the national in-

terest made imperative the narrowing of the area of

industrial conflict by the elimination of strikes to

further such boycotts. It therefore made it an un-

fair labor practice for a labor organization, through

the device of, inter alia, ])icketing, to conscript the aid

of employees, and through them, of their employers,

who were not directly concerned in the labor dispute

precipitating such picketing, in order to bring pres-

sure to bear upon the employer directly involved in the

dispute. That is to say, Congress deemed it desirable

and essential for the protection of the community as

a whole "to insulate from the dispute" (Bitter case,

supra), in the manner and to the extent provided in

the statute, employees and employers who were not

directly involved therein. Such a legislative judg-

ment on a matter of serious controversial " public

policy must ''weigh heavily in any challenge of the

law as infringing constitutional limitations." Cant-

tvell V. Connecticut, 310 U. S. 296, 307-308. The

^'^'The Supreme Court has frequently pointed out that the \egis-

lative judgment with respect to matters of public policy, particu-

larly those of a highly controversial nature, is entitled to gre^it

weight in determining the constitutionality of legislation. See

e. g. United States v. Caroleiie Products Co., 304 U. S. 144, 154:

Hebe Company v. Shmv, 248 U. S. 297, 303 : Block v. Hirsh, 256

U. S. 135. 154.
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means chosen by Congress to achieve its purposes are

*' appropriate to the permissible end." Virginia Ri/.

Co. V. System Federation, 300 U. S. 515, 558. And,

we submit, the limitations imposed upon picketing by

Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act are a proper instance

of the power of Congress, in the exercise of its plenary

control over commerce and for the protection of the

community as a whole, "to set the limits of permissible

contest open to industrial combatants." TJiornhill v.

Alahama, 310 U. S. 88, at pp. 103-104."

These limitations, as applied here, in no way encroach

upon '' 'the essential attributes' " (Bitter case, supi^a)

of the right of Sealright employees or their representa-

tives, to inform the public of the facts of their dispute

with their employer. Appellants are left free to use the

*' traditional modes of communication" other than pick-

eting the business places of neutral employers, such as

" The circumstance that the restriction upheld in a case like the

Bitter case represents an exercise of the police power of a State

and that the restriction here in question is an exercise of the Con-

gressional power over commerce is of no significance. Cf. Hamil-

ton V. Kentucky Distilleries Co.^ 251 U. S. 146 where the Court

stated (at pp. 156-157) :

"That the United States lacks the police power, and that this

was reserved to the States by the Tenth Amendment, is true. But

it is none the less true that when the United States exerts any of

the powers conferred upon it by the Constitution, no valid objec-

tion can be based upon the fact that such exercise may be attended

by the same incidents which attend the exercise by a State of its

police power, or that it may tend to accomplish a similar pur-

pose. * * * Xhe war power of the United States, like its other

powers, and like the police power of the States, is subject to apph-

cable constitutional limitations * * *; but the Fifth Amend-
ment imposes in this respect no greater limitation upon the na-

tional power than does the Fourteenth Amendment upon state

power.''
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L. A.-Seattle and West Coast, for the purpose of publi-

cizing their grievances with their real adversary, namely

Sealright. Cf. Bitter case, supra, pp. 727-728. The

instant case does not present the ** unlimited ban on free

communication," ^'baldly prohibiting all picketing"

(Milk Wagon Drivers Union v. Mcadowmoor Dairies,

312 U. S. 287, 297), which impelled the Supreme Court

to strike down the anti-picketing statutes involved in

Thonihill v. Alabama, supra, and Carlson v. California,

310 U. S. 106. Nor is the instant case one where because

of peculiar circumstances, such as were found to exist in

the Wohl case, supra, it is impossible for appellants to

publicize their legitimate grievances except by picketing

the premises of employers w^ho are not immediately con-

cerned in the labor dispute. And this is not an instance

where, as in Cafeteria Employees Union, Local 302 v.

Angelas, 320 U. S. 293, or American Federation of

Labor v. Siving, 312 U. S. 321, the ''right of free com-

munication * * * [has] been mutilated by denying it

to workers, in a dispute with an employer, even though

they are not in his employ." {Swing case, at p. 326).

Neither appellants nor the workers whom they repre-

sent have any dispute with either L. A.-Seattle or West

Coast "against which they are seeking to enlist public

opinion" {Swing case, supra, p. 326).

(c) Picketing for an unlawful purpose is not protected by the Constitution

The fact that peaceful picketing may as a form of

speech be protected by the Constitution does not mean
that Congress cannot proscribe such picketing when

carried on, as here, for an unlawful purpose. Sec-

tion 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act, in substance, prohibits
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labor organizations from engaging in strikes or induc-

ing or encouraging employees to engage in strikes

where an object thereof is to bring about a secondary

boycott of an employer with whom the labor organi-

zation in question has a dispute. This is i)recisely

what appellants sought to do in the instant case. The

picket line which appellants established at the termi-

nals of L. A.-Seattle and West Coast was calculated

to induce and encourage the employees of those car-

riers, with whom appellants, or the employees they

represent, had no dispute, to refrain from performing

services for them with a view to compelling the car-

riers to cease doing business with Sealright.

The power of Congress to proscribe secondary boy-

cotts such as are denounced by Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of

the Act cannot be questioned. Gompers v. Bucks

Stove & Range Co., 221 U. S. 418; Loeive v. Lawlor,

208 U. S. 274 ; Duplex Printing Press Co. v. Veering,

254 U. S. 493 ; Bedford Cut Stone Co. v. Journeymen

Stone Cutters Ass'n., 274 U. S. ^37; Alien Bradley

Co. V. Local Union No. 3, 325 U. S. 797 ; United Broth-

erhood of Carpenters and Joiners of America v.

United States, 330 U. S. 395.

It is well established that peaceful picketing for

an unlawful objective is illegal and may be enjoined.'^

This rule has not been changed by the recent decisions

of the Supreme Court. In Allen Bradley Co., v.

Local Union, No. 3, 325 U. S. 797, the Supreme Court

sustained an injunction against peaceful i^icketing by

a labor union the purpose of which was to maintain

^2 Teller. L.. Labor Disjmtes and Collective Bargaining., Sections

113-114.
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a monopoly in violation of tlio Sliorman Act. In that

case, the union had a inono})oly on the manufacture

and installation of electrical cqnifnnent from New
York City/'' In order to maintain its monopoly,

the union, by a.s^reement with einployeis in tin; New
York area, required manufactured equipment brought

into New York to be un wired and rewired by its mem-
bers before installation. This objective was accom-

plished '*by the traditional labor weapons of refusal

to work upon disfavored goods, with peaceful and

non-violent persuasion, picketing, and blacklisting, and

now the active partici])ation of the local employers'*

(145 F. 2d, at p. 219). There was '*a specific finding

that there was no evidence of any violence or any threat

of violence against any of the plaintiffs by any of the

defendants" (145 F. 2d, at p. 219 n.).

The Supreme Court held the conduct of the miion

unlawful under the Sherman Act because of the as-

sociation with nonlabor groups. It required the dis-

trict court to modify its injunction, which had re-

strained peaceful picketing, boycotting, and striking,

''so as to enjoin only those prohibited activities in

which the union engaged in combination with any

person, firm, or corporation which is a non-labor

group * * *" (325 U. S., p. 812), but it left the

injunction intact otherwise. The Court thus clearly

sanctioned an injunction which forbade peaceful pick-

eting by a union for an unlawful purpose. The fac-

^^ This statement of the case is taken botli from the Supreme
Court's opinion and from the opinion of the Circuit Court of

Ajipeals (145 F. 2d 215) to which the Supreme Court referred

(325 U, S., at p. 798) for a more detailed statement of the facts.
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tor of employer cooperation, though of importance

under the Sherman Act, clearly has no constitutional

significance. The opinion recognizes this in replying

to the criticism contained in Mr. Justice Roberts' sep-

arate opinion that its holding meant that a union

could accomplish the same end if it did not act in

combination with business groups. In this connec-

tion the opinion states (325 U. S., at p. 810) :

This, it is argued, brings about a wholly un-

desirable result—one which leaves labor luiions

free to engage in conduct which restrains trade.

But the desirability of such an exemption of

labor unions is a question for the determination

of Congress. Apex Hosiery Co. v. Leader,

supra.

Numerous state si:Q)reme courts have held that

peaceful picketing for an unlawful purpose may be

prohibited. Typical of these holdings is the decision

of the Oregon Supreme Court in Peters v. Central

Labor Council, 169 P. 2d 870, where the court stated

(at p. 874) :

* * * It is significant that in those cases

where the Supreme Court [of the United
States] identified picketing with free speech no
unlawful purpose of the picketing was involved.

That courts may take into consideration the

purpose of the picketing is established by the

great weight of authority.

Accord: Employment Relations Board v. Milk and

Cream Drivers Employees Union, 238 Wis. 379, 299

N. W. 31, cert, denied 316 U. S. 668 (1941) ; North-

western Pacific R. R. Co. v. Lumber d Satvmill Work-
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rrs' Union, 31 A. C. 448, 189 P. 2d 277 (Calif. 1948)

;

Lafayette Productioyis v. Ferentz, 305 Mich. 193, 9

N. W. 2(1 57 (1943) ; Harper v. Brennan, 311 Mich.

489, 18 N. W. 2d 905 (1942) ; Fred Wolferman, Inc.

V. Root, 204 S. W. 2d 733 (Mo.), cert, denied 68 S. Ct.

608 (1948) ; Colonial Press, Inc. v. Ellis, 321 Mass.

495, 501, 74 N. E. 2d 1 (1947) ; Florsheim Shoe Store

Co. V. Retail Shoe Store Union, 288 N. Y. 188, 42 N. E.

2d 480 (1942) ; Bloedel-Donovan Lumber Mills v. In-

tcrnatioval Woodworkers, 4 Wash. 2d 62, 102 P. 2d

270 (1940).^-'

Whether Congress could prohibit all peaceful pick-

eting]^ by declaring all labor objectives unlawful is a

question that is not presented by this case. For, as

said by Judge Learned Hand in a case that has often

been cited, "most constitutional problems in the end

resolve themselves into the question. How far? and

there is no royal road to their solution by rhetorically

conjuring up outrageous possibilities which may arise

from their unflinching application." Drijfoos v. Ed-

tvards, 284 F. 596, 600 (S. D. N. Y.), aff. 251 U. S.

146. See also. Noble State Bank v. Haskell, 219 U. S.

104, 113. It is enough for the purposes of this case

that Congress has the unquestioned pow^r to make

^^ See also Dodd, Picketing and Free Speech : A Dissent, 5G Ilarv.

L. Rev. 513 (at p. 524) :

"* * * Picketing is, liowever. more than the statement of a

case. * * * "When made use of by strikers, it is an express or

im]died invitation to the public to aid the strikers by refraining

frorii dealing with tlieir employer. If the concerted action of the

strikers is unhiwful by reason of its purpose, it would be dillicult

to uphold the contention that the}' have a constitutional right to

attempt to urge others to assist them in accomplishing that

purpose.'-
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unlawful strikes to further secondary boycotts such as

those denounced by Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act.

See cases, supra, p. 28.

Appellants contend that in any event Section 8 (b)

(4) (A) of the Act was not intended to prohibit con-

duct of the type enjoined by the court below. Specifi-

cally, appellants argue (Br. 53-57) that the legisla-

tive history of Section 8 (b) (4) (A) shows that the

application of that section is confined to such second-

ary boycotts as involve ''full scale economic sanc-

tions * * * by a union against an employer with

whom no dispute exists for the purpose of compelling

him to shun commercially the firm where the primary

dispute exists" and that the Act was not intended to

proscribe "picketing the products of the struck plant."

The Act itself draws no such line of distinction. It

makes it an unfair labor practice for a labor organ-

ization or its agents to induce or encourage employees

to engage in a concerted refusal in the course of their

employment to process, transport, or otherwise handle

or work on any goods for the enumerated objectives.

The Act, by its express terms, prohibits the incitation

of employees by labor organizations to engage either

in a total strike or what may be termed a partial

strike in furtherance of the objectives set forth in

Section 8 (b) (4) (A).

Nor does the legislative historj^ of the Act suggest

that Congress intended any such distinction. On the

contrary, it is apparent that Congress, aware that dif-

ferentiations of that nature were being urged, de-

clined to draw such a line. Thus, in the course of the
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legislative debate on the bill, Senator Taft, one of its

sponsors, explaining Section 8 (b) (4) (A), stated:"

* * * w(i are dealing with the checking of

deliveries thi'ough secondaiy boycotts or juris-

dictional strikes. * * * The trouble is that the

man drives up to the delivery point, and because

the teamsters' union says that he does not have a

teamsters' card, then the union in the plant,

the unloaders or longshoremen, or whatever

they may be will not unload his truck. That
is what we are trying to reach in this case.

Again, in answer to the objection contained in the

President's veto message that the bill indiscriminately

outlawed all secondary boycotts,'^ Senator Taft said:
"

There was no testimony in the record anywhere
to tlie effect that secondary boycotts and juris-

dictional strikes were justified. We asked the

President's representatives as to what kinds

of secondary boycotts were justified, but we
never got a satisfactory answer.

It is evident from the foregoing that Congress did

not intend to make any distinction between what ap-

pellants characterize as a **full scale secondary boy-

cott" and a "product boycott."

Moreover, such a distinction would be wholly in-

consistent with the basic purpose of Section 8 (b) (4)

(A) of the Act. As already shown, Congress sought

to remove the impediments to the free flow of com-

merce which resulted from the incitation of the em-

^5 93 Cong. Rec. 5069.

^«9aCon^^Rec. 7500, 7501.

^' 93 Coiiff. Rec. 7690.
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ployees of a neutral employer to engage in a concerted

refusal, among other things, to handle or work on any

goods or perform any services in order to bring

pressure to bear upon an employer engaged in a labor

dispute. Whether employees of the neutral employer

engage in a total strike or in a ** product boycott,"

the effect upon the free flow of commerce is the same,

differing only in degree.

(d) Section 8 (b) (4) (A) of the Act does not violate the Fifth Amendment's
guaranty of due process

Appellants contend (Br. 71-74) that Section 8 (b)

(4) (A) of the Act, insofar as it prohibits labor

organizations from inducing or encouraging em-

ployees to engage in strikes for the enumerated pur-

poses, is so vague and indefinite as to be violative

of the due process guaranty of the Fifth Amendment.

In support of this argument appellants invoke the

rule applicable to penal statutes that where such a

statute is so vague and indefinite that men of common
intelligence must necessarily speculate as to its mean-

ing it is unconstitutional. Such a strict test has, of

course, no application to the Act, for it is well estab-

lished that the "standards of certainty in statutes

punishing for offenses is higher than in those depend-

ing primarily upon civil sanction for enforcement."

Winters v. New York, 333 U. S. 507, 515.

But whatever the applicable test, Section 8 (b) (4)

(A) is, we submit, immune to successful challenge upon

the ground of vagueness or indefiniteness. As more

fully stated below (pp. 35-36), Section 8 (b) (4) (A)

must be read in conjunction with Section 8 (c) of the
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statute. So read, Section 8(b) (4) (A) provides that

it shall be an unfair labor practice for a labor organiza-

tion to engage in a strike or to induce or encourage, hy

threat of reprisal or force or promise of benefit, the

employees of any employer to engage in a strike or

(•(mcerted refusal, et cetera. Assuming for the sake

op argument that Section 8 (b) (4) (A) standing

alone might be invalid because of vagueness, the addi-

iion of the underscored qualification plainly leaves

110 room for doubt as to its meaning. The language

thus used is as specific as the nature of the })roblem

permits. And it "provides an adequate warning as to

what conduct falls under its ban, and marks bounda-

j'ies sufficiently distinct for judges * * * fairly to

administer the law in accordance with the will of

(Congress. " United States v. Petrillo, 332 U. S. 1, 7.

(e) The order does not invade any rights of appellants under Section 8 (c)

of the Act

Appellants further contend (Br. 58-70) that the

order of the court below, insofar as it restrains peace-

ful picketing, infringes appellants' rights under Sec-

tion 8 (c) of the Act and hence is invalid. This con-

tention, we submit, is likewise without merit.

Section 8 (c) of the Act provides that, *'The ex-

pressing of any views, argmuent or opinion, or the dis-

semination thereof, whether in written, printed, graphic

or visual form, shall not constitute, or be evidence of,

an unfair labor practice under any of the provi-

sions of this Act, if such expression contains no threat

of reprisal or force or promise of benefit." The lan-

guage of Section 8 (b) (4) (A), in view of the phrase
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*'under any provisions of this Act" contained in Sec-

tion 8 (c) must, we think, be read in conjunction with

the latter provision. But this does not mean that

picketing, such as conducted here, is withdra^^Ti from

the proscription of Section 8 (b) (4) (A).

Realistically viewed, it cannot be doubted that pick-

eting, whatever its speech aspect may be, is more than

speech. It is, as the Supreme Court has pointed out,

an ''industrial weapon." Bitter case, supra, at p.

725. It is, as the court below noted (R. Ill), a "for-

cible technique" which cannot be regarded solely as an

appeal to the reason of workers or merely as a method

for the dissemination of the facts of a labor dispute.

It is more than that. It possesses elements of com-

pulsion. For, as Mr. Justice Douglas pointed out in

his concurring opinion in the Wohl case, "the very

presence of a picket line may induce action of one

kind or another, quite irrespective of the nature of

the ideas which are being disseminated" (315 U. S.,

at p. 776).^^ Because of this aspect, picketing, we

^' Cf. Gregory, Charles O.. Labor and the Laic (1946). pp. 346-

348

:

"* * * It seems plain enough to many disinterevsted people

that picketing, even peaceful picketing, it not at all just speech

or the dissemination of information but is, rather, a type of coer-

cion and is intended as such by its users. * * * How does the

loyal employee, who wants to stay at work during a strike, react

to picketing, and why? If he finally decides to stay at home dur-

ing the strike, rather than cross the picket line, does that mean
he has been convinced of the merits behind the union's cause?

And how about an applicant for employment during a strike, who
decides not to cross a picket line, although he may need the

work? * * * XvQ j^Qy inclined to this decision because they

are convinced of the merits behind the union's cause ? And when
the members of other unions unrelated by any common economic



37

submit, cannot be regarded as simply an expression of

\ i(;ws, argument, or o})inion within tlie meaning or

pi'otection of section 8 (c).

jj
Other considerations also remove picketing from

the protection of Section 8 (c) of the Act. Picket-

ing constitutes an a])])eal to all working people to

make conmion cause with the picketing group. Im-

plicit in such an appeal is the promise that if the work-

ers to whom the appeal is directed resjiond to the appeal

the union or workers making the api)eal will, in turn,

if the occasion should arise, lend similar supi)oit to

the workers whose assistance and cooperation is

sought. Conversely, the appeal carries with it the

threat that if it is ignored the union or workers mak-

ing the appeal will, whenever the occasion arises,

refuse to support those workers who fail to cooperate.

As the Second Circuit Court of Aj^peals stated in N. L.

interest to the picketing union, refuse to enter picketed premises,

are they reacting to personal intellectual conviction concerning

the worth of the picketers' cause, or are they merely reacting to

some tacitly understood signal that their sympathy is expected

and must be given pursuant to established labor union policies?

"It is hard to believe that the reactions here recounted are all

expressions of intellectual conviction as to the worth of the picket-

ing unions' several causes. * * * Such a procedure is, indeed,

a dubious venture into the world of ideas and oi)inions. and hardly

seems to be the sort of thing contemplated by the constitutional

guaranty of free speech. Rather, it suggests a sort of psychologi-

cal embargo around the picketed premises, depending for its per-

suasiveness on the associations most people have in mind when
they think about picketing. Hence it is likely that people hesitate

to cross picket lines more because they wish to avoid trouble and
to escape any possible scorn that might be directed toward them
for being antiunion, than because they are persuaded intellectually

by the worth of the picketing union's cause. * * *"*



38

B. B. V. Peter Cailler Kohler Swiss Chocolates Co., Inc.,

130 F. 2d 503, in terms equally applicable here (at

pp. 505-506) :

When all the other workmen in a shop make
common cause with a fellow^ workman over his

separate grievance, and go out on strike in his

support, they engage in a ''concerted activity"

for "mutual aid or protection" although the

aggrieved w^orkman is the only one of them
who has any immediate stake in the outcome.

The rest know that by their action each one of

them assures himself, in case his turn ever comes,

of the support of the one whom they are all

then helping; and the solidarity so established

is "mutual aid" in the most literal sense, as

nobody doubts. So too of those engaging in

a "sympathetic strike," or secondary boycott;

the immediate quarrel does not itself concern

them, but by extending the nmnber of those

who will make the enemy of one the enemy of

all, the power of each is vastty increased.

Viewed in this light, the picketing here under con-

sideration carried with it an implicit promise of bene-

fit, as well as a threat of reprisal, to those workers

who heeded or ignored, as the case may be, the appeal

for cooperation. Hence, the requirement of Section

8 (c) of the Act, that no expression of views, argu-

ment or opinion shall constitute or be evidence of an

unfair labor practice within the meaning of the Act

unless such expression contains a threat of reprisal

or promise of benefit, is fully met.'^

^^ This is not to saj that peaceful picketing of an employer in-

volved in a labor dispute insofar as it seeks to induce any of his

employees to join in a strike runs afoul of Section 8 (b) (1) (A)
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The fact that the j)ickets did not make overt or

explicit threats of reprisal or force or promises of

benefit does not necessarily mean that the picketing

is protected under Section 8 (c) of the Act. As shown

by the legislative history of the Section, it is sufficient

if the threat or promise is implicit in such conduct.

The purpose of Section 8 (c) was to preclude the

Board from taking into consideration in making find-

ings of unfair labor practices, as Congress thought the

Board had done in the past, unconnected or remote

statements of attitude. Thus, as explained by the

House Report on the original House version of Section

8 (c), *'if an employer criticizes a union, and later a

foreman discharges a union official for gross mis-

conduct," the Board may not '' 'infer,' from what the

employer said, perhaps long before, that the discharge

was for union activity."^ Similarly, the Senate Re-

of the Act, wliich makes it an unfair labor practice for a labor

organization to restrain or coerce employees in the exercise of

the rights guaranteed in Section 7 of the Act, i. e., the right to

engage in or to refrain from engaging in concerted activities

for purposes of collective bargaining or other mutual aid or

protection. Section 13 of the Act provides that nothing in the

statute except as specifically provided therein shall be construed

so as either to interfere witli or impede or diminish in anj' way
the riglit to strike or to aflfect the limitations or qualifications

on that right. The legislative history of the Act shows that

Congress did not intend to illegalize strikes against a primary

employer, as distinguished from a secondary employer, in support

of demands for changes in terms and conditions of employment

(93 Cong. Rec. 3950, 6603; H. Kept. No. 510. 80th Cong., 1st Sess.,

p. 43). Picketing of the primary employer in such circumstances

is an incident of the right to strike. Just as the right to strike

under such circumstances is protected, so too is the right to picket

the primary employer.
^' H. Kept. No. 245, 80th Cong.. 1st Sess., p. 33.
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port on the original Senate version of Section 8 (c)

stated that the Board may not hold ^* speeches by em-

ployers to be coercive if the employer was found guilty

of some other unfair labor practice, even though sev-

erable or unrelated. " ^^ The House Conference Re-

port on the bill which became the Act explained the

purpose of Section 8 (c) as follows: ''The necessity

for this change in the law" was to prevent "using

speeches and publications of employers concerning

labor organizations and collective bargaining arrange-

ments as evidence, no matter how irrelevant or imma-

terial, that some later act of the employer had an

illegal purpose. '

'

^^

In the course of the debates on the bill which be-

came the Act, Senator Ellender, a member of the

Senate committee which considered the bill, stated that

the purpose of Section 8 (c) was to preclude the use of

''a casual speech" "no matter how remote or how sep-

arable" as "a part of the pattern of unfair labor prac-

tices.
'

'
"^ Senator Taft, one of the sponsors of the

bill, in answer to a question from Senator Pepper

whether certain statements on the part of an employer

which standing alone contained no threat or promise

of benefit could be considered as evidentiary of imfair

labor practices, replied:

All of these questions involve a consideration

of the surrounding circumstances * * *

There would have to be some other circum-

stances to tie in with the act of the employer.^*

^^ S. Kept. No. 105, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., p. 23.

22 H. Report No. 510, 80th Cong., 1st Sess., p. 45.

^ 93 Cong. Rec. 4261.

^ 93 Cong. Rec, pp. 6604-6605.



41

It is apparent from these remarks that Congress by

Section 8 (c) did not intend that the Board should

never be free to take into consideration statenkents of

attitude which did not in their context contain threats

or promises of benefits. This conclusion is borne out

by a significant change which was made in the House

version of Section 8 (c) prior to its incorporation in

the Act. Section 8 (d) (1) of the House bill (H. R.

3020) originally provided that the expressing of any

views, arguments, or opinions shall not constitute or

be evidence of an unfair labor practice "if it does not

by its own terms threaten force or economic reprisal"

[italics supplied]. The final version of Section 8 (c),

as enacted, eliminated the phrase "by its own terms."

This deletion persuasively suggests that Congress did

not intend that the threats and promises of benefits

which remove expressions of views and opinions from

the protection of Section 8 (c) must necessarily ap-

pear in the context of such statements. And the

deletion, coupled with the explanation of the sponsors

of the Act, strongly indicates that Congress sought

to do no more than to bar consideration of remote ut-

terances having no rational connection with the par-

ticular conduct in question. Certainly, it was not

the intention of Congress to preclude a considera-

tion of threats or promises of benefit where, as here,

they are implicitly and inextricably a part of the

conduct in question.

(0 Section 10 (1) does not confer non-judicial functions on the district courts

and is not invalid under Article III of the Constitution

Appellants also contend (Br. 82-85) that Section

10 (1) of the Act under which the jurisdiction of the
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court below was invoked is invalid because Congress,

under Article III of the Constitution, is without

power to invest federal district courts with jurisdic-

tion to grant interlocutory relief pending a determi-

nation of the unfair labor practice charges by the

Board. This contention is clearly untenable.

Article III of the Constitution vests in Congress

the power to define the jurisdiction of inferior federal

courts. It provides as follows

:

Section 1. The judicial power of the United

States shall be vested in one Supreme Court,

and in such inferior courts as the Congress may
from time to time ordain and establish * * *

Section 2. The judicial power shall extend

to all cases in law and equity arising under this

Constitution, the laws of the United States,

and treaties made, or which shall be made under

their authority; * * * to controversies to

which the United States shall be a party.

Within the limitations of the ''case" or ''contro-

versy" requirement the power of Congress to define

the jurisdiction of the inferior federal courts is ple-

nary. Lockerty v. Phillips, 319 U. S. 182; Yakus v.

United States, 321 U. S. 414; Bowles v. WiUingham,

321 U. S. 503, 511-512. The grant of jurisdiction to

the federal district courts to award interlocutory relief

during pendency of proceedings before the Board

plainly falls within the scope of this grant of power

to Congress.

A determination as to whether interlocutory relief

should be granted or denied presents all of the pre-

requisite indicia of a "case" or "controversy" within
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the meaning of Ailicle 111. Surnnuiriziii^ those in-

dicia, the Supreine Court stated in Aetna Life Insur-

ance Co. V. Haworth, 300 U. 8. 227, at pp. 240-241

:

A '* controversy" in this sense must b<* one

that is aj)propriate for judicial determina-

tion * * * A justiciable controversy is tlius

distinguished fi-oni a diifcicnce or dispute of a

hypothetical or abstract charactei-; from one

that is academic or moot * * * i^he con-

troversy must be definite and concrete, touching

the legal relations of parties having adverse

legal interests * * *. It must be a real and

substantial controversy admitting of specific

relief through a decree of a conclusive charac-

ter, as distinguished from an o])inion advising

what the law would be upon a hypothetical state

of facts.

It has never been doubted that an a])plication to a

court of equity for interlocutory relief pending the

court's final determination of a case presents a jus-

ticiable controversy in the constitutional sense as so

defined. Nor does such an application present any the

less a justiciable controversy within the meaning of

the Constitution because the detennination of the

''merits" of a case, as under Section 10 (1) of the

Act, is reserved to a tribmial other than the one to

which application for interlocutory relief is made.

Evans v. International Typographical Union, 76 F.

Supp. 881 (S. D. Ind.) ; Madden v. International

Union, United Mine Workers of America, 22 L. R.

R. M. 2164 (D. C. Dist. Col.) ; Looneyx. Eastern Texas

R. R. Co., 247 U. S. 214; Erlmrdt v. Boaro, 113 U. S.

537; Eastern Texas Ry. Co. v. Railroad Commission
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of Texas, 242 Fed. 300 (D. C. W. D. Texas) ; Northern

Pacific Ry. Co. v. Soderherg, 86 Fed. 49 (C. C. Wash).

That the grant of interlocutory relief upon a prima

facie showing of facts is not, under Section 10 (1) of

the Act, res adjudicata upon the "merits" of the case

upon a final hearing before the Board, does not de-

prive the adjudication of its character as an adjudica-

tion in a justiciable controversy in the constitutional

sense. The opposite conclusion would mean that no

federal court in granting a temporary injunction is

exercising a jurisdiction within the constitutional

power of Congress to grant. The court's decision is,

of course, res adjudicata as to the issue whether a tem-

porary injunction should be granted upon the record

presented.

The jurisdiction conferred on the district courts by

Section 10 (1) of the Act entails no exercise of **non-

judicial duties of an administrative or legislative

character." Pope v. United States,, 323 U. S. 1, 13.

Whether the fmictions conferred upon a court are

judicial, as distinguished from legislative or admin-

istrative, does not depend on whether they are de-

signed to aid a legislative or administrative inquiry,

but upon whether their exercise comports with the

accepted standards of judicial operation. The "ques-

tion depends" "upon the character of the proceed-

ings." Prentis v. Atlantic Coast Line, 211 U. S. 210,

226. The proceeding here "is none the less the judg-

ment of a judicial tribunal dealing with questions

judicial in their nature, and presented in the cus-

tomary forms of judicial proceedings, because its effect

may be to aid an administrative or executive body in

I
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the performance of duties legally imposed upon it

by Congress in execution of a power granted by the

Constitution." Interntate Commerce Commission v.

Brimson, 154 U. S. 447, 489. The grant of interlocu-

tory relief during the pendency of Board proceedings

is no less an exercise of judicial power than is the

judicial enforcement of an administrative subpena

{Brimson case, supra), or the judicial enforcement

of a final administrative order. {Federal Radio Com-

mission V. Nelson Bros., 289 U. 8. 266, 274-278). In

all three instances the scope of judicial inquiry is

shaped to fit the needs of the statutory scheme Con-

gress is empowered to create. As with an administra-

tive subpena, the judicial enforcement of which is

required so long as the data demanded is not ''plainly

incompetent or irrelevant to any lawful purpose" of

the agency {Endicott Johnson Corp. v. Perkins, 317

U. S. 501, 509), and as with the judicial enforcement

of a final agency order which becomes incontestable

if the legal tests of constitutional power, statutory

authority and the basic i:)rerequisites of proof are met

{Rochester Tel. Corp. v. United States, 307 U. S. 125,

140), so here, the judicial function is neither abused

nor debased by limiting judicial inquiry to ascertain-

ing whether upon presentation of a prima facie case

the grant of interlocutory relief is "just and proper."

Oklahoma Press Publishing Co. v. Walling, 327 U. S.

186, 216. See, Pope v. U. S. 323 U. S. 1, 10-12-, Evans

V. International Typographical Union, supra.

Appellants argue, however (Br. 82, 86), that the

court below abdicated its judicial fimction of ascer-

taining whether a prima facie case had l)een estab-
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lished warranting the grant of interlocutory relief

and accepted the contention that ^'a Board agent has

an absolute right to injunctive relief in proceedings

such as the instant case conditioned only upon a de-

termination that 'reasonable cause' exists for his

stated belief that an unfair labor practice has been

committed" and that the court below was ''not en-

titled to require prima facie evidence forming the

basis for the Board's agent's belief in making that

determination." No such argument was presented to

the court below on behalf of appellee and the decision

of the court below is in no way predicated upon any

such hypothesis. On the contrary, the court below

Avas specifically infoiTned that in a proceeding under

Section 10 (1) of the Act, where the facts are in dis-

pute, there is a duty upon the Board's agent to estab-

lish by proof to the satisfaction of the district court

that upon the facts adduced' there is a reasonable prob-

ability that unfair labor practices are being com-

mitted, as charged, and that injunctive relief is just

and proper (R. 201-202, 203). In the instant case,

the pleadings, together Avith the affidavit of appellant

Turner attached to the motion to dismiss the petition,

disclosed that there was no genuine issue as to any

material fact ; hence, there was no necessity for adduc- i

ing any additional evidence. In that state of the rec-

ord, the court below could, as it did (R. 106), prop-

erly determine upon the basis of the pleadings alone

that a prima facie case had been established warrant-

ing interlocutory relief. Cf. Rule 56 (c) of the Fed-

eral Rules of Civil Procedure.
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Nor is it correct to say, as appellants do (K. 83),

that the court below, in disi-e^ard of the priiicij^Jes

laid down in Ilecht Co. v. Bowles, :321 U. S. 321, issued

the injunction without consid(;ring whether such re-

lief was just and propei*. The Act itself, of course,

does not impose an absolute duty upon a district court

to grant injunctive relief pursuant to Section 10 (1)

merely upon a showing that there is reasonable cause

to believe that unfair labor practices as charged are

being committed. The Act expressly provides that a

district court shall grant such relief as it may deem

just and proper. The court below, mindful of the

Hecht case, as is evident from its opinion, correctly

granted the relief sought in the light of ''the neces-

sities of the public interest which Congress has sought

to protect.
'

' Hecht case, supra, p. 330.

CONCLUSION

It is respectfully submitted, that the order of the

court below is proper and valid in all respects and

that it should be affirmed.

Robert N. Dexham,
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As the General Connsel concedes, the facts in the

instant case are "substantially undisputed," (Br. p.

35). ^riie only direct evidence relating to the factual

situation involved herein in the entire record is an

affidavit of Appellant Turner (R. 20-26).



The General Counsel admits that 'Hhe pickets did

not make overt or explicit threats of reprisal or force

or promises of benefits.'^ (Br. 39). He had already]

stated on the record that the picketing involved herein

"can be termed peaceful picketing." (R. 204). The

General Counsel likewise does not take issue with the

assertions by Appellants based upon the record that

"the charge originally filed before the Board (R.

27-30) contains no reference to threats of reprisal or;

force or promise of benefit" (Op. Br. 66) and that

'Hhe picketing in question did not materially affect

or interfere tvith the normal business being conducted

at those concerns [the ti'ucking concern and terminals

company] and there was no intention on the part of

the strikers to physically or otherwise obstruct the

operations at those locations, or to picket any mer-

chandise other than Sealright products." (Op. Br.

65).

While the General Counsel seeks to argue that the

instant case is not "one where because of peculiar
^

circumstances, such as were found to exist in the
,

Wohl case, ... it is impossible for appellants to pub-

licize their legitimate grievances except by picketing

the premises of emjjloyers who are not immediately

concerned in the labor dispute" (Br. 27), he does not

quarrel with appellants' adoption of the language

from the Supreme Court opinion in Bakery Wagon
Drivers Local v. Wohl, 315 U. S. at p. 775 to describe

the factual situation now confronting this Court (Op.

Br. 86), namely that:



^'Tho leoord in tliis cnso doos not contain the

slightest suggestion of (3rnl)arrassrTiont in the task

of governanre; there are no findings and no cir-

cumstances \'v()]]\ which we can draw the infer-

ence tliat tlie publication was attended or likely

to be attended by violence, force or coercion, or

conduct otbei'wisc unlawful or opj)ressive ; and
it is not indicated that there was an actual or

threatened abuse of tlu; right to free speech

through tlie use of excessive picketing."

It might also be said here, as in the Wohl case,

without disagreement arising that ".
. . the means

here employed and eontem plated . . . are such as to

have slight, if a)uj, repercussions upon the interests

of strangers to the issue. . .
/' (315 U. S. at p. 776).

The General Counsel contends however that ''Whether

employees of the neutral employer engage in a total

strike or in a 'product boycott,' the effect upon the

free flow of commerce is the same, differing only in

degree." (Br. 34).

The gravamen of the charge of unfair labor prac-

tices being prosecuted by the General Counsel against

the appellants, then, consists of peaceful picketing in

the course of w'hich striking members of the labor or-

ganization advised employees of non-struck concerns

that Sealright products were mamifactured undei*

strike conditions and for substandard wages, and re-

quested them not to handle Sealright goods.



THE ESSENCE OF APPELLEE'S LEGAL POSITION.

The issues have been considerably narrowed due to

the position taken by the General Counsel in his brief

for the Appellee Regional Director.

In our Opening Brief, we cited and discussed nu-

merous authorities of the Supreme Court of the;

United States upholding peaceful picketing pursuant

to a legitimate labor dispute directed at the premises

of the employer or at the products of the employer as*'

the exercise of constitutional rights under the First

Amendment. We then argued to this Honorable Court,!

of Appeals for the Ninth Circuit that

:

"Section 8(b)(4)(A) must, under these same^

Supreme Court decisions, be declared invalid on

its face, unless peaceful picketing under the cir-

cimistances herein is deemed excluded from its

terms by the immunizing language of Section

8(c). The District Court in the instant case failed,

to give Section 8(c) any effect whatsoever or to

rule as to its applicability to Section 8(b)(4)

(A) . .
." (Op. Br. 61).

Respondmg to this argument, the General Counsel!

states

:

''The language of Section 8(b)(4)(A), in view

of the phrase 'under any provisions of this Act'

contained in Section 8(c) mast, we think, be read

in conjunction with the latter provision. But this

does not mean that picketing, such as conducted

here, is withdrawn fi'om the i^roscription of Sec-

tion 8(b)(4)(A)." (Br. 35-36).



Again with roferonco to out reliance upon the Fifth

Amendment's guaranty of due proeess, he answers:

"Section 8(h)(4)(A) must he read in conjunc-

tion with Section 8(c) of the statute. So read,

Section 8(h)(4)(A) |)i(»\i(h's that it shall he an
unfair lahor practice for a lahor organization to

engage in a strike or to induce or encourap^e by

threats of reprisal or force or }>romise of benefit,

the emi)loyees of any employer to engage in a
strike or concerted refusal, et cetera.

"Assuming for the sake of argument that vSection

8(h)(4)(A) standing alone might he invalid he-

cause of vagueness, the addition of the itali-

cized qualification plainly leaves no room for

doubt as to its meaning. ..." (Br. 34-35).

Having conceded that the expression of views, argu-

ment, or opinion which contain no threat of reprisal

or force oi* promise of benefit (such as statements of

the Sealright strikers concerning the facts of the labor

dispute with their employer) cannot constitute or

serve as evidence as a violation of Section 8(b) (4)

(A), the General Counsel argues that peaceful picket-

ing in connection therewith is not immunized because

it is a "coercive technique" (Br. 7), or in the lan-

guage of the District Court a "forcible technique"

(Br. 36).

Moreover, according to the General Counsel "Pick-

eting constitutes an appeal to all working peoi)le to

make common cause with the ])icketing gi-ou]). Im-

plicit in such an appeal is the promise that if the

workers to whom the appeal is directed respond to



the appeal the union or workers making the appeal
^j

will, in turn, if the occasion should, arise, lend similar

support to the workers whose assistance and coopera-

tion is sought. Conversely, the appeal carries with it
|

the threat that if it is ignored the union or workers

making the appeal will, whenever the occasion arises,

refuse to support those workers who fail to cooper-

ate." (R. 37).

Contrary to the leading decisions of the Supreme

Court of the United States, the General Counsel con-

tends in essence that peaceful picketing is not an ex-

ercise of Free Speech, unless confined to the imme-

diate vicinity of the premises of ''the employer or

company ivhose employees are directly involved, in a

labor dispute.'^ (Br. 17).

I.

WHILE PICKETING ACTIVITIES ARE NOT IMMUNE FROM ALL
REGULATION, APPELLEE HAS FAILED TO BRING SECTION
8(b)(4)(A) WITHIN THE ALLOWABLE AREA OF GOVERN-
MENTAL CONTROL.

In our Opening Brief, it was expressly pointed out

that the District Court herein had relied on a partial \

quotation from Mr. Justice Douglas in the Wohl case,

supra, to the effect that the non-speech aspects of

picketing ''make it the subject of restrictive regula-

tion" without giving any weight to the qualifying

language immediately following in the quoted opinion, -

that ''.
. . since 'dissemination of information con

cerning the facts of a labor dispute' is constitution

I



ally protected, a State is not free to define 'labor

dispute' so narrowly as to accomplish indirectly what

it may not accomplish directly." (Oj). Br. 67-68, re-

ferring to 315 U. S. at p. 776).

We also refeiTcd to a similar j)a7"tial (juotation

from the ThornJiill case where the Court recognized

''the power of the State to set the limits of permis-

sible contest open to industrial combatants." The

Court quickly added in its opinion that "Tt does not

follow that the state in dealing with the evils arising

from industrial disputes may impair the effective ex-

ercise of the right to discuss freely industrial relations

which are matters of public concern." (Op. Br. 68,

quoting 310 U. S. at p. 103).

Nevertheless, the Brief for Appellee indulges in

these same elliptical qnotations, of the type employed

by the District Court herein, and used by various anti-

picketing opinions and briefs to distoi-t the authority

of the Wohl and Thornhill cases identifying peaceful

picketing with free speech (Br. 22, 24 and 26).

The fallacy of applying this ellipsis is borne out by

Professor Armstrong in her article entitled "Where
Are We Going with Picketing?," published in the

March, 1948, issue of the California Law R^^iew. The

article quotes the caveat from the Thornhill opinion

and comes to the conclusion that "the rights of em-

ployers and em])loyees to conduct their economic

affairs" which the Su])reme Coui't says are ''subject

to modification or (lualification" as "an instance of

the power of the State to set the limits of permis-
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sible contest open to industrial combatants" concern

^^ activities other than speech activities," or in other

words, ''the nonspeech aspects of picketing," where

there is danger of physical destruction of property

or injury to person through violent conduct (36

Calif. L. Rev. 1, at pp. 12, 13). Professor Armstrong

brands the use of this first paragraph standing alone

as ''a clear misuse of the quotation from the Thornhill

case" since the quotation ''was followed by a para-

graph that made its boundaries clear." (36 Calif. L.

Rev. at p. 24).

In the same fashion, the General Counsel cites a

dictum from the Bitter's Cafe case out of context as

authority for the proposition that the injunction

against picketing iu the pT'esent case is valid because

"Appellants are" left free to use the 'traditional modes

of communication' other than picketing the business

places of neutral employers, such as L. A., Seattle and

West Coast, for the purpose of publicizing their griev-

ances with their real adversary, namely Sealright."

(Br. 26-27).

Actually, the nature of Sealright products—milk

bottle caps and paper food containers—causes them to

lose their identity as to place of manufacture before

reaching the ultimate consumer on milk bottles or as

food packages bearing the trade names of various

dairy companies or food products corporations. The

District Court injunction forbidding appellants from

following the sul^ject matter of the dispute, set apart

a particular enterprise—Sealright—and freed it from



all effective picketing in the same fashion as the New
York injunction in the WohJ case, of which Mr. Jus-

tice Douglas said:

*'If the princii)les of tlie Thornhill case are to

survive, I do not see how New York can be

allowed to draw tliat line."

Moreover, the Genc^ral Counsel ignores the pro-

nouncement of the High Court in Scht} eider v. New
Jersey, 308 U. S. 147, 163, 60 S. Ct. 315, 89 L. Ed.

430 that

*'.
. . the streets are natural and proper places

for the dissemination of information and opin-

ion ; and one is not to have the exercise of his

liberty of expression in appropiiate places

abridged on the plea that it may be exercised in

some other place."

(See the very recent case of Saia v. New York, 334

U. S. 558, 68 S. Ct. 1148, 92 L. Ed. 1087.)

He also ignores the specific reference in the Thorn-

hill case to this same doctrine, found at 310 U. S., p.

106.

In contending that C'ongress can proscribe picket-

ing "for an unlawful purpose", (Br. 27-34 the Gen-

eral Counsel chooses to ignore the detailed argmnent

of our Opening Brief citing cases in support of the

proposition that picketing for a purpose reasonably

related to employment conditions and the objects of

collective bargaining is picketing for a lawful purpose

protected by the Constitution (Op. Br. 48-52). His

effort to uphold a statute forbidding picketing on the
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ground that the same statute embodies a declaration

that the purpose of such picketing is illegal amounts

to nothing more than ])egging the question. Or, as the

Supreme Court of (Jalifornia put it in the Blaney

case (discussed at length in our Opening Brief and

again infra), ''the question still remains as to what

purposes or means may l^e declared unlawful by the

Legislature or the coui'ts without violating the pro-

visions of the Constitution.
'

'

This entire phase of the case may be summarized by

briefly quoting from the Carlson case, 310 U. S. at

113:

''The power and duty of the State to take ade-

quate steps to preserve the peace and protect the

privacy, the lives, and the property of its resi-

dents cannot be doubted. But the ordinance in

question here abridges liberty of discussion under

circumstances presenting no clear and present

danger of substantive evils within the allowable

area of State control/'

II.

THE ARGUMENT CLEARLY SET OUT IN OUR OPENING BRIEF,

SUPPORTED BY ALL THE CONTROLLING AUTHORITIES, TO
THE EFFECT THAT THE PICKETING IN THE CASE AT BAR
IS THE EXERCISE OF A CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT IS NOT
REFUTED OR EVEN ANSWERED IN THE BRIEF OF AP-

PELLEE.

At page 43 of our Opening Brief we quoted the

language used by the attorney for Appellee at the

oral argument in which he stated that the Hitter's
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Cafe case holds that ])oacof'ul ])icketin^ and peaceful

boycott should be limited to a dispute between an em-

ployer and his own employees.

We i)ointed out in our Openine^ Brief, at pap^e 46,

that Bakery Wafjon Drivers Local v. Wohl, 'U5 U. S.

769, 62 S. Ct. 816, 86 L. Ed. 1178, holds that picketing

of a struck employer is within the constitntir»nal

guarantee of free speech.

On the same i)ai;e we quote the languap^e of the

learned trial court (R. IH), iTsting his decision in

support of the injunction on the Bitter's Cafe case,

315 U. S. 722, 62 S. Ct. 807, 86 L. Ed. 1143, which

he stated prohibited picketing of the character foimd

in the case at bar as a ''forcible technique."

Counsel for apyiellee makes the bald statement (Br.

27) that this is not a case similar to Cafeteria Em-

ployees Union v. Angelos, 320 U. S. 293, 64 S. Ct. 126,

88 L. Ed. 58, or A.F. of L. v. Swing, 312 U. S. 321,

61 S. Ct. 568, 85 L. Ed. 855.

The five-to-four decision in the Bitter's Cafe cavse,

if Shepard's Citator is coi'rect—and it generally is

—

has never once been cited by the Supreme Court of

the United States. The nnanimous decision in the

Wohl case, which upholds as a constitutional right

the picketing of the product of a struck employer

—

the exact type of picketing involved in the case at

bar—has, on the other hand, been repeatedly cited.

And the most significant citation of the Wohl case

is the one found in the Hitter's Cafe case itself where

the majority of the court, in limiting the right of
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picketing, made it clear (315 U. S. at p. 727) that

they were not in any way limiting or abridging the

rule in the Wohl case, which upholds the right of the

union "in following the su})ject matter of their dis-

pute." It is very significant that when the Bitter's

Cafe case is cited in an argument against the consti-

tutional right of peaceful picketing, page 727 is

always omitted.

To l)oi] the argument down: We have the clear,

manly and frank statement of Coimsel for the Ap-

pellee that the intent of the Taft-Hartley Act is

to limit peaceful, economic action by a union to a

dispute between an employer and his own employees,

and in order to prevail on this appeal that argimient

must be pressed to its limit. On the other hand, we

have the language of A. F. of L. v. Stvirig, supra,

decided before the Bitter's Cafe case and the samel

language repeated in Cafeteria Employees Union v. ,'

Angelos decided after the Bitter's Cafe case holding!

that the constitutional right of boycott and picketing

cannot be abridged "])y drawing the circle of economic t

competition between employers and workers so vsmall

as to contain only an employer and those directly em-

ployed by him." It is clear, therefore, that we have

here a conflict between the General Counsel of the

National Labor Relations Board and the Supreme

Court of the United States. Counsel for the Appellee

say (Br. 17) that peaceful picketing may be limited

to a dispute between an employer and his own em-

ployees. The Sui^reme Court of the United States in

two leading cases (the Swing and Wohl cases) holds
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specifically and in lan^iia^o so plain that it cannot

possibly ])e misunderstood that this is precisely what

courts or legislatures cannot do. The duty of this

Court, therefore, is clear, namely, to follow the un-

equivocal ruling of the Supreme Court of the Unit^ni

States and hold that the right oC primary boycott and

of picketing ])ursuant thereto includes the right to

follow the product of the struck employer.

There has l)een a great deal of nonsense uttered and

urged with regard to the type of picketing involved in

the case at bar. In this portion of the argument we
shall follow the method of the Restatement of Toi-ts

and avoid the use of the word "boycott." Instead, we
will use the language of the Supreme Court of the

United States and call this activity the following by

the union of the subject matter of the dispute. We
have strong authority in decisions of the Supreme

Court of California in support of this right by a

union. In the Fortenhiiry case, 16 Cal. (2d) 405, 106

P. (2d) 411, cited in our Opening Brief, the Supreme

Court of California held that one who handles the

product of a struck employer becomes an ally,

—

not

a neutral, hut an ally. And the Supreme Court of the

United States, in MiJk Wagon Drivers v. Meadow-

moor Dairies, 312 IT. S. 287, 61 S. Ct. 552, 85 T.. Ed.

836, 132 A.L.R. 1200, first describes the acts prohibited

as involving interference ''with the sale of plaintiff's

products by picketing stores where its ]n*oducts were

sold," all of this luudng been accompanied by extreme

violence over a consideral)le period of time. The deci-

sion of the Supreme Court in that case upheld the
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injunction against picketing solely on the ground of

violence, and the Court i:)ointed out (at page 298)

that the injunction should continue only during the

continuance of the violence or the immediate threat

of violence.

When we look at the issue before us objectively and

with an unprejudiced eye, we see that what the Gen-

eral Counsel seeks to prohibit imder the language of

the Taft-Hartley Act is the following by a striking

union of the subject matter of the dispute. We see

that precisely this form of activity was upheld by the^

Supreme Court of the United States in the Meadow-

moor case so long as only peaceful picketing is em-,

ployed. That this activity is upheld by the Supreme

Court of the United States in the WoJil case in a

unanimous decision where jDicketing was peaceful, and

lest there should be any doubt in anybody's mind, the!

court again, in the Ritter's Cafe case, decided on

the same day, repeated and upheld the rule in the!

Wohl case.

These are rulings of the Supreme Court on the

identical objective state of facts which we find in the

case at bar.

Now if we join issue with the broader contention

of the Appellee here as stated by coimsel and cited

above that the intent of the Taft-Hartley Act and of

the Appellee in this case is to strike down the right

of peaceful picketing, except in a dispute between an

employer and his own employees, we find this theory

categorically denied and disapproved by the Supreme

Coui-t in the Swing and Angelos cases, cited supra.

Ii
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Til.

APPELLEE HAS FAILED TO RECOGNIZE THAT THE ANTI-BOY-

COTT RESTRICTIONS HELD UNCONSTITUTIONAL IN THE
BLANEY CASE BY THE SUPREME COURT OF CALIFORNIA
FOLLOWING THE CONTROLLING DECISIONS OF THE SU-

PREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES ARE THE SAME
AS THOSE OF SECTION 8(b)(4)(A).

Appellee has (•oMij)lete]y disregarded the sound rea-

soning of the California Su])7'eme Court in the Blaney

case, 30 Cal. (2d) 643, 184 P. (2d) 893, cited repeat-

edly in our Opening Brief. The significanee of this

recent holding as applied to the constitutional issues

raised by vSection 8(1)) (4) (A) has ])een clearly noted

by legal scholars.

In the January, 1948, issue of the Michigan Law

Review at pages 435-43f-l, the writer comments in the

following fashion:

''Perhaps the most interesting feature of this

case is that the reasoning of the court seems to

apply equally as well to the language of Section

8(b)(4)(A) of the Labor Management Relations

Act of 1947 (the Taft-Hartley Act). This section

of the new federal labor statute brands as an un-

fair labor practice and makes enjoinable induce-

ment or encouragement of a strike or refusal to

handle certain goods where an object thereof is to

force or require an em])loyer to cease doing busi-

ness with any other person. Both 'hot goods' and

'secondary' boycotts are covered by the language

of the section and the prohibitions upon induce-

ment or encouragement of such action seems to

cover picketing or other j)ublicati()n of the facts

of a labor dispute which seeks to bring about such

a boycott. The California court in the instant
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case, in declaring such inducement or encourage-

ment by picketing to be within the area of free

speech, is strictly in line with the Supreme Court

picketing cases since 1940, and the conclusion

seems inescapable that, barring a repudiation of

its pre^dous decisions or a drastic 'reading down'

of the terms of the Taft-Hartley Act, the Su-

preme Court will declare invalid section 8(b) (4)

(A) when it is called upon to adjudicate the con-

stitutionality of that section."

See also 21 So. Cal. Law Review, pp. 76-92, De

cember 1947.

Following the issuance of the Memorandum Opin-

ion by the District Court in the instant case on Feb-

ruary 3, 1948 (75 F. Supp. 678), the Supreme Court

of California reaffirmed the principles of the Blaneij

decision in Simons Brick Co. v. United Brick, Tile

and Clay Workers, 32 A.C. 176, handed down on June

29, 1948, without dissent.

IV.

WHILE THE GENERAL COUNSEL HAS RETREATED FROM HIS

FORMER POSITION THAT AN INJUNCTION MUST ISSUE

UNDER SECTION 10(1) UPON THE FILING OF A CREDIBLE
PETITION BY THE REGIONAL DIRECTOR, THE DISTRICT

COURT APPLIED THAT UNTENABLE RULE HEREIN.

At the argument below, the attorney for the General

Counsel took the position that "... we do not havC:

to show, as we see it, . . . irreparable harm, as is

usually the case ... in an equity proceeding. . . .

We would have to make a showing by testimony that
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the Regional T)i lector does have reasonable cause.

. . . The court still does have the question of deter-

mining whether or not the Regional Director does

have reasona))le cause to ])elieve that a violation has

been committed." (R. 201-203, cited at Br. 46). This

view was accepted by the District Court which held

that '*.
. . the specific injunctive processes expressly

conferred upon this court by Section 10(1) of the

Act become oj)erable uj)on tlic credible petition of the

administrative agency as provided in the Act." fR,

106).

Now, the General Coimsel would disavow the posi-

tion which he successfully persuaded the District

Court to adopt, stating, '"^Phe Act itself, of course,

does not impose an absolute duty upon a district court

to grant injunctive relief pursuant to Section 10(1)

merely upon a showing that there is reasonable cause

to believe that unfair labor practices as charged are

being committed." (Br. 47).

The conflict of this ancillary function conferred

upon the District Court by Section 10(1) with the

''separation of powers" defined by Article III of the

Constitution becomes apparent in this case. An in-

junction was issued by the District Court on Feb-

ruary 16, 1948, following a holding that ''the picket-

ing activities, which prompted the representatives of

the Board to petition the court for injunctive relief,

can in truth hardly be said to have been motivated

by 'dissemination of information concerning the facts

of a labor dispute.' " (R. 111). As pointed out by the

General Counsel himself in a speech quoted in our
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Opening Brief, the Trial Examiner who shortly there-

after heard the charges upon which the injunction

was based, came to a contrary conclusion as to the

law of the case (Br. 17), holding that such peaceful

picketing is protected by the First and Fourteenth

Amendments, as well as embraced within the language

of Section 8(c) of the amended Act, and recommended

that the complaint be dismissed by the Board in its

entirety.

No such situation could arise whereby the adminis-

trative agency might in effect reverse the conclusions

of law of the District Court under those statutes per-

mitting judicial enforcement of an administrative

subpena or judicial enforcement of a final adminis-

trative order, relied upon l)y Appellee as comparable

to Section 10(1) (Br. 45).

Dated, September 15, 1948.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert W. Gilbert,

Clarence E. Todd,

Allan T^. Sapiro,

Attorneys for Appellants.



No. 11,894

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Prtntino Specialties and Paper Con-

verters Union, Local 388, A.F.L.,

and Walter J. Turner,

Appellants,

vs.

PTowARD F. LeParon, Regional Direc-

tor of the 21st Region of the National

Labor Relations Board, on Behalf of

the National Labor Relations Board,

Appellee.

APPELLANTS' PETITION FOR A REHEARING

and

BRIEF IN SUPPORT THEREOF.

FILED
JAN 1^^ 1949

'AUL P» O'BRIEN,

Clarence E. Todd,

625 Market Street, San Francisco o, California,

Robert W. Gilbert,

117 West Ninth Street, Los Angeles 15, California,

Allan L. Sapiro,

785 Market Street, San Francisco 3, California,

Attorneys for Appellants

and Petitioners.





Subject Index

Appellants' Petition tor ;i KchoaniiK 1

Jirief ill Su|)poil of I'ctition Tor a JJclieaiiiig 5

I.

The issue here as posed by the general counsel and as ae-

eepted by this eourt as to whether pieketin« ean be re-

stricted to a eireJe eomprisinfr an employer and his ovvii

employees has been repeatedly decided by the Supreme
Court of the United Slates in favoi- of the contention of

appellants herein 6

11.

The Supreme Court in the fitter's Cafe case did not restrict

the area of his employer and liis own employees but recojr-

nized the rii^ht of picket inji anywhere within the industry '.)

Ill

This court has interpi-eted the restrictions of Section <S(b)

(4) (A) in a manner which does violence to its lejrislative

history 12

IV.

This court has misconstrued the status of Section 8(c) in this

legal situation l->

V.

The Supreme Court of the Cnited States in uphoMiii}: the

right of peaceful picketinji' as a phase of the constitutional

right of free si)eech has upheld the right of effective and

succesvsful picketing jmrsuant to a peaceful boycott so

long as the picketing is peaceful 18

VI.

The misinterpretation and misconception by this court of the

right of peaceful picketing seeks to overrule the Supi-eme

Court of the United States and to nullify the provisions of

the Fii'st Amendment 22

\TI.

The picketing at bar was not for an unlawful purpose 24



ii Subject Index

Vm. Page

The ecoiioraie justification for picketing the product in the

Wohl case also should have been found to exist herein. ... 27

IX.

Nothing contained in this opinion indicates that the "clear

and present danger" test was even considered 28

X.

The one thing necessary for a solution of the issue before us

is a realistic approach 31



Table of Authorities Cited

Cases Pages

A. F. of L. V. Svviii^'. :]\2 l.S. ;!2I. (il S.CI. :»(;.S fS.') L.Kd.

^^^^'>} 7, 15, 21, 25, 30
AI];iii-r.r;i(lIoy v. I^ocnl No. :{, .'525 U.S. I'M 2.".

Anioi'icaii Steel Foinuli-ics v. Ti-i-rHy rV'iitf.-il T?;ifl«'s Couii-

cil, 257 U.S. 184
"

11

Bakery Diivers Ijocal v. Wolil. ;]!.") ('.S. 7()9

10, 11, 15, 25, 27, 28, 30, 34

Bakeiy ami Pastry Diiveis v. Wolil. .n.') U.S. 769 10. 24

Bridges v. Califoi'iiia. 314 U.S. 252 29

Cafeteria Kinployees Union v. Anyelos. 320 U.S. 293 7. 22, 30

Carlson v. California. 310 U.S. 100 15. 17. 29. 30. 34

Douds V. Metropolitan I'\'der;ition of Arehitects. 75 !•'. Supji.

(>72 17

Hague V. C.i.O.. 307 U.S. 496 30

Jn re lllaney, 30 Cal. (2d) 64:5 24. 25

Milk Wagon Drivers v. Meadovvnioor Dairies. 312 U.S. 287

8, 11. 15, 22. 23. 24. 25

Hitter's Cafe decision (315 U.S. 722)

5. 7. 8, 9, 10. 11. 21. 22, 23. 24. 25

Sealright Pacilie. Ltd., NLRB Case No. 21-CC-13 15

Senn case (301 U.S. 468. decided May 24. 1937) 22

Schneider v. Town of Ir\nugton. 308 U.S. 147 30

Stromherg v. California, 283 U.S. 350 17

Swing V. A. F. of L., 312 U.S. 321 (85 L.Ed. 855) 26

Thomas v. Clollins. 323 U.S. 516 17, 30. 31

Thornhill v. Alabama. 310 U.S. 88 15. 17. 18. 20. 22. 25. 2(i

United lirotherhood of Carpenters and -loiners of America

V. Sperry [V.C.A. 10th. deeided November 2. 1948), F.

(2d)
" 1^- 1(^



iv Table of Authorities Cited

Statutes Pages

Labor Management Relations Act, 1947 VZ

National Labor Relation Aet. 1947, Public Law 101. 80th

Cong., eh. 120, 1st Session:

Section 8(b) (4) rA) 12, 14. 15. 16, :J0

Section 8(c) 2, 6, 13, 14, 15, 16. 17, 26, P>1

Taft-Hartley Act 12, 25, 26, 27, 31, 32, 3:^.

U. S. Constitution. First Amendment 25

Miscellaneous

Commerce Clearing House Ln])<)r Law Reporter, para. 5120,

p. 5621 32

93 Daily Cong. Rec. 4322-4323. April 20. 1947 13



No. 11,894

IN THE

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Printing Spechaltieis and Paper Con-

vEiiTEKs Union, \a)c\\. 388, A.F.L.,

and Walter J. Thrner,
Appellants,

vs.

Howard F. IjeBaron, Regional Direc

tor of the 21st Region of the National i

La])or Relations Board, on, Behalf of '

the National Labor Relations Board, :

Appellee.

(

APPELLANTS' PETITION FOR A REHEARING.

To the Honorahle William Denman, Presidiufi Judge,

and to the Honorable Associate Judges of the

Urdted States Conrt of Appeals for the Xi}ith

Circuit:

Come now ai)pe]lants and within proper time file

this, their petition for rehearing, pointing ont the

following errors of the Conrt appearing on the faee of

the opinion.



2

L

The Court correctly understood the issue herein,

to-wit, whether peaceful picketing can be restricted to

a circle comprising only an employer and his own

employees, but this Court inadvertently failed to note

that the Supreme Court of the United States has re-

peatedly held that picketing cannot be so restricted.

II.

This Court inadvertently failed to note that the

Supreme Court of the United States has recognized

the right of peaceful picketing within the nexus of

the dispute, within the area of economic interde-

pendence, and that the Court has definitely held that

peaceful picketing of the type found in the case at bar

is protected by the Bill of Rights.

TIL

This Court correctly stated tliat picketing is de-

signed to be effective and frequently is effective in

that workers generally will not pass a picket line, but

this Court erred grievously in holding that effective

picketing is not protected by the Bill of Rights.

rv.

This Court has misconstrued the status of Section

8(c) in the situation at bar.

V.

The Court has misconstrued the decisions which

mention unlawful purpose and has inadvertently failed



to note that the ri^ht of peaceful picketing; lias been

upheld by the Supreme ('ourt of the United States

even thouKb carried on in violation of and in defiance

oi' a statutory enactment.

VI.

This Court has inadvei-tently taken a completely un-

realistic view of the situation befoi-e us and lias ig-

nored the situation with re,e:ard to tlie constitutional

ri^ht of ])eaceful ])icketin,i;- whicli is a matter of com-

mon knowledge with the bench, tlic bn?-, and IcL'nl

literature.

Api)ellants respectfully pray the Court to urant a

rehearing herein.

Dated, San Francisco, California,

January 7, 1949.

Respectfully submitted,

Clarence E. Toim),

ROFiERT W. CtH-HERT,

Allan L. Sapiro,

Atforiiff/s for A p/Kllriiifs

nud Pcfitioucrs.









No. 11,894

IN THK

United States Court of Appeals

For the Ninth Circuit

Prjntincj Specialties and Paper Con-

VEHTF<:i{s Union, L(>c;ai, :iS8, A.F.I>.,

and Walter J. Turner,
Appellants,

vs.

Howard K. LeBaron, Regional Diioc-

tor oF the 21st Re.^ioii ol' tlie National

Labor Relations Board, on BeliaM' of

the National Lnbor Rdatioiis Board,

Appellee.

BRIEF IN SUPPORT OF PETITION FOR A REHEARING.

Appellants most earnestly nrge this Court to 2:rant

a rehearing- of this case, and in that behalf we wish

to lay the following considerations before the Court

:

We accept the statement of the issue found in th(^

last paragra])h on ])age 3 of the opinion, and wher<^

the Court (on page 5) relies upon the Hitter's Cafe

case as decisive of the constitutional right of peaceful

picketing within the particular industry in this (^ase.

we will ])oint out that that decMsion holds to tlu^ o\i\c\

contrary.



We believe that the Court has completely miscon-

strued the scope and effect of Section 8(c), and in

l)articular that the Court did not have in mind the

manner in which 8(c) was dragged into the case.

Finally, we believe that this Court has completely

misapprehended tlie very meaning of picketing as it

is discussed and u^jheld in the controlling decisions of

the Supreme Court of the United States. And now let

us proceed as l:>i'iefly and succinctly as we may to the

points of the argument.

I.

THE ISSUE HERE AS POSED BY THE GENERAL COUNSEL AND
AS ACCEPTED BY THIS COURT AS TO WHETHER PICKET-
ING CAN BE RESTRICTED TO A CIRCLE COMPRISING AN
EMPLOYER AND HIS OWN EMPLOYEES HAS BEEN RE-

PEATEDLY DECIDED BY THE SUPREME COURT OF THE
UNITED STATES IN FAVOR OF THE CONTENTION OF AP-

PELLANTS HEREIN.

At ])age 3 of the opinion the issue is summarized in

this way : ''The debate here is whether peaceful picket-

ing may const!tutionall}^ l)e confined to the area of an

industrial dispute, or in plainer language, to the prem-

ises of the employer with whom the dispute is in

progress." This is the ])osition taken by the attorney

for the Regional Director.

Now we respectfully submit that this very question

has been before the Supreme Court of the United

States not once Init repeatedly and in every single

instance the Supreme Court has held distinctly, and in

several cases by the use of the same terms as quoted j



above, that economic activity cannot he so confined. In

the case of A. F. of /.. v. Siving {'M2 U.S. :i21, fil S.Ct.

5G8 [85 L.Ed. 855]), cited rej^eatedly in our Opening:

Brief, the same contentioTi was made with regard to

the I'i^ht to Hmit picketing to an area comprisin^^ oidy

an employer and Ins own employees and the Supreme
Court said (at |)a,i;(' '52fi), "A state cainiot exclude

working-men Prom ])eacefuliy (ixercisinp^ the no^ht of

free comnHuiication by drawing the circle of economic

competition between employers and workers so small

as to contain only an em])]()ver and tliose directly em-

])loyed by him."

We have in mind the distinction sought to be drawn

by this Court in its opinion between picketing which

is free speech and picketing which is conducted in

support of a boycott; in other words, betw^een ineffec-

tive and effective picketing. This we shall discuss fully

a little later. But just now we are talking about the

area of ])icketing, not its effectiveness cu- ineffective-

ness, and it is clear that w^hen this Coui-t seeks to re-

strict the area to a circle comi)i-ising oidy an em])loyer

and his own employees the Court is attempting to

overrule the decisions of the Supreme Court of the

United States.

While considering this i)oint, it may be well to re-

call that this same language was used by the Supreme

Court in Cafeteria Employees Union v. AngeJos, 320

U.S. 293, at 296. Although the Angelas case, decided a

year and a half after the Bitter's Cafe case, was cited

repeatedly to this Court by a])pellants (O]). I>r. 33, 47.

51; Heply Br. 11, 12) the instant opinion tolallu
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ignores this latest pronouncement by the Supreme

Court on the constitutional aspects of peaceful picket-

ing. In relying- upon the Ritter's Cafe case for the

proposition that "* * * the state has the right to de-

termine whether the common interest is best served by

imposing restrictions upon the use of Aveapons for

inflicting economic injury in the struggle of conflicting

industrial forces", this Court has chosen to disregard

the unanimous decision in the Angelos case which gave

recognition through the opinion of Mr. Justice Frank-

furter (who also wrote the Rifter's Cafe opinion) to

"* * * the right of workers to state their case and to

appeal to the public for support in an orderly and

peaceful mannei* regardless of the area of immunity

as defined by State policy/^

In addition we call the Court's attention to 31ilk

Wagon Drivers v. Meadoivmoor Dairies, 312 U.S. 287,

where it appears in the statement of the case that the

employers brought suit against the miion "to enjoin

defendaiits fi'om interfering with the sale of plaintiff's

products by picketing stores where its products were

sold," etc. And in that case it was held that such

picketing was a constitutional right and could not be

restrained where it was carried on peacefully. (See

pages 298, 299.)



II.

THE SUPREME COURT IN THE RITTER'S CAFE CASE DID NOT
RESTRICT THE AREA OF PICKETING TO AN EMPLOYER
AND HIS OWN EMPLOYEES BUT RECOGNIZED THE RIGHT
OF PICKETING ANYWHERE WITHIN THE INDUSTRY.

'i^he Hitter's Cafe decision (315 U.S. 722) is cited in

I'avor of various forms of restiiction. 'I'he loamed

trial .judj2^e in tlio (;ase at bar cited the Hitter's Cafe

decision as j)r()hil)itiiis "coercive" picketing; and the

oj)iniuii of tliis Coiii-t cites the same decision as up-

liolding the limitation of picketing to the premises of

the employer and to a circle comprising only an em-

])loyer and his own emj)loyees.

The Kitter's Cafe case occui)ies an interesting posi-

tion. It has never, so far as the CMtator shows, })een

cited ])y tlie Supreme Court of the United States, not

even in subsequent ])icketing decisions wi*itten by the

same author. Howevej-, it was a majority decision, has

never been reversed and is accepted liere as laying

down a cei'tain limitation on ])icketing under certain

circumstances then before the Court.

The facts are no doubt t'amiUar to the Court. The

carpenters and painters had a dispute with a building

conti'actor who was employing non-union laboi*. They

picketed the building i)roject and the Supreme Court

of the United States in this decision upheld their right

to picket the building i)ro,iect and, impliedly, to picket

the building contractor wherever he might W engaged

(page 727). However, the courts of Texas held, and

the Supreme Court of the United States affirmed the

ruling, that the cni'])enters and painters niight ho pre-
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vented by state law and l:)y consequent injunction from

picketing- a fully imionized restaurant located a mile

and a half from the building project and having, so

far as the record shows, no connection with the build-

ing then being- constructed, except that the restaurant

belonged to the same man who had engaged the con-

tractor to construct the building a mile and a half

away.

The Supreme Court of the United States held that

there was no "nexus'' l)etween the construction of the

))uilding for some unidentified purpose and the fulh^

unionized cafe, and the Court spoke in that regard of

the conscription of neutrals. In order to make per-

fectly clear what they meant, or rather what they did

not mean, by "neutrals" or "conscription" the Court

went out of its way (at T)age 727) of the Bitter's Cafe

decision to reaffiim the decision handed down the same

day in Baker ij and Pastri/ Drivers v. Wohl, 315 U.S.

769, where they upheld the right of striking: bakery

drivers to picket the customers of their employer.

Thus we find that a careful examination of the

Hitter's Cafe case shows that in the first place it says

nothing about "coercive" picketing as distinguished

from any other kind of picketing. In other words, it

does not discuss the nature of picketing at all, though

it takes for granted that lawful picketing will prob-

al)ly cause damage to the person picketed. Far from

limiting the area of picketing to a circle comprising

an employer and his own emj^loyees, the Court, by its

reference to the Wohl case indicates that the decision

is not intended to have that effect at all. What the
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decision does n[)li()lrl is tlic v\(rhi of pickotinp: any-

where ill, file industry, thus ajiprovint; witlioiit specifi-

cally mentioning' the language of Chief Justice Taft

in the old Tri-Citf/ case fAmerican Steel Fouyidriea v.

Tri-Citfi Central Trades r V>/Yj/r/7, 257 U.S. 184, at 21.S,

214) where it was held thai Hie infuihers of a labor

union, and the union itself, are interested in labor

conditions throughout the industry. (See als(» to flic

same effect |)age 209.)

In the case at bar, we hav(» peaceful picketing hy

employees of a struck employer of the products of the

employer located on trucks and ready for shipment,

'^riiis is com])letely analogous to the picketing by the

milk wagon drivers of the ]iroduct of their em-

ployer—milk—in the Meadowmoor case, supra, oi- by

the bakery drivers of the products of theii' employer,

to wit, bread, in the WoJtl case. Jn fact, in the latter

two cases the language of the Court refers to the

])icketing of the customers themselves rather than of

the product, and while this miglit seem to indicate a

distinction between "secondary boycott" and a "])rod-

uct boycott" it would not seem necessary to go further

into this distinction at this time.

The Bitter's Cafe case does not in any way suj^port

the opinion of this Court, and we ask for a rehearing

for that, among other reasons.
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III.

THIS COURT HAS INTERPRETED THE RESTRICTIONS OF SEC-

TION 8(b)(4)(A) IN A MANNER WHICH DOES VIOLENCE TO
ITS LEGISLATIVE HISTORY.

While this Court is quite correct in stating that the

Taft-Hartley Act does not use the terms "hot cargo,"

"picketing the product," or "secondary boycott,"

(Opinion, p. 4), neither does Section 8(b)(4)(A)

refer to any form of picketing in express terms. On
its face, the statute forbids unions or their agents to

''induce or encourage'' certain prohibited activity,

without reference to means. This admittedly broad

and sweeping restriction must be interpreted with

reference to the legislative history. (The Court will

recall that the General Counsel's attorney agreed at

the oral argument of this case that he would furnish

the Honorable Judges with a copy of the 2-volume

compilation of the legislative history of the Labor

Management Relations Act, 1947, prepared by the Na-

tional Labor Relations Board and published by the

Grovernment Printing Office, for use in administering

the statute.)

In refusing to make the distinction between the type

of picketing involved in this case, and other concerted

activities aimed at bringing full-scale economic sanc-

tions against a non-disputing employer, this Court has

overlooked or failed to give weight to the debate be-

tween Senator Robert A. Taft of Ohio and Senator

Claude Pepper of Florida, cited at page 55 of appel-

lants' Opening Brief. There Senator Pepper con-

tended that under Section 8(1)) (4) (A) "the languag-f^



would f'oi'hid OHO man <>?• ono a^cnt of a labor union

i^oing- to the omployoos of anotlioi- im]\)U>y(',v working

on a |)roduct put out l)y a rnaiiuCacturfr who would ho

unfair to th(Mn in llioii- opinion and att(Mn})ting to

pcTHuadf or induce those workers not to handle the

output of the factory in wliicli thcic was a disagree-

ment with the woikcrs/' and Sonatoi- TaCt imme-

diately rejected the notion hy stating, "I do not i\n\\v

understand the case which the Senator has put. 'j'his

provision makes it unlawful to resort to a secondary

boycott to injure tlie business of a third f)erson who is

wholly unconcerned in tlie disagreement between an

employer and his employees." (93 Daily Cong. Rec.

4322-4323, 4/20/47.)

IV.

THIS COURT HAS MISCONSTRUED THE STATUS OF
SECTION 8(c) IN THIS LEGAL SITUATION.

This ('Ourt, in the second ])aragraph on |)age 4.

seems to indicate that defendants were the fiT-st to cite

Section 8(c) for their own protection. This is erro-

neous. Section 8(c) was brought into the case by th(^

Regional Director by inserting in the findings a recital

that the picketing, which this (\)urt concedes was

peaceful (page 3 end of first ])aragraph), contained a

threat of reprisal or force and promise of benefit.

There was no such statement in the charge and we

object most strenuously to the insertion of that lan-

guage in the finding without there being the slightest
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e\ddence to support it. And now let us take up the

language of this Court in attempting to upliold this

finding. In the last paragraph on page 4 this Court

discusses the ordinary effect of a picket line, and in

particular the feeling and the conduct of union

workers in the presence of a picket line. This Court

recognizes that union niem1:>ers usually respect a le-

gitimate ])icket line, and the Court states that it is

naive to assume that a ])icket line which is thus re-

spected is merely a means of disseminating informa-

tion.

What is naive about that statement is tliat picket-

ing is unlawful the moment it becomes effective! The

nationwide citation in anti-labor l:)riefs to the lan-

guage of Justice Douglas in his concurring opinion

in the '^^ohl case to the effect that picketing is more

than speech naively assumes that the minute picketing

becomes more than sjjeech, that is the minute it be-

comes effective, it becomes illegal. This argument

parts company comj^letely with the decisions of the

United States Supreme Coui*t upholding the right of

peaceful picketing, as we shall show.

Thus, the Trial Examiner who heard the "unfair

labor practice" charges which gave rise to the instant

injunction, took a view in his Intermediate Report

regarding the ''application of Section 8(c) to Section

8(b)(4)(A)" which is completely contrary to that

of the District Court and this Court of Appeals

herein. (Intermediate Report of Trial Examiner A.

Bruce Hunt, issued May 4, 1948, in Mafter of Print-
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ing Specialties and Paper ('(mveriers Ihnov, Loeal

:]88, A.F.IJ. and Sealrif/hf Pacific, IAd., NLRP> C.^ase

No. 21-CC-i:}.)

In lioldiii,^ that Section 8((') is ai)})lioal)l(' to Sec-

tion 8(b)(4)(A) and that i^'accful pickctiiiu- uiidcT'

tlie circumstances cmhi-aced licvc is crnhraced witliin

the inununizin.u' language of Section 8(c), tlie Hoard's

Trial Examiner cites Thorn liill v. Alabama, olO T.S.

88, 102, Carlson v. California, :U0 T.S. KMi, I]:], Milh

Wafjon Drivers Union v. Meadowinoor Dairies, 312

U.S. 287, 293, .1. F. of L. v. Swing, 312 U.S. 321, 323,

as well as the Hitter's Cafe and Wohl cases, stating:

"* * * the language of vSection 8(c) s])ecitically

states that it shall ))e ap])lical)le to allegations of

unfair labor ])]"actices 'under any of the provi-

sions of this Act.' That statement is not ambigu-

ous * * *

^' These cases, manifestly, require the conclusion

that i)eaceful i)icketing is a form of free s])eech.

As such, peaceful ])icketing must be regarded as

embraced within the following language of Sec-

tion 8(c): 'The expressing of any views, argu-

ment, or opinion, or the dissemination thereof,

whether in written, |)rinted, gra])hic, or visual

form * * ^' " (I.R., p. 18.)

In view of the submission ))y the Cxeneral Counsel

of the opinion in United Brotherhood of Carpoiters

and Joiners of America v. Sperry ((\C.A. 10th, de-

cided November 2, 1948), F. (2d)
,
after the

conchision of oral argument herein, and the complete

failure oC this Court to aft'ord appellants any oppor-
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tmiity to comment upon said opinion before the deci-

sion of this appeal, we wish to specifically ur.ce rehear-

ing for those particular reasons. We desire a reason-

able opportunity to pont out the distinction l^etween

the Carpenter.s case and the instant one as to the

facts, particularly since this Court has twice cited

that opinion which holds that "The promulgation and

circulation of a blacklist and the picketing of prem-

ises as the means of waging a secondary boycott which

has the effect of substantially burdening or ol^struct-

ing interstate commerce is not protected by the First

Amendment or Section 8(c) of the act." Whatever

may be said as to the correctness of the Carpenters

decision, it is not entitled to even persuasive authority

herein. We will point out to this Court, upon rehear-

ing should this request be granted, how the Board's

Trial Examiner iu the Printing Specialties case re-

lied upon the absence of power of the appellant labor

organization to discipline employees of Sealright and

West Coast for working in the i^resence of its pickets

as a strong factor in placing these picketing activities

within the immunizing lauguage of Section 8(c).

The opinion of this Court lays do^^Tl the view that

picketing is "* * * something other than a mere ex-

pression of ^^ews, argument or oi)inion" because it

constitutes "au appeal for solidarity." Concededly

the effectiveness of a picket line does not lie in its

value as a disseminator of information to the "un-

fair" employer. District Judge Rifkind made this

very plain in construing Section 8(b) (4) (A) in Bonds

V. Metropolitan Federation of Architects, 75 F. Suiip.
|



17

672, whon he said, "'riic cITcct of a strike woiiUl he

vastly attenuated if its a|)[)eals were liriiitcd to t}ie

employer's eonseience."

1liis (\)urt has completely disre.uarded the tact,

called to its attention at ])a,ues ()4-f)r) of Appellants'

Openini;- I>rief', that the lan^nat^e of Section 8(c)

closely ap])roximates the vc^fereiices in the Thorvhill

and Carlson cases to ])icketins' as one of the appro-

priate methods foi' "the dissemination of information

concerning' the facts of a lalior dis])',itc." in TliornhiJI

V. AlahavKi, 'MO U.S. 88, the Su|)ve;ne Court refers

to "the means used to juiblicize the facts of a labor

dis])ute, whether bij printed sign, />// jmmphlft, hi/

word of month, or otherwise.'' Carlson r. California,

310 U.S. lOH, hold that "The carrying- of sii^ns and

y)anners, no less than the raisini;- of a tiaL:,', is a natui-al

and ai)propviate means oi' con\eyin,ii,' information on

matters of public concern,'' citing' Stromberf/ v. Cali-

fornia, 2m U. S. 1359, tlie so-called "red flai-" case.

The Inference in the Carlso)i case to "approj)riate

means, whether by /iamphlet, bi/ ironl of inoidh, or

bi/ banner,'' undoubtedly insj)ired the descriptive ex-

pression concerninsi,- "written, printed, </raphie, or

visual form" of disseminating- Aiews, aronment, or

opinion contem])lated by Section 8(c).

By hoidint^,- that Section 8(c) is inap])licable to

picketing- ))ecause it a])])ea1s for concerted action by

fellow workmen, this Court has declined to follow the

"free speech" doctrine of the Supreme Court, which

declared in Thomas v. Collins, 323 U. S. 5ie;, r^?n, that
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"The First ArneiuliiKMit is a charter for .covernmeiit.

not for an institution of learning. 'Free trade in

ideas' means free trade in the opportunity to persuade

to action, not merely to describe facts."

V.

THE SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED STATES IN UPHOLDING
THE RIGHT OF PEACEFUL PICKETING AS A PHASE OF THE
CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHT OF FREE SPEECH HAS UPHELD
THE RIGHT OF EFFECTIVE AND SUCCESSFUL PICKETING
PURSUANT TO A PEACEFUL BOYCOTT SO LONG AS THE
PICKETING IS PEACEFUL.

In Thornhill v. Alabama, 310 U. S. 88, the statute

which the Su])reme Court invalidated as abridging the

right of free speech did not refer to "speech" at all.

It prohi))ited any one from going near a place of

business for the pur])ose of influencing or inducing

other ])ersons not to do business \\\W\ that ])articular

establishment; in other words, to boycott the particu-

lar place. Under this statute the kind of ])icketing

which this Court seems to approve was not forbidden,

that is to say, the mere carrying of a banner some-

where making an amiouncement of some kind, pos-

sibly of the existence of a labor dispute, but without

any effect whatever upon passersby. The statute pro-

hibited the boycott of a place of business by a ])icket

line for the purpose of preventing the patronage of

that particular place of business, and it was this pre-

vention of patronage which the Su])reme C-ourt was

referring to when the Court said at page 102:
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'^Tn tin* cii'dHristaiiccs of omv times the dis-

serninatioii of infonnatioii coiK^'inin^ the facts of

a lal)()i' (lis])iit(> rmist Ix; re^ardin^- as vvitliiri that

area of lice discussion tliat is guaranteed by the

constitution,"

And on pa.i^'es 104, lOf), the Coin-t said:

''Abi'idgnient of tlie lihei-ty of such discussion

can he justified only wliere the ch'ai' dangei' of

su])stantive evils arises undcu- circumstances af-

fordini;' no opportunity to test tlie merits of ideas

by coni})etition foi' accej)tance in tlie market of

public opinion. We hold that the danger of in-

Jury to an industrial concern is neither so serious

nor so innninent as to .justify the swee|)infi- pro-

scription of freedom of discussion eml)odied in

Section 3448."

Bear in niiiul that the statute as set out on pa^ea 91

and 92 of the decision says notliinc," alxnit conversa-

tion nor does the sununary of the com])laint ai^-ainst

petitioner, found at pa^e 92, refer to anything done

by tlie picket except tliat he loitered and picketed for

the pur])ose of hindering, delaying and interfering

with tiie business of the party ])icketed. And on ])age

99 the Court, in referring to the purpose ol' the

picketing, as understood by the Supreme Court in this

decision upholding ])icketing as a constitutional right,

said, ''the ])urpose of the described activity was con-

cededh' to advise customers and ]iros}iective custo-

mers of the reiationshi}) existing between the em-

ployer and its employees and thei'eby to induce ^uch

custoni(>rs not to pati-onize the employer."
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And on page 100 the intention is again referred to

in this langnage, "An intention to hinder, delay or

interfere with a lawfnl l)nsiness, which is an element

of the second oft'ense, likewise can be proved merely

by sliowing that others reacted in a way normally

expectable of some upon learning the facts of a

dispute.
'

'

This would clearly refer to union members and to

their natural reaction to a picket line as referred to

by this Court in the last paragraph on page 4 of the

opinion. That the Supreme Court well understood

that the picketing might be effective and might cause

damage to the person ]ncketed is clearly shown on

page 104 where the Court said

:

"It ma}' be that effective exercise of the means

of advancing pul)lic knowledge may persuade

some of those reached to refrain from entering

into advantageous relations with the business

establishment which is the scene of the dispute.

Every expression of opinion on matters that are

imi)ortant has the potentiality of inducing action

in the interests of one rather than another group

on society."

It is clear then that the Supreme Court of the

United States understood ])erfectly the rule which it

was laying down in the Thornhill case, and there is no

harm in recalling that there was no dissent from this

opinion,—all the justices concurring except Justice

McReynolds. The picket line as a means of protect-

ing the economic interest of the workers has been in

use for a long time, for generations in fact. And to
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hoTTovv the laiimia^v ol* this Coiu't airaiii, the Sn])r('mo

(.uiirt of the IJiiitod Statis in the 'I'lioinliill (h'ci.siuTi

was not so iiai\(' as lo inisundo-stand oi- rnisconstTiic

ill any way the cITcct tA' a jK-accCnl picket line.

It is idle to discuss the cnnstitutioiial riulit of

l)eacef'ul |)i('kotin'r as if it inehuh's only f'ntile and

ineffective utteianccN. 'i'iic i-iL'Jit of peaceful picket-

iiii^- is protected by the Hill of Ili.uhts and hy the

Suf)i'enie Court of the riiiteil States in a dispute by

a union ''deemed by them t<> be i-elevant to their in-

terests" (A. F. of L. r. Stvinij, supra, at pai;*e 32f)), tlie

hiiii»ua^e beini;- that of Mr. Justice Frankfurter, the

author of tlie o])inion in the Riitcr's Cafr case.

In fact, tliere is no case with which the writer is

familiar where tlie rit^ht of abs<dutely futile, ineffec-

tive, sterile ])icketiu,<>- has been adjudicated. Nor has

there ever been any oecasion foi- such adjudicatio?i.

When striking- workers ,i>ive uj) their days to the

carrying- of a banner they are not doini^- it for fun.

They are doing- it to enlist syinj)athy in theii- ])artieu-

lar battle. In some circumstances their a])peal is

primarily to the ))ublic and in other cases, as in the

one at bar, they are a])])ealiu,u- to theii- fellow workers.

In either case they intend and expect the picketinu-

to be eifective.
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VI.

THE MISINTERPRETATION AND MISCONCEPTION BY THIS
COURT OF THE RIGHT OF PEACEFUL PICKETING SEEKS
TO OVERRULE THE SUPREME COURT OF THE UNITED
STATES AND TO NULLIFY THE PROVISIONS OF THE FIRST

AMENDMENT.

Fifty ,yeai's a.^o a decision of this Court disapprov-

ing- the right of picketing for tlie purpose of inter-

fering with ))nsiness would liave heen readily mider-

stood. But in tliis year of 1948, in view of the

decisions of tlie Su])reme Court of the United States

for the hist ten years, l)eg'inning with the Sew case

(301 U. S. 468, decided May 24, 1937), the decisions

of federal Courts liolding tliat under the Taft-Hartley

Act peaceful picketing of the ty])e involved here can

be enjoined are simply incomprehensible.

And the manner in which this conclusion is arrived

savors of the magical. Ilie definition of the phj^sical

act of picketing, as set out in the decision of this

Court herein and of the C^ourt of the Second

Circuit in the Sperry case referred to by this Court,

does not vary from that of the Sui:)reme Court of the

United States in the Soin, Thornhill, Meadowmoor,
Siving, Angclos, Wohl and Ritter's Cafe cases, nor in

fact could the definition be changed because picketing

is an objective act familiar to all of us. This Court,

in the last x)aragra])h on ])age 4 of the decision, cor-

rectly describes certain features, as for instance, that

picketing may be something more than a mere expres-

sion of views, argument or opinion, that it frequently

or habitually constitutes an appeal for solidarity and

that workers are reluctant to cross a i^icket line. AH



23

of th(^ decisions of the Supreme (Jonr-I of tlic Uiiitcfl

States referriiii;' to pieketiiii:!,' Iiave i-ecognized these

as[)eets and chai'acteristies, and it is with tliis full

I'eco^iiition that the Snp](>nie Court lias uplield the

rijj'ht ol' p(^aeefnl pieketini;- as a er>Tistitutional T'iq:lit.

Where tlie rii^'lit (»!' pieketini;- has Ix'cn limited hy the

Supreme (\)urt it has ne\-er been l)e('aus(> of tlic effee-

tiveness of ])ea('erul |)icketin^' in a dispute inxolvinu"

employment relations for the pu7*i)oses of colleetive

hari^aininji'. In the MeadoH'iiioor case, the picketinu;

was enjoined because o\' the \iolence, the threat of

which the Court found was still in existence. But

the Court made it clear that the restraint must cease

the moment the ])icketinj2,- resumed a peaceful char-

acter. In the Ritfcr's Cafe case, ))icketiiift' was not

])rohibited because it vv'as effective, because workers

I'efused to cross the ])icket line, or because* it would

cause injury. The picketing- of one particular place

of business was enjoined for the sole reason that that

particular, business was not within the )H'.rns of the

dispute.

In the AJUni-Bradlcf/ r. Local No. S case {''V2rt V. S.

797) a boycott by the workers in their own intei-est

was held lawful, the i)rohil)ition going only to action

by the union on behalf of em])loyers in a ])rogram of

price fixing and market control.

But enough of genei-alization. The picketing in-

volved here was directed at the product of a struck

employer. It was not even directed personally at the

carriers or the customers in whose i)ossession the

product was i'ound. Hut, assuming that this was
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actual picketing- pursuant to a secondary boycott, it

was the precise type of secondary boycott in which

the Court upheld tlie right of peaceful picketing in

Milk Wagon Drivers v. Meadowwoor Dairies so long

as it was peaceful, and in Bakery Pastry Drivers v.

WoM which was expressly affirmed in the Rifter^s
\

Cafe case (at page 727) for the evident purpose of ;

making it clear that the limitation in the Hitter's Cafe

decision did not go to the extent of ]n'ohibiting a sec-

ondary l)oycott.

And the picketing at bar was the exact ty])e which

was upheld by the Su])reme Court of (California by

a vote of six to one in the case of In re Blaney, 30

Cal. (2d) 643. AVhile that decision is not binditig

upon this Court, its language is extremely persuasive.

It cites the decisions of the Su})reme Cburt of Cali-

foT'uia, l)ut also cites and relies upon the same de-

cisions of the Supreme Court of the United States on

which appellants here i)lace their reliance.

VII.

THE PICKETING AT BAR WAS NOT FOR AN
UNLAWFUL PURPOSE.

The exx)ression "jiicketing for an unlawful pur-

pose" is frecjuently used in cases of the type of the

one at bar. In the Bhtney case, above referred to, the

Supreme Court of C-alifornia made this very perti-

nent comment: "And the purpose of the economic

pressure and the means used to exert it must be law-

ful (citations), but tliat proposition poses the question
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in terms of icsuHs. Hatlicr it is fnoi'cly stating; the

problem in other words. 'Plic (jiiestion still i-emaius

as to what j)iiiiM)ses oi- what inearis may he deelared

unlawful by the Je.i^islatuic (»i- the Courts without

violatiui>' the piovisions of tlie (Constitution." The

Supreme (^ourt of Caliroi-nia tlicn piocceds to fite

the decisions oi' the Su])renie Coui-t of tlic Cnited

States whieh we haxc cited t(» this Conit in the case

at bar, namely, the M( adowmoor Dairji case where

the means emj)]oyed included extreme violence, the

Ritter's Cafe and Wohl cases, the Swhig case and

Near v. Minne.'iota. And the Su])reme Court of Cali-

fornia, as above stated, proceeded to hold jucketing-

of the exact type of that in the case at l)av to be in

the exercise of the constitutional vi,i;ht of \'vi'v speech

under the First Amendment.

Let us see what we mean—"unlawful ])urpose."

The unlaw Cu I ])ur})ose in the case at l)ar is very

evidently the violation of the Taft-Hartley Act. If

I)icketing' and violation of a statute is ]iicketino- foi*

an unlawful ])uri)ose, then the picketinu" in TJiornhill

V. Alabama was for a like unlawful ])ur])ose. The

kmguage of the Alabama statute was, for the ]iurpose

of our present discussion, completely analogous with

the language of the Taft-Hartley Act because it pro-

hibited picketing for the puri)ose of causing injury to

the ijerson picketed. Similarly, the picketing in the

Blaney case was in violation and defiance of the Cali-

fornia Hot Cargo Act which language is to the same

purport, so far as our puipose is concerned, as that

of the Taft-Hartley Act.
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In Swwg V, A. F. of h., 312 U. S. 321 [85 L. Ed.

855], the picketing in a controversy other than a dis-

pnte l)etween an employer and his own em])1oyees was

contrary to the pnl^lic i)olicy of the State of Illinois

and therefore against pnl)lic policy as the term seems

to be miderstood in the case at bar.

The Conrt will note that in the Thornhill case while

the picketing was in violation of the statnte of the

state of Alabama, the Snpreme Conrt npheld the right

to picket as a constitntional right, and annulled the

statute. In the other cases mentioned, the right to

picket was upheld under the constitutional guarantee.

In the case at ])ar, we have argued that if Section

8(c) is read with the remainder of the provisions

relied upon, the picketing will not be in violation of

the statute, since it will come under the exce])tion, but

that if it is held (as this Court has held) that Section

8(c) has no ap])licati()n, then, since the ])icketing is

clearly the exercise of a constitutional right, this por-

tion of the statute nmst fall.

With regard to the connection of Section 8(c)

which this Court held to have no application, we may

again remind the Court that the general counsel and

his attorneys not only believe that Section 8(c) does

apply but that they apparently consider it vital to

their case since they injected into the findings a de-

cription of the ])icketing as (impliedly) containing a

threat of reprisal and promise of benefit.

The reliance of the attorneys for the Board upon

the text of the Taft-Hartley x\ct and the congressional
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discussions wliicli accompauicd its loi-mnlatioTi aiul

passai^o makes out a cloar case of conflict botwcen the

Taft-TIartley Act and the Bill of Hiirlits. The liill

of ltii;hts says that workei's alon*; with ev(!ryl)ody

else have tiie Ti,<;ht oi' Irec^ sjx'eeh and the Suf)i'eine

Court oC the United States has interpreted this ri-j^lit

of free si)eeeh as the ri.Liht to puhlicize a lahoi- dis])ute

p(uicefully and within the econotnic ik.iks lor the

purpose of intluencinsi.- other woi'kei's and the |)uhlic

to withdraw or withhold theii- patrona,s>'e Proni the

picketed concern. Aloni;- comes the Taft-Hartley Act

and says that this tyi)e of i)icketinp,- cannot he done,

just as the Legislatni'e oF Alabama said it could not

be done, the Legislature of California under the Hot

Cargo Act said it could not be done, or ))ublic policy

of the State of Illinois said it could not be done, and

yet these statutes and this ])ublic ])olicy wei-e held

l)y the Supreme Court ol' the United States to be

inferior and subordinate to the Bill of Rights. The

same ruling nnist be ap])lied to the Taft-Hartley law.

VIII.

THE ECONOMIC JUSTIFICATION FOR PICKETING THE PROD-

UCT IN THE WOHL CASE ALSO SHOULD HAVE BEEN
FOUND TO EXIST HEREIN.

This Court has declined to apjjly the holding in

Bakery Drivers Local v. Wohl, 315 U.S. 769, to the

present case upon the assum])tion that the facts and

circumstances there were "peculiar"' and ** extraor-

dinary". It finds that in the Wnhl case, the Supreme
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Court thought ''it was practically impossible for the

union to make known its legitimate grievances" ex-

cept by means of a product boycott.

Without being ready to admit that the Wohl case

stands for so narrow a proposition, we urge that the

identical economic .instification for a i^roduct ])oyeott

appears in the instant case. It apparently was not

considered althougli called to this Court's attention

at pages 8 and 9 of ap]:)ellants' reph^ brief. The nature

of 8ealright products—milk bottle caps and ])aper

food containers—like the bakery goods in the WoJiI

case—causes them to lose their identity as to place of

manufacture before reaching the ultimate consumer.

The District Court injunction foi'indding the Seal-

right strikers from following the subject matter of the

dispute, set apart a particular enterprise—Sealright

—

and freed it from all effective picketing in the same

fashion as the New York injunction in the Wohl case,

concerning which Mr. Justice Douglas said :

"If the principles of the Thorn hi11 case are to

survive, I do not see how New York can ])e al- -

lowed to draw that line."

IX.

NOTHING CONTAINED IN THIS OPINION INDICATES THAT THE
"CLEAR AND PRESENT DANGER" TEST WAS EVEN CON-

SIDERED.

Despite rei)eated references by appellants to deci-

sions of the Supi'eme Court holding that labor speech,

inchiding peaceful })icketing, may not be curtailed in
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the abscnoo of a "cloai' and ])rescnt daniror" of tlic

gravest abuses endangei-ing our f'oT'ui of society as a

whole, the opinion is completely silent as to this fun-

damental argument. (Op. T^,r. 44-45, 57; Reply Br. 10.)

In the Carlson ease, tlic Supreme Court of the

United States declared

:

"The power and duty of the State to take ade-

quate steps to preserve the peace and piotcct the

privacy, the lives, and the |)roperty oP its resi-

dents caimot be dou})ted. liut the ordinance in

question here abridges liberty of discussion undei-

circumstances ])resenting no dear and prfscnf

danger of substantive evils within the allowable

area of State control."

(310 U.S. at 113, cmi)hasis added.)

The power of Congress under "The Commerce

Clause"—like the police power of a State—is subject

to the basic guarantees of the Jiill of Rights.

In Bridges v. California, 314 U.S. 252, the Supreme

Court again ])ointed out that restrictions u])on ])eace-

ful picketing were subject to the exacting test applied

to all forms of curtailment of the cognate rights as-

sured by the First Amendment:
"* * * very recently we have also suggested that

* clear and. present danger' is an appropriate guide

in determining the constitutionality of restrictions

upon expression where the substantive evil sought

to l)e prevented ])y the restriction is 'destructive

of life or property, or invasion of the right of

privacy.' Thornhiil v. Alabama, 310 U.S. 88, 105,

60 S. Ct. 736, 745, 84 L. Ed. 1093 * *
*"
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Government's power to legulate labor union activity

as an exercise of its duty to safeguard and i^roniote the

public welfare must not trespass upon the domains

set apart for free assembly and free speech unless

.s^rave danger to paramount interests would thereby

l)e i^revented. This rule is equally applical^le to laws

aimed at preventing union officers or members from

platform speaking {Hague v. C.I.O., 307 U.S. 496;

Thomas v. Collins, 323 U.S. 516), handhilling, Schnei-

der V. Totvn of Irvington, 308 U.S. 147), or picketing

(Thornhill , Carlson, Wohl, Siving and Angelos cases,

supra). Yet, nowhere does this Court's opinion indi-

cate that any consideration was given to this test in

passing upon the validity of Section 8(b)(4)(A).

It is significant that the opinion does refer to Sec-

tion 8(b)(4)(A) as a statute which ''* * * broadly

sweeps within its prohihition an entire pattern of in-

dustrial warfare deemed l)y (-ongress to be harmful

to the public interest". (]). 4.) Under the "clear and

present danger" rule, as applied in Thornhill v.

Alabama and Carlson v. California, such a statute

"which does not aim specifically at evils within the

allowable area of state control, but on the contrary

sweeps ivithin its ambit other activities that in ordi-

nary circumstances constitute an exercise of freedom

of speech* * * " must be declared unconstitutional, for

"The existence of such a statute results in a con-

tinuous and pervasive restraint on all freedom of dis-

cussion that might reasonably be regarded as coming

ivithin its purview."



31

Whilo it is true, as tlir ojiinion states (p. 4), that

"The wisdom or policy of eiifiirnscrihiDtr the use of

the weapon is not, of* course, a niattei- with whicli tin-

Courts are entitled to concern tlieniselves", nonethe-

less this Court cannot esca])e tiic dutN laid down for

it by the Supreme Court in Thomas v. ColUnfi, which

said:
a* * * j^j ^^^^y system where the line can consti-

tutionally be placed presents a (|uesti(ni this Court
cannot escaf)e answerinu independently, trhatrrrr

the legislative judfjmemt, in the li,s:]it of our con-

stitutional tradition. Schneider r. State, 808 CS.
147, 161. And the answei*, under that ti-adition,

can be affirmati\e to su})port an iiitrusion u])on

that domain, only if (jrave and imjicudivf) fxtblir

danger requires this.''

X.

THE ONE THING NECESSARY FOR A SOLUTION OF THE ISSUE
BEFORE US IS A REALISTIC APPROACH.

The argument on which counsel for the Board relies

in its opinion is that if the acts charged are violations

of the Taft-Hartley law they must be enjoined. There

is substantial agreement that the acts charged are

violations of some of the language of the Taft-Hartley

Act except as qualified by Section 8(c). The (juestion

here is no different from the question which has arisen

in so many of the picketing injunction cases, namely,

does the particular statute or ordinance attem])t to

prohibit peaceful ])icketing within the area of a lab<^r

dispute? The answer here cannot be nny ditTrront
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from the answer in cases of other statutes which have

sought to do what this particular portion of this stat-

ute attempts to do. I

Ever since the Taft-Hartley Act was passed it has |

l)een recognized by thouglitful lawyers not deafened I

by the din and commotion in favor of the enforcement j

of every jot and tittle of the measure that the provi-
J

sions here under consideration might infringe upon

the constitutional riglit of peaceful picketing. Articles

in law journals have raised this point, and in a recent

bulletin put out by the Commerce Clearing House

Labor Law Reporter a])pears an article headed "Pic-

keting and the Right of Free Speech", being para-

grapli 5120 at page .')62L Here we find a very calm

and objective appraisal of the right of peaceful pic-

keting—primary and secondary—and a suggestion

that if the Taft-Hartley Act attempts to prohibit

peaceful picketing—primary or secondary—it may be

unconstitutional. Some of the propositions are: "If

the picketing is peaceable, however, it is protected

even though it does not arise in an employer-employee

relationship; i.e., 'stranger' picketing is protected by;

the right of free speech. 'Secondary' picketing, the*

picketing of businesses or persons not directly in-

volved in the labor dispute, is likewise held immune to
,

restrictive legislation, except where the pickets leave
|

the industrial 'area' of the original dispute to bring
!J

into it parties who are not in 'unity of interest'. * * ^

The Supreme Court has held that picketing is pro

tected notwithstanding the fact that it may induce or

encourage a boycott, and, as we have seen, 'secondary'
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pickotiiii]^ is held immune so \o\iu; as it I'cmains within

the iTidiistrial area where the lahoi- dispute arose."

That change is well kriowTi to aiithoi-ities on labor law

and should not he iiiiiorcd in tlic sohition nf flic «|n(*stion

at bar. 'I'he United States Sni)r('ni<' Coni-t foi- a decade

has nf)held the I'i^ht ol' |)eaeeful ])ieketin,u- unde?- the

exact circumstances found here and for the exaet pur-

poses and with the jU'ecise effects which are found to

exist in the case at bar, and the Supreme Coui't has

upheld this constitutional rio'ht regardless of statutes

or of j)ublic policy. Since these are matters of common
knowledge it is extremely unrealistic to have them

ignored in the decision of this case on the assum])tion

that the I>ill of Rights has been repealed or abridged

by the ])assage of the Taft-Hartley law.

When the law was first enacted strong arguments

were made to the effect that this congresvsional statute

expressed a definite national policy which presumably

would continue in effect indefinitely. On the second oC

last Novem})er a popular referendum was taken on a

number of issues, including the issue of the Taft-

Hartley Act, and the vote of the ])eo])le seemed to

forecast a different national policy so far as the Taft-

Hartley Act is concerned. If the Taft-Hartley Act is

repealed by the Eighty-first Congress, such repeal will

constitute a declaration of public policy to the same

extent as but no more than the original passage of the

Act by the Eightieth (^ongress, twn constat, but the

Eighty-first Congress might re-establish the Aet in

certain res])ects, or entirely.
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The above suggestions are made to indicate the

soundness of a judicial policy which shall adhere to

the words of the Constitution,—which cannot be

amended by each successive Congress in accordance

with prevailing public ojjinion at the time. The de-

cisions of the Supreme Court which we have referred

to, some of them unanimous like the Wohl case, others

practically so, like the ThornJiill case, have rested

strictly and strongly on the provisions of the Consti-

tution. We ask this Court to grant a rehearing of this

case in order that the final decision may be in accord-

ance with those constitutional principles.

Appellants respectfully i)ray the Court to grant a

rehearing herein.

Dated, San Francisco, California,

January 7, 1949.

Respectful ly submitted,

Clarence E. Todd,

Robert AV. Gilbert,

Allan L. Saptro,

Attorneys for Appellants
and Petitioners.
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I hereby certify that I am <»f counsel for appellants

and petitioners in tlio above entitled cause and that in

my judgment the foregoing petition for a rehearing is

well founded in point of law as well as in fact and that

said ])etiti()n for a rehearing is not interposed foi-

delay.

Dated, San Francisco, California,

J anuary 7, 1949.

Clarence E. Todd,

Of Coiriisrl for A pp( Ihnifs

and Petiiioncrs.
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